

 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL  
AND WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT AGENDA 


 


APRIL 14, 2021 


4:00PM – CLOSED SESSION  
5:00 P.M. – REGULAR MEETING  


 
Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20, the 


City Council/ Cemetery District Meeting will be conducted electronically via video 
and teleconferencing.  


 


Join Zoom Meeting:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357 


 
OR 


Dial in: 1 (669) 900 6833 | Webinar ID: 848 0169 9357  
 


 
 


Dustin Nigg, Mayor/Chair, District 2 
Ben J. Benoit, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair, District 1 
Bridgette Moore, Council Member/Trustee, District 4 
Joseph Morabito, Council Member/Trustee, District 3 
Marsha Swanson, Council Member/Trustee, District 5 


 
 


Gary Nordquist              Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager /General Manager         City Attorney/District Counsel 



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


2 


  
 


 


The City Council/ Cemetery District Meeting will be conducted 
electronically via video and teleconferencing pursuant to the provisions of 


the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20  
 
The City of Wildomar encourages your participation in the meeting; however, in 
order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, this meeting is being 
conducted utilizing video and teleconferencing. The City Council Chambers will not 
be open to the public. The public may view the meeting on television and/or online 
and may participate via ZOOM Webinar Videoconferencing.  
 
You may view the Regular Session meeting live on the City of Wildomar’s website 
at http://www.cityofwildomar.org or on cable TV through Frontier Channel 36 or 
AT&T channel 99. To view from the website, select the live stream link on the top 
of the front page. 
 


Instructions for Electronic Participation  
 
If you would like to make a public comment and/or a comment on a specific agenda 
item, please follow the following instructions: 
 
1. Before joining the call, please silence your other communication devices such 
as your cell or desk phone. This will prevent any feedback or interruptions during 
the meeting.  
 
2. Log in or call into ZOOM via desktop/laptop, smartphone or telephone. You must 
download the ZOOM app to access the link from an Apple smartphone or IPAD. 
 
Please Note: During the meeting all participants video will be turned off 
during the entire meeting and you will be placed on Mute by the host. You 
will not be able to mute or unmute your lines manually. The host will unmute 
your line when you are called to speak.  
 
3. During Public Comment not on the Agenda and after each Agenda Item, the 
Mayor will announce Public Comment. If you would like to speak, please raise your 
hand virtually to be placed in the queue.  
 
When your name or the last 3 digits of your phone number are called, the host will 
unmute you. Public Comments will be limited to 3 minutes or such other time as 
the Council may provide.    
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a DESKTOP/LAPTOP: 
• At the bottom of the list, please click on the grey “Raise Hand” button. 
 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


3 


  
 


 


Directions to virtually raise hand on a SMARTPHONE: 
• Look for the “Raise Hand” button on the screen and click the button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a TELEPHONE line only: 
• Dial *9 on your keypad to signal that you would like to comment. When the Host 
unmutes you, Dial *6 to unmute. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, you should contact the City Clerk’s Office 
at 951-677-7751 x210. 
 
The City of Wildomar thanks you in advance for taking all precautions to prevent 
spreading the COVID 19 virus.  
  
NOTICE: City Council meetings may be live-streamed, photographed and/or 
videotaped. Participation at the meeting constitutes consent by members of the 
public to the City’s and any third party’s use in any media, without compensation 
or further notice, of audio, video, and/or pictures of meeting attendees. 
 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


4 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 4:00 P.M. 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and (3) to confer with legal counsel with 
regard to one matter of potential exposure to litigation. 
 
2. The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code Section 54956.8 to confer with legal counsel and conference 
with real property negotiators as follows: 
 
Properties: APN 365 250 040, vacant land located off of Cloud Burst Road and 
westerly of the extension of Baxter Road; APN 367 180 044, vacant land located 
off of Monte Vista Road and northerly of Wildomar Trail 
 
Agency negotiators: Gary Nordquist and Dan York 
 
Negotiating parties:  County of Riverside  
 
Under negotiation:  Instruction regarding price and terms of payment. 
 


 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 


 
 


ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 


 
ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


5 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
1. DMV/ Donate Life Month Proclamation 
2. Recognition to Residents Matt Draheim and Trevor Walsh for their assistance  


in the Elm St. Fire. 
3. EVMWD Budget and Rates Hearing 
4. Lake Elsinore Unified School District Update 
5. Other City Recognitions/ Presentations 
 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. New Employee Recognition: Senior Administrative Analyst Terri Abercrombie 


and Associate Engineer Cameron Luna 
2. Economic Development Department Update 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is the time when the Council receives general public comments regarding any 
items or matters within the jurisdiction that do not appear on the agenda.   
 
 


COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 


1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


6 


  
 


 


12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 


APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 


The City Council to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or, if it is the 
desire of the City Council, the agenda can be reordered, added to, or have items 
tabled at this time. 
 
 


1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 


All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Council, the Public, or Staff request to have specific items 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- February 10, 2021 Regular Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the following: 
  
1. Warrant Register dated 03-04-2021 in the amount of $381,871.93. 
2. Warrant Register dated 03-11-2021 in the amount of $1,133,742.08. 
3. Warrant Register dated 03-17-2021 in the amount of $20,571.31. 
4. Warrant Register dated 03-25-2021 in the amount of $545,513.71. 
   


1.4 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the Treasurer’s Report for February 2021. 
 


1.5 Resolution authorizing submittal of applications for all CalRecycle 
Grants for which the City of Wildomar is eligible 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 







City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


April 14, 2021 


7 


1.6 


1.7 


1.8 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _______ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION(S) FOR 
ALL CALRECYCLE GRANTS FOR WHICH THE CITY OF WILDOMAR IS 


ELIGIBLE 


Retain Interwest Consulting Group, Inc. to Provide Right-of-Way 
Acquisition Services for Phase 1 of the Clinton Keith Road Widening 
Project (CIP 025-1) 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 
authorize the City Engineer to retain Interwest Consulting Group, Inc. 
(Interwest) to provide Right-of-Way Acquisition services for Phase 1 of the 
Clinton Keith Rd. Widening Project (CIP 025-1). 


Notice of Completion – Guardrail Repair and Upgrades Project 
CIP 042, Federal Project #HSIPL-5484(013) 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled:


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_______ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE GUARDRAIL REPAIR AND 
UPGRADES PROJECT (CIP 042, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-


5484(013)) AS COMPLETE, AND AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PREPARE 
AND FILE THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION WITH THE RIVERSIDE 


COUNTY RECORDER 


2. Allocate $15,000 in Measure A funds for project administration costs.


Parcel Map 37941 - Final Map Approval, Subdivision Improvement 
Agreements, Lien Agreements 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 


1. Adopt a Resolution entitled:


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR TENTATIVE PARCEL 


MAP 37941 AND AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AND LIEN AGREEMENTS 


2. Authorize the City Engineer to accept the dedications related to Parcel 
Map 37941 and direct the City Clerk to transmit to the County Recorder of







City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


April 14, 2021 


8 


the County. 


1.9 Project #15-0036, Rancon Medical & Education Center, LLC - Parcel 
Maps 36492-1, 36492-2 and 36492-F Map Approval, Subdivision 
Improvement Agreements, Lien Agreements 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING PARCEL MAPS 36492-1, 36492-2 and 
36492-F AND AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AND LIEN AGREEMENTS 


1.10 Award Consultant Services Agreement for Preparation of Designs, 
Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates for Phase 1 Cemetery 
Improvements and Widening of Palomar Street from Gruwell Street to 
Wildomar Trail 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute a Services Agreement between
the City of Wildomar and Mark Thomas.


2. Authorize the City Engineer to approve up to 10% of the contract amount
for required additional services.


3. Appropriate at total of $277,000 from Fund 503 TUMF, for design and
preparation of the plans, specifications, and cost estimate for the project.


1.11 Adopt a Resolution to Acquire Tax-Defaulted Property 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
1. Adopt a Resolution Entitled:


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA APPROVING THE ACQUISITION OF TWO RIVERSIDE 
COUNTY TAX-DEFAULTED PROPERTIES FOR THE APPROXIMATE 


PURCHASE PRICE OF $57,750 PLUS ASSOCIATED ADMINISTRATIVE 
COSTS FOR ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBERS: 365-250-040 AND 367-


180-044


2. Authorize the Assistant City Manager to make any minor amendments to
the Resolution deemed necessary or required by the County of Riverside.







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


9 


  
 


 


 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  
2.1 Update to MSHCP Local Development Mitigation Fee (Continued from 


March 10, 2021) 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council take the 
following actions: 
 
1. Introduce, read by title and waive further reading of an Ordinance entitled:  
 


ORDINANCE NO. 196 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA AMENDING CHAPTER 3.42 OF THE 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE THE LOCAL 
DEVELOPMENT MITIGATION FEE FOR FUNDING THE 


PRESERVATION OF NATURAL ECOSYSTEMS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNTY MULTIPLE SPECIES 


HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN 
 
 
2. Adopt the attached Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-09 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA ESTABLISHING THE WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNTY 
MULTIPLE SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN LOCAL 


DEVELOPMENT MITIGATION FEE APPLICABLE TO ALL 
DEVELOPMENTS IN THE PLAN AREA 


 
2.2 User Fee and Labor Rate Update 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 
1. Introduce and approve first reading of an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING AND RESTATING ARTICLE II 
(FEE SCHEDULES) OF CHAPTER 3.44 (FEES) OF TITLE 3 (REVENUE 


AND FINANCE) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNCIPAL CODE, AND 
REPEALING SECTIONS 12.08.070, 17.284.030, 17.284.040, 17.284.050, 


and 17.284.060 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, PERTAINING TO USER 
FEES 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


10 


  
 


 


 
2. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF USER FEES 
 
 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  


 
3.1 COVID-19 Update  
 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council receive 


and file the COVID-19 Update and provide direction as desired. 
 
3.2 AB 168 Cultural Resource Treatment and Disposition Agreement 


between City & Pechanga/Soboba Tribes in connection with Tres 
Lagos Project 


 
This item is not a general discussion of the Tres Lagos Project or an 
approval of the Tres Lagos Project. It is a required step in the SB 35 process 
because the applicant has submitted a preliminary application. 


 
 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council 


authorize the City Manager to execute the Cultural Resource Treatment and 
Disposition Agreements between City of Wildomar and Pechanga and 
Soboba Band of Luiseno Indians for the Tres Lagos Affordable Housing 
Project. 


 
3.3 FY 2020-21 3rd Quarter Budget Report 
 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council review 


and consider approval of the Fiscal Year 2020-21 3rd Quarter Budget 
Report, and adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2020-21 


BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
 
3.4 Measure Z Citizen’s Oversight Advisory Committee Appointments 
 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council review 


the applications for committee membership and appoint two of the 
applicants to the Measure Z Citizen’s Oversight Advisory Committee for 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


11 


  
 


 


terms expiring February 2023. 
 
3.5 Measure AA Citizen’s Oversight Advisory Committee Appointments 
 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council review 


the applications for committee membership and appoint one of the 
applicants to the Measure AA Citizen’s Oversight Advisory Committee for a 
term expiring June 2021. 


 
3.6 Approval of the Code Enforcement Technician, Code Enforcement 


Officer I/II, Senior Code Enforcement Officer, and Code Enforcement 
Supervisor Classification Descriptions, and updates to the Position 
Classification Listing and the Schedule of Approved Positions 


 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, UPDATING THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION 


SCHEDULE, UPDATING THE CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER I/II 
POSITION CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION, AND APPROVE NEW 


POSITION CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTIONS FOR THE CODE 
ENFORCEMENT TECHNICIAN, SENIOR CODE ENFORCEMENT 


OFFICER, AND CODE ENFORCEMENT SUPERVISOR POSITIONS 
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


Title- Councilmember-Anticipated Date 
1. Multi-Family Parking Code Update - Moore – April 2021 July 2021 
2. Graffiti Abatement – Morabito – May 2021 
3. False Fire Alarm Regulations – May 2021 
 
 


ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


12 


  
 


 


In accordance with Government Code Section 54952.3, I, Janet 
Morales, City of Wildomar City Clerk, do hereby declare that the 
Board of Trustees will receive no compensation or stipend for 
the convening of the following regular meeting of the Wildomar 
Cemetery District. 
 
 
 


 


Dustin Nigg, Chair 
Ben J. Benoit, Vice Chair 
Bridgette Moore, Trustee 
Joseph Morabito, Trustee 
Marsha Swanson, Trustee 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Gary Nordquist               Thomas D. Jex 
General Manager              District Counsel 
 


  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


13 


  
 


 


CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 


BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 


APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
The Board of Trustees to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or if it is 
the desire of the Board, the agenda can be reordered at this time. 
 
 


4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 


All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Board, the Public, or Staff request that specific items are 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
4.1 Minutes – March 10, 2021 Regular Meeting 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 


approve the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the recommends that the 
Board of Trustees approve the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 03-04-2021 in the amount of $1,603.99. 
2. Warrant Register dated 03-11-2021 in the amount of $5,845.01. 
3. Warrant Register dated 03-25-2021 in the amount of $3,818.63. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the Treasurer’s Report for February 2021. 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
April 14, 2021 


 


14 


  
 


 


4.4 Award Consultant Services Agreement for Preparation of Designs, 
Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates for Phase 1 Cemetery 
Improvements and Widening of Palomar Street from Gruwell Street to 
Wildomar Trail 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees: 
 
1. Authorize the General Manager to execute a Services Agreement 
between the City of Wildomar and Mark Thomas. 
 
2. Authorize the Assistant General Manager to approve up to 10% of the 
contract amount for required additional services. 
 


 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
There are no items scheduled. 


 
 


6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 
There are no items scheduled. 
 
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 
 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


 
 


ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT   
 
 
REPORTS:  All agenda items and reports are available for review at City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road and on the City’s website at the following address: 
http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes.  Any writings or 
documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda (other than writings legally exempt from public disclosure) will be made 
available by appointment for public inspection at City Hall during regular business 
hours.   
 
If requested, the agenda and backup materials will be made available in 
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and 
the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes





City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


April 14, 2021 


15 


Any person that requires a disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meeting, 
may request such modification, accommodation, aid or service by contacting the 
City Clerk either in person or by phone at 951-677-7751. 


I, Janet Morales, Wildomar City Clerk, do certify that within 72 hours of the meeting, 
a true and correct copy of this agenda was posted at Wildomar City Hall, 23873 
Clinton Keith Road; U.S. Post Office, 21392 Palomar Street; Wildomar Library, 
34303 Mission Trail Blvd; and on the City’s website at www.cityofwildomar.org. 


______________________________ 
Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
Dated: April 9, 2021 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





ITEM #1.2 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


FEBRUARY 10, 2021 


CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
The Regular meeting of February 10, 2021 of the Wildomar City Council was 
conducted electronically pursuant to the provisions of Governor’s Executive 
Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 and was called to order by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit at 
5:01 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit 
 
Members absent: Mayor Nigg 
 
Staff in attendance: City Manager Nordquist, Assistant City Manager York, City 
Attorney Jex, City Clerk Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Acting Administrative 
Services Director Howell, City Treasurer Riley, Economic Development Director 
Davidson, Intern II/Associate Engineer Luna and Parks, Community Services and 
Cemetery District Manager Torres. 
 
The flag salute was led by Wildomar Police Chief Elia. 
 
 


PRESENTATIONS 
1. Mayor Pro Tem Benoit recognized incoming Wildomar Police Chief Andrew Elia 
and Wildomar Lieutenant Sarah Mack.  
 
2. Mayor Pro Tem Benoit presented a Certificate of Appreciation to Measure Z and 
Measure AA Committee Member Christopher Pselos. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1.City Manager Nordquist and Acting Administrative Services Director Howell 
introduced the newest City Employees Sherri Stanton and Nicholas Neidiffer. 
 
2. Chief Davis presented the Fire Department Update. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The following provided public comment on items not on the Agenda: Resident 
Kenny Mayes, Wildomar Librarian Sandra Brautigam and Wildomar Rotary Club 
Member Andrew Morris.  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
February 10, 2021 


 


2 


  
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
The City Council Members spoke regarding the various committees, commissions, 
and boards that they serve on locally and regionally and community events, 
including: 
 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the Agenda as presented. 
 
 
1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Councilmember 
Swanson to approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


Approved the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
February 10, 2021 


 


3 


  
 
1.2 Minutes- December 16, 2020 Adjourned Regular Meeting 


Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
Approved the following: 
  
1. Warrant Register dated 01-07-2021 in the amount of $489,790.53. 
2. Warrant Register dated 01-14-2021 in the amount of $73,521.90. 
3. Warrant Register dated 01-21-2021 in the amount of $172,086.69. 
4. Warrant Register dated 01-28-2021 in the amount of $489,659.05. 
5. Payroll Register dated 02-01-2021 in the amount of $115,678.19. 
   


1.4 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for December 2020. 
 


1.5 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 195 – Veterans Wildomar South 
Cannabis Development Agreement 
Adopt an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 195 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15301 (CLASS 1) OF THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA), AND 


APPROVING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT NO. 20-0084, SUBJECT 
TO CONDITIONS, TO ESTABLISH A RETAIL CANNABIS BUSINESS 


WITHIN AN EXISTING 3,161 SQUARE-FOOT RETAIL LEASE SPACE IN 
THE BEAR CREEK PLAZA LOCATED AT 32475 CLINTON KEITH 


ROAD, SUITE #104-A & B (APN: 366-140-007) 
 


1.6 Adopt a Resolution to declare a public nuisance and abate all weeds 
growing upon private property in the City 
Adopted a Resolution Entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 05 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA DECLARING WEEDS, RUBBISH, REFUSE AND DIRT 
UPON PRIVATE PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PUBLIC RIGHTS OF 


WAY A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND INITIATING ABATEMENT 
PROCEEDINGS 


 
1.7 FY 2019-20 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) Report 


Received and filed the FY 2019-20 CAFR. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
February 10, 2021 


 


4 


  
 
 
1.8 Annual City Regular Meeting Calendar 2021 
 Received and filed the attached updated Regular Meeting Calendar for 


2021.  
 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 There were no items scheduled. 
 
 
3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  
 
3.1 Wildomar Commercial Market Analysis completed in December 2020 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 Economic Development Director Davidson presented the staff report. 
 
 Kenny Mayes, resident, provided public comment. 
 


Patrick Ellis from the Murrieta/Wildomar Chamber of Commerce provided 
public comment. 


 
 The City Council received and filed the Wildomar Commercial Market 


Analysis. 
 


3.2 COVID-19 Update   
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 City Manager Nordquist and Parks, Community Services and Cemetery 


District Manager presented the staff report. 
 
 The City Council received and filed the COVID-19 update. 
 
3.3 Establishment of the Wildomar Beautification Subcommittee 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 Parks, Community Services and Cemetery District Manager presented the 


staff report. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
February 10, 2021 


 


5 


  
 


A MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Benoit seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to approve Councilmembers Moore and Morabito 


 to serve on a temporary ad-hoc Wildomar Beautification Subcommittee 
providing guidance to staff in drafting the Wildomar Beautification Program. 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 


 NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 


 
 
3.4 Sunset Road Extension Providing Connection between Bundy Canyon 


Road and Clinton Keith Road - City of Lake Elsinore Covered Road 
Agreement 


 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report. 
 
 A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 


Councilmember Swanson to: 
 


1. Direct Staff to pursue a Minor Amendment to the Multiple Species Habitat 
Plan (MSHCP) for a future Road that ultimately connects Bundy Canyon 
Road and Clinton Keith Road currently referred to as Sunset Road 
Extension; 
 
2. Direct the City Council Committee Member(s) representing Riverside 
Conservation Authority (RCA) and Riverside County Transportation 
Commission (RCTC) promote the Sunset Road Extension and Minor 
Amendment within the Regional Committees, Commissions and Boards;  
 
3. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Covered Road Agreement 
with the City of Lake Elsinore;  
 
4. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Wildomar Meadows 
Reimbursement Agreement; and 
 
5. Authorize the City Manager to make minor adjustments deemed 
necessary to achieve the objectives of the agreements including securing a 
third party to serve as the Trustee for the deed(s) of trust. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
February 10, 2021 


 


6 


  
 


MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 


 NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 


 
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
City Manager Nordquist and Associate Engineer Luna presented the staff report.  
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
There were no future agenda items added. 
 
 
ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit declared the meeting 
adjourned at 7:27 p.m. in honor of the passing of Wildomar Residents Bill Klotz, 
Carol Baldon and Wildomar Elementary School teacher Mark Seymour.  
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
City Clerk     Mayor 
 


 
 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.3 


  CONSENT CALENDAR  
 Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Acting Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant and Payroll Registers 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the following: 
  


1. Warrant Register dated 03-04-2021 in the amount of $381,871.93. 
2. Warrant Register dated 03-11-2021 in the amount of $1,133,742.08. 
3. Warrant Register dated 03-17-2021 in the amount of $20,571.31. 
4. Warrant Register dated 03-25-2021 in the amount of $545,513.71. 
5. Payroll Register dated 04-01-2021 in the amount of $167,770.62. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
The City of Wildomar requires that the City Council audit payments of demands and direct 
the City Manager to issue checks. The Warrant and Payroll Registers are submitted for 
approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant, Wire Transfer and Payroll Registers will have a budgetary impact in the 
amount and fiscal year noted in the recommendation section of this report.  These costs 
are included in the Fiscal Year 2020/21 Budget. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Acting Administrative Services Director             City Manager 
 


ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 03/04/2021    Voucher List 03/17/2021 
Voucher List 03/11/2021        Voucher List 03/25/2021 
Payroll Register 04/01/2021     







03/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


10:07:58AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213431 3/4/2021 001102  BEE GUY TRAVIS 1056 BEE REMOVAL - NEAR 21075 GRAND / 


HORSE W


 395.00


Total :  395.00


 213432 3/4/2021 001330  BMW MOTORCYCLES OF RIVERSIDE 6026321/1 BMW MOTORCYCLE MAINTENANCE - 


SHERIFF


 1,549.53


Total :  1,549.53


 213433 3/4/2021 000037  DATA TICKET, INC. 122006 JANUARY 2021 DAILY CITE PROCESSING  150.00


 2,008.05JANUARY 2021 ONLINE/SSN CITATION 


PROCESS


122318


Total :  2,158.05


 213434 3/4/2021 000022  EDISON 21821A 01/15/21-02/16/21 ELECTRIC  3,198.49


 169.6301/14/21-02/12/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL21821B


 9.0201/20/21-02/18/21 ELECTRIC - WILDOMAR 


31


21921


Total :  3,377.14


 213435 3/4/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT10905557 01/06/21-02/06/21 WATER ZONE 52 LOC 01  51.78


 35.8801/06/21-02/06/21 WATER ZONE 29 LOC 0210905613


 133.0201/06/21-02/06/21 WATER ZONE 71 LOC 0110905895


 79.0201/06/21-02/06/21 WATER 32637 GRUWELL -10906095


 392.1601/06/21-02/06/21 WATER MARNA OBRIEN10906176


 260.3701/10/21-02/10/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M1


10916717


 324.0201/10/21-02/10/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M2


10916718


 489.6901/10/21-02/10/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 24 


M1


10918489


 533.8901/10/21-02/10/21 WATER CFD 2013-1 ZONE10919660


 32.7001/10/21-02/10/21 WATER MALAGA 


GATEWAY P


10919820


 270.4201/13/21-02/13/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 01 


M


10920460


 169.9201/13/21-02/13/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 03 


M


10920712


 190.0201/13/21-02/13/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 02 


M


10920713







03/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


10:07:58AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  2,962.89 213435 3/4/2021 000012 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT


 213436 3/4/2021 000941  FRONTIER 22221 02/22/21-03/21/21 FIOS INTERNET 


CHARGES


 175.98


Total :  175.98


 213437 3/4/2021 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 35183 JAN 2021 LLMD 89-1C ZONE 30  291.00


 333.00FEB 2021 WINDSONG REMOVE/REPLACE 


VALVE B


35969


 11,848.31FEB 2021 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE35984


Total :  12,472.31


 213438 3/4/2021 000072  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP 66082 DEC 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP -  66,260.53


 123,247.87DEC 2020 CONTRACTUAL SVC -66083


Total :  189,508.40


 213439 3/4/2021 001633  JACK P NORRIS, RCE 111220 MASTER DRAINAGE PLAN CIP 023  750.00


Total :  750.00


 213440 3/4/2021 001046  MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 22821 02/01/21-02/28/21 CITY TREAS/PROJECT 


CON


 6,985.00


Total :  6,985.00


 213441 3/4/2021 000084  MUNISERVICES, LLC INV06-010973 SALES & USE TAX REPORT SYS STARS 


SVC 3RD


 485.73


Total :  485.73


 213442 3/4/2021 001210  MURRIETA/WILDOMAR CHAMBER, OF COMMERCE37750 EXECUTIVE LEVEL RENEWAL 


MEMBERSHIP BUNDL


 800.00


Total :  800.00


 213443 3/4/2021 000677  OLDCASTLE PRECAST INC 500032258 ZONE 52 - CATCH BASIN INSERT 


MAINTENANCE


 1,950.00


 900.00ZONE 62 - CATCH BASIN INSERT 


MAINTENANCE


500032259


 375.00ZONE 59 - CATCH BASIN INSERT 


MAINTENANCE


500032260


Total :  3,225.00


 213444 3/4/2021 000778  PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GRP INC 2102A402 12/26/20-01/29/21 PROF. SVC. AGREEMENT 


#


 2,218.28







03/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


10:07:58AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  2,218.28 213444 3/4/2021 000778 000778  PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GRP INC


 213445 3/4/2021 000185  PITNEY BOWES 1017558059 03/16/21-06/15/21 POSTAGE METER RENTAL  97.88


Total :  97.88


 213446 3/4/2021 000042  PV MAINTENANCE, INC. 005-239 FEBRUARY 2021 CITYWIDE MAINTENANCE 


CONTR


 70,213.41


 4,260.00FEBRUARY 2021 MAINTENANCE PROJECT 


RELATE


005-239A


Total :  74,473.41


 213447 3/4/2021 001071  SHRED-IT USA 8181509473 CONTRACTUAL SHREDDING SVC (JAN 


PICK-UP)


 156.90


Total :  156.90


 213448 3/4/2021 001634  ST. PETER, SEAN 122120 REFUND OF UNUSED DEVELOPERS 


DEPOSIT


 43,287.13


Total :  43,287.13


 213449 3/4/2021 001505  THE ENDEAVOR PRODUCTION, GROUP 926 VIDEO PRODUCTION - RESTAURANT WEEK  1,800.00


Total :  1,800.00


 213450 3/4/2021 000215  THE PRESS-ENTERPRISE 11414886 PUBLIC  NOTICE - NOPH ZA  235.60


 358.80PUBLIC NOTICE - NOPH CULTURE 


CANNABIS


11419370


 367.60PUBLIC NOTICE - NOPH AUTH WILDOMAR 


CANNA


11419372


 319.20PUBLIC NOTICE - NOPH BAXTER VILLAGE11420716


 253.20PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD 19211422454


 350.00PUBLIC NOTICE - NOPH CEQA11425211


 248.80PUBLIC NOTICE - HOUSING ELEMENT11425228


 314.80PUBLIC NOTICE - ORD 19211425642


 226.80PUBLIC NOTICE - NOPH ANNEX 2011425645


 350.00PUBLIC NOTICE - NOPH CULTURE 


CANNABIS


11428326


 350.00PUBLIC NOTICE - NOPH AUTH WILDOMAR 


CANNA


11428337


 641.50PUBLIC NOTICE - NOA OAK SPRINGS 


RANCH


11431384


Total :  4,016.30







03/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


10:07:58AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213451 3/4/2021 000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC 2021-52 01/01/21-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS  455.00


 2,448.5012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-57


 1,654.5012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-58


 1,113.0012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-59


 525.5012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-60


 1,139.0012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-61


 130.0012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-62


 1,638.5012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-63


 5,900.0001/01/21-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-64


 3,125.5012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-65


 2,317.0012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-66


 195.0001/01/21-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-67


 1,149.5012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-68


 819.5012/01/20-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-69


 3,164.5001/01/21-01/31/21 CONTRACTUAL SVCS2021-70


Total :  25,775.00


 213452 3/4/2021 001418  WEBB MUNICIPAL FINANCE, LLC 20210110 MEASURE Z ANNUAL ADMIN FY20/21  5,202.00


Total :  5,202.00


Bank total :  381,871.93 22 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 381,871.93Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 22







03/11/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:31:09AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213455 3/11/2021 001002  ARCHITERRA DESIGN GROUP 28045 01/25/21-02/24/21 SITE 


INSPECT/OBSERVATI


 607.50


 625.0001/25/21-02/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC  - 2ND28046


 62.5001/25/21-02/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC  - APPL28047


 250.0001/25/21-02/24/21 SUBMITTAL REVIEW & 


COM


28048


 1,375.0001/25/21-02/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC  -  1ST28049


 1,312.5001/25/21-02/24/21 PLAN CHECK SVC  -  1ST28050


Total :  4,232.50


 213456 3/11/2021 000008  AT&T MOBILITY 376956 SHERIFF DEPT CASE #WI203510019 - GPS 


TRA


 850.00


Total :  850.00


 213457 3/11/2021 000034  BIO-TOX LABORATORIES 40792 RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES  1,005.00


 397.00RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES40793


 161.00RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES40842


Total :  1,563.00


 213458 3/11/2021 001622  COMMERCIAL BUILDING MANAGEMENT, SERVICES INC67944 FEBRUARY 2021 JANITORIAL SVC - MARNA  4,805.00


 1,800.00FEBRUARY 2021 CITY HALL DISINFECT - 


COVI


67946


Total :  6,605.00


 213459 3/11/2021 000068  COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, FIRE DEPARTMENT233819 10/01/20-12/31/20 FIRE PROTECTION 


SERVIC


 890,605.22


Total :  890,605.22


 213460 3/11/2021 001570  DANNY C HUBBS CONSTRUCTION INC 21-1003 0000286 CIP 042, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484 


(01


 194,850.13


Total :  194,850.13


 213461 3/11/2021 000058  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 495744 JAN 2021 POLICE BLOOD ALCOHOL  105.00


Total :  105.00


 213462 3/11/2021 000342  FENCE MASTERS 1202322 INSTALL & REMOVE/HAUL DAMAGED CHAIN 


LINK


 2,446.00


Total :  2,446.00







03/11/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:31:09AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213463 3/11/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 106 02/20/21-03/05/21 ACCOUNTING 


CONTRACTUAL


 4,070.00


Total :  4,070.00


 213464 3/11/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 28836480 CANON COLOR COPIER SYSTEM 


#25-1249376


 214.24


Total :  214.24


 213465 3/11/2021 001337  MPS SECURITY 0808-13306 0000293 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY20/21 


AS D


 2,016.00


Total :  2,016.00


 213466 3/11/2021 001635  MURPHY, GLENN A 110420 REFUND OF UNUSED DEVELOPERS 


DEPOSIT


 334.43


Total :  334.43


 213467 3/11/2021 001543  NPPW SERVICES 10885 0000314 COVID-19 REQUIRED CLEANING - 90 DAYS 


PAR


 1,218.07


0000314  1,044.06COVID-19 REQUIRED CLEANING - 90 DAYS 


PAR


10886


0000314  1,113.75COVID-19 REQUIRED CLEANING - 90 DAYS 


PAR


10934


Total :  3,375.88


 213468 3/11/2021 001262  PEST OPTIONS INC 371037 WEED CONTROL - WINDSONG & MARNA 


OBRIEN


 1,450.00


Total :  1,450.00


 213469 3/11/2021 001074  PINS ADVANTAGE 1556 PINS ADV INSURANCE TRACKING 


SOFTWARE


 1,350.00


Total :  1,350.00


 213470 3/11/2021 000051  RCHCA 30821 JAN 2021 KANGAROO RAT FEE  1,120.00


Total :  1,120.00


 213471 3/11/2021 001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5610257196 JAN 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE  1,494.50


 1,501.00JAN 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL RESPONSE 


CALL OU


5620031212


Total :  2,995.50


 213472 3/11/2021 001306  SOCIAL WORK ACTION GROUP 22821 FEBRUARY 2021 PROFESSIONAL SERVICE  5,280.00







03/11/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 9:31:09AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  5,280.00 213472 3/11/2021 001306 001306  SOCIAL WORK ACTION GROUP


 213473 3/11/2021 000378  TEMECULA VALLEY PIPE & SUPPLY 607495 BASEBALL FIELD & REGENCY HERITAGE 


SUPPLI


 559.34


 37.27REGENCY HERITAGE SUPPLIES607496


Total :  596.61


 213474 3/11/2021 000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC 2020-831 11/01/20-11/30/20 CONTRACTUAL SVCS  4,793.00


Total :  4,793.00


 213475 3/11/2021 000437  VERIZON WIRELESS 9873913397 02/23/21-03/22/21 DATA INTERNET  345.55


 76.0202/23/21-03/22/21 DATA INTERNET - MARNA9873913398


Total :  421.57


 213476 3/11/2021 000131  WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNTY, RCA 30821A JAN 2021 MSHCP MITIGATION FEE  2,234.00


 2,234.00FEB 2021 MSHCP MITIGATION FEE30821B


Total :  4,468.00


Bank total :  1,133,742.08 22 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,133,742.08Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 22







03/17/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:14:43AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213482 3/17/2021 000033  AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSES 74320 BLOOD DRAW (5) UR SPEC (1) DRY RUN (1)  360.00


Total :  360.00


 213483 3/17/2021 000554  AT & T 22821 TELEPHONE LONG DISTANCE P/E 02/28/21  44.63


Total :  44.63


 213484 3/17/2021 000022  EDISON 21821 02/01/21-03/01/21 CFD 2013-001 ZONE 2  8.66


 20.8301/20/21-02/18/21 ELECTRIC 32975 WILLOW22321A


 62.1201/20/21-02/18/21 ELECTRIC 32975 WILLOW22321B


 269.7612/29/20-02/18/21 ELECTRIC - ZONE22321C


 300.2912/22/20-02/23/21 ELECTRIC22621


 34.0401/28/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC - BASEBALL FI30521A


 132.3101/28/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC - 21400 PALOM30521B


 78.3302/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-130521C


 253.5602/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00130521D


 45.9602/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CSA 10330521E


 156.6602/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00130521F


 203.6602/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CITY LAMPS30521G


 300.6602/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00130521H


 50.6302/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00130521I


 156.6702/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00130521J


 288.1602/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00130521K


 266.3302/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC CFD 2013-00130521L


Total :  2,628.63


 213485 3/17/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT10923402 01/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 23 


M1


 96.26


 58.1101/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 210923611


 61.2901/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 49 


M1


10923651


 62.9801/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 51 LOC 110923903


 204.1401/16/21-02/16/21 WATER BASEBALL FIELD10924067


 100.7001/16/21-02/16/21 WATER WINDSONG PARK10924108


 169.4801/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M1


10924619


 175.6001/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M2


10924696


 77.1901/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 110924699


 175.6001/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 42 &10924798







03/17/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:14:43AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213485 3/17/2021 (Continued)000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT


 133.1901/16/21-02/16/21 WATER 22450 1/2 


CERVER


10925195


 134.9801/16/21-02/16/21 WATER 22450 CERVERA10925435


 77.1901/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 62 - 2293310926532


 171.0401/16/21-02/16/21 WATER ZONE 67 - 


ARNNET


10926620


 70.1801/18/21-02/17/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 35 


M1


10927165


Total :  1,767.93


 213486 3/17/2021 000941  FRONTIER 10121A 01/01/21-01/31/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


 394.23


 52.7901/01/21-01/31/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


10121B


 52.9201/07/21-02/06/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


10721


 415.0311/01/20-11/30/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


110120A


 52.0811/01/20-11/30/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


110120B


 61.1311/07/20-12/06/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


110720


 391.6912/01/20-12/31/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


120120A


 52.3812/01/20-12/31/20 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


120120B


 61.4912/07/20-01/06/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


120720


 401.3102/01/21-02/28/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


20121A


 52.7902/01/21-02/28/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


20121B


 53.0502/07/21-03/06/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


20721


 401.3103/01/21-03/31/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


30121A


 52.7903/01/21-03/31/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


30121B


 53.0803/07/21-04/06/21 OFFICE TELEPHONE 


CHARG


30721







03/17/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 9:14:43AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  2,548.07 213486 3/17/2021 000941 000941  FRONTIER


 213487 3/17/2021 001325  GEOCON WEST, INC. 721010437 SERVICE THROUGH 01/24/21 CIP 042 


GUARDRA


 2,222.50


Total :  2,222.50


 213488 3/17/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 28880303 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST #13-1228588  214.24


Total :  214.24


 213489 3/17/2021 000016  INNOVATIVE DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS 228057 02/01/21-02/28/21 CONTRACT COPIER SVC 


MA


 742.89


Total :  742.89


 213490 3/17/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 74532 FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP 028-1  475.09


Total :  475.09


 213491 3/17/2021 001167  RRM DESIGN GROUP 1064-01-0121 PROF SVCS - 27 ACRE PARK CIP 062-1  9,090.00


Total :  9,090.00


 213492 3/17/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 30621 CITY HALL DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


03/06/2


 51.03


Total :  51.03


 213493 3/17/2021 001495  TIME WARNER CABLE 2318030821 FS61 CABLE THROUGH 04/07/21  5.32


Total :  5.32


 213494 3/17/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER13121 VIDEO HOSTING SOFTWARE  250.00


Total :  250.00


 213495 3/17/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER21121A MURRIETA CHAMBER  10.00


 10.00MURRIETA CHAMBER21121B


 10.00MURRIETA CHAMBER21121C


 9.99MARKETING PLATFORM21621


 125.00PAYPAL PROFESSIONAL21821


 5.99NEWSPAPER MEMBERSHIP21821


Total :  170.98


Bank total :  20,571.31 14 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 20,571.31Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 14







03/17/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


 9:14:43AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount







03/25/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:39:25AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213496 3/25/2021 000760  ARMADA ADMINISTRATORS 160722 APRIL 2021 PREMIUM  2,960.00


Total :  2,960.00


 213497 3/25/2021 000008  AT&T MOBILITY X03202021 03/13/21-04/12/21 COUNCIL MOBILE PHONE  57.00


Total :  57.00


 213498 3/25/2021 000785  CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LLC 82069767 FEBRUARY 2021 CODE ENFORCEMENT 


SOFTWARE


 150.00


Total :  150.00


 213499 3/25/2021 000011  CR&R INC. 2569 02/01/21-02/28/21 STREET SWEEPER & 


BIKE


 603.08


 1,582.0502/01/21 & 02/24/21 DUMP 40 YD BOX & DIS333338


 146.9403/01/21 3 YD BOX - BASEBALL FIELD333362


 146.9403/01/21 3 YD BOX - FIRE STATION #61333425


Total :  2,479.01


 213500 3/25/2021 000002  CRYSTAL CLEAN MAINTENANCE 303I MARCH 2021 JANITORIAL SERVICE - CITY 


HAL


 2,380.00


Total :  2,380.00


 213501 3/25/2021 000027  DIRECT TV 082317220X210313 03/12/21-04/11/21 CABLE SERVICES - CITY  160.99


Total :  160.99


 213502 3/25/2021 000022  EDISON 31021 02/01/21-03/01/21 ELECTRIC  5,208.96


Total :  5,208.96


 213503 3/25/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICTBI4488 LEIGHTON CONSULTING #43039/43888  26,562.97


Total :  26,562.97


 213504 3/25/2021 000342  FENCE MASTERS 1202213 BALANCE ON INSTALL OF CHAIN LINK  988.00


Total :  988.00


 213505 3/25/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 107 03/06/21-03/19/21 ACCOUNTING 


CONTRACTUAL


 2,255.00


Total :  2,255.00


 213506 3/25/2021 001325  GEOCON WEST, INC. 721010430 CIP 057 THROUGH 01/24/21  649.75


Total :  649.75







03/25/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 9:39:25AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213507 3/25/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 28904620 CANON COLOR COPIER SYSTEM 


#015-1472515


 359.97


 214.24CANON COLOR COPIER SYSTEM 


#003-1585799


28919015


Total :  574.21


 213508 3/25/2021 001639  IMPACT SOUTHWEST RIVERSIDE, COUNTY1084 INNOVATION MONTH  1,000.00


Total :  1,000.00


 213509 3/25/2021 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 35980 02/23/21 LITTLE LEAGUE FIELD 


REMOVE/REPL


 166.50


 499.5002/23/21 REG. HERITAGE 


REMOVE/REPLACE VA


35982


 3,600.0002/25/21 MARNA OBRIEN WOODCHIP 


MULCH


36037


 840.0003/02/21 LITTLE LEAGUE FIELD WEED 


ABATE


36060


 4,302.0203/01/21 MALAGA PARK REPAIR/REPLACE36062


 940.0003/01/21 WINDSONG MULCH36063


 3,600.0003/08/21 MARNA OBRIEN WOODCHIP 


MULCH


36088


Total :  13,948.02


 213510 3/25/2021 001589  J.J.'S PLUMBING 1120 MARNA OBRIEN MENS RESTROOM  250.00


Total :  250.00


 213511 3/25/2021 001640  JAMES MCMINN INC 30321 BUNDY CYN WIDENING CIP 026-1 PROG. 


PAY #


 38,219.69


 25,425.42BUNDY CYN WIDENING CIP 026-1 PROG. 


PAY #


30821


Total :  63,645.11


 213512 3/25/2021 001337  MPS SECURITY 0808-13363 0000293 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY20/21 


AS D


 2,520.00


Total :  2,520.00


 213513 3/25/2021 001543  NPPW SERVICES 10975 0000314 COVID-19 REQUIRED CLEANING - 90 DAYS 


PAR


 1,009.43


0000314  1,061.59COVID-19 REQUIRED CLEANING - 90 DAYS 


PAR


10994


 50.003/23/21 GRAFFITI REMOVAL - REG. 


HERITAGE


10995







03/25/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 9:39:25AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  2,121.02 213513 3/25/2021 001543 001543  NPPW SERVICES


 213514 3/25/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 74612 FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - 


MULTI-FAMILY


 2,640.00


 2,371.25FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - ZONE 


CONSISTE


74720


 380.00FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - COUNTER 


WORK


74722


 8,012.00FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELAT


74723


 15,012.00FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELAT


74724


 190.00FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELAT


74725


 19,856.00FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELAT


74726


 3,859.50FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - HOUSING74727


 285.00FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELAT


74728


 2,152.50FEB 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - PROJECT 


RELAT


74729


Total :  54,758.25


 213515 3/25/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 277677 03/04/21-03/31/21 - PORTA/WASHSTN - 


WIND


 402.00


Total :  402.00


 213516 3/25/2021 000606  RING CENTRAL CD_000228998 NEW DIGITAL LINE & MOBILE USER  662.95


Total :  662.95


 213517 3/25/2021 000047  RIVERSIDE COUNTY, SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENTSH0000038556 CONTRACT LAW ENFORCEMENT 


THROUGH 01/13/2


 355,303.68


Total :  355,303.68


 213518 3/25/2021 000809  SO CALIFORNIA MULCH, INC 23078 0000315 DELIVERY & INSTALLATION OF CERTIFIED 


PLA


 3,021.56


0000315  1,914.69DELIVERY & INSTALLATION OF CERTIFIED 


PLA


23079


Total :  4,936.25


 213519 3/25/2021 001393  SOCALGAS 31521 02/09/21-03/11/21 GAS - FIRE DEPT 32637  89.99







03/25/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


 9:39:25AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  89.99 213519 3/25/2021 001393 001393  SOCALGAS


 213520 3/25/2021 000378  TEMECULA VALLEY PIPE & SUPPLY 607526 REGENCY HERITAGE SUPPLIES  150.96


 54.39BASEBALL FIELD SUPPLIES608038


Total :  205.35


 213521 3/25/2021 000873  VORTEX INDUSTRIES INC 05-1491221 FS61 BAY OVERHEAD DOOR REPAIRS  1,245.20


Total :  1,245.20


Bank total :  545,513.71 26 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 545,513.71Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 26







ACH Date Payee Description Amount


3/5/2021 Heartland Payroll 02/13/2021-02/26/2021 53,694.43$    


3/19/2021 Heartland Payroll 02/27/2021-03/12/2021 56,443.67


4/1/2021 Heartland Payroll 03/13/2021-03/26/2021 55,803.10


4/1/2021 Heartland Payroll 03/01/2021-03/31/2021 1,829.42


TOTAL 167,770.62$  


City of Wildomar


Payroll Warrant Register


4/1/2021







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.4 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 


 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Treasurer’s Report for February 
2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of February 
2021. The City utilizes both the California State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) and the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) for its city 
investments. Utilizing the two investment programs allows the City to potentially increase 
the interest earned on the money held.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer      City Manager   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 


 







BEGINNING + (-) ENDING


FUND ACCOUNT INSTITUTION BALANCE DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS BALANCE RATE


All All WELLS FARGO # 6,541,157.52  $ 2,878,709.59 (2,129,507.62)  $ 7,290,359.49 0.000%


TOTAL  $ 6,541,157.52  $ 2,878,709.59  $ (2,129,507.62)  $ 7,290,359.49


PERCENT


OF DAYS STATED


FUND BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


All  $ 3,655,558.59  $ 3,655,558.59  $ 3,655,558.59 100.00% 0 0.407%


All  $ 5,591,089.22  $ 5,591,089.22  $ 5,591,089.22 100.00% 0 0.100%


TOTAL  $ 9,246,647.81  $ 9,246,647.81  $ 9,246,647.81 100.00%


CITY $ 16,537,007.30


(-)


+ WITHDRAWALS/


BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED


FUND BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


All  $ 3,655,558.59  $ 0.00  $ 0.00  $ 3,655,558.59 0.407%


All  $ 5,590,680.26  $ 408.96  $ 0.00  $ 5,591,089.22 0.100%


TOTAL  $ 9,246,238.85  $ 408.96  $ 0.00  $ 9,246,647.81


 


Robert Howell
Robert Howell


City Treasurer


Date


4/5/2021


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the City of Wildomar, I hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues 


are available to meet the City's expenditure requirements for the next six months, and that all investments are in compliance with the City's Statement of Investment Policy.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the City's Bank Balances.


CITY CASH


ISSUER


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CITY INVESTMENT (Continued)


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS


ISSUER


CITY OF WILDOMAR


TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO


February 2021


TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENT


CITY INVESTMENT







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.5 


Consent Calendar 
 Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Cameron Luna, Associate Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Resolution authorizing submittal of applications for all CalRecycle 


Grants for which the City of Wildomar is eligible 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _______ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION(S) FOR ALL 


CALRECYCLE GRANTS FOR WHICH THE CITY OF WILDOMAR IS ELIGIBLE 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) offers 
funding opportunities to assist public and private entities in the safe and effective 
management of the waste stream. Public Resources Code sections 40000 et seq. 
authorizes CalRecycle to administer various grant programs in furtherance of the State's 
efforts to reduce, recycle, and reuse solid waste generated in the State, thereby 
preserving landfill capacity and protecting public health and safety and the environment. 
 
Grant funding resources provided by CalRecycle include the Rubberized Pavement Grant 
Program which promotes the use of recycled-content surface pavement derived from 
waste tires generated in California, and recycling programs for beverage containers, used 
oil, oil filter recycling, and other household hazardous waste products. CalRecycle grant 
application procedures require, among other things, an Applicant's governing body to 
declare by Resolution, certain authorizations related to the administration of the 
CalRecycle grants. CalRecycle recommends that government bodies approve a general 
resolution authorizing the application of all CalRecycle grants in order to streamline and 
guarantee a City's ability to apply for all grants that they are eligible for in timely manner. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
CalRecycle grant funding is essential in meeting the City's goals and objectives. City staff 
actively seek competitive grant opportunities that the City may be eligible for, which often 







  


 


  
 


require authorization to apply for by adopting a resolution. Obtaining this authorization 
would allow for applications to be submitted to CalRecycle for future grant opportunities. 
 
This fiscal year staff introduced a new pavement repair strategy utilizing Asphalt Rubber 
Aggregate Material (ARAM).  Based on the successful use of that application, staff 
recommends applying for grants supporting use of recycled tires. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:   Approved by: 
Dan York    Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager   City Manager 
Public Works Director 
City Engineer 
   
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  







  


 


  
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _______ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA 


AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION(S) FOR ALL CALRECYCLE 
GRANTS FOR WHICH THE CITY OF WILDOMAR IS ELIGIBLE 


 
WHEREAS, Public Resources Code sections 48000 et seq. authorize the Department of 
Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) to administer various grant programs 
(grants) in furtherance of the State of California’s (state) efforts to reduce, recycle and 
reuse solid waste generated in the state thereby preserving landfill capacity and 
protecting public health and safety and the environment; and 
 
WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish procedures 
governing the application, awarding, and management of the grants; and 
 
WHEREAS, CalRecycle grant application procedures require, among other things, an 
applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution certain authorizations related to the 
administration of CalRecycle grants. 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Wildomar, California authorizes the submittal of application(s) to CalRecycle for all grants 
for which the City of Wildomar is eligible; and 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Public Works Director, or his/her designee 
is hereby authorized and empowered to execute in the name of the City of Wildomar all 
grant documents, including but not limited to, applications, agreements, amendments, 
and requests for payment, necessary to secure grant funds and implement the approved 
grant project; and  
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these authorizations are effective for five (5) 
years from the date of adoption of this resolution. 
 


PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 14th day of April, 2021. 
 


          
 ________________________ 


      Dustin Nigg   
      Mayor     


 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:          ATTEST:   


 
 


 ____________________   _______________________  
Thomas D. Jex            Janet Morales 
City Attorney             City Clerk    







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.6  


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED:  Jason Farag, Associate Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Retain Interwest Consulting Group, Inc. to Provide Right-of-Way 


Acquisition Services for Phase 1 of the Clinton Keith Road 
Widening Project (CIP 025-1) 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Engineer to retain Interwest 
Consulting Group, Inc. (Interwest) to provide Right-of-Way Acquisition services for Phase 
1 of the Clinton Keith Rd. Widening Project (CIP 025-1). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City is currently designing Phase 1 of the Clinton Keith Road Widening Project 
(Project, CIP 025-1). Phase I improves Clinton Keith Rd. between the I-15 and Wildomar 
Trail, to accommodate six lanes (three in each direction) with bike lanes. The project 
proposes to widen the road to four lanes (two lanes in each direction) with bike lanes 
between Wildomar Trail and Copper Craft Dr.  Ultimately Clinton Keith Rd. will provide six 
lanes from the I-15 northbound ramps to the eastern City limits. The additional two lanes 
will be installed through coordination of land development projects.   
  
DISCUSSION: 
Additional right-of-way, construction and drainage easements are required for the street 
improvements. Attachment A shows impacted properties. Approximate right-of-
way/easement areas are shown just for reference purposes and have not yet been 
finalized or determined. Staff requested a proposal from Interwest Consulting Group, Inc. 
(Interwest) under its existing staff augmentation contract with the City of Wildomar to 
provide the required right-of-way services for the Project. Interwest has extensive right of 
way acquisition experience and has worked with the City over the past twelve years in 
this area of expertise.   
 
Staff has negotiated the final proposal (Attachment B) and finds the scope of work 
complete and the fee reasonable and recommends the City Engineer be authorized to 
accept the proposal. 
 







FISCAL IMPACT: 
The cost of the proposed services by Interwest is a not to exceed amount of $85,410.00 
and will be funded by WRCOG TUMF appropriation. Costs for additional and optional 
services are also included in the proposal, should they become necessary. 
 
Staff is working with WRCOG to update the agreement for this project.  The Amended 
TUMF Agreements with WRCOG will be presented to the City Council in the future. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. Impacted Properties Project Exhibit 
B. Interwest Proposal for Right-of-Way Services 







 


ATTACHMENT A (1 OF 2) 
 


 
 


Aerial Image of Impacted Properties (potential ROW/Easement Areas (approx.) shown in red) 







ATTACHMENT A (2 OF 2) 
 


 
 


Aerial Image of Impacted Properties (potential ROW/Easement Areas (approx.) shown in red) 







ATTACHMENT B 







P R O P O S A L  F O R  R I G H T  O F  WAY  S E R V I C E S


CITY of WILDOMAR


C L I N TO N  K E I T H  R OA D  W I D E N I N G  P R O J E C T


INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP, INC.


1 Jenner, Suite 160


Irvine, CA 92618


I - 1 5  t o  W i l d o m a r  E a s t e r n  C i t y  L i m i t s







PAG E  1  |  C OV E R  L E T T E R


C L I N TO N  K E I T H  R OA D  W I D E N I N G  P R O J E C TCITY of WILDOMAR


Proposal for Right of Way Services - Clinton Keith Road Widening Project  I-15 to Eastern City Limits


Dear Jason,


Interwest Consulting Group (Interwest) submits the attached scope of work and fee to provide right of way 


services for the Clinton Keith Road Improvement Project, from the eastern side of the I-15 to the eastern City 


limits.  The services necessary to deliver the right of way include title, appraisal and acquisition services. We 


propose the project team include Jeremy Miller, Brett Paulson, Jeff Wellcome and Lois Rodriguez.


Our project approach, described in detail in this proposal, is guided by a solid quality control process and early 


communication protocol for conducting all facets of acquisition activities to successfully deliver the right of 


way to the City on schedule and within budget. Our fee proposal also incorporates a cost savings due to the 


work already being performed by our project team within the City of Wildomar.


Interwest assumes that the project will be funded by local and state funding programs and our services will 


comply with Title 25 California Code of Regulations, the California Code of Civil Procedure and all related City 


rules and regulations.


We are excited about the opportunity to continue working with the City. Your contact person for this project 


will be Jeremy Miller, who can be reached at (949) 370-9035 or jmiller@interwestgrp..com.


Sincerely,


Kent Jorgensen


Director of Real Estate Services


1  J e n n e r,  S u i t e  1 6 0


I r v i n e ,  C a l i f o r n i a  9 2 6 1 0 


( 9 4 9 )  2 9 9 - 5 3 0 6


M a r c h  3 1 ,  2 0 2 1


J a s o n  F a r a g ,  A s s o c i a t e  E n g i n e e r


C i t y  o f  W i l d o m a r


2 3 8 7 3  C l i n t o n  K e i t h  R o a d ,  S u i t e  2 0 1


W i l d o m a r,  C a l i f o r n i a  9 2 5 9 5







PAG E  2  |  R I G H T  O F  WAY  T E A M


C L I N TO N  K E I T H  R OA D  W I D E N I N G  P R O J E C TCITY of WILDOMAR


R I G H T  O F  WAY  T E A M
We understand that, ultimately, the success and timely completion of the City’s project depends on the selection 


of a right of way team with: knowledge of the project area; demonstrated and documented experience on 


similar projects; unsurpassed technical expertise; unparalleled understanding of implementing practical 


solutions; and an immaculate record of performance. Interwest’s proposed team was selected based on their 


professional abilities, negotiation capabilities and documented delivery of assignments as directed. Our project 


managers and agents are some of the most talented in the right of way field and have extensive knowledge 


and experience in providing and directing a range of right of way services for public infrastructure and street 


improvement projects in accordance with all statutory and regulatory requirements, including, but not limited 


to: Title 25 California Code of Regulations and the California Code of Civil Procedure.


The organization chart below identifies the name and role of each staff member, including subconsultants, who 


will be working with the City. Jeremy Miller will be Interwest point of contact on this project assignment.


O R G A N I Z AT I O N A L  C H A R T


S U B C O N S U LTA N T S


CHRIS MAZIAR
Sr. Title Officer


Commonwealth Land Title Co.


JOHN LAURAIN  MAI, ASA


Primary Appraiser


R.P. Laurain & Associates


JOHN JAY ROBERTS PG, CEG


Principal Geologist


Ninyo & Moore


PATRICK CULLIP EIT, ENV SP


Project Engineer


Ninyo & Moore


BENJAMIN BALOS  MAI


Primary Appraiser


R.P. Laurain & Associates


GRACE KIM
Sr. Escrow Officer


Commonwealth Land Title Co.


BRETT PAULSON SR/WA, RAC, NAC


Quality Control Manager


P R O J E C T  M A N AG E M E N T


P R I M A R Y  A P P R A I S A L E N V I R O N M E N TA L*T I T L E  A N D  E S C R OW


KENT JORGENSEN
Director of Real Estate Services


AC Q U I S I T I O N


JEREMY MILLER SR/WA


Project Manager


JEFF WELLCOME 
SR/WA, RAC


Sr. Acquisition Agent


CITY of WILDOMAR


* Optional Services


LOIS RODRIGUEZ BILINGUAL


Coordinator


☎


☎ Contact person







PAG E  3  |  U N D E R S TA N D I N G  A N D  A P P R OAC H


C L I N TO N  K E I T H  R OA D  W I D E N I N G  P R O J E C TCITY of WILDOMAR


U N D E R S TA N D I N G  A N D  A P P R OAC H
Interwest understands that the City requires right of way services to deliver the right of way along Clinton 


Keith Road from the east side of the I-15 to the eastern City of Wildomar city limits. This right of way is needed 


to complete the street improvement project, which involves widening the road to 6-lanes from the I-15 to 


Wildomar Trail and 4-lanes from Wildomar Trail to Copper Craft Drive. 


Our scope of services assumes that the project is funded through local and state funds. If it is later determined 


that federal funds will be utilized, Interwest is fully equipped and prepared to quickly provide the additional 


support to meet the regulatory requirements. Our scope of work is provided on the following pages.


P R O J E C T  A N A LY S I S


Interwest has determined that at the present time eight properties are impacted by the project. Our scope of 


work assignment is based on the properties listed below:


FULL/ 


PARTIAL 


ACQUISITION


APN PROPERTY ADDRESS OWNER
SQ. FOOT 


VALUE **


Partial 380-240-006 No Situs Address Parimah Sedaghat $30


Partial 376-410-021 23980 Catt Rd. 24850-23980 Catt Rd. Trust $10


Partial 376-410-017* 23940 Catt Rd. Aram Prop $10


Partial 362-250-025 No Situs Address Robert & Betty Wells $5


Partial 380-250-004 24671 Clinton Keith Rd. Platinum $5


Partial 380-250-022 No Situs Address Rancon Medical $5


Partial 380-250-005 24675 Clinton Keith Rd. Max & Jocelyn Lin $5


Partial 362-150-026* No Situs Address
Mt. San Jacinto Community 


College District
$5


* We note that these properties may require, as part of the valuation process, a damage assessment of the 


larger parcel.


** Land value projections are based on location to freeway, entitlement work, size of land area, and a desirability 


factor.







PAG E  4  |  U N D E R S TA N D I N G  A N D  A P P R OAC H


C L I N TO N  K E I T H  R OA D  W I D E N I N G  P R O J E C TCITY of WILDOMAR


S C O P E  O F  W O R K


Interwest provides professional right of way services, including: project coordination and management; 
preliminary title report review and coordination; appraisal report coordination and attainment; Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment reports (optional); acquisition services; terms negotiation; settlement 
procurement; and escrow facilitation. Interwest will prepare offer packages and recording documents in 
accordance with applicable regulatory and City standards. 


P R O J E C T  C O O R D I N AT I O N  A N D  M A N AG E M E N T
 z Meetings. Attend meetings with the City, including the initial kick-off meeting. Meeting minutes, agendas 


and reports are provided when directed by the City's project administrator.


 z Status Reports. Provide and maintain title, appraisal and acquisition database/status reports for all project 
personnel to access.


 z Subconsultant Management. Provide management and coordination of services for all subconsultants.


 z Escrow Coordination. Provide coordination services with the escrow company, including ordering 
preliminary title reports, opening escrows and facilitating escrows for the acquired property.


 z Scheduling. Prepare and provide the City with project schedules, as needed.


 z Quality Assurance/Quality Control Management. Provide quality control management for all areas of the 
project, including coordinating efforts with the City to ensure a compliant project.


 z Data Management. We will use QuickBase as a project management tool for tracking project-related 
tasks and milestones, as well as customized dashboards for monitoring individual performance efficiency, 
timelines and cost containment strategies. Our reports are tailored to each client’s specifications to provide 
the critical information necessary for management decisions.


 z Project Close-Out. Provide the services required to finalize and close out the project.


T I T L E  S E R V I C E S
 z Preliminary Title Reports. Issue preliminary title reports (PTR) with supporting documents for all parcels. 


Title reports produced for each parcel will, at a minimum, establish legal owners and all valid liens, 
encumbrances and easements of record.


 z PTR Review. Interwest’s qualified staff reviews the PTRs to inspect each report for accuracy of the stated 
ownership, APNs and other pertinent information. Additionally, the listed liens, encumbrances, mortgages, 
etc., are analyzed to determine if consents/subordinations are required to clear title.


P H A S E  I  E N V I R O N M E N TA L  S I T E  A S S E S S M E N T S  ( O P T I O N A L )
We understand that Phase I Environmental Site Assessments (Phase I ESA) may be warranted to ensure that 
the properties being acquired are environmentally acceptable to the City's standards. The objective of the 
Phase I ESAs will be to evaluate hazardous materials or other adverse environmental conditions within the 
vicinity of the site. The proposed services for the Phase I ESAs would be consistent with applicable sections of 
the ASTM International 2013 guidance (Designation Number E-1527-13) and the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) Standards and Practices for All Appropriate Inquiries.


P R I M A R Y  A P P R A I S A L
 z Distribute Appraisal Assignments. Facilitate the distribution of appraisal assignments, including appraisal 


review reports and ensure clarification of scope of the project.


 z Coordinate Meetings. Hold meetings with the selected appraiser and review appraiser to review and 
discuss the project scope, requirements for the appraisal reports and reviews, as well as the type of reports 
required and the required written notice of inspection to the owner. 


 z Notice of Intent to Appraise. Prepare the Notice of Intent to Appraise letter for each property, advising the 
property owners of the proposed project, introducing the appraiser and providing contact information to 


answer questions and concerns.







PAG E  5  |  U N D E R S TA N D I N G  A N D  A P P R OAC H


C L I N TO N  K E I T H  R OA D  W I D E N I N G  P R O J E C TCITY of WILDOMAR


 z Obtain Appraisals. Obtain appraisals and summary of value statements for each acquisition prepared in 


accordance with California laws and the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practices (USPAP). 


Record information into the database and properly disperse reports (appraisal and appraisal review).


 z Appraisal Reports. The format and level of documentation for an appraisal report depends on the complexity 


of the appraisal problem. Complex property assignments are to be reported in a self-contained, narrative 


format. A summary report, in conformance with USPAP Standards Rule 2-2(b), is permitted in cases, which, 


by virtue of their low value or simplicity, do not require the in-depth analysis and presentation necessary in 


a narrative appraisal report.


 z Just Compensation. Upon completion of the appraisal, the appraiser will complete a Summary of Just 


Compensation report to establish the highest and best use valuation.


AC Q U I S I T I O N :  S E T T L E M E N T S  A N D  C LO S I N G S
 z Review Plans. Review project plans to become familiar with the project and its impact on the 


various properties.


 z Verify Conformance.  The City will prepare the legal descriptions and plat maps. Interwest will verify that 


any legal descriptions, right of way plans, surveys and appraisals correspond and are accurate.


 z Offer Letter. Prepare and present the written offer letter to the property owner, along with the appraisal 


summary of value, purchase agreement, deeds, escrow instructions, brochure and agent’s business card 


upon the initiation of negotiations, after review and approval by the City's representative. Submit all legal 


documents for the City's legal counsel to review when language is added, deleted or revised.


 z Acquisition and Negotiation. Conduct negotiations for the acquisition of each parcel in accordance with all 


state policies and procedures, including making the initial purchase offer in person when the owner resides 


in the project area, if possible. Offers to out-of-area owners will be mailed with a Certified Return Receipt.


 z Administrative Settlement Recommendations. Provide the City with a written recommendation and 


support documentation for all counter offers and proposed settlement terms for review and approval or 


disapproval.


 z Open and Monitor Escrows. Coordinate with the selected title company and open escrows on all purchases. 


Interwest monitors escrows, reviews all escrow documents and requests funds from the City to close 


the transaction.


 z City and Owner Liaison. Provide liaison duties between the City and property owners.


 z Contact Documentation. Thoroughly document all contacts with property owners and/or their 


representatives, indicating attendees, time and place of meetings. Documentation includes thorough 


diaries and copies of all correspondence and emails. Diaries are up-dated immediately after each contact, if 


possible, and housed in the permanent acquisition file.


 z Parcel Files. Establish and maintain an accurate and complete working file for each parcel in a professional 


and standard format. Additionally, all pertinent project files are maintained in electronic formats and 


provided to the City at completion of the project. 


 z Meetings. Attend any required or additional meetings, as deemed necessary by the City to communicate 


progress and discuss project issues.


 z Close-Out Acquisition File. Complete a final quality assurance/quality control review on the file for close-


out, provide final status reports to the City and deliver final files to the City upon completion of the project. 







PAG E  6  |  C O S T  P R O P O S A L


C L I N TO N  K E I T H  R OA D  W I D E N I N G  P R O J E C TCITY of WILDOMAR


C O S T  P R O P O S A L


OPTIONAL SERVICE LUMP SUM


Environmental (Phase I Environmental Site Assessments) $7,500


Additional parcels over 8 (PTR, appraisal, acquisition services) $9,000 per case


Terms of Payment


Net 30 days. Invoices will be submitted monthly.


Assumptions


It is assumed that there will be no federal funds and Interwest will be obtaining permanent easements instead of 


fee title. City to provide Interwest with legal descriptions and plat maps. The City and Interwest will determine 


whether a Phase I ESA is necessary before closing the transaction. 


PROJECT MANAGEMENT (50 hours x $125/hour) $  6,250


PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORTS (8 partial acquisition parcels x $650) $  5,200


APPRAISAL SERVICES (8 partial acquisition parcels x $4,000) $32,000


ACQUISITION SERVICES (8 partial acquisition parcels x 40 hours x $120/hour) $38,400


ESCROW COORDINATION (8 partial acquisition parcels x 4 hours x $80/hour) $  2,560


ODCs (POSTAGE, ETC.) $  1,000


GRAND TOTAL $85,410


BUDGET NOT TO EXCEED


S C H E D U L E


    


 Project Management Project Management Project Management Project Management 157 days157 days157 days157 days Mon 3/8/21Mon 3/8/21Mon 3/8/21Mon 3/8/21 Tue 10/12/21Tue 10/12/21Tue 10/12/21Tue 10/12/21


 Award Contract and Issue NTP 1 day Mon 3/8/21 Mon 3/8/21


 Kick-Off Meeting 1 day Tue 3/9/21 Tue 3/9/21


 Obtain Preliminary Title Reports 5 days Wed 3/10/21 Tue 3/16/21


 Prepare Project Delivery Plan 15 days Wed 3/17/21 Tue 4/6/21


 Submit Template Offer Package for Approval 5 days Wed 4/7/21 Tue 4/13/21


 Attend Project Delivery Meetings 130 days Wed 4/14/21 Tue 10/12/21


 Appraisal ManagementAppraisal ManagementAppraisal ManagementAppraisal Management 77 days77 days77 days77 days Mon 3/8/21Mon 3/8/21Mon 3/8/21Mon 3/8/21 Tue 6/22/21Tue 6/22/21Tue 6/22/21Tue 6/22/21


 Obtain and Review Preliminary Title Reports 5 days Mon 3/8/21 Fri 3/12/21


 City to Complete Legal Descriptions and Plat Maps 20 days Mon 3/15/21 Fri 4/9/21


 Send Notice of Decision to Appraise Letters 1 day Mon 4/12/21 Mon 4/12/21


 Prepare Draft Appraisal 40 days Tue 4/13/21 Mon 6/7/21


 Quality Control Review of Draft Appraisal Reports 5 days Tue 6/8/21 Mon 6/14/21


 Obtain Final Appraisal and  Summary of Value 5 days Tue 6/15/21 Mon 6/21/21


 Approve DJC and Authorize Making Offers 1 day Tue 6/22/21 Tue 6/22/21


 Right of Way AcquisitionRight of Way AcquisitionRight of Way AcquisitionRight of Way Acquisition 80 days80 days80 days80 days Wed 6/23/21Wed 6/23/21Wed 6/23/21Wed 6/23/21 Tue 10/12/21Tue 10/12/21Tue 10/12/21Tue 10/12/21


 Prepare Offer Packages 5 days Wed 6/23/21 Tue 6/29/21


 Present Offer Packages  10 days Wed 6/30/21 Tue 7/13/21


 Negotiation Process 45 days Wed 7/14/21 Tue 9/14/21


 Escrow and Closing 20 days Wed 9/15/21 Tue 10/12/21


       
  
























































City of Wildomar
Clinton Keith Road Project
RIGHT OF WAY SCHEDULE


Page  21










C O N TAC T  U S


J E R E M Y  M I L L E R


P R O J E C T  M A N A G E R


( 9 4 9 )  3 7 0 - 9 0 3 5


J M I L L E R @ I N T E R W E S TG R P.C O M


P R O P O S A L  F O R  R I G H T  O F  WAY  S E R V I C E S


CITY of WILDOMAR







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.7 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Jason Farag, Associate Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Notice of Completion – Guardrail Repair and Upgrades Project 


CIP 042, Federal Project #HSIPL-5484(013) 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 


1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_______ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE GUARDRAIL REPAIR AND UPGRADES PROJECT 
(CIP 042, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(013)) AS COMPLETE, AND 


AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PREPARE AND FILE THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
WITH THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY RECORDER 


 
2. Allocate $15,000 in Measure A funds for project administration costs. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
On June 10, 2020, the City Council awarded a construction contract to Danny C. Hubbs 
Const., Inc. (Contractor) in the amount of $369,035.00 for the construction of the 
Guardrail Repair and Upgrades Project (Project, CIP 042). The award authorized a 
contingency of ten percent (10%) to cover approved contract change orders that may 
occur during construction. The project was primarily funded by Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP) grant funds. HSIP is a Federal-aid program which aims to 
reduce traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. 
 
The Project included the repair and upgrade of varying lengths of guardrails adjacent to the 
roadway at several locations City-wide including: Mission Trail south of Olive St., Grape St. 
south of Malaga Rd., Palomar St. at Mission Trail, Clinton Keith Rd. west of Salida del Sol, 
and La Estrella Rd./Nutmeg St. The Project also included shoulder erosion repair beneath 
existing guardrail on Palomar St. just south of Harwood Ln. and Sycamore Academy, sign 
replacement, and other minor related improvements. 
 







  


 


 


DISCUSSION: 
Danny C. Hubbs Const., Inc. has completed all work required by the contract, and the 
project is ready for acceptance and filing of the Notice of Completion (NOC).  If no liens 
or claims have been filed within 30 days of filing the NOC with the Riverside County 
Recorder, the City will release all retained funds and any additional remaining amount(s) 
due to Danny C. Hubbs Const., Inc. 
 
The original contract price for the project was $369,035.00. During construction, City staff 
made design revisions to enhance safety and to accommodate field conditions. Revisions 
included the replacement of one end treatment at Olive St. with radius railing and a wrap-
around end. Another change involved the deletion of guardrail replacement on Palomar 
St. south of Harwood Ln. and Sycamore Academy. The guardrail replacement was 
deleted from the project because a standard installation of guardrail meeting current 
design standards could not be accommodated without more significant modifications due 
to conflicts with existing driveways and a buried gas line. The Contractor completed the 
construction in a satisfactory manner and related contract document requirements were 
also executed in a satisfactory manner. The total revised contract amount at the time of 
construction completion is $353,681.40. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
Project expenditures for Construction were primarily funded by Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP) grant funds (Fund 506) with remaining Construction 
expenditures funded by Measure A. Expenditures related to the 
Design/PS&E/Administration phase as well as the Construction Administration and 
Inspection costs were funded under Measure A. 
 
As of the January 2021 Budget Adjustments, Measure A funds for the Project were 
estimated at $75,000. Based on latest costs, it is estimated that final Measure A 
expenditures for the Project will be about $90,000. Therefore, staff recommends that the 
City Council allocate an additional $15,000 in Measure A funds to cover project costs. 
Since the construction funds for the Project are Federal funds, additional staff 
administration time was spent on this Project to ensure that the project met and complied 
with Federal project requirements. This also included preparing for and participating in a 
project audit from Caltrans, the agency which administers Federal funds to the City. 
  
 
Submitted by:   Approved by: 
Dan York    Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager   City Manager 
Public Works Director 
City Engineer 
   
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 


A. Notice of Completion 
  







  


 


 


 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _______ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE GUARDRAIL REPAIR AND UPGRADES PROJECT 


(CIP 042, FEDERAL PROJECT #HSIPL-5484(013)) AS COMPLETE, AND 
AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PREPARE AND FILE THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


WITH THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY RECORDER 
 


WHEREAS, On June 10, 2020 The City Council awarded a construction contract 
to Danny C. Hubbs Const., Inc. for the Guardrail Repair and Upgrades Project, CIP 042, 
Federal Project #HSIPL-5484(013), (“Project”); and  


 
WHEREAS, Danny C. Hubbs Const., Inc. has completed the work in accordance 


with the contract documents for the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, if no liens or claims have been filed within 30 days of filing the Notice 


of Completion, the retained payment funds and any remaining amount due will be 
released to Danny C. Hubbs Const., Inc. 


 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 


Wildomar City Council, in regular session assembled on April 14, 2021, that: 
 


The Project is accepted as complete. Within 15 days of the date of this Resolution, the 
City Engineer shall prepare a Notice of Completion and the City Clerk shall file the Notice 
of Completion with the Riverside County Recorder. 


 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 14th day of April, 2021 


 
 
             


 ________________________ 
     Dustin Nigg   


Mayor     
 


 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:          ATTEST:   


 
 


 ____________________   _______________________  
Thomas D. Jex            Janet Morales 
City Attorney             City Clerk   


  







 
NO FEE DOCUMENT   
Government Code §6103 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
CITY OF WILDOMAR     
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201  
Wildomar, CA 92595 
Attn: City Clerk  


 
 
 
 
 
 
The Above Space For Recorder’s Use Only 


      
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


Civil Code 3093  
 


1. Prime Contractor: Danny C. Hubbs Const., Inc. 
 


2. Project Name:  Guardrail Repair and Upgrades Project (CIP  
042, Federal Project #HSIPL-5484(013)). 
 
 


3. Date of Completion (Acceptance): April 14, 2021 
 


4. Description of Work or Materials Furnished: Repair and upgrade of varying lengths of guardrails 
adjacent to the roadway at designated locations throughout the City; shoulder erosion repair; sign 
replacement; and installation of a minor AC dike. 
 


5. Site Location: Mission Trail south of Olive St., Grape St. south of Malaga Rd., Palomar St. at 
Mission Trail, Clinton Keith Rd. west of Salida del Sol, La Estrella Rd./Nutmeg St., Palomar St. 
south of Harwood Ln.  


 
6. Owner’s Property Interest in Site is: Public Right of Way  


 
7. Owner:  City of Wildomar, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201, Wildomar, CA 92595 


 
City of Wildomar: 


 
Dated: April 14, 2021          
       Dan York  


Assistant City Manager 
City Engineer/ Director of Public Works 


Verification 
 


I, the undersigned, say: 
 


I am the person who signed the foregoing notice. I have read said notice and know the contents 
thereof, and the facts stated therein are true of my knowledge. 


 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 


 
Executed at Wildomar, California, this 14th day of April, 2021. 


 
City of Wildomar: 


             
       Dan York  


Assistant City Manager 
City Engineer/ Director of Public Works 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL
Agenda Item #1.8


CONSENT CALENDAR
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021


______________________________________________________________________


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 


FROM: Daniel A. York, Assistant City Manager 


SUBJECT: Parcel Map 37941 - Final Map Approval, Subdivision Improvement 
Agreements, Lien Agreements 


STAFF REPORT
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council: 


1. Adopt a Resolution entitled:


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 37941 
AND AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION 


IMPROVEMENT AND LIEN AGREEMENTS 


2. Authorize the City Engineer to accept the dedications related to Parcel Map 37941
and direct the City Clerk to transmit to the County Recorder of the County.


BACKGROUND:


On November 11, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-69 approving 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 37941 to subdivide the approximate 10.25-acre site into three 
(3) lots to accommodate the development of an 84,000 square foot medical office
building and a 102-room hotel.  The subdivision map is valid for three (3) years until
November 11, 2023 by which time the final map must be approved by the City Council
and recorded.


DISCUSSION:
The Parcel Map (Attachment B) has been examined and checked for compliance with 
the Wildomar Municipal Code and the California Subdivision Map Act. The City 
Engineer has determined that the location and configuration of the lots created by this 
Parcel Map substantially comply with the Tentative Parcel Map as filed, amended and 
approved. 


The Developer has expressed their plan to sell and develop the parcels separately. 
Therefore, two (2) Subdivision Improvement Agreements (SIA) have been completed for 
the Project based on the City’s standard Subdivision Improvement Agreement. One SIA 







covers the Medical Office Building portion of the Project (Parcel 1) and another SIA 
covers the Hotel portion of the project (Parcel 2).  Parcel 3 serves the project for storm 
water purposes. The Subdivision Improvement Agreements identify the Developer’s 
obligations in completing their development’s improvements and sets forth policies and 
procedures for the Developer and the City to ensure that the improvements are 
completed. Appropriate Security is required to be submitted to the City for performance, 
labor and materials, warranty, and monumentation to complete the Subdivision 
Improvements. Section 16.56.030 (Lien Agreement as Security) of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code (WMC) allows a Schedule “E” Subdivision Map to execute a Lien 
Agreement as a form of security for a map. The Developer has requested to execute 
Lien Agreements as the form of security to secure the improvements in the SIAs. As a 
result, staff has prepared two (2) Lien Agreements, one for each SIA. Under the Lien 
Agreements, the Developer cannot proceed with development (construction) of the 
property until bonds (or another acceptable form of security) are submitted to the City. 
Copies of the SIAs and Lien Agreements are included in Attachments C and D. 
 
All applicable Parcel Map conditions of approval have either been satisfied or have 
been referenced in Exhibit ‘D’ of each Subdivision Improvement Agreement with a note 
regarding their disposition and completion.  The purpose of Exhibit D in the Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement is to list those conditions that are required prior to Map 
Recordation but cannot be met at the time of recordation. 
 
Parcel Map 37491 is dedicating Lot A for Street and Public Utility purposes; Emergency 
Access and Public Utility easement across Parcels 1, 2, and 3; and Storm Drain 
easement within Parcel 1. Staff requests that the City Council authorize the City 
Engineer to accept the dedications and direct the City Clerk to transmit Parcel Map and 
dedications to the County Recorder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts to the City at this time. All costs related to this project are 
currently covered by Developer Deposits. When the project is constructed, the City will 
be responsible for the maintenance of the public improvements after acceptance by the 
City Council. As the parcels develop, the Developer will be required to annex into the 
Community Facilities District (CFD) Services to offset project related maintenance 
costs. 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Aerial Image of Project 
Attachment B: Final Map 37941 
Attachment C: Subdivision Improvement and Lien Agreements for MOB Portion 
Attachment D: Subdivision Improvement and Lien Agreements for Hotel Portion 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR TRACT PARCEL MAP 37941 


AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION 
IMPROVEMENT AND LIEN AGREEMENTS 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wildomar approved Tentative Parcel 


Map 37941 subject to conditions, on November 11, 2020 per Resolution 2020-69; and 
 
WHEREAS, consistent with the approved Tentative Parcel Map, Strata Keith, 


LLC, a Delaware limited liability corporation, submitted to the City for approval the Final 
Map; and 


 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the proposed Final Map and finds it to be 


technically correct and that all applicable final map conditions of approval have been 
satisfied or otherwise identified as outstanding in a Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement; and 


 
WHEREAS, Subdivision Improvement Agreements have been approved by the 


City Attorney; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Lien Agreement for the Medical Office Building Portion (Parcel 1) 


and a Lien Agreement for the Hotel Portion (Parcels 2 and 3) have been approved by 
the City Attorney as a form of security for the construction of the required improvements 
for this final map; and  


 
WHEREAS, a Supplemental Environmental Impact Report was certified for 


Tentative Parcel Map No. 37941 by the City Council on November 11, 2020 per 
Resolution No. 2020-68; and  


 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that this Final Map is statutorily exempt 


from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Statutory Exemptions, Title 14 of 
the California Code of Regulations Section 15268, (b) (3) Ministerial Projects, approval 
of final subdivision maps. 


 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 


Wildomar City Council, in regular session assembled on April 14, 2021, the following: 
 


1. The location and configuration of the lots to be created by the Final Map 
substantially comply with the previously approved Tentative Map; and 


2. The Final Map is statutorily exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA), Statutory Exemptions, Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations 
Section 15268, (b) (3) Ministerial projects, approval of final subdivision maps; 
and 







3. The City Council of the City of Wildomar, pursuant to Government Code Section 
66458, hereby approves the Final Map, and: 


a. Directs the City Surveyor to sign the Final Map; and 
b. Directs the City Engineer to sign the Final Map; and 
c. Directs the City Clerk to sign the Final Map; and 
d. Directs the City Manager to execute the Subdivision Improvement and 


Lien Agreements for the Medical Office Building Portion of TR 37941 and 
the Subdivision Improvement and Lien Agreements for the Hotel Portion of 
TR 37941 incorporated herein by this reference; and 


e. Directs the City Clerk to transmit the Final Map, Agreements, and the 
dedications to the County Recorder of the County of Riverside for filing; 
and 


f. Directs the City Clerk to transmit the Notice of Exemption to the County 
Clerk of the County of Riverside for filing. 


 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 14th day of April, 2021. 


 
 
              
 
       ______________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 


 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST:     
   
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________  
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales   
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 


 







Attachment A 
Site Location 


 


 


 
 







Attachment B 
Parcel Map 37941 


 


 


 
 







AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 1 OF 4 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

RECORDER'S STATEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

FILED THIS ______ DAY OF ________, 2021.



AutoCAD SHX Text

AT _____.M.  IN BOOK __________ OF PARCEL MAPS,



AutoCAD SHX Text

AT PAGES _____________, AT THE REQUEST OF



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CITY CLERK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO.________________



AutoCAD SHX Text

FEE________________



AutoCAD SHX Text

PETER ALDANA. COUNTY ASSESSOR-



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY:______________________, DEPUTY



AutoCAD SHX Text

SUBDIVISION GUARANTEE BY: CHICAGO



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE COMPANY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATED:__________, 2021.



AutoCAD SHX Text

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ACCORDING TO THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE, AS OF THIS



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE, THERE ARE NO LIENS AGAINST THE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE WITHIN MAP FOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

UNPAID STATE, COUNTY, MUNICIPAL OR LOCAL TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLLECTED AS TAXES, EXCEPT TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES, 



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATED:__________, 2021.



AutoCAD SHX Text

                              JON CHRISTENSEN, COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

                               BY:                      , DEPUTY



AutoCAD SHX Text

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT A BOND IN THE SUM OF $____________ HAS BEEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXECUTED AND FILED WITH THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA, CONDITIONED UPON THE PAYMENT OF ALL TAXES,



AutoCAD SHX Text

STATE, COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, OR LOCAL, AND ALL SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLLECTED AS TAXES, WHICH AT THE TIME OF THE FILING OF THIS MAP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER ARE A LIEN AGAINST SAID PROPERTY BUT NOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

YET PAYABLE AND SAID BOND HAS BEEN DULY APPROVED BY SAID BOARD OF 



AutoCAD SHX Text

SUPERVISORS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATED: ___________, 2021.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CASH TAX BOND



AutoCAD SHX Text

MATT JENNINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR                  



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY:                                  



AutoCAD SHX Text

       DEPUTY                               



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEC. 36, T6S, R4W 



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOW A LIEN BUT NOT YET PAYABLE, WHICH ARE ESTIMATED TO BE $______________. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

DANIEL A. YORK, R.C.E. 43212



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLERK-RECORDER



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCHEDULE "E"



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY ENGINEER



AutoCAD SHX Text

H:\PDATA\133555\CADD\MAPPING\PM 37941\133555-PM37941-001.DWG  JDUQUETTE  3/18/21 8:24 am



AutoCAD SHX Text

STRATA KEITH, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY



AutoCAD SHX Text

JOHN R. DUQUETTE,  PLS 7566



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION AND IS BASED ON A FIELD SURVEY IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCE AT THE REQUEST OF STRATA KEITH, INC. IN NOVEMBER 2020. I HEREBY STATE THAT ALL MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON ARE OF THE CHARACTER AND OCCUPY THE POSITIONS INDICATED, OR WILL BE SET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE MONUMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE MAP, AND THAT THE MONUMENTS ARE, OR WILL BE SET SUFFICIENT TO ENABLE THE SURVEY TO BE RETRACED. I HEREBY STATE THIS PARCEL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE CONDITIONALLY APPROVED TENTATIVE MAP.



AutoCAD SHX Text

                                    EXPIRES 12-31-2019



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:____________________, 20_____



AutoCAD SHX Text

STATE OF _________________  )SS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COUNTY OF %%U                      %%U)



AutoCAD SHX Text

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL   



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIGNATURE: __________________________________ 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ON THIS _____ DAY OF ________________, 20___ BEFORE ME, _____________________, A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________________________ AND ________________________________  WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON(S) WHOSE NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE/SHE/THEY EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS/HER/THEIR AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(IES) AND THAT BY HIS/HER/THEIR SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S), OR THE ENTITY(IES) UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT.  I CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________



AutoCAD SHX Text

MY COMMISSION NUMBER IS _____________



AutoCAD SHX Text

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE  IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDITY OF THAT DOCUMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRINT NAME: __________________________________ 



AutoCAD SHX Text

MY PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IS IN _________________ COUNTY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UNOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY: _______________________ _______________________ _______________________ NAME      NAME NAME TITLE     TITLETITLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

I HEREBY STATE THAT THE PARCEL MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY 



AutoCAD SHX Text

SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM SATISFIED THAT SAID MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT.  



AutoCAD SHX Text

DANIEL A. YORK, 



AutoCAD SHX Text

LS 7962



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY SURVEYOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UOWNER'S STATEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%USURVEYOR'S STATEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UCITY CLERK STATEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UTAX COLLECTOR'S CERTIFICATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UTAX BOND CERTIFICATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UCITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UCITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

Q



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

L.S. 7566



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOVEMBER, 2020



AutoCAD SHX Text

K



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

L.S. 7962



AutoCAD SHX Text

A.



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

K



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R.C.E. 43212



AutoCAD SHX Text

A.



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

WE HEREBY STATE THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF THE LAND INCLUDED WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON; THAT WE ARE THE ONLY PERSON'S WHOSE CONSENT IS NECESSARY TO PASS A CLEAR TITLE TO SAID LAND; THAT WE CONSENT TO THE MAKING AND RECORDING OF THIS SUBDIVISION MAP AS SHOWN WITHIN THE DISTINCTIVE BORDER LINE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

1. THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES: LOTS "A". THE DEDICATION IS FOR STREET AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES. AS A CONDITION OF DEDICATION OF LOT "A" (BAXTER ROAD), THE OWNER OF PARCEL 1, INCLUSIVE, ABUTTING THIS HIGHWAY AND DURING SUCH TIME WILL HAVE NO RIGHTS OF ACCESS EXCEPT THE GENERAL EASEMENT OF TRAVEL, ALSO EXCEPTING ONE ACCESS OPENING FOR PARCEL 1, AS SHOWN HEREON. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

3. THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES:THE STORM DRAIN EASEMENTS, AS SHOWN HEREON. THE DEDICATION IS FOR STORM DRAIN PURPOSES IN FAVOR OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR WITHIN PARCEL 1.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WE HEREBY RETAIN THE EASEMENT INDICATED AS "RECIROCAL ACCESS EASEMENT" LYING WITHIN PARCELS 1, 2, AND 3, INCLUSIVE, AS SHOWN HEREON, FOR PRIVATE USE, FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEE'S, AND PARCEL OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, BY ORDER OF ITS CITY COUNCIL PER CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 20___-_________, HEREBY APPROVES THIS PARCEL MAP NO. 36673. 1. THE OFFER OF THE DEDICATION OF LOT "A", FOR STREET AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES, AND AS PART OF THE CITY MAINTAINED ROAD SYSTEM, SUBJECT TO IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY STANDARDS IS HEREBY ACCEPTED.  2. THE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF THE EMERGENCY ACCESS AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT WITHIN PARCELS 1, 2, AND 3, INCLUSIVE, IS HEREBY ACCEPTED.  3. THE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF THE STORM DRAIN EASEMENTS WITHIN PARCEL    1, IS HEREBY ACCEPTED.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATED:__________________, 20____



AutoCAD SHX Text

JANET MORALES, ACTING CITY CLERK



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS MAP CONFORMS WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCES. I HEREBY STATE THAT THIS MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND FOUND TO BE SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE TENTATIVE MAP OF PARCEL MAP 37941 AS FILED, AMENDED, AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION ON NOVEMBER 11, 2020, THE EXPIRATION DATE BEING NVEMBER 11, 2023, AND THAT THE CITY ENGINEER IS HEREBY AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED TO SIGN THIS MAP PER CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 20___,-_______.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL MAP NO. 37941



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL B OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 2020-003, RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2020 AS INST. NO. 2020-0402640 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, BEING PORTIONS OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2. THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES:THE EMERGENCY ACCESS AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS, AS SHOWN HEREON. THE DEDICATION IS FOR EMERGENCY ACCESS AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES IN FAVOR OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR WITHIN PARCELS 1, 2, AND 3, INCLUSIVE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WE HEREBY RETAIN THE EASEMENT INDICATED AS "STORM DRAIN EASEMENT TO RCWD" LYING WITHIN PARCEL 3, AS SHOWN HEREON, FOR PRIVATE USE, FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEE'S, AND PARCEL OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP.







AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L GROVE STREET



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BAXTER ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N36%%D52'14"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

[331.76']



AutoCAD SHX Text

1325.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

495.41'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1324.51' (1324.50 R3)



AutoCAD SHX Text

30.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

553



AutoCAD SHX Text

560



AutoCAD SHX Text

550



AutoCAD SHX Text

552



AutoCAD SHX Text

551



AutoCAD SHX Text

557



AutoCAD SHX Text

(331.57 R4 & R5)



AutoCAD SHX Text

M & (R4 & R5)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N76%%D10'52"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEC.                                26 T 6 S,                                R 4 W S.  B.  M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

555



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL A                                



AutoCAD SHX Text

LLA 2020-003



AutoCAD SHX Text

REC      8/28/2020



AutoCAD SHX Text

INST. NO. 2020-0402640 O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

[343.64']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[S01%%D10'57"W]  1316.14' (1315.77' R1)



AutoCAD SHX Text

[1286.14']



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D26'02"W  2650.00' (2649.97' R2) (2650.12' R6)



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N33°44'03"E50.00'] M & (R4 & R5)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L  WHITE STREET



AutoCAD SHX Text

168



AutoCAD SHX Text

1324.73'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SFN



AutoCAD SHX Text

1325.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

(502.78' R2) (502.83' R6)



AutoCAD SHX Text

670.69'



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

&



AutoCAD SHX Text

(



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

&



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

)



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N89%%D26'02"W  954.06']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N81%%D27'44"E  506.36']



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Δ



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Δ



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

502.91'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D17'33"W  2649.24' (2649.17' R3)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(Δ=10%%D19'40" L=450.63' R5)



AutoCAD SHX Text

167



AutoCAD SHX Text

169



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N79%%D57'19"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

427.81']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N80%%D12'54"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N34%%D30'44"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D59'33"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL B                                



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

[829.34']



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

168.94']



AutoCAD SHX Text

143.54']



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

[568.82']



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

Δ



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

Δ



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCC



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65°54'39"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCC



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65%%D21'39"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

558



AutoCAD SHX Text

25



AutoCAD SHX Text

26



AutoCAD SHX Text

35



AutoCAD SHX Text

36



AutoCAD SHX Text

554



AutoCAD SHX Text

N01%%D11'17"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

1066.20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N01%%D11'52"E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

1065.09' R8)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N36%%D52'14"W  1672.95'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1341.19'



AutoCAD SHX Text

176



AutoCAD SHX Text

177



AutoCAD SHX Text

N53%%D08'03"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATA TABLE THIS SHEET ONLY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEARING/DELTA



AutoCAD SHX Text

RADIUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

LENGTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

#



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D18'23"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

00%%D00'17"



AutoCAD SHX Text

50170.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4.13'



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

(00%%D00'17"



AutoCAD SHX Text

50170.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4.13'R8)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

[24%%D37'54"



AutoCAD SHX Text

190.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

81.68']



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

[09%%D52'23"



AutoCAD SHX Text

807.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

139.06']



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

[45%%D42'10"



AutoCAD SHX Text

178.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

141.98']



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

[11%%D29'05"



AutoCAD SHX Text

200.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40.09']



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N68%%D43'49"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

5.00']



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N80%%D12'54"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

41.22']



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N09%%D47'06"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

19.00']



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D26'02"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

151.40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

150



AutoCAD SHX Text

150



AutoCAD SHX Text

300



AutoCAD SHX Text

450



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRAPHIC SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1"=150'



AutoCAD SHX Text

-(00%%D32'40.09")



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEODETIC NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRID NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UVICINITY MAP & CONTROL TIES



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PEGGY LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CENTRAL AVE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

BAXTER ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORANGE ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

BUNDY CANYON RD.



AutoCAD SHX Text

BAYLESS RD.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMO



AutoCAD SHX Text

ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHERRY      ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WHITE ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALNUT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CANYON



AutoCAD SHX Text

DR.



AutoCAD SHX Text

MONTE  VISTA DR.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL MAP NO. 37941



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

554



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UMONUMENT NOTES



AutoCAD SHX Text

INDICATES FOUND MONUMENT AS NOTED AND REFERENCED HEREON.



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1 1/2" IP OPEN, SET TAG "LS 7566," DOWN 0.1', ACCEPTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1" IP W/PP STAMPED "CALIF DOT" UP 1.0' PER R5



AutoCAD SHX Text

     AS THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 



AutoCAD SHX Text

550



AutoCAD SHX Text

551



AutoCAD SHX Text

554



AutoCAD SHX Text

555



AutoCAD SHX Text

557



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1" IP W/PP STAMPED "CALIF DOT" DOWN 0.2' PER R5



AutoCAD SHX Text

552



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1" IP W/PP STAMPED "CALIF DOT" DOWN 0.2' PER R5



AutoCAD SHX Text

553



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 26, 2 1/2" BRASS DISK STAMPED "T.6S. R.4W." FLUSH PER R6



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1 1/2" IRON PIPE WITH NAIL AND TAG STAMPED "LS 3698" DOWN 1.5' PER R2



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. SOUTH 1/4 SECTION 26, 1" IRON PIPE WITH NAIL AND TAG STAMPED "LS 3698" DOWN 1.1' PER R1



AutoCAD SHX Text

558



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1" IRON PIPE WITH NAIL AND TAG STAMPED "LS 3698" DOWN 1.0' PER R3



AutoCAD SHX Text

560



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1" IRON PIPE WITH NAIL AND TAG STAMPED "LS 3698" DOWN 0.2' PER R3



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UREFERENCES



AutoCAD SHX Text

R2 PARCEL MAP 8063, P.M.B. 31/33-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

R1 PARCEL MAP 6074, P.M.B. 14/47



AutoCAD SHX Text

R3 PARCEL MAP 5698, P.M.B. 12/71



AutoCAD SHX Text

R4 GRANT DEED RECORDED 8/8/1972 INTRUMENT NO. 151810 O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R5 CALTRANS MONUMENTATION MAP 443042



AutoCAD SHX Text

R6 TRACT NO. 21085-2, M.B. 163/23-26



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 2 OF 4 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

H:\PDATA\133555\CADD\MAPPING\PM 37941\133555-PM37941-002 VERSION 2.DWG  JDUQUETTE  3/18/21 8:23 am



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL B OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 2020-003, RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2020 AS INST. NO. 2020-0402640 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, BEING PORTIONS OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R7 LLA 2020-003, REC. 8/28/20 INST. NO. 2020-0402640 O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

INDICATES MEASURED AND RECORDED PER R7 AS REFERENCED HEREON



AutoCAD SHX Text

[ ]



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASIS OF BEARING N47°35'57.46"W151,905.377' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N: 2154994.777



AutoCAD SHX Text

E: 6313564.389



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EPOCH 2007.00)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTROL STATION "BILL"



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELEV: 1650.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

N: 2257426.318



AutoCAD SHX Text

E: 6201390.315



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EPOCH 2007.00)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTROL STATION "MAT2"



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UEASEMENT NOTES



AutoCAD SHX Text

554



AutoCAD SHX Text

557



AutoCAD SHX Text

CORS CONTROL STATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

N29°31'56.33"W 102833.420'



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77°36'12.51"W 60240.886'



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UBASIS OF BEARINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE CALIFORNIA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, ZONE 6, BASED LOCALLY ON CONTROL STATIONS "BILL" AND "MAT2" (POSITIONS PER NATIONAL GEODETIC SURVEY, NAD 83, EPOCH 2007.0) AS SHOWN HEREON. ALL DISTANCES ARE GROUND DISTANCES, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. GRID DISTANCES MAY BE OBTAINED BY MULTIPLYING GROUND DISTANCES BY 0.99990468.



AutoCAD SHX Text

RECORD OR MAP OR DOCUMENT AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

( )



AutoCAD SHX Text

INDICATES SET NAIL AND TAG "LS 7566", FLUSH



AutoCAD SHX Text

R8 CALTRANS MONUMENTATION MAP 443043



AutoCAD SHX Text

167



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 2 1/4" BRASS DISK STAMPED "CAL DEPT OF TRANSPORATION CL BAXTER 132+00.60 POT"



AutoCAD SHX Text

168



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1" IRON PIPE WITH NAIL AND TAG STAMPED "LS 3698" DOWN 1.0' PER R1



AutoCAD SHX Text

169



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1" IRON PIPE W/PP STAMPED "CALIF DOT" FLUSH PER R8



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION 26 AS SHOWN ON R1 & R3



AutoCAD SHX Text

176



AutoCAD SHX Text

177



AutoCAD SHX Text

DOWN 0.3' PER R5



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1" IRON PIPE W/PP STAMPED "CALIF DOT" FLUSH PER R8



AutoCAD SHX Text

     FD. 1" IRON PIPE W/PP STAMPED "CALIF DOT" FLUSH PER R8



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UBOUNDARY ESTABLISHMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

IDENTICAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 4 PMB 35/99



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 4  PMB 14/47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 1 PMB 238/94-95



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 2 PMB 14/47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 1 PMB 10/75



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 3 PMB 9/92



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 1 PMB 31/33-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°26'02"W 2649.75' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

2650.00" GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

FEBRUARY, 2019



AutoCAD SHX Text

PMB 12/71



AutoCAD SHX Text

PMB  91/59



AutoCAD SHX Text

N: 2167953.239



AutoCAD SHX Text

E: 6252078.384



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELEV: 1316.536



AutoCAD SHX Text

POR OF SW   14SEC 26



AutoCAD SHX Text

M.B. 10/58-75



AutoCAD SHX Text

N: 2167927.054



AutoCAD SHX Text

E: 6254728.001



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELEV: 1402.055



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 2 PMB 31/33-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

CENTRAL AVE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRUWELL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

   INDICATES AN EASEMENT FOR EMERGENCY ACCESS, RECIPROCAL ACCESS AN EASEMENT FOR EMERGENCY ACCESS, RECIPROCAL ACCESS AND PUBLIC UTILITIES TO BE DEDICATED ON THE FINAL MAP.     INDICATES AN EASEMENT FOR STORM DRAIN PURPOSES TO THE CITY OF INDICATES AN EASEMENT FOR STORM DRAIN PURPOSES TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR TO BE DEDICATED ON THE FINAL MAP.  INDICATES AN EASEMENT FOR STORM DRAIN PURPOSES TO RCFCD TO BE RESERVED ON THE FINAL MAP.  



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

   AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC HIGHWAY AND UTILITY PURPOSES TO THE COUNTY OF AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC HIGHWAY AND UTILITY PURPOSES TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, RECORDED FEBRUARY 5, 1935  IN BOOK 217, PAGE 84 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.     AN EASEMENT FOR UTILITY PURPOSES TO CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY, RECORDED JUNE 21, 1950 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2876 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.     CENTERLINE ONLY IS SHOWN.  WIDTH IS NOT DISCLOSED IN RECORDED DOCUMENT.    TO BE QUITCLAIMED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

INDICATES AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO BE RESERVED ON THE FINAL MAP. 







PARCEL 2


PARCEL 3


PARCEL 1


LOT "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

EX. BAXTER ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

INTERSTATE 15



AutoCAD SHX Text

 



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65%%D54'39"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D44'08"W  411.78'



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.59'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

C MARGARET LN



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

N00%%D05'45"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

104.43'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL "B"



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

210.37'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D59'33"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

17



AutoCAD SHX Text

N57%%D13'05"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

16



AutoCAD SHX Text

18



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N81%%D27'44"E  506.36']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N79%%D57'19"E  427.81']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N80%%D12'54"E  168.94']



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N34%%D30'44"E  143.54']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N89%%D26'02"W  568.82']



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

272.62'



AutoCAD SHX Text

129.95'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

105.98'



AutoCAD SHX Text

295.99'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65%%D21'39"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

140.35'



AutoCAD SHX Text

11



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

13



AutoCAD SHX Text

14



AutoCAD SHX Text

N76%%D10'52"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCC



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

210.37'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N81%%D27'44"E  506.36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

N01%%D13'21"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D26'02"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

568.82'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N02%%D19'46"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N05%%D27'52"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N11%%D48'22"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

']



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL A



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

19



AutoCAD SHX Text

INTERSTATE 15



AutoCAD SHX Text

LLA 2020-003



AutoCAD SHX Text

169



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65%%D54'39"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132=10°16'13"



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132=12°43'29"



AutoCAD SHX Text

L=555.22'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65°51'15"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL MAP NO. 37941



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL B OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 2020-003, RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2020 AS INST. NO. 2020-0402640 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, BEING PORTIONS OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 3 OF 4 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL "B"



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOVEMBER, 2020



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATA TABLE-THIS SHEET ONLY



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEARING/DELTA



AutoCAD SHX Text

RADIUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

LENGTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

N33%%D44'03"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

50.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D26'02"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

60.26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

01%%D06'25"



AutoCAD SHX Text

1464.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

N43%%D23'33"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

13.06'



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

12.31'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

N81%%D17'56"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

(R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

15.28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

04%%D00'34"



AutoCAD SHX Text

100.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

7.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

7.69'



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.54'



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

N35%%D47'02"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

11



AutoCAD SHX Text

[11%%D29'05"



AutoCAD SHX Text

200.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40.09']



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N68%%D43'49"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

5.00']



AutoCAD SHX Text

13



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N80%%D12'54"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

41.22']



AutoCAD SHX Text

14



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N09%%D47'06"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

19.00']



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

N90%%D00'00"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

7.69'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16



AutoCAD SHX Text

N00%%D00'00"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

42.70'



AutoCAD SHX Text

17



AutoCAD SHX Text

N55%%D56'41"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

60.44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

18



AutoCAD SHX Text

01%%D43'49"



AutoCAD SHX Text

807.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.37'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEGEND



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESTRICTED ACCESS



AutoCAD SHX Text

-(00%%D32'40.09")



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEODETIC NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRID NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

554



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

25



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1"=50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE SHEET 4 FOR EASEMENT LOCATIONS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE SHEET 2 FOR BOUNDARY ESTABLISHMENT AND EASEMENT NOTES



AutoCAD SHX Text

19



AutoCAD SHX Text

00%%D03'25"



AutoCAD SHX Text

2500.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2.49'







PARCEL 2


PARCEL 3


PARCEL 1


LOT "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

EX. BAXTER ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

 



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D44'08"W  411.78'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

C MARGARET LN



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%132



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%D



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

210.37'



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N79%%D57'19"E  427.81']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N80%%D12'54"E  168.94']



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N34%%D30'44"E  143.54']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

[



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N89%%D26'02"W  568.82']



AutoCAD SHX Text

272.62'



AutoCAD SHX Text

129.95'



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W  345.08'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  560.56'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  314.56'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  203.46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  379.38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W  352.16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W  222.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

137.72'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

73.34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

79.49'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N17%%D19'20"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

76.33'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N18%%D16'55"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

N20%%D08'33"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  396.61'



AutoCAD SHX Text

5.01'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  144.43'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  143.04'



AutoCAD SHX Text

60.12'



AutoCAD SHX Text

60.53'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D56'17"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N57%%D13'05"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65%%D54'39"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D59'33"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  231.77'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W  370.36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

105.98'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

110.29'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  411.41'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N20%%D08'33"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

145.59'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  173.81'



AutoCAD SHX Text

295.99'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL "C"



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

279.16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

103.09'



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.02'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.09'



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.03'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N67%%D57'36"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N68%%D25'06"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65%%D21'39"W (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

11



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

13



AutoCAD SHX Text

14



AutoCAD SHX Text

14



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

16



AutoCAD SHX Text

17



AutoCAD SHX Text

18



AutoCAD SHX Text

19



AutoCAD SHX Text

20



AutoCAD SHX Text

21



AutoCAD SHX Text

22



AutoCAD SHX Text

23



AutoCAD SHX Text

24



AutoCAD SHX Text

25



AutoCAD SHX Text

26



AutoCAD SHX Text

27



AutoCAD SHX Text

28



AutoCAD SHX Text

29



AutoCAD SHX Text

30



AutoCAD SHX Text

31



AutoCAD SHX Text

32



AutoCAD SHX Text

33



AutoCAD SHX Text

34



AutoCAD SHX Text

35



AutoCAD SHX Text

36



AutoCAD SHX Text

37



AutoCAD SHX Text

38



AutoCAD SHX Text

39



AutoCAD SHX Text

40



AutoCAD SHX Text

41



AutoCAD SHX Text

42



AutoCAD SHX Text

43



AutoCAD SHX Text

45



AutoCAD SHX Text

46



AutoCAD SHX Text

47



AutoCAD SHX Text

48



AutoCAD SHX Text

49



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

51



AutoCAD SHX Text

52



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL "D"



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

88.95'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

53



AutoCAD SHX Text

54



AutoCAD SHX Text

44



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N81%%D27'44"E  506.36']



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.60'



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCC



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

48



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

52



AutoCAD SHX Text

47



AutoCAD SHX Text

49



AutoCAD SHX Text

51



AutoCAD SHX Text

295.99'



AutoCAD SHX Text

210.37'



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N81°27'44"E 506.36']



AutoCAD SHX Text

168.94']



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

110.29'



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N80%%D12'54"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

55



AutoCAD SHX Text

56



AutoCAD SHX Text

57



AutoCAD SHX Text

60



AutoCAD SHX Text

59



AutoCAD SHX Text

33



AutoCAD SHX Text

41



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  173.81'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  144.43'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E  143.04'



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

24'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

N83%%D52'32"E (R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

58



AutoCAD SHX Text

20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL MAP NO. 37941



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL B OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 2020-003, RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2020 AS INST. NO. 2020-0402640 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, BEING PORTIONS OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 4 OF 4 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOVEMBER, 2020



AutoCAD SHX Text

-(00%%D32'40.09")



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEODETIC NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRID NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

25



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1"=50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE SHEET 2 FOR BOUNDARY ESTABLISHMENT AND EASEMENT NOTES



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATA TABLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEARING/DELTA



AutoCAD SHX Text

RADIUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

LENGTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

N33%%D44'03"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

50.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D26'02"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

60.26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

270%%D00'00"



AutoCAD SHX Text

7.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

11.78'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

90%%D00'00"



AutoCAD SHX Text

37.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

58.90'



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

90%%D00'00"



AutoCAD SHX Text

19.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

29.85'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

94%%D36'42"



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16.51'



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

35.68'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

51.45'



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

N32%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

5.52'



AutoCAD SHX Text

11



AutoCAD SHX Text

42%%D04'28"



AutoCAD SHX Text

7.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

5.51'



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

N09%%D47'06"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

38.09'



AutoCAD SHX Text

13



AutoCAD SHX Text

N09%%D47'06"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

75.43'



AutoCAD SHX Text

14



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65%%D18'11"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

9.63'



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

N32%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

8.53'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16



AutoCAD SHX Text

45%%D00'00"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

9.82'



AutoCAD SHX Text

17



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

31.65'



AutoCAD SHX Text

18



AutoCAD SHX Text

27%%D13'28"



AutoCAD SHX Text

32.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

15.44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

19



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

30.72'



AutoCAD SHX Text

20



AutoCAD SHX Text

80%%D43'50"



AutoCAD SHX Text

32.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

45.79'



AutoCAD SHX Text

21



AutoCAD SHX Text

N21%%D58'48"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.79'



AutoCAD SHX Text

22



AutoCAD SHX Text

89%%D55'16"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

19.62'



AutoCAD SHX Text

23



AutoCAD SHX Text

N68%%D05'56"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

17.22'



AutoCAD SHX Text

24



AutoCAD SHX Text

00%%D27'30"



AutoCAD SHX Text

2500.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

25



AutoCAD SHX Text

N68%%D05'56"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

17.13'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26



AutoCAD SHX Text

90%%D01'48"



AutoCAD SHX Text

32.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

51.07'



AutoCAD SHX Text

27



AutoCAD SHX Text

N21%%D58'48"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.79'



AutoCAD SHX Text

28



AutoCAD SHX Text

80%%D43'50"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

17.61'



AutoCAD SHX Text

29



AutoCAD SHX Text

24%%D42'04"



AutoCAD SHX Text

166.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

71.56'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30



AutoCAD SHX Text

09%%D52'23"



AutoCAD SHX Text

783.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

134.93'



AutoCAD SHX Text

31



AutoCAD SHX Text

N34%%D30'44"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

143.54'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32



AutoCAD SHX Text

45%%D42'10"



AutoCAD SHX Text

154.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

122.84'



AutoCAD SHX Text

33



AutoCAD SHX Text

N80%%D12'54"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

207.71'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34



AutoCAD SHX Text

N70%%D29'25"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

47.86'



AutoCAD SHX Text

35



AutoCAD SHX Text

N09%%D47'06"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.92'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36



AutoCAD SHX Text

80%%D43'50"



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

14.09'



AutoCAD SHX Text

37



AutoCAD SHX Text

N21%%D58'48"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

53.55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38



AutoCAD SHX Text

N18%%D16'55"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

59.99'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39



AutoCAD SHX Text

N17%%D19'20"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

51.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40



AutoCAD SHX Text

94%%D36'42"



AutoCAD SHX Text

7.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

12.38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

41



AutoCAD SHX Text

11%%D29'05"



AutoCAD SHX Text

200.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40.09'



AutoCAD SHX Text

42



AutoCAD SHX Text

N68%%D43'49"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

5.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

43



AutoCAD SHX Text

N80%%D12'54"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

41.22'



AutoCAD SHX Text

44



AutoCAD SHX Text

N09%%D47'06"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

19.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

45



AutoCAD SHX Text

N09%%D47'06"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

34.39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

46



AutoCAD SHX Text

N80%%D12'54"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

47



AutoCAD SHX Text

00%%D18'24"



AutoCAD SHX Text

1464.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

7.84'



AutoCAD SHX Text

48



AutoCAD SHX Text

N24%%D31'55"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

51.04'



AutoCAD SHX Text

49



AutoCAD SHX Text

N65%%D28'05"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

N24%%D31'55"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

59.46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

51



AutoCAD SHX Text

00%%D48'01"



AutoCAD SHX Text

1464.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.45'



AutoCAD SHX Text

52



AutoCAD SHX Text

N43%%D23'33"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.83'



AutoCAD SHX Text

53



AutoCAD SHX Text

N81%%D17'56"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

13.28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

54



AutoCAD SHX Text

N77%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

13.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATA TABLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEARING/DELTA



AutoCAD SHX Text

RADIUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

LENGTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL "D"



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

55



AutoCAD SHX Text

N32%%D17'22"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

56



AutoCAD SHX Text

45%%D00'00"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

9.82'



AutoCAD SHX Text

57



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

19.95'



AutoCAD SHX Text

58



AutoCAD SHX Text

N80%%D12'54"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.03'



AutoCAD SHX Text

59



AutoCAD SHX Text

N12%%D42'38"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

--



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.93'



AutoCAD SHX Text

60



AutoCAD SHX Text

17%%D40'33"



AutoCAD SHX Text

32.50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.03'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL "C"



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE







Attachment C 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement 


Medical Office Building 


 


 


 
 







RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
(Document exempt from recording fees 
pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code § 27383) 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
Attn: City Clerk 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, California 92595 


THIS SPACE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941  


MOB PORTION 


(PARCEL 1) 


By and Between 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
a municipal corporation 


and 


STRATA BAXTER, LLC. 
A Delaware limited liability company 


DATED  APRIL 14, 2021 







 


 - 1 -  


 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


FINAL PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 


 


This Subdivision Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this 14th  
day of April, 2021 by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
Strata Baxter, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Developer”).  City and Developer 
are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred 
to as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


A. Developer has submitted to City an application for approval of a final map for real 
property located within City, a legal description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  The 
final map is identified in City records as Parcel Map No. 37941.  On November 11, 2020 the 
City conditionally approved Tentative Parcel No. 37941. 


B. Developer has not completed all of the work or made all of the Public 
Improvements required by the Subdivision Map Act (Government Code sections 66410 et seq.), 
(“Map Act”) the City Ordinances, the conditions of approval for Parcel Map No. 37941, or other 
ordinances, resolutions, or policies of City requiring construction of improvements in 
conjunction with the subdivision of land. 


C. Pursuant to City Ordinances and the applicable provisions of the Map Act, 
Developer and City enter into this Agreement for the timely construction and completion of the 
Public Improvements and the furnishing of the security therefor, acceptable to the City Engineer 
and City Attorney, for Parcel Map No. 37941. 


D. City has authority to enter into this Subdivision Improvement Agreement pursuant 
to Government Code Sections 66499 – 66499.10. 


E. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66499, Developer’s execution of this 
Agreement and the provision of the security are made in consideration of City’s approval of the 
final map for Parcel Map No. 37941.  


DEFINED TERMS 


“Developer” shall mean Strata Baxter LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.  The term 
“Developer” shall also include all assignees, to the extent permitted under this Agreement, of the 
rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement, and any successor-in-interest to 
Developer having a legal and/or equitable interest in the Property. 


“Estimated Costs” shall mean the City Engineer’s approximation of the actual cost to construct 
the Public Improvements, including the replacement cost for all landscaping. 







 


 - 2 -  


 


“Litigation Expenses” shall mean all costs and expenses, to the extent reasonable in amount, 
actually and necessarily incurred by a party in good faith in the prosecution of an action or 
proceeding, including, but not limited to, court costs, filing, recording, and service fees, copying 
costs, exhibit production costs, special media rental costs, attorneys’ fees, fees for investigators, 
witness fees (both lay and expert), travel expenses, deposition and transcript costs and any other 
cost or expense, the award of which a court of competent jurisdiction may determine to be just 
and reasonable. 


“Map Act” shall mean the Subdivision Map Act, Government Code Sections 66410 et seq. 


“Property” shall mean the all of the real property contained within Parcel 1 of Parcel Map No. 
37941 located in the City of Wildomar, California a is more particularly described in the legal 
description and parcel diagram attached hereto by reference at Exhibit  “A”. 


“Public Improvements” shall include, but not be limited to, all grading, roads, streets, paving, 
curbs and gutters, sidewalks, paseos, pathways, trails, sanitary sewers, utilities, storm drains, 
detention and retention basins and other drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street 
lights and all other facilities required to be constructed and dedicated to the City or other public 
entity as conditions of approval contained within Parcel 1 of Tentative Parcel Map No. 37941 
and as shown in detail on the plans, and specifications which have been approved by the City and 
incorporated into Parcel Map No. 37941.  The Parties agree that the Public Improvements to be 
completed by Developer are more specifically described in the diagram or plan attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “B.  Notwithstanding, Exhibit “B”, Developer 
shall remain obligated to construct and complete all of the Public Improvements required as 
conditions of approval for Tentative Parcel Map No. 37941.   


“Required Insurance” shall mean the insurance required to be maintained by Developer under 
Section 17. 


“Security” shall mean surety bonds, lien agreement or other security approved by the City 
Engineer or City Attorney in the amounts and under the terms of Section 12. 


“Parcel No 37941.” shall mean the final map prepared and approved by the City for tentative 
parcel map no. 37941. 


“Warranty” shall mean the one year period following completion of the Public Improvements by 
Developer and the acceptance of the Public Improvements by the City in which Developer 
warrants and guarantees all Public Improvements. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by 
the parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 


1. EFFECTIVENESS.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all 
four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:   







 


 - 3 -  


 


1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the 
amounts required by this Agreement;  


1.2 Final Map and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City 
(“City Council”) approves the final map for Parcel Map No. 37941 and this Agreement; 


1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City 
records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and  


1.4 Record Final Map.  Developer records the final map for Parcel Map No. 
37941 in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.   


If the above described conditions are not satisfied in the order, manner and within the time 
provided under this Agreement, this Agreement shall automatically terminate without need of 
further action by either City or Developer. 


2. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at 
its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time 
and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Improvements 
shall include any transitions and/or other incidental work deemed necessary for drainage or 
public safety.  The Developer shall be responsible for the replacement, relocation, or removal of 
any component of any irrigation water or sewer system in conflict with the construction or 
installation of the Public Improvements.  Such replacement, relocation, or removal shall be 
performed to the complete satisfaction of the City Engineer and the owner of such water or sewer 
system.  Developer further promises and agrees to provide all equipment, tools, materials, labor, 
tests, design work, and engineering services necessary or required by City to fully and 
adequately complete the Public Improvements. 


2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where 
construction of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, 
Developer agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in 
accordance with this Agreement. 


2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals 
and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Public 
Improvements and performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement.  Developer 
shall conduct the work in full compliance with the regulations, rules, and other requirements 
contained in any permit or approval issued to Developer.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall file a written statement with the City Clerk and the City Engineer, signed by 
Developer and each utility which will provide utility service to the Property, attesting that 
Developer has made all deposits legally required by the utility for the extension and provision of 
utility service to the Property. 


2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from 
commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public 
Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or her designee.  
Approval by the City Engineer shall not relieve Developer from ensuring that all Public 
Improvements conform with all other requirements and standards set forth in this Agreement. 







 


 - 4 -  


 


2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction 
plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements.  The Public Improvements shall be completed in accordance with all approved 
maps, plans, specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, 
as well as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, 
and other requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced.  


2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a 
skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized as 
being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California.  Developer 
represents and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in the professional calling 
necessary to perform the work.  Developer warrants that all of its employees and contractors 
shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them, and that they 
shall have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally 
required to perform the work, and that such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall 
be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement. 


2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements 
made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent 
alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public 
Improvements it is determined that the public interest requires alterations in the Public 
Improvements, Developer shall undertake such design and construction changes as may be 
reasonably required by City.  Any and all alterations in the plans and specifications and the 
Public Improvements to be completed may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof 
to Developer’s surety for this Agreement. 


2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map 
Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval 
on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been satisfied 
prior to the date of this Agreement are identified on Exhibit “D” hereto. 


3. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND LANDSCAPING.  
City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements 
until City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  
City shall exercise no control over the Public Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any 
use by any person of the Public Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and 
exclusive risk of the Developer at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Public 
Improvements.  Developer shall maintain all the Public Improvements in a state of good repair 
until they are completed by Developer and approved and accepted by City, and until the security 
for the performance of this Agreement is released.  Maintenance shall include, but shall not be 
limited to, repair of pavement, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, signals, parkways, water mains, and 
sewers; maintaining all landscaping in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to 
City; removal of debris from sewers and storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining 
in good and safe condition all streets and street improvements.  It shall be Developer’s 
responsibility to initiate all maintenance work, but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly 
perform such maintenance work when notified to do so by City.  If Developer fails to properly 







 


 - 5 -  


 


prosecute its maintenance obligation under this section, City may do all work necessary for such 
maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the responsibility of Developer and its surety under this 
Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or liable for any damages or injury of any nature in any 
way related to or caused by the Public Improvements or their condition prior to acceptance.   


4. CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 
of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public 
Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the final map for Parcel Map 
No. 37941.  


4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide 
Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is 
understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement, 
Developer and its surety consent in advance to any extension of time as may be given by City to 
Developer, and waives any and all right to notice of such extension(s).  Developer’s acceptance 
of an extension of time granted by City shall constitute a waiver by Developer and its surety of 
all defense of laches, estoppel, statutes of limitations, and other limitations of action in any 
action or proceeding filed by City following the date on which the Public Improvements were to 
have been completed hereunder.  In addition, as consideration for granting such extension to 
Developer, City reserves the right to review the provisions of this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, the construction standards, the cost estimates established by City, and the sufficiency 
of the Security provided by Developer, and to require adjustments thereto when warranted 
according to City’s reasonable discretion. 


4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law 
related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has 
provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or otherwise not 
complete required or agreed upon Public Improvements. 


5. GRADING.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in 
conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel Map No. 
37941 shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and other 
requirements, including City’s grading regulations.  All grading, landscaping, and construction 
activities shall be performed in a manner to control erosion and prevent flooding problems.  The 
City Engineer shall have the authority to require erosion plans to prescribe reasonable controls 
on the method, manner, and time of grading, landscaping, and construction activities to prevent 
nuisances to surrounding properties.  Plans shall include without limitation temporary drainage 
and erosion control requirements, dust control procedures, restrictions on truck and other 
construction traffic routes, noise abatement procedures, storage of materials and equipment, 
removal of garbage, trash, and refuse, securing the job site to prevent injury, and similar matters.  
In order to prevent damage to the Public Improvements by improper drainage or other hazards, 
the grading shall be completed in accordance with the time schedule for completion of the Public 
Improvements established by this Agreement, and prior to City’s approval and acceptance of the 
Public Improvements and release of the Security as set forth in Section 12.0 et seq. of this 
Agreement. 


6. UTILITIES.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, 
power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel Map  







 


 - 6 -  


 


No. 37941 in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, the regulations, schedules and fees of the utilities or agencies 
providing such services.  Except for commercial or industrial properties, Developer shall also 
provide cable television facilities to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to, the 
requirements of the cable company possessing a valid franchise with City to provide such service 
within City’s jurisdictional limits.  All utilities shall be installed underground. 


7. FEES AND CHARGES.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, 
pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, 
including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspection, and other 
service fees, and any impact or connection fees established by City ordinance, resolution, 
regulation, or policy, or as established by City relative to Parcel Map No. 37941, or as required 
by other governmental agencies having jurisdiction over Parcel Map No. 37941. 


8. CITY INSPECTION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall, at its 
sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, 
maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by City of the 
Public Improvements and areas where construction of the Public Improvements is occurring or 
will occur.  If the City inspector requests it, the Developer at any time before acceptance of the 
Public Improvements shall remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be 
directed which have not previously been inspected.  After examination, the Developer shall 
restore said portions of the work to the standards required hereunder.  Inspection or supervision 
by the City shall not be considered as direct control of the individual workmen on the job site.  
City’s inspector shall have the authority to stop any and all work not in accordance with the 
requirements contained or referenced in this Agreement.  The inspection of the work by City 
shall not relieve Developer or the contractor of any obligations to fulfill this Agreement as herein 
provided, and unsuitable materials or work may be rejected notwithstanding that such materials 
or work may have been previously overlooked or accepted.   


9. ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or 
any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer 
fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its surety shall be 
jointly and severally liable to City for all administrative expenses, fees, and costs, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in obtaining compliance with this Agreement or in 
processing any legal action or for any other remedies permitted by law. 


10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD 
DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed 
portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are 
complete, which shall not release or modify Developer’s obligation to complete the remainder of 
the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement.   


10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance 
of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the 
County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in accordance 
with Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, at which time the 







 


 - 7 -  


 


accepted Public Improvements shall become the sole and exclusive property of City without 
payment therefor. 


10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel Map No. 37941 
was approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the 
improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approved by 
City.  Issuance by City of occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the 
Property shall not be construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any 
Public Improvements.   


10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until 
Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engineer for 
all such Public Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and shall reflect the condition of 
the Public Improvements as constructed, with all changes incorporated therein. 


11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees 
all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials 
furnished in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping 
within the Property in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City, for a 
period of one (1) year following completion of the work and acceptance by City.  During the 
Warranty, Developer shall repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise 
unsatisfactory portion of the Public Improvements, in accordance with the current ordinances, 
resolutions, regulations, codes, standards, or other requirements of City, and to the approval of 
the City Engineer.  All repairs, replacements, or reconstruction during the Warranty shall be at 
the sole cost, expense, and liability of Developer and its surety.  As to any Public Improvements 
which have been repaired, replaced, or reconstructed during the Warranty, Developer and its 
surety hereby agree to extend the Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s 
acceptance of the repaired, replaced, or reconstructed Public Improvements.  Nothing herein 
shall relieve Developer from any other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to 
repair, replace, or reconstruct any Public Improvement following expiration of the Warranty or 
any extension thereof.  Developer’s warranty obligation under this section shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 


12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, 
Developer shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security 
acceptable to the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.   


12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the 
Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time 
prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 [Construction 
Schedule], in its sole and absolute discretion, that the Estimated Costs have changed, Developer 
shall adjust the Security in the amount requested by City.  Developer’s compliance with this 
provision (Section 12.0 et seq.) shall in no way limit or modify Developer’s indemnification 
obligation provided in Section 16.0 of this Agreement. 


12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the 
Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in 







 


 - 8 -  


 


default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Developer’s one-year 
guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements, including the maintenance of all  
landscaping in a vigorous and thriving condition, Developer shall provide City a faithful 
performance bond in the amount of one million six hundred eighty four thousand ($1,684,000), 
which sum shall be not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Estimated Costs. 


12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute 
discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions 
of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepted by City, 
provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or condition of 
approval for Parcel Map No. 37941, and the total remaining Security is not less than twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the Estimated Costs.  All Security provided under this section shall be released 
at the end of the Warranty period, or any extension thereof as provided in Section 11.0 of this 
Agreement, provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or 
condition of approval for Parcel Map No, 37941. 


12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, 
subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or 
equipment for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall 
provide City a labor and materials bond in the amount of eight hundred forty two thousand 
($842,000), which sum shall not be less than fifty percent (50%) of the Estimated Costs.  The 
Security provided under this section may be released by written authorization of the City 
Engineer after six (6) months from the date City accepts the final Public Improvements.  The 
amount of such Security shall be reduced by the total of all stop notice or mechanic’s lien claims 
of which City is aware, plus an amount equal to twenty percent (20%) of such claims for 
reimbursement of City’s anticipated administrative and legal expenses arising out of such claims. 


12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds 
provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or 
insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satisfactory to 
City.  As part of the obligation secured by the Security and in addition to the face amount of the 
Security, the Developer or its surety shall secure the costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred by City in enforcing the obligations of 
this Agreement.  The Developer and its surety stipulate and agree that no change, extension of 
time, alteration, or addition to the terms of this Agreement, the Public Improvements, or the 
plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall in any way affect its obligation on the 
Security. 


12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided 
on the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City 
Engineer and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of City, 
the forms and evidence of the Security shall be attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 


12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et 
seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien 
agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code 







 


 - 9 -  


 


Section 16.56.030.  The Lien Agreement shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and 
incorporated herein by this reference.   


12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in 
order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to 
cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrument, and to take no 
action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  Notwithstanding the 
giving of any Security instrument or the subsequent expiration of any Security instrument or any 
failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its obligations with respect thereto, 
Developer shall be personally liable for performance under this Agreement and for payment of 
the cost of the labor and materials for the improvements required to be constructed or installed 
hereby and shall, within ten (10) days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such 
substitute Security as City shall require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12. 


13. MONUMENT SECURITY.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to 
guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot 
corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel Map No. 37941 in compliance with the 
applicable provisions of City’s Municipal and/or Development Code (“Subdivision 
Monuments”), Developer shall deposit cash or a surety bond with City in the amount of ten 
thousand Dollars ($10,000), which sum shall not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the 
costs of setting the Subdivision Monuments as determined by the City Engineer.  Said cash 
deposit or surety bond may be released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all 
required Subdivision Monuments are accepted by the City Engineer, City has received written 
acknowledgment of payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the Subdivision 
Monuments, and provided Developer is not in default of any provision of this Agreement or 
condition of approval for Parcel Map No. 37941.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if City accepts 
a lien agreement as security for the Improvements under Section 12.2 of this Agreement, such 
lien agreement may serve as the security for some or all of the Subdivision Monuments, as 
determined by the City Engineer.    


14. LIEN.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to 
Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in favor of City a lien 
against all portions of the Property not dedicated to City or some other governmental agency for 
a public purpose.  As to Developer’s default on those obligations for which security has been 
provided pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, City shall first attempt to 
collect against such security prior to exercising its rights as a contract lienholder under this 
section. 


15. SIGNS AND ADVERTISING.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s 
ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer 
hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to Developer, 
of all signs or other advertising structures erected, placed, or situated in violation of any City 
ordinance, regulation, or other requirement.  Removal shall be at the expense of Developer and 
its surety.  Developer and its surety shall indemnify and hold City free and harmless from any 
claim or demand arising out of or incident to signs, advertising structures, or their removal. 







 


 - 10 -  


 


16. INDEMNIFICATION.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged 
claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to property or persons, 
including wrongful death, whether imposed by a court of law or by administrative action of any 
federal, state, or local governmental body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, 
omissions, negligence, or willful misconduct of Developer, its personnel, employees, agents, or 
contractors in connection with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Public 
Improvements, or performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without 
limitation, the payment of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and 
related costs or expenses, and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, and/or agents for all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  This 
indemnification excludes only such portion of any claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, 
damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful death, which is 
caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of City as 
determined by a court or administrative body of competent jurisdiction.  Developer’s obligation 
to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement, and shall not be 
restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, or agents. 


17. INSURANCE. 


17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require 
its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant 
to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below.  If any of the 
Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such insurance shall apply separately to 
this Agreement or be no less than two times the specified occurrence limit.  


17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and 
maintain occurrence version general liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $3,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and 
property damage. 


17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors 
shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall include 
coverage for the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle 
owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the insured or for which the insured is responsible. 


17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor 
Code of the State of California and employers’ liability insurance with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, at all times during which insured retains employees. 


17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional 
who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and 
omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, shall be procured and maintained 
for a period of five (5) years following completion of the Public Improvements.  Such insurance 
shall be endorsed to include contractual liability. 







 


 - 11 -  


 


 
17.1.5 Pollution Liability.    Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution  


Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any  
location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. Any  
deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate of Insurance.  If the  
deductible or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it shall be approved in advance by the City.   
Developer and its contractors are responsible for any deductible or self-insured retention and  
shall fund it upon the City’s written request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors  
have a claim against the insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The  
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an  
additional insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf  
of the Developer and its contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) year  
after completion of the work. The insurance provided to the additional insureds shall apply on a  
primary and non-contributory basis with respect to any insurance or self-insurance program  
maintained by them. If the insurance is on a Claims-Made basis, the retroactive date shall be no  
later than the commencement of work. The insurance shall be continued for one (1) year after  
completion of the work.  If the insurance is on a Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage  
may be provided by: (a) renewal of the existing policy; (b) an extended reporting period  
endorsement; or (c) replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the  
commencement of the work. 


 


17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its contractors shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, 
claims, and administrative and defense expenses. 


17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance 
shall name City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional 
insureds with respect to work performed by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, 
including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection therewith.  The Required 
Insurance shall contain standard separation of insured provisions, and shall contain no special 
limitations on the scope of its protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
and volunteers. 


17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The Required Insurance 
shall be primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs covering City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the Required 
Insurance shall provide that the insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of 
subrogation against City in connection with any damage or harm covered by such policy. 


17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish 
City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required 
Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a 
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All certificates and 







 


 - 12 -  


 


endorsements must be received and approved by City before work pursuant to this Agreement 
can begin.  City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, at any time. 


17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain 
the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or 
endorsement which will expire prior to that date.  All policies shall be endorsed to provide that 
the Required Insurance shall not be suspended, voided, reduced, canceled, or allowed to expire 
except on 30 days’ prior written notice to City. 


17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a 
current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII. 


18. DEFAULT; NOTICE; REMEDIES. 


18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely 
complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a 
violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or other 
requirement, City may at any time thereafter declare Developer to be in default or violation of 
this Agreement and make written demand upon Developer or its surety, or both, to immediately 
remedy the default or violation.  Developer shall commence the work required to remedy the 
default or violation within ten (10) days of the written demand from the City.  If the default or 
violation constitutes an immediate threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, City may 
provide the demand verbally, and Developer shall commence the required work within twenty-
four (24) hours thereof.  Immediately upon City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, 
Developer and its surety shall be liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the 
Public Improvements and all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 
of this Agreement. 


18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to 
City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all remaining work, 
arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct such remedial activity as in its 
sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to remedy the default or violation.  All such 
work or remedial activity shall be at the sole and absolute cost, expense, and liability of 
Developer and its surety, without the necessity of giving any further notice to Developer or 
surety.  City’s right to take such actions shall in no way be limited by the fact that Developer or 
its surety may have constructed any, or none of the required or agreed upon Public 
Improvements at the time of City’s demand for performance.  In the event City elects to 
complete or arrange for completion of the remaining work and improvements, City may require 
all work by Developer or its surety to cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if 
the interests of City will not be prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to acreage 
and thereafter recover from Developer or its surety the full cost and expense incurred. 


18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of 
this Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or 







- 13 -


equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise it rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue inconsistent 
remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or specific performance. 


19. GENERAL PROVISIONS.


19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents
and warrants that her or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf 
of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign..  Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, 
including necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising 
out of claims that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement.  


19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 


19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement 
shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party. 
Any term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and 
not work days.  All references to Developer include all personnel, employees, agents, and 
subcontractors of Developer, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to 
City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 
content, or intent of this Agreement. 


19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications 
shall be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties 
may designate by written notice: 


CITY: 


City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, CA  92595 


DEVELOPER: 


Strata Baxter, LLC. 
Attn. Eric Flodine, Director of Community Development 
4370 La Jolla Village Drive, Suite 960 
San Diego, CA 92122 


Depending upon the method of transmittal, notice shall be deemed received as follows:  by 
facsimile, as of the date and time sent provided the original is contemporaneously deposited with 
United States Postal Service and delivered by regular mail; by messenger, as of the date 







 


 - 14 -  


 


delivered; and by U.S. Mail first class postage prepaid, as of 72 hours after deposit in the U.S. 
Mail. 


19.5 Amendment; Modification.  Amendment Modification.   No 
amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and 
approved by the Developer and by the City.  The City’s City Manager may, but is not required 
to, make minor adjustments not affecting substantive terms without further authorization from 
the City Council.  The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute any such 
amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under 
this Agreement.   


19.6 Waiver.  City’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision 
of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege provided herein, or City’s waiver of any 
breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Developer of any of its obligations under this 
Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing shall be true whether City’s 
actions are intentional or unintentional.  Developer agrees to waive, as a defense, counterclaim or 
set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the authorization, execution or 
performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement, as well as the laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with regards to the authorization, execution or 
performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement. 


19.7 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, 
hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest 
herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and 
any assignee, hypothecatee, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such 
attempted assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in 
City’s written consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not release or discharge 
Developer from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 


19.8 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be 
binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal 
representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authorization for any Party 
to assign any right or obligation. 


19.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 


19.10 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 


19.11 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed 
in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or 
proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way arises out of the 
Parties’ activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, shall be filed and prosecuted in the 
appropriate California State Court in the County of Riverside, California.  Each Party waives the 
benefit of any provision of state or federal law providing for a change of venue to any other court 
or jurisdiction including, without limitation, a change of venue based on the fact that a 







 


 - 15 -  


 


governmental entity is a party to the action or proceeding, or that a federal right or question is 
involved or alleged to be involved in the action or proceeding.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing waiver, Developer expressly waives any right to have venue transferred pursuant to 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 


19.12 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal 
action or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this 
Agreement or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, 
shall be entitled to and recover from the other party all Litigation Expenses.  Any judgment, 
order, or award entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific provision 
providing for the recovery of Litigation Expenses. 


19.13 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree 
that neither this Agreement, any map related to Tract No. 37941, nor any other related 
entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the 
relationship of partnership, joint venture, or agency between City and Developer.  Developer’s 
contractors and subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of 
Developer.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Developer or its contractors an agent or 
contractor of City. 


19.14 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 


19.15 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become 
effective until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate 
authorities of City and Developer. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 
Janet Morales 
City Clerk 







 


 - 16 -  


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


_______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


STRATA BAXTER, LLC 


By:   By:   
 David C. Michan   
 Its: Manager Its:  ___________________________ 


NOTE: DEVELOPER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND 
APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY BE 
REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, OR 
OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO DEVELOPER’S 
BUSINESS ENTITY. 







 


 


A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed 
the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 


ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT NOTARY FOR CALIFORNIA 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE ) 


On  ____________________, 2021 , 
before me,                                                               , 
 Date Name And Title Of Officer (e.g. “Jane Doe, Notary Public”) 


personally appeared                                                                                   , 
  Name of Signer(s) 


who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the 
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they 
executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), 
and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) 
acted, executed the instrument. 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of 
the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true 
and correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


   
 Signature of Notary Public 


 


OPTIONAL 
 
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alternation of the document or fraudulent 
reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 
 


CAPACIT(IES) CLAIMED BY SIGNER(S) DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 


Signer's Name:   
    Individual  
 Corporate Officer 


  
 Title(s) Title or Type of Document 


 Partner(s)  Limited  
  General  


 Attorney-In-Fact Number Of Pages 
 Trustee(s)  
 Guardian/Conservator  
 Other:   


Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 


Date Of Document 


  


 Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 







 


 


 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed 
the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 


ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT NOTARY FOR CALIFORNIA 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE ) 


On  ____________________, 2021 , 
before me,                                                               , 
 Date Name And Title Of Officer (e.g. “Jane Doe, Notary Public”) 


personally appeared                                                                                   , 
  Name of Signer(s) 


who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the 
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they 
executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), 
and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) 
acted, executed the instrument. 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of 
the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true 
and correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


   
 Signature of Notary Public 


 


OPTIONAL 
 
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alternation of the document or fraudulent 
reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 
 


CAPACIT(IES) CLAIMED BY SIGNER(S) DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 


Signer's Name:   
    Individual  
 Corporate Officer 


  
 Title(s) Title or Type of Document 


 Partner(s)  Limited  
  General  


 Attorney-In-Fact Number Of Pages 
 Trustee(s)  
 Guardian/Conservator  
 Other:   


Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 


Date Of Document 


  


 Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 







 


 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


 


EXHIBIT “A” 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 


 


 
 


LEGAL  DESCRIPTION FOR APN # 367-180-057 
 


PARCEL B OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 2020-003, IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2020 AS 
INSTRUMENT NO. 2020-0402640 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS AT THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID RIVERSIDE COUNTY CALIFORNIA. 
 







 


 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “B” 


LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 


 


SEE ATTACHED 


 







PARCEL MAP OR TRACT MAP NO. DATE:


IP:


IMPROVEMENTS


Street/Drainage $ 1,337,000.00 $ $


*Flood Control $ 0.00 $ $


Dom Wtr EMWD $ 53,500.00 $ $


Rec Wtr EMWD $ 0.00 $ $


Sewer EMWD $ 293,500.00 $ $


Total 1,684,000.00 $ $


Warranty Retention (10%) $


Construction items and their quantities, as shown on the attached sheets, are accurate for the improvements 


required to construct the above project and the mathmatical extensions, using City's unit 


costs, are accurate for determining bonding costs 


Above amounts do G do not G include additional 20% for recordation prior to having signed plans


 (Ordinance460, Section 10.3E).


Signature Date 


John D. Tanner 60132


RCE# Exp. Date 


Civil Engineer's Stamp 


*Flood Control Construction Cost Estimate to be provided by Flood Control District.  Provide a copy of 


Flood Control District letter stating cost estmate. 


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.  Unit cost are to be as provided on 


"City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet."


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00.  Material and Labor Bond Amounts are 50%


of Performance Bond Amountss.  **100% for Flood Control items.


3. For Construction items not covered by "the City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet", 


Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction cost and use that cost.  If City of Wildomar  


Unit Costs are determined to be too low, in the opinion of the design engineer, the higher costs as


provided by the Design Engineer should be used. 


1,684,000.00 842,000.00


168,400.00


DESIGN ENGINEER'S CALCULATION OF IMPROVEMENT BONDING COSTS 


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


53,500.00 26,750.00


0.00 0.00


293,500.00 146,750.00


Construction Costs) Construction Costs)


1,337,000.00 668,500.00


0.00 0.00


FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE MATERIAL & LABOR 


SECURITY SECURITY 


(100% of Estimated (**50% of Estimated 


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


CONSTRUCTION COST WORKSHEET


BAXTER VILLAGE


PM 37941 12/7/2020







CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


STREET AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 


 


UNIT


ROADWAY SECTION 3 Area = S.F.


LS $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 300,000.00 $ 300,000.00


Excavation


2. Projects without a Grading Plan:  Cut (c) = C.Y.


Fill (f) = C.Y.


C.Y. $ 0.40 $ 0.00


C.Y. $ 1.10 $ 0.00


C.Y. $ 2.80 $ 0.00


TON $ 90.00 $ 246,512.61


Thickness in Feet (0.33' min.) =


C.Y. $ 50.00 $ 106,739.81


Thickness in Feet  =


Ton $ 600.00 $ 2,561.76


L.F. $ 1.00 $ 900.00


S.F. $ 0.50 $ 0.00


S.Y. $ 0.60 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 0.90 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 14.00 $ 16,800.00


L.F. $ 16.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 8.00 $ 11,000.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 6.00 $ 43,200.00


S.F. $ 8.00 $ 4,800.00


S.F. $ 6.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 4,500.00


EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 100.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 40,000.00


EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,200.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


Adjust MH to Grade ( if no sewer plan )


Relocate FH


Relocate Power Pole 


Street Lights (including conduit) 8                               


Adjust Water Valve to Grade ( if no water plan )


Chain Link Fence ( 6' )


Relocate Fence


Pipe Gate


Barricades


Metal Beam Guard RailingUtility Trench, one side (Edison, Telephone, Cable) 


(total length of Streets)


P.C.C. Dip Section Std. 307


ADA Access Ramp (w/ new construction) 3                               


ADA Access Ramp (in existing improvements)


P.C.C. Cross Gutter and Spandrels


P.C.C. Sidewalk 7,200                        


P.C.C. Driveway Approach 600                           


Type "D" Curb


A.C. Dike (6")(incl. material & labor) 1,375                        


A.C. Dike (8")(incl. material & labor)


Curb and Gutter (Type A-8)


Type "C" Curb


Type "D-1" Curb


AC overlay (min. 0.10')


Curb and Gutter (Type A-6) 1,200                        


Grinding A.C. , in place


0.5


Asphalt Emulsion (Fog Seal/Paint Binder)


 (1 ton = 240 gals)  


4.3                            


Sawcut Exist. A.C. Pavement 900                           


Cold Plane A.C. Pavement


(c.) Import and Fill -                           


Asphalt Concrete (144 lbs/cu.ft) 2,739                        


0.33


Agg Base Class II 2,135                        


(a.) Excavate and Fill -                           


(b.) Excavate and Export -                           


C.Y. $ 25.00 $ 0.00    Area x 0.50' (hinge point to hinge point)


                    115,279 


1. Projects with Grading Plan for Roadway


WQMP Basin (NE corner Baxtter Rd & Loop Rd)


Traffic Signal 1.00


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 


COST







L.F. $ 154.00 $ 40,040.00


L.F. $ 176.00 $ 21,120.00


L.F. $ 203.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 234.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 204.00 $ 128,520.00


L.F. $ 235.00 $ 77,550.00


$ $ 0.00


LS $ 8,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 40,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 30,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 15,000.00 $ 0.00


A. $ 1,044,244.18


B. Administrative Contingency (20% x A) $ 208,848.84


C. CM - Inspection - LC (8%) $ 83,539.53


D Streets/Drainage Total (A + B) $ 1,336,632.56


 Subtotal 


Design/submittals/review


Mobilization


Traffic Control


Survey 


42" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 630


48" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 330


24" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 120


30" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical


36" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical


18" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 260


DRAINAGE







 


UNIT


L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 30.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 55.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 45.00 $ 36,900.00


$ $ 0.00


A. $ 36,900.00


B. $ 7,380.00


C. $ 44,280.00


D. $ 8,856.00


E. $ 53,136.00


20% x C


Water Total (C + D)


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR 


TO HAVING SIGNED PLANS


Administrative Contingency (20% x A)


Water Total (A + B)


Subtotal


 2" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 (BLDG SERVICE)


 6" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18


 8" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18


10" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 (FIRE WATER)


12" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 820


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


DOMESTIC WATER IMPROVEMENTS


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 


COST







 


UNIT


L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 30.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 46.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 54.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 90.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 55.00 $ 79,750.00


L.F. $ 62.00 $ 72,106.00


L.F. $ 72.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 81.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 162.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 183.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 195.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 215.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 236.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 4,500.00 $ 45,000.00


EA. $ 5,500.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 3,300.00 $ 3,300.00


EA. $ 730.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 200.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 2,100.00 $ 2,100.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 500.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


A. $ 203,756.00


B. $ 40,751.20


C. $ 244,507.20


D. $ 48,901.44


E. $ 293,408.64


20% x C


Sewer Total (C + D)


Subtotal


Administrative Contingency (20% x A)


Sewer Total (A + B)BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR 


TO HAVING SIGNED PLAND ( ORD.460, 


Concrete Encasement 


Join Existing 12" Pipe


Chimney


Adjust M.H. to grade


Tie to Existing Manhole 1


Rechannel Existing Manhole 1


Join Existing 8" Pipe


Shallow Manhole (5' or less) 1


Clean out 


Clean out Lateral


30" VCP


Standard Manhole 48" 10


Standard Manhole 60"


21" VCP


24" VCP


27" VCP


12" VCP 0


15" VCP


18" VCP


15" PVC SDR 35 Green


8" VCP 1450


10" VCP 1163


8" PVC SDR 35 Green


10" PVC SDR 35 Green


12" PVC SDR 35 Green


COST


4" PVC SDR 35 (Use it for Residential Laterals)


6" PVC SDR 35 Green


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


SANITARY SEWER  IMPROVEMENTS


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 







  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE:


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 1,336,632.00


$ 44,280.00


$ 244,507.00


$ 13366.32


$ 2887.87


$ 16254.19


$ 325.08


$ 16579.27


shown below, then following deposit schedule will apply, otherwise pay the full deposit.


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


PM37941


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


D. Surcharge Fee (2% x C)


II. Water (Line C from Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION


A. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              NOTE: Use 1% for TR, 6% 


for PM and 6.5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL


B. Water and Sewer (1% x II and III.) (Do not include for Tract Maps)


C. Total Plan Check Deposit (A + B)


SURCHARGE FEE CALCULATION


For PP/CU/PU/MS/VL - minimum $2,000.00


COMMENTS


E. Total Plan Check Deposit and Surcharge Fee


MINIMUM PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS


Note: If Plan Check Deposit calculated in "Line E" is less than the minimum as 


For TR (Schedule. A, B, C, D) and PM (Schedule. E, F, G) - minimum $2,000


For PM (Schedule H, I) - minimum $2,000.00







  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE:


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 83,539.00


$ 44,280.00


$ 0.00


$ 224,507.00


$


$ 2,506.17


Total


INSPECTION DEPOSIT CALCULATION


Street/DrainageA. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              
NOTE: Use 3% for Inspection


IV. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


COST ESTIMATE CALCULATION SHEET


 


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


II. Domestic Water (Line C from Domestic Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Recycled Water (Line C from Recycled Water Improvement Calculations)







City of Wildomar


Grading Bond Estimate Worksheet


PM 37941


Parcel Map/Tract Map No: Public Improvements - Wildomar Trail Date: 12/7/2020


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL No: City Project No:


Quantity Unit Unit Cost Amount


1             LS 15,000.00$     15,000.00$    


1             LS 5,000.00$       5,000.00$      


1             EA 5,000.00$       5,000.00$      


69,630    CY 0.40$              27,852.00$    


43,000    CY 10.00$            430,000.00$  


1             LS 35,000.00$     35,000.00$    


1             EA 3,000.00$       3,000.00$      


1             EA 500.00$          500.00$         


LF -$               


2             EA 500.00$          1,000.00$      


52,235.20$    


574,500.00$  


12/7/2020


Signature Date


John D Tanner III


Name (type or printed)


60,132    


RCE No. Expiration Date


Civil Engineer's Stamp


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00. 


3. For Construction items not covered by this worksheet, Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction


cost and use that cost. 


Mobilization


Item


Erosion Control


Rough Grading


Demolition and Removal


Contractor Mobilization


Import Material


Mass Excavation


Clearing and Grubbing


Temporary Facilities and Utilities


Place Gravel Bags to Protect Catch Basin


Place Gravel Bags to Prevent Scour


Install Stabilized Construction Entrance


Silt Fence


Place Gravel Bags 2 Course High


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


Total


10% Contingency


Insert Project Name - Insert Project No.







City of Wildomar


Monument Security Estimate Worksheet


Parcel Map/Tract Map No: PM 37941 Date:
PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL No: City Project No:
Map Schedule: E


 Cost per Day


10-hour Day 


 Cost per 


Monument 
 $2,500.00* $300 


$342 


$400 


$478 


 Cost per Day


10-hour Day 


 Cost per 


Monument 
 $2,500.00* $600 


$685 


$800 


$960 


Notes:


28
 
$300 


Subtotal 1 (Total Monuments x Cost per Monument):  $         8,400.00 


Engineer's/Surveryor's Estimate for Preparing Centerline Tie-Sheets:  $                     -   


Subtotal 2 (Subtotal 1 + Centerline Tie-Sheet Estimate):  $         8,400.00 


Total Security Amount (Subtotal 2 x 120%):  $        10,000.00 


Signature Date


John Duquette, L.S.
Name (type or printed)


7566 12/31/2021
RCE/PLS No. Expiration Date


Engineer's/Surveyor's Stamp


Drive Time 


Hours to Map
Net Work Time Hours per Day


0.5 9


Cost Per Monument:


Total Monuments to Be Bonded:


1


1.5


2


*Based on a crew of one Registered Principal Engineering Technician and one Senior Engineering 


Technician


 (total rounded to the nearest $500) 


Net Work Time Hours per Day


7


9


Schedule "A" through "H" Maps
Drive Time 


Hours to Map
0.5
1 8


1.5


2 6


6


7


8


Schedule "I" Maps


Insert Project Name - Insert Project No.







 


 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “C” 


SURETY BONDS AND OTHER SECURITY 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 


As evidence of understanding the provisions contained in this Agreement, and of the Developer’s 


intent to comply with same, the Developer has submitted the below described security in the 


amounts required by this Agreement, and has affixed the appropriate signatures thereto: 


 


PERFORMANCE BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $  


Surety:   


Attorney-in-fact:   


Address:   


   


   


   


   


MATERIAL AND LABOR BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $  


Surety:   


Attorney-in-fact:   


Address:   


   


   


   


   


CASH MONUMENT SECURITY: $  


Amount deposited per Cash Receipt No.   Date:  


   


   


MONUMENT BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $  


Surety:   


Attorney-in-fact:   


Address:   


   


   


   







1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


BOND NO. ___________________ 


INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________ 


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941IMPROVEMENTS 


FORM OF PERFORMANCE BOND 


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar, California (“City”) and Strata Baxter, 
LLC. (“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited 


to, the furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all 


grading, roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 


drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required facilities 


for Parcel Map No. 37941 (“Public Improvements”); 


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more particularly 


set forth in that certain Subdivision Improvement Agreement dated ____________, 2021 


(“Improvement Agreement”); 


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated herein 


by reference; and 


WHEREAS, Principal is required by the Improvement Agreement to provide a good and 


sufficient bond for performance of the Improvement Agreement, and to guarantee and warranty 


the Public Improvements constructed thereunder. 


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________________ (“Surety”), 


a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of __________, and duly 


authorized to transact surety business under the laws of the State of California, are held and 


firmly bound unto City in the sum of ___________________________________ Dollars 


($____________), said sum being not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total cost of 


the Public Improvements as set forth in the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our 


heirs, executors and administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these 


presents. 


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such, that if Principal, his or its heirs, 


executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and 


well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, agreements, guarantees, and 


warranties in the Improvement Agreement and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, 


to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified and in all respects 


according to their intent and meaning, and to indemnify and save harmless City, its officers, 


employees, and agents, as stipulated in the Improvement Agreement, then this obligation shall 


become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 







2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount specified 


therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable 


attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as 


costs and included in any judgment rendered. 


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 


alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or to any plans, profiles, and 


specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements to be constructed thereunder, shall 


in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such 


change, extension of time, alteration, or addition. 


This bond is executed and filed to comply with Section 66499 et seq. of the Government 


Code of California as security for performance of the Improvement Agreement and security for 


the one-year guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto affixed, and 


the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested by its duly authorized 


Attorney-in-Fact at _______________________, this _____ day of _______________, ______. 


Strata Baxter, LLC. 


Principal Surety 


By: By: 


Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact 


(print name) (print name) 


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 


BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 


ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 


COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND. 







1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


BOND NO. ___________________ 


INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________ 


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 IMPROVEMENTS 


FORM OF LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND 


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar California (“City”) and Strata Baxter, 
LLC. (“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited 


to, the furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all 


grading, roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 


drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required facilities 


for Parcel Map No. 37941 (“Public Improvements”); 


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more particularly 


set forth in that certain Subdivision Improvement Agreement dated __________, 2021 


(“Improvement Agreement”); 


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated herein 


by reference; and 


WHEREAS, Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with the Improvement 


Agreement providing that if Principal or any of its subcontractors shall fail to pay for any 


materials, provisions, or other supplies, or terms used in, upon, for, or about the performance of 


the Public Improvements, or for any work or labor done thereon of any kind, or for amounts due 


under the provisions of Title 1 (commencing with section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing 


with section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the California Civil Code, with respect to such work 


or labor, that the Surety on this bond will pay the same together with a reasonable attorney’s fee 


in case suit is brought on the bond. 


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________ (“Surety”), a 


corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of _________________, and duly 


authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, are held and firmly 


bound unto City and to any and all material men, persons, companies or corporations furnishing 


materials, provisions, and other supplies used in, upon, for or about the performance of the 


Public Improvements, and all persons, companies or corporations renting or hiring teams, or 


implements or machinery, for or contributing to the Public Improvements to be done, and all 


persons performing work or labor upon the same and all persons supplying both work and 


materials as aforesaid excepting the Principal, the sum of _________________________ Dollars 


($_______________), said sum being not less than 50% of the total cost of the Public 


Improvements under the terms of the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 


executors and administrators, successors and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these 


presents. 







2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the Principal, his or its 


subcontractors, heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall fail to pay for any 


materials, provisions, or other supplies or machinery used in, upon, for or about the performance 


of the Public Improvements, or for work or labor thereon of any kind, or fail to pay any of the 


persons named in California Civil Code Section 9100, or amounts due under the Unemployment 


Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed by any such claimant, or for any 


amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment Development 


Department from the wages of employees of the contractor and his subcontractors pursuant to 


Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to such work and labor, and all 


other applicable laws of the State of California and rules and regulations of its agencies, then 


said Surety will pay the same in or to an amount not exceeding the sum specified herein. 


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount specified 


therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable 


attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as 


costs and included in any judgment rendered. 


This bond is executed and filed to comply with Section 66499 et seq. of the California 


Government Code as security for payment to contractors, subcontractors, and persons furnishing 


labor, materials, or equipment for construction of the Public Improvements or performance of the 


Improvement Agreement.  It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure 


to the benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under 


Title 1 (commencing with Section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of 


Part 6 of Division 4 of the California Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their 


assigns in any suit brought upon this bond. 


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 


alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or to any plans, profiles, and 


specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements to be constructed thereunder, shall 


in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such 


change, extension of time, alteration, or addition. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto affixed, and 


the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested by its duly authorized 


Attorney-in-Fact at _____________________, this _____ day of _______________, ______. 


Strata Baxter, LLC. 


Principal Surety 


By: By: 


Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact 


(print name) (print name) 







 


 3 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 


BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 


ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 


COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND. 


 







 


 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “D” 


LIST OF TRACT MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED  


 


SEE ATTACHED 







AutoCAD SHX Text

EXHIBIT D-1



AutoCAD SHX Text

BAXTER



AutoCAD SHX Text

H:\PDATA\133555\ADMIN\LIEN AGREEMENTS\PM 37941\ROUND 1\133555-EXH D1 - MOB.DWG  JDUQUETTE  12/2/20 10:02 am



AutoCAD SHX Text

MOB PORTION EXHIBIT



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEGEND



AutoCAD SHX Text

MOB PHASE AREA OF PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

PM 37941



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

NAP



AutoCAD SHX Text

NAP



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

BAXTER ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

I-15 FREEWAY







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – MOB – PM 37941 


 


1 


 


 


Condition No. Condition Language Notes 


PW COA No. 5 The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct 
all improvements in accordance the City of Wildomar 
Road Improvement Standards & Specification, 
Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 6 The Developer shall be responsible for all costs 
associated with off-site right-of-way acquisition and 
offsite easements for required improvements, 
including any costs associated with the eminent 
domain process, if necessary. 


The Developer is 


securing the offsite right 


of way necessary  


through this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement..   


PW COA No. 7 All flood control plans to be reviewed by the City or 
Riverside County Flood Control District shall be 
submitted though the City of Wildomar, unless 
otherwise directed by the City Engineer.  Appropriate 
fees shall be paid to the reviewing agencies and flood 
control plans and reports shall be approved prior to 
recordation of the final map. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 8 The developer shall annex into the City’s Community 
Facility District (CFD Services) and pay associated 
costs for annexation.  Should this project lie within any 
assessment/benefit district that duplicates the 
services to be covered under CFD Services then the 
developer shall de-annex from said 
assessment/benefit district. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 14 Approval for the filing of this land division is contingent 
upon approval of plans and specifications based on 
the conditions of approval presented herein and the 
final version of Tentative Parcel Map. If the 
improvements are not installed prior to the filing of this 
land division, the Developer must submit a Surety 
Agreement and Faithful Performance and Labor and 
Materials Bonds (or other surety type acceptable to 
the City) in the amount approved by the City Engineer 
guaranteeing the installation of said improvements. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 15 Prior to recordation of the final map, Developer shall 
submit a streetlight plan for approval by the City 
Engineer and install (or secure) streetlights.  Street 
lighting shall be designed and installed in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Road Improvement 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – MOB – PM 37941 


 


2 


Standards & Specification, Improvement Plan Check 
Policies and Guidelines, City Ordinances and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 16 Prior to recordation of the final map, the Developer 
shall provide to the City Engineer, evidence of the 
water and sewer system plans approved and signed 
by the local water company.  Water plan shall also be 
approved and signed by the Fire Department and 
shall conform to hydrant type, location, spacing and 
minimum fire flow.  All plans shall be prepared by a 
registered civil engineer.  All public sewer, water and 
fire facilities shall be constructed or secured prior to 
recordation of the final map. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 17 All required public utility easements associated with 
this subdivision of land shall be recorded on or 
concurrently with the final map and easement widths 
shall be approved by the governing easement holder.  
This includes easements for overhead and 
underground facilities and appurtenances to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 18 Prior to recordation of the final map, the improvement 
plans for the required public street improvements 
must be prepared and shall be based upon a design 
profile extending a minimum of 300 feet beyond the 
project boundaries at a grade and alignment as 
approved by the City Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 19 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Above-ground utilities shall be undergrounded by the 
developer in accordance with City of Wildomar 
Municipal Code 16.40.010. The undergrounding of 
utilities shall be reflected on the project improvement 
plans.  


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 19 Above-ground utilities shall be undergrounded by the 
developer in accordance with City of Wildomar 
Municipal Code 16.40.010. The undergrounding of 
utilities shall be reflected on the project improvement 
plans.  


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 21 Prior to recordation of the final map, the Developer 
shall prepare traffic control plans or post securities for 
costs to prepare traffic control plans and sureties shall 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – MOB – PM 37941 


 


3 


include costs to provide for traffic control during 
construction  


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 24 The City Engineer shall determine if certain flood 
control facilities will be maintained by Riverside 
County Flood Control District (RCFCD) or the City of 
Wildomar through a CFD.  Developer to provide the 
following list of items for all RCFCD facilities 
associated with this project: 1) proof of executed 
maintenance agreement establishing terms and 
conditions for inspection, operation and maintenance 
of flood control facilities, 2) proof of approval of 
drainage plans and reports by RCFCD, 3) proof of 
flood control facility bonds and 4) proof of required 
easements.  In addition, all drainage plans (weather 
City or RCFCD) to be submitted to City for plan check 
and approval with the appropriate plan check fees. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 25 Prior to recordation of the final map, the Developer 
shall submit landscaping and irrigation plans and 
install (or secure) landscaping for work within the 
public right-of-way to the City for approval. These 
plans shall include water usage calculations, estimate 
of irrigation and the location of all existing trees that 
will remain. All plans and calculations shall be 
designed and calculated per the City of Wildomar 
Road Improvement Standards & Specification, 
Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, 
City Codes and to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 26 Developer shall dedicate, design and construct (or 
secure) interim street improvements f for Baxter Road 
based on County Standard No. 136 ‘”Collector Rural 
Road” (60-ft ROW) in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Improvement Standards & Specifications 
and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Street 
improvement shall be installed from White Street to 
and across the project frontage as shown on the 
Tentative Parcel Map.  ‘ 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 27 Developer shall dedicate, design and construct (or 
secure) part-width street improvements for Street A 
based on County Standard No. 105C “local Street (60-
ft ROW)” as shown on the tentative map in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Improvement 
Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer.   


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 29 The developer shall re-align, dedicate, design and 
construct (or secure) Wildomar Trail (old 
Central/Baxter Road) per TPM No. 37941, based on 
Modified Arterial Highway, Standard No. 92.  The 
design shall be in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Improvement Standards & Specifications 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – MOB – PM 37941 


 


4 


and shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  
Off-site dedications are required. Inability of the 
Developer to acquire any necessary offsite 
dedications may require redesign of project.  All 
property conveyed to the City of Wildomar in fee title 
shall be free and clear of any encumbrances, except 
as expressly permitted by the City. The Developer 
shall provide title insurance in conjunction with all fee 
title dedications to the City of Wildomar.   


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 30 The realignment of Wildomar Trail creates a triangular 
shaped remnant parcel located south of the project 
boundary and north of the realigned Wildomar Trail 
right of way.  Developer shall acquire the entire 
remnant parcel (even if a portion is owned by the 
adjacent southerly property owner) and shall vacate 
excess right of way located within said remnant parcel 
prior to or concurrently with the recordation of the final 
map (or shall provide sureties for costs associated 
with property acquisitions and vacation processes).  In 
addition, Developer shall relocate existing utilities (or 
post sureties for relocations) within the new alignment 
of Wildomar Trail to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and utility agencies. 


 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 31 After the right of way in the remnant parcel (located 
south of the project boundary and north of the 
realigned Wildomar Trail) has been vacated, this 
property shall be conveyed back to the City in fee title.  
If Developer is justifiably unable to accomplish this 
conveyance prior to map recordation, City Engineer 
may extend the deadline to a later date but no later 
than occupancy release. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 34 Prior to or concurrently with the recordation of the final 
map, slope easements shall be dedicated to the City 
along both sides of Wildomar Trail to include right of 
way adjacent slopes required to construct Wildomar 
Trail to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  All slope 
easements (on both sides of the road) shall be 
annexed into the City’s Community Facilities District 
(CFD) for maintenance. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 36 To determine intersection right of way dedication and 
ultimate street improvement locations, Developer 
shall prepare an Alignment Study (horizontal and 
vertical) at the intersection of Wildomar Trail and 
Street A to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The 
alignment study shall consider the design 
requirements for all project mitigation identified in the 
Traffic Impact Analysis to include lane geometry and 
capacities, new traffic signal locations, striping 
transitions, driveway locations and future medians. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 37 Prior to recordation of the final map, a signing and 
striping plan shall be approved by the City Engineer 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – MOB – PM 37941 


 


5 


and signing, and striping installed (or secured) to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. The signing striping 
plan shall establish “No Stopping Anytime Zones” 
along both Wildomar Trail and Street A.  Developer 
shall be responsible for any additional paving and/or 
striping removal caused by the striping plan to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 39 Drainage easements shall be dedicated on the final 
map (or by separate instrument) for public storm 
drains outside the street right of way as shown on the 
tentative map.  All easement widths shall be approved 
by the governing agency.  In addition, onsite public 
access easements shall be dedicated to providing 
appropriate access to all onsite public storm drains to 
the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 40 All applicable water quality/retention basins and 
associated drainage pipes and appurtenances shall be 
annexed into the City’s CFD for maintenance.  The final 
map shall include lettered lots or easements to contain 
each basin and associated appurtenances to be offered 
to the City in the Owner’s Statement. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


 







 


 2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “E” 
LIEN AGREEMENT 


 
 


SEE ATTACHED 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1 


NO FEE DOCUMENT 
Government Code §6103 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA  92595 
Attn: City Clerk  


The Above Space For Recorder’s 
Use Only 


LIEN AGREEMENT Commercial Phase 


THIS LIEN AGREEMENT (“Lien Agreement”) is made and entered into this 14th day of 
April, 2021, by and between the CITY OF WILDOMAR, a California municipal corporation 
(“City”) and STRATA BAXTER, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (“Owner”). 


RECITALS 


A. Owner has applied to City for approval of a Final Map pursuant to City of
Wildomar Municipal Code Title 16.56  (“the Subdivision Code”) for Parcel Map No. 37941, 
for real property located within City.  This Lien Agreement applies to a portion of the Parcel 
Map, containing commercial uses a legal description and diagram of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” (“Property”). 


B. The Final Map is a Schedule “E” Subdivision per Section 16.24.040 of the
Wildomar Municipal Code because it consists of a division of land into two or more parcels 
in commercial or industrial zones, regardless of parcel size.  . 


C. The conditions of approval for Parcel Map No. 37941 require Owner to
construct certain improvements that upon completion will be accepted by the City as 
public improvements (“Public Improvements”). An itemization of the Public Improvements 
and an estimate of the costs for the Public Improvements approved by the City Engineer 
is attached as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference. 


D. In order to obtain approval of the Final Map prior to completing all of the
Public Improvements, Owner is required to enter into an agreement with City for the 
completion of the Public Improvements and the provision of security for the Public 
Improvements (“Subdivision Improvement Agreement”).   


E. Wildomar Municipal Code Section 16.56.030 and Government Code
Section 66499 authorize the City and Owner to enter into this Lien Agreement 
simultaneously with the Subdivision Improvement Agreement in satisfaction of the 
security obligations contained in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement for the Public 
Improvement.  In addition, Owner and City desire this Lien Agreement to secure the 
setting of the required subdivision boundaries, lot corners, and street centerline 
monuments (“Subdivision Monuments”).  







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 
F.  City has found and determined that it would not be in the public interest to 


require the installation of the Public Improvements sooner than two years after 
recordation of the Final Map.  


 
G. Owner has provided a title insurance policy and current title report to the 


City from a title company approved by the City and issued within the 60 days prior to the 
execution of this Lien Agreement that documents that the Owner is the record owner of 
the Property and the Property is not subject to any mortgages, deeds of trust, or judgment 
liens.   
 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which the Parties hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
I. Owner Performance and Obligations 
 
 A. Owner hereby grants to City, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Lien Agreement, a lien upon the Property as security for the following obligations of 
Owner: 
 


(1) Construction of the Public Improvements specified in Exhibit “B” attached 
hereto; provided, however, that Owners obligation hereunder shall extend 
to the actual cost of the construction of the Public Improvements, not 
withstanding that such costs may exceed the estimate set forth in Exhibit 
“B”; and 


 
(2) Setting of the Subdivision Monuments required by Section 16.16.100 of the 


Wildomar Municipal Code and Section 66495 et seq. of the Government 
Code for the Final Map; and 


  
(3) Payment of the balance of the fees or provision of the improvements or 


services described in the Subdivision Code (collectively, “Fees”), in the 
amount required in accordance with the Subdivision Code, as determined 
appropriate by the Director of Public Works. 


 
This Lien secures that obligation and the remedies provided herein for 
breach of that obligation. 


  
 B.  For so long as title to the property remains subject to this Lien Agreement, 
Owner shall not: (1) request issuance by the Department of Real Estate for the Final 
Subdivision Public Report for the Property; (2) sell or permit the sale of any lot shown on 
the Final Map; or (3) commence work on any portion of the Public Improvements except 
as necessary to correct or prevent threats to the public health, safety or general welfare 
with the consent of the City. Notwithstanding the above, fee title to the entire property 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


encumbered by this Lien Agreement or to all lots designated on the Final Map may be 
sold in the aggregate to a single purchaser, provided that the proposed purchaser, prior 
to assuming title to the property, executes a new lien agreement or provides acceptable 
alternative security acceptable to the City and executes a new Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement with the City. 
 
 C. At the time Owner executes this Lien Agreement, Owner shall file with the City 
a cash deposit in the amount of Twelve Thousand Dollars ($12,000), to be used by City 
to reimburse City for any costs which City may incur in processing a reversion to acreage 
initiated pursuant to this Lien Agreement. Any unused portion of such deposit shall be 
refunded to Owner following completion of such reversion. If the costs of reverting the 
Property to acreage exceed $12,000, Owner shall pay additional costs to City prior to 
recordation of the reversion of acreage map. The unused portion of this deposit may be 
applied to the deposit of fees for inspection, tests and other related purposes for the 
required Public Improvements or Subdivision Monuments upon termination of this Lien 
Agreement. If the fee title to the entire property encumbered by this Lien Agreement or 
all lots designated on the Final Map are sold in the aggregate to a single purchaser and 
the purchaser executes a new lien agreement, the purchaser shall file with City a cash 
deposit in the amount of Twelve Thousand Dollars ($12,000) for the purpose of reverting 
the property to acreage if the purchaser breaches the terms of the lien agreement. Upon 
receipt of the substitute deposit from the purchaser and execution of the new lien 
agreement, the original cash deposit will be refunded to Owner, minus Fees still owed to 
City by Owner. 
 
 D. Prior to commencing the installation and construction of any portion of the Public 
Improvements or Subdivision Monuments required by the Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement, Owner shall deposit fees for inspection, tests and other related purposes, 
and shall substitute other forms of security satisfactory to City in place of this Lien 
Agreement. 
 
 E. Owner also agrees to provide all substitute forms of security in the amounts and 
for the purposes set forth in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement, except that the 
amounts shall be calculated using the estimated cost of the Public Improvements or 
Subdivision Monuments at the time of substitution, as ascertained by City. 
 
 F. Owner shall substitute acceptable security for this Lien Agreement and 
commence construction of the Public Improvements required by the Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement within three (3) years following the date of recordation of the 
Final Map. At its sole discretion, the City may grant up to three extensions of time in 
accordance with Section 16.56.030(H) of the City’s Municipal Code. For each extension 
of time, Owner shall provide a title insurance policy and current title report from a title 
company approved by the City, and issued within 60 days prior to the request for an 
extension of time, that documents that Owner is the record owner of the real property to 
be divided as identified on the Final Map and the real property to be divided is not subject 
to any mortgages, deeds of trust, or judgment liens. 
 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 G. Owner shall pay the Fees related to the work required by the Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement for which the Fees are required prior to issuance of any building 
permit or, if permitted by the City, prior to occupancy. 
 
 H. Owner agrees that if suit is brought upon this Lien Agreement, all costs and 
reasonable expenses and fees incurred by the City in successfully enforcing Owner’s 
obligations shall be paid by Owner, including attorneys fees, and that, upon entry of 
judgment, all such costs, expenses and fees shall be taxed as costs and included in any 
judgment rendered. 
 
 I. Owner agrees to indemnify, and hold harmless, the City, its officers, employees 
and agents from any liability whatsoever based or asserted upon: (i) any act or omission 
of Owner, its employees and agents relating to or in any way connected with the 
accomplishment of work, obligations, or performance of service under this Lien 
Agreement; or (ii) the approval of this Lien Agreement. As part of the foregoing indemnity, 
Owner agrees to protect and defend at its own expense, including attorneys’ fees, the 
City, its officers, employees and agents in any legal action based upon such alleged acts 
or omissions.  
 
II. City’s Performance and Obligations 
 
 A. Following (1) City’s approval of the substitute forms of security submitted by 
Owner, (2) deposit by Owner of fees for inspections, tests and other specific purposes 
and (3) Owner’s payment or other performance of these obligations encompassed by the 
Fees required by the Subdivision Code, performance of which are secured by this Lien 
Agreement, City shall release the Property, from the provisions of this Lien Agreement, 
and shall execute any necessary release to enable Owner or its transferee to clear the 
record of title of the Property so released of the lien herein imposed.  
 
 B. In no instances shall this Lien Agreement compel the City to construct the 
required Public Improvements or install the Subdivision Monuments. 
 
III. Owner’s Representations and Warranties 
 
 Owner represents and warrants that no lots within the Property have been sold, no 
construction permits (including but not limited to grading permits and building permits) 
have been issued and are active for all or part of the Property, and no construction of any 
of the Public Improvements has commenced.   
 
IV.  Effect of Lien Agreement 
 
 A. From the date of recordation of this Lien Agreement, a lien shall attach to the 
Property which shall have the priority of a judgment lien in an amount necessary to 
discharge all obligations contained in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and any 
Fees. Under no circumstances shall the City agree to subordinate the lien. 
 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 B. Owner shall have the right to convey or sell fee title to the entire property 
encumbered by this Lien Agreement, so long as the purchaser agrees in writing to accept 
and be bound by the terms and provisions of this Lien Agreement, the applicable 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement, and the Fees, or has provided alternative security 
acceptable to the City per Section 16.56.010 of the City’s Municipal Code.  Any new lien 
agreement entered into by a purchaser of the Property must provide for completion of the 
Public Improvements by the same date as is specified herein. 
 
 C. This Lien Agreement shall expire upon release of the Property by the City, 
except that Owner’s obligation to commence the Public Improvements within three (3) 
years from the date of recordation of this Lien Agreement (or such date as may have been 
extended in accordance with the Subdivision Code), as described in Section I (F) above, 
shall not expire but shall remain in full force and effect until satisfactory completion of the 
Public Improvements in full compliance with the Subdivision Improvement Agreement. 
 
 D.  Notwithstanding any provisions of the Subdivision Code to the contrary, so long 
as this Lien Agreement is utilized for security as described herein, the City is not obligated 
to accept offers of dedication for street or drainage purposes on the property. 
 
V. Events of Default 
 
Upon the occurrence of any one of the following events, Owner shall be deemed in default 
hereunder: 
 
 A. Failure by Owner to deposit fees for inspections, tests and other specified 
purposes or to substitute other forms of security satisfactory to City within the time allotted 
and as prescribed by this Lien Agreement.  
 
 B. Commencement of any work on the Public Improvements or Subdivision 
Monuments by Owner, its agents or employees, prior to substitution of acceptable 
security with the City in place of this Lien Agreement except as specifically authorized by 
City to correct or prevent threats to public health, safety or general welfare. 
 
 C. Failure by Owner to substitute acceptable security for this Lien Agreement and 
commence construction of the Public Improvements described in the Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement within the time allotted and as prescribed by this Lien 
Agreement. 
 
 D. Failure by Owner to pay Fees described in Section I (A) (2), above, at the time 
required herein. 
 
 E. Filing of any proceedings or action by or against Owner to declare Owner 
bankrupt or to appoint a receiver or trustee for Owner or to make an assignment for the 
benefit of creditors or to do anything else of a similar nature or purpose under any state 
or federal bankruptcy or insolvency laws, if such proceedings or actions are not 
discharged within (60) days. 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 
 F. Levy of any attachment or writ of execution against Owner and the Property 
whereby the Property is taken or occupied or attempted to be taken or occupied by 
someone other than Owner and such attachment or execution is not released within 60 
days. 
 
 G. Sale of any lot shown on the Final Map prior to release of the lien created by 
this Lien Agreement, except as provided in subparagraph IV (B). 
 
 H. Request by Owner of issuance by the Department of Real Estate of the Final 
Subdivision Public Report for the Property. 
 
 I. Breach by owner of any other term or condition of this Lien Agreement or the 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement or Owner’s failure to fully and faithfully discharge 
its obligations hereunder within the time specified herein. 
 
All References to Owner in this section shall be deemed to include Owner’s successors, 
assignees, and transferees. 
 
VI. City’s Remedies 
 
Upon the occurrence of any of the events described in Section V, above, City may declare 
a breach of this Lien Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to Owner, and 
may, at City’s option, exercise any one or more of the following remedies: 
 
 A. Pursue any or all if the remedies provided in the Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement; 
 
 B. Enforce this lien by appropriate action in court or as provided by law and in the 
event of enforcement is by action in court, the Owner agrees that the amount of said lien 
shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees which shall be taxed as a cost in any suit for such 
enforcement; 
 


C. Estimate the cost of the work required to complete the Public Improvements 
and/or the installation of Subdivision Monuments, and all fees, and foreclose said lien in 
said amount; 
 
 D. Initiate proceedings for reversion of the real property within the land division to 
acreage, at the expense of the Owner, in accordance with the provisions of the 
Subdivision Map Act; 
 
 E. Pursue any other remedy, legal or equitable, for the foreclosure of a lien. Owner, 
its heirs and assigns, shall pay reasonable attorneys’ fees to be taxed as cost in said 
proceedings. 
 
VII. General Provisions 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 
 A. Recordation. This Lien Agreement shall be recorded by City with the County 
Recorder immediately following execution of this Lien Agreement indexed by (1) all 
parties hereto, and (2) all parties having any record title interest in the subject real 
property, pursuant to Government Code Section 66436, acknowledge subordination of 
their interest of this Lien Agreement. 
 
 B. Contingency. This Lien Agreement shall not take effect until it has been 
approved by the City Council of the City of Wildomar. 
 
 C. Entire Agreement. This Lien Agreement together with all exhibits and other 
agreements expressly referred to herein, constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties with respect to the subject manner contained herein. All prior or contemporaneous 
agreements, understandings, representations, warranties, and statements, oral or written 
are superseded. 
 
 D. Further Assurances. The parties agree to perform such further acts and to 
execute and deliver such additional documents and instruments as may be reasonably 
required in order to carry out the provisions of this Lien Agreement and the intentions of 
the parties. 
 
 E. Governing Law. This Lien Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, construed, 
and enforced in accordance with laws of the State of California. 
 
 F. Headings. The captions and section headings used in this Lien Agreement are 
inserted for convenience of reference only and are not intended to define, limit or effect 
construction or interpretation of any term or provision hereof. 
 
 G. Modification, Waiver. No modification, waiver, amendment or discharge of this 
Lien Agreement shall be valid unless the same is in writing and signed by all parties. 
 
 H. No Other Inducement. The making, execution and delivery of this Lien 
Agreement by the parties hereto have been induced by no representations, statements, 
warranties, or agreements other than those expressed herein. 
 
 I. Severability. If any term, provision, covenant, or condition of this Lien Agreement 
is held to be invalid, void or otherwise unenforceable, to any extent, by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Lien Agreement shall not be effected thereby, 
and each term, provision, covenant, or condition of this Lien Agreement shall be valid and 
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


CITY OF WILDOMAR,  
a Municipal Corporation  
of the State of California 
 
 
By:       


GARY NORDQUIST 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Janet Morales 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 
 


STRATA BAXTER, LLC. 
4370 La Jolla Village Drive, Suite 960 
San Diego, CA 92122 
 
 
By:       
          DAVID MICHAN 
          Managing Member 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


EXHIBIT “A” 
 


PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 
 
 
 


LEGAL  DESCRIPTION FOR APN # 367-180-057 
 


PARCEL B OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 2020-003, IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2020 AS 
INSTRUMENT NO. 2020-0402640 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS AT THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID RIVERSIDE COUNTY CALIFORNIA. 


 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


EXHIBIT “B” 
 


PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS & COSTS 







PARCEL MAP OR TRACT MAP NO. DATE:


IP:


IMPROVEMENTS


Street/Drainage $ 1,337,000.00 $ $


*Flood Control $ 0.00 $ $


Dom Wtr EMWD $ 53,500.00 $ $


Rec Wtr EMWD $ 0.00 $ $


Sewer EMWD $ 293,500.00 $ $


Total 1,684,000.00 $ $


Warranty Retention (10%) $


Construction items and their quantities, as shown on the attached sheets, are accurate for the improvements 


required to construct the above project and the mathmatical extensions, using City's unit 


costs, are accurate for determining bonding costs 


Above amounts do G do not G include additional 20% for recordation prior to having signed plans


 (Ordinance460, Section 10.3E).


Signature Date 


John D. Tanner 60132


RCE# Exp. Date 


Civil Engineer's Stamp 


*Flood Control Construction Cost Estimate to be provided by Flood Control District.  Provide a copy of 


Flood Control District letter stating cost estmate. 


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.  Unit cost are to be as provided on 


"City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet."


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00.  Material and Labor Bond Amounts are 50%


of Performance Bond Amountss.  **100% for Flood Control items.


3. For Construction items not covered by "the City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet", 


Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction cost and use that cost.  If City of Wildomar  


Unit Costs are determined to be too low, in the opinion of the design engineer, the higher costs as


provided by the Design Engineer should be used. 


1,684,000.00 842,000.00


168,400.00


DESIGN ENGINEER'S CALCULATION OF IMPROVEMENT BONDING COSTS 


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


53,500.00 26,750.00


0.00 0.00


293,500.00 146,750.00


Construction Costs) Construction Costs)


1,337,000.00 668,500.00


0.00 0.00


FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE MATERIAL & LABOR 


SECURITY SECURITY 


(100% of Estimated (**50% of Estimated 


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


CONSTRUCTION COST WORKSHEET


BAXTER VILLAGE


PM 37941 12/7/2020







CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


STREET AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 


 


UNIT


ROADWAY SECTION 3 Area = S.F.


LS $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 300,000.00 $ 300,000.00


Excavation


2. Projects without a Grading Plan:  Cut (c) = C.Y.


Fill (f) = C.Y.


C.Y. $ 0.40 $ 0.00


C.Y. $ 1.10 $ 0.00


C.Y. $ 2.80 $ 0.00


TON $ 90.00 $ 246,512.61


Thickness in Feet (0.33' min.) =


C.Y. $ 50.00 $ 106,739.81


Thickness in Feet  =


Ton $ 600.00 $ 2,561.76


L.F. $ 1.00 $ 900.00


S.F. $ 0.50 $ 0.00


S.Y. $ 0.60 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 0.90 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 14.00 $ 16,800.00


L.F. $ 16.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 8.00 $ 11,000.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 6.00 $ 43,200.00


S.F. $ 8.00 $ 4,800.00


S.F. $ 6.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 4,500.00


EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 100.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 40,000.00


EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,200.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


Adjust MH to Grade ( if no sewer plan )


Relocate FH


Relocate Power Pole 


Street Lights (including conduit) 8                               


Adjust Water Valve to Grade ( if no water plan )


Chain Link Fence ( 6' )


Relocate Fence


Pipe Gate


Barricades


Metal Beam Guard RailingUtility Trench, one side (Edison, Telephone, Cable) 


(total length of Streets)


P.C.C. Dip Section Std. 307


ADA Access Ramp (w/ new construction) 3                               


ADA Access Ramp (in existing improvements)


P.C.C. Cross Gutter and Spandrels


P.C.C. Sidewalk 7,200                        


P.C.C. Driveway Approach 600                           


Type "D" Curb


A.C. Dike (6")(incl. material & labor) 1,375                        


A.C. Dike (8")(incl. material & labor)


Curb and Gutter (Type A-8)


Type "C" Curb


Type "D-1" Curb


AC overlay (min. 0.10')


Curb and Gutter (Type A-6) 1,200                        


Grinding A.C. , in place


0.5


Asphalt Emulsion (Fog Seal/Paint Binder)


 (1 ton = 240 gals)  


4.3                            


Sawcut Exist. A.C. Pavement 900                           


Cold Plane A.C. Pavement


(c.) Import and Fill -                           


Asphalt Concrete (144 lbs/cu.ft) 2,739                        


0.33


Agg Base Class II 2,135                        


(a.) Excavate and Fill -                           


(b.) Excavate and Export -                           


C.Y. $ 25.00 $ 0.00    Area x 0.50' (hinge point to hinge point)


                    115,279 


1. Projects with Grading Plan for Roadway


WQMP Basin (NE corner Baxtter Rd & Loop Rd)


Traffic Signal 1.00


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 


COST







L.F. $ 154.00 $ 40,040.00


L.F. $ 176.00 $ 21,120.00


L.F. $ 203.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 234.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 204.00 $ 128,520.00


L.F. $ 235.00 $ 77,550.00


$ $ 0.00


LS $ 8,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 40,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 30,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 15,000.00 $ 0.00


A. $ 1,044,244.18


B. Administrative Contingency (20% x A) $ 208,848.84


C. CM - Inspection - LC (8%) $ 83,539.53


D Streets/Drainage Total (A + B) $ 1,336,632.56


 Subtotal 


Design/submittals/review


Mobilization


Traffic Control


Survey 


42" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 630


48" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 330


24" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 120


30" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical


36" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical


18" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 260


DRAINAGE







 


UNIT


L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 30.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 55.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 45.00 $ 36,900.00


$ $ 0.00


A. $ 36,900.00


B. $ 7,380.00


C. $ 44,280.00


D. $ 8,856.00


E. $ 53,136.00


20% x C


Water Total (C + D)


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR 


TO HAVING SIGNED PLANS


Administrative Contingency (20% x A)


Water Total (A + B)


Subtotal


 2" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 (BLDG SERVICE)


 6" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18


 8" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18


10" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 (FIRE WATER)


12" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 820


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


DOMESTIC WATER IMPROVEMENTS


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 


COST







 


UNIT


L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 30.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 46.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 54.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 90.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 55.00 $ 79,750.00


L.F. $ 62.00 $ 72,106.00


L.F. $ 72.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 81.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 162.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 183.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 195.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 215.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 236.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 4,500.00 $ 45,000.00


EA. $ 5,500.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 3,300.00 $ 3,300.00


EA. $ 730.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 200.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 2,100.00 $ 2,100.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 500.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


A. $ 203,756.00


B. $ 40,751.20


C. $ 244,507.20


D. $ 48,901.44


E. $ 293,408.64


20% x C


Sewer Total (C + D)


Subtotal


Administrative Contingency (20% x A)


Sewer Total (A + B)BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR 


TO HAVING SIGNED PLAND ( ORD.460, 


Concrete Encasement 


Join Existing 12" Pipe


Chimney


Adjust M.H. to grade


Tie to Existing Manhole 1


Rechannel Existing Manhole 1


Join Existing 8" Pipe


Shallow Manhole (5' or less) 1


Clean out 


Clean out Lateral


30" VCP


Standard Manhole 48" 10


Standard Manhole 60"


21" VCP


24" VCP


27" VCP


12" VCP 0


15" VCP


18" VCP


15" PVC SDR 35 Green


8" VCP 1450


10" VCP 1163


8" PVC SDR 35 Green


10" PVC SDR 35 Green


12" PVC SDR 35 Green


COST


4" PVC SDR 35 (Use it for Residential Laterals)


6" PVC SDR 35 Green


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


SANITARY SEWER  IMPROVEMENTS


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 







  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE:


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 1,336,632.00


$ 44,280.00


$ 244,507.00


$ 13366.32


$ 2887.87


$ 16254.19


$ 325.08


$ 16579.27


shown below, then following deposit schedule will apply, otherwise pay the full deposit.


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


PM37941


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


D. Surcharge Fee (2% x C)


II. Water (Line C from Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION


A. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              NOTE: Use 1% for TR, 6% 


for PM and 6.5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL


B. Water and Sewer (1% x II and III.) (Do not include for Tract Maps)


C. Total Plan Check Deposit (A + B)


SURCHARGE FEE CALCULATION


For PP/CU/PU/MS/VL - minimum $2,000.00


COMMENTS


E. Total Plan Check Deposit and Surcharge Fee


MINIMUM PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS


Note: If Plan Check Deposit calculated in "Line E" is less than the minimum as 


For TR (Schedule. A, B, C, D) and PM (Schedule. E, F, G) - minimum $2,000


For PM (Schedule H, I) - minimum $2,000.00







  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE:


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 83,539.00


$ 44,280.00


$ 0.00


$ 224,507.00


$


$ 2,506.17


Total


INSPECTION DEPOSIT CALCULATION


Street/DrainageA. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              
NOTE: Use 3% for Inspection


IV. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


COST ESTIMATE CALCULATION SHEET


 


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


II. Domestic Water (Line C from Domestic Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Recycled Water (Line C from Recycled Water Improvement Calculations)







City of Wildomar


Grading Bond Estimate Worksheet


PM 37941


Parcel Map/Tract Map No: Public Improvements - Wildomar Trail Date: 12/7/2020


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL No: City Project No:


Quantity Unit Unit Cost Amount


1             LS 15,000.00$     15,000.00$    


1             LS 5,000.00$       5,000.00$      


1             EA 5,000.00$       5,000.00$      


69,630    CY 0.40$              27,852.00$    


43,000    CY 10.00$            430,000.00$  


1             LS 35,000.00$     35,000.00$    


1             EA 3,000.00$       3,000.00$      


1             EA 500.00$          500.00$         


LF -$               


2             EA 500.00$          1,000.00$      


52,235.20$    


574,500.00$  


12/7/2020


Signature Date


John D Tanner III


Name (type or printed)


60,132    


RCE No. Expiration Date


Civil Engineer's Stamp


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00. 


3. For Construction items not covered by this worksheet, Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction


cost and use that cost. 


Mobilization


Item


Erosion Control


Rough Grading


Demolition and Removal


Contractor Mobilization


Import Material


Mass Excavation


Clearing and Grubbing


Temporary Facilities and Utilities


Place Gravel Bags to Protect Catch Basin


Place Gravel Bags to Prevent Scour


Install Stabilized Construction Entrance


Silt Fence


Place Gravel Bags 2 Course High


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


Total


10% Contingency


Insert Project Name - Insert Project No.







City of Wildomar


Monument Security Estimate Worksheet


Parcel Map/Tract Map No: PM 37941 Date:
PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL No: City Project No:
Map Schedule: E


 Cost per Day


10-hour Day 


 Cost per 


Monument 
 $2,500.00* $300 


$342 


$400 


$478 


 Cost per Day


10-hour Day 


 Cost per 


Monument 
 $2,500.00* $600 


$685 


$800 


$960 


Notes:


28
 
$300 


Subtotal 1 (Total Monuments x Cost per Monument):  $         8,400.00 


Engineer's/Surveryor's Estimate for Preparing Centerline Tie-Sheets:  $                     -   


Subtotal 2 (Subtotal 1 + Centerline Tie-Sheet Estimate):  $         8,400.00 


Total Security Amount (Subtotal 2 x 120%):  $        10,000.00 


Signature Date


John Duquette, L.S.
Name (type or printed)


7566 12/31/2021
RCE/PLS No. Expiration Date


Engineer's/Surveyor's Stamp


Drive Time 


Hours to Map
Net Work Time Hours per Day


0.5 9


Cost Per Monument:


Total Monuments to Be Bonded:


1


1.5


2


*Based on a crew of one Registered Principal Engineering Technician and one Senior Engineering 


Technician


 (total rounded to the nearest $500) 


Net Work Time Hours per Day


7


9


Schedule "A" through "H" Maps
Drive Time 


Hours to Map
0.5
1 8


1.5


2 6


6


7


8


Schedule "I" Maps


Insert Project Name - Insert Project No.







Attachment D 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement 


Hotel 


 


 


 
 







RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
(Document exempt from recording fees 
pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code § 27383) 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
Attn: City Clerk 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, California 92595 


THIS SPACE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941  


HOTEL PORTION 


(PARCELS 2 AND 3) 


By and Between 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
a municipal corporation 


and 


STRATA BAXTER, LLC. 
A Delaware limited liability company 


DATED APRIL 14, 2021 







 


 - 1 -  


 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


FINAL PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 


 


This Subdivision Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this 14th  
day of April, 2021 by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
Strata Baxter, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Developer”).  City and Developer 
are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred 
to as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


A. Developer has submitted to City an application for approval of a final map for real 
property located within City, a legal description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  The 
final map is identified in City records as Parcel Map No. 37941.  On November 11, 2020 the 
City conditionally approved Tentative Parcel No. 37941. 


B. Developer has not completed all of the work or made all of the Public 
Improvements required by the Subdivision Map Act (Government Code sections 66410 et seq.), 
(“Map Act”) the City Ordinances, the conditions of approval for Parcel Map No. 37941, or other 
ordinances, resolutions, or policies of City requiring construction of improvements in 
conjunction with the subdivision of land. 


C. Pursuant to City Ordinances and the applicable provisions of the Map Act, 
Developer and City enter into this Agreement for the timely construction and completion of the 
Public Improvements and the furnishing of the security therefor, acceptable to the City Engineer 
and City Attorney, for Parcel Map No. 37941. 


D. City has authority to enter into this Subdivision Improvement Agreement pursuant 
to Government Code Sections 66499 – 66499.10. 


E. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66499, Developer’s execution of this 
Agreement and the provision of the security are made in consideration of City’s approval of the 
final map for Parcel Map No. 37941.  


DEFINED TERMS 


“Developer” shall mean Strata Baxter LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.  The term 
“Developer” shall also include all assignees, to the extent permitted under this Agreement, of the 
rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement, and any successor-in-interest to 
Developer having a legal and/or equitable interest in the Property. 


“Estimated Costs” shall mean the City Engineer’s approximation of the actual cost to construct 
the Public Improvements, including the replacement cost for all landscaping. 







 


 - 2 -  


 


“Litigation Expenses” shall mean all costs and expenses, to the extent reasonable in amount, 
actually and necessarily incurred by a party in good faith in the prosecution of an action or 
proceeding, including, but not limited to, court costs, filing, recording, and service fees, copying 
costs, exhibit production costs, special media rental costs, attorneys’ fees, fees for investigators, 
witness fees (both lay and expert), travel expenses, deposition and transcript costs and any other 
cost or expense, the award of which a court of competent jurisdiction may determine to be just 
and reasonable. 


“Map Act” shall mean the Subdivision Map Act, Government Code Sections 66410 et seq. 


“Property” shall mean the all of the real property contained within Parcels 2 and 3 of Parcel Map 
No. 37941 located in the City of Wildomar, California a is more particularly described in the 
legal description and parcel diagram attached hereto by reference at Exhibit  “A”. 


“Public Improvements” shall include, but not be limited to, all grading, roads, streets, paving, 
curbs and gutters, sidewalks, paseos, pathways, trails, sanitary sewers, utilities, storm drains, 
detention and retention basins and other drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street 
lights and all other facilities required to be constructed and dedicated to the City or other public 
entity as conditions of approval contained within Parcels 2 and 3 of Tentative Parcel Map No. 
37941 and as shown in detail on the plans, and specifications which have been approved by the 
City and incorporated into Parcel Map No. 37941.  The Parties agree that the Public 
Improvements to be completed by Developer are more specifically described in the diagram or 
plan attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “B.  Notwithstanding, 
Exhibit “B”, Developer shall remain obligated to construct and complete all of the Public 
Improvements required as conditions of approval for Tentative Parcel Map No. 37941.   


“Required Insurance” shall mean the insurance required to be maintained by Developer under 
Section 17. 


“Security” shall mean surety bonds, lien agreement or other security approved by the City 
Engineer or City Attorney in the amounts and under the terms of Section 12. 


“Parcel No 37941.” shall mean the final map prepared and approved by the City for tentative 
parcel map no. 37941. 


“Warranty” shall mean the one year period following completion of the Public Improvements by 
Developer and the acceptance of the Public Improvements by the City in which Developer 
warrants and guarantees all Public Improvements. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by 
the parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 


1. EFFECTIVENESS.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all 
four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:   







 


 - 3 -  


 


1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the 
amounts required by this Agreement;  


1.2 Final Map and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City 
(“City Council”) approves the final map for Parcel Map No. 37941and this Agreement; 


1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City 
records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and  


1.4 Record Final Map.  Developer records the final map for Parcel Map No. 
37941 in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.   


If the above described conditions are not satisfied in the order, manner and within the time 
provided under this Agreement, this Agreement shall automatically terminate without need of 
further action by either City or Developer. 


2. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at 
its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time 
and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Improvements 
shall include any transitions and/or other incidental work deemed necessary for drainage or 
public safety.  The Developer shall be responsible for the replacement, relocation, or removal of 
any component of any irrigation water or sewer system in conflict with the construction or 
installation of the Public Improvements.  Such replacement, relocation, or removal shall be 
performed to the complete satisfaction of the City Engineer and the owner of such water or sewer 
system.  Developer further promises and agrees to provide all equipment, tools, materials, labor, 
tests, design work, and engineering services necessary or required by City to fully and 
adequately complete the Public Improvements. 


2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where 
construction of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, 
Developer agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in 
accordance with this Agreement. 


2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals 
and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Public 
Improvements and performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement.  Developer 
shall conduct the work in full compliance with the regulations, rules, and other requirements 
contained in any permit or approval issued to Developer.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall file a written statement with the City Clerk and the City Engineer, signed by 
Developer and each utility which will provide utility service to the Property, attesting that 
Developer has made all deposits legally required by the utility for the extension and provision of 
utility service to the Property. 


2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from 
commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public 
Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or her designee.  
Approval by the City Engineer shall not relieve Developer from ensuring that all Public 
Improvements conform with all other requirements and standards set forth in this Agreement. 







 


 - 4 -  


 


2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction 
plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements.  The Public Improvements shall be completed in accordance with all approved 
maps, plans, specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, 
as well as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, 
and other requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced.  


2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a 
skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized as 
being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California.  Developer 
represents and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in the professional calling 
necessary to perform the work.  Developer warrants that all of its employees and contractors 
shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them, and that they 
shall have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally 
required to perform the work, and that such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall 
be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement. 


2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements 
made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent 
alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public 
Improvements it is determined that the public interest requires alterations in the Public 
Improvements, Developer shall undertake such design and construction changes as may be 
reasonably required by City.  Any and all alterations in the plans and specifications and the 
Public Improvements to be completed may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof 
to Developer’s surety for this Agreement. 


2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map 
Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval 
on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been satisfied 
prior to the date of this Agreement are identified on Exhibit “D” hereto. 


3. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND LANDSCAPING.  
City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements 
until City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  
City shall exercise no control over the Public Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any 
use by any person of the Public Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and 
exclusive risk of the Developer at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Public 
Improvements.  Developer shall maintain all the Public Improvements in a state of good repair 
until they are completed by Developer and approved and accepted by City, and until the security 
for the performance of this Agreement is released.  Maintenance shall include, but shall not be 
limited to, repair of pavement, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, signals, parkways, water mains, and 
sewers; maintaining all landscaping in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to 
City; removal of debris from sewers and storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining 
in good and safe condition all streets and street improvements.  It shall be Developer’s 
responsibility to initiate all maintenance work, but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly 
perform such maintenance work when notified to do so by City.  If Developer fails to properly 







 


 - 5 -  


 


prosecute its maintenance obligation under this section, City may do all work necessary for such 
maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the responsibility of Developer and its surety under this 
Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or liable for any damages or injury of any nature in any 
way related to or caused by the Public Improvements or their condition prior to acceptance.   


4. CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 
of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public 
Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the final map for Parcel Map 
No. 37941.  


4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide 
Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is 
understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement, 
Developer and its surety consent in advance to any extension of time as may be given by City to 
Developer, and waives any and all right to notice of such extension(s).  Developer’s acceptance 
of an extension of time granted by City shall constitute a waiver by Developer and its surety of 
all defense of laches, estoppel, statutes of limitations, and other limitations of action in any 
action or proceeding filed by City following the date on which the Public Improvements were to 
have been completed hereunder.  In addition, as consideration for granting such extension to 
Developer, City reserves the right to review the provisions of this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, the construction standards, the cost estimates established by City, and the sufficiency 
of the Security provided by Developer, and to require adjustments thereto when warranted 
according to City’s reasonable discretion. 


4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law 
related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has 
provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or otherwise not 
complete required or agreed upon Public Improvements. 


5. GRADING.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in 
conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel Map No. 
37941 shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and other 
requirements, including City’s grading regulations.  All grading, landscaping, and construction 
activities shall be performed in a manner to control erosion and prevent flooding problems.  The 
City Engineer shall have the authority to require erosion plans to prescribe reasonable controls 
on the method, manner, and time of grading, landscaping, and construction activities to prevent 
nuisances to surrounding properties.  Plans shall include without limitation temporary drainage 
and erosion control requirements, dust control procedures, restrictions on truck and other 
construction traffic routes, noise abatement procedures, storage of materials and equipment, 
removal of garbage, trash, and refuse, securing the job site to prevent injury, and similar matters.  
In order to prevent damage to the Public Improvements by improper drainage or other hazards, 
the grading shall be completed in accordance with the time schedule for completion of the Public 
Improvements established by this Agreement, and prior to City’s approval and acceptance of the 
Public Improvements and release of the Security as set forth in Section 12.0 et seq. of this 
Agreement. 


6. UTILITIES.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, 
power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel Map No. 







 


 - 6 -  


 


37941 in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, the regulations, schedules and fees of the utilities or agencies 
providing such services.  Except for commercial or industrial properties, Developer shall also 
provide cable television facilities to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to, the 
requirements of the cable company possessing a valid franchise with City to provide such service 
within City’s jurisdictional limits.  All utilities shall be installed underground. 


7. FEES AND CHARGES.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, 
pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, 
including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspection, and other 
service fees, and any impact or connection fees established by City ordinance, resolution, 
regulation, or policy, or as established by City relative to Parcel Map No. 37941, or as required 
by other governmental agencies having jurisdiction over Parcel Map No. 37941. 


8. CITY INSPECTION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall, at its 
sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, 
maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by City of the 
Public Improvements and areas where construction of the Public Improvements is occurring or 
will occur.  If the City inspector requests it, the Developer at any time before acceptance of the 
Public Improvements shall remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be 
directed which have not previously been inspected.  After examination, the Developer shall 
restore said portions of the work to the standards required hereunder.  Inspection or supervision 
by the City shall not be considered as direct control of the individual workmen on the job site.  
City’s inspector shall have the authority to stop any and all work not in accordance with the 
requirements contained or referenced in this Agreement.  The inspection of the work by City 
shall not relieve Developer or the contractor of any obligations to fulfill this Agreement as herein 
provided, and unsuitable materials or work may be rejected notwithstanding that such materials 
or work may have been previously overlooked or accepted.   


9. ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or 
any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer 
fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its surety shall be 
jointly and severally liable to City for all administrative expenses, fees, and costs, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in obtaining compliance with this Agreement or in 
processing any legal action or for any other remedies permitted by law. 


10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD 
DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed 
portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are 
complete, which shall not release or modify Developer’s obligation to complete the remainder of 
the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement.   


10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance 
of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the 
County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in accordance 
with Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, at which time the 







 


 - 7 -  


 


accepted Public Improvements shall become the sole and exclusive property of City without 
payment therefor. 


10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel Map No. 37941 
was approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the 
improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approved by 
City.  Issuance by City of occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the 
Property shall not be construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any 
Public Improvements.   


10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until 
Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engineer for 
all such Public Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and shall reflect the condition of 
the Public Improvements as constructed, with all changes incorporated therein. 


11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees 
all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials 
furnished in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping 
within the Property in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City, for a 
period of one (1) year following completion of the work and acceptance by City.  During the 
Warranty, Developer shall repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise 
unsatisfactory portion of the Public Improvements, in accordance with the current ordinances, 
resolutions, regulations, codes, standards, or other requirements of City, and to the approval of 
the City Engineer.  All repairs, replacements, or reconstruction during the Warranty shall be at 
the sole cost, expense, and liability of Developer and its surety.  As to any Public Improvements 
which have been repaired, replaced, or reconstructed during the Warranty, Developer and its 
surety hereby agree to extend the Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s 
acceptance of the repaired, replaced, or reconstructed Public Improvements.  Nothing herein 
shall relieve Developer from any other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to 
repair, replace, or reconstruct any Public Improvement following expiration of the Warranty or 
any extension thereof.  Developer’s warranty obligation under this section shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 


12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, 
Developer shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security 
acceptable to the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.   


12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the 
Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time 
prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 [Construction 
Schedule], in its sole and absolute discretion, that the Estimated Costs have changed, Developer 
shall adjust the Security in the amount requested by City.  Developer’s compliance with this 
provision (Section 12.0 et seq.) shall in no way limit or modify Developer’s indemnification 
obligation provided in Section 16.0 of this Agreement. 


12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the 
Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in 







 


 - 8 -  


 


default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Developer’s one-year 
guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements, including the maintenance of all  
landscaping in a vigorous and thriving condition, Developer shall provide City a faithful 
performance bond in the amount of one million six hundred and eighty four thousand 
($1,684,000), which sum shall be not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Estimated 
Costs. 


12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute 
discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions 
of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepted by City, 
provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or condition of 
approval for Parcel Map No. 37941, and the total remaining Security is not less than twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the Estimated Costs.  All Security provided under this section shall be released 
at the end of the Warranty period, or any extension thereof as provided in Section 11.0 of this 
Agreement, provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or 
condition of approval for Parcel Map No, 37941. 


12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, 
subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or 
equipment for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall 
provide City a labor and materials bond in the amount of eight hundred and forty two thousand  
($842,000), which sum shall not be less than fifty percent (50%) of the Estimated Costs.  The 
Security provided under this section may be released by written authorization of the City 
Engineer after six (6) months from the date City accepts the final Public Improvements.  The 
amount of such Security shall be reduced by the total of all stop notice or mechanic’s lien claims 
of which City is aware, plus an amount equal to twenty percent (20%) of such claims for 
reimbursement of City’s anticipated administrative and legal expenses arising out of such claims. 


12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds 
provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or 
insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satisfactory to 
City.  As part of the obligation secured by the Security and in addition to the face amount of the 
Security, the Developer or its surety shall secure the costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred by City in enforcing the obligations of 
this Agreement.  The Developer and its surety stipulate and agree that no change, extension of 
time, alteration, or addition to the terms of this Agreement, the Public Improvements, or the 
plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall in any way affect its obligation on the 
Security. 


12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided 
on the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City 
Engineer and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of City, 
the forms and evidence of the Security shall be attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 


12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et 
seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien 
agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code 







 


 - 9 -  


 


Section 16.56.030.  The Lien Agreement shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and 
incorporated herein by this reference.   


12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in 
order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to 
cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrument, and to take no 
action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  Notwithstanding the 
giving of any Security instrument or the subsequent expiration of any Security instrument or any 
failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its obligations with respect thereto, 
Developer shall be personally liable for performance under this Agreement and for payment of 
the cost of the labor and materials for the improvements required to be constructed or installed 
hereby and shall, within ten (10) days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such 
substitute Security as City shall require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12. 


13. MONUMENT SECURITY.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to 
guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot 
corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel Map No. 37941 in compliance with the 
applicable provisions of City’s Municipal and/or Development Code (“Subdivision 
Monuments”), Developer shall deposit cash or a surety bond with City in the amount of ten 
thousand Dollars ($10,000), which sum shall not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the 
costs of setting the Subdivision Monuments as determined by the City Engineer.  Said cash 
deposit or surety bond may be released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all 
required Subdivision Monuments are accepted by the City Engineer, City has received written 
acknowledgment of payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the Subdivision 
Monuments, and provided Developer is not in default of any provision of this Agreement or 
condition of approval for Parcel Map No. 37941.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if City accepts 
a lien agreement as security for the Improvements under Section 12.2 of this Agreement, such 
lien agreement may serve as the security for some or all of the Subdivision Monuments, as 
determined by the City Engineer.    


14. LIEN.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to 
Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in favor of City a lien 
against all portions of the Property not dedicated to City or some other governmental agency for 
a public purpose.  As to Developer’s default on those obligations for which security has been 
provided pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, City shall first attempt to 
collect against such security prior to exercising its rights as a contract lienholder under this 
section. 


15. SIGNS AND ADVERTISING.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s 
ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer 
hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to Developer, 
of all signs or other advertising structures erected, placed, or situated in violation of any City 
ordinance, regulation, or other requirement.  Removal shall be at the expense of Developer and 
its surety.  Developer and its surety shall indemnify and hold City free and harmless from any 
claim or demand arising out of or incident to signs, advertising structures, or their removal. 







 


 - 10 -  


 


16. INDEMNIFICATION.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged 
claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to property or persons, 
including wrongful death, whether imposed by a court of law or by administrative action of any 
federal, state, or local governmental body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, 
omissions, negligence, or willful misconduct of Developer, its personnel, employees, agents, or 
contractors in connection with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Public 
Improvements, or performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without 
limitation, the payment of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and 
related costs or expenses, and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, and/or agents for all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  This 
indemnification excludes only such portion of any claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, 
damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful death, which is 
caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of City as 
determined by a court or administrative body of competent jurisdiction.  Developer’s obligation 
to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement, and shall not be 
restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, or agents. 


17. INSURANCE. 


17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require 
its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant 
to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below.  If any of the 
Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such insurance shall apply separately to 
this Agreement or be no less than two times the specified occurrence limit.  


17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and 
maintain occurrence version general liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $3,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and 
property damage. 


17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors 
shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall include 
coverage for the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle 
owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the insured or for which the insured is responsible. 


17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor 
Code of the State of California and employers’ liability insurance with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, at all times during which insured retains employees. 


17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional 
who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and 
omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, shall be procured and maintained 
for a period of five (5) years following completion of the Public Improvements.  Such insurance 
shall be endorsed to include contractual liability. 







 


 - 11 -  


 


 
17.1.5 Pollution Liability.    Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution  


Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any  
location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. Any  
deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate of Insurance.  If the  
deductible or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it shall be approved in advance by the City.   
Developer and its contractors are responsible for any deductible or self-insured retention and  
shall fund it upon the City’s written request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors  
have a claim against the insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The  
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an  
additional insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf  
of the Developer and its contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) year  
after completion of the work. The insurance provided to the additional insureds shall apply on a  
primary and non-contributory basis with respect to any insurance or self-insurance program  
maintained by them. If the insurance is on a Claims-Made basis, the retroactive date shall be no  
later than the commencement of work. The insurance shall be continued for one (1) year after  
completion of the work.  If the insurance is on a Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage  
may be provided by: (a) renewal of the existing policy; (b) an extended reporting period  
endorsement; or (c) replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the  
commencement of the work. 


 


17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its contractors shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, 
claims, and administrative and defense expenses. 


17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance 
shall name City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional 
insureds with respect to work performed by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, 
including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection therewith.  The Required 
Insurance shall contain standard separation of insured provisions, and shall contain no special 
limitations on the scope of its protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
and volunteers. 


17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The Required Insurance 
shall be primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs covering City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the Required 
Insurance shall provide that the insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of 
subrogation against City in connection with any damage or harm covered by such policy. 


17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish 
City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required 
Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a 
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All certificates and 







 


 - 12 -  


 


endorsements must be received and approved by City before work pursuant to this Agreement 
can begin.  City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, at any time. 


17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain 
the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or 
endorsement which will expire prior to that date.  All policies shall be endorsed to provide that 
the Required Insurance shall not be suspended, voided, reduced, canceled, or allowed to expire 
except on 30 days’ prior written notice to City. 


17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a 
current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII. 


18. DEFAULT; NOTICE; REMEDIES. 


18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely 
complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a 
violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or other 
requirement, City may at any time thereafter declare Developer to be in default or violation of 
this Agreement and make written demand upon Developer or its surety, or both, to immediately 
remedy the default or violation.  Developer shall commence the work required to remedy the 
default or violation within ten (10) days of the written demand from the City.  If the default or 
violation constitutes an immediate threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, City may 
provide the demand verbally, and Developer shall commence the required work within twenty-
four (24) hours thereof.  Immediately upon City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, 
Developer and its surety shall be liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the 
Public Improvements and all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 
of this Agreement. 


18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to 
City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all remaining work, 
arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct such remedial activity as in its 
sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to remedy the default or violation.  All such 
work or remedial activity shall be at the sole and absolute cost, expense, and liability of 
Developer and its surety, without the necessity of giving any further notice to Developer or 
surety.  City’s right to take such actions shall in no way be limited by the fact that Developer or 
its surety may have constructed any, or none of the required or agreed upon Public 
Improvements at the time of City’s demand for performance.  In the event City elects to 
complete or arrange for completion of the remaining work and improvements, City may require 
all work by Developer or its surety to cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if 
the interests of City will not be prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to acreage 
and thereafter recover from Developer or its surety the full cost and expense incurred. 


18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of 
this Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or 







- 13 -


equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise it rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue inconsistent 
remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or specific performance. 


19. GENERAL PROVISIONS.


19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents
and warrants that her or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf 
of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign..  Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, 
including necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising 
out of claims that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement.  


19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 


19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement 
shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  
Any term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and 
not work days.  All references to Developer include all personnel, employees, agents, and 
subcontractors of Developer, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to 
City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 
content, or intent of this Agreement. 


19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications 
shall be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties 
may designate by written notice: 


CITY: 


City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, CA  92595 


DEVELOPER: 


Strata Baxter, LLC. 
Attn. Eric Flodine, Director of Community Development 
4370 La Jolla Village Drive, Suite 960 
San Diego, CA 92122 


Depending upon the method of transmittal, notice shall be deemed received as follows:  by 
facsimile, as of the date and time sent provided the original is contemporaneously deposited with 
United States Postal Service and delivered by regular mail; by messenger, as of the date 







 


 - 14 -  


 


delivered; and by U.S. Mail first class postage prepaid, as of 72 hours after deposit in the U.S. 
Mail. 


19.5 Amendment; Modification.  Amendment Modification.   No 
amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and 
approved by the Developer and by the City.  The City’s City Manager may, but is not required 
to, make minor adjustments not affecting substantive terms without further authorization from 
the City Council.  The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute any such 
amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under 
this Agreement.   


19.6 Waiver.  City’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision 
of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege provided herein, or City’s waiver of any 
breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Developer of any of its obligations under this 
Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing shall be true whether City’s 
actions are intentional or unintentional.  Developer agrees to waive, as a defense, counterclaim or 
set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the authorization, execution or 
performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement, as well as the laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with regards to the authorization, execution or 
performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement. 


19.7 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, 
hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest 
herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and 
any assignee, hypothecatee, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such 
attempted assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in 
City’s written consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not release or discharge 
Developer from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 


19.8 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be 
binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal 
representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authorization for any Party 
to assign any right or obligation. 


19.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 


19.10 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 


19.11 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed 
in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or 
proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way arises out of the 
Parties’ activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, shall be filed and prosecuted in the 
appropriate California State Court in the County of Riverside, California.  Each Party waives the 
benefit of any provision of state or federal law providing for a change of venue to any other court 
or jurisdiction including, without limitation, a change of venue based on the fact that a 







- 15 -


governmental entity is a party to the action or proceeding, or that a federal right or question is 
involved or alleged to be involved in the action or proceeding.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing waiver, Developer expressly waives any right to have venue transferred pursuant to 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 


19.12 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal 
action or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this 
Agreement or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, 
shall be entitled to and recover from the other party all Litigation Expenses.  Any judgment, 
order, or award entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific provision 
providing for the recovery of Litigation Expenses. 


19.13 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually 
agree that neither this Agreement, any map related to Tract No. 37941, nor any other 
related entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to 
create the relationship of partnership, joint venture, or agency between City and Developer.  
Developer’s contractors and subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and 
dominion of Developer.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Developer or its 
contractors an agent or contractor of City. 


19.14 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 


19.15 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become 
effective until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate 
authorities of City and Developer. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 
Janet Morales 
City Clerk 







 


 - 16 -  


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


_______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


STRATA BAXTER, LLC 


By:   By:   
 David C. Michan   
 Its: Manager Its:  ___________________________ 


NOTE: DEVELOPER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND 
APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY BE 
REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, OR 
OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO DEVELOPER’S 
BUSINESS ENTITY. 







 


 


A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed 
the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 


ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT NOTARY FOR CALIFORNIA 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE ) 


On  ____________________, 2021 , 
before me,                                                               , 
 Date Name And Title Of Officer (e.g. “Jane Doe, Notary Public”) 


personally appeared                                                                                   , 
  Name of Signer(s) 


who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the 
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they 
executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), 
and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) 
acted, executed the instrument. 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of 
the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true 
and correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


   
 Signature of Notary Public 


 


OPTIONAL 
 
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alternation of the document or fraudulent 
reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 
 


CAPACIT(IES) CLAIMED BY SIGNER(S) DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 


Signer's Name:   
    Individual  
 Corporate Officer 


  
 Title(s) Title or Type of Document 


 Partner(s)  Limited  
  General  


 Attorney-In-Fact Number Of Pages 
 Trustee(s)  
 Guardian/Conservator  
 Other:   


Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 


Date Of Document 


  


 Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 







 


 


 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed 
the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 


ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT NOTARY FOR CALIFORNIA 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE ) 


On  ____________________, 2021 , 
before me,                                                               , 
 Date Name And Title Of Officer (e.g. “Jane Doe, Notary Public”) 


personally appeared                                                                                   , 
  Name of Signer(s) 


who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the 
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they 
executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), 
and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) 
acted, executed the instrument. 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of 
the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true 
and correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


   
 Signature of Notary Public 


 


OPTIONAL 
 
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alternation of the document or fraudulent 
reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 
 


CAPACIT(IES) CLAIMED BY SIGNER(S) DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 


Signer's Name:   
    Individual  
 Corporate Officer 


  
 Title(s) Title or Type of Document 


 Partner(s)  Limited  
  General  


 Attorney-In-Fact Number Of Pages 
 Trustee(s)  
 Guardian/Conservator  
 Other:   


Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 


Date Of Document 


  


 Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 







 


 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


 


EXHIBIT “A” 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 


 


 
 


LEGAL  DESCRIPTION FOR APN # 367-180-057 
 


PARCEL B OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 2020-003, IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2020 AS 
INSTRUMENT NO. 2020-0402640 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS AT THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID RIVERSIDE COUNTY CALIFORNIA. 
 







 


 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “B” 


LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 


 


SEE ATTACHED 


 







PARCEL MAP OR TRACT MAP NO. DATE:


IP:


IMPROVEMENTS


Street/Drainage $ 1,337,000.00 $ $


*Flood Control $ 0.00 $ $


Dom Wtr EMWD $ 53,500.00 $ $


Rec Wtr EMWD $ 0.00 $ $


Sewer EMWD $ 293,500.00 $ $


Total 1,684,000.00 $ $


Warranty Retention (10%) $


Construction items and their quantities, as shown on the attached sheets, are accurate for the improvements 


required to construct the above project and the mathmatical extensions, using City's unit 


costs, are accurate for determining bonding costs 


Above amounts do G do not G include additional 20% for recordation prior to having signed plans


 (Ordinance460, Section 10.3E).


Signature Date 


John D. Tanner 60132


RCE# Exp. Date 


Civil Engineer's Stamp 


*Flood Control Construction Cost Estimate to be provided by Flood Control District.  Provide a copy of 


Flood Control District letter stating cost estmate. 


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.  Unit cost are to be as provided on 


"City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet."


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00.  Material and Labor Bond Amounts are 50%


of Performance Bond Amountss.  **100% for Flood Control items.


3. For Construction items not covered by "the City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet", 


Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction cost and use that cost.  If City of Wildomar  


Unit Costs are determined to be too low, in the opinion of the design engineer, the higher costs as


provided by the Design Engineer should be used. 


1,684,000.00 842,000.00


168,400.00


DESIGN ENGINEER'S CALCULATION OF IMPROVEMENT BONDING COSTS 


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


53,500.00 26,750.00


0.00 0.00


293,500.00 146,750.00


Construction Costs) Construction Costs)


1,337,000.00 668,500.00


0.00 0.00


FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE MATERIAL & LABOR 


SECURITY SECURITY 


(100% of Estimated (**50% of Estimated 


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


CONSTRUCTION COST WORKSHEET


BAXTER VILLAGE


PM 37941 12/7/2020







CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


STREET AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 


 


UNIT


ROADWAY SECTION 3 Area = S.F.


LS $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 300,000.00 $ 300,000.00


Excavation


2. Projects without a Grading Plan:  Cut (c) = C.Y.


Fill (f) = C.Y.


C.Y. $ 0.40 $ 0.00


C.Y. $ 1.10 $ 0.00


C.Y. $ 2.80 $ 0.00


TON $ 90.00 $ 246,512.61


Thickness in Feet (0.33' min.) =


C.Y. $ 50.00 $ 106,739.81


Thickness in Feet  =


Ton $ 600.00 $ 2,561.76


L.F. $ 1.00 $ 900.00


S.F. $ 0.50 $ 0.00


S.Y. $ 0.60 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 0.90 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 14.00 $ 16,800.00


L.F. $ 16.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 8.00 $ 11,000.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 6.00 $ 43,200.00


S.F. $ 8.00 $ 4,800.00


S.F. $ 6.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 4,500.00


EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 100.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 40,000.00


EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,200.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


Adjust MH to Grade ( if no sewer plan )


Relocate FH


Relocate Power Pole 


Street Lights (including conduit) 8                               


Adjust Water Valve to Grade ( if no water plan )


Chain Link Fence ( 6' )


Relocate Fence


Pipe Gate


Barricades


Metal Beam Guard RailingUtility Trench, one side (Edison, Telephone, Cable) 


(total length of Streets)


P.C.C. Dip Section Std. 307


ADA Access Ramp (w/ new construction) 3                               


ADA Access Ramp (in existing improvements)


P.C.C. Cross Gutter and Spandrels


P.C.C. Sidewalk 7,200                        


P.C.C. Driveway Approach 600                           


Type "D" Curb


A.C. Dike (6")(incl. material & labor) 1,375                        


A.C. Dike (8")(incl. material & labor)


Curb and Gutter (Type A-8)


Type "C" Curb


Type "D-1" Curb


AC overlay (min. 0.10')


Curb and Gutter (Type A-6) 1,200                        


Grinding A.C. , in place


0.5


Asphalt Emulsion (Fog Seal/Paint Binder)


 (1 ton = 240 gals)  


4.3                            


Sawcut Exist. A.C. Pavement 900                           


Cold Plane A.C. Pavement


(c.) Import and Fill -                           


Asphalt Concrete (144 lbs/cu.ft) 2,739                        


0.33


Agg Base Class II 2,135                        


(a.) Excavate and Fill -                           


(b.) Excavate and Export -                           


C.Y. $ 25.00 $ 0.00    Area x 0.50' (hinge point to hinge point)


                    115,279 


1. Projects with Grading Plan for Roadway


WQMP Basin (NE corner Baxtter Rd & Loop Rd)


Traffic Signal 1.00


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 


COST







L.F. $ 154.00 $ 40,040.00


L.F. $ 176.00 $ 21,120.00


L.F. $ 203.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 234.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 204.00 $ 128,520.00


L.F. $ 235.00 $ 77,550.00


$ $ 0.00


LS $ 8,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 40,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 30,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 15,000.00 $ 0.00


A. $ 1,044,244.18


B. Administrative Contingency (20% x A) $ 208,848.84


C. CM - Inspection - LC (8%) $ 83,539.53


D Streets/Drainage Total (A + B) $ 1,336,632.56


 Subtotal 


Design/submittals/review


Mobilization


Traffic Control


Survey 


42" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 630


48" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 330


24" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 120


30" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical


36" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical


18" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 260


DRAINAGE







 


UNIT


L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 30.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 55.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 45.00 $ 36,900.00


$ $ 0.00


A. $ 36,900.00


B. $ 7,380.00


C. $ 44,280.00


D. $ 8,856.00


E. $ 53,136.00


20% x C


Water Total (C + D)


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR 


TO HAVING SIGNED PLANS


Administrative Contingency (20% x A)


Water Total (A + B)


Subtotal


 2" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 (BLDG SERVICE)


 6" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18


 8" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18


10" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 (FIRE WATER)


12" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 820


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


DOMESTIC WATER IMPROVEMENTS


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 


COST







 


UNIT


L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 30.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 46.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 54.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 90.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 55.00 $ 79,750.00


L.F. $ 62.00 $ 72,106.00


L.F. $ 72.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 81.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 162.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 183.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 195.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 215.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 236.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 4,500.00 $ 45,000.00


EA. $ 5,500.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 3,300.00 $ 3,300.00


EA. $ 730.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 200.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 2,100.00 $ 2,100.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 500.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


A. $ 203,756.00


B. $ 40,751.20


C. $ 244,507.20


D. $ 48,901.44


E. $ 293,408.64


20% x C


Sewer Total (C + D)


Subtotal


Administrative Contingency (20% x A)


Sewer Total (A + B)BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR 


TO HAVING SIGNED PLAND ( ORD.460, 


Concrete Encasement 


Join Existing 12" Pipe


Chimney


Adjust M.H. to grade


Tie to Existing Manhole 1


Rechannel Existing Manhole 1


Join Existing 8" Pipe


Shallow Manhole (5' or less) 1


Clean out 


Clean out Lateral


30" VCP


Standard Manhole 48" 10


Standard Manhole 60"


21" VCP


24" VCP


27" VCP


12" VCP 0


15" VCP


18" VCP


15" PVC SDR 35 Green


8" VCP 1450


10" VCP 1163


8" PVC SDR 35 Green


10" PVC SDR 35 Green


12" PVC SDR 35 Green


COST


4" PVC SDR 35 (Use it for Residential Laterals)


6" PVC SDR 35 Green


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


SANITARY SEWER  IMPROVEMENTS


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 







  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE:


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 1,336,632.00


$ 44,280.00


$ 244,507.00


$ 13366.32


$ 2887.87


$ 16254.19


$ 325.08


$ 16579.27


shown below, then following deposit schedule will apply, otherwise pay the full deposit.


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


PM37941


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


D. Surcharge Fee (2% x C)


II. Water (Line C from Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION


A. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              NOTE: Use 1% for TR, 6% 


for PM and 6.5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL


B. Water and Sewer (1% x II and III.) (Do not include for Tract Maps)


C. Total Plan Check Deposit (A + B)


SURCHARGE FEE CALCULATION


For PP/CU/PU/MS/VL - minimum $2,000.00


COMMENTS


E. Total Plan Check Deposit and Surcharge Fee


MINIMUM PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS


Note: If Plan Check Deposit calculated in "Line E" is less than the minimum as 


For TR (Schedule. A, B, C, D) and PM (Schedule. E, F, G) - minimum $2,000


For PM (Schedule H, I) - minimum $2,000.00







  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE:


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 83,539.00


$ 44,280.00


$ 0.00


$ 224,507.00


$


$ 2,506.17


Total


INSPECTION DEPOSIT CALCULATION


Street/DrainageA. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              
NOTE: Use 3% for Inspection


IV. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


COST ESTIMATE CALCULATION SHEET


 


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


II. Domestic Water (Line C from Domestic Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Recycled Water (Line C from Recycled Water Improvement Calculations)







City of Wildomar


Grading Bond Estimate Worksheet


PM 37941


Parcel Map/Tract Map No: Public Improvements - Wildomar Trail Date: 12/7/2020


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL No: City Project No:


Quantity Unit Unit Cost Amount


1             LS 15,000.00$     15,000.00$    


1             LS 5,000.00$       5,000.00$      


1             EA 5,000.00$       5,000.00$      


69,630    CY 0.40$              27,852.00$    


43,000    CY 10.00$            430,000.00$  


1             LS 35,000.00$     35,000.00$    


1             EA 3,000.00$       3,000.00$      


1             EA 500.00$          500.00$         


LF -$               


2             EA 500.00$          1,000.00$      


52,235.20$    


574,500.00$  


12/7/2020


Signature Date


John D Tanner III


Name (type or printed)


60,132    


RCE No. Expiration Date


Civil Engineer's Stamp


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00. 


3. For Construction items not covered by this worksheet, Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction


cost and use that cost. 


Mobilization


Item


Erosion Control


Rough Grading


Demolition and Removal


Contractor Mobilization


Import Material


Mass Excavation


Clearing and Grubbing


Temporary Facilities and Utilities


Place Gravel Bags to Protect Catch Basin


Place Gravel Bags to Prevent Scour


Install Stabilized Construction Entrance


Silt Fence


Place Gravel Bags 2 Course High


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


Total


10% Contingency


Insert Project Name - Insert Project No.







City of Wildomar


Monument Security Estimate Worksheet


Parcel Map/Tract Map No: PM 37941 Date:
PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL No: City Project No:
Map Schedule: E


 Cost per Day


10-hour Day 


 Cost per 


Monument 
 $2,500.00* $300 


$342 


$400 


$478 


 Cost per Day


10-hour Day 


 Cost per 


Monument 
 $2,500.00* $600 


$685 


$800 


$960 


Notes:


28
 
$300 


Subtotal 1 (Total Monuments x Cost per Monument):  $         8,400.00 


Engineer's/Surveryor's Estimate for Preparing Centerline Tie-Sheets:  $                     -   


Subtotal 2 (Subtotal 1 + Centerline Tie-Sheet Estimate):  $         8,400.00 


Total Security Amount (Subtotal 2 x 120%):  $        10,000.00 


Signature Date


John Duquette, L.S.
Name (type or printed)


7566 12/31/2021
RCE/PLS No. Expiration Date


Engineer's/Surveyor's Stamp


Drive Time 


Hours to Map
Net Work Time Hours per Day


0.5 9


Cost Per Monument:


Total Monuments to Be Bonded:


1


1.5


2


*Based on a crew of one Registered Principal Engineering Technician and one Senior Engineering 


Technician


 (total rounded to the nearest $500) 


Net Work Time Hours per Day


7


9


Schedule "A" through "H" Maps
Drive Time 


Hours to Map
0.5
1 8


1.5


2 6


6


7


8


Schedule "I" Maps


Insert Project Name - Insert Project No.







 


 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “C” 


SURETY BONDS AND OTHER SECURITY 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 


As evidence of understanding the provisions contained in this Agreement, and of the Developer’s 


intent to comply with same, the Developer has submitted the below described security in the 


amounts required by this Agreement, and has affixed the appropriate signatures thereto: 


 


PERFORMANCE BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $  


Surety:   


Attorney-in-fact:   


Address:   


   


   


   


   


MATERIAL AND LABOR BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $  


Surety:   


Attorney-in-fact:   


Address:   


   


   


   


   


CASH MONUMENT SECURITY: $  


Amount deposited per Cash Receipt No.   Date:  


   


   


MONUMENT BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $  


Surety:   


Attorney-in-fact:   


Address:   


   


   


   







1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


BOND NO. ___________________ 


INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________ 


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941IMPROVEMENTS 


FORM OF PERFORMANCE BOND 


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar, California (“City”) and Strata Baxter, 
LLC. (“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited 


to, the furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all 


grading, roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 


drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required facilities 


for Parcel Map No. 37941 (“Public Improvements”); 


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more particularly 


set forth in that certain Subdivision Improvement Agreement dated ____________, 2021 


(“Improvement Agreement”); 


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated herein 


by reference; and 


WHEREAS, Principal is required by the Improvement Agreement to provide a good and 


sufficient bond for performance of the Improvement Agreement, and to guarantee and warranty 


the Public Improvements constructed thereunder. 


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________________ (“Surety”), 


a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of __________, and duly 


authorized to transact surety business under the laws of the State of California, are held and 


firmly bound unto City in the sum of ___________________________________ Dollars 


($____________), said sum being not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total cost of 


the Public Improvements as set forth in the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our 


heirs, executors and administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these 


presents. 


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such, that if Principal, his or its heirs, 


executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and 


well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, agreements, guarantees, and 


warranties in the Improvement Agreement and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, 


to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified and in all respects 


according to their intent and meaning, and to indemnify and save harmless City, its officers, 


employees, and agents, as stipulated in the Improvement Agreement, then this obligation shall 


become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 







2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount specified 


therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable 


attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as 


costs and included in any judgment rendered. 


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 


alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or to any plans, profiles, and 


specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements to be constructed thereunder, shall 


in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such 


change, extension of time, alteration, or addition. 


This bond is executed and filed to comply with Section 66499 et seq. of the Government 


Code of California as security for performance of the Improvement Agreement and security for 


the one-year guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto affixed, and 


the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested by its duly authorized 


Attorney-in-Fact at _______________________, this _____ day of _______________, ______. 


Strata Baxter, LLC. 


Principal Surety 


By: By: 


Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact 


(print name) (print name) 


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 


BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 


ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 


COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND. 







1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


BOND NO. ___________________ 


INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________ 


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 IMPROVEMENTS 


FORM OF LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND 


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar California (“City”) and Strata Baxter, 
LLC. (“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited 


to, the furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all 


grading, roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 


drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required facilities 


for Parcel Map No. 37941 (“Public Improvements”); 


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more particularly 


set forth in that certain Subdivision Improvement Agreement dated __________, 2021 


(“Improvement Agreement”); 


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated herein 


by reference; and 


WHEREAS, Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with the Improvement 


Agreement providing that if Principal or any of its subcontractors shall fail to pay for any 


materials, provisions, or other supplies, or terms used in, upon, for, or about the performance of 


the Public Improvements, or for any work or labor done thereon of any kind, or for amounts due 


under the provisions of Title 1 (commencing with section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing 


with section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the California Civil Code, with respect to such work 


or labor, that the Surety on this bond will pay the same together with a reasonable attorney’s fee 


in case suit is brought on the bond. 


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________ (“Surety”), a 


corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of _________________, and duly 


authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, are held and firmly 


bound unto City and to any and all material men, persons, companies or corporations furnishing 


materials, provisions, and other supplies used in, upon, for or about the performance of the 


Public Improvements, and all persons, companies or corporations renting or hiring teams, or 


implements or machinery, for or contributing to the Public Improvements to be done, and all 


persons performing work or labor upon the same and all persons supplying both work and 


materials as aforesaid excepting the Principal, the sum of _________________________ Dollars 


($_______________), said sum being not less than 50% of the total cost of the Public 


Improvements under the terms of the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 


executors and administrators, successors and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these 


presents. 







2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the Principal, his or its 


subcontractors, heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall fail to pay for any 


materials, provisions, or other supplies or machinery used in, upon, for or about the performance 


of the Public Improvements, or for work or labor thereon of any kind, or fail to pay any of the 


persons named in California Civil Code Section 9100, or amounts due under the Unemployment 


Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed by any such claimant, or for any 


amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment Development 


Department from the wages of employees of the contractor and his subcontractors pursuant to 


Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to such work and labor, and all 


other applicable laws of the State of California and rules and regulations of its agencies, then 


said Surety will pay the same in or to an amount not exceeding the sum specified herein. 


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount specified 


therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable 


attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as 


costs and included in any judgment rendered. 


This bond is executed and filed to comply with Section 66499 et seq. of the California 


Government Code as security for payment to contractors, subcontractors, and persons furnishing 


labor, materials, or equipment for construction of the Public Improvements or performance of the 


Improvement Agreement.  It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure 


to the benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under 


Title 1 (commencing with Section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of 


Part 6 of Division 4 of the California Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their 


assigns in any suit brought upon this bond. 


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 


alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or to any plans, profiles, and 


specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements to be constructed thereunder, shall 


in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such 


change, extension of time, alteration, or addition. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto affixed, and 


the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested by its duly authorized 


Attorney-in-Fact at _____________________, this _____ day of _______________, ______. 


Strata Baxter, LLC. 


Principal Surety 


By: By: 


Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact 


(print name) (print name) 







 


 3 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 


BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 


ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 


COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND. 


 







 


 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “D” 


LIST OF TRACT MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED  


 


SEE ATTACHED 







AutoCAD SHX Text

EXHIBIT D-1



AutoCAD SHX Text

BAXTER



AutoCAD SHX Text

H:\PDATA\133555\ADMIN\LIEN AGREEMENTS\PM 37941\ROUND 1\133555-EXH D1 - HOTEL.DWG  JDUQUETTE  12/2/20 10:49 am



AutoCAD SHX Text

 HOTEL ORTION EXHIBIT



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEGEND



AutoCAD SHX Text

HOTEL PHASE AREA OF PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

PM 37941



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BAXTER ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

I-15 FREEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

NAP



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PCL 3







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – HOTEL – PM 37941 


 


1 


 


 


Condition No. Condition Language Notes 


PW COA No. 5 The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct 
all improvements in accordance the City of Wildomar 
Road Improvement Standards & Specification, 
Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 6 The Developer shall be responsible for all costs 
associated with off-site right-of-way acquisition and 
offsite easements for required improvements, 
including any costs associated with the eminent 
domain process, if necessary. 


The Developer is 


securing the offsite right 


of way necessary  


through this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement..   


PW COA No. 7 All flood control plans to be reviewed by the City or 
Riverside County Flood Control District shall be 
submitted though the City of Wildomar, unless 
otherwise directed by the City Engineer.  Appropriate 
fees shall be paid to the reviewing agencies and flood 
control plans and reports shall be approved prior to 
recordation of the final map. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 8 The developer shall annex into the City’s Community 
Facility District (CFD Services) and pay associated 
costs for annexation.  Should this project lie within any 
assessment/benefit district that duplicates the 
services to be covered under CFD Services then the 
developer shall de-annex from said 
assessment/benefit district. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 14 Approval for the filing of this land division is contingent 
upon approval of plans and specifications based on 
the conditions of approval presented herein and the 
final version of Tentative Parcel Map. If the 
improvements are not installed prior to the filing of this 
land division, the Developer must submit a Surety 
Agreement and Faithful Performance and Labor and 
Materials Bonds (or other surety type acceptable to 
the City) in the amount approved by the City Engineer 
guaranteeing the installation of said improvements. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 15 Prior to recordation of the final map, Developer shall 
submit a streetlight plan for approval by the City 
Engineer and install (or secure) streetlights.  Street 
lighting shall be designed and installed in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Road Improvement 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – HOTEL – PM 37941 


 


2 


Standards & Specification, Improvement Plan Check 
Policies and Guidelines, City Ordinances and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 16 Prior to recordation of the final map, the Developer 
shall provide to the City Engineer, evidence of the 
water and sewer system plans approved and signed 
by the local water company.  Water plan shall also be 
approved and signed by the Fire Department and 
shall conform to hydrant type, location, spacing and 
minimum fire flow.  All plans shall be prepared by a 
registered civil engineer.  All public sewer, water and 
fire facilities shall be constructed or secured prior to 
recordation of the final map. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 17 All required public utility easements associated with 
this subdivision of land shall be recorded on or 
concurrently with the final map and easement widths 
shall be approved by the governing easement holder.  
This includes easements for overhead and 
underground facilities and appurtenances to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 18 Prior to recordation of the final map, the improvement 
plans for the required public street improvements 
must be prepared and shall be based upon a design 
profile extending a minimum of 300 feet beyond the 
project boundaries at a grade and alignment as 
approved by the City Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 19 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Above-ground utilities shall be undergrounded by the 
developer in accordance with City of Wildomar 
Municipal Code 16.40.010. The undergrounding of 
utilities shall be reflected on the project improvement 
plans.  


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 19 Above-ground utilities shall be undergrounded by the 
developer in accordance with City of Wildomar 
Municipal Code 16.40.010. The undergrounding of 
utilities shall be reflected on the project improvement 
plans.  


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 21 Prior to recordation of the final map, the Developer 
shall prepare traffic control plans or post securities for 
costs to prepare traffic control plans and sureties shall 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – HOTEL – PM 37941 


 


3 


include costs to provide for traffic control during 
construction  


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 24 The City Engineer shall determine if certain flood 
control facilities will be maintained by Riverside 
County Flood Control District (RCFCD) or the City of 
Wildomar through a CFD.  Developer to provide the 
following list of items for all RCFCD facilities 
associated with this project: 1) proof of executed 
maintenance agreement establishing terms and 
conditions for inspection, operation and maintenance 
of flood control facilities, 2) proof of approval of 
drainage plans and reports by RCFCD, 3) proof of 
flood control facility bonds and 4) proof of required 
easements.  In addition, all drainage plans (weather 
City or RCFCD) to be submitted to City for plan check 
and approval with the appropriate plan check fees. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 25 Prior to recordation of the final map, the Developer 
shall submit landscaping and irrigation plans and 
install (or secure) landscaping for work within the 
public right-of-way to the City for approval. These 
plans shall include water usage calculations, estimate 
of irrigation and the location of all existing trees that 
will remain. All plans and calculations shall be 
designed and calculated per the City of Wildomar 
Road Improvement Standards & Specification, 
Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, 
City Codes and to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 26 Developer shall dedicate, design and construct (or 
secure) interim street improvements f for Baxter Road 
based on County Standard No. 136 ‘”Collector Rural 
Road” (60-ft ROW) in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Improvement Standards & Specifications 
and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Street 
improvement shall be installed from White Street to 
and across the project frontage as shown on the 
Tentative Parcel Map.  ‘ 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 27 Developer shall dedicate, design and construct (or 
secure) part-width street improvements for Street A 
based on County Standard No. 105C “local Street (60-
ft ROW)” as shown on the tentative map in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Improvement 
Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer.   


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 29 The developer shall re-align, dedicate, design and 
construct (or secure) Wildomar Trail (old 
Central/Baxter Road) per TPM No. 37941, based on 
Modified Arterial Highway, Standard No. 92.  The 
design shall be in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Improvement Standards & Specifications 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – HOTEL – PM 37941 


 


4 


and shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  
Off-site dedications are required. Inability of the 
Developer to acquire any necessary offsite 
dedications may require redesign of project.  All 
property conveyed to the City of Wildomar in fee title 
shall be free and clear of any encumbrances, except 
as expressly permitted by the City. The Developer 
shall provide title insurance in conjunction with all fee 
title dedications to the City of Wildomar.   


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 30 The realignment of Wildomar Trail creates a triangular 
shaped remnant parcel located south of the project 
boundary and north of the realigned Wildomar Trail 
right of way.  Developer shall acquire the entire 
remnant parcel (even if a portion is owned by the 
adjacent southerly property owner) and shall vacate 
excess right of way located within said remnant parcel 
prior to or concurrently with the recordation of the final 
map (or shall provide sureties for costs associated 
with property acquisitions and vacation processes).  In 
addition, Developer shall relocate existing utilities (or 
post sureties for relocations) within the new alignment 
of Wildomar Trail to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and utility agencies. 


 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 31 After the right of way in the remnant parcel (located 
south of the project boundary and north of the 
realigned Wildomar Trail) has been vacated, this 
property shall be conveyed back to the City in fee title.  
If Developer is justifiably unable to accomplish this 
conveyance prior to map recordation, City Engineer 
may extend the deadline to a later date but no later 
than occupancy release. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 34 Prior to or concurrently with the recordation of the final 
map, slope easements shall be dedicated to the City 
along both sides of Wildomar Trail to include right of 
way adjacent slopes required to construct Wildomar 
Trail to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  All slope 
easements (on both sides of the road) shall be 
annexed into the City’s Community Facilities District 
(CFD) for maintenance. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 36 To determine intersection right of way dedication and 
ultimate street improvement locations, Developer 
shall prepare an Alignment Study (horizontal and 
vertical) at the intersection of Wildomar Trail and 
Street A to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The 
alignment study shall consider the design 
requirements for all project mitigation identified in the 
Traffic Impact Analysis to include lane geometry and 
capacities, new traffic signal locations, striping 
transitions, driveway locations and future medians. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 37 Prior to recordation of the final map, a signing and 
striping plan shall be approved by the City Engineer 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 







LIST OF PARCEL MAP CONDITIONS 


OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


BAXTER – HOTEL – PM 37941 


 


5 


and signing, and striping installed (or secured) to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. The signing striping 
plan shall establish “No Stopping Anytime Zones” 
along both Wildomar Trail and Street A.  Developer 
shall be responsible for any additional paving and/or 
striping removal caused by the striping plan to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 39 Drainage easements shall be dedicated on the final 
map (or by separate instrument) for public storm 
drains outside the street right of way as shown on the 
tentative map.  All easement widths shall be approved 
by the governing agency.  In addition, onsite public 
access easements shall be dedicated to providing 
appropriate access to all onsite public storm drains to 
the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


PW COA No. 40 All applicable water quality/retention basins and 
associated drainage pipes and appurtenances shall be 
annexed into the City’s CFD for maintenance.  The final 
map shall include lettered lots or easements to contain 
each basin and associated appurtenances to be offered 
to the City in the Owner’s Statement. 


The Developer is 


securing the preparation 


of plans and construction 


of improvements through 


this Subdivision 


Improvement 


Agreement. 


 







 


 2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “E” 
LIEN AGREEMENT 


 
 


SEE ATTACHED 







NO FEE DOCUMENT 
Government Code §6103 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA  92595 
Attn: City Clerk  


The Above Space For Recorder’s 
Use Only 


LIEN AGREEMENT Commercial Phase 


THIS LIEN AGREEMENT (“Lien Agreement”) is made and entered into this 14th day of 
April, 2021, by and between the CITY OF WILDOMAR, a California municipal corporation 
(“City”) and STRATA BAXTER, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (“Owner”). 


RECITALS 


A. Owner has applied to City for approval of a Final Map pursuant to City of 
Wildomar Municipal Code Title 16.56  (“the Subdivision Code”) for Parcel Map No. 37941, 
for real property located within City.  This Lien Agreement applies to a portion of the Parcel 
Map, containing commercial uses a legal description and diagram of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” (“Property”). 


B. The Final Map is a Schedule “E” Subdivision per Section 16.24.040 of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code because it consists of a division of land into two or more parcels 
in commercial or industrial zones, regardless of parcel size.  . 


C. The conditions of approval for Parcel Map No. 37941 require Owner to 
construct certain improvements that upon completion will be accepted by the City as 
public improvements (“Public Improvements”). An itemization of the Public Improvements 
and an estimate of the costs for the Public Improvements approved by the City Engineer 
is attached as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference. 


D. In order to obtain approval of the Final Map prior to completing all of the 
Public Improvements, Owner is required to enter into an agreement with City for the 
completion of the Public Improvements and the provision of security for the Public 
Improvements (“Subdivision Improvement Agreement”).   


E. Wildomar Municipal Code Section 16.56.030 and Government Code 
Section 66499 authorize the City and Owner to enter into this Lien Agreement 
simultaneously with the Subdivision Improvement Agreement in satisfaction of the 
security obligations contained in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement for the Public 
Improvement.  In addition, Owner and City desire this Lien Agreement to secure the 
setting of the required subdivision boundaries, lot corners, and street centerline 
monuments (“Subdivision Monuments”).  


RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 
F.  City has found and determined that it would not be in the public interest to 


require the installation of the Public Improvements sooner than two years after 
recordation of the Final Map.  


 
G. Owner has provided a title insurance policy and current title report to the 


City from a title company approved by the City and issued within the 60 days prior to the 
execution of this Lien Agreement that documents that the Owner is the record owner of 
the Property and the Property is not subject to any mortgages, deeds of trust, or judgment 
liens.   
 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which the Parties hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
I. Owner Performance and Obligations 
 
 A. Owner hereby grants to City, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Lien Agreement, a lien upon the Property as security for the following obligations of 
Owner: 
 


(1) Construction of the Public Improvements specified in Exhibit “B” attached 
hereto; provided, however, that Owners obligation hereunder shall extend 
to the actual cost of the construction of the Public Improvements, not 
withstanding that such costs may exceed the estimate set forth in Exhibit 
“B”; and 


 
(2) Setting of the Subdivision Monuments required by Section 16.16.100 of the 


Wildomar Municipal Code and Section 66495 et seq. of the Government 
Code for the Final Map; and 


  
(3) Payment of the balance of the fees or provision of the improvements or 


services described in the Subdivision Code (collectively, “Fees”), in the 
amount required in accordance with the Subdivision Code, as determined 
appropriate by the Director of Public Works. 


 
This Lien secures that obligation and the remedies provided herein for 
breach of that obligation. 


  
 B.  For so long as title to the property remains subject to this Lien Agreement, 
Owner shall not: (1) request issuance by the Department of Real Estate for the Final 
Subdivision Public Report for the Property; (2) sell or permit the sale of any lot shown on 
the Final Map; or (3) commence work on any portion of the Public Improvements except 
as necessary to correct or prevent threats to the public health, safety or general welfare 
with the consent of the City. Notwithstanding the above, fee title to the entire property 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


encumbered by this Lien Agreement or to all lots designated on the Final Map may be 
sold in the aggregate to a single purchaser, provided that the proposed purchaser, prior 
to assuming title to the property, executes a new lien agreement or provides acceptable 
alternative security acceptable to the City and executes a new Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement with the City. 
 
 C. At the time Owner executes this Lien Agreement, Owner shall file with the City 
a cash deposit in the amount of Twelve Thousand Dollars ($12,000), to be used by City 
to reimburse City for any costs which City may incur in processing a reversion to acreage 
initiated pursuant to this Lien Agreement. Any unused portion of such deposit shall be 
refunded to Owner following completion of such reversion. If the costs of reverting the 
Property to acreage exceed $12,000, Owner shall pay additional costs to City prior to 
recordation of the reversion of acreage map. The unused portion of this deposit may be 
applied to the deposit of fees for inspection, tests and other related purposes for the 
required Public Improvements or Subdivision Monuments upon termination of this Lien 
Agreement. If the fee title to the entire property encumbered by this Lien Agreement or 
all lots designated on the Final Map are sold in the aggregate to a single purchaser and 
the purchaser executes a new lien agreement, the purchaser shall file with City a cash 
deposit in the amount of Twelve Thousand Dollars ($12,000) for the purpose of reverting 
the property to acreage if the purchaser breaches the terms of the lien agreement. Upon 
receipt of the substitute deposit from the purchaser and execution of the new lien 
agreement, the original cash deposit will be refunded to Owner, minus Fees still owed to 
City by Owner. 
 
 D. Prior to commencing the installation and construction of any portion of the Public 
Improvements or Subdivision Monuments required by the Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement, Owner shall deposit fees for inspection, tests and other related purposes, 
and shall substitute other forms of security satisfactory to City in place of this Lien 
Agreement. 
 
 E. Owner also agrees to provide all substitute forms of security in the amounts and 
for the purposes set forth in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement, except that the 
amounts shall be calculated using the estimated cost of the Public Improvements or 
Subdivision Monuments at the time of substitution, as ascertained by City. 
 
 F. Owner shall substitute acceptable security for this Lien Agreement and 
commence construction of the Public Improvements required by the Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement within three (3) years following the date of recordation of the 
Final Map. At its sole discretion, the City may grant up to three extensions of time in 
accordance with Section 16.56.030(H) of the City’s Municipal Code. For each extension 
of time, Owner shall provide a title insurance policy and current title report from a title 
company approved by the City, and issued within 60 days prior to the request for an 
extension of time, that documents that Owner is the record owner of the real property to 
be divided as identified on the Final Map and the real property to be divided is not subject 
to any mortgages, deeds of trust, or judgment liens. 
 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 G. Owner shall pay the Fees related to the work required by the Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement for which the Fees are required prior to issuance of any building 
permit or, if permitted by the City, prior to occupancy. 
 
 H. Owner agrees that if suit is brought upon this Lien Agreement, all costs and 
reasonable expenses and fees incurred by the City in successfully enforcing Owner’s 
obligations shall be paid by Owner, including attorneys fees, and that, upon entry of 
judgment, all such costs, expenses and fees shall be taxed as costs and included in any 
judgment rendered. 
 
 I. Owner agrees to indemnify, and hold harmless, the City, its officers, employees 
and agents from any liability whatsoever based or asserted upon: (i) any act or omission 
of Owner, its employees and agents relating to or in any way connected with the 
accomplishment of work, obligations, or performance of service under this Lien 
Agreement; or (ii) the approval of this Lien Agreement. As part of the foregoing indemnity, 
Owner agrees to protect and defend at its own expense, including attorneys’ fees, the 
City, its officers, employees and agents in any legal action based upon such alleged acts 
or omissions.  
 
II. City’s Performance and Obligations 
 
 A. Following (1) City’s approval of the substitute forms of security submitted by 
Owner, (2) deposit by Owner of fees for inspections, tests and other specific purposes 
and (3) Owner’s payment or other performance of these obligations encompassed by the 
Fees required by the Subdivision Code, performance of which are secured by this Lien 
Agreement, City shall release the Property, from the provisions of this Lien Agreement, 
and shall execute any necessary release to enable Owner or its transferee to clear the 
record of title of the Property so released of the lien herein imposed.  
 
 B. In no instances shall this Lien Agreement compel the City to construct the 
required Public Improvements or install the Subdivision Monuments. 
 
III. Owner’s Representations and Warranties 
 
 Owner represents and warrants that no lots within the Property have been sold, no 
construction permits (including but not limited to grading permits and building permits) 
have been issued and are active for all or part of the Property, and no construction of any 
of the Public Improvements has commenced.   
 
IV.  Effect of Lien Agreement 
 
 A. From the date of recordation of this Lien Agreement, a lien shall attach to the 
Property which shall have the priority of a judgment lien in an amount necessary to 
discharge all obligations contained in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and any 
Fees. Under no circumstances shall the City agree to subordinate the lien. 
 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 B. Owner shall have the right to convey or sell fee title to the entire property 
encumbered by this Lien Agreement, so long as the purchaser agrees in writing to accept 
and be bound by the terms and provisions of this Lien Agreement, the applicable 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement, and the Fees, or has provided alternative security 
acceptable to the City per Section 16.56.010 of the City’s Municipal Code.  Any new lien 
agreement entered into by a purchaser of the Property must provide for completion of the 
Public Improvements by the same date as is specified herein. 
 
 C. This Lien Agreement shall expire upon release of the Property by the City, 
except that Owner’s obligation to commence the Public Improvements within three (3) 
years from the date of recordation of this Lien Agreement (or such date as may have been 
extended in accordance with the Subdivision Code), as described in Section I (F) above, 
shall not expire but shall remain in full force and effect until satisfactory completion of the 
Public Improvements in full compliance with the Subdivision Improvement Agreement. 
 
 D.  Notwithstanding any provisions of the Subdivision Code to the contrary, so long 
as this Lien Agreement is utilized for security as described herein, the City is not obligated 
to accept offers of dedication for street or drainage purposes on the property. 
 
V. Events of Default 
 
Upon the occurrence of any one of the following events, Owner shall be deemed in default 
hereunder: 
 
 A. Failure by Owner to deposit fees for inspections, tests and other specified 
purposes or to substitute other forms of security satisfactory to City within the time allotted 
and as prescribed by this Lien Agreement.  
 
 B. Commencement of any work on the Public Improvements or Subdivision 
Monuments by Owner, its agents or employees, prior to substitution of acceptable 
security with the City in place of this Lien Agreement except as specifically authorized by 
City to correct or prevent threats to public health, safety or general welfare. 
 
 C. Failure by Owner to substitute acceptable security for this Lien Agreement and 
commence construction of the Public Improvements described in the Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement within the time allotted and as prescribed by this Lien 
Agreement. 
 
 D. Failure by Owner to pay Fees described in Section I (A) (2), above, at the time 
required herein. 
 
 E. Filing of any proceedings or action by or against Owner to declare Owner 
bankrupt or to appoint a receiver or trustee for Owner or to make an assignment for the 
benefit of creditors or to do anything else of a similar nature or purpose under any state 
or federal bankruptcy or insolvency laws, if such proceedings or actions are not 
discharged within (60) days. 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 
 F. Levy of any attachment or writ of execution against Owner and the Property 
whereby the Property is taken or occupied or attempted to be taken or occupied by 
someone other than Owner and such attachment or execution is not released within 60 
days. 
 
 G. Sale of any lot shown on the Final Map prior to release of the lien created by 
this Lien Agreement, except as provided in subparagraph IV (B). 
 
 H. Request by Owner of issuance by the Department of Real Estate of the Final 
Subdivision Public Report for the Property. 
 
 I. Breach by owner of any other term or condition of this Lien Agreement or the 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement or Owner’s failure to fully and faithfully discharge 
its obligations hereunder within the time specified herein. 
 
All References to Owner in this section shall be deemed to include Owner’s successors, 
assignees, and transferees. 
 
VI. City’s Remedies 
 
Upon the occurrence of any of the events described in Section V, above, City may declare 
a breach of this Lien Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to Owner, and 
may, at City’s option, exercise any one or more of the following remedies: 
 
 A. Pursue any or all if the remedies provided in the Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement; 
 
 B. Enforce this lien by appropriate action in court or as provided by law and in the 
event of enforcement is by action in court, the Owner agrees that the amount of said lien 
shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees which shall be taxed as a cost in any suit for such 
enforcement; 
 


C. Estimate the cost of the work required to complete the Public Improvements 
and/or the installation of Subdivision Monuments, and all fees, and foreclose said lien in 
said amount; 
 
 D. Initiate proceedings for reversion of the real property within the land division to 
acreage, at the expense of the Owner, in accordance with the provisions of the 
Subdivision Map Act; 
 
 E. Pursue any other remedy, legal or equitable, for the foreclosure of a lien. Owner, 
its heirs and assigns, shall pay reasonable attorneys’ fees to be taxed as cost in said 
proceedings. 
 
VII. General Provisions 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


 
 A. Recordation. This Lien Agreement shall be recorded by City with the County 
Recorder immediately following execution of this Lien Agreement indexed by (1) all 
parties hereto, and (2) all parties having any record title interest in the subject real 
property, pursuant to Government Code Section 66436, acknowledge subordination of 
their interest of this Lien Agreement. 
 
 B. Contingency. This Lien Agreement shall not take effect until it has been 
approved by the City Council of the City of Wildomar. 
 
 C. Entire Agreement. This Lien Agreement together with all exhibits and other 
agreements expressly referred to herein, constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties with respect to the subject manner contained herein. All prior or contemporaneous 
agreements, understandings, representations, warranties, and statements, oral or written 
are superseded. 
 
 D. Further Assurances. The parties agree to perform such further acts and to 
execute and deliver such additional documents and instruments as may be reasonably 
required in order to carry out the provisions of this Lien Agreement and the intentions of 
the parties. 
 
 E. Governing Law. This Lien Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, construed, 
and enforced in accordance with laws of the State of California. 
 
 F. Headings. The captions and section headings used in this Lien Agreement are 
inserted for convenience of reference only and are not intended to define, limit or effect 
construction or interpretation of any term or provision hereof. 
 
 G. Modification, Waiver. No modification, waiver, amendment or discharge of this 
Lien Agreement shall be valid unless the same is in writing and signed by all parties. 
 
 H. No Other Inducement. The making, execution and delivery of this Lien 
Agreement by the parties hereto have been induced by no representations, statements, 
warranties, or agreements other than those expressed herein. 
 
 I. Severability. If any term, provision, covenant, or condition of this Lien Agreement 
is held to be invalid, void or otherwise unenforceable, to any extent, by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Lien Agreement shall not be effected thereby, 
and each term, provision, covenant, or condition of this Lien Agreement shall be valid and 
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR,  
a Municipal Corporation  
of the State of California 


By: 
GARY NORDQUIST 


ATTEST: 


Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


STRATA BAXTER, LLC. 
4370 La Jolla Village Drive, Suite 960 
San Diego, CA 92122 


By: 
  DAVID MICHAN 
  Managing Member 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


EXHIBIT “A” 
 


PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 


PARCEL MAP NO. 37941 
 
 
 


LEGAL  DESCRIPTION FOR APN # 367-180-057 
 


PARCEL B OF LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT NO. 2020-003, IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECORDED AUGUST 28, 2020 AS 
INSTRUMENT NO. 2020-0402640 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS AT THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID RIVERSIDE COUNTY CALIFORNIA. 


 







RIV #4841-1880-8594 v1  


EXHIBIT “B” 
 


PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS & COSTS 







PARCEL MAP OR TRACT MAP NO. DATE:


IP:


IMPROVEMENTS


Street/Drainage $ 1,337,000.00 $ $


*Flood Control $ 0.00 $ $


Dom Wtr EMWD $ 53,500.00 $ $


Rec Wtr EMWD $ 0.00 $ $


Sewer EMWD $ 293,500.00 $ $


Total 1,684,000.00 $ $


Warranty Retention (10%) $


Construction items and their quantities, as shown on the attached sheets, are accurate for the improvements 


required to construct the above project and the mathmatical extensions, using City's unit 


costs, are accurate for determining bonding costs 


Above amounts do G do not G include additional 20% for recordation prior to having signed plans


 (Ordinance460, Section 10.3E).


Signature Date 


John D. Tanner 60132


RCE# Exp. Date 


Civil Engineer's Stamp 


*Flood Control Construction Cost Estimate to be provided by Flood Control District.  Provide a copy of 


Flood Control District letter stating cost estmate. 


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.  Unit cost are to be as provided on 


"City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet."


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00.  Material and Labor Bond Amounts are 50%


of Performance Bond Amountss.  **100% for Flood Control items.


3. For Construction items not covered by "the City of Wildomar Improvement Requirement Worksheet", 


Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction cost and use that cost.  If City of Wildomar  


Unit Costs are determined to be too low, in the opinion of the design engineer, the higher costs as


provided by the Design Engineer should be used. 


1,684,000.00 842,000.00


168,400.00


DESIGN ENGINEER'S CALCULATION OF IMPROVEMENT BONDING COSTS 


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


53,500.00 26,750.00


0.00 0.00


293,500.00 146,750.00


Construction Costs) Construction Costs)


1,337,000.00 668,500.00


0.00 0.00


FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE MATERIAL & LABOR 


SECURITY SECURITY 


(100% of Estimated (**50% of Estimated 


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


CONSTRUCTION COST WORKSHEET


BAXTER VILLAGE


PM 37941 12/7/2020







CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


STREET AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 


 


UNIT


ROADWAY SECTION 3 Area = S.F.


LS $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 300,000.00 $ 300,000.00


Excavation


2. Projects without a Grading Plan:  Cut (c) = C.Y.


Fill (f) = C.Y.


C.Y. $ 0.40 $ 0.00


C.Y. $ 1.10 $ 0.00


C.Y. $ 2.80 $ 0.00


TON $ 90.00 $ 246,512.61


Thickness in Feet (0.33' min.) =


C.Y. $ 50.00 $ 106,739.81


Thickness in Feet  =


Ton $ 600.00 $ 2,561.76


L.F. $ 1.00 $ 900.00


S.F. $ 0.50 $ 0.00


S.Y. $ 0.60 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 0.90 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 14.00 $ 16,800.00


L.F. $ 16.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 8.00 $ 11,000.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


S.F. $ 6.00 $ 43,200.00


S.F. $ 8.00 $ 4,800.00


S.F. $ 6.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 4,500.00


EA. $ 2,500.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 100.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 10.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 15.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 12.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 5,000.00 $ 40,000.00


EA. $ 150.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 1,200.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


Adjust MH to Grade ( if no sewer plan )


Relocate FH


Relocate Power Pole 


Street Lights (including conduit) 8                               


Adjust Water Valve to Grade ( if no water plan )


Chain Link Fence ( 6' )


Relocate Fence


Pipe Gate


Barricades


Metal Beam Guard RailingUtility Trench, one side (Edison, Telephone, Cable) 


(total length of Streets)


P.C.C. Dip Section Std. 307


ADA Access Ramp (w/ new construction) 3                               


ADA Access Ramp (in existing improvements)


P.C.C. Cross Gutter and Spandrels


P.C.C. Sidewalk 7,200                        


P.C.C. Driveway Approach 600                           


Type "D" Curb


A.C. Dike (6")(incl. material & labor) 1,375                        


A.C. Dike (8")(incl. material & labor)


Curb and Gutter (Type A-8)


Type "C" Curb


Type "D-1" Curb


AC overlay (min. 0.10')


Curb and Gutter (Type A-6) 1,200                        


Grinding A.C. , in place


0.5


Asphalt Emulsion (Fog Seal/Paint Binder)


 (1 ton = 240 gals)  


4.3                            


Sawcut Exist. A.C. Pavement 900                           


Cold Plane A.C. Pavement


(c.) Import and Fill -                           


Asphalt Concrete (144 lbs/cu.ft) 2,739                        


0.33


Agg Base Class II 2,135                        


(a.) Excavate and Fill -                           


(b.) Excavate and Export -                           


C.Y. $ 25.00 $ 0.00    Area x 0.50' (hinge point to hinge point)


                    115,279 


1. Projects with Grading Plan for Roadway


WQMP Basin (NE corner Baxtter Rd & Loop Rd)


Traffic Signal 1.00


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 


COST







L.F. $ 154.00 $ 40,040.00


L.F. $ 176.00 $ 21,120.00


L.F. $ 203.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 234.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 204.00 $ 128,520.00


L.F. $ 235.00 $ 77,550.00


$ $ 0.00


LS $ 8,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 40,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 30,000.00 $ 0.00


LS $ 15,000.00 $ 0.00


A. $ 1,044,244.18


B. Administrative Contingency (20% x A) $ 208,848.84


C. CM - Inspection - LC (8%) $ 83,539.53


D Streets/Drainage Total (A + B) $ 1,336,632.56


 Subtotal 


Design/submittals/review


Mobilization


Traffic Control


Survey 


42" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 630


48" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 330


24" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 120


30" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical


36" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical


18" R.C.P. round, arch or elliptical 260


DRAINAGE







 


UNIT


L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 30.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 55.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 45.00 $ 36,900.00


$ $ 0.00


A. $ 36,900.00


B. $ 7,380.00


C. $ 44,280.00


D. $ 8,856.00


E. $ 53,136.00


20% x C


Water Total (C + D)


BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR 


TO HAVING SIGNED PLANS


Administrative Contingency (20% x A)


Water Total (A + B)


Subtotal


 2" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 (BLDG SERVICE)


 6" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18


 8" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18


10" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 (FIRE WATER)


12" Waterline PVC C-900 DR-18 820


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


DOMESTIC WATER IMPROVEMENTS


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 


COST







 


UNIT


L.F. $ 25.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 30.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 46.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 54.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 90.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 55.00 $ 79,750.00


L.F. $ 62.00 $ 72,106.00


L.F. $ 72.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 81.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 162.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 183.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 195.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 215.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 236.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 4,500.00 $ 45,000.00


EA. $ 5,500.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 3,300.00 $ 3,300.00


EA. $ 730.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 200.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 2,100.00 $ 2,100.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00


EA. $ 1,500.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 2,000.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 400.00 $ 0.00


EA. $ 500.00 $ 0.00


L.F. $ 35.00 $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


$ $ 0.00


A. $ 203,756.00


B. $ 40,751.20


C. $ 244,507.20


D. $ 48,901.44


E. $ 293,408.64


20% x C


Sewer Total (C + D)


Subtotal


Administrative Contingency (20% x A)


Sewer Total (A + B)BOND AMOUNT FOR RECORDATION PRIOR 


TO HAVING SIGNED PLAND ( ORD.460, 


Concrete Encasement 


Join Existing 12" Pipe


Chimney


Adjust M.H. to grade


Tie to Existing Manhole 1


Rechannel Existing Manhole 1


Join Existing 8" Pipe


Shallow Manhole (5' or less) 1


Clean out 


Clean out Lateral


30" VCP


Standard Manhole 48" 10


Standard Manhole 60"


21" VCP


24" VCP


27" VCP


12" VCP 0


15" VCP


18" VCP


15" PVC SDR 35 Green


8" VCP 1450


10" VCP 1163


8" PVC SDR 35 Green


10" PVC SDR 35 Green


12" PVC SDR 35 Green


COST


4" PVC SDR 35 (Use it for Residential Laterals)


6" PVC SDR 35 Green


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENT WORKSHEET


SANITARY SEWER  IMPROVEMENTS


 


ITEM UNIT AMOUNT 







  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE:


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 1,336,632.00


$ 44,280.00


$ 244,507.00


$ 13366.32


$ 2887.87


$ 16254.19


$ 325.08


$ 16579.27


shown below, then following deposit schedule will apply, otherwise pay the full deposit.


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


PM37941


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


D. Surcharge Fee (2% x C)


II. Water (Line C from Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT CALCULATION


A. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              NOTE: Use 1% for TR, 6% 


for PM and 6.5% for PP, CU, PU, MS and VL


B. Water and Sewer (1% x II and III.) (Do not include for Tract Maps)


C. Total Plan Check Deposit (A + B)


SURCHARGE FEE CALCULATION


For PP/CU/PU/MS/VL - minimum $2,000.00


COMMENTS


E. Total Plan Check Deposit and Surcharge Fee


MINIMUM PLAN CHECK DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS


Note: If Plan Check Deposit calculated in "Line E" is less than the minimum as 


For TR (Schedule. A, B, C, D) and PM (Schedule. E, F, G) - minimum $2,000


For PM (Schedule H, I) - minimum $2,000.00







  


PARCEL MAP OR TRACT NO. SCH: DATE:


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL NO.


$ 83,539.00


$ 44,280.00


$ 0.00


$ 224,507.00


$


$ 2,506.17


Total


INSPECTION DEPOSIT CALCULATION


Street/DrainageA. Street/Drainage (      % x I.)                                                                              
NOTE: Use 3% for Inspection


IV. Sewer (Line C from Sewer Improvement Calculations)


CITY OF WILDOMAR ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT


COST ESTIMATE CALCULATION SHEET


 


IMPROVEMENT COSTS (Including Contingencies)


I. Streets/Drainage (Line C from Street Improvement Calculations)


II. Domestic Water (Line C from Domestic Water Improvement Calculations)


III. Recycled Water (Line C from Recycled Water Improvement Calculations)







City of Wildomar


Grading Bond Estimate Worksheet


PM 37941


Parcel Map/Tract Map No: Public Improvements - Wildomar Trail Date: 12/7/2020


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL No: City Project No:


Quantity Unit Unit Cost Amount


1             LS 15,000.00$     15,000.00$    


1             LS 5,000.00$       5,000.00$      


1             EA 5,000.00$       5,000.00$      


69,630    CY 0.40$              27,852.00$    


43,000    CY 10.00$            430,000.00$  


1             LS 35,000.00$     35,000.00$    


1             EA 3,000.00$       3,000.00$      


1             EA 500.00$          500.00$         


LF -$               


2             EA 500.00$          1,000.00$      


52,235.20$    


574,500.00$  


12/7/2020


Signature Date


John D Tanner III


Name (type or printed)


60,132    


RCE No. Expiration Date


Civil Engineer's Stamp


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00. 


3. For Construction items not covered by this worksheet, Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of construction


cost and use that cost. 


Mobilization


Item


Erosion Control


Rough Grading


Demolition and Removal


Contractor Mobilization


Import Material


Mass Excavation


Clearing and Grubbing


Temporary Facilities and Utilities


Place Gravel Bags to Protect Catch Basin


Place Gravel Bags to Prevent Scour


Install Stabilized Construction Entrance


Silt Fence


Place Gravel Bags 2 Course High


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


Total


10% Contingency


Insert Project Name - Insert Project No.







City of Wildomar


Monument Security Estimate Worksheet


Parcel Map/Tract Map No: PM 37941 Date:
PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL No: City Project No:
Map Schedule: E


 Cost per Day


10-hour Day 


 Cost per 


Monument 
 $2,500.00* $300 


$342 


$400 


$478 


 Cost per Day


10-hour Day 


 Cost per 


Monument 
 $2,500.00* $600 


$685 


$800 


$960 


Notes:


28
 
$300 


Subtotal 1 (Total Monuments x Cost per Monument):  $         8,400.00 


Engineer's/Surveryor's Estimate for Preparing Centerline Tie-Sheets:  $                     -   


Subtotal 2 (Subtotal 1 + Centerline Tie-Sheet Estimate):  $         8,400.00 


Total Security Amount (Subtotal 2 x 120%):  $        10,000.00 


Signature Date


John Duquette, L.S.
Name (type or printed)


7566 12/31/2021
RCE/PLS No. Expiration Date


Engineer's/Surveyor's Stamp


Drive Time 


Hours to Map
Net Work Time Hours per Day


0.5 9


Cost Per Monument:


Total Monuments to Be Bonded:


1


1.5


2


*Based on a crew of one Registered Principal Engineering Technician and one Senior Engineering 


Technician


 (total rounded to the nearest $500) 


Net Work Time Hours per Day


7


9


Schedule "A" through "H" Maps
Drive Time 


Hours to Map
0.5
1 8


1.5


2 6


6


7


8


Schedule "I" Maps


Insert Project Name - Insert Project No.







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.9 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Daniel A. York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED: Emily Stadnik, Land Development Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Project #15-0036, Rancon Medical & Education Center, LLC - Parcel 


Maps 36492-1, 36492-2 and 36492-F Map Approval, Subdivision 
Improvement Agreements, Lien Agreements 


 
STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, APPROVING PARCEL MAPS 36492-1, 36492-2 and 36492-F AND 
AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT 


AND LIEN AGREEMENTS  
 
BACKGROUND: 


o The Original Approval Date by the Planning Commission was October 1, 2014. 
o The first Extension of Time was approved on August 7, 2017 by the Planning 


Commission. 
o The Second Extension of Time was approved on November 7, 2018 by the 


Planning Commission. 
o The New Expiration Date is October 1, 2021. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
The Parcel Maps have been examined and checked for compliance with the Wildomar 
Municipal Code and the California Subdivision Map Act. The City Engineer has 
determined that the location and configuration of the lots created by this Parcel Maps 
substantially comply with the Tentative Maps as filed, amended and approved. 
 
All applicable Parcel Maps conditions of approval have not been satisfied and  have 
been referenced in Exhibit ‘D’ of each Subdivision Improvement Agreement.  The 
purpose of Exhibit D in the Subdivision Improvement Agreement is to list those 
conditions that are required prior to Map Recordation but cannot be met at the time of 
recordation. 
 







FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts to the City at this time. All costs related to this project are 
currently covered by Developer Deposits. When the project is constructed, the City will 
be responsible for the maintenance of the public improvements after acceptance by the 
City Council. As the Parcels develop, the Developer will be required to annex into the 
Community Facilities District (CFD) Services to offset some of the City’s maintenance 
costs. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Aerial Image of Parcel Maps 36492-1, 36492-2 and 36492-F Location 
Attachment B: Parcel Maps 36492-1, 36492-2 and 36492-F 
Attachment C: Subdivision Improvement and Lien Agreements 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING PARCEL MAPS 36492-1, 36492-2 and 36492-F AND 


AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION 
IMPROVEMENT AND LIEN AGREEMENTS 


 
WHEREAS, the Original Approval Date by the Planning Commission was 


October 1, 2014; The first Extension of Time was approved on August 7, 2017 by the 
Planning Commission; The Second Extension of Time was approved on November 7, 
2018 by the Planning Commission and the New Expiration Date is October 1, 2021 


 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the proposed Parcel Maps and finds them to be 


technically correct and that all applicable final map conditions of approval have not been 
satisfied and are identified in the Subdivision Improvement Agreements; and 


 
WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement for each Parcel Map 36492-


1, Parcel Map 36492-2 and Parcel Map 36492-F have been approved by the City 
Attorney; and 


 
WHEREAS, a Lien Agreement for each Parcel Map 36492-1, Parcel Map 36492-


2 and Parcel Map 36492-F have been approved by the City Attorney as a form of 
security for the construction of the required improvements for these maps; and  


 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that this Final Map is statutorily exempt 


from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Statutory Exemptions, Title 14 of 
the California Code of Regulations Section 15268, (b) (3) Ministerial Projects, approval 
of final subdivision maps. 


 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 


Wildomar City Council, in regular session assembled on April 14, 2021, the following: 
 


1. The location and configuration of the lots to be created by the Parcel Map 
substantially comply with the previously approved Tentative Map; and 


2. The Parcel Map is statutorily exempt from the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA), Statutory Exemptions, Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations 
Section 15268, (b) (3) Ministerial projects, approval of final subdivision maps; 
and 


3. The City Council of the City of Wildomar, pursuant to Government Code Section 
66458, hereby approves the Parcel Map, and: 


a. Directs the City Surveyor to sign the Parcel Maps; and 
b. Directs the City Engineer to sign the Parcel Maps; and 
c. Directs the City Clerk to sign the Parcel Maps; and 
d. Directs the City Manager to execute the Subdivision Improvement and 


Lien Agreements; and 







e. Directs the City Clerk to transmit the Parcel Maps and the Agreements to 
the County Recorder of the County of Riverside for filing; and 


f. Directs the City Clerk to transmit the Notice of Exemption to the County 
Clerk of the County of Riverside for filing. 


 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 14th day of April, 2021. 


 
 
              
 
       ______________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 


 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST:     
   
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________  
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales   
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 







ATTACHMENT A


Aerial Image of Parcel Map 36492 (map area, approximate, highlighted in yellow)



NinetteEva

Stamp







         


  


ATTACHMENT B







PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS    JANUARY, 2021



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 1 OF 4 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF PARCEL 5 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 9637, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK 58 OF MAPS, PAGES 1 THROUGH 5, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA LYING WITHIN FRACTIONAL SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER'S STATEMENT WE HEREBY STATE THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF THE LAND INCLUDED WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON; THAT WE ARE THE ONLY PERSONS WHOSE CONSENT IS NECESSARY TO PASS A CLEAR TITLE TO SAID LAND; THAT WE CONSENT TO THE MAKING AND RECORDING OF THIS SUBDIVISION MAP AS SHOWN WITHIN THE DISTINCTIVE BORDER LINE. 1. THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES: LOTS "A" THROUGH "E" INCLUSIVE FOR STREET AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES. AS A CONDITION OF DEDICATION OF LOT "E" (CLINTON KEITH ROAD), THE OWNER OF THE REMAINDER PARCEL ABUTTING THIS HIGHWAY AND DURING SUCH TIME WILL HAVE NO RIGHTS OF ACCESS EXCEPT THE GENERAL EASEMENT OF TRAVEL.  ANY CHANGE OF ALIGNMENT OR WIDTH THAT RESULTS IN THE VACATION THEREOF SHALL TERMINATE THIS CONDITION OF ACCESS RIGHTS AS TO THE PART VACATED. 2. THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES:  EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS EASEMENT WITHIN THE REMAINDER PARCEL, AS SHOWN HEREON.  THE DEDICATION IS FOR THE RIGHT OF INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR EMERGENCY VEHICLES WITHIN THE "EMERGENCY ACCESS EASEMENT". 3. THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES: 10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP, AS SHOWN HEREON.  THE DEDICATION IS FOR PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES. WE HEREBY RESERVE A BLANKET EASEMENT FOR RECIPROCAL ACCESS PURPOSES OVER ALL OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 5, INCLUSIVE, AND THE REMAINDER PARCEL. FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND PARCEL OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP. OWNER: RANCON MEDICAL AND EDUCATION CENTER, LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ___________________________________________________ BY: JEFF COMERCHERO                PRESIDENT 



AutoCAD SHX Text

RECORDER'S STATEMENT FILED THIS ____ DAY OF ___________, 20__,  AT _M. IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGES ________, AT THE REQUEST OF THE CITY  CLERK OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR. NO: ___________________ ___________________ FEE: ___________________ ___________________ PETER ALDANA, ASSESSOR - COUNTY CLERK - RECORDER BY: __________________________, DEPUTY SUBDIVISION GUARANTEE:  CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAX BOND CERTIFICATE I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT A BOND IN THE SUM OF $_____________ HAS BEEN EXECUTED AND FILED WITH THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA, CONDITIONED UPON THE PAYMENT OF ALL TAXES, STATE, COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, OR LOCAL, AND ALL SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES, WHICH AT THE TIME OF FILING OF THIS MAP WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER ARE A LIEN AGAINST SAID PROPERTY BUT NOT YET PAYABLE AND SAID BOND HAS BEEN DULY APPROVED BY SAID BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. DATE: ___________, 20__  CASH OR SURETY BOND                             MATT JENNINGS COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR BY: ____________________, DEPUTY 



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAX COLLECTOR'S CERTIFICATE I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ACCORDING TO THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE, AS OF THIS DATE, THERE ARE NO LIENS AGAINST THE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE WITHIN MAP FOR UNPAID STATE, COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, OR LOCAL TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES, EXCEPT TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES NOW A LIEN BUT NOT YET PAYABLE, WHICH ARE ESTIMATED TO BE $_____________. DATE: _____________, 20__ MATT JENNINGS COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR  BY: ____________________________, DEPUTY 



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT THIS MAP CONFORMS TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCES.  I HEREBY STATE THAT THIS MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND FOUND TO BE SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE TENTATIVE MAP OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492 AS FILED, AMENDED AND APPROVED BY THE  CITY OF WILDOMAR  ON 10/1/2014, AND AS AMENDED BY THE MINOR CHANGE APPROVED BY THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON DECEMBER 7, 2016, THE EXPIRATION DATE BEING 10/01/2021. DATED: ____________________, 20__ __________________________________ DANIEL A. YORK, CITY ENGINEER RCE 43212 



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT I HEREBY STATE THAT THE PARCEL MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND I AM SATISFIED THAT SAID MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT.  DATED: ____________________, 20__ __________________________________ DANIEL A, YORK, CITY SURVEYOR LS 7962     



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, BY IT'S CITY CLERK, HEREBY APPROVES THE PARCEL MAP PER CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION __________-__________ . 1. THE DEDICATION OF LOTS "A" THROUGH "E", INCLUSIVE, FOR PUBLIC ROAD AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES AND AS PART OF THE CITY MAINTAINED ROAD SYSTEM, SUBJECT TO IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY STANDARDS IS HEREBY ACCEPTED.   2. THE DEDICATION OF EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS EASEMENT WITHIN THE REMAINDER PARCEL IS HEREBY ACCEPTED. 3. THE DEDICATION OF THE 10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP IS HEREBY ACCEPTED. DATED: _________________, 20__     _____________________________________ JANET MORALES ACTING CITY CLERK CITY OF WILDOMAR        



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO. 43212



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO. 7962



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO. 5529



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION AND IS BASED UPON A FIELD SURVEY IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCE AT THE REQUEST OF RANCON MEDICAL AND EDUCATIONAL CENTER, LLC A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ON JANUARY 14, 2015. I HEREBY STATE THAT ALL MONUMENTS ARE OF THE CHARACTER AND OCCUPY THE POSITIONS INDICATED OR WILL BE SET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE MONUMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE MAP AND THAT SAID MONUMENTS ARE/WILL BE SET SUFFICIENT TO ENABLE THE SURVEY TO BE RETRACED.  I HEREBY STATE THAT THIS PARCEL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE CONDITIONALLY APPROVED TENTATIVE MAP.  DATE: ________________, 20__ : ________________, 20__ 20__ ___________________________ MATTHEW E. WEBB L.S. 5529 



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT STATE OF   ________________) COUNTY OF  ________________)  ON ______________________ BEFORE ME, ________________________________, A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________________________________ ___________________________________________________ WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(IES), AND THAT BY HIS SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S) OR THE ENTITY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT. I CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT. WITNESS MY HAND.                                        MY COMMISSION NO.: ______________ __________ _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________       MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  SIGNATURE          MY PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS __________ _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY.      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. PRINT NAME    



AutoCAD SHX Text

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDITY OF THE DOCUMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIGNATURE OMISSIONS NOTE PURSUANT TO SECTION 66436 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE SIGNATURES OF THE FOLLOWING OWNERS AND/OR OTHER INTERESTES HAVE BEEN OMITTED: NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES RECORDED JULY 22, 1982 AS INST. #125464, O.R. RIV. CO. EASEMENT FOR PLACEMENT OF DISSIPATER AND INGRESS, EGRESS TO INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, REPAIR OR REPLACE PORTION OF THE DISSIPATER RECORDED OCTOBER 9, 2002 AS INST. #2002-562594, O.R. RIV. CO. DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE OF "DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT" RECORDED JANUARY 23, 2004 AS INST. #2004-049328, O.R. RIV. CO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT STATE OF   ________________) COUNTY OF  ________________)  ON ______________________ BEFORE ME, ________________________________, A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________________________________ ___________________________________________________ WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(IES), AND THAT BY HIS SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S) OR THE ENTITY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT. I CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT. WITNESS MY HAND.                                        MY COMMISSION NO.: ______________ __________ _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________       MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  SIGNATURE          MY PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS __________ _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY.      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. PRINT NAME    



AutoCAD SHX Text

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDITY OF THE DOCUMENT.







PARCEL MAP 9637
PM 58/1-5
PARCEL 5


PARCEL 3 PARCEL 4


PARCEL 2


PARCEL 2


S1


NW 1/4 GOVT LOT 2


PM 29/48 MB 339/29-34


PARCEL MAP 9637
PM 58/1-5


PARCEL MAP 36673
PM 248/45-48


PARCEL MAP 9637
PM 58/1-5


RS 116/68


PM 66/32


S6


RS 131/32


SEC 6, T7S, R3W, SBM


PARCEL MAP 21911
PM 152/56-57


PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS     JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLINTON KEITH ROAD  (CATT ROAD)



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIELIPP ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEDICATED & ACCEPTED PER PM 36673 PMB 248/45-48



AutoCAD SHX Text

SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

6 



AutoCAD SHX Text

55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER INST. #2004-220865 REC. 2/9/2004, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

(VACATED ROAD DEDICATION)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLAND VALLEY DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

(PHILO WAY)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(KENNADINE DRIVE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/16 SECTION LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

T7S       R3W



AutoCAD SHX Text

T7S       R4W



AutoCAD SHX Text

(1238.43' PM 168/92-93)



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE PER MB 339/29-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

1325.50' (1325.71')



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER DOC. #2020-048483 REC. 10/13/2020, OR. R/W PER DOC. #2020-048482 REC. 10/13/2020, OR. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAINAGE EASEMENTS PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487479, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

37'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 2 OF 4 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF PARCEL 5 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 9637, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK 58 OF MAPS, PAGES 1 THROUGH 5, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA LYING WITHIN FRACTIONAL SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1" = 200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400



AutoCAD SHX Text

600



AutoCAD SHX Text

200



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

200



AutoCAD SHX Text

EASEMENT NOTES 1   RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045     SUMMARILY VACATING THE RIGHT TO ACCEPT THE DEDICATION OF BUNNY     TRAIL IN THE WILDOMAR AREA" RECORDED OCTOBER 4, 2007 AS INST.      #2007-0619517, O.R. RIV CO.     2   EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN     CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. RECORDED DECEMBER 13, 1978 AS INST.      #261602, O.R. RIV. CO. 3   NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS & EGRESS PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES RECORDED JULY 22, 1982 AS INST. #125464,     O.R. RIV. CO. 4   ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10,     1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. 5   EASEMENT FOR PLACEMENT OF DISSIPATER AND INGRESS, EGRESS TO     INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, REPAIR OR REPLACE PORTION OF THE     DISSIPATER RECORDED OCTOBER 9, 2002 AS INST. #2002-562594, O.R.     RIV. CO.   6  DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE     COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT"     RECORDED JANUARY 23, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-049328, O.R.     RIV. CO., AND GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY EASEMENT FOR     DRAINAGE PURPOSES RECORDED FEBRUARY 9, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO.     2004-091304, O.R. RIV. CO.   7   EMERGENCY ACCESS EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREON. 8.   A BLANKET EASEMENT OVER ALL OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 5, INCLUSIVE,      AND THE REMAINDER PARCEL RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE     BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND LOT     OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP FOR RECIPROCAL ACCESS PURPOSES. 9 PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED HEREON.PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED HEREON.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SURVEYOR'S NOTES 1.   THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE CALIFORNIA STATE PLANE     COORDINATE SYSTEM, CC83, ZONE 6, BASED LOCALLY ON CONTROL STATIONS     "Z311" & "ROSA" NAD 83(NSRS2007) AS SHOWN ON SHEET 4. ALL BEARINGS      SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE GRID. QUOTED BEARINGS AND DISTANCES FROM      REFERENCE MAPS OR DEEDS  ARE AS SHOWN ON THIS MAP PER THAT RECORD  ARE AS SHOWN ON THIS MAP PER THAT RECORD      REFERENCE.  ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE  GROUND DISTANCES UNLESS SPECIFIED  GROUND DISTANCES UNLESS SPECIFIED      OTHERWISE.  GRID DISTANCES MAYBE OBTAINED BY MULTIPLYING THE GROUND      DISTANCE BY A COMBINATION FACTOR OF 0.9999008428.  CALCULATIONS MADE      AT FOUND 1" I.P. MONUMENT LOCATED AT THE CENTERLINE  INTERSECTION OF  INTERSECTION OF      ELIZABETH LANE AND CLINTON KEITH ROAD WITH COORDINATES OF;        N: 2,162,530.179 E: 6,263,844.872, USING AN ELEVATION OF 1335.34, NAVD88. 2.          INDICATES FOUND MONUMENTS AS NOTED. 3.          INDICATES SET 1" IP TAGGED LS 5529, FLUSH, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, 4.  TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 29.46 ACRES. TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 29.46 ACRES. 5.   ( )    INDICATES RECORD DATA PER PM 58/1-5, C.O.C. 86-0129522,            C.O.C. 79-0187532 &  C.O.C. 79-0143474, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 6.         INDICATES RESTRICTED VEHICLE ACCESS. 7.   S.F.N.  INDICATES SEARCHED FOUND NOTHING. 8.   R&M  INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED.  INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED. 9.   CENTERLINE TIE SHEETS TO BE PREPARED AND PRESENTED TO THE CITY OF      WILDOMAR, WITHIN 90 DAYS OF APPROVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS. 10.  INDICATES EXISTING RECORDED EASEMENTS. INDICATES EXISTING RECORDED EASEMENTS. 11.  INDICATES EASEMENTS BEING OFFERED HEREON. INDICATES EASEMENTS BEING OFFERED HEREON. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTRAINT NOTE THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINT SHEET AFFECTING THIS MAP IS ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR IN ECS BOOK ____ PAGE ___. 







R
S


 1
1
6
/6


8NW 1/4 GOVT
LOT 2


SEC 6, T7S, R3W,
SBM


PARCEL 3
PM 58/1-5


PARCEL 4
PM 58/1-5


Δ


P
A


R
C


E
L
 2


P
M


B
 2


4
8
/4


5
-4


8


PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS    JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE (NORTH)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #193258 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #194011 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'C' ON SHEET 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N. ESTABLISHED BY INTERSECTION PER PM 58/1-5



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "C"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, W/PLASTIC PLUG REMAINS, FLUSH, PER PM 58/1-5, ACCEPTED AS C/L INTERSECTION. SET TAG LS 5529



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1',  PER PM 58/1-5,  S89°38'11"E 0.20'.HELD FOR LINE.  



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, ACCEPTED AS SE COR E 1/2 NW 1/4 GOVT LOT 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "B"



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Δ



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

°



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N. ESTABLISHED BY INTERSECTION PER PM 58/1-5



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEDICATED & ACCEPTED PER PM 36673 PMB 248/45-48



AutoCAD SHX Text

N0°42'52"E(R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N40°27'34"E(R)



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

318.49'



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPEN SPACE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

298.13'



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.99 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.67 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 5



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.67 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

198.22'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.71 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.59 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.17 AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.79 AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.19 AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "D"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "E"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "B"



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.10 AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'A' ON SHEET 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

REMAINDER  PARCEL 



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.26 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.32 AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

net acreage



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, TAG LS 7226, FLUSH, PER MB 301/89-97, MB 302/8-16, & MB 339/29-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, FLUSH, PER PM 58/1-5; ACCEPTED AS N 1/4 COR OF SEC 6, SET TAG LS 5529



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'B' ON SHEET 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, FLUSH,  PER PM 58/1-5, S80°52'13"W 0.70' NOTACCEPTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' /W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487480, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' R/W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487481, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N88°19'54"E 1356.37')



AutoCAD SHX Text

30.84'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/16TH SECTION LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TURN AROUND EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487483  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L



AutoCAD SHX Text

SMITH WAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487482  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

39.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAINAGE EASEMENTS PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487479, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 3 OF 4 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF PARCEL 5 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 9637, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK 58 OF MAPS, PAGES 1 THROUGH 5, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA LYING WITHIN FRACTIONAL SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1" = 100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200



AutoCAD SHX Text

300



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE SHEET 2 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, 



AutoCAD SHX Text

EASEMENT NOTES AND SURVEYOR'S NOTES



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 2.0' PER PM 58/1-5







PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS    JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH      LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, TAG LS 7226, FLUSH, PER MB 301/89-97, MB 302/8-16, & MB 339/29-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

REMAINDER PARCEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "E"



AutoCAD SHX Text

63.51'



AutoCAD SHX Text

90.36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

76'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

55.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°37'59"W 1355.57' (1355.75')



AutoCAD SHX Text

55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

21'



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, DN. 0.4' PER PM 58/1-5; S44°36'24"E0.14' OF ANGLE POINT 



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, DN. 0.9' PER PM 58/1-5; S44°36'24"E0.25'  OF ANGLE POINT 



AutoCAD SHX Text

63.08'



AutoCAD SHX Text

662.80' (662.88')



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89%%D37'59"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

STREET CENTERLINE PER MB 301/89-97



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT     "D"



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

(55.14')



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/16TH SECTION LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N. ESTABLISHED BY INTERSECTION PER PM 58/1-5



AutoCAD SHX Text

REMAINDER



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "B"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "D"



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

3'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N36°07'09"E 125.79'



AutoCAD SHX Text

(44.76')



AutoCAD SHX Text

(44.76')



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "B"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.  ESTABLISHED BY INTERSECTION PER PM 58/1-5. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

39.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

281.69'



AutoCAD SHX Text

477.63'



AutoCAD SHX Text

9'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 4 OF 4 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF PARCEL 5 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 9637, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK 58 OF MAPS, PAGES 1 THROUGH 5, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA LYING WITHIN FRACTIONAL SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

FREEWAY I-15



AutoCAD SHX Text

SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

VICINITY MAP  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY OF  WILDOMAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY OF  MURRIETA



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY LIMIT



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLAND VALLEY   ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIELIPP ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

JANA  LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH  LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

KEVIN ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

ESTATE PARK COURT



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'A'  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'B'  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'C'  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONVERGENCE ANGLE AT -00°32'14.84"



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRID NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRUE NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASIS OF BEARINGS DETAIL   NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,161,871.054



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,263,173.984



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,161,875.258



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,262,511.283



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,159,750.60



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,294,551.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,162,530.179 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,263,844.872



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTROL



AutoCAD SHX Text

N31°35'50"E  36,413.81' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N86°08'02"W  31,448.93' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N20°21'46"W  35,344.78' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,128,735.011 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,275,472.600



AutoCAD SHX Text

N84°49'39"W  30832.03' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°38'11"W662.72' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N63°50'40"E  1,485.73' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'D' ABOVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°38'11"W662.72' GRID 662.74' GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°38'11"W662.94' GROUND 662.92' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'D'  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

CL INT. CLINTON KEITH & ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

   FOUND DISK STAMPED Z311 SET AT TOP OF CONCRETE MONUMENT, FLUSH



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOUND DISK STAMPED ROSA 1972 SET AT TOP OF CONCRETE MONUMENT, FLUSH



AutoCAD SHX Text

36,415.10' GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

CL INT. CLINTON KEITH & ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASIS OF BEARINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

662.74' GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,161,875.258



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,262,511.283



AutoCAD SHX Text

N63°50'40"E  1,485.73' GRID







PARCEL MAP 9637
PM 58/1-5
PARCEL 5


PARCEL 3 PARCEL 4


PARCEL 2


PARCEL 2


S1


NW 1/4 GOVT LOT 2


PM 29/48 MB 339/29-34


PARCEL MAP 9637
PM 58/1-5


PARCEL MAP 36673
PM 248/45-48


PARCEL MAP 9637
PM 58/1-5


RS 116/68


PM 66/32


S6


RS 131/32


SEC 6, T7S, R3W, SBM


PARCEL MAP 21911
PM 152/56-57


PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS     JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLINTON KEITH ROAD  (CATT ROAD)



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIELIPP ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEDICATED & ACCEPTED PER PM 36673 PMB 248/45-48



AutoCAD SHX Text

SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

6 



AutoCAD SHX Text

55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER INST. #2004-220865 REC. 2/9/2004, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

(VACATED ROAD DEDICATION)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLAND VALLEY DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

(PHILO WAY)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(KENNADINE DRIVE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/16 SECTION LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

T7S       R3W



AutoCAD SHX Text

T7S       R4W



AutoCAD SHX Text

(1238.43' PM 168/92-93)



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE PER MB 339/29-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

1325.50' (1325.71')



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER DOC. #2020-048483 REC. 10/13/2020, OR. R/W PER DOC. #2020-048482 REC. 10/13/2020, OR. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAINAGE EASEMENTS PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487479, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

37'



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF PARCEL 5 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 9637, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK 58 OF MAPS, PAGES 1 THROUGH 5, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA LYING WITHIN FRACTIONAL SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1" = 200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400



AutoCAD SHX Text

600



AutoCAD SHX Text

200



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

200



AutoCAD SHX Text

EASEMENT NOTES 1   RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045     SUMMARILY VACATING THE RIGHT TO ACCEPT THE DEDICATION OF BUNNY     TRAIL IN THE WILDOMAR AREA" RECORDED OCTOBER 4, 2007 AS INST.      #2007-0619517, O.R. RIV CO.     2   EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN     CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. RECORDED DECEMBER 13, 1978 AS INST.      #261602, O.R. RIV. CO. 3   NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS & EGRESS PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES RECORDED JULY 22, 1982 AS INST. #125464,     O.R. RIV. CO. 4   ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10,     1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. 5   EASEMENT FOR PLACEMENT OF DISSIPATER AND INGRESS, EGRESS TO     INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, REPAIR OR REPLACE PORTION OF THE     DISSIPATER RECORDED OCTOBER 9, 2002 AS INST. #2002-562594, O.R.     RIV. CO.   6  DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE     COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT"     RECORDED JANUARY 23, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-049328, O.R.     RIV. CO., AND GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY EASEMENT FOR     DRAINAGE PURPOSES RECORDED FEBRUARY 9, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO.     2004-091304, O.R. RIV. CO.   7   EMERGENCY ACCESS EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREON. 8.   A BLANKET EASEMENT OVER ALL OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 5, INCLUSIVE,      AND REMAINDER PARCEL RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE     BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND LOT     OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP FOR RECIPROCAL ACCESS PURPOSES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 1 OF 1 SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOOK ____ PAGE ___



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINT SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINT NOTE: THE REQUIRED WATER SYSTEM, INCLUDING FIRE HYDRANTS, SHALL  BE INSTALLED AND ACCEPTED BY THE APPROPRIATE WATER AGENCY PRIOR TO ANY COMBUSTIBLE BUILDING MATERIAL PLACED ON AN INDIVIDUAL LOT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SURVEYOR'S NOTES 1.   THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE CALIFORNIA STATE PLANE     COORDINATE SYSTEM, CC83, ZONE 6, BASED LOCALLY ON CONTROL STATIONS     "Z311" & "ROSA" NAD 83(NSRS2007) AS SHOWN ON SHEET 4. ALL BEARINGS      SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE GRID. QUOTED BEARINGS AND DISTANCES FROM      REFERENCE MAPS OR DEEDS  ARE AS SHOWN ON THIS MAP PER THAT RECORD  ARE AS SHOWN ON THIS MAP PER THAT RECORD      REFERENCE.  ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE  GROUND DISTANCES UNLESS SPECIFIED  GROUND DISTANCES UNLESS SPECIFIED      OTHERWISE.  GRID DISTANCES MAYBE OBTAINED BY MULTIPLYING THE GROUND      DISTANCE BY A COMBINATION FACTOR OF 0.9999008428.  CALCULATIONS MADE      AT FOUND 1" I.P. MONUMENT LOCATED AT THE CENTERLINE  INTERSECTION OF  INTERSECTION OF      ELIZABETH LANE AND CLINTON KEITH ROAD WITH COORDINATES OF;        N: 2,162,530.179 E: 6,263,844.872, USING AN ELEVATION OF 1335.34, NAVD88. 2.          INDICATES FOUND MONUMENTS AS NOTED. 3.          INDICATES SET 1" IP TAGGED LS 5529, FLUSH, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, 4.  TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 29.46 ACRES. TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 29.46 ACRES. 5.   ( )    INDICATES RECORD DATA PER PM 58/1-5, C.O.C. 86-0129522,            C.O.C. 79-0187532 &  C.O.C. 79-0143474, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 6.         INDICATES RESTRICTED VEHICLE ACCESS. 7.   S.F.N.  INDICATES SEARCHED FOUND NOTHING. 8.   R&M    INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED.    INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED. 9.   CENTERLINE TIE SHEETS TO BE PREPARED AND PRESENTED TO THE CITY OF      WILDOMAR, CENTERLINE TIE SHEETS TO BE FILED AS CORNER RECORDS WITH THE      RIVERSIDE COUNTY SURVEYOR WITHIN 90 DAYS OF APPROVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS. 10.  INDICATES EXISTING RECORDED EASEMENTS. INDICATES EXISTING RECORDED EASEMENTS. 11.  INDICATES EASEMENTS BEING OFFERED HEREON. INDICATES EASEMENTS BEING OFFERED HEREON. 







PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS    JANUARY, 2021



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 1 OF 3 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE REMAINDER PARCEL OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGES __ THROUGH __, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LYING WITHIN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION AND IS BASED UPON A FIELD SURVEY IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCE AT THE REQUEST OF RANCON MEDICAL AND EDUCATIONAL CENTER, LLC A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ON JANUARY 14, 2015. I HEREBY STATE THAT ALL MONUMENTS ARE OF THE CHARACTER AND OCCUPY THE POSITIONS INDICATED OR WILL BE SET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE MONUMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE MAP AND THAT SAID MONUMENTS ARE/WILL BE SET SUFFICIENT TO ENABLE THE SURVEY TO BE RETRACED.  I HEREBY STATE THAT THIS PARCEL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE CONDITIONALLY APPROVED TENTATIVE MAP.  DATE: ________________, 20__ : ________________, 20__ 20__ ___________________________ MATTHEW E. WEBB L.S. 5529 



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT STATE OF   ________________) COUNTY OF  ________________)  ON ______________________ BEFORE ME, ________________________________, A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________________________________ ___________________________________________________ WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(IES), AND THAT BY HIS SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S) OR THE ENTITY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT. I CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT. WITNESS MY HAND.                                        MY COMMISSION NO.: ______________ __________ _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________       MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  SIGNATURE      MY PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS __________ _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY.      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. PRINT NAME    



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER'S STATEMENT WE HEREBY STATE THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF THE LAND INCLUDED WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON; THAT WE ARE THE ONLY PERSONS WHOSE CONSENT IS NECESSARY TO PASS A CLEAR TITLE TO SAID LAND; THAT WE CONSENT TO THE MAKING AND RECORDING OF THIS SUBDIVISION MAP AS SHOWN WITHIN THE DISTINCTIVE BORDER LINE.  THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES:  1. ABUTTER'S RIGHTS OF ACCESS ALONG CLINTON KEITH ROAD, EXCEPTING THE 64' ACCESS OPENING AS SHOWN HEREON. THE OWNER OF PARCEL 1 ABUTTING THIS HIGHWAY AND DURING SUCH TIME WILL HAVE NO RIGHTS OF ACCESS EXCEPT THE GENERAL EASEMENT OF TRAVEL.  ANY CHANGE OF ALIGNMENT OR WIDTH THAT RESULTS IN THE VACATION THEREOF SHALL TERMINATE THIS DEDICATION AS TO THE PART VACATED. 2. THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IS DEDICATED AS AN EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES: STORM DRAIN EASEMENT LYING WITHIN PARCEL 1 AS SHOWN HEREON. THE DEDICATION IS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF FLOOD CONTROL FACILITIES.  WE HEREBY RESERVE A BLANKET EASEMENT OVER ALL OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, AND REMAINDER PARCEL RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND LOT OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP FOR RECIPROCAL ACCESS PURPOSES. OWNER: RANCON MEDICAL AND EDUCATION CENTER, LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ___________________________________________________ BY: JEFF COMERCHERO                PRESIDENT 



AutoCAD SHX Text

RECORDER'S STATEMENT FILED THIS ____ DAY OF ___________, 20__,  AT _M. IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGES ________, AT THE REQUEST OF THE CITY  CLERK OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR. NO: ___________________ ___________________ FEE: ___________________ ___________________ PETER ALDANA, ASSESSOR - COUNTY CLERK - RECORDER BY: __________________________, DEPUTY SUBDIVISION GUARANTEE:  CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAX BOND CERTIFICATE I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT A BOND IN THE SUM OF $_____________ HAS BEEN EXECUTED AND FILED WITH THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA, CONDITIONED UPON THE PAYMENT OF ALL TAXES, STATE, COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, OR LOCAL, AND ALL SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES, WHICH AT THE TIME OF FILING OF THIS MAP WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER ARE A LIEN AGAINST SAID PROPERTY BUT NOT YET PAYABLE AND SAID BOND HAS BEEN DULY APPROVED BY SAID BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. DATE: ___________, 20__  CASH OR SURETY BOND                             MATT JENNINGS  COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR BY: ____________________, DEPUTY 



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAX COLLECTOR'S CERTIFICATE I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ACCORDING TO THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE, AS OF THIS DATE, THERE ARE NO LIENS AGAINST THE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE WITHIN MAP FOR UNPAID STATE, COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, OR LOCAL TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES, EXCEPT TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES NOW A LIEN BUT NOT YET PAYABLE, WHICH ARE ESTIMATED TO BE $_____________. DATE: _____________, 20__ MATT JENNINGS COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR  BY: ____________________________, DEPUTY 



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT I HEREBY STATE THAT THE PARCEL MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND I AM SATISFIED THAT SAID MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT.  DATED: ____________________, 20__ __________________________________ DANIEL A, YORK, CITY SURVEYOR LS 7962     



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, BY IT'S CITY CLERK, HEREBY APPROVES THE PARCEL MAP PER CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION __________-__________ . 1. ABUTTER'S RIGHTS OF ACCESS ALONG CLINTON KEITH ROAD, EXCEPTING THE 64' ACCESS OPENING AS SHOWN HEREON IS HEREBY ACCEPTED. 2. THE OFFER OF DEDICATION MADE HEREON OF THE STORM DRAIN EASEMENT IS HEREBY NOT ACCEPTED. DATED: _________________, 20__     _____________________________________ JANET MORALES ACTING CITY CLERK CITY OF WILDOMAR         



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO. 43212



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO. 7962



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO. 5529



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDITY OF THE DOCUMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT THIS MAP CONFORMS TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCES.  I HEREBY STATE THAT THIS MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND FOUND TO BE SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE TENTATIVE MAP OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492 AS FILED, AMENDED AND APPROVED BY THE  CITY OF WILDOMAR  ON 10/1/2014, AND AS AMENDED BY THE MINOR CHANGE APPROVED BY THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON DECEMBER 7, 2016, THE EXPIRATION DATE BEING 10/01/2021. DATED: ____________________, 20__ __________________________________ DANIEL A. YORK, CITY ENGINEER RCE 43212 



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIGNATURE OMISSIONS NOTE PURSUANT TO SECTION 66436 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE SIGNATURES OF THE FOLLOWING OWNERS AND/OR OTHER INTERESTES HAVE BEEN OMITTED: NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES RECORDED JULY 22, 1982 AS INST. #125464, O.R. RIV. CO. EASEMENT FOR PLACEMENT OF DISSIPATER AND INGRESS, EGRESS TO INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, REPAIR OR REPLACE PORTION OF THE DISSIPATER RECORDED OCTOBER 9, 2002 AS INST. #2002-562594, O.R. RIV. CO. DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE OF "DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT" RECORDED JANUARY 23, 2004 AS INST. #2004-049328, O.R. RIV. CO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT STATE OF   ________________) COUNTY OF  ________________)  ON ______________________ BEFORE ME, ________________________________, A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________________________________ ___________________________________________________ WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(IES), AND THAT BY HIS SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S) OR THE ENTITY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT. I CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT. WITNESS MY HAND.                                        MY COMMISSION NO.: ______________ __________ _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________       MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  SIGNATURE      MY PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS __________ _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY.      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. PRINT NAME    



AutoCAD SHX Text

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDITY OF THE DOCUMENT.







R
S


 1
1
6
/6


8


PARCEL 1


PARCEL 4PARCEL 2


PARCEL 3


PARCEL 5


NW 1/4 GOVT
LOT 2


SEC 6, T7S, R3W,
SBM


PARCEL 3
PM 58/1-5


PARCEL 4
PM 58/1-5


P.M. 36492-1
P.M. ___/__-__


P
M


 N
O


. 
3
6
6
7
3
  


P
M


 2
4
8
/4


5
-4


8


SM
ITH


 W
AY


PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS    JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLINTON KEITH ROAD    (CATT ROAD)



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

 <603.99'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE (NORTH)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #193258 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #194011 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'C' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, ACCEPTED AS SE COR E 1/2 NW 1/4 GOVT LOT 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

<R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Δ



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

°



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

">



AutoCAD SHX Text

<L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEDICATED & ACCEPTED PER PM 36673 PMB 248/45-48



AutoCAD SHX Text

<N0°42'52"E(R)>



AutoCAD SHX Text

<N40°27'34"E(R)>



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

  (N01°21'23"W 1327.13')



AutoCAD SHX Text

 <N0°42'59"E 1326.77'> (1326.86')



AutoCAD SHX Text

<95.40'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

<318.49'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

<298.13'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

2.30 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

3.09 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

3.12 NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

2.89 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

<N00°41'22"E 1327.24'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.17 AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'A' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

REMAINDER  PARCEL 



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N88°19'54"E 1356.37')



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, TAG LS 7226, FLUSH, PER MB 301/89-97, MB 302/8-16, & MB 339/29-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

<R=61.00' Δ=67°27'56" L=71.83'> 



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'B'  ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

<63.00'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPEN SPACE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'D' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'E' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'F' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

6.86 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

TURN AROUND EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487483  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

64' ACCESS OPENING



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, S89°38'11"E0.20', HELD FOR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, FLUSH, PER PM 58/1-5, S80°52'13"W 0.70'NOT ACCEPTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/16TH SECTION LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER QUALITY BASIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 1/4 SEC 6



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE 



AutoCAD SHX Text

<752.20'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487482  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

39.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAINAGE EASEMENTS PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487479, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 2 OF 3 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1" = 100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200



AutoCAD SHX Text

300



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 2.0' PER PM 58/1-5



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' /W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487480, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' /W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487481, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE REMAINDER PARCEL OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGES __ THROUGH __, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LYING WITHIN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

EASEMENT NOTES 1   RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 SUMMARILY VACATING THE RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 SUMMARILY VACATING THE     RIGHT TO ACCEPT THE DEDICATION OF BUNNY TRAIL IN THE WILDOMAR AREA" RECORDED OCTOBER     4, 2007 AS INST. #2007-0619517, O.R. RIV CO.     2   EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO.     RECORDED DECEMBER 13, 1978 AS INST. #261602, O.R. RIV. CO. 3   NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS & EGRESS PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES RECORDED JULY 22, 1982 AS INST. #125464, O.R. RIV. CO. 4   ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, 1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, 1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. 5   EASEMENT FOR PLACEMENT OF DISSIPATER AND INGRESS, EGRESS TO INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN,      REPAIR OR REPLACE PORTION OF THE DISSIPATER RECORDED OCTOBER 9, 2002 AS INST. #2002-562594,     O.R. RIV. CO.   6  DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE     AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT" RECORDED JANUARY 23, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-049328, O.R.     RIV. CO., AND GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES RECORDED     FEBRUARY 9, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-091304, O.R. RIV. CO.   7    EMERGENCY ACCESS EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1, P.M. ___/__-__. EMERGENCY ACCESS EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1, P.M. ___/__-__.     8 A BLANKET EASEMENT OVER ALL OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, AND REMAINDER PARCEL RESERVED FOR PRIVATE A BLANKET EASEMENT OVER ALL OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, AND REMAINDER PARCEL RESERVED FOR PRIVATE     USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND LOT OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP     FOR RECIPROCAL ACCESS PURPOSES, RESERVED ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1, P.M. ____/____-____. -____. 9  PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1 P.M. ____/____-____. PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1 P.M. ____/____-____. 10. STORM DRAIN EASEMENT DEDICATED HEREON. STORM DRAIN EASEMENT DEDICATED HEREON.    



AutoCAD SHX Text

SURVEYOR'S NOTES 1.   THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE CALIFORNIA STATE PLAN COORDINATE SYSTEM, CC83, ZONE 6, BASED      LOCALLY ON CONTROL STATION "Z311" & "ROSA" NAD 83(NSRS2007) AS SHOWN ON SHEET 3. ALL BEARINGS SHOWN ON      THIS MAP ARE GRID. QUOTED BEARINGS AND DISTANCES FROM REFERENCE MAPS OR DEEDS ARE AS SHOWN ON THIS MAP      PER THAT RECORD REFERENCE.  ALL DISTANCES ARE GROUND DISTANCES UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.  GRID DISTANCES     MAYBE OBTAINED BY MULTIPLYING THE GROUND DISTANCE BY A COMBINATION FACTOR OF 0.999964706539.  CALCULA-     TIONS MADE AT FOUND 1" I.P. MONUMENT LOCATED AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION OF ELIZABETH LANE AND CLINTON      KEITH ROAD WITH COORDINATES OF; N:2,162,530.1790 E: 6,263,844.8720, USING AN ELEVATION OF 1335.34, NAVD88. 2.         INDICATES FOUND MONUMENTS AS NOTED. 3.         INDICATES SET 1" IP TAGGED LS 5529, FLUSH, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED 4.         INDICATES FD. 1" IP TAGGED, LS 5529, FLUSH, PER PM 36492-1, PM ___/__-__. 5.  TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 11.40 GROSS. TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 11.40 GROSS. 6.   ( )    INDICATES RECORD DATA PER PM 58/1-5, C.O.C. 86-0129522, C.O.C. 79-0187532 & C.O.C. 79-0143474,             UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 7.   < >   INDICATES RECORD & MEASURED DATA PER PM 36492-1, PM __/__-__. 8.         INDICATES RESTRICTED VEHICLE ACCESS. 9.   S.F.N.  INDICATES SEARCHED FOUND NOTHING. 10.  R&M    INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED.    INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED. 11.   CENTERLINE TIE SHEETS TO BE PREPARED AND FILED WITH THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, WITHIN 90 DAYS OF APPROVAL OF  IMPROVEMENTS. 12.         INDICATES FD. CONTROL STATION PER PM 36492-1, PM __/__-__.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTRAINT NOTE THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINT SHEET AFFECTING THIS MAP IS ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR IN ECS BOOK ____ PAGE___. 







PM 36492-1
PARCEL 3
PM ___/__-__


PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS     JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH      LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, TAG LS 7226, FLUSH, PER MB 301/89-97, MB 302/8-16, & MB 339/29-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

<90.36'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

76'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

<N89°37'59"W 1355.57'> (1355.75')



AutoCAD SHX Text

55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

21'



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, DN. 0.4' PER PM 58/1-5; S44°36'24"E 0.14'OF ANGLE POINT 



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, DN. 0.9' PER PM 58/1-5; S44°36'24"E 0.25'OF ANGLE POINT 



AutoCAD SHX Text

<63.51'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

STREET CENTERLINE PER MB 301/89-97



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

<626.53'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

N36°07'09"E 125.79'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

<39.00'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

9'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

<281.69'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

<477.63'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°21'19"W  55.57'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N0°38'41"E  2.36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

REMAINDER PARCEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, ACCEPTED AS SE COR E 1/2 NW 1/4 GOVT LOT 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

REMAINDER PARCEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 3 OF 3 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

FREEWAY I-15



AutoCAD SHX Text

SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

VICINITY MAP  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY OF  WILDOMAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY OF  MURRIETA



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY LIMIT



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLAND VALLEY   ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIELIPP ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

JANA  LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH  LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

KEVIN ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

ESTATE PARK COURT



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'A'  NOT TO SCALE SHEET 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'B'  NOT TO SCALE SHEET 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'C'  NOT TO SCALE SHEET 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONVERGENCE ANGLE AT -00°32'14.84"



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRID NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRUE NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASIS OF BEARINGS DETAIL   NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,161,871.054



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,263,173.984



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,161,875.258



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,262,511.283



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,159,750.60



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,294,551.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,162,530.179 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,263,844.872



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTROL



AutoCAD SHX Text

N31°35'50"E  36,413.81' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N86°08'02"W  31,448.93' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N20°21'46"W  35,344.78' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,128,735.011 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,275,472.600



AutoCAD SHX Text

N84°49'39"W  30832.03' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°38'11"W662.72' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N63°50'40"E  1,485.73' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'G' ABOVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'G'  NOT TO SCALE SEE BELOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

CL INT. CLINTON KEITH & ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

   FOUND DISK STAMPED Z311 SET AT TOP OF CONCRETE MONUMENT, FLUSH



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOUND DISK STAMPED ROSA 1972 SET AT TOP OF CONCRETE MONUMENT, FLUSH



AutoCAD SHX Text

36,415.10' GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

CL INT. CLINTON KEITH & ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASIS OF BEARINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

662.74' GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'D'  NOT TO SCALE SHEET 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'F'  NOT TO SCALE SHEET 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'E'  NOT TO SCALE SHEET 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°38'11"W662.72' GRID 662.74' GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°38'11"W662.94' GROUND 662.92' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,161,875.258



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,262,511.283



AutoCAD SHX Text

N63°50'40"E  1,485.73' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE REMAINDER PARCEL OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGES __ THROUGH __, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LYING WITHIN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL "F" BELOW







PARCEL MAP 9637


29/48-19


R
S


 1
1
6
/6


8


PARCEL MAP 9637


PARCEL 1


PARCEL 4PARCEL 2


PARCEL 3


PARCEL 5


NW 1/4 GOVT
LOT 2


SEC 6, T7S, R3W,
SBM


PARCEL 3
PM 58/1-5


PARCEL 4
PM 58/1-5


P.M. 36492-1
P.M. ___/__-__


P
M


 N
O


. 
3
6
6
7
3
  


P
M


 2
4
8
/4


5
-4


8


SM
ITH


 W
AY


PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS    JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLINTON KEITH ROAD    (CATT ROAD)



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

 <603.99'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE (NORTH)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #193258 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #194011 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'C' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, ACCEPTED AS SE COR E 1/2 NW 1/4 GOVT LOT 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

<R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Δ



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

°



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

">



AutoCAD SHX Text

<L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEDICATED & ACCEPTED PER PM 36673 PMB 248/45-48



AutoCAD SHX Text

<N0°42'52"E(R)>



AutoCAD SHX Text

<N40°27'34"E(R)>



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

  (N01°21'23"W 1327.13')



AutoCAD SHX Text

 <N0°42'59"E 1326.77'> (1326.86')



AutoCAD SHX Text

<95.40'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

<318.49'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

<298.13'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

2.30 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

3.09 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

3.12 NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

2.89 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

<N00°41'22"E 1327.24'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.17 AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'A' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

REMAINDER  PARCEL 



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N88°19'54"E 1356.37')



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, TAG LS 7226, FLUSH, PER MB 301/89-97, MB 302/8-16, & MB 339/29-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

<R=61.00' Δ=67°27'56" L=71.83'> 



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'B'  ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

<63.00'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPEN SPACE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'D' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'E' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'F' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

6.86 AC NET



AutoCAD SHX Text

TURN AROUND EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487483  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

64' ACCESS OPENING



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, S89°38'11"E0.20', HELD FOR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, FLUSH, PER PM 58/1-5, S80°52'13"W 0.70'NOT ACCEPTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/16TH SECTION LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER QUALITY BASIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 1/4 SEC 6



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE 



AutoCAD SHX Text

<752.20'>



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487482  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

39.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAINAGE EASEMENTS PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487479, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 1 OF 1 SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1" = 100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200



AutoCAD SHX Text

300



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 2.0' PER PM 58/1-5



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' /W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487480, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' /W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487481, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE REMAINDER PARCEL OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGES __ THROUGH __, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LYING WITHIN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SURVEYOR'S NOTES 1.   THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE CALIFORNIA STATE PLAN COORDINATE SYSTEM, CC83, ZONE 6, BASED      LOCALLY ON CONTROL STATION "Z311" & "ROSA" NAD 83(NSRS2007) AS SHOWN ON SHEET 4. ALL BEARINGS SHOWN ON      THIS MAP ARE GRID. QUOTED BEARINGS AND DISTANCES FROM REFERENCE MAPS OR DEEDS ARE AS SHOWN ON THIS MAP      PER THAT RECORD REFERENCE.  ALL DISTANCES ARE GROUND DISTANCES UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.  GRID DISTANCES     MAYBE OBTAINED BY MULTIPLYING THE GROUND DISTANCE BY A COMBINATION FACTOR OF 0.999964706539.  CALCULA-     TIONS MADE AT FOUND 1" I.P. MONUMENT LOCATED AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION OF ELIZABETH LANE AND CLINTON      KEITH ROAD WITH COORDINATES OF; N:2,162,530.1790 E: 6,263,844.8720, USING AN ELEVATION OF 1335.34, NAVD88. 2.         INDICATES FOUND MONUMENTS AS NOTED. 3.         INDICATES SET 1" IP TAGGED LS 5529, FLUSH, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED 4.         INDICATES FD. 1" IP TAGGED, LS 5529, FLUSH, PER PM 36492-1, PM ___/__-__. 5.  TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 11.40 GROSS. TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 11.40 GROSS. 6.   ( )    INDICATES RECORD DATA PER PM 58/1-5, C.O.C. 86-0129522, C.O.C. 79-0187532 & C.O.C. 79-0143474,             UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 7.   < >   INDICATES RECORD & MEASURED DATA PER PM 36492-1, PM __/__-__. 8.         INDICATES RESTRICTED VEHICLE ACCESS. 9.   S.F.N.  INDICATES SEARCHED FOUND NOTHING. 10.  R&M    INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED.    INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED. 11.   CENTERLINE TIE SHEETS TO BE PREPARED AND PRESENTED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CENTERLINE TIE SHEETS TO BE       FILED AS CORNER RECORDS WITH THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY SURVEYOR WITHIN 90 DAYS OF APPROVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS. 12.         INDICATES FD. CONTROL STATION PER PM 36492-1, PM __/__-__.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINT NOTE: THE REQUIRED WATER SYSTEM, INCLUDING FIRE HYDRANTS, SHALL BE INSTALLED AND ACCEPTED BY THE APPROPRIATE WATER AGENCY PRIOR TO ANY COMBUSTIBLE BUILDING MATERIAL PLACED ON AN INDIVIDUAL LOT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINT SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOOK ____ PAGE ___



AutoCAD SHX Text

EASEMENT NOTES 1   RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 SUMMARILY VACATING THE RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 SUMMARILY VACATING THE     RIGHT TO ACCEPT THE DEDICATION OF BUNNY TRAIL IN THE WILDOMAR AREA" RECORDED OCTOBER     4, 2007 AS INST. #2007-0619517, O.R. RIV CO.     2   EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO.     RECORDED DECEMBER 13, 1978 AS INST. #261602, O.R. RIV. CO. 3   NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS & EGRESS PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES RECORDED JULY 22, 1982 AS INST. #125464, O.R. RIV. CO. 4   ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, 1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, 1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. 5   EASEMENT FOR PLACEMENT OF DISSIPATER AND INGRESS, EGRESS TO INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN,      REPAIR OR REPLACE PORTION OF THE DISSIPATER RECORDED OCTOBER 9, 2002 AS INST. #2002-562594,     O.R. RIV. CO.   6  DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE     AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT" RECORDED JANUARY 23, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-049328, O.R.     RIV. CO., AND GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES RECORDED     FEBRUARY 9, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-091304, O.R. RIV. CO.   7   EMERGENCY ACCESS EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1,     P.M. ___/__-__.     8 A BLANKET EASEMENT OVER ALL OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, AND REMAINDER PARCEL RESERVED FOR PRIVATE A BLANKET EASEMENT OVER ALL OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, AND REMAINDER PARCEL RESERVED FOR PRIVATE     USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND LOT OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP     FOR RECIPROCAL ACCESS PURPOSES, RESERVED ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1, P.M. ___/__-__. -__. 9 PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1 P.M. ____/____-____. PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1 P.M. ____/____-____. 9 STORM DRAIN EASEMENT DEDICATED HEREON. STORM DRAIN EASEMENT DEDICATED HEREON.    







PARCEL MAP NO. 36492


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS   JANUARY, 2021



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 1 OF 3 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE REMAINDER PARCEL OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGES __ THROUGH __, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LYING WITHIN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION AND IS BASED UPON A FIELD SURVEY IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCE AT THE REQUEST OF RANCON MEDICAL AND EDUCATIONAL CENTER, LLC A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ON JANUARY 14, 2015. I HEREBY STATE THAT ALL MONUMENTS ARE OF THE CHARACTER AND OCCUPY THE POSITIONS INDICATED OR WILL BE SET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE MONUMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE MAP AND THAT SAID MONUMENTS ARE/WILL BE SET SUFFICIENT TO ENABLE THE SURVEY TO BE RETRACED.  I HEREBY STATE THAT THIS PARCEL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE CONDITIONALLY APPROVED TENTATIVE MAP.  DATE: ________________, 20__ : ________________, 20__ 20__ ___________________________ MATTHEW E. WEBB L.S. 5529 



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT STATE OF   ________________) COUNTY OF  ________________)  ON ______________________ BEFORE ME, ________________________________, A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________________________________ ___________________________________________________ WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(IES), AND THAT BY HIS SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S) OR THE ENTITY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT. I CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT. WITNESS MY HAND.                                        MY COMMISSION NO.: ______________ __________ _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________       MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  SIGNATURE      MY PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS __________ _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY.      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. PRINT NAME    



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER'S STATEMENT WE HEREBY STATE THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF THE LAND INCLUDED WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON; THAT WE ARE THE ONLY PERSONS WHOSE CONSENT IS NECESSARY TO PASS A CLEAR TITLE TO SAID LAND; THAT WE CONSENT TO THE MAKING AND RECORDING OF THIS SUBDIVISION MAP AS SHOWN WITHIN THE DISTINCTIVE BORDER LINE.  WE HEREBY RESERVE A BLANKET EASEMENT FOR RECIPROCAL ACCESS PURPOSES OVER ALL OF PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE. FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND PARCEL OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP. OWNER: RANCON MEDICAL AND EDUCATION CENTER, LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ___________________________________________________ BY: JEFF COMERCHERO                PRESIDENT 



AutoCAD SHX Text

RECORDER'S STATEMENT FILED THIS ____ DAY OF ___________, 20__,  AT _M. IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGES ________, AT THE REQUEST OF THE CITY  CLERK OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR. NO: ___________________ ___________________ FEE: ___________________ ___________________ PETER ALDANA, ASSESSOR - COUNTY CLERK - RECORDER BY: __________________________, DEPUTY SUBDIVISION GUARANTEE:  CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAX BOND CERTIFICATE I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT A BOND IN THE SUM OF $_____________ HAS BEEN EXECUTED AND FILED WITH THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA, CONDITIONED UPON THE PAYMENT OF ALL TAXES, STATE, COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, OR LOCAL, AND ALL SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES, WHICH AT THE TIME OF FILING OF THIS MAP WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER ARE A LIEN AGAINST SAID PROPERTY BUT NOT YET PAYABLE AND SAID BOND HAS BEEN DULY APPROVED BY SAID BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. DATE: ___________, 20__  CASH OR SURETY BOND                             MATT JENNNINGS  COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR BY: ____________________, DEPUTY 



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAX COLLECTOR'S CERTIFICATE I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ACCORDING TO THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE, AS OF THIS DATE, THERE ARE NO LIENS AGAINST THE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE WITHIN MAP FOR UNPAID STATE, COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, OR LOCAL TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES, EXCEPT TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED AS TAXES NOW A LIEN BUT NOT YET PAYABLE, WHICH ARE ESTIMATED TO BE $_____________. DATE: _____________, 20__ MATT JENNINGS COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR  BY: ____________________________, DEPUTY 



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT I HEREBY STATE THAT THE PARCEL MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND I AM SATISFIED THAT SAID MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT.  DATED: ____________________, 20__ __________________________________ DANIEL A, YORK, CITY SURVEYOR LS 7962     



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, BY IT'S CITY CLERK, HEREBY APPROVES THE PARCEL MAP PER CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION __________-__________ . DATED: _________________, 20__     _____________________________________ JANET MORALES ACTING CITY CLERK CITY OF WILDOMAR  



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO. 43212



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO. 7962



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO. 5529



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDITY OF THE DOCUMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT THIS MAP CONFORMS TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCES.  I HEREBY STATE THAT THIS MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED BY ME OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND FOUND TO BE SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE TENTATIVE MAP OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492 AS FILED, AMENDED AND APPROVED BY THE  CITY OF WILDOMAR  ON 10/1/2014, AND AS AMENDED BY THE MINOR CHANGE APPROVED BY THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON DECEMBER 7, 2016, THE EXPIRATION DATE BEING 10/01/2021. DATED: ____________________, 20__ __________________________________ DANIEL A. YORK, CITY ENGINEER RCE 43212 



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIGNATURE OMISSIONS NOTE PURSUANT TO SECTION 66436 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE SIGNATURES OF THE FOLLOWING OWNERS AND/OR OTHER INTERESTES HAVE BEEN OMITTED: DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE OF "DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT" RECORDED JANUARY 23, 2004 AS INST. #2004-049328, O.R. RIV. CO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT STATE OF   ________________) COUNTY OF  ________________)  ON ______________________ BEFORE ME, ________________________________, A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________________________________ ___________________________________________________ WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(IES), AND THAT BY HIS SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S) OR THE ENTITY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT. I CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT. WITNESS MY HAND.                                        MY COMMISSION NO.: ______________ __________ _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  _______________      MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________       MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ___________  SIGNATURE      MY PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS __________ _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. _______________      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY.      IS IN _____________________ COUNTY. PRINT NAME    



AutoCAD SHX Text

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDITY OF THE DOCUMENT.







R
S


 1
1
6
/6


8


PARCEL 4


PARCEL 2


PARCEL 3


PARCEL 5


NW 1/4 OF GOVT.
LOT 2,


SEC 6, T7S, R3W,
SBM


PARCEL 3
PM 58/1-5 PARCEL 4  PM 58/1-5


P.M. 36492-1
P.M. ___/__-__


PARCEL 4


PARCEL 2


PARCEL 3


PARCEL 1


PARCEL 1


P.M. 36492-2
P.M. ___/__-__


P.M. 36492-2
P.M. ___/__-__


D


D


P
A


R
C


E
L
 2


P
M


 3
6
6
7
3
 P


M
 2


4
8
/4


5
-4


8


PARCEL MAP NO. 36492


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS    JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE (NORTH)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLINTON KEITH ROAD    (CATT ROAD)



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #193258 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #194011 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, ACCEPTED AS SE COR E 1/2 NW 1/4 GOVT LOT 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

[R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Δ



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

°



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

"]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

']



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEDICATED & ACCEPTED PER PM 36673 PMB 248/45-46



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N0°42'52"E(R)]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N40°27'34"E(R)]



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

  (N01°21'23"W 1327.13')



AutoCAD SHX Text

 <N0°42'59"E 1326.77'> (1326.86')



AutoCAD SHX Text

[95.40']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[318.49']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[298.13']



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.17 AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N88°19'54"E 1356.37')



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, TAG LS 7226, FLUSH, PER MB 301/89-97, MB 302/8-16, & MB 339/29-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPEN SPACE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'A' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'B' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

TURN AROUND EASEMENT PER DOC # 2020-0487483  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

64' ACCESS OPENING



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, S89°38'11"E0.20', HELD FOR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, FLUSH, PER PM 58/1-5, S80°52'13"W 0.70'NOT ACCEPTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/16TH SECTION LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER QUALITY BASIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 1/4 SEC 6



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE 



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L SMITH WAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER INST. #2004-220865 REC. 2/9/2004, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAINAGE EASEMENTS PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487479, REC. 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487482  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

39.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 2 OF 3 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1" = 100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200



AutoCAD SHX Text

300



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 2.0' PER PM 58/1-5



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' /W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487480, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' /W PER DOC.  NO. 2020-0487481, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE REMAINDER PARCEL OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGES __ THROUGH __, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LYING WITHIN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

EASEMENT NOTES 1   RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 SUMMARILY VACATING THE RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 SUMMARILY VACATING THE     RIGHT TO ACCEPT THE DEDICATION OF BUNNY TRAIL IN THE WILDOMAR AREA" RECORDED OCTOBER     4, 2007 AS INST. #2007-0619517, O.R. RIV CO.     2   EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO.     RECORDED DECEMBER 13, 1978 AS INST. #261602, O.R. RIV. CO. 3   NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS & EGRESS PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES RECORDED JULY 22, 1982 AS INST. #125464, O.R. RIV. CO. 4   ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, 1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, 1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. 5   EASEMENT FOR PLACEMENT OF DISSIPATER AND INGRESS, EGRESS TO INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN,      REPAIR OR REPLACE PORTION OF THE DISSIPATER RECORDED OCTOBER 9, 2002 AS INST. #2002-562594,     O.R. RIV. CO.   6  DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE     AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT" RECORDED JANUARY 23, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-049328, O.R.     RIV. CO., AND GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES RECORDED     FEBRUARY 9, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-091304, O.R. RIV. CO.   7   EMERGENCY ACCESS EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1,     P.M. ___/__-__.     8 STORM DRAIN EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2 P.M. ____/____-____. STORM DRAIN EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2 P.M. ____/____-____. 9 PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1 P.M. ____/____-____. PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1 P.M. ____/____-____.    10 BLANKET EASEMENT OVER PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF BLANKET EASEMENT OVER PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF LANKET EASEMENT OVER PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF , RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND LOT OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP FOR RECIPROCAL ACCESS  PURPOSES. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

SURVEYOR'S NOTES 1.   THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE CALIFORNIA STATE PLAN COORDINATE SYSTEM, CC83, ZONE 6, BASED LOCALLY ON CONTROL STATION "Z311" & "ROSA" NAD 83(NSRS2007) AS SHOWN ON SHEET 3. ALL BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE GRID. QUOTED BEARINGS AND DISTANCES FROM REFERENCE MAPS OR DEEDS ARE AS SHOWN ON THIS MAP PER THAT RECORD REFERENCE.  ALL DISTANCES ARE GROUND DISTANCES UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.  GRID DISTANCES MAYBE OBTAINED BY MULTIPLYING THE GROUND DISTANCE BY A COMBINATION FACTOR OF 0.999964706539.  CALCULATIONS MADE AT FOUND 1" I.P. MONUMENT LOCATED AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION OF ELIZABETH LANE AND CLINTON  KEITH ROAD WITH COORDINATES OF; N:2,162,530.1790 E: 6,263,844.8720, USING AN ELEVATION OF 1335.34, NAVD88. 2.         INDICATES FOUND MONUMENTS AS NOTED. 3.         INDICATES SET 1" IP TAGGED LS 5529, FLUSH, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED 4.         INDICATES FD. 1" IP TAGGED, LS 5529, FLUSH, PER PM 36492-1, PM ___/__-__. 5.         INDICATES FD. 1" IP TAGGED, LS 5529, FLUSH, PER PM 36492-2, PM ___/__-__. 6.  TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 6.86 AC GROSS. TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 6.86 AC GROSS. 7.   [ ]    INDICATES RECORD & MEASURED DATA PER PM 36492-1, PMB __/__-__. 8.   ( )    INDICATES RECORD DATA PER PM 58/1-5, C.O.C. 86-0129522, C.O.C. 79-0187532 & C.O.C. 79-0143474, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 9.   < >   INDICATES RECORD & MEASURED DATA PER PM 36492-2, PMB __/__-__. 10.         INDICATES RESTRICTED VEHICLE ACCESS. 11.   S.F.N.  INDICATES SEARCHED FOUND NOTHING. 12.   R&M   INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED.   INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED. 13.   CENTERLINE TIE SHEETS TO BE PREPARED AND PRESENTED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, WITHIN 90 DAYS OF APPROVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS. 14.         INDICATES FD. CONTROL STATION PER PM 36492-1, PM __/__-__. 15.    INDICATES EXISTING RECORDED EASEMENTS.   INDICATES EXISTING RECORDED EASEMENTS. 16.    INDICATES EASEMENTS BEING OFFERED HEREON/RESERVED RECIPROCAL ACCESS EASEMENT.   INDICATES EASEMENTS BEING OFFERED HEREON/RESERVED RECIPROCAL ACCESS EASEMENT. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTRAINT NOTE THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINT SHEET AFFECTING THIS MAP IS ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR IN ECS BOOK ____ PAGE___. 







PARCEL MAP NO. 36492


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS     JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S


P.M. 36492-2
P.M. ___/__-__


PARCEL 3
P.M. 36492-2
P.M. ___/__-__


PARCEL 3 PARCEL 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, ACCEPTED AS SE COR E 1/2 NW 1/4 GOVT LOT 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PARCEL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 3 OF 3 SHEETS



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

FREEWAY I-15



AutoCAD SHX Text

SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

VICINITY MAP  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY OF  WILDOMAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY OF  MURRIETA



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY LIMIT



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLAND VALLEY   ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIELIPP ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

JANA  LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH  LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

KEVIN ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

ESTATE PARK COURT



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'A'  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'B'  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONVERGENCE ANGLE AT -00°32'14.84"



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRID NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRUE NORTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASIS OF BEARINGS DETAIL   NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,161,871.054



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,263,173.984



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,161,875.258



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,262,511.283



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,159,750.60



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,294,551.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,162,530.179 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,263,844.872



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTROL



AutoCAD SHX Text

N31°35'50"E  36,413.81' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N86°08'02"W  31,448.93' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N20°21'46"W  35,344.78' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,128,735.011 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,275,472.600



AutoCAD SHX Text

N84°49'39"W  30832.03' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°38'11"W662.72' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

N63°50'40"E  1,485.73' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'C' ABOVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL 'C'  NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CL INT. CLINTON KEITH & ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

   FOUND DISK STAMPED Z311 SET AT TOP OF CONCRETE MONUMENT, FLUSH



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOUND DISK STAMPED ROSA 1972 SET AT TOP OF CONCRETE MONUMENT, FLUSH



AutoCAD SHX Text

36,415.10' GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

CL INT. CLINTON KEITH & ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASIS OF BEARINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

662.74' GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°38'11"W662.72' GRID 662.74' GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°38'11"W662.94' GROUND 662.92' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 2,161,875.258



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 6,262,511.283



AutoCAD SHX Text

N63°50'40"E  1,485.73' GRID



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE REMAINDER PARCEL OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGES __ THROUGH __, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LYING WITHIN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.







PARCEL MAP 9637


29/48-19


R
S


 1
1
6
/6


8


PARCEL MAP 9637


PARCEL 4


PARCEL 2


PARCEL 3


PARCEL 5


NW 1/4 OF GOVT.
LOT 2,


SEC 6, T7S, R3W,
SBM


PARCEL 3
PM 58/1-5 PARCEL 4  PM 58/1-5


P.M. 36492-1
P.M. ___/__-__


PARCEL 4


PARCEL 2


PARCEL 3


PARCEL 1


PARCEL 1


P.M. 36492-2
P.M. ___/__-__


P.M. 36492-2
P.M. ___/__-__


D


D


P
A


R
C


E
L
 2


P
M


 3
6
6
7
3
 P


M
 2


4
8
/4


5
-4


8


PARCEL MAP NO. 36492


ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES - CIVIL ENGINEERS    JANUARY, 2021


WEBB


N


W E


S



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE (NORTH)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLINTON KEITH ROAD    (CATT ROAD)



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELIZABETH LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L BUNNY TRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #193258 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W TO RIV. CO. PER INST. #194011 REC. 6/10/1991, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L CLINTON KEITH ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

39'



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, ACCEPTED AS SE COR E 1/2 NW 1/4 GOVT LOT 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

[R



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

Δ



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

°



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

"]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[L



AutoCAD SHX Text

=



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

']



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEDICATED & ACCEPTED PER PM 36673 PMB 248/45-46



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N0°42'52"E(R)]



AutoCAD SHX Text

[N40°27'34"E(R)]



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

  (N01°21'23"W 1327.13')



AutoCAD SHX Text

 <N0°42'59"E 1326.77'> (1326.86')



AutoCAD SHX Text

[95.40']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[318.49']



AutoCAD SHX Text

[298.13']



AutoCAD SHX Text

S.F.N.



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L YAMAS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.17 AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N88°19'54"E 1356.37')



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, TAG LS 7226, FLUSH, PER MB 301/89-97, MB 302/8-16, & MB 339/29-34



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPEN SPACE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'A' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE DETAIL 'B' ON SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

TURN AROUND EASEMENT PER DOC # 2020-0487483  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

64' ACCESS OPENING



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 0.1' PER PM 58/1-5, S89°38'11"E0.20', HELD FOR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, NO TAG, FLUSH, PER PM 58/1-5, S80°52'13"W 0.70'NOT ACCEPTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L SALIDA DEL SOL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/16TH SECTION LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER QUALITY BASIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 1/4 SEC 6



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L ELIZABETH LANE 



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L SMITH WAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER INST. #2004-220865 REC. 2/9/2004, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAINAGE EASEMENTS PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487479, REC. 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R/W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487482  RECORDED 10/13/2020 O.R. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

39.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 1 OF 1 SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1" = 100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200



AutoCAD SHX Text

300



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

FD. 1" IP, LS 3698, DN. 2.0' PER PM 58/1-5



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' /W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487480, RECORDED 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

39' /W PER DOC. NO. 2020-0487481, REC. 10/13/2020, O.R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE REMAINDER PARCEL OF PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK ___ OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGES __ THROUGH __, INCLUSIVE, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, LYING WITHIN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, S.B.M.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINT NOTE: THE REQUIRED WATER SYSTEM, INCLUDING FIRE HYDRANTS, SHALL BE INSTALLED AND ACCEPTED BY THE APPROPRIATE WATER AGENCY PRIOR TO ANY COMBUSTIBLE BUILDING MATERIAL PLACED ON AN INDIVIDUAL LOT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINT SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOOK ____ PAGE ___



AutoCAD SHX Text

EASEMENT NOTES 1   RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 SUMMARILY VACATING THE RESERVED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT PER "RESOLUTION NO. 2007-045 SUMMARILY VACATING THE     RIGHT TO ACCEPT THE DEDICATION OF BUNNY TRAIL IN THE WILDOMAR AREA" RECORDED OCTOBER     4, 2007 AS INST. #2007-0619517, O.R. RIV CO.     2   EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS TO SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO.     RECORDED DECEMBER 13, 1978 AS INST. #261602, O.R. RIV. CO. 3   NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS & EGRESS PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY PURPOSES RECORDED JULY 22, 1982 AS INST. #125464, O.R. RIV. CO. 4   ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, 1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. ROAD EASEMENT TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RECORDED JUNE 10, 1991 AS INST. #193576, O.R. RIV. CO. 5   EASEMENT FOR PLACEMENT OF DISSIPATER AND INGRESS, EGRESS TO INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN,      REPAIR OR REPLACE PORTION OF THE DISSIPATER RECORDED OCTOBER 9, 2002 AS INST. #2002-562594,     O.R. RIV. CO.   6  DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE DRAINAGE AND ACCESS EASEMENT AS AGREED TO BE GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY "DRAINAGE     AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT" RECORDED JANUARY 23, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-049328, O.R.     RIV. CO., AND GRANTED TO THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE BY EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES RECORDED     FEBRUARY 9, 2004 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-091304, O.R. RIV. CO.   7   EMERGENCY ACCESS EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1,     P.M. ___/__-__.     8 STORM DRAIN EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2 P.M. ____/____-____. STORM DRAIN EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-2 P.M. ____/____-____. 9 PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1 P.M. ____/____-____. PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR ON PARCEL MAP NO. 36492-1 P.M. ____/____-____.    10 BLANKET EASEMENT OVER PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF BLANKET EASEMENT OVER PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF LANKET EASEMENT OVER PARCELS 1 THROUGH 4, INCLUSIVE, RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF , RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF OURSELVES, OUR SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNEES AND LOT OWNERS WITHIN THIS PARCEL MAP FOR RECIPROCAL ACCESS  PURPOSES. 



AutoCAD SHX Text

SURVEYOR'S NOTES 1.   THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE CALIFORNIA STATE PLAN COORDINATE SYSTEM, CC83, ZONE 6, BASED LOCALLY ON CONTROL STATION "Z311" & "ROSA" NAD 83(NSRS2007) AS SHOWN ON SHEET 3. ALL BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE GRID. QUOTED BEARINGS AND DISTANCES FROM REFERENCE MAPS OR DEEDS ARE AS SHOWN ON THIS MAP PER THAT RECORD REFERENCE.  ALL DISTANCES ARE GROUND DISTANCES UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.  GRID DISTANCES MAYBE OBTAINED BY MULTIPLYING THE GROUND DISTANCE BY A COMBINATION FACTOR OF 0.999964706539.  CALCULATIONS MADE AT FOUND 1" I.P. MONUMENT LOCATED AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION OF ELIZABETH LANE AND CLINTON  KEITH ROAD WITH COORDINATES OF; N:2,162,530.1790 E: 6,263,844.8720, USING AN ELEVATION OF 1335.34, NAVD88. 2.         INDICATES FOUND MONUMENTS AS NOTED. 3.         INDICATES SET 1" IP TAGGED LS 5529, FLUSH, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED 4.         INDICATES FD. 1" IP TAGGED, LS 5529, FLUSH, PER PM 36492-1, PM ___/__-__. 5.         INDICATES FD. 1" IP TAGGED, LS 5529, FLUSH, PER PM 36492-2, PM ___/__-__. 6.  TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 6.86 AC GROSS. TOTAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IS 6.86 AC GROSS. 7.   [ ]    INDICATES RECORD & MEASURED DATA PER PM 36492-1, PMB __/__-__. 8.   ( )    INDICATES RECORD DATA PER PM 58/1-5, C.O.C. 86-0129522, C.O.C. 79-0187532 & C.O.C. 79-0143474, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 9.   < >   INDICATES RECORD & MEASURED DATA PER PM 36492-2, PMB __/__-__. 10.         INDICATES RESTRICTED VEHICLE ACCESS. 11.   S.F.N.  INDICATES SEARCHED FOUND NOTHING. 12.   R&M   INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED.   INDICATES RECORD AND MEASURED. 13.   CENTERLINE TIE SHEETS TO BE PREPARED AND PRESENTED TO THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, WITHIN 90 DAYS OF APPROVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS. 14.         INDICATES FD. CONTROL STATION PER PM 36492-1, PM __/__-__. 15.    INDICATES EXISTING RECORDED EASEMENTS.   INDICATES EXISTING RECORDED EASEMENTS. 16.    INDICATES EASEMENTS BEING OFFERED HEREON/RESERVED RECIPROCAL ACCESS EASEMENT.   INDICATES EASEMENTS BEING OFFERED HEREON/RESERVED RECIPROCAL ACCESS EASEMENT. 







ATTACHMENT C







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2


RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
(Document exempt from recording fees 
pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code § 27383) 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
Attn: City Clerk 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, California 92595 


THIS SPACE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


PARCEL MAP 36492-1 


By and Between 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
a municipal corporation 


and 


Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC 


DATED ________________________, 2021__ 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 1 -  


 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


PARCEL MAP 36492-1 


 


This Subdivision Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this ____ 
day of _________, 20__ by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) 
and Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC_ (“Developer”).  City and Developer are 
sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to 
as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


A. Developer has submitted to City an application for approval of a parcel map for real 
property located within City, a legal description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  The 
parcel map is identified in City records as Parcel Map No. 36492-1.  On October 1, 2014, the City 
conditionally approved Parcel No. 36492. 


B. Developer has not completed all of the work or made all of the Public 
Improvements required by the Subdivision Map Act (Government Code sections 66410 et seq.), 
(“Map Act”) the City Ordinances, the conditions of approval for Parcel No. 36492-1, or other 
ordinances, resolutions, or policies of City requiring construction of improvements in conjunction 
with the subdivision of land. 


C. Pursuant to City Ordinances and the applicable provisions of the Map Act, 
Developer and City enter into this Agreement for the timely construction and completion of the 
Public Improvements and the furnishing of the security therefor, acceptable to the City Engineer 
and City Attorney, for Parcel No. 36492-1. 


D. City has authority to enter into this Subdivision Improvement Agreement pursuant 
to Government Code Sections 66499 – 66499.10. 


E. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66499, Developer’s execution of this 
Agreement and the provision of the security are made in consideration of City’s approval of the 
parcel map for Parcel No. 36492-1.  


DEFINED TERMS 


“Developer” shall mean Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC, a California limited liability 
company.  The term “Developer” shall also include all assignees, to the extent permitted under this 
Agreement, of the rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement, and any successor-
in-interest to Developer having a legal and/or equitable interest in the Property. 


“Estimated Costs” shall mean the City Engineer’s approximation of the actual cost to construct 
the Public Improvements, including the replacement cost for all landscaping. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 2 -  


 


“Litigation Expenses” shall mean all costs and expenses, to the extent reasonable in amount, 
actually and necessarily incurred by a party in good faith in the prosecution of an action or 
proceeding, including, but not limited to, court costs, filing, recording, and service fees, copying 
costs, exhibit production costs, special media rental costs, attorneys’ fees, fees for investigators, 
witness fees (both lay and expert), travel expenses, deposition and transcript costs and any other 
cost or expense, the award of which a court of competent jurisdiction may determine to be just and 
reasonable. 


“Map Act” shall mean the Subdivision Map Act, Government Code Sections 66410 et seq. 


“Property” shall mean the all of the real property contained within the boundaries of Parcel Map 
No. 36492-1 located in the City of Wildomar, California, as is more particularly described in the 
legal description and parcel diagram attached hereto and incorporated hereby by reference at 
Exhibit  “A”. 


“Public Improvements” shall include, but not be limited to, all grading, roads, streets, paving, 
curbs and gutters, sidewalks, paseos, pathways, trails, sanitary sewers, utilities, storm drains, 
detention and retention basins and other drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street 
lights and all other facilities required to be constructed and dedicated to the City or other public 
entity as conditions of approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 and as shown in detail on the 
plans, and specifications which have been approved by the City and incorporated into Parcel Map 
No. 36492-1.  The Parties agree that the Public Improvements to be completed by Developer are 
more specifically described in the diagram or plan attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference as Exhibit “B.  Notwithstanding, Exhibit “B”, Developer shall remain obligated to 
construct and complete all of the Public Improvements required as conditions of approval for 
Tentative Parcel Map 36492.   


“Required Insurance” shall mean the insurance required to be maintained by Developer under 
Section 17. 


“Security” shall mean surety bonds, lien agreement or other security approved by the City 
Engineer or City Attorney in the amounts and under the terms of Section 12. 


“Parcel No 36492-1.” shall mean the parcel map prepared and approved by the City for tentative 
parcel map no. 36492. 


“Warranty” shall mean the one year period following completion of the Public Improvements by 
Developer and the acceptance of the Public Improvements by the City in which Developer warrants 
and guarantees all Public Improvements. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the 
parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 


1. EFFECTIVENESS.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all 
four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:   







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 3 -  


 


1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the 
amounts required by this Agreement;  


1.2 ParcelMap and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City 
(“City Council”) approves the parcelmap for Parcel No. 36492-1 and this Agreement; 


1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City 
records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and  


1.4 Record ParcelMap.  Developer records the parcel map for Parcel No. 
36492-1 in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.   


If the above described conditions are not satisfied in the order, manner and within the time 
provided under this Agreement, this Agreement shall automatically terminate without need of 
further action by either City or Developer. 


2. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at 
its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time 
and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Improvements shall 
include any transitions and/or other incidental work deemed necessary for drainage or public 
safety.  The Developer shall be responsible for the replacement, relocation, or removal of any 
component of any irrigation water or sewer system in conflict with the construction or installation 
of the Public Improvements.  Such replacement, relocation, or removal shall be performed to the 
complete satisfaction of the City Engineer and the owner of such water or sewer system.  
Developer further promises and agrees to provide all equipment, tools, materials, labor, tests, 
design work, and engineering services necessary or required by City to fully and adequately 
complete the Public Improvements. 


2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where construction 
of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, Developer 
agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in accordance with this 
Agreement. 


2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals 
and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Public 
Improvements and performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement.  Developer shall 
conduct the work in full compliance with the regulations, rules, and other requirements contained 
in any permit or approval issued to Developer.  Prior to commencing any work, Developer shall 
file a written statement with the City Clerk and the City Engineer, signed by Developer and each 
utility which will provide utility service to the Property, attesting that Developer has made all 
deposits legally required by the utility for the extension and provision of utility service to the 
Property. 


2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from 
commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public 
Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or her designee.  
Approval by the City Engineer shall not relieve Developer from ensuring that all Public 
Improvements conform with all other requirements and standards set forth in this Agreement. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 4 -  


 


2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction 
plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements.  The Public Improvements shall be completed in accordance with all approved maps, 
plans, specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, as well 
as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced.  


2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful 
and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized as being 
employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California.  Developer represents 
and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in the professional calling necessary to 
perform the work.  Developer warrants that all of its employees and contractors shall have 
sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them, and that they shall have all 
licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the work, and that such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement. 


2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements 
made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent 
alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public Improvements 
it is determined that the public interest requires alterations in the Public Improvements, Developer 
shall undertake such design and construction changes as may be reasonably required by City.  Any 
and all alterations in the plans and specifications and the Public Improvements to be completed 
may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof to Developer’s surety for this Agreement. 


2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map 
Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval 
on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been satisfied 
prior to the date of this Agreement are identified on Exhibit “D” hereto. 


3. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND LANDSCAPING.  
City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until 
City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City shall 
exercise no control over the Public Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any use by any 
person of the Public Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and exclusive risk 
of the Developer at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Public Improvements.  Developer 
shall maintain all the Public Improvements in a state of good repair until they are completed by 
Developer and approved and accepted by City, and until the security for the performance of this 
Agreement is released.  Maintenance shall include, but shall not be limited to, repair of pavement, 
curbs, gutters, sidewalks, signals, parkways, water mains, and sewers; maintaining all landscaping 
in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City; removal of debris from sewers 
and storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining in good and safe condition all streets 
and street improvements.  It shall be Developer’s responsibility to initiate all maintenance work, 
but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly perform such maintenance work when notified to do 
so by City.  If Developer fails to properly prosecute its maintenance obligation under this section, 
City may do all work necessary for such maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 5 -  


 


responsibility of Developer and its surety under this Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or 
liable for any damages or injury of any nature in any way related to or caused by the Public 
Improvements or their condition prior to acceptance.   


4. CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 
of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public 
Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the parcel map for Parcel No. 
36492-1. 


4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide 
Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is 
understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement, 
Developer and its surety consent in advance to any extension of time as may be given by City to 
Developer, and waives any and all right to notice of such extension(s).  Developer’s acceptance of 
an extension of time granted by City shall constitute a waiver by Developer and its surety of all 
defense of laches, estoppel, statutes of limitations, and other limitations of action in any action or 
proceeding filed by City following the date on which the Public Improvements were to have been 
completed hereunder.  In addition, as consideration for granting such extension to Developer, City 
reserves the right to review the provisions of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the 
construction standards, the cost estimates established by City, and the sufficiency of the Security 
provided by Developer, and to require adjustments thereto when warranted according to City’s 
reasonable discretion. 


4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law 
related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has 
provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or otherwise not 
complete required or agreed upon Public Improvements. 


5. GRADING.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in 
conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel No. 36492-1 
shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and other requirements, 
including City’s grading regulations.  All grading, landscaping, and construction activities shall be 
performed in a manner to control erosion and prevent flooding problems.  The City Engineer shall 
have the authority to require erosion plans to prescribe reasonable controls on the method, manner, 
and time of grading, landscaping, and construction activities to prevent nuisances to surrounding 
properties.  Plans shall include without limitation temporary drainage and erosion control 
requirements, dust control procedures, restrictions on truck and other construction traffic routes, 
noise abatement procedures, storage of materials and equipment, removal of garbage, trash, and 
refuse, securing the job site to prevent injury, and similar matters.  In order to prevent damage to 
the Public Improvements by improper drainage or other hazards, the grading shall be completed 
in accordance with the time schedule for completion of the Public Improvements established by 
this Agreement, and prior to City’s approval and acceptance of the Public Improvements and 
release of the Security as set forth in Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement. 


6. UTILITIES.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, 
power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel No. 36492-
1 in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, 
but not limited to, the regulations, schedules and fees of the utilities or agencies providing such 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 6 -  


 


services.  Except for commercial or industrial properties, Developer shall also provide cable 
television facilities to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to, the requirements 
of the cable company possessing a valid franchise with City to provide such service within City’s 
jurisdictional limits.  All utilities shall be installed underground. 


7. FEES AND CHARGES.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, 
pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, 
but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspection, and other service fees, 
and any impact or connection fees established by City ordinance, resolution, regulation, or policy, 
or as established by City relative to Parcel No. 36492-1, or as required by other governmental 
agencies having jurisdiction over Parcel No. 36492-1. 


8. CITY INSPECTION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall, at its 
sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, 
maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by City of the Public 
Improvements and areas where construction of the Public Improvements is occurring or will occur.  
If the City inspector requests it, the Developer at any time before acceptance of the Public 
Improvements shall remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be directed 
which have not previously been inspected.  After examination, the Developer shall restore said 
portions of the work to the standards required hereunder.  Inspection or supervision by the City 
shall not be considered as direct control of the individual workmen on the job site.  City’s inspector 
shall have the authority to stop any and all work not in accordance with the requirements contained 
or referenced in this Agreement.  The inspection of the work by City shall not relieve Developer 
or the contractor of any obligations to fulfill this Agreement as herein provided, and unsuitable 
materials or work may be rejected notwithstanding that such materials or work may have been 
previously overlooked or accepted.   


9. ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or 
any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer 
fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its surety shall be jointly 
and severally liable to City for all administrative expenses, fees, and costs, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in obtaining compliance with this Agreement or in processing 
any legal action or for any other remedies permitted by law. 


10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD 
DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed 
portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are 
complete, which shall not release or modify Developer’s obligation to complete the remainder of 
the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement.   


10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance 
of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County 
of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in accordance with 
Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, at which time the 
accepted Public Improvements shall become the sole and exclusive property of City without 
payment therefor. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 7 -  


 


10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel No. 36492-1 was 
approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the 
improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approved by 
City.  Issuance by City of occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the Property 
shall not be construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any Public 
Improvements.   


10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until 
Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engineer for 
all such Public Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and shall reflect the condition of 
the Public Improvements as constructed, with all changes incorporated therein. 


11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees 
all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished 
in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping within the 
Property in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City, for a period of one (1) 
year following completion of the work and acceptance by City.  During the Warranty, Developer 
shall repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory portion of the Public 
Improvements, in accordance with the current ordinances, resolutions, regulations, codes, 
standards, or other requirements of City, and to the approval of the City Engineer.  All repairs, 
replacements, or reconstruction during the Warranty shall be at the sole cost, expense, and liability 
of Developer and its surety.  As to any Public Improvements which have been repaired, replaced, 
or reconstructed during the Warranty, Developer and its surety hereby agree to extend the 
Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s acceptance of the repaired, 
replaced, or reconstructed Public Improvements.  Nothing herein shall relieve Developer from any 
other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to repair, replace, or reconstruct any 
Public Improvement following expiration of the Warranty or any extension thereof.  Developer’s 
warranty obligation under this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 


12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, Developer 
shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security acceptable to 
the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.   


12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the 
Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time 
prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 [Construction 
Schedule], in its sole and absolute discretion, that the Estimated Costs have changed, Developer 
shall adjust the Security in the amount requested by City.  Developer’s compliance with this 
provision (Section 12.0 et seq.) shall in no way limit or modify Developer’s indemnification 
obligation provided in Section 16.0 of this Agreement. 


12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the 
Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in 
default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Developer’s one-year 
guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements, including the maintenance of all  landscaping 
in a vigorous and thriving condition, Developer shall provide City a faithful performance bond in 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 8 -  


 


the amount of Five Million Five Hundred Ninety Six Dollars ($5,596,000.00), which sum shall be 
not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Estimated Costs. 


12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute 
discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions 
of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepted by City, 
provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or condition of 
approval for Parcel No. 36492-1, and the total remaining Security is not less than twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the Estimated Costs.  All Security provided under this section shall be released 
at the end of the Warranty period, or any extension thereof as provided in Section 11.0 of this 
Agreement, provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or 
condition of approval for Parcel No. 36492-1. 


12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, 
subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment 
for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall provide City a 
labor and materials bond in the amount of Three Million Three Hundred Fifty- Seven Thousand 
Six Hundred Dollars ($3,357,600.00), which sum shall not be less than fifty percent (50%) of the 
Estimated Costs.  The Security provided under this section may be released by written 
authorization of the City Engineer after six (6) months from the date City accepts the final Public 
Improvements.  The amount of such Security shall be reduced by the total of all stop notice or 
mechanic’s lien claims of which City is aware, plus an amount equal to twenty percent (20%) of 
such claims for reimbursement of City’s anticipated administrative and legal expenses arising out 
of such claims. 


12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds 
provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or 
insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satisfactory to 
City.  As part of the obligation secured by the Security and in addition to the face amount of the 
Security, the Developer or its surety shall secure the costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred by City in enforcing the obligations of this 
Agreement.  The Developer and its surety stipulate and agree that no change, extension of time, 
alteration, or addition to the terms of this Agreement, the Public Improvements, or the plans and 
specifications for the Public Improvements shall in any way affect its obligation on the Security. 


12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided on 
the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City Engineer 
and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of City, the forms 
and evidence of the Security shall be attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein by 
this reference. 


12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et 
seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien 
agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code 
Section 16.56.030.  The Lien Agreement shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and 
incorporated herein by this reference.   







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 9 -  


 


12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in 
order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to 
cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrument, and to take no 
action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  Notwithstanding the 
giving of any Security instrument or the subsequent expiration of any Security instrument or any 
failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its obligations with respect thereto, 
Developer shall be personally liable for performance under this Agreement and for payment of the 
cost of the labor and materials for the improvements required to be constructed or installed hereby 
and shall, within ten (10) days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such substitute 
Security as City shall require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12. 


13. MONUMENT SECURITY.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to 
guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot 
corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel No. 36492-1 in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of City’s Municipal and/or Development Code (“Subdivision Monuments”), Developer 
shall deposit cash or a surety bond with City in the amount of Fourteen Thousand Sixty Dollars 
($14,060.00), which sum shall not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the costs of setting 
the Subdivision Monuments as determined by the City Engineer.  Said cash deposit or surety bond 
may be released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all required Subdivision 
Monuments are accepted by the City Engineer, City has received written acknowledgment of 
payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the Subdivision Monuments, and provided 
Developer is not in default of any provision of this Agreement or condition of approval for Parcel 
No.36492-1. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if City accepts a lien agreement as security for the 
Improvements under Section 12.2 of this Agreement, such lien agreement may serve as the security 
for some or all of the Subdivision Monuments, as determined by the City Engineer.    


14. LIEN.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to Sections 
12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in favor of City a lien against 
all portions of the Property not dedicated to City or some other governmental agency for a public 
purpose.  As to Developer’s default on those obligations for which security has been provided 
pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, City shall first attempt to collect 
against such security prior to exercising its rights as a contract lienholder under this section. 


15. SIGNS AND ADVERTISING.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s 
ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer 
hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to Developer, of 
all signs or other advertising structures erected, placed, or situated in violation of any City 
ordinance, regulation, or other requirement.  Removal shall be at the expense of Developer and its 
surety.  Developer and its surety shall indemnify and hold City free and harmless from any claim 
or demand arising out of or incident to signs, advertising structures, or their removal. 


16. INDEMNIFICATION.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, 
demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to property or persons, including 
wrongful death, whether imposed by a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, 
state, or local governmental body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, omissions, 
negligence, or willful misconduct of Developer, its personnel, employees, agents, or contractors 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 10 -  


 


in connection with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Public Improvements, or 
performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, the payment 
of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and related costs or expenses, 
and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and/or agents for all legal 
expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  This indemnification excludes only such portion of 
any claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or 
persons, including wrongful death, which is caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence 
or willful misconduct of City as determined by a court or administrative body of competent 
jurisdiction.  Developer’s obligation to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or termination 
of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, or agents.  


17. INSURANCE. 


17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require 
its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant 
to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below.  If any of the 
Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such insurance shall apply separately to 
this Agreement or be no less than two times the specified occurrence limit.  


17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and 
maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $3,000,000 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage. The General Aggregate 
shall be twice the occurrence limit or shall apply separately to each project. If Developer maintains 
higher limits than the specified minimum limits, City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for 
the higher limits maintained by Developer. The General Liability policy shall not contain a 
Contractors' Warranty or other similar language which eliminates or restricts insurance because of 
a subcontractor's failure to carry specific insurance or to supply evidence of such insurance 


17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall include coverage for 
the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle owned,  hired, 
and non-owned  by the insured or for which the insured is responsible. 


17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code 
of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Accident; 
$1,000,000 Disease per employee; $1,000,000 Disease per policy at all times during which insured 
retains employees. 


17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional 
who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions 
with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability.  Coverage applicable to the work performed under this agreement shall be 
continued for five (5) years after completion of the work . Such continuation coverage may be 
provided by one of the following: (1) renewal of the existing policy; (2) an extended reporting 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 11 -  


 


period endorsement; or (3) replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the 
commencement of the work under this agreement. 


17.1.5 Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution 
Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any 
location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. Any 
deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate of Insurance.  If the deductible 
or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it shall be approved in advance by the City.  Developer 
and its contractors are responsible for any deductible or self-insured retention and shall fund it 
upon the City’s written request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors have a claim 
against the insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an additional insured for 
liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the Developer and its 
contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) year after completion of the work. 
The insurance provided to the additional insureds shall apply on a primary and non-contributory 
basis with respect to any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by them. If the insurance 
is on a Claims-Made basis, the retroactive date shall be no later than the commencement of work. 
The insurance shall be continued for one (1) year after completion of the work.  If the insurance is 
on a Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage may be provided by: (a) renewal of the existing 
policy; (b) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (c) replacement insurance with a 
retroactive date no later than the commencement of the work. 


17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its contractors shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, 
claims, and administrative and defense expenses. 


17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance 
(except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect to work performed 
by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, including materials, parts, or equipment furnished 
in connection therewith City shall be endorsed as an additional insured for liability arising out of 
ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the contractor. City shall continue to be an 
additional insured for completed operations for (1) year after completion of the work.   The policy 
shall cover inter-insured suits and include a “Separation of Insureds” or “severability” clause 
which treats each insured separately and shall contain no special limitations on the scope of its 
protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 


17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General Liability 
Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non-contributory with, any 
insurance or self-insurance program maintained by the City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the Required Insurance shall provide that the 
insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation against City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 12 -  


 


17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City 
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required 
Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All certificates and endorsements must 
be received and approved by City before work pursuant to this Agreement can begin.  City reserves 
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 


17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain 
the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or 
endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall provide immediate written notice 
if (1) any of the required insurance policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required 
polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible or self-insured retention is increased.  In the event of any 
cancellation or reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, Developer shall forthwith obtain 
and submit proof of substitute insurance.  Should Developer fail to immediately procure other 
insurance, as specified, to substitute for any canceled policy, the City may procure such insurance 
at Developer’s sole cost and expense. 


17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall be placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with 
a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII. 


18. DEFAULT; NOTICE; REMEDIES. 


18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete 
any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of 
any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or other requirement, City 
may at any time thereafter declare Developer to be in default or violation of this Agreement and 
make written demand upon Developer or its surety, or both, to immediately remedy the default or 
violation.  Developer shall commence the work required to remedy the default or violation within 
ten (10) days of the written demand from the City.  If the default or violation constitutes an 
immediate threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, City may provide the demand verbally, 
and Developer shall commence the required work within twenty-four (24) hours thereof.  
Immediately upon City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, Developer and its surety 
shall be liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the Public Improvements and 
all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 of this Agreement. 


18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to 
City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all remaining work, 
arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct such remedial activity as in its 
sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to remedy the default or violation.  All such 
work or remedial activity shall be at the sole and absolute cost, expense, and liability of Developer 
and its surety, without the necessity of giving any further notice to Developer or surety.  City’s 
right to take such actions shall in no way be limited by the fact that Developer or its surety may 
have constructed any, or none of the required or agreed upon Public Improvements at the time of 
City’s demand for performance.  In the event City elects to complete or arrange for completion of 
the remaining work and improvements, City may require all work by Developer or its surety to 
cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 13 -  


 


conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if the interests of City will not be 
prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to acreage and thereafter recover from 
Developer or its surety the full cost and expense incurred. 


18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of this 
Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or 
equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise it rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue inconsistent 
remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or specific performance. 


19. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 


19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents 
and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of 
the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including 
necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement. 


19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 


19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall 
be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 
term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work 
days.  All references to Developer include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of 
Developer, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this 
Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 
reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this 
Agreement. 


19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications shall 
be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties may 
designate by written notice: 


CITY: 


City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, CA  92595 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 14 -  


 


DEVELOPER: 


Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC 
41391 Kalmia Street, Ste 200 
Murrieta, CA 92562 
___________________________________ 


Depending upon the method of transmittal, notice shall be deemed received as follows:  by 
facsimile, as of the date and time sent provided the original is contemporaneously deposited with 
United States Postal Service and delivered by regular mail; by messenger, as of the date delivered; 
and by U.S. Mail first class postage prepaid, as of 72 hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail. 


19.5 Amendment; Modification.  No amendment to or modification of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Developer and by the City.  
The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting 
substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby 
authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or 
that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement. Waiver.  City’s failure to insist 
upon strict compliance with any provision of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege 
provided herein, or City’s waiver of any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Developer of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing 
shall be true whether City’s actions are intentional or unintentional.  Developer agrees to waive, 
as a defense, counterclaim or set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the 
authorization, execution or performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement, as well as 
the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with regards to the authorization, 
execution or performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement. 


19.6 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, 
hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest 
herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any 
assignee, hypothecate, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in City’s written 
consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not release or discharge Developer from 
any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 


19.7 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be 
binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal 
representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authorization for any Party 
to assign any right or obligation. 


19.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 


19.9 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 


19.10 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed 
in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 15 -  


 


proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way arises out of the 
Parties’ activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, shall be filed and prosecuted in the 
appropriate California State Court in the County of Riverside, California.  Each Party waives the 
benefit of any provision of state or federal law providing for a change of venue to any other court 
or jurisdiction including, without limitation, a change of venue based on the fact that a 
governmental entity is a party to the action or proceeding, or that a federal right or question is 
involved or alleged to be involved in the action or proceeding.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing waiver, Developer expressly waives any right to have venue transferred pursuant to 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 


19.11 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action 
or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement 
or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be 
entitled to and recover from the other party all Litigation Expenses.  Any judgment, order, or award 
entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific provision providing for the 
recovery of Litigation Expenses. 


19.12 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree 
that neither this Agreement, any map related to Parcel No. 36492-1, nor any other related 
entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the 
relationship of partnership, joint venture, or agency between City and Developer.  Developer’s 
contractors and subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of 
Developer.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Developer or its contractors an agent or 
contractor of City. 


19.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 


19.14 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective 
until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities 
of City and Developer. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written. 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 















 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


 


EXHIBIT “A” 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


PARCEL NO. 36492-1 


 


 







EXHIBIT "A" 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION 


THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW rs SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF RlVERSIDE, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, AND rs DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 


PARCEL 5 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 9637, IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK 58, PAGE(S) 1 THROUGH 5 INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL 
MAPS, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. 


APN: 380-250-022 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “B” 


LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND CONSTRUCTION PHASING MAP 


PARCEL NO. 36492-1 


 


 







































1
1



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-2



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-1



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-2



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-1



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-2







Not Applicable - Developer opted to use lien agreements instead of surety bonds.


 



























 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “D” 


LIST OF PARCEL  MAP CONDITIONS 
OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED  


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
General/Standard Conditions 
1. In compliance with Section 15094 of the CEQA Guidelines, the NOD 


and filing fee shall be filed with the Riverside County Clerk within five 
(5) working days of project approval by the Planning Commission.  The
Notice shall include the required California Department of Fish and
Game (Code Section 711.4.d.3) and Riverside County Clerk fee
totaling $2,206.25.  Failure to pay the required fee will result in the
project being deemed null and void (California Fish and Game Code
Section 711.4(c).  The above fee is broken down as follows:


a. California Department of Fish & Game = $2,231.25
b. Riverside County Clerk Admin. Fee = $50.00


Oct. 8, 2014 Planning Department Complete per 
Matthew Bassi 


2. The applicant shall review and sign below verifying the “Acceptance of 
the Conditions of Approval” and return the signed page to the Wildomar 
Planning Department no later than November 21, 2018. 


Applicant Signature: Date: 


Nov. 21, 2018 Planning Department 


3. The Applicant shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the 
City, and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, from any and all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions and 
proceedings (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or 
adjudicatory in nature), and alternative dispute resolutions procedures 
(including, but not limited to arbitrations, mediations, and other such 


On-Going Planning Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


procedures), (collectively “Actions”), brought against the City, and/or 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, departments, agencies, 
and instrumentalities thereof, that challenge, attack, or seek to modify, 
set aside, void, or annul, the any action of, or any permit or approval 
issued by, the City and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, 
agents, departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof (including 
actions approved by the voters of the City), for or concerning the project, 
whether such Actions are brought under the California Environmental 
Quality Act, the Planning and Zoning Law, the Subdivision Map Act, 
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1085 or 1094.5, or any other state, 
federal, or local statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or any decision 
of a court of competent jurisdiction. City shall promptly notify the 
Applicant of any Action brought and request that Applicant defend the 
City. It is expressly agreed that Applicant may select legal counsel 
providing the Applicant’s defense and the City shall have the right to 
approve separate legal counsel providing the City’s defense. The 
Applicant shall reimburse City for any attorneys’ fees, costs and 
expenses directly and necessarily incurred by the City in the course of 
the defense. Applicant agrees that City will forward monthly invoices to 
Applicant for attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses it has incurred related 
to its defense of any Action and Applicant agrees to timely payment 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice. Within fourteen (14) days 
of an Action being filed, Applicant agrees to post adequate security or a 
cash deposit with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated 
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses incurred by City in the course of 
the defense in order to ensure timely payment of the City’s invoices. 
The amount of the security or cash deposit shall be determined by the 
City. City shall cooperate with Applicant in the defense of any Action.  







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


4. In accordance with Section 66020.d.1 of the Government Code, the 
applicant has 90 days (1/1/15) from project approval to file a protest of 
the imposition of fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions 
being imposed on this project.  Notice is hereby to the Applicant that the 
90-day appeal hereby begins with approval of this project.


Jan. 1, 2015 Planning Department Complete per 
Matthew Bassi 


5. Approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 shall expire on October 1, 
2021 (via EOT #3) if the final map has not been recorded.  The applicant 
may file with the Planning Department a request for a final 2-year time 
extension as permitted in the Wildomar Subdivision Ordinance provided 
a written request is made with the required EOT application and fee no 
later than October 1, 2021. 


October 1, 2021 Planning Department 


6. Within 30 days of approval by the Planning Commission of Tentative 
Parcel Map No. 36492, the applicant shall pay all outstanding deposit 
account balances, as applicable.  Failure to pay the outstanding balance 
by the due date may result in delays in the processing of the final map. 


Nov. 1, 2014 Planning Department Complete per 
Matthew Bassi 


7. Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 shall be subdivided in accordance with 
the tentative parcel map approved by the Planning Commission on 
October 1, 2014. The applicant may request a modification/revision to 
the approved project as outlined in the Wildomar Subdivision 
Ordinance. 


On-Going Planning Department 


8. The proposed development project under Plot Plan No. 12-0053 shall 
comply with the standards and requirements of the City’s Light Pollution 
Ordinance (Chapter 8.64 of the WMC). 


On-Going Planning Department 


9. The proposed Project shall comply with existing SCAQMD rules for the 
reduction of fugitive dust emissions in accordance with SCAQMD Rule 
403. 


On-Going Planning Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


10. All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, Ordinance 
457, and all other relevant laws, rules, and regulations governing 
grading in the City of Wildomar.  Prior to commencing any grading which 
includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall obtain a grading 
permit from the Building Department. 


On-Going Planning Department 


11. Erosion control-landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded per the requirements of Ordinance 457 
(refer to dept. form 284-47).  Planting shall occur within 30 days of 
meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to ensure slope coverage 
prior to the rainy season.  The developer shall plant and irrigate all 
manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal to vertical) ratio and 
3 feet or greater in vertical height with grass or ground cover; slopes 15 
feet or greater in vertical height shall be planted with additional shrubs 
or trees or as approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Planning Department 


12. As required by Chapter 8.56 of the WMC, subsequent development on 
the site will need to comply with the County of Riverside, Department of 
Environmental Health, Local Enforcement Agency (LEA) for all activities 
related to potential hazardous materials. 


On-Going Planning Department 


13. The proposed Project shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 
9.48 of the WMC. On-Going Planning Department 


14. If human remains are encountered during grading activities, State 
Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further 
disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made 
the necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to Public 
Resource Code Section 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in place and 
free from disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and 


On-Going Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


disposition has been made.  If the Riverside County Coroner determines 
the remains to be Native American, the Native American Heritage 
Commission shall be contacted within a reasonable timeframe. 
Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission shall identify 
the "most likely descendant."  The most likely descendant shall then 
make recommendations and engage in consultation concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98. 


MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION (IS/MND) Mitigation Measures: 
15.  AQ-1 Construction Mitigation 


a. Install and maintain track-out control devices in effective 
condition at all access points where paved and unpaved access 
or travel routes intersect (i.e., install wheel shakers, wheel 
washers, and limit site access.) 


b. Limit fugitive dust sources to 20 percent opacity. 
c. Require a dust control plan for earthmoving operations. 
d. When materials are transported off-site, all material shall be 


covered, effectively wetted to limit visible dust emissions, and 
at least six inches of freeboard space from the top of the 
container shall be maintained. 


e. The contractor or builder shall designate a person or persons 
to monitor the dust control program and to order increased 
watering, as necessary, to prevent transport of dust offsite. 


f. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and 
person to contact regarding dust complaints. This person shall 
respond and take corrective action within 24 hours. 


During construction 
activities 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


g. Any on-site stockpiles of debris, dirt or other dusty material shall 
be covered or watered three times daily. 


h. A high wind response plan shall be formulated for enhanced 
dust control if winds are forecast to exceed 25 mph in any 
upcoming 24-hour period. 


i. Require high pressure injectors on diesel construction 
equipment.* 


j. Utilize only CARB Tier 3 or better certified equipment for 
construction activities.* 


k. The developer shall require all contractors to turn off all 
construction equipment and delivery vehicles when not in use 
and/or idling in excess of 3 minutes.* 


l. Suspend use of all construction equipment operations during 
second stage smog alerts.* 


* Would reduce impacts to GHG’s as well 
16.  AQ-2 Operation Mitigation 


a. Install EV charging facilities for a minimum of 1% of all parking 
spaces.* 


b. Provide preferential parking locations for EVs and CNG 
vehicles.* 


c. Plant shade trees in parking lots to provide minimum 50% cover 
to reduce evaporative emissions from parked vehicles.* 


d. Plant Low-OFP, native, drought-resistant, tree and shrub 
species, 20% in excess of that required by city ordinance. 
Consider roadside, sidewalk, and driveway shading.* 


e. Prohibit gas powered landscape maintenance equipment. 


Implemented 
during site 
plan/plan check 
review and verified 
prior to Certificate 
of Occupancy 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


Require landscape maintenance companies to use battery 
powered or electric equipment or contract only with commercial 
landscapers who operate with equipment that complies with the 
most recent California Air Resources Board certification 
standards, or standards adopted no more than three years prior 
to date of use or any combination of these two themes.* 


f. Provide secure, bicycle parking for employees.*
g. Provide direct safe, direct bicycle access to adjacent bicycle


routes.*
h. Provide short-term bicycle parking for retail customers and


other non-commute trips.*
* Would reduce impacts to GHG’s as well.


17. BIO-1 Prior to any off-site grading, a biologist should assess the area 
to determine if potentially suitable habitat for sensitive plant species 
occurs.  If potentially suitable habitat is determined present, focused 
surveys should be conducted for sensitive plant species.  


Implemented prior 
to any off-site 
grading 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


18. BIO-2 The proposed Project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat 
Habitat Conservation Plan (SKR HCP) fee area and will be subject to 
the SKR HCP Fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 336 (as amended 
through 663.10). This fee is currently $500 per gross acre of the parcels 
proposed for development and must be paid upon issuance of a 
Grading Permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to 
the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat habitat. 


The fee must be 
paid prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


19. BIO-3  Due to the presence of suitable habitat and in compliance with 
the MSHCP, a pre-construction survey for burrowing owl is required 


Implemented 30 
days prior to 
ground disturbance 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


within 30 days prior to ground disturbance to avoid potential direct take 
of burrowing owls in the future. 


Engineering 
Departments 


20.  BIO-4   If burrowing owls are determined present following focused 
surveys, occupied burrows shall be avoided to the greatest extent 
feasible, following the guidelines in the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl 
Mitigation published by Department of Fish and Game (March 7, 2012) 
including, but not limited to, conducting pre-construction surveys, 
avoiding occupied burrows during the nesting and non-breeding 
seasons, implementing a worker awareness program, biological 
monitoring, establishing avoidance buffers, and flagging burrows for 
avoidance with visible markers.  If occupied burrows cannot be avoided, 
acceptable methods may be used to exclude burrowing owl either 
temporarily or permanently, pursuant to a Burrowing Owl Exclusion Plan 
that shall be prepared and approved by CDFG.  The Burrowing Owl 
Exclusion Plan shall be prepared in accordance with the guidelines in 
the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation. 


Implemented prior 
to ground any 
disturbance for 
Phase 2 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 
Engineering 
Departments 


 


21.  BIO-5 Prior to the issuance of any grading permit that would all 
removal of habitat containing raptor and songbird nests, the Project 
applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the City of Wildomar 
that either of the following have been or will be accomplished. 
1. Vegetation removal activities shall be scheduled outside the nesting 


season (September 1 to February 14 for songbirds; September 1 to 
January 14 for raptors) to avoid potential impacts to nesting birds. 


2. Any construction activities that occur during the nesting season 
(February 15 to August 31 for songbirds; January 15 to August 31 
for raptors) will require that all suitable habitat be thoroughly 
surveyed for the presence of nesting birds by a qualified biologist 


Implemented prior 
to the issuance of 
any grading permit 
that would all 
removal of habitat 
containing raptor 
and songbird nests 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 
Engineering 
Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


before commencement of clearing.  If any active nests are detected, 
a buffer of at least 300 feet (500 feet for raptors) will be delineated, 
flagged, and avoided until the nesting cycle is complete as 
determined by the biological monitor to minimize impacts. 


22. BIO-6 Prior to the issuance of any grading permit for permanent 
impacts in the areas designated as jurisdictional features (Figure 13, 
Impacts to Jurisdictional Features, of the BRA), the Project applicant 
shall obtain a CWA Section 404 permit from the USACE, a CWA Section 
401 permit from the RWQCB, and Streambed Alteration Agreement 
permit under Section 1602 of the California Fish and Game Code from 
the CDFG.  The following shall be incorporated into the permitting, 
subject to approval by the regulatory agencies: 
1. On- and/or off-site replacement of USACE/RWQCB jurisdictional


“waters of the U.S.”/“waters of the State” at a ratio no less than 1:1
for permanent impacts, and for any temporary impacts to restore the
impact area to pre-Project conditions (i.e., pre-Project contours and
revegetate).  Off-site replacement may include the purchase of
mitigation credits at an agency-approved off-site mitigation bank.


2. On- and/or off-site replacement of CDFG jurisdictional streambed
and associated riparian habitat at a ratio no less than 2:1 for
permanent impacts, and for any temporary impacts to restore the
impact area to pre-Project conditions (i.e., pre-Project contours and
revegetate).  Off-site replacement may include the purchase of
mitigation credits at an agency-approved off-site mitigation bank.


Implemented prior 
to ground any 
disturbance in 
areas designated 
as jurisdictional 
features 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 
Engineering 
Departments 


23. CUL-1  Prior to any ground-disturbing activity, the Project applicant(s) 
shall include the following wording in all construction contract 
documentation:  


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


If inadvertent discoveries of subsurface archaeological resources are 
discovered during grading, work shall be halted immediately within 50 
feet of the discovery and the Developer, the project archaeologist and 
the Pechanga Tribe shall assess the significance of such resources and 
shall meet and confer regarding the mitigation for such resources.  If the 
developer and the Tribe cannot agree on the significance or the 
mitigation for such resources, these issues will be presented to the City 
of Wildomar Planning Director and a qualified, neutral archeologist hired 
by the applicant and the Tribe for decision.  The Planning Director and 
shall make the determination based on the provisions of CEQA with 
respect to archaeological resources and shall take into account the 
religious beliefs, customs, and practices of the Pechanga Tribe.  
Notwithstanding any other rights available under the law, the decision 
of the Planning Director shall be appealable to the City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission and/or City Council.  In the event the significant 
resources are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist determines 
the resources to be historic or unique, as defined by relevant state and 
local law, mitigation would be required pursuant to and consistent with 
Public Resources Code Section 21083.2 and CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4. 


during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


24.  CUL-2 At least 30 days prior to seeking a grading permit, the Project 
applicant(s) shall contact the appropriate Tribe1 to notify the Tribe of 
grading, excavation, and the adopted monitoring program and to 
coordinate with the City of Wildomar and the Tribe to develop a Cultural 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


                                                           
1 It is anticipated that the Pechanga Tribe will be the “appropriate” Tribe due to their prior and extensive coordination with the City and project applicant in determining potentially 
significant impacts and appropriate mitigation measures.  







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Resources Treatment and Monitoring Agreement.  The agreement shall 
include, but not be limited to, outlining provisions and requirements for 
addressing the treatment of cultural resources; project grading and 
development scheduling; terms of compensation for Tribal monitors; 
and treatment and final disposition of any cultural resources, sacred 
sites, and human remains discovered on the site; and establishing on-
site monitoring provisions and/or requirements for professional Tribal 
monitors during all ground-disturbing activities.  A copy of this signed 
agreement shall be provided to the Planning Director and Building 
Official prior to the issuance of the first grading permit. 


25.  CUL-3 Prior to any authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the Project 
applicant(s) shall include the following wording on all construction 
contract documentation: 
If human remains are encountered, California Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5 requires that no further disturbance shall occur until the 
Riverside County Coroner has made the necessary findings as to origin.  
Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance until 
a final decision as to the treatment and disposition has been made.  If 
the Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be Native 
American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be 
contacted within a reasonable time frame. Subsequently, the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall identify the “most likely 
descendant” within 24 hours of receiving notification from the Coroner.  
The most likely descendant shall then have 48 hours to make 
recommendations and engage in consultations concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98. 


As a condition of 
Project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


26. CUL-4 All cultural materials – with the exception of sacred items, burial 
goods and human remains which will be addressed in the Treatment 
Agreement required in CUL-2, that are collected during the grading 
monitoring program and from any previous archaeological studies or 
excavations on the project site shall be curated according to the current 
professional repository standards.   The collections and associated 
records shall be transferred, including title, to the Pechanga Tribe’s 
curation facility which meets the standards set forth in 36 CRF Part 79 
for federal repositories. 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


27. CUL-5 All sacred sites, should they be encountered within the Project 
site, shall be avoided and preserved as the preferred mitigation, if 
feasible as determined by a qualified professional in consultation with 
Pechanga Tribe.  To the extent that a sacred site cannot be feasibly 
preserved in place or left in an undisturbed state, mitigation measures 
shall be required pursuant to and consistent with Public Resources 
Code Section 21083.2 and CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 
15126.4. 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


28. CUL-6 To address the possibility that cultural resources may be 
encountered during grading or construction, in addition to Tribal 
monitors, a qualified archaeologist shall monitor all construction 
activities that could potentially impact archaeological (e.g., grading, 
excavation, and/or trenching).  However, monitoring may be 
discontinued as soon the qualified professional is satisfied that 
construction will not disturb cultural resources. 


As a condition of 
future development 
approval, and 
implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


29.  CUL-7 A qualified paleontologist or paleontological monitor shall 
monitor all mass grading and excavation activities in areas identified as 
likely to contain paleontological resources.  Monitoring will be conducted 
in areas of grading or excavation in undisturbed outcrops of the 
Pleistocene-age Pauba Formation, as well as where over-excavation of 
surficial alluvial sediments will encounter these formations in the 
subsurface.  Paleontological monitors shall be equipped to salvage 
fossils as they are unearthed to avoid construction delays and to 
remove samples of sediment that are likely to contain the remains of 
small fossil invertebrates and vertebrates.  The monitor must be 
empowered to temporarily halt or divert equipment to allow removal of 
abundant or large specimens in a timely manner.  Monitoring may be 
reduced if the potentially fossiliferous units are not present in the 
subsurface, or if present, are determined upon exposure and 
examination by qualified paleontological personnel to have low potential 
to contain fossil resources. 


As a condition of 
Project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


30.  CUL-8 Recovered specimens shall be prepared to a point of 
identification and permanent preservation, including screen-washing of 
sediments to recover small invertebrates and vertebrates if necessary. 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


31.  CUL-9 Identification and curation of specimens into a professional, 
accredited public museum repository with a commitment to archival 
conservation and permanent retrievable storage shall occur (e.g., the 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Western Center for Archaeology and Paleontology Museum on Searl 
Parkway in Hemet, California). 


during ground-
disturbing activities 


32.  HAZ-1 All spills or leakage of any hazardous products, including 
petroleum products, during  regulations regarding cleanup and disposal 
of the contaminant released.  The contaminated waste will be collected 
and disposed of at an appropriately licensed disposal or treatment 
facility.  This measure shall be incorporated into the Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Plan prepared for the Project development. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 


 


33.  HAZ-2 Prior to the certificate of occupancy for a medical office use, a 
Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan shall be submitted 
to the City for review and retention.  This Plan shall be implemented by 
the medical offices (where hazardous substances are used) and 
annually a report of any accidental releases of hazardous substances, 
impacts to the environment or humans, and the management actions 
taken to control and remediate such spills shall be submitted to the City. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Safety 
Department 


 


34.  HAZ-3 As part of a Business Plan submitted to the City of Wildomar 
Fire Department, the medical offices that handle hazardous materials 
shall include copies of Material Safety Data Sheets for the hazardous 
substances (other than medications) utilized by the facility(ies). 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Safety 
and Fire Departments 


 


35.  HAZ-4 Any storage facility for gas canisters containing hazardous or 
toxic substances shall be enclosed and capable of containing any 
accidental releases of gas.  A warning device shall be incorporated into 
the design of the gas storage containment facility that is capable of 
identifying accidental releases.  Venting of any released gases shall be 
accomplished without creating hazards for the surrounding environment 
or population.  Any leaks shall be reported immediately to the City Fire 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Safety 
and Fire Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


Department as well as other regulatory agencies that are in the 
reporting chain. 


36. HYD-1 Prior to the approval of the grading permit on the proposed 
Project site, the Project applicant(s) shall be required to prepare a 
stormwater pollution and prevention plan (SWPPP) consistent with the 
NPDES General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with 
Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Order No. 2010-0014-
DWQ), which is to be administered through all phases of grading and 
proposed Project construction.  The SWPPP shall incorporate best 
management practices (BMPs) to ensure that potential water quality 
impacts during construction phases are minimized.  The SWPPP shall 
be submitted to the Regional Water Quality Control Board and to the 
City of Wildomar for review.  A copy of the SWPPP must be kept 
accessible on the proposed Project site at all times.  In addition, the 
Project applicant(s) will be required to submit, and obtain City approval 
of, a Water Quality Management Plan prior to the issuance of any 
building or grading permit for future development on the proposed 
Project site in order to comply with the Areawide Urban Runoff 
Management Program.  The proposed Project shall implement site 
design BMPs, source control BMPs, and treatment control BMPs as 
identified in the Water Quality Management Plan.  Site design BMPs 
shall include, but are not limited to, landscape buffer areas, on-site 
ponding areas, roof and paved area runoff directed to vegetated areas, 
and vegetated swales. Source control BMPs shall include, but are not 
limited to, education, landscape maintenance, litter control, parking lot 
sweeping, irrigation design to prevent overspray, and covered trash 
storage.  Treatment control BMPs shall include vegetated swales and a 
detention basin, or an infiltration device. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


37.  NOI-1 To minimize noise impacts resulting from poorly tuned or 
improperly modified vehicles and construction equipment, all vehicles 
and construction equipment shall maintain equipment engines in good 
condition and in proper tune per manufacturers’ specifications to the 
satisfaction of the City of Wildomar Building Department. Equipment 
maintenance records and equipment design specification data sheets 
shall be kept on site during construction.  Compliance with this measure 
shall be subject to periodic inspections by the City of Wildomar Building 
Department. 


Implemented 
during Project 
operations 
 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 


 


38.  NOI-2 The construction contractor shall locate equipment staging in 
areas that will create the greatest distance between construction-related 
noise sources and noise-sensitive receptors (within 100 feet of any 
occupied residence) nearest the proposed Project site during all 
proposed Project construction. 


Implemented 
during Project 
operations 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 
 


 


39.  NOI-3 Stationary noise-generating construction equipment shall be 
placed a minimum of 320 feet from the property line of existing sensitive 
receptors (residences to the south), when and where feasible. 


Implemented 
during Project 
operations 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 


 


40.  NOI-4 Noise control barriers with a height of 6 feet are required where 
grading will occur within 100 feet of any occupied residence. 
It is important to note that the barriers’ attenuation will be accomplished 
only if the minimum height is based from the pad or the roadway 
elevation, whichever is the greater of the two.  If the barrier is being 
constructed at a position where the starting elevation is less than the 
pad or adjacent roadway, the barrier’s ultimate height will need to be 
adjusted to fit the aforementioned criteria. Where applicable, the 
barriers shall wrap around the ends of the dwelling units to prevent 
flanking of noise into the site.  


Prior to the 
issuance of 
occupancy permits 
and during project 
operations 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


41.  NOI-5 Roof-mounted air conditioning equipment shall be set back 
either 25 feet from the building’s closest edge or to a distance capable 
of breaking the line-of-sight of equipment from neighboring potential 
receivers, whichever provides the greater set back from the building’s 
edge of the two.  A subsequent noise study shall be submitted by the 
applicant and reviewed and approved at building plan check stage by 
the City to ensure that the AC units are not generating noise in excess 
of what is allowed under Chapter 9.48 of the Wildomar Municipal Code. 
 


Reviewed at 
building plan check 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 


 


42.  TR-1  The direct traffic impacts generated by the proposed Project can be 
mitigated to a less than significant level, to meet the required level of service 
of the following recommended improvements are implemented, prior to the 
respective phase of development: 
 
 
On-Site Recommendations: 
 
Roadways: 
• Construct partial width improvements on the southerly side of Clinton 


Keith Road at its ultimate cross-section as an urban arterial highway 
(152’ right-of-way) adjacent to proposed Project boundary line. 


• Construct partial width improvements on the westerly side of Elizabeth 
Lane at its ultimate cross-section as a collector street (78’ right-of-way) 
adjacent to proposed Project boundary line. 


• Construct partial width improvements on the easterly side of Yamas 
Drive at its ultimate cross-section as a collector street (78’ right-of-way) 
adjacent to proposed Project boundary line. 


Implemented 
during the 
appropriate Phase 
of proposed Project 
construction 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


Intersections: 
Proposed Project’s actual improvements necessary are shown in italic, 
underlined.  The items that are not bold, italic, underlined are already 
existing). 
• Construct the intersection of proposed Project Driveway 1 (NS) and


Clinton Keith Road (EW) to restrict movement to right-in and right-out
only from the driveway with the following geometrics:


Northbound:   One right-turn lane.  Stop controlled. 
Southbound:  Not applicable. 
Eastbound:  One through lane.  One right-turn lane. 
Westbound:  One through lane. 


• Install a traffic signal at the intersection of Elizabeth Lane (NS) and
Clinton Keith Road (EW) to include the following geometrics:


Northbound: One left-turn lane. One shared through and right-turn 
lane. 
Southbound: One left-turn lane. One shared through and right-turn 
lane. 
Eastbound: One left-turn lane. One through lane. One right-turn lane. 
Westbound: One left-turn lane.  One through lane.  One shared 
through and right-turn lane. 


• Construct the intersection of Elizabeth Lane (NS) and proposed Project
Driveway 2 (EW) with the following geometrics:


Northbound:   One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane. 
Eastbound:  One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane. Stop 
controlled. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Westbound:  One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane.  Stop 
controlled.  


• Construct the intersection of Elizabeth Lane (NS) and proposed Project 
Driveway 3 (EW) with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Southbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 
Eastbound: One shared left-turn and right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 
Westbound:  Not applicable. 


• Construct the intersection of Yamas Drive (NS) and Bunny Trail (EW) 
with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  Not applicable. 
Southbound:  One right-turn lane. 
Eastbound:  One shared left-turn and right-turn lane.  Stop controlled  
Westbound:  Not applicable. 


• Construct the intersection of Project Driveway 4 (NS) and Bunny Trail 
(EW) with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  Not Applicable. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn & right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 
Eastbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Westbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 


• Construct the intersection of Yamas Drive (NS) and proposed Project 
Driveway 5(EW) with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Eastbound:   Not applicable. 
Westbound:  One shared left-turn and right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


• Construct the intersection of Yamas Drive (NS) and Bunny Trail (EW)
with the following geometrics:


Northbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Eastbound:  Not applicable. 
Westbound: One shared left-turn & right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 


Prior to Issuance of a Grading Permit 
43. Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a final 


geotechnical soils reports to the City Engineer for review and approval 
prior to issuance of grading permit. All grading shall be in conformance 
with the recommendations of the geotechnical/soils reports as approved 
by the City of Wildomar. 


On-Going Planning Department 


44. Prior to the issuance of the 1st grading permit the applicant shall receive 
approval of a haul permit for any import of material to the site or export 
of material off-site.  The request for a haul permit shall include a haul 
route plan addressing the limitations of haul hours, number of loads per 
day and the posting of traffic control personnel at all approved 
entrances/exits onto public roads.  This haul permit shall be in place 
prior to the issuance of the grading permit and the mobilization of 
equipment on the project site.  If the proposed material source or 
disposal site was not previously evaluated by the mitigated negative 
declaration, a grading EA shall be approved by the planning director 
prior to the issuance of the haul permit. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 


45. Concurrent with the precise grading plan submittal, the applicant shall 
submit two sets of detailed landscape and irrigation plans, including on-
site and public right-of-way areas.  The landscaping and irrigation plans 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Planning Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


shall be approved by the Planning Department prior to the issuance of 
any grading permit for the project. 


PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING/BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
General Requirements/Conditions 
1. The developer shall obtain City approval for any modifications or 


revisions to the approval of this project.  Deviations not identified on the 
plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting in the need 
for the project to be redesigned.  Amended entitlement approvals may 
be necessary as a result. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


2. The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct all improvements in 
accordance the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


3. The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with off-site 
right-of-way acquisition, including any costs associated with the eminent 
domain process, if necessary. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


4. Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district, the project 
proponent shall, make application for and pay for their reapportionment 
of the assessments or pay the unit fees in the benefit district unless said 
fees are otherwise deferred. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


5. The developer shall annex into the City’s Community Facility District 
(CFD 2013-1 Services) and pay associated costs for annexation. 
Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district that 
duplicates the services to be covered under CFD 2013-1 then the 
developer shall de-annex from said assessment/benefit district. 


Prior to Map 
Recordation 


Engineering Dept. Complete
1/15/2020
CFD # 18
D. York







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


6. The developer shall design and construct all driveways in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


7. The improvement plans for the required public improvements must be 
prepared and shall be based upon a design profile extending a minimum 
of 300 feet beyond the project boundaries at a grade and alignment as 
approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


8. All above-ground utilities, including but not limited to communication 
and power that are 33KV in size or less, shall be undergrounded by the 
developer in accordance with City requirements. The undergrounding 
of utilities shall be reflected on the project improvement plans. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


9. All flood control plans to be reviewed by the City or the Riverside County 
Flood Control District (RCFCD) shall be submitted through the City of 
Wildomar, unless otherwise directed by the City Engineer.  For projects 
requiring RCFCD review the developer shall pay the appropriate fees to 
RCFCD. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


Prior to Recordation of the Final Map 
10. Prior to final map approval, improvement plans shall be prepared, 


processed, approved and complete the improvements; or execute an 
Improvement Agreement and Improvement Security.  This condition 
shall be in conformance with local regulations and the Subdivision Map 
Act.  Should the developer execute an Improvement Agreement and 
Security, improvement plans will be required prior to issuance of 
Building Permit and construction complete prior to first certificate of 
occupancy.  Refer to Conditions of Approval for the Plot Plan 12-0053. 


Prior to Final Map 
Approval for All 


Phases 


Public Works Dept. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


11. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the southern 
half - section of Clinton Keith Road, measured, 76’ from the approved 
centerline. Right of way will be based on a modified 152’ urban arterial, 
Standard No. 91, in accordance with the City of Wildomar Improvement 
Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
Refer to MND Mitigation Measure TR-1. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Phase A 


Engineering Dept. 


12. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the western 
half - section of Elizabeth Lane, measured, 39’ from the approved 
centerline. Right of way will be based on a 78’ industrial collector, 
Standard No. 111, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  Refer to MND Mitigation Measure TR-1. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map; 
Phase A and 


Phase B 


Engineering Dept. 


13. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the northerly 
half - section of Bunny Trail, measured, 39’ from the approved 
centerline.  Right of way will be based on a 78’ industrial collector, 
Standard No. 111, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map; 
Phase B and 


Phase C 


Engineering Dept. 


14. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the easterly 
half - section of Yamas Drive, measured, 39’ from the approved 
centerline.  Right of way will be based on a 78’ industrial collector, 
Standard No. 111, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  The developer shall prepare legal description and plat to 
support City acceptance by Resolution the road easement for Yamas 
Drive to be recorded prior to recordation of the Final Map. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map; 
Phase C 


Engineering Dept. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


15. The Applicant shall provide a reciprocal access easement between the 
parcels 1, 2 and 3 to ensure access to Clinton Keith Road and Elizabeth 
Lane.  And provide a reciprocal access easement between parcels 2 
and 4 to ensure access to Elizabeth Lane.  The location of the access 
point(s) shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and will be 
approved when these parcels are developed. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Phase A and 


Phase B 


Engineering Dept. 


16. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate easements for 
the storm drainage systems as shown on the tentative map.  Facilities 
that are to be owned and maintained by Riverside County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District (RCFC) shall be reviewed, approved 
and agreements executed. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map  
All Phases 


Engineering Dept. 


17. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate a public utility 
easement adjacent to all public and private streets for overhead and/or 
underground facilities and appurtenances to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
All Phases 


Engineering Dept. 


RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
General Conditions – Parcel Map No. 36492 
1. 10.FIRE.999PC - #01 – West Fire Protection Planning Office


Responsibility 
It is the responsibility of the recipient of these Fire Department 
conditions to forward them to all interested parties.  The permit number 
(as it is noted above) is required on all correspondence. 
Additional information is available at our website:  www.rvcfire.org go to 
the link marked “Ordinance 787”.  Questions should be directed to the 
Riverside County Fire Department, Fire Protection Planning Division at 


On-Going Fire Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


2300 Market St. Suite 150, Riverside, CA 92501.  Phone: (951) 955-
4777. 


2.  10.FIRE.999 CASE –CITY CASE STATEMENT IN EFFECT 
With respect to the conditions of approval for the referenced project, the 
Fire Department recommends the following fire protection measures be 
provided In accordance with Riverside County Ordinances and /or 
recognized fire protection standards: 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


3.  10.FIRE.999 MAP #50-BLUE DOT REFLECTORS IN EFFECT 
Blue retro-reflective pavement markers shall be mounted on private 
streets, public streets and driveways to indicate location of fire hydrants. 
Prior to installation, placement of markers must be approved by the 
Riverside County Fire Department. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


4.  10.FIRE.999 MAP-15-POTENTIAL FIRE FLOW IN EFFECT 
Minimum required fire flow shall be 40000 GPM for 2 hours duration at 
20 PSI residual operating pressure, which must be available before any 
combustible material is placed on the job site. An actual fire flow 
available from any one hydrant shall be 2500 GP for 2 hours duration at 
20 PSI residual operating pressure. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


5.  10.FIRE.999 MAP-#14-COM/RES/HYD/SPACING IN EFFECT 
Approved super fire hydrants, (6” x  4” x 2 ½ ”) shall be located at each 
street not more than 350 feet apart in any direction, with no portion of 
any lot frontage more than 210 feet from a fire hydrant. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


  







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Prior to Recordation of Final Map – Parcel Map No. 36492 
6.  50.FIRE.999 MAPS-#46-WATER PLANS  IN EFFECT 


The applicant or developer shall furnish one copy of the water system 
plans to the Fire Department for review. Plans shall be signed by a 
registered civil engineer, containing a Fire Department approval 
signature block, and shall conform to hydrant type, location, spacing 
and minimum fire flow.  Once plans are signed by local water company, 
the originals shall be presented to the Fire Department for signature. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Fire Department 


 


7.  50.FIRE.999  MAP-#53-ECS-WTR PRIOR/COMBUSTION IN EFFECT 
ECS map must be stamped by Riverside County Surveyor with the 
following Note:  The required water system, including fire hydrants, shall 
be installed and accepted by the appropriate water agency prior to any 
combustible building material placed on an individual lot. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Fire Department 


 


ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT CONDITIONS 
1.  The applicant shall be required to comply with all applicable EVMWD 


water and sewer conditions of approval for Parcel Map No. 36492 and 
Plot Plan No. 12-0053. The applicant shall contact Imad Baiyasi at 951-
674-3146, Ext. 8786 for additional details.  


On-Going EVMWD Staff  


 


 
END 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “E” 
LIEN AGREEMENT 











































 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


 


EXHIBIT “A” 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


PARCEL NO. 36492-1 


 


 







EXHIBIT "A" 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION 


THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW rs SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF RlVERSIDE, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, AND rs DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 


PARCEL 5 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 9637, IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK 58, PAGE(S) 1 THROUGH 5 INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL 
MAPS, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. 


APN: 380-250-022 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “B” 


LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 


PARCEL NO. 36492-1 


 


 







































 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  


RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
(Document exempt from recording fees 
pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code § 27383) 
 
CITY OF WILDOMAR 
Attn: City Clerk 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, California 92595 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


THIS SPACE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 


 
 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT  


PARCEL MAP 36492-2 


 


By and Between 


 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR,  
a municipal corporation 


 


and 


 


Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC 


 


 


 


DATED ________________________, 2021__ 
 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 1 -  


 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


PARCEL MAP 36492-2 


 


This Subdivision Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this ____ 
day of _________, 20__ by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) 
and Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC_ (“Developer”).  City and Developer are 
sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to 
as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


A. Developer has submitted to City an application for approval of a parcel map for real 
property located within City, a legal description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  The 
parcel map is identified in City records as Parcel Map No. 36492-2.  On October 1, 2014, the City 
conditionally approved Parcel No. 36492. 


B. Developer has not completed all of the work or made all of the Public 
Improvements required by the Subdivision Map Act (Government Code sections 66410 et seq.), 
(“Map Act”) the City Ordinances, the conditions of approval for Parcel No. 36492-2, or other 
ordinances, resolutions, or policies of City requiring construction of improvements in conjunction 
with the subdivision of land. 


C. Pursuant to City Ordinances and the applicable provisions of the Map Act, 
Developer and City enter into this Agreement for the timely construction and completion of the 
Public Improvements and the furnishing of the security therefor, acceptable to the City Engineer 
and City Attorney, for Parcel No. 36492-2. 


D. City has authority to enter into this Subdivision Improvement Agreement pursuant 
to Government Code Sections 66499 – 66499.10. 


E. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66499, Developer’s execution of this 
Agreement and the provision of the security are made in consideration of City’s approval of the 
parcel map for Parcel No. 36492-2.  


DEFINED TERMS 


“Developer” shall mean Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC, a California limited liability 
company.  The term “Developer” shall also include all assignees, to the extent permitted under this 
Agreement, of the rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement, and any successor-
in-interest to Developer having a legal and/or equitable interest in the Property. 


“Estimated Costs” shall mean the City Engineer’s approximation of the actual cost to construct 
the Public Improvements, including the replacement cost for all landscaping. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 2 -  


 


“Litigation Expenses” shall mean all costs and expenses, to the extent reasonable in amount, 
actually and necessarily incurred by a party in good faith in the prosecution of an action or 
proceeding, including, but not limited to, court costs, filing, recording, and service fees, copying 
costs, exhibit production costs, special media rental costs, attorneys’ fees, fees for investigators, 
witness fees (both lay and expert), travel expenses, deposition and transcript costs and any other 
cost or expense, the award of which a court of competent jurisdiction may determine to be just and 
reasonable. 


“Map Act” shall mean the Subdivision Map Act, Government Code Sections 66410 et seq. 


“Property” shall mean the all of the real property contained within the boundaries of Parcel Map 
No. 36492-2 located in the City of Wildomar, California, as is more particularly described in the 
legal description and parcel diagram attached hereto and incorporated hereby by reference at 
Exhibit  “A”. 


“Public Improvements” shall include, but not be limited to, all grading, roads, streets, paving, 
curbs and gutters, sidewalks, paseos, pathways, trails, sanitary sewers, utilities, storm drains, 
detention and retention basins and other drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street 
lights and all other facilities required to be constructed and dedicated to the City or other public 
entity as conditions of approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 and as shown in detail on the 
plans, and specifications which have been approved by the City and incorporated into Parcel Map 
No. 36492-2.  The Parties agree that the Public Improvements to be completed by Developer are 
more specifically described in the diagram or plan attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference as Exhibit “B.  Notwithstanding, Exhibit “B”, Developer shall remain obligated to 
construct and complete all of the Public Improvements required as conditions of approval for 
Tentative Parcel Map 36492.   


“Required Insurance” shall mean the insurance required to be maintained by Developer under 
Section 17. 


“Security” shall mean surety bonds, lien agreement or other security approved by the City 
Engineer or City Attorney in the amounts and under the terms of Section 12. 


“Parcel No 36492-2.” shall mean the parcel map prepared and approved by the City for tentative 
parcel map no. 36492. 


“Warranty” shall mean the one year period following completion of the Public Improvements by 
Developer and the acceptance of the Public Improvements by the City in which Developer warrants 
and guarantees all Public Improvements. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the 
parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 


1. EFFECTIVENESS.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all 
four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:   







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 3 -  


 


1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the 
amounts required by this Agreement;  


1.2 Parcel Map and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City 
(“City Council”) approves the parcelmap for Parcel No. 36492-2 and this Agreement; 


1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City 
records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and  


1.4 Record ParcelMap.  Developer records the parcel map for Parcel No. 
36492-2 in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.   


If the above described conditions are not satisfied in the order, manner and within the time 
provided under this Agreement, this Agreement shall automatically terminate without need of 
further action by either City or Developer. 


2. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at 
its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time 
and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Improvements shall 
include any transitions and/or other incidental work deemed necessary for drainage or public 
safety.  The Developer shall be responsible for the replacement, relocation, or removal of any 
component of any irrigation water or sewer system in conflict with the construction or installation 
of the Public Improvements.  Such replacement, relocation, or removal shall be performed to the 
complete satisfaction of the City Engineer and the owner of such water or sewer system.  
Developer further promises and agrees to provide all equipment, tools, materials, labor, tests, 
design work, and engineering services necessary or required by City to fully and adequately 
complete the Public Improvements. 


2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where construction 
of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, Developer 
agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in accordance with this 
Agreement. 


2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals 
and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Public 
Improvements and performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement.  Developer shall 
conduct the work in full compliance with the regulations, rules, and other requirements contained 
in any permit or approval issued to Developer.  Prior to commencing any work, Developer shall 
file a written statement with the City Clerk and the City Engineer, signed by Developer and each 
utility which will provide utility service to the Property, attesting that Developer has made all 
deposits legally required by the utility for the extension and provision of utility service to the 
Property. 


2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from 
commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public 
Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or her designee.  
Approval by the City Engineer shall not relieve Developer from ensuring that all Public 
Improvements conform with all other requirements and standards set forth in this Agreement. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 4 -  


 


2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction 
plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements.  The Public Improvements shall be completed in accordance with all approved maps, 
plans, specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, as well 
as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced.  


2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful 
and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized as being 
employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California.  Developer represents 
and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in the professional calling necessary to 
perform the work.  Developer warrants that all of its employees and contractors shall have 
sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them, and that they shall have all 
licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the work, and that such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement. 


2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements 
made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent 
alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public Improvements 
it is determined that the public interest requires alterations in the Public Improvements, Developer 
shall undertake such design and construction changes as may be reasonably required by City.  Any 
and all alterations in the plans and specifications and the Public Improvements to be completed 
may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof to Developer’s surety for this Agreement. 


2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map 
Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval 
on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been satisfied 
prior to the date of this Agreement are identified on Exhibit “D” hereto. 


3. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND LANDSCAPING.  
City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until 
City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City shall 
exercise no control over the Public Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any use by any 
person of the Public Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and exclusive risk 
of the Developer at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Public Improvements.  Developer 
shall maintain all the Public Improvements in a state of good repair until they are completed by 
Developer and approved and accepted by City, and until the security for the performance of this 
Agreement is released.  Maintenance shall include, but shall not be limited to, repair of pavement, 
curbs, gutters, sidewalks, signals, parkways, water mains, and sewers; maintaining all landscaping 
in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City; removal of debris from sewers 
and storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining in good and safe condition all streets 
and street improvements.  It shall be Developer’s responsibility to initiate all maintenance work, 
but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly perform such maintenance work when notified to do 
so by City.  If Developer fails to properly prosecute its maintenance obligation under this section, 
City may do all work necessary for such maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 5 -  


 


responsibility of Developer and its surety under this Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or 
liable for any damages or injury of any nature in any way related to or caused by the Public 
Improvements or their condition prior to acceptance.   


4. CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 
of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public 
Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the parcel map for Parcel No. 
36492-2. 


4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide 
Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is 
understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement, 
Developer and its surety consent in advance to any extension of time as may be given by City to 
Developer, and waives any and all right to notice of such extension(s).  Developer’s acceptance of 
an extension of time granted by City shall constitute a waiver by Developer and its surety of all 
defense of laches, estoppel, statutes of limitations, and other limitations of action in any action or 
proceeding filed by City following the date on which the Public Improvements were to have been 
completed hereunder.  In addition, as consideration for granting such extension to Developer, City 
reserves the right to review the provisions of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the 
construction standards, the cost estimates established by City, and the sufficiency of the Security 
provided by Developer, and to require adjustments thereto when warranted according to City’s 
reasonable discretion. 


4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law 
related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has 
provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or otherwise not 
complete required or agreed upon Public Improvements. 


5. GRADING.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in 
conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel No. 36492-2 
shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and other requirements, 
including City’s grading regulations.  All grading, landscaping, and construction activities shall be 
performed in a manner to control erosion and prevent flooding problems.  The City Engineer shall 
have the authority to require erosion plans to prescribe reasonable controls on the method, manner, 
and time of grading, landscaping, and construction activities to prevent nuisances to surrounding 
properties.  Plans shall include without limitation temporary drainage and erosion control 
requirements, dust control procedures, restrictions on truck and other construction traffic routes, 
noise abatement procedures, storage of materials and equipment, removal of garbage, trash, and 
refuse, securing the job site to prevent injury, and similar matters.  In order to prevent damage to 
the Public Improvements by improper drainage or other hazards, the grading shall be completed 
in accordance with the time schedule for completion of the Public Improvements established by 
this Agreement, and prior to City’s approval and acceptance of the Public Improvements and 
release of the Security as set forth in Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement. 


6. UTILITIES.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, 
power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel No. 36492-
2 in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, 
but not limited to, the regulations, schedules and fees of the utilities or agencies providing such 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 6 -  


 


services.  Except for commercial or industrial properties, Developer shall also provide cable 
television facilities to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to, the requirements 
of the cable company possessing a valid franchise with City to provide such service within City’s 
jurisdictional limits.  All utilities shall be installed underground. 


7. FEES AND CHARGES.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, 
pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, 
but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspection, and other service fees, 
and any impact or connection fees established by City ordinance, resolution, regulation, or policy, 
or as established by City relative to Parcel No. 36492-2, or as required by other governmental 
agencies having jurisdiction over Parcel No. 36492-2. 


8. CITY INSPECTION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall, at its 
sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, 
maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by City of the Public 
Improvements and areas where construction of the Public Improvements is occurring or will occur.  
If the City inspector requests it, the Developer at any time before acceptance of the Public 
Improvements shall remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be directed 
which have not previously been inspected.  After examination, the Developer shall restore said 
portions of the work to the standards required hereunder.  Inspection or supervision by the City 
shall not be considered as direct control of the individual workmen on the job site.  City’s inspector 
shall have the authority to stop any and all work not in accordance with the requirements contained 
or referenced in this Agreement.  The inspection of the work by City shall not relieve Developer 
or the contractor of any obligations to fulfill this Agreement as herein provided, and unsuitable 
materials or work may be rejected notwithstanding that such materials or work may have been 
previously overlooked or accepted.   


9. ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or 
any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer 
fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its surety shall be jointly 
and severally liable to City for all administrative expenses, fees, and costs, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in obtaining compliance with this Agreement or in processing 
any legal action or for any other remedies permitted by law. 


10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD 
DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed 
portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are 
complete, which shall not release or modify Developer’s obligation to complete the remainder of 
the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement.   


10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance 
of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County 
of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in accordance with 
Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, at which time the 
accepted Public Improvements shall become the sole and exclusive property of City without 
payment therefor. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 7 -  


 


10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel No. 36492-2 was 
approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the 
improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approved by 
City.  Issuance by City of occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the Property 
shall not be construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any Public 
Improvements.   


10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until 
Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engineer for 
all such Public Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and shall reflect the condition of 
the Public Improvements as constructed, with all changes incorporated therein. 


11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees 
all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished 
in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping within the 
Property in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City, for a period of one (1) 
year following completion of the work and acceptance by City.  During the Warranty, Developer 
shall repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory portion of the Public 
Improvements, in accordance with the current ordinances, resolutions, regulations, codes, 
standards, or other requirements of City, and to the approval of the City Engineer.  All repairs, 
replacements, or reconstruction during the Warranty shall be at the sole cost, expense, and liability 
of Developer and its surety.  As to any Public Improvements which have been repaired, replaced, 
or reconstructed during the Warranty, Developer and its surety hereby agree to extend the 
Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s acceptance of the repaired, 
replaced, or reconstructed Public Improvements.  Nothing herein shall relieve Developer from any 
other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to repair, replace, or reconstruct any 
Public Improvement following expiration of the Warranty or any extension thereof.  Developer’s 
warranty obligation under this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 


12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, Developer 
shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security acceptable to 
the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.   


12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the 
Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time 
prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 [Construction 
Schedule], in its sole and absolute discretion, that the Estimated Costs have changed, Developer 
shall adjust the Security in the amount requested by City.  Developer’s compliance with this 
provision (Section 12.0 et seq.) shall in no way limit or modify Developer’s indemnification 
obligation provided in Section 16.0 of this Agreement. 


12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the 
Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in 
default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Developer’s one-year 
guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements, including the maintenance of all  landscaping 
in a vigorous and thriving condition, Developer shall provide City a faithful performance bond in 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 8 -  


 


the amount of Five Million Five Hundred Ninety Six Dollars ($5,596,000.00), which sum shall be 
not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Estimated Costs. 


12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute 
discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions 
of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepted by City, 
provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or condition of 
approval for Parcel No. 36492-2, and the total remaining Security is not less than twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the Estimated Costs.  All Security provided under this section shall be released 
at the end of the Warranty period, or any extension thereof as provided in Section 11.0 of this 
Agreement, provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or 
condition of approval for Parcel No. 36492-2. 


12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, 
subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment 
for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall provide City a 
labor and materials bond in the amount of Three Million Three Hundred Fifty- Seven Thousand 
Six Hundred Dollars ($3,357,600.00), which sum shall not be less than fifty percent (50%) of the 
Estimated Costs.  The Security provided under this section may be released by written 
authorization of the City Engineer after six (6) months from the date City accepts the final Public 
Improvements.  The amount of such Security shall be reduced by the total of all stop notice or 
mechanic’s lien claims of which City is aware, plus an amount equal to twenty percent (20%) of 
such claims for reimbursement of City’s anticipated administrative and legal expenses arising out 
of such claims. 


12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds 
provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or 
insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satisfactory to 
City.  As part of the obligation secured by the Security and in addition to the face amount of the 
Security, the Developer or its surety shall secure the costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred by City in enforcing the obligations of this 
Agreement.  The Developer and its surety stipulate and agree that no change, extension of time, 
alteration, or addition to the terms of this Agreement, the Public Improvements, or the plans and 
specifications for the Public Improvements shall in any way affect its obligation on the Security. 


12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided on 
the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City Engineer 
and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of City, the forms 
and evidence of the Security shall be attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein by 
this reference. 


12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et 
seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien 
agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code 
Section 16.56.030.  The Lien Agreement shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and 
incorporated herein by this reference.   







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 9 -  


 


12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in 
order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to 
cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrument, and to take no 
action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  Notwithstanding the 
giving of any Security instrument or the subsequent expiration of any Security instrument or any 
failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its obligations with respect thereto, 
Developer shall be personally liable for performance under this Agreement and for payment of the 
cost of the labor and materials for the improvements required to be constructed or installed hereby 
and shall, within ten (10) days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such substitute 
Security as City shall require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12. 


13. MONUMENT SECURITY.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to 
guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot 
corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel No. 36492-2 in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of City’s Municipal and/or Development Code (“Subdivision Monuments”), Developer 
shall deposit cash or a surety bond with City in the amount of Fourteen Thousand Sixty Dollars 
($14,060.00), which sum shall not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the costs of setting 
the Subdivision Monuments as determined by the City Engineer.  Said cash deposit or surety bond 
may be released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all required Subdivision 
Monuments are accepted by the City Engineer, City has received written acknowledgment of 
payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the Subdivision Monuments, and provided 
Developer is not in default of any provision of this Agreement or condition of approval for Parcel 
No.36492-2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if City accepts a lien agreement as security for the 
Improvements under Section 12.2 of this Agreement, such lien agreement may serve as the security 
for some or all of the Subdivision Monuments, as determined by the City Engineer.    


14. LIEN.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to Sections 
12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in favor of City a lien against 
all portions of the Property not dedicated to City or some other governmental agency for a public 
purpose.  As to Developer’s default on those obligations for which security has been provided 
pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, City shall first attempt to collect 
against such security prior to exercising its rights as a contract lienholder under this section. 


15. SIGNS AND ADVERTISING.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s 
ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer 
hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to Developer, of 
all signs or other advertising structures erected, placed, or situated in violation of any City 
ordinance, regulation, or other requirement.  Removal shall be at the expense of Developer and its 
surety.  Developer and its surety shall indemnify and hold City free and harmless from any claim 
or demand arising out of or incident to signs, advertising structures, or their removal. 


16. INDEMNIFICATION.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, 
demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to property or persons, including 
wrongful death, whether imposed by a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, 
state, or local governmental body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, omissions, 
negligence, or willful misconduct of Developer, its personnel, employees, agents, or contractors 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 10 -  


 


in connection with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Public Improvements, or 
performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, the payment 
of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and related costs or expenses, 
and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and/or agents for all legal 
expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  This indemnification excludes only such portion of 
any claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or 
persons, including wrongful death, which is caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence 
or willful misconduct of City as determined by a court or administrative body of competent 
jurisdiction.  Developer’s obligation to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or termination 
of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, or agents.  


17. INSURANCE. 


17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require 
its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant 
to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below.  If any of the 
Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such insurance shall apply separately to 
this Agreement or be no less than two times the specified occurrence limit.  


17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and 
maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $3,000,000 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage. The General Aggregate 
shall be twice the occurrence limit or shall apply separately to each project. If Developer maintains 
higher limits than the specified minimum limits, City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for 
the higher limits maintained by Developer. The General Liability policy shall not contain a 
Contractors' Warranty or other similar language which eliminates or restricts insurance because of 
a subcontractor's failure to carry specific insurance or to supply evidence of such insurance 


17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall include coverage for 
the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle owned,  hired, 
and non-owned  by the insured or for which the insured is responsible. 


17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code 
of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Accident; 
$1,000,000 Disease per employee; $1,000,000 Disease per policy at all times during which insured 
retains employees. 


17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional 
who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions 
with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability.  Coverage applicable to the work performed under this agreement shall be 
continued for five (5) years after completion of the work . Such continuation coverage may be 
provided by one of the following: (1) renewal of the existing policy; (2) an extended reporting 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 11 -  


 


period endorsement; or (3) replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the 
commencement of the work under this agreement. 


17.1.5 Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution 
Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any 
location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. Any 
deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate of Insurance.  If the deductible 
or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it shall be approved in advance by the City.  Developer 
and its contractors are responsible for any deductible or self-insured retention and shall fund it 
upon the City’s written request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors have a claim 
against the insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an additional insured for 
liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the Developer and its 
contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) year after completion of the work. 
The insurance provided to the additional insureds shall apply on a primary and non-contributory 
basis with respect to any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by them. If the insurance 
is on a Claims-Made basis, the retroactive date shall be no later than the commencement of work. 
The insurance shall be continued for one (1) year after completion of the work.  If the insurance is 
on a Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage may be provided by: (a) renewal of the existing 
policy; (b) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (c) replacement insurance with a 
retroactive date no later than the commencement of the work. 


17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its contractors shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, 
claims, and administrative and defense expenses. 


17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance 
(except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect to work performed 
by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, including materials, parts, or equipment furnished 
in connection therewith City shall be endorsed as an additional insured for liability arising out of 
ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the contractor. City shall continue to be an 
additional insured for completed operations for (1) year after completion of the work.   The policy 
shall cover inter-insured suits and include a “Separation of Insureds” or “severability” clause 
which treats each insured separately and shall contain no special limitations on the scope of its 
protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 


17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General Liability 
Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non-contributory with, any 
insurance or self-insurance program maintained by the City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the Required Insurance shall provide that the 
insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation against City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 12 -  


 


17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City 
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required 
Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All certificates and endorsements must 
be received and approved by City before work pursuant to this Agreement can begin.  City reserves 
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 


17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain 
the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or 
endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall provide immediate written notice 
if (1) any of the required insurance policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required 
polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible or self-insured retention is increased.  In the event of any 
cancellation or reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, Developer shall forthwith obtain 
and submit proof of substitute insurance.  Should Developer fail to immediately procure other 
insurance, as specified, to substitute for any canceled policy, the City may procure such insurance 
at Developer’s sole cost and expense. 


17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall be placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with 
a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII. 


18. DEFAULT; NOTICE; REMEDIES. 


18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete 
any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of 
any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or other requirement, City 
may at any time thereafter declare Developer to be in default or violation of this Agreement and 
make written demand upon Developer or its surety, or both, to immediately remedy the default or 
violation.  Developer shall commence the work required to remedy the default or violation within 
ten (10) days of the written demand from the City.  If the default or violation constitutes an 
immediate threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, City may provide the demand verbally, 
and Developer shall commence the required work within twenty-four (24) hours thereof.  
Immediately upon City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, Developer and its surety 
shall be liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the Public Improvements and 
all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 of this Agreement. 


18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to 
City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all remaining work, 
arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct such remedial activity as in its 
sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to remedy the default or violation.  All such 
work or remedial activity shall be at the sole and absolute cost, expense, and liability of Developer 
and its surety, without the necessity of giving any further notice to Developer or surety.  City’s 
right to take such actions shall in no way be limited by the fact that Developer or its surety may 
have constructed any, or none of the required or agreed upon Public Improvements at the time of 
City’s demand for performance.  In the event City elects to complete or arrange for completion of 
the remaining work and improvements, City may require all work by Developer or its surety to 
cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 13 -  


 


conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if the interests of City will not be 
prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to acreage and thereafter recover from 
Developer or its surety the full cost and expense incurred. 


18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of this 
Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or 
equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise it rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue inconsistent 
remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or specific performance. 


19. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 


19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents 
and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of 
the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including 
necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement. 


19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 


19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall 
be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 
term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work 
days.  All references to Developer include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of 
Developer, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this 
Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 
reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this 
Agreement. 


19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications shall 
be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties may 
designate by written notice: 


CITY: 


City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, CA  92595 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 14 -  


 


DEVELOPER: 


Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC 
41391 Kalmia Street, Ste 200 
Murrieta, CA 92562 
___________________________________ 


Depending upon the method of transmittal, notice shall be deemed received as follows:  by 
facsimile, as of the date and time sent provided the original is contemporaneously deposited with 
United States Postal Service and delivered by regular mail; by messenger, as of the date delivered; 
and by U.S. Mail first class postage prepaid, as of 72 hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail. 


19.5 Amendment; Modification.  No amendment to or modification of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Developer and by the City.  
The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting 
substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby 
authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or 
that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement. Waiver.  City’s failure to insist 
upon strict compliance with any provision of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege 
provided herein, or City’s waiver of any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Developer of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing 
shall be true whether City’s actions are intentional or unintentional.  Developer agrees to waive, 
as a defense, counterclaim or set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the 
authorization, execution or performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement, as well as 
the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with regards to the authorization, 
execution or performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement. 


19.6 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, 
hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest 
herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any 
assignee, hypothecate, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in City’s written 
consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not release or discharge Developer from 
any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 


19.7 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be 
binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal 
representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authorization for any Party 
to assign any right or obligation. 


19.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 


19.9 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 


19.10 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed 
in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 15 -  


 


proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way arises out of the 
Parties’ activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, shall be filed and prosecuted in the 
appropriate California State Court in the County of Riverside, California.  Each Party waives the 
benefit of any provision of state or federal law providing for a change of venue to any other court 
or jurisdiction including, without limitation, a change of venue based on the fact that a 
governmental entity is a party to the action or proceeding, or that a federal right or question is 
involved or alleged to be involved in the action or proceeding.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing waiver, Developer expressly waives any right to have venue transferred pursuant to 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 


19.11 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action 
or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement 
or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be 
entitled to and recover from the other party all Litigation Expenses.  Any judgment, order, or award 
entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific provision providing for the 
recovery of Litigation Expenses. 


19.12 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree 
that neither this Agreement, any map related to Parcel No. 36492-2, nor any other related 
entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the 
relationship of partnership, joint venture, or agency between City and Developer.  Developer’s 
contractors and subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of 
Developer.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Developer or its contractors an agent or 
contractor of City. 


19.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 


19.14 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective 
until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities 
of City and Developer. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written. 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 















 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


 


EXHIBIT “A” 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


PARCEL NO. 36492-2 


 


 











 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “B” 


LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND CONSTRUCTION PHASING MAP 


PARCEL NO. 36492-2 


 


 







































1
1



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-2



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-1



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-2



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-1



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-2







Not Applicable - Developer opted to use lien agreements instead of surety bonds.


 



























 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “D” 


LIST OF PARCEL  MAP CONDITIONS 
OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED  


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
General/Standard Conditions 
1. In compliance with Section 15094 of the CEQA Guidelines, the NOD 


and filing fee shall be filed with the Riverside County Clerk within five 
(5) working days of project approval by the Planning Commission.  The
Notice shall include the required California Department of Fish and
Game (Code Section 711.4.d.3) and Riverside County Clerk fee
totaling $2,206.25.  Failure to pay the required fee will result in the
project being deemed null and void (California Fish and Game Code
Section 711.4(c).  The above fee is broken down as follows:


a. California Department of Fish & Game = $2,231.25
b. Riverside County Clerk Admin. Fee = $50.00


Oct. 8, 2014 Planning Department Complete per 
Matthew Bassi 


2. The applicant shall review and sign below verifying the “Acceptance of 
the Conditions of Approval” and return the signed page to the Wildomar 
Planning Department no later than November 21, 2018. 


Applicant Signature: Date: 


Nov. 21, 2018 Planning Department 


3. The Applicant shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the 
City, and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, from any and all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions and 
proceedings (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or 
adjudicatory in nature), and alternative dispute resolutions procedures 
(including, but not limited to arbitrations, mediations, and other such 


On-Going Planning Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


procedures), (collectively “Actions”), brought against the City, and/or 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, departments, agencies, 
and instrumentalities thereof, that challenge, attack, or seek to modify, 
set aside, void, or annul, the any action of, or any permit or approval 
issued by, the City and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, 
agents, departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof (including 
actions approved by the voters of the City), for or concerning the project, 
whether such Actions are brought under the California Environmental 
Quality Act, the Planning and Zoning Law, the Subdivision Map Act, 
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1085 or 1094.5, or any other state, 
federal, or local statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or any decision 
of a court of competent jurisdiction. City shall promptly notify the 
Applicant of any Action brought and request that Applicant defend the 
City. It is expressly agreed that Applicant may select legal counsel 
providing the Applicant’s defense and the City shall have the right to 
approve separate legal counsel providing the City’s defense. The 
Applicant shall reimburse City for any attorneys’ fees, costs and 
expenses directly and necessarily incurred by the City in the course of 
the defense. Applicant agrees that City will forward monthly invoices to 
Applicant for attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses it has incurred related 
to its defense of any Action and Applicant agrees to timely payment 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice. Within fourteen (14) days 
of an Action being filed, Applicant agrees to post adequate security or a 
cash deposit with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated 
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses incurred by City in the course of 
the defense in order to ensure timely payment of the City’s invoices. 
The amount of the security or cash deposit shall be determined by the 
City. City shall cooperate with Applicant in the defense of any Action.  







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


4. In accordance with Section 66020.d.1 of the Government Code, the 
applicant has 90 days (1/1/15) from project approval to file a protest of 
the imposition of fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions 
being imposed on this project.  Notice is hereby to the Applicant that the 
90-day appeal hereby begins with approval of this project.


Jan. 1, 2015 Planning Department Complete per 
Matthew Bassi 


5. Approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 shall expire on October 1, 
2021 (via EOT #3) if the final map has not been recorded.  The applicant 
may file with the Planning Department a request for a final 2-year time 
extension as permitted in the Wildomar Subdivision Ordinance provided 
a written request is made with the required EOT application and fee no 
later than October 1, 2021. 


October 1, 2021 Planning Department 


6. Within 30 days of approval by the Planning Commission of Tentative 
Parcel Map No. 36492, the applicant shall pay all outstanding deposit 
account balances, as applicable.  Failure to pay the outstanding balance 
by the due date may result in delays in the processing of the final map. 


Nov. 1, 2014 Planning Department Complete per 
Matthew Bassi 


7. Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 shall be subdivided in accordance with 
the tentative parcel map approved by the Planning Commission on 
October 1, 2014. The applicant may request a modification/revision to 
the approved project as outlined in the Wildomar Subdivision 
Ordinance. 


On-Going Planning Department 


8. The proposed development project under Plot Plan No. 12-0053 shall 
comply with the standards and requirements of the City’s Light Pollution 
Ordinance (Chapter 8.64 of the WMC). 


On-Going Planning Department 


9. The proposed Project shall comply with existing SCAQMD rules for the 
reduction of fugitive dust emissions in accordance with SCAQMD Rule 
403. 


On-Going Planning Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


10. All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, Ordinance 
457, and all other relevant laws, rules, and regulations governing 
grading in the City of Wildomar.  Prior to commencing any grading which 
includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall obtain a grading 
permit from the Building Department. 


On-Going Planning Department 


11. Erosion control-landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded per the requirements of Ordinance 457 
(refer to dept. form 284-47).  Planting shall occur within 30 days of 
meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to ensure slope coverage 
prior to the rainy season.  The developer shall plant and irrigate all 
manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal to vertical) ratio and 
3 feet or greater in vertical height with grass or ground cover; slopes 15 
feet or greater in vertical height shall be planted with additional shrubs 
or trees or as approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Planning Department 


12. As required by Chapter 8.56 of the WMC, subsequent development on 
the site will need to comply with the County of Riverside, Department of 
Environmental Health, Local Enforcement Agency (LEA) for all activities 
related to potential hazardous materials. 


On-Going Planning Department 


13. The proposed Project shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 
9.48 of the WMC. On-Going Planning Department 


14. If human remains are encountered during grading activities, State 
Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further 
disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made 
the necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to Public 
Resource Code Section 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in place and 
free from disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and 


On-Going Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


disposition has been made.  If the Riverside County Coroner determines 
the remains to be Native American, the Native American Heritage 
Commission shall be contacted within a reasonable timeframe. 
Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission shall identify 
the "most likely descendant."  The most likely descendant shall then 
make recommendations and engage in consultation concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98. 


MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION (IS/MND) Mitigation Measures: 
15.  AQ-1 Construction Mitigation 


a. Install and maintain track-out control devices in effective 
condition at all access points where paved and unpaved access 
or travel routes intersect (i.e., install wheel shakers, wheel 
washers, and limit site access.) 


b. Limit fugitive dust sources to 20 percent opacity. 
c. Require a dust control plan for earthmoving operations. 
d. When materials are transported off-site, all material shall be 


covered, effectively wetted to limit visible dust emissions, and 
at least six inches of freeboard space from the top of the 
container shall be maintained. 


e. The contractor or builder shall designate a person or persons 
to monitor the dust control program and to order increased 
watering, as necessary, to prevent transport of dust offsite. 


f. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and 
person to contact regarding dust complaints. This person shall 
respond and take corrective action within 24 hours. 


During construction 
activities 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


g. Any on-site stockpiles of debris, dirt or other dusty material shall 
be covered or watered three times daily. 


h. A high wind response plan shall be formulated for enhanced 
dust control if winds are forecast to exceed 25 mph in any 
upcoming 24-hour period. 


i. Require high pressure injectors on diesel construction 
equipment.* 


j. Utilize only CARB Tier 3 or better certified equipment for 
construction activities.* 


k. The developer shall require all contractors to turn off all 
construction equipment and delivery vehicles when not in use 
and/or idling in excess of 3 minutes.* 


l. Suspend use of all construction equipment operations during 
second stage smog alerts.* 


* Would reduce impacts to GHG’s as well 
16.  AQ-2 Operation Mitigation 


a. Install EV charging facilities for a minimum of 1% of all parking 
spaces.* 


b. Provide preferential parking locations for EVs and CNG 
vehicles.* 


c. Plant shade trees in parking lots to provide minimum 50% cover 
to reduce evaporative emissions from parked vehicles.* 


d. Plant Low-OFP, native, drought-resistant, tree and shrub 
species, 20% in excess of that required by city ordinance. 
Consider roadside, sidewalk, and driveway shading.* 


e. Prohibit gas powered landscape maintenance equipment. 


Implemented 
during site 
plan/plan check 
review and verified 
prior to Certificate 
of Occupancy 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


Require landscape maintenance companies to use battery 
powered or electric equipment or contract only with commercial 
landscapers who operate with equipment that complies with the 
most recent California Air Resources Board certification 
standards, or standards adopted no more than three years prior 
to date of use or any combination of these two themes.* 


f. Provide secure, bicycle parking for employees.*
g. Provide direct safe, direct bicycle access to adjacent bicycle


routes.*
h. Provide short-term bicycle parking for retail customers and


other non-commute trips.*
* Would reduce impacts to GHG’s as well.


17. BIO-1 Prior to any off-site grading, a biologist should assess the area 
to determine if potentially suitable habitat for sensitive plant species 
occurs.  If potentially suitable habitat is determined present, focused 
surveys should be conducted for sensitive plant species.  


Implemented prior 
to any off-site 
grading 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


18. BIO-2 The proposed Project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat 
Habitat Conservation Plan (SKR HCP) fee area and will be subject to 
the SKR HCP Fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 336 (as amended 
through 663.10). This fee is currently $500 per gross acre of the parcels 
proposed for development and must be paid upon issuance of a 
Grading Permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to 
the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat habitat. 


The fee must be 
paid prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


19. BIO-3  Due to the presence of suitable habitat and in compliance with 
the MSHCP, a pre-construction survey for burrowing owl is required 


Implemented 30 
days prior to 
ground disturbance 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


within 30 days prior to ground disturbance to avoid potential direct take 
of burrowing owls in the future. 


Engineering 
Departments 


20.  BIO-4   If burrowing owls are determined present following focused 
surveys, occupied burrows shall be avoided to the greatest extent 
feasible, following the guidelines in the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl 
Mitigation published by Department of Fish and Game (March 7, 2012) 
including, but not limited to, conducting pre-construction surveys, 
avoiding occupied burrows during the nesting and non-breeding 
seasons, implementing a worker awareness program, biological 
monitoring, establishing avoidance buffers, and flagging burrows for 
avoidance with visible markers.  If occupied burrows cannot be avoided, 
acceptable methods may be used to exclude burrowing owl either 
temporarily or permanently, pursuant to a Burrowing Owl Exclusion Plan 
that shall be prepared and approved by CDFG.  The Burrowing Owl 
Exclusion Plan shall be prepared in accordance with the guidelines in 
the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation. 


Implemented prior 
to ground any 
disturbance for 
Phase 2 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 
Engineering 
Departments 


 


21.  BIO-5 Prior to the issuance of any grading permit that would all 
removal of habitat containing raptor and songbird nests, the Project 
applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the City of Wildomar 
that either of the following have been or will be accomplished. 
1. Vegetation removal activities shall be scheduled outside the nesting 


season (September 1 to February 14 for songbirds; September 1 to 
January 14 for raptors) to avoid potential impacts to nesting birds. 


2. Any construction activities that occur during the nesting season 
(February 15 to August 31 for songbirds; January 15 to August 31 
for raptors) will require that all suitable habitat be thoroughly 
surveyed for the presence of nesting birds by a qualified biologist 


Implemented prior 
to the issuance of 
any grading permit 
that would all 
removal of habitat 
containing raptor 
and songbird nests 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 
Engineering 
Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


before commencement of clearing.  If any active nests are detected, 
a buffer of at least 300 feet (500 feet for raptors) will be delineated, 
flagged, and avoided until the nesting cycle is complete as 
determined by the biological monitor to minimize impacts. 


22. BIO-6 Prior to the issuance of any grading permit for permanent 
impacts in the areas designated as jurisdictional features (Figure 13, 
Impacts to Jurisdictional Features, of the BRA), the Project applicant 
shall obtain a CWA Section 404 permit from the USACE, a CWA Section 
401 permit from the RWQCB, and Streambed Alteration Agreement 
permit under Section 1602 of the California Fish and Game Code from 
the CDFG.  The following shall be incorporated into the permitting, 
subject to approval by the regulatory agencies: 
1. On- and/or off-site replacement of USACE/RWQCB jurisdictional


“waters of the U.S.”/“waters of the State” at a ratio no less than 1:1
for permanent impacts, and for any temporary impacts to restore the
impact area to pre-Project conditions (i.e., pre-Project contours and
revegetate).  Off-site replacement may include the purchase of
mitigation credits at an agency-approved off-site mitigation bank.


2. On- and/or off-site replacement of CDFG jurisdictional streambed
and associated riparian habitat at a ratio no less than 2:1 for
permanent impacts, and for any temporary impacts to restore the
impact area to pre-Project conditions (i.e., pre-Project contours and
revegetate).  Off-site replacement may include the purchase of
mitigation credits at an agency-approved off-site mitigation bank.


Implemented prior 
to ground any 
disturbance in 
areas designated 
as jurisdictional 
features 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 
Engineering 
Departments 


23. CUL-1  Prior to any ground-disturbing activity, the Project applicant(s) 
shall include the following wording in all construction contract 
documentation:  


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


If inadvertent discoveries of subsurface archaeological resources are 
discovered during grading, work shall be halted immediately within 50 
feet of the discovery and the Developer, the project archaeologist and 
the Pechanga Tribe shall assess the significance of such resources and 
shall meet and confer regarding the mitigation for such resources.  If the 
developer and the Tribe cannot agree on the significance or the 
mitigation for such resources, these issues will be presented to the City 
of Wildomar Planning Director and a qualified, neutral archeologist hired 
by the applicant and the Tribe for decision.  The Planning Director and 
shall make the determination based on the provisions of CEQA with 
respect to archaeological resources and shall take into account the 
religious beliefs, customs, and practices of the Pechanga Tribe.  
Notwithstanding any other rights available under the law, the decision 
of the Planning Director shall be appealable to the City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission and/or City Council.  In the event the significant 
resources are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist determines 
the resources to be historic or unique, as defined by relevant state and 
local law, mitigation would be required pursuant to and consistent with 
Public Resources Code Section 21083.2 and CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4. 


during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


24.  CUL-2 At least 30 days prior to seeking a grading permit, the Project 
applicant(s) shall contact the appropriate Tribe1 to notify the Tribe of 
grading, excavation, and the adopted monitoring program and to 
coordinate with the City of Wildomar and the Tribe to develop a Cultural 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


                                                           
1 It is anticipated that the Pechanga Tribe will be the “appropriate” Tribe due to their prior and extensive coordination with the City and project applicant in determining potentially 
significant impacts and appropriate mitigation measures.  







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Resources Treatment and Monitoring Agreement.  The agreement shall 
include, but not be limited to, outlining provisions and requirements for 
addressing the treatment of cultural resources; project grading and 
development scheduling; terms of compensation for Tribal monitors; 
and treatment and final disposition of any cultural resources, sacred 
sites, and human remains discovered on the site; and establishing on-
site monitoring provisions and/or requirements for professional Tribal 
monitors during all ground-disturbing activities.  A copy of this signed 
agreement shall be provided to the Planning Director and Building 
Official prior to the issuance of the first grading permit. 


25.  CUL-3 Prior to any authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the Project 
applicant(s) shall include the following wording on all construction 
contract documentation: 
If human remains are encountered, California Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5 requires that no further disturbance shall occur until the 
Riverside County Coroner has made the necessary findings as to origin.  
Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance until 
a final decision as to the treatment and disposition has been made.  If 
the Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be Native 
American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be 
contacted within a reasonable time frame. Subsequently, the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall identify the “most likely 
descendant” within 24 hours of receiving notification from the Coroner.  
The most likely descendant shall then have 48 hours to make 
recommendations and engage in consultations concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98. 


As a condition of 
Project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


26. CUL-4 All cultural materials – with the exception of sacred items, burial 
goods and human remains which will be addressed in the Treatment 
Agreement required in CUL-2, that are collected during the grading 
monitoring program and from any previous archaeological studies or 
excavations on the project site shall be curated according to the current 
professional repository standards.   The collections and associated 
records shall be transferred, including title, to the Pechanga Tribe’s 
curation facility which meets the standards set forth in 36 CRF Part 79 
for federal repositories. 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


27. CUL-5 All sacred sites, should they be encountered within the Project 
site, shall be avoided and preserved as the preferred mitigation, if 
feasible as determined by a qualified professional in consultation with 
Pechanga Tribe.  To the extent that a sacred site cannot be feasibly 
preserved in place or left in an undisturbed state, mitigation measures 
shall be required pursuant to and consistent with Public Resources 
Code Section 21083.2 and CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 
15126.4. 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


28. CUL-6 To address the possibility that cultural resources may be 
encountered during grading or construction, in addition to Tribal 
monitors, a qualified archaeologist shall monitor all construction 
activities that could potentially impact archaeological (e.g., grading, 
excavation, and/or trenching).  However, monitoring may be 
discontinued as soon the qualified professional is satisfied that 
construction will not disturb cultural resources. 


As a condition of 
future development 
approval, and 
implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


29.  CUL-7 A qualified paleontologist or paleontological monitor shall 
monitor all mass grading and excavation activities in areas identified as 
likely to contain paleontological resources.  Monitoring will be conducted 
in areas of grading or excavation in undisturbed outcrops of the 
Pleistocene-age Pauba Formation, as well as where over-excavation of 
surficial alluvial sediments will encounter these formations in the 
subsurface.  Paleontological monitors shall be equipped to salvage 
fossils as they are unearthed to avoid construction delays and to 
remove samples of sediment that are likely to contain the remains of 
small fossil invertebrates and vertebrates.  The monitor must be 
empowered to temporarily halt or divert equipment to allow removal of 
abundant or large specimens in a timely manner.  Monitoring may be 
reduced if the potentially fossiliferous units are not present in the 
subsurface, or if present, are determined upon exposure and 
examination by qualified paleontological personnel to have low potential 
to contain fossil resources. 


As a condition of 
Project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


30.  CUL-8 Recovered specimens shall be prepared to a point of 
identification and permanent preservation, including screen-washing of 
sediments to recover small invertebrates and vertebrates if necessary. 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


31.  CUL-9 Identification and curation of specimens into a professional, 
accredited public museum repository with a commitment to archival 
conservation and permanent retrievable storage shall occur (e.g., the 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Western Center for Archaeology and Paleontology Museum on Searl 
Parkway in Hemet, California). 


during ground-
disturbing activities 


32.  HAZ-1 All spills or leakage of any hazardous products, including 
petroleum products, during  regulations regarding cleanup and disposal 
of the contaminant released.  The contaminated waste will be collected 
and disposed of at an appropriately licensed disposal or treatment 
facility.  This measure shall be incorporated into the Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Plan prepared for the Project development. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 


 


33.  HAZ-2 Prior to the certificate of occupancy for a medical office use, a 
Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan shall be submitted 
to the City for review and retention.  This Plan shall be implemented by 
the medical offices (where hazardous substances are used) and 
annually a report of any accidental releases of hazardous substances, 
impacts to the environment or humans, and the management actions 
taken to control and remediate such spills shall be submitted to the City. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Safety 
Department 


 


34.  HAZ-3 As part of a Business Plan submitted to the City of Wildomar 
Fire Department, the medical offices that handle hazardous materials 
shall include copies of Material Safety Data Sheets for the hazardous 
substances (other than medications) utilized by the facility(ies). 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Safety 
and Fire Departments 


 


35.  HAZ-4 Any storage facility for gas canisters containing hazardous or 
toxic substances shall be enclosed and capable of containing any 
accidental releases of gas.  A warning device shall be incorporated into 
the design of the gas storage containment facility that is capable of 
identifying accidental releases.  Venting of any released gases shall be 
accomplished without creating hazards for the surrounding environment 
or population.  Any leaks shall be reported immediately to the City Fire 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Safety 
and Fire Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


Department as well as other regulatory agencies that are in the 
reporting chain. 


36. HYD-1 Prior to the approval of the grading permit on the proposed 
Project site, the Project applicant(s) shall be required to prepare a 
stormwater pollution and prevention plan (SWPPP) consistent with the 
NPDES General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with 
Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Order No. 2010-0014-
DWQ), which is to be administered through all phases of grading and 
proposed Project construction.  The SWPPP shall incorporate best 
management practices (BMPs) to ensure that potential water quality 
impacts during construction phases are minimized.  The SWPPP shall 
be submitted to the Regional Water Quality Control Board and to the 
City of Wildomar for review.  A copy of the SWPPP must be kept 
accessible on the proposed Project site at all times.  In addition, the 
Project applicant(s) will be required to submit, and obtain City approval 
of, a Water Quality Management Plan prior to the issuance of any 
building or grading permit for future development on the proposed 
Project site in order to comply with the Areawide Urban Runoff 
Management Program.  The proposed Project shall implement site 
design BMPs, source control BMPs, and treatment control BMPs as 
identified in the Water Quality Management Plan.  Site design BMPs 
shall include, but are not limited to, landscape buffer areas, on-site 
ponding areas, roof and paved area runoff directed to vegetated areas, 
and vegetated swales. Source control BMPs shall include, but are not 
limited to, education, landscape maintenance, litter control, parking lot 
sweeping, irrigation design to prevent overspray, and covered trash 
storage.  Treatment control BMPs shall include vegetated swales and a 
detention basin, or an infiltration device. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


37.  NOI-1 To minimize noise impacts resulting from poorly tuned or 
improperly modified vehicles and construction equipment, all vehicles 
and construction equipment shall maintain equipment engines in good 
condition and in proper tune per manufacturers’ specifications to the 
satisfaction of the City of Wildomar Building Department. Equipment 
maintenance records and equipment design specification data sheets 
shall be kept on site during construction.  Compliance with this measure 
shall be subject to periodic inspections by the City of Wildomar Building 
Department. 


Implemented 
during Project 
operations 
 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 


 


38.  NOI-2 The construction contractor shall locate equipment staging in 
areas that will create the greatest distance between construction-related 
noise sources and noise-sensitive receptors (within 100 feet of any 
occupied residence) nearest the proposed Project site during all 
proposed Project construction. 


Implemented 
during Project 
operations 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 
 


 


39.  NOI-3 Stationary noise-generating construction equipment shall be 
placed a minimum of 320 feet from the property line of existing sensitive 
receptors (residences to the south), when and where feasible. 


Implemented 
during Project 
operations 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 


 


40.  NOI-4 Noise control barriers with a height of 6 feet are required where 
grading will occur within 100 feet of any occupied residence. 
It is important to note that the barriers’ attenuation will be accomplished 
only if the minimum height is based from the pad or the roadway 
elevation, whichever is the greater of the two.  If the barrier is being 
constructed at a position where the starting elevation is less than the 
pad or adjacent roadway, the barrier’s ultimate height will need to be 
adjusted to fit the aforementioned criteria. Where applicable, the 
barriers shall wrap around the ends of the dwelling units to prevent 
flanking of noise into the site.  


Prior to the 
issuance of 
occupancy permits 
and during project 
operations 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


41.  NOI-5 Roof-mounted air conditioning equipment shall be set back 
either 25 feet from the building’s closest edge or to a distance capable 
of breaking the line-of-sight of equipment from neighboring potential 
receivers, whichever provides the greater set back from the building’s 
edge of the two.  A subsequent noise study shall be submitted by the 
applicant and reviewed and approved at building plan check stage by 
the City to ensure that the AC units are not generating noise in excess 
of what is allowed under Chapter 9.48 of the Wildomar Municipal Code. 
 


Reviewed at 
building plan check 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 


 


42.  TR-1  The direct traffic impacts generated by the proposed Project can be 
mitigated to a less than significant level, to meet the required level of service 
of the following recommended improvements are implemented, prior to the 
respective phase of development: 
 
 
On-Site Recommendations: 
 
Roadways: 
• Construct partial width improvements on the southerly side of Clinton 


Keith Road at its ultimate cross-section as an urban arterial highway 
(152’ right-of-way) adjacent to proposed Project boundary line. 


• Construct partial width improvements on the westerly side of Elizabeth 
Lane at its ultimate cross-section as a collector street (78’ right-of-way) 
adjacent to proposed Project boundary line. 


• Construct partial width improvements on the easterly side of Yamas 
Drive at its ultimate cross-section as a collector street (78’ right-of-way) 
adjacent to proposed Project boundary line. 


Implemented 
during the 
appropriate Phase 
of proposed Project 
construction 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


Intersections: 
Proposed Project’s actual improvements necessary are shown in italic, 
underlined.  The items that are not bold, italic, underlined are already 
existing). 
• Construct the intersection of proposed Project Driveway 1 (NS) and


Clinton Keith Road (EW) to restrict movement to right-in and right-out
only from the driveway with the following geometrics:


Northbound:   One right-turn lane.  Stop controlled. 
Southbound:  Not applicable. 
Eastbound:  One through lane.  One right-turn lane. 
Westbound:  One through lane. 


• Install a traffic signal at the intersection of Elizabeth Lane (NS) and
Clinton Keith Road (EW) to include the following geometrics:


Northbound: One left-turn lane. One shared through and right-turn 
lane. 
Southbound: One left-turn lane. One shared through and right-turn 
lane. 
Eastbound: One left-turn lane. One through lane. One right-turn lane. 
Westbound: One left-turn lane.  One through lane.  One shared 
through and right-turn lane. 


• Construct the intersection of Elizabeth Lane (NS) and proposed Project
Driveway 2 (EW) with the following geometrics:


Northbound:   One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane. 
Eastbound:  One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane. Stop 
controlled. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Westbound:  One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane.  Stop 
controlled.  


• Construct the intersection of Elizabeth Lane (NS) and proposed Project 
Driveway 3 (EW) with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Southbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 
Eastbound: One shared left-turn and right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 
Westbound:  Not applicable. 


• Construct the intersection of Yamas Drive (NS) and Bunny Trail (EW) 
with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  Not applicable. 
Southbound:  One right-turn lane. 
Eastbound:  One shared left-turn and right-turn lane.  Stop controlled  
Westbound:  Not applicable. 


• Construct the intersection of Project Driveway 4 (NS) and Bunny Trail 
(EW) with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  Not Applicable. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn & right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 
Eastbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Westbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 


• Construct the intersection of Yamas Drive (NS) and proposed Project 
Driveway 5(EW) with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Eastbound:   Not applicable. 
Westbound:  One shared left-turn and right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


• Construct the intersection of Yamas Drive (NS) and Bunny Trail (EW)
with the following geometrics:


Northbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Eastbound:  Not applicable. 
Westbound: One shared left-turn & right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 


Prior to Issuance of a Grading Permit 
43. Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a final 


geotechnical soils reports to the City Engineer for review and approval 
prior to issuance of grading permit. All grading shall be in conformance 
with the recommendations of the geotechnical/soils reports as approved 
by the City of Wildomar. 


On-Going Planning Department 


44. Prior to the issuance of the 1st grading permit the applicant shall receive 
approval of a haul permit for any import of material to the site or export 
of material off-site.  The request for a haul permit shall include a haul 
route plan addressing the limitations of haul hours, number of loads per 
day and the posting of traffic control personnel at all approved 
entrances/exits onto public roads.  This haul permit shall be in place 
prior to the issuance of the grading permit and the mobilization of 
equipment on the project site.  If the proposed material source or 
disposal site was not previously evaluated by the mitigated negative 
declaration, a grading EA shall be approved by the planning director 
prior to the issuance of the haul permit. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 


45. Concurrent with the precise grading plan submittal, the applicant shall 
submit two sets of detailed landscape and irrigation plans, including on-
site and public right-of-way areas.  The landscaping and irrigation plans 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Planning Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


shall be approved by the Planning Department prior to the issuance of 
any grading permit for the project. 


PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING/BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
General Requirements/Conditions 
1. The developer shall obtain City approval for any modifications or 


revisions to the approval of this project.  Deviations not identified on the 
plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting in the need 
for the project to be redesigned.  Amended entitlement approvals may 
be necessary as a result. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


2. The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct all improvements in 
accordance the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


3. The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with off-site 
right-of-way acquisition, including any costs associated with the eminent 
domain process, if necessary. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


4. Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district, the project 
proponent shall, make application for and pay for their reapportionment 
of the assessments or pay the unit fees in the benefit district unless said 
fees are otherwise deferred. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


5. The developer shall annex into the City’s Community Facility District 
(CFD 2013-1 Services) and pay associated costs for annexation. 
Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district that 
duplicates the services to be covered under CFD 2013-1 then the 
developer shall de-annex from said assessment/benefit district. 


Prior to Map 
Recordation 


Engineering Dept. Complete
1/15/2020
CFD # 18
D. York







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


6. The developer shall design and construct all driveways in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


7. The improvement plans for the required public improvements must be 
prepared and shall be based upon a design profile extending a minimum 
of 300 feet beyond the project boundaries at a grade and alignment as 
approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


8. All above-ground utilities, including but not limited to communication 
and power that are 33KV in size or less, shall be undergrounded by the 
developer in accordance with City requirements. The undergrounding 
of utilities shall be reflected on the project improvement plans. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


9. All flood control plans to be reviewed by the City or the Riverside County 
Flood Control District (RCFCD) shall be submitted through the City of 
Wildomar, unless otherwise directed by the City Engineer.  For projects 
requiring RCFCD review the developer shall pay the appropriate fees to 
RCFCD. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


Prior to Recordation of the Final Map 
10. Prior to final map approval, improvement plans shall be prepared, 


processed, approved and complete the improvements; or execute an 
Improvement Agreement and Improvement Security.  This condition 
shall be in conformance with local regulations and the Subdivision Map 
Act.  Should the developer execute an Improvement Agreement and 
Security, improvement plans will be required prior to issuance of 
Building Permit and construction complete prior to first certificate of 
occupancy.  Refer to Conditions of Approval for the Plot Plan 12-0053. 


Prior to Final Map 
Approval for All 


Phases 


Public Works Dept. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


11. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the southern 
half - section of Clinton Keith Road, measured, 76’ from the approved 
centerline. Right of way will be based on a modified 152’ urban arterial, 
Standard No. 91, in accordance with the City of Wildomar Improvement 
Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
Refer to MND Mitigation Measure TR-1. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Phase A 


Engineering Dept. 


12. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the western 
half - section of Elizabeth Lane, measured, 39’ from the approved 
centerline. Right of way will be based on a 78’ industrial collector, 
Standard No. 111, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  Refer to MND Mitigation Measure TR-1. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map; 
Phase A and 


Phase B 


Engineering Dept. 


13. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the northerly 
half - section of Bunny Trail, measured, 39’ from the approved 
centerline.  Right of way will be based on a 78’ industrial collector, 
Standard No. 111, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map; 
Phase B and 


Phase C 


Engineering Dept. 


14. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the easterly 
half - section of Yamas Drive, measured, 39’ from the approved 
centerline.  Right of way will be based on a 78’ industrial collector, 
Standard No. 111, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  The developer shall prepare legal description and plat to 
support City acceptance by Resolution the road easement for Yamas 
Drive to be recorded prior to recordation of the Final Map. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map; 
Phase C 


Engineering Dept. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


15. The Applicant shall provide a reciprocal access easement between the 
parcels 1, 2 and 3 to ensure access to Clinton Keith Road and Elizabeth 
Lane.  And provide a reciprocal access easement between parcels 2 
and 4 to ensure access to Elizabeth Lane.  The location of the access 
point(s) shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and will be 
approved when these parcels are developed. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Phase A and 


Phase B 


Engineering Dept. 


16. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate easements for 
the storm drainage systems as shown on the tentative map.  Facilities 
that are to be owned and maintained by Riverside County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District (RCFC) shall be reviewed, approved 
and agreements executed. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map  
All Phases 


Engineering Dept. 


17. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate a public utility 
easement adjacent to all public and private streets for overhead and/or 
underground facilities and appurtenances to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
All Phases 


Engineering Dept. 


RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
General Conditions – Parcel Map No. 36492 
1. 10.FIRE.999PC - #01 – West Fire Protection Planning Office


Responsibility 
It is the responsibility of the recipient of these Fire Department 
conditions to forward them to all interested parties.  The permit number 
(as it is noted above) is required on all correspondence. 
Additional information is available at our website:  www.rvcfire.org go to 
the link marked “Ordinance 787”.  Questions should be directed to the 
Riverside County Fire Department, Fire Protection Planning Division at 


On-Going Fire Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


2300 Market St. Suite 150, Riverside, CA 92501.  Phone: (951) 955-
4777. 


2.  10.FIRE.999 CASE –CITY CASE STATEMENT IN EFFECT 
With respect to the conditions of approval for the referenced project, the 
Fire Department recommends the following fire protection measures be 
provided In accordance with Riverside County Ordinances and /or 
recognized fire protection standards: 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


3.  10.FIRE.999 MAP #50-BLUE DOT REFLECTORS IN EFFECT 
Blue retro-reflective pavement markers shall be mounted on private 
streets, public streets and driveways to indicate location of fire hydrants. 
Prior to installation, placement of markers must be approved by the 
Riverside County Fire Department. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


4.  10.FIRE.999 MAP-15-POTENTIAL FIRE FLOW IN EFFECT 
Minimum required fire flow shall be 40000 GPM for 2 hours duration at 
20 PSI residual operating pressure, which must be available before any 
combustible material is placed on the job site. An actual fire flow 
available from any one hydrant shall be 2500 GP for 2 hours duration at 
20 PSI residual operating pressure. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


5.  10.FIRE.999 MAP-#14-COM/RES/HYD/SPACING IN EFFECT 
Approved super fire hydrants, (6” x  4” x 2 ½ ”) shall be located at each 
street not more than 350 feet apart in any direction, with no portion of 
any lot frontage more than 210 feet from a fire hydrant. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


  







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Prior to Recordation of Final Map – Parcel Map No. 36492 
6.  50.FIRE.999 MAPS-#46-WATER PLANS  IN EFFECT 


The applicant or developer shall furnish one copy of the water system 
plans to the Fire Department for review. Plans shall be signed by a 
registered civil engineer, containing a Fire Department approval 
signature block, and shall conform to hydrant type, location, spacing 
and minimum fire flow.  Once plans are signed by local water company, 
the originals shall be presented to the Fire Department for signature. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Fire Department 


 


7.  50.FIRE.999  MAP-#53-ECS-WTR PRIOR/COMBUSTION IN EFFECT 
ECS map must be stamped by Riverside County Surveyor with the 
following Note:  The required water system, including fire hydrants, shall 
be installed and accepted by the appropriate water agency prior to any 
combustible building material placed on an individual lot. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Fire Department 


 


ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT CONDITIONS 
1.  The applicant shall be required to comply with all applicable EVMWD 


water and sewer conditions of approval for Parcel Map No. 36492 and 
Plot Plan No. 12-0053. The applicant shall contact Imad Baiyasi at 951-
674-3146, Ext. 8786 for additional details.  


On-Going EVMWD Staff  


 


 
END 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “E” 
LIEN AGREEMENT 











































 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


 


EXHIBIT “A” 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


TRACT NO. 36492-2 


 


 











 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “B” 


LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 


PARCEL NO. 36492-2 


 


 







































 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  


RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
(Document exempt from recording fees 
pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code § 27383) 
 
CITY OF WILDOMAR 
Attn: City Clerk 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, California 92595 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


THIS SPACE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 


 
 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT  


PARCEL MAP 36492-F 


 


By and Between 


 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR,  
a municipal corporation 


 


and 


 


Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC 


 


 


 


DATED ________________________, 2021__ 
 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 1 -  


 


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


PARCEL MAP 36492-F 


 


This Subdivision Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this ____ 
day of _________, 20__ by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) 
and Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC_ (“Developer”).  City and Developer are 
sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to 
as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


A. Developer has submitted to City an application for approval of a parcel map for real 
property located within City, a legal description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  The 
parcel map is identified in City records as Parcel Map No. 36492-F.  On October 1, 2014, the City 
conditionally approved Parcel No. 36492. 


B. Developer has not completed all of the work or made all of the Public 
Improvements required by the Subdivision Map Act (Government Code sections 66410 et seq.), 
(“Map Act”) the City Ordinances, the conditions of approval for Parcel No. 36492-F, or other 
ordinances, resolutions, or policies of City requiring construction of improvements in conjunction 
with the subdivision of land. 


C. Pursuant to City Ordinances and the applicable provisions of the Map Act, 
Developer and City enter into this Agreement for the timely construction and completion of the 
Public Improvements and the furnishing of the security therefor, acceptable to the City Engineer 
and City Attorney, for Parcel No. 36492-F. 


D. City has authority to enter into this Subdivision Improvement Agreement pursuant 
to Government Code Sections 66499 – 66499.10. 


E. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66499, Developer’s execution of this 
Agreement and the provision of the security are made in consideration of City’s approval of the 
parcel map for Parcel No. 36492-F.  


DEFINED TERMS 


“Developer” shall mean Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC, a California limited liability 
company.  The term “Developer” shall also include all assignees, to the extent permitted under this 
Agreement, of the rights and obligations of Developer under this Agreement, and any successor-
in-interest to Developer having a legal and/or equitable interest in the Property. 


“Estimated Costs” shall mean the City Engineer’s approximation of the actual cost to construct 
the Public Improvements, including the replacement cost for all landscaping. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 2 -  


 


“Litigation Expenses” shall mean all costs and expenses, to the extent reasonable in amount, 
actually and necessarily incurred by a party in good faith in the prosecution of an action or 
proceeding, including, but not limited to, court costs, filing, recording, and service fees, copying 
costs, exhibit production costs, special media rental costs, attorneys’ fees, fees for investigators, 
witness fees (both lay and expert), travel expenses, deposition and transcript costs and any other 
cost or expense, the award of which a court of competent jurisdiction may determine to be just and 
reasonable. 


“Map Act” shall mean the Subdivision Map Act, Government Code Sections 66410 et seq. 


“Property” shall mean the all of the real property contained within the boundaries of Parcel Map 
No. 36492-F located in the City of Wildomar, California, as is more particularly described in the 
legal description and parcel diagram attached hereto and incorporated hereby by reference at 
Exhibit  “A”. 


“Public Improvements” shall include, but not be limited to, all grading, roads, streets, paving, 
curbs and gutters, sidewalks, paseos, pathways, trails, sanitary sewers, utilities, storm drains, 
detention and retention basins and other drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street 
lights and all other facilities required to be constructed and dedicated to the City or other public 
entity as conditions of approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 and as shown in detail on the 
plans, and specifications which have been approved by the City and incorporated into Parcel Map 
No. 36492-F.  The Parties agree that the Public Improvements to be completed by Developer are 
more specifically described in the diagram or plan attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference as Exhibit “B.  Notwithstanding, Exhibit “B”, Developer shall remain obligated to 
construct and complete all of the Public Improvements required as conditions of approval for 
Tentative Parcel Map 36492.   


“Required Insurance” shall mean the insurance required to be maintained by Developer under 
Section 17. 


“Security” shall mean surety bonds, lien agreement or other security approved by the City 
Engineer or City Attorney in the amounts and under the terms of Section 12. 


“Parcel No 36492-F.” shall mean the parcel map prepared and approved by the City for tentative 
parcel map no. 36492. 


“Warranty” shall mean the one year period following completion of the Public Improvements by 
Developer and the acceptance of the Public Improvements by the City in which Developer warrants 
and guarantees all Public Improvements. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the 
parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 


1. EFFECTIVENESS.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all 
four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:   







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 3 -  


 


1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the 
amounts required by this Agreement;  


1.2 ParcelMap and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City 
(“City Council”) approves the parcelmap for Parcel No. 36492-F and this Agreement; 


1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City 
records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and  


1.4 Record ParcelMap.  Developer records the parcel map for Parcel No. 
36492-F in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.   


If the above described conditions are not satisfied in the order, manner and within the time 
provided under this Agreement, this Agreement shall automatically terminate without need of 
further action by either City or Developer. 


2. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at 
its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time 
and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Improvements shall 
include any transitions and/or other incidental work deemed necessary for drainage or public 
safety.  The Developer shall be responsible for the replacement, relocation, or removal of any 
component of any irrigation water or sewer system in conflict with the construction or installation 
of the Public Improvements.  Such replacement, relocation, or removal shall be performed to the 
complete satisfaction of the City Engineer and the owner of such water or sewer system.  
Developer further promises and agrees to provide all equipment, tools, materials, labor, tests, 
design work, and engineering services necessary or required by City to fully and adequately 
complete the Public Improvements. 


2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where construction 
of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, Developer 
agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in accordance with this 
Agreement. 


2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals 
and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Public 
Improvements and performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement.  Developer shall 
conduct the work in full compliance with the regulations, rules, and other requirements contained 
in any permit or approval issued to Developer.  Prior to commencing any work, Developer shall 
file a written statement with the City Clerk and the City Engineer, signed by Developer and each 
utility which will provide utility service to the Property, attesting that Developer has made all 
deposits legally required by the utility for the extension and provision of utility service to the 
Property. 


2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from 
commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public 
Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or her designee.  
Approval by the City Engineer shall not relieve Developer from ensuring that all Public 
Improvements conform with all other requirements and standards set forth in this Agreement. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 4 -  


 


2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction 
plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements.  The Public Improvements shall be completed in accordance with all approved maps, 
plans, specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, as well 
as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced.  


2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful 
and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized as being 
employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California.  Developer represents 
and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in the professional calling necessary to 
perform the work.  Developer warrants that all of its employees and contractors shall have 
sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them, and that they shall have all 
licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the work, and that such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement. 


2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements 
made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent 
alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public Improvements 
it is determined that the public interest requires alterations in the Public Improvements, Developer 
shall undertake such design and construction changes as may be reasonably required by City.  Any 
and all alterations in the plans and specifications and the Public Improvements to be completed 
may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof to Developer’s surety for this Agreement. 


2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map 
Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval 
on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been satisfied 
prior to the date of this Agreement are identified on Exhibit “D” hereto. 


3. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND LANDSCAPING.  
City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until 
City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City shall 
exercise no control over the Public Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any use by any 
person of the Public Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and exclusive risk 
of the Developer at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Public Improvements.  Developer 
shall maintain all the Public Improvements in a state of good repair until they are completed by 
Developer and approved and accepted by City, and until the security for the performance of this 
Agreement is released.  Maintenance shall include, but shall not be limited to, repair of pavement, 
curbs, gutters, sidewalks, signals, parkways, water mains, and sewers; maintaining all landscaping 
in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City; removal of debris from sewers 
and storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining in good and safe condition all streets 
and street improvements.  It shall be Developer’s responsibility to initiate all maintenance work, 
but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly perform such maintenance work when notified to do 
so by City.  If Developer fails to properly prosecute its maintenance obligation under this section, 
City may do all work necessary for such maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 5 -  


 


responsibility of Developer and its surety under this Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or 
liable for any damages or injury of any nature in any way related to or caused by the Public 
Improvements or their condition prior to acceptance.   


4. CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 
of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public 
Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the parcel map for Parcel No. 
36492-F. 


4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide 
Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is 
understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement, 
Developer and its surety consent in advance to any extension of time as may be given by City to 
Developer, and waives any and all right to notice of such extension(s).  Developer’s acceptance of 
an extension of time granted by City shall constitute a waiver by Developer and its surety of all 
defense of laches, estoppel, statutes of limitations, and other limitations of action in any action or 
proceeding filed by City following the date on which the Public Improvements were to have been 
completed hereunder.  In addition, as consideration for granting such extension to Developer, City 
reserves the right to review the provisions of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the 
construction standards, the cost estimates established by City, and the sufficiency of the Security 
provided by Developer, and to require adjustments thereto when warranted according to City’s 
reasonable discretion. 


4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law 
related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has 
provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or otherwise not 
complete required or agreed upon Public Improvements. 


5. GRADING.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in 
conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel No. 36492-F 
shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and other requirements, 
including City’s grading regulations.  All grading, landscaping, and construction activities shall be 
performed in a manner to control erosion and prevent flooding problems.  The City Engineer shall 
have the authority to require erosion plans to prescribe reasonable controls on the method, manner, 
and time of grading, landscaping, and construction activities to prevent nuisances to surrounding 
properties.  Plans shall include without limitation temporary drainage and erosion control 
requirements, dust control procedures, restrictions on truck and other construction traffic routes, 
noise abatement procedures, storage of materials and equipment, removal of garbage, trash, and 
refuse, securing the job site to prevent injury, and similar matters.  In order to prevent damage to 
the Public Improvements by improper drainage or other hazards, the grading shall be completed 
in accordance with the time schedule for completion of the Public Improvements established by 
this Agreement, and prior to City’s approval and acceptance of the Public Improvements and 
release of the Security as set forth in Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement. 


6. UTILITIES.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, 
power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel No. 36492-
F in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, 
but not limited to, the regulations, schedules and fees of the utilities or agencies providing such 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 6 -  


 


services.  Except for commercial or industrial properties, Developer shall also provide cable 
television facilities to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to, the requirements 
of the cable company possessing a valid franchise with City to provide such service within City’s 
jurisdictional limits.  All utilities shall be installed underground. 


7. FEES AND CHARGES.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, 
pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, 
but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspection, and other service fees, 
and any impact or connection fees established by City ordinance, resolution, regulation, or policy, 
or as established by City relative to Parcel No. 36492-F, or as required by other governmental 
agencies having jurisdiction over Parcel No. 36492-F. 


8. CITY INSPECTION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall, at its 
sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, 
maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by City of the Public 
Improvements and areas where construction of the Public Improvements is occurring or will occur.  
If the City inspector requests it, the Developer at any time before acceptance of the Public 
Improvements shall remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be directed 
which have not previously been inspected.  After examination, the Developer shall restore said 
portions of the work to the standards required hereunder.  Inspection or supervision by the City 
shall not be considered as direct control of the individual workmen on the job site.  City’s inspector 
shall have the authority to stop any and all work not in accordance with the requirements contained 
or referenced in this Agreement.  The inspection of the work by City shall not relieve Developer 
or the contractor of any obligations to fulfill this Agreement as herein provided, and unsuitable 
materials or work may be rejected notwithstanding that such materials or work may have been 
previously overlooked or accepted.   


9. ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or 
any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer 
fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its surety shall be jointly 
and severally liable to City for all administrative expenses, fees, and costs, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in obtaining compliance with this Agreement or in processing 
any legal action or for any other remedies permitted by law. 


10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD 
DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed 
portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are 
complete, which shall not release or modify Developer’s obligation to complete the remainder of 
the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement.   


10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance 
of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County 
of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in accordance with 
Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, at which time the 
accepted Public Improvements shall become the sole and exclusive property of City without 
payment therefor. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 7 -  


 


10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel No. 36492-F was 
approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the 
improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approved by 
City.  Issuance by City of occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the Property 
shall not be construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any Public 
Improvements.   


10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until 
Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engineer for 
all such Public Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and shall reflect the condition of 
the Public Improvements as constructed, with all changes incorporated therein. 


11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees 
all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished 
in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping within the 
Property in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City, for a period of one (1) 
year following completion of the work and acceptance by City.  During the Warranty, Developer 
shall repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory portion of the Public 
Improvements, in accordance with the current ordinances, resolutions, regulations, codes, 
standards, or other requirements of City, and to the approval of the City Engineer.  All repairs, 
replacements, or reconstruction during the Warranty shall be at the sole cost, expense, and liability 
of Developer and its surety.  As to any Public Improvements which have been repaired, replaced, 
or reconstructed during the Warranty, Developer and its surety hereby agree to extend the 
Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s acceptance of the repaired, 
replaced, or reconstructed Public Improvements.  Nothing herein shall relieve Developer from any 
other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to repair, replace, or reconstruct any 
Public Improvement following expiration of the Warranty or any extension thereof.  Developer’s 
warranty obligation under this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 


12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, Developer 
shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security acceptable to 
the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.   


12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the 
Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time 
prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 [Construction 
Schedule], in its sole and absolute discretion, that the Estimated Costs have changed, Developer 
shall adjust the Security in the amount requested by City.  Developer’s compliance with this 
provision (Section 12.0 et seq.) shall in no way limit or modify Developer’s indemnification 
obligation provided in Section 16.0 of this Agreement. 


12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the 
Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in 
default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Developer’s one-year 
guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements, including the maintenance of all  landscaping 
in a vigorous and thriving condition, Developer shall provide City a faithful performance bond in 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 8 -  


 


the amount of Five Million Five Hundred Ninety Six Dollars ($5,596,000.00), which sum shall be 
not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Estimated Costs. 


12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute 
discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions 
of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepted by City, 
provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or condition of 
approval for Parcel No. 36492-F, and the total remaining Security is not less than twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the Estimated Costs.  All Security provided under this section shall be released 
at the end of the Warranty period, or any extension thereof as provided in Section 11.0 of this 
Agreement, provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or 
condition of approval for Parcel No. 36492-F. 


12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, 
subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment 
for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall provide City a 
labor and materials bond in the amount of Three Million Three Hundred Fifty- Seven Thousand 
Six Hundred Dollars ($3,357,600.00), which sum shall not be less than fifty percent (50%) of the 
Estimated Costs.  The Security provided under this section may be released by written 
authorization of the City Engineer after six (6) months from the date City accepts the final Public 
Improvements.  The amount of such Security shall be reduced by the total of all stop notice or 
mechanic’s lien claims of which City is aware, plus an amount equal to twenty percent (20%) of 
such claims for reimbursement of City’s anticipated administrative and legal expenses arising out 
of such claims. 


12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds 
provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or 
insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satisfactory to 
City.  As part of the obligation secured by the Security and in addition to the face amount of the 
Security, the Developer or its surety shall secure the costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred by City in enforcing the obligations of this 
Agreement.  The Developer and its surety stipulate and agree that no change, extension of time, 
alteration, or addition to the terms of this Agreement, the Public Improvements, or the plans and 
specifications for the Public Improvements shall in any way affect its obligation on the Security. 


12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided on 
the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City Engineer 
and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of City, the forms 
and evidence of the Security shall be attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein by 
this reference. 


12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et 
seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien 
agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code 
Section 16.56.030.  The Lien Agreement shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and 
incorporated herein by this reference.   







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 9 -  


 


12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in 
order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to 
cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrument, and to take no 
action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  Notwithstanding the 
giving of any Security instrument or the subsequent expiration of any Security instrument or any 
failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its obligations with respect thereto, 
Developer shall be personally liable for performance under this Agreement and for payment of the 
cost of the labor and materials for the improvements required to be constructed or installed hereby 
and shall, within ten (10) days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such substitute 
Security as City shall require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12. 


13. MONUMENT SECURITY.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to 
guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot 
corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel No. 36492-F in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of City’s Municipal and/or Development Code (“Subdivision Monuments”), Developer 
shall deposit cash or a surety bond with City in the amount of Fourteen Thousand Sixty Dollars 
($14,060.00), which sum shall not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the costs of setting 
the Subdivision Monuments as determined by the City Engineer.  Said cash deposit or surety bond 
may be released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all required Subdivision 
Monuments are accepted by the City Engineer, City has received written acknowledgment of 
payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the Subdivision Monuments, and provided 
Developer is not in default of any provision of this Agreement or condition of approval for Parcel 
No.36492-F. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if City accepts a lien agreement as security for the 
Improvements under Section 12.2 of this Agreement, such lien agreement may serve as the security 
for some or all of the Subdivision Monuments, as determined by the City Engineer.    


14. LIEN.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to Sections 
12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in favor of City a lien against 
all portions of the Property not dedicated to City or some other governmental agency for a public 
purpose.  As to Developer’s default on those obligations for which security has been provided 
pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, City shall first attempt to collect 
against such security prior to exercising its rights as a contract lienholder under this section. 


15. SIGNS AND ADVERTISING.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s 
ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer 
hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to Developer, of 
all signs or other advertising structures erected, placed, or situated in violation of any City 
ordinance, regulation, or other requirement.  Removal shall be at the expense of Developer and its 
surety.  Developer and its surety shall indemnify and hold City free and harmless from any claim 
or demand arising out of or incident to signs, advertising structures, or their removal. 


16. INDEMNIFICATION.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, 
demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to property or persons, including 
wrongful death, whether imposed by a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, 
state, or local governmental body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, omissions, 
negligence, or willful misconduct of Developer, its personnel, employees, agents, or contractors 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 10 -  


 


in connection with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Public Improvements, or 
performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, the payment 
of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and related costs or expenses, 
and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and/or agents for all legal 
expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  This indemnification excludes only such portion of 
any claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or 
persons, including wrongful death, which is caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence 
or willful misconduct of City as determined by a court or administrative body of competent 
jurisdiction.  Developer’s obligation to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or termination 
of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, or agents.  


17. INSURANCE. 


17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require 
its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant 
to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below.  If any of the 
Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such insurance shall apply separately to 
this Agreement or be no less than two times the specified occurrence limit.  


17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and 
maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $3,000,000 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage. The General Aggregate 
shall be twice the occurrence limit or shall apply separately to each project. If Developer maintains 
higher limits than the specified minimum limits, City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for 
the higher limits maintained by Developer. The General Liability policy shall not contain a 
Contractors' Warranty or other similar language which eliminates or restricts insurance because of 
a subcontractor's failure to carry specific insurance or to supply evidence of such insurance 


17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall include coverage for 
the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle owned,  hired, 
and non-owned  by the insured or for which the insured is responsible. 


17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code 
of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Accident; 
$1,000,000 Disease per employee; $1,000,000 Disease per policy at all times during which insured 
retains employees. 


17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional 
who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions 
with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability.  Coverage applicable to the work performed under this agreement shall be 
continued for five (5) years after completion of the work . Such continuation coverage may be 
provided by one of the following: (1) renewal of the existing policy; (2) an extended reporting 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 11 -  


 


period endorsement; or (3) replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the 
commencement of the work under this agreement. 


17.1.5 Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution 
Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any 
location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. Any 
deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate of Insurance.  If the deductible 
or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it shall be approved in advance by the City.  Developer 
and its contractors are responsible for any deductible or self-insured retention and shall fund it 
upon the City’s written request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors have a claim 
against the insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an additional insured for 
liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the Developer and its 
contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) year after completion of the work. 
The insurance provided to the additional insureds shall apply on a primary and non-contributory 
basis with respect to any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by them. If the insurance 
is on a Claims-Made basis, the retroactive date shall be no later than the commencement of work. 
The insurance shall be continued for one (1) year after completion of the work.  If the insurance is 
on a Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage may be provided by: (a) renewal of the existing 
policy; (b) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (c) replacement insurance with a 
retroactive date no later than the commencement of the work. 


17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its contractors shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, 
claims, and administrative and defense expenses. 


17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance 
(except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect to work performed 
by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, including materials, parts, or equipment furnished 
in connection therewith City shall be endorsed as an additional insured for liability arising out of 
ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the contractor. City shall continue to be an 
additional insured for completed operations for (1) year after completion of the work.   The policy 
shall cover inter-insured suits and include a “Separation of Insureds” or “severability” clause 
which treats each insured separately and shall contain no special limitations on the scope of its 
protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 


17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General Liability 
Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non-contributory with, any 
insurance or self-insurance program maintained by the City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the Required Insurance shall provide that the 
insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation against City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 12 -  


 


17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City 
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required 
Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All certificates and endorsements must 
be received and approved by City before work pursuant to this Agreement can begin.  City reserves 
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 


17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain 
the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or 
endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall provide immediate written notice 
if (1) any of the required insurance policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required 
polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible or self-insured retention is increased.  In the event of any 
cancellation or reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, Developer shall forthwith obtain 
and submit proof of substitute insurance.  Should Developer fail to immediately procure other 
insurance, as specified, to substitute for any canceled policy, the City may procure such insurance 
at Developer’s sole cost and expense. 


17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall be placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with 
a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII. 


18. DEFAULT; NOTICE; REMEDIES. 


18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete 
any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of 
any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or other requirement, City 
may at any time thereafter declare Developer to be in default or violation of this Agreement and 
make written demand upon Developer or its surety, or both, to immediately remedy the default or 
violation.  Developer shall commence the work required to remedy the default or violation within 
ten (10) days of the written demand from the City.  If the default or violation constitutes an 
immediate threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, City may provide the demand verbally, 
and Developer shall commence the required work within twenty-four (24) hours thereof.  
Immediately upon City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, Developer and its surety 
shall be liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the Public Improvements and 
all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 of this Agreement. 


18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to 
City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all remaining work, 
arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct such remedial activity as in its 
sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to remedy the default or violation.  All such 
work or remedial activity shall be at the sole and absolute cost, expense, and liability of Developer 
and its surety, without the necessity of giving any further notice to Developer or surety.  City’s 
right to take such actions shall in no way be limited by the fact that Developer or its surety may 
have constructed any, or none of the required or agreed upon Public Improvements at the time of 
City’s demand for performance.  In the event City elects to complete or arrange for completion of 
the remaining work and improvements, City may require all work by Developer or its surety to 
cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 13 -  


 


conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if the interests of City will not be 
prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to acreage and thereafter recover from 
Developer or its surety the full cost and expense incurred. 


18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of this 
Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or 
equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise it rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue inconsistent 
remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or specific performance. 


19. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 


19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents 
and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of 
the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including 
necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement. 


19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 


19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall 
be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 
term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work 
days.  All references to Developer include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of 
Developer, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this 
Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 
reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this 
Agreement. 


19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications shall 
be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties may 
designate by written notice: 


CITY: 


City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111 
Wildomar, CA  92595 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 14 -  


 


DEVELOPER: 


Rancon Medical and Education Center, LLC 
41391 Kalmia Street, Ste 200 
Murrieta, CA 92562 
___________________________________ 


Depending upon the method of transmittal, notice shall be deemed received as follows:  by 
facsimile, as of the date and time sent provided the original is contemporaneously deposited with 
United States Postal Service and delivered by regular mail; by messenger, as of the date delivered; 
and by U.S. Mail first class postage prepaid, as of 72 hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail. 


19.5 Amendment; Modification.  No amendment to or modification of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Developer and by the City.  
The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting 
substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby 
authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or 
that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement. Waiver.  City’s failure to insist 
upon strict compliance with any provision of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege 
provided herein, or City’s waiver of any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Developer of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing 
shall be true whether City’s actions are intentional or unintentional.  Developer agrees to waive, 
as a defense, counterclaim or set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the 
authorization, execution or performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement, as well as 
the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with regards to the authorization, 
execution or performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement. 


19.6 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, 
hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest 
herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any 
assignee, hypothecate, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in City’s written 
consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not release or discharge Developer from 
any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 


19.7 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be 
binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal 
representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authorization for any Party 
to assign any right or obligation. 


19.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 


19.9 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 


19.10 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed 
in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  - 15 -  


 


proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way arises out of the 
Parties’ activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, shall be filed and prosecuted in the 
appropriate California State Court in the County of Riverside, California.  Each Party waives the 
benefit of any provision of state or federal law providing for a change of venue to any other court 
or jurisdiction including, without limitation, a change of venue based on the fact that a 
governmental entity is a party to the action or proceeding, or that a federal right or question is 
involved or alleged to be involved in the action or proceeding.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing waiver, Developer expressly waives any right to have venue transferred pursuant to 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 


19.11 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action 
or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement 
or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be 
entitled to and recover from the other party all Litigation Expenses.  Any judgment, order, or award 
entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific provision providing for the 
recovery of Litigation Expenses. 


19.12 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree 
that neither this Agreement, any map related to Parcel No. 36492-F, nor any other related 
entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the 
relationship of partnership, joint venture, or agency between City and Developer.  Developer’s 
contractors and subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of 
Developer.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Developer or its contractors an agent or 
contractor of City. 


19.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 


19.14 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective 
until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities 
of City and Developer. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written. 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 















 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


 


EXHIBIT “A” 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


PARCEL NO. 36492-F 


 


 











 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “B” 


LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND CONSTRUCTION PHASING MAP 


PARCEL NO. 36492-F 


 


 







































1
1



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-2



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-1



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-2



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-1



AllisonH

Typewritten Text

PM 36492-2







Not Applicable - Developer opted to use lien agreements instead of surety bonds.


 



























 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “D” 


LIST OF PARCEL  MAP CONDITIONS 
OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED  


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
General/Standard Conditions 
1. In compliance with Section 15094 of the CEQA Guidelines, the NOD 


and filing fee shall be filed with the Riverside County Clerk within five 
(5) working days of project approval by the Planning Commission.  The
Notice shall include the required California Department of Fish and
Game (Code Section 711.4.d.3) and Riverside County Clerk fee
totaling $2,206.25.  Failure to pay the required fee will result in the
project being deemed null and void (California Fish and Game Code
Section 711.4(c).  The above fee is broken down as follows:


a. California Department of Fish & Game = $2,231.25
b. Riverside County Clerk Admin. Fee = $50.00


Oct. 8, 2014 Planning Department Complete per 
Matthew Bassi 


2. The applicant shall review and sign below verifying the “Acceptance of 
the Conditions of Approval” and return the signed page to the Wildomar 
Planning Department no later than November 21, 2018. 


Applicant Signature: Date: 


Nov. 21, 2018 Planning Department 


3. The Applicant shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the 
City, and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, from any and all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions and 
proceedings (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or 
adjudicatory in nature), and alternative dispute resolutions procedures 
(including, but not limited to arbitrations, mediations, and other such 


On-Going Planning Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


procedures), (collectively “Actions”), brought against the City, and/or 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, departments, agencies, 
and instrumentalities thereof, that challenge, attack, or seek to modify, 
set aside, void, or annul, the any action of, or any permit or approval 
issued by, the City and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, 
agents, departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof (including 
actions approved by the voters of the City), for or concerning the project, 
whether such Actions are brought under the California Environmental 
Quality Act, the Planning and Zoning Law, the Subdivision Map Act, 
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1085 or 1094.5, or any other state, 
federal, or local statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or any decision 
of a court of competent jurisdiction. City shall promptly notify the 
Applicant of any Action brought and request that Applicant defend the 
City. It is expressly agreed that Applicant may select legal counsel 
providing the Applicant’s defense and the City shall have the right to 
approve separate legal counsel providing the City’s defense. The 
Applicant shall reimburse City for any attorneys’ fees, costs and 
expenses directly and necessarily incurred by the City in the course of 
the defense. Applicant agrees that City will forward monthly invoices to 
Applicant for attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses it has incurred related 
to its defense of any Action and Applicant agrees to timely payment 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice. Within fourteen (14) days 
of an Action being filed, Applicant agrees to post adequate security or a 
cash deposit with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated 
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses incurred by City in the course of 
the defense in order to ensure timely payment of the City’s invoices. 
The amount of the security or cash deposit shall be determined by the 
City. City shall cooperate with Applicant in the defense of any Action.  







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


4. In accordance with Section 66020.d.1 of the Government Code, the 
applicant has 90 days (1/1/15) from project approval to file a protest of 
the imposition of fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions 
being imposed on this project.  Notice is hereby to the Applicant that the 
90-day appeal hereby begins with approval of this project.


Jan. 1, 2015 Planning Department Complete per 
Matthew Bassi 


5. Approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 shall expire on October 1, 
2021 (via EOT #3) if the final map has not been recorded.  The applicant 
may file with the Planning Department a request for a final 2-year time 
extension as permitted in the Wildomar Subdivision Ordinance provided 
a written request is made with the required EOT application and fee no 
later than October 1, 2021. 


October 1, 2021 Planning Department 


6. Within 30 days of approval by the Planning Commission of Tentative 
Parcel Map No. 36492, the applicant shall pay all outstanding deposit 
account balances, as applicable.  Failure to pay the outstanding balance 
by the due date may result in delays in the processing of the final map. 


Nov. 1, 2014 Planning Department Complete per 
Matthew Bassi 


7. Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 shall be subdivided in accordance with 
the tentative parcel map approved by the Planning Commission on 
October 1, 2014. The applicant may request a modification/revision to 
the approved project as outlined in the Wildomar Subdivision 
Ordinance. 


On-Going Planning Department 


8. The proposed development project under Plot Plan No. 12-0053 shall 
comply with the standards and requirements of the City’s Light Pollution 
Ordinance (Chapter 8.64 of the WMC). 


On-Going Planning Department 


9. The proposed Project shall comply with existing SCAQMD rules for the 
reduction of fugitive dust emissions in accordance with SCAQMD Rule 
403. 


On-Going Planning Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


10. All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, Ordinance 
457, and all other relevant laws, rules, and regulations governing 
grading in the City of Wildomar.  Prior to commencing any grading which 
includes 50 or more cubic yards, the developer shall obtain a grading 
permit from the Building Department. 


On-Going Planning Department 


11. Erosion control-landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded per the requirements of Ordinance 457 
(refer to dept. form 284-47).  Planting shall occur within 30 days of 
meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to ensure slope coverage 
prior to the rainy season.  The developer shall plant and irrigate all 
manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal to vertical) ratio and 
3 feet or greater in vertical height with grass or ground cover; slopes 15 
feet or greater in vertical height shall be planted with additional shrubs 
or trees or as approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Planning Department 


12. As required by Chapter 8.56 of the WMC, subsequent development on 
the site will need to comply with the County of Riverside, Department of 
Environmental Health, Local Enforcement Agency (LEA) for all activities 
related to potential hazardous materials. 


On-Going Planning Department 


13. The proposed Project shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 
9.48 of the WMC. On-Going Planning Department 


14. If human remains are encountered during grading activities, State 
Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further 
disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made 
the necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to Public 
Resource Code Section 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in place and 
free from disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and 


On-Going Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


disposition has been made.  If the Riverside County Coroner determines 
the remains to be Native American, the Native American Heritage 
Commission shall be contacted within a reasonable timeframe. 
Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission shall identify 
the "most likely descendant."  The most likely descendant shall then 
make recommendations and engage in consultation concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98. 


MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION (IS/MND) Mitigation Measures: 
15.  AQ-1 Construction Mitigation 


a. Install and maintain track-out control devices in effective 
condition at all access points where paved and unpaved access 
or travel routes intersect (i.e., install wheel shakers, wheel 
washers, and limit site access.) 


b. Limit fugitive dust sources to 20 percent opacity. 
c. Require a dust control plan for earthmoving operations. 
d. When materials are transported off-site, all material shall be 


covered, effectively wetted to limit visible dust emissions, and 
at least six inches of freeboard space from the top of the 
container shall be maintained. 


e. The contractor or builder shall designate a person or persons 
to monitor the dust control program and to order increased 
watering, as necessary, to prevent transport of dust offsite. 


f. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and 
person to contact regarding dust complaints. This person shall 
respond and take corrective action within 24 hours. 


During construction 
activities 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


g. Any on-site stockpiles of debris, dirt or other dusty material shall 
be covered or watered three times daily. 


h. A high wind response plan shall be formulated for enhanced 
dust control if winds are forecast to exceed 25 mph in any 
upcoming 24-hour period. 


i. Require high pressure injectors on diesel construction 
equipment.* 


j. Utilize only CARB Tier 3 or better certified equipment for 
construction activities.* 


k. The developer shall require all contractors to turn off all 
construction equipment and delivery vehicles when not in use 
and/or idling in excess of 3 minutes.* 


l. Suspend use of all construction equipment operations during 
second stage smog alerts.* 


* Would reduce impacts to GHG’s as well 
16.  AQ-2 Operation Mitigation 


a. Install EV charging facilities for a minimum of 1% of all parking 
spaces.* 


b. Provide preferential parking locations for EVs and CNG 
vehicles.* 


c. Plant shade trees in parking lots to provide minimum 50% cover 
to reduce evaporative emissions from parked vehicles.* 


d. Plant Low-OFP, native, drought-resistant, tree and shrub 
species, 20% in excess of that required by city ordinance. 
Consider roadside, sidewalk, and driveway shading.* 


e. Prohibit gas powered landscape maintenance equipment. 


Implemented 
during site 
plan/plan check 
review and verified 
prior to Certificate 
of Occupancy 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


Require landscape maintenance companies to use battery 
powered or electric equipment or contract only with commercial 
landscapers who operate with equipment that complies with the 
most recent California Air Resources Board certification 
standards, or standards adopted no more than three years prior 
to date of use or any combination of these two themes.* 


f. Provide secure, bicycle parking for employees.*
g. Provide direct safe, direct bicycle access to adjacent bicycle


routes.*
h. Provide short-term bicycle parking for retail customers and


other non-commute trips.*
* Would reduce impacts to GHG’s as well.


17. BIO-1 Prior to any off-site grading, a biologist should assess the area 
to determine if potentially suitable habitat for sensitive plant species 
occurs.  If potentially suitable habitat is determined present, focused 
surveys should be conducted for sensitive plant species.  


Implemented prior 
to any off-site 
grading 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


18. BIO-2 The proposed Project site is within the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat 
Habitat Conservation Plan (SKR HCP) fee area and will be subject to 
the SKR HCP Fee, per Riverside County Ordinance 336 (as amended 
through 663.10). This fee is currently $500 per gross acre of the parcels 
proposed for development and must be paid upon issuance of a 
Grading Permit. The payment of this fee will mitigate for any impacts to 
the Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat habitat. 


The fee must be 
paid prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


19. BIO-3  Due to the presence of suitable habitat and in compliance with 
the MSHCP, a pre-construction survey for burrowing owl is required 


Implemented 30 
days prior to 
ground disturbance 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


within 30 days prior to ground disturbance to avoid potential direct take 
of burrowing owls in the future. 


Engineering 
Departments 


20.  BIO-4   If burrowing owls are determined present following focused 
surveys, occupied burrows shall be avoided to the greatest extent 
feasible, following the guidelines in the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl 
Mitigation published by Department of Fish and Game (March 7, 2012) 
including, but not limited to, conducting pre-construction surveys, 
avoiding occupied burrows during the nesting and non-breeding 
seasons, implementing a worker awareness program, biological 
monitoring, establishing avoidance buffers, and flagging burrows for 
avoidance with visible markers.  If occupied burrows cannot be avoided, 
acceptable methods may be used to exclude burrowing owl either 
temporarily or permanently, pursuant to a Burrowing Owl Exclusion Plan 
that shall be prepared and approved by CDFG.  The Burrowing Owl 
Exclusion Plan shall be prepared in accordance with the guidelines in 
the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation. 


Implemented prior 
to ground any 
disturbance for 
Phase 2 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 
Engineering 
Departments 


 


21.  BIO-5 Prior to the issuance of any grading permit that would all 
removal of habitat containing raptor and songbird nests, the Project 
applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the City of Wildomar 
that either of the following have been or will be accomplished. 
1. Vegetation removal activities shall be scheduled outside the nesting 


season (September 1 to February 14 for songbirds; September 1 to 
January 14 for raptors) to avoid potential impacts to nesting birds. 


2. Any construction activities that occur during the nesting season 
(February 15 to August 31 for songbirds; January 15 to August 31 
for raptors) will require that all suitable habitat be thoroughly 
surveyed for the presence of nesting birds by a qualified biologist 


Implemented prior 
to the issuance of 
any grading permit 
that would all 
removal of habitat 
containing raptor 
and songbird nests 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 
Engineering 
Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


before commencement of clearing.  If any active nests are detected, 
a buffer of at least 300 feet (500 feet for raptors) will be delineated, 
flagged, and avoided until the nesting cycle is complete as 
determined by the biological monitor to minimize impacts. 


22. BIO-6 Prior to the issuance of any grading permit for permanent 
impacts in the areas designated as jurisdictional features (Figure 13, 
Impacts to Jurisdictional Features, of the BRA), the Project applicant 
shall obtain a CWA Section 404 permit from the USACE, a CWA Section 
401 permit from the RWQCB, and Streambed Alteration Agreement 
permit under Section 1602 of the California Fish and Game Code from 
the CDFG.  The following shall be incorporated into the permitting, 
subject to approval by the regulatory agencies: 
1. On- and/or off-site replacement of USACE/RWQCB jurisdictional


“waters of the U.S.”/“waters of the State” at a ratio no less than 1:1
for permanent impacts, and for any temporary impacts to restore the
impact area to pre-Project conditions (i.e., pre-Project contours and
revegetate).  Off-site replacement may include the purchase of
mitigation credits at an agency-approved off-site mitigation bank.


2. On- and/or off-site replacement of CDFG jurisdictional streambed
and associated riparian habitat at a ratio no less than 2:1 for
permanent impacts, and for any temporary impacts to restore the
impact area to pre-Project conditions (i.e., pre-Project contours and
revegetate).  Off-site replacement may include the purchase of
mitigation credits at an agency-approved off-site mitigation bank.


Implemented prior 
to ground any 
disturbance in 
areas designated 
as jurisdictional 
features 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and 
Engineering 
Departments 


23. CUL-1  Prior to any ground-disturbing activity, the Project applicant(s) 
shall include the following wording in all construction contract 
documentation:  


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


If inadvertent discoveries of subsurface archaeological resources are 
discovered during grading, work shall be halted immediately within 50 
feet of the discovery and the Developer, the project archaeologist and 
the Pechanga Tribe shall assess the significance of such resources and 
shall meet and confer regarding the mitigation for such resources.  If the 
developer and the Tribe cannot agree on the significance or the 
mitigation for such resources, these issues will be presented to the City 
of Wildomar Planning Director and a qualified, neutral archeologist hired 
by the applicant and the Tribe for decision.  The Planning Director and 
shall make the determination based on the provisions of CEQA with 
respect to archaeological resources and shall take into account the 
religious beliefs, customs, and practices of the Pechanga Tribe.  
Notwithstanding any other rights available under the law, the decision 
of the Planning Director shall be appealable to the City of Wildomar 
Planning Commission and/or City Council.  In the event the significant 
resources are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist determines 
the resources to be historic or unique, as defined by relevant state and 
local law, mitigation would be required pursuant to and consistent with 
Public Resources Code Section 21083.2 and CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4. 


during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


24.  CUL-2 At least 30 days prior to seeking a grading permit, the Project 
applicant(s) shall contact the appropriate Tribe1 to notify the Tribe of 
grading, excavation, and the adopted monitoring program and to 
coordinate with the City of Wildomar and the Tribe to develop a Cultural 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


                                                           
1 It is anticipated that the Pechanga Tribe will be the “appropriate” Tribe due to their prior and extensive coordination with the City and project applicant in determining potentially 
significant impacts and appropriate mitigation measures.  







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Resources Treatment and Monitoring Agreement.  The agreement shall 
include, but not be limited to, outlining provisions and requirements for 
addressing the treatment of cultural resources; project grading and 
development scheduling; terms of compensation for Tribal monitors; 
and treatment and final disposition of any cultural resources, sacred 
sites, and human remains discovered on the site; and establishing on-
site monitoring provisions and/or requirements for professional Tribal 
monitors during all ground-disturbing activities.  A copy of this signed 
agreement shall be provided to the Planning Director and Building 
Official prior to the issuance of the first grading permit. 


25.  CUL-3 Prior to any authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the Project 
applicant(s) shall include the following wording on all construction 
contract documentation: 
If human remains are encountered, California Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5 requires that no further disturbance shall occur until the 
Riverside County Coroner has made the necessary findings as to origin.  
Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance until 
a final decision as to the treatment and disposition has been made.  If 
the Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be Native 
American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be 
contacted within a reasonable time frame. Subsequently, the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall identify the “most likely 
descendant” within 24 hours of receiving notification from the Coroner.  
The most likely descendant shall then have 48 hours to make 
recommendations and engage in consultations concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98. 


As a condition of 
Project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


26. CUL-4 All cultural materials – with the exception of sacred items, burial 
goods and human remains which will be addressed in the Treatment 
Agreement required in CUL-2, that are collected during the grading 
monitoring program and from any previous archaeological studies or 
excavations on the project site shall be curated according to the current 
professional repository standards.   The collections and associated 
records shall be transferred, including title, to the Pechanga Tribe’s 
curation facility which meets the standards set forth in 36 CRF Part 79 
for federal repositories. 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


27. CUL-5 All sacred sites, should they be encountered within the Project 
site, shall be avoided and preserved as the preferred mitigation, if 
feasible as determined by a qualified professional in consultation with 
Pechanga Tribe.  To the extent that a sacred site cannot be feasibly 
preserved in place or left in an undisturbed state, mitigation measures 
shall be required pursuant to and consistent with Public Resources 
Code Section 21083.2 and CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 
15126.4. 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


28. CUL-6 To address the possibility that cultural resources may be 
encountered during grading or construction, in addition to Tribal 
monitors, a qualified archaeologist shall monitor all construction 
activities that could potentially impact archaeological (e.g., grading, 
excavation, and/or trenching).  However, monitoring may be 
discontinued as soon the qualified professional is satisfied that 
construction will not disturb cultural resources. 


As a condition of 
future development 
approval, and 
implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


29.  CUL-7 A qualified paleontologist or paleontological monitor shall 
monitor all mass grading and excavation activities in areas identified as 
likely to contain paleontological resources.  Monitoring will be conducted 
in areas of grading or excavation in undisturbed outcrops of the 
Pleistocene-age Pauba Formation, as well as where over-excavation of 
surficial alluvial sediments will encounter these formations in the 
subsurface.  Paleontological monitors shall be equipped to salvage 
fossils as they are unearthed to avoid construction delays and to 
remove samples of sediment that are likely to contain the remains of 
small fossil invertebrates and vertebrates.  The monitor must be 
empowered to temporarily halt or divert equipment to allow removal of 
abundant or large specimens in a timely manner.  Monitoring may be 
reduced if the potentially fossiliferous units are not present in the 
subsurface, or if present, are determined upon exposure and 
examination by qualified paleontological personnel to have low potential 
to contain fossil resources. 


As a condition of 
Project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


30.  CUL-8 Recovered specimens shall be prepared to a point of 
identification and permanent preservation, including screen-washing of 
sediments to recover small invertebrates and vertebrates if necessary. 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 
during ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 


31.  CUL-9 Identification and curation of specimens into a professional, 
accredited public museum repository with a commitment to archival 
conservation and permanent retrievable storage shall occur (e.g., the 


As a condition of 
project approval, 
and implemented 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering and 
Planning Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Western Center for Archaeology and Paleontology Museum on Searl 
Parkway in Hemet, California). 


during ground-
disturbing activities 


32.  HAZ-1 All spills or leakage of any hazardous products, including 
petroleum products, during  regulations regarding cleanup and disposal 
of the contaminant released.  The contaminated waste will be collected 
and disposed of at an appropriately licensed disposal or treatment 
facility.  This measure shall be incorporated into the Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Plan prepared for the Project development. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 


 


33.  HAZ-2 Prior to the certificate of occupancy for a medical office use, a 
Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan shall be submitted 
to the City for review and retention.  This Plan shall be implemented by 
the medical offices (where hazardous substances are used) and 
annually a report of any accidental releases of hazardous substances, 
impacts to the environment or humans, and the management actions 
taken to control and remediate such spills shall be submitted to the City. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Safety 
Department 


 


34.  HAZ-3 As part of a Business Plan submitted to the City of Wildomar 
Fire Department, the medical offices that handle hazardous materials 
shall include copies of Material Safety Data Sheets for the hazardous 
substances (other than medications) utilized by the facility(ies). 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Safety 
and Fire Departments 


 


35.  HAZ-4 Any storage facility for gas canisters containing hazardous or 
toxic substances shall be enclosed and capable of containing any 
accidental releases of gas.  A warning device shall be incorporated into 
the design of the gas storage containment facility that is capable of 
identifying accidental releases.  Venting of any released gases shall be 
accomplished without creating hazards for the surrounding environment 
or population.  Any leaks shall be reported immediately to the City Fire 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
building permit 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Safety 
and Fire Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


Department as well as other regulatory agencies that are in the 
reporting chain. 


36. HYD-1 Prior to the approval of the grading permit on the proposed 
Project site, the Project applicant(s) shall be required to prepare a 
stormwater pollution and prevention plan (SWPPP) consistent with the 
NPDES General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with 
Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Order No. 2010-0014-
DWQ), which is to be administered through all phases of grading and 
proposed Project construction.  The SWPPP shall incorporate best 
management practices (BMPs) to ensure that potential water quality 
impacts during construction phases are minimized.  The SWPPP shall 
be submitted to the Regional Water Quality Control Board and to the 
City of Wildomar for review.  A copy of the SWPPP must be kept 
accessible on the proposed Project site at all times.  In addition, the 
Project applicant(s) will be required to submit, and obtain City approval 
of, a Water Quality Management Plan prior to the issuance of any 
building or grading permit for future development on the proposed 
Project site in order to comply with the Areawide Urban Runoff 
Management Program.  The proposed Project shall implement site 
design BMPs, source control BMPs, and treatment control BMPs as 
identified in the Water Quality Management Plan.  Site design BMPs 
shall include, but are not limited to, landscape buffer areas, on-site 
ponding areas, roof and paved area runoff directed to vegetated areas, 
and vegetated swales. Source control BMPs shall include, but are not 
limited to, education, landscape maintenance, litter control, parking lot 
sweeping, irrigation design to prevent overspray, and covered trash 
storage.  Treatment control BMPs shall include vegetated swales and a 
detention basin, or an infiltration device. 


Prior to the 
issuance of a 
grading permit 


City of Wildomar 
Engineering 
Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


37.  NOI-1 To minimize noise impacts resulting from poorly tuned or 
improperly modified vehicles and construction equipment, all vehicles 
and construction equipment shall maintain equipment engines in good 
condition and in proper tune per manufacturers’ specifications to the 
satisfaction of the City of Wildomar Building Department. Equipment 
maintenance records and equipment design specification data sheets 
shall be kept on site during construction.  Compliance with this measure 
shall be subject to periodic inspections by the City of Wildomar Building 
Department. 


Implemented 
during Project 
operations 
 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 


 


38.  NOI-2 The construction contractor shall locate equipment staging in 
areas that will create the greatest distance between construction-related 
noise sources and noise-sensitive receptors (within 100 feet of any 
occupied residence) nearest the proposed Project site during all 
proposed Project construction. 


Implemented 
during Project 
operations 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 
 


 


39.  NOI-3 Stationary noise-generating construction equipment shall be 
placed a minimum of 320 feet from the property line of existing sensitive 
receptors (residences to the south), when and where feasible. 


Implemented 
during Project 
operations 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 


 


40.  NOI-4 Noise control barriers with a height of 6 feet are required where 
grading will occur within 100 feet of any occupied residence. 
It is important to note that the barriers’ attenuation will be accomplished 
only if the minimum height is based from the pad or the roadway 
elevation, whichever is the greater of the two.  If the barrier is being 
constructed at a position where the starting elevation is less than the 
pad or adjacent roadway, the barrier’s ultimate height will need to be 
adjusted to fit the aforementioned criteria. Where applicable, the 
barriers shall wrap around the ends of the dwelling units to prevent 
flanking of noise into the site.  


Prior to the 
issuance of 
occupancy permits 
and during project 
operations 


City of Wildomar 
Building and Planning 
Departments 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


41.  NOI-5 Roof-mounted air conditioning equipment shall be set back 
either 25 feet from the building’s closest edge or to a distance capable 
of breaking the line-of-sight of equipment from neighboring potential 
receivers, whichever provides the greater set back from the building’s 
edge of the two.  A subsequent noise study shall be submitted by the 
applicant and reviewed and approved at building plan check stage by 
the City to ensure that the AC units are not generating noise in excess 
of what is allowed under Chapter 9.48 of the Wildomar Municipal Code. 
 


Reviewed at 
building plan check 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 


 


42.  TR-1  The direct traffic impacts generated by the proposed Project can be 
mitigated to a less than significant level, to meet the required level of service 
of the following recommended improvements are implemented, prior to the 
respective phase of development: 
 
 
On-Site Recommendations: 
 
Roadways: 
• Construct partial width improvements on the southerly side of Clinton 


Keith Road at its ultimate cross-section as an urban arterial highway 
(152’ right-of-way) adjacent to proposed Project boundary line. 


• Construct partial width improvements on the westerly side of Elizabeth 
Lane at its ultimate cross-section as a collector street (78’ right-of-way) 
adjacent to proposed Project boundary line. 


• Construct partial width improvements on the easterly side of Yamas 
Drive at its ultimate cross-section as a collector street (78’ right-of-way) 
adjacent to proposed Project boundary line. 


Implemented 
during the 
appropriate Phase 
of proposed Project 
construction 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department 


 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


Intersections: 
Proposed Project’s actual improvements necessary are shown in italic, 
underlined.  The items that are not bold, italic, underlined are already 
existing). 
• Construct the intersection of proposed Project Driveway 1 (NS) and


Clinton Keith Road (EW) to restrict movement to right-in and right-out
only from the driveway with the following geometrics:


Northbound:   One right-turn lane.  Stop controlled. 
Southbound:  Not applicable. 
Eastbound:  One through lane.  One right-turn lane. 
Westbound:  One through lane. 


• Install a traffic signal at the intersection of Elizabeth Lane (NS) and
Clinton Keith Road (EW) to include the following geometrics:


Northbound: One left-turn lane. One shared through and right-turn 
lane. 
Southbound: One left-turn lane. One shared through and right-turn 
lane. 
Eastbound: One left-turn lane. One through lane. One right-turn lane. 
Westbound: One left-turn lane.  One through lane.  One shared 
through and right-turn lane. 


• Construct the intersection of Elizabeth Lane (NS) and proposed Project
Driveway 2 (EW) with the following geometrics:


Northbound:   One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane. 
Eastbound:  One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane. Stop 
controlled. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Westbound:  One shared left-turn, through and right-turn lane.  Stop 
controlled.  


• Construct the intersection of Elizabeth Lane (NS) and proposed Project 
Driveway 3 (EW) with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Southbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 
Eastbound: One shared left-turn and right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 
Westbound:  Not applicable. 


• Construct the intersection of Yamas Drive (NS) and Bunny Trail (EW) 
with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  Not applicable. 
Southbound:  One right-turn lane. 
Eastbound:  One shared left-turn and right-turn lane.  Stop controlled  
Westbound:  Not applicable. 


• Construct the intersection of Project Driveway 4 (NS) and Bunny Trail 
(EW) with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  Not Applicable. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn & right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 
Eastbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Westbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 


• Construct the intersection of Yamas Drive (NS) and proposed Project 
Driveway 5(EW) with the following geometrics: 


Northbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Eastbound:   Not applicable. 
Westbound:  One shared left-turn and right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


• Construct the intersection of Yamas Drive (NS) and Bunny Trail (EW)
with the following geometrics:


Northbound:  One shared through and right-turn lane. 
Southbound:  One shared left-turn and through lane. 
Eastbound:  Not applicable. 
Westbound: One shared left-turn & right-turn lane. Stop controlled. 


Prior to Issuance of a Grading Permit 
43. Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a final 


geotechnical soils reports to the City Engineer for review and approval 
prior to issuance of grading permit. All grading shall be in conformance 
with the recommendations of the geotechnical/soils reports as approved 
by the City of Wildomar. 


On-Going Planning Department 


44. Prior to the issuance of the 1st grading permit the applicant shall receive 
approval of a haul permit for any import of material to the site or export 
of material off-site.  The request for a haul permit shall include a haul 
route plan addressing the limitations of haul hours, number of loads per 
day and the posting of traffic control personnel at all approved 
entrances/exits onto public roads.  This haul permit shall be in place 
prior to the issuance of the grading permit and the mobilization of 
equipment on the project site.  If the proposed material source or 
disposal site was not previously evaluated by the mitigated negative 
declaration, a grading EA shall be approved by the planning director 
prior to the issuance of the haul permit. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 


45. Concurrent with the precise grading plan submittal, the applicant shall 
submit two sets of detailed landscape and irrigation plans, including on-
site and public right-of-way areas.  The landscaping and irrigation plans 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit Planning Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


shall be approved by the Planning Department prior to the issuance of 
any grading permit for the project. 


PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING/BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
General Requirements/Conditions 
1. The developer shall obtain City approval for any modifications or 


revisions to the approval of this project.  Deviations not identified on the 
plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting in the need 
for the project to be redesigned.  Amended entitlement approvals may 
be necessary as a result. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


2. The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct all improvements in 
accordance the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


3. The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with off-site 
right-of-way acquisition, including any costs associated with the eminent 
domain process, if necessary. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


4. Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district, the project 
proponent shall, make application for and pay for their reapportionment 
of the assessments or pay the unit fees in the benefit district unless said 
fees are otherwise deferred. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


5. The developer shall annex into the City’s Community Facility District 
(CFD 2013-1 Services) and pay associated costs for annexation. 
Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district that 
duplicates the services to be covered under CFD 2013-1 then the 
developer shall de-annex from said assessment/benefit district. 


Prior to Map 
Recordation 


Engineering Dept. Complete
1/15/2020
CFD # 18
D. York







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


6. The developer shall design and construct all driveways in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


7. The improvement plans for the required public improvements must be 
prepared and shall be based upon a design profile extending a minimum 
of 300 feet beyond the project boundaries at a grade and alignment as 
approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


8. All above-ground utilities, including but not limited to communication 
and power that are 33KV in size or less, shall be undergrounded by the 
developer in accordance with City requirements. The undergrounding 
of utilities shall be reflected on the project improvement plans. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


9. All flood control plans to be reviewed by the City or the Riverside County 
Flood Control District (RCFCD) shall be submitted through the City of 
Wildomar, unless otherwise directed by the City Engineer.  For projects 
requiring RCFCD review the developer shall pay the appropriate fees to 
RCFCD. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 


Prior to Recordation of the Final Map 
10. Prior to final map approval, improvement plans shall be prepared, 


processed, approved and complete the improvements; or execute an 
Improvement Agreement and Improvement Security.  This condition 
shall be in conformance with local regulations and the Subdivision Map 
Act.  Should the developer execute an Improvement Agreement and 
Security, improvement plans will be required prior to issuance of 
Building Permit and construction complete prior to first certificate of 
occupancy.  Refer to Conditions of Approval for the Plot Plan 12-0053. 


Prior to Final Map 
Approval for All 


Phases 


Public Works Dept. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


11. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the southern 
half - section of Clinton Keith Road, measured, 76’ from the approved 
centerline. Right of way will be based on a modified 152’ urban arterial, 
Standard No. 91, in accordance with the City of Wildomar Improvement 
Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
Refer to MND Mitigation Measure TR-1. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Phase A 


Engineering Dept. 


12. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the western 
half - section of Elizabeth Lane, measured, 39’ from the approved 
centerline. Right of way will be based on a 78’ industrial collector, 
Standard No. 111, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  Refer to MND Mitigation Measure TR-1. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map; 
Phase A and 


Phase B 


Engineering Dept. 


13. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the northerly 
half - section of Bunny Trail, measured, 39’ from the approved 
centerline.  Right of way will be based on a 78’ industrial collector, 
Standard No. 111, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map; 
Phase B and 


Phase C 


Engineering Dept. 


14. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate the easterly 
half - section of Yamas Drive, measured, 39’ from the approved 
centerline.  Right of way will be based on a 78’ industrial collector, 
Standard No. 111, in accordance with the City of Wildomar 
Improvement Standards & Specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer.  The developer shall prepare legal description and plat to 
support City acceptance by Resolution the road easement for Yamas 
Drive to be recorded prior to recordation of the Final Map. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map; 
Phase C 


Engineering Dept. 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 


15. The Applicant shall provide a reciprocal access easement between the 
parcels 1, 2 and 3 to ensure access to Clinton Keith Road and Elizabeth 
Lane.  And provide a reciprocal access easement between parcels 2 
and 4 to ensure access to Elizabeth Lane.  The location of the access 
point(s) shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and will be 
approved when these parcels are developed. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Phase A and 


Phase B 


Engineering Dept. 


16. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate easements for 
the storm drainage systems as shown on the tentative map.  Facilities 
that are to be owned and maintained by Riverside County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District (RCFC) shall be reviewed, approved 
and agreements executed. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map  
All Phases 


Engineering Dept. 


17. Prior to Final Map approval, the developer shall dedicate a public utility 
easement adjacent to all public and private streets for overhead and/or 
underground facilities and appurtenances to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
All Phases 


Engineering Dept. 


RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
General Conditions – Parcel Map No. 36492 
1. 10.FIRE.999PC - #01 – West Fire Protection Planning Office


Responsibility 
It is the responsibility of the recipient of these Fire Department 
conditions to forward them to all interested parties.  The permit number 
(as it is noted above) is required on all correspondence. 
Additional information is available at our website:  www.rvcfire.org go to 
the link marked “Ordinance 787”.  Questions should be directed to the 
Riverside County Fire Department, Fire Protection Planning Division at 


On-Going Fire Department 







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


2300 Market St. Suite 150, Riverside, CA 92501.  Phone: (951) 955-
4777. 


2.  10.FIRE.999 CASE –CITY CASE STATEMENT IN EFFECT 
With respect to the conditions of approval for the referenced project, the 
Fire Department recommends the following fire protection measures be 
provided In accordance with Riverside County Ordinances and /or 
recognized fire protection standards: 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


3.  10.FIRE.999 MAP #50-BLUE DOT REFLECTORS IN EFFECT 
Blue retro-reflective pavement markers shall be mounted on private 
streets, public streets and driveways to indicate location of fire hydrants. 
Prior to installation, placement of markers must be approved by the 
Riverside County Fire Department. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


4.  10.FIRE.999 MAP-15-POTENTIAL FIRE FLOW IN EFFECT 
Minimum required fire flow shall be 40000 GPM for 2 hours duration at 
20 PSI residual operating pressure, which must be available before any 
combustible material is placed on the job site. An actual fire flow 
available from any one hydrant shall be 2500 GP for 2 hours duration at 
20 PSI residual operating pressure. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


5.  10.FIRE.999 MAP-#14-COM/RES/HYD/SPACING IN EFFECT 
Approved super fire hydrants, (6” x  4” x 2 ½ ”) shall be located at each 
street not more than 350 feet apart in any direction, with no portion of 
any lot frontage more than 210 feet from a fire hydrant. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


  







EXHIBIT 1 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – Rancon Medical Office/Retail Project 


Planning Application:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 36492 
APN: 380-250-022 


Original Approval Date  =  October 1, 2014 (by PC) 
EOT #1 Approval Date  =  August 7, 2017 (by PC) 


EOT #2 Approval Date  =  November 7, 2018 (by PC) 


Original Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2017 
EOT #1 Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2018 


EOT #2 New Expiration Date  =  October 1, 2021 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring Dept. 
Verification (Date 


and Signature) 
 


Prior to Recordation of Final Map – Parcel Map No. 36492 
6.  50.FIRE.999 MAPS-#46-WATER PLANS  IN EFFECT 


The applicant or developer shall furnish one copy of the water system 
plans to the Fire Department for review. Plans shall be signed by a 
registered civil engineer, containing a Fire Department approval 
signature block, and shall conform to hydrant type, location, spacing 
and minimum fire flow.  Once plans are signed by local water company, 
the originals shall be presented to the Fire Department for signature. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Fire Department 


 


7.  50.FIRE.999  MAP-#53-ECS-WTR PRIOR/COMBUSTION IN EFFECT 
ECS map must be stamped by Riverside County Surveyor with the 
following Note:  The required water system, including fire hydrants, shall 
be installed and accepted by the appropriate water agency prior to any 
combustible building material placed on an individual lot. 


Prior to 
Recordation of 


Final Map 
Fire Department 


 


ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT CONDITIONS 
1.  The applicant shall be required to comply with all applicable EVMWD 


water and sewer conditions of approval for Parcel Map No. 36492 and 
Plot Plan No. 12-0053. The applicant shall contact Imad Baiyasi at 951-
674-3146, Ext. 8786 for additional details.  


On-Going EVMWD Staff  


 


 
END 







 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “E” 
LIEN AGREEMENT 











































 


 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


 


EXHIBIT “A” 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


PARCEL NO. 36492-F 


 


 











 
RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2  1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


 


EXHIBIT “B” 


LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 


PARCEL NO. 36492-2 


 


 







































WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL  
Agenda Item #1.10 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021  


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director/City  
   Engineer 
 
PREPARED BY: Warren Repke, Capital Projects Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Award Consultant Services Agreement for Preparation of Designs, 


Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates for Phase 1 Cemetery 
Improvements and Widening of Palomar Street from Gruwell Street 
to Wildomar Trail 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 


1. Authorize the City Manager to execute a Services Agreement between the City of 
Wildomar and Mark Thomas. 


2. Authorize the City Engineer to approve up to 10% of the contract amount for 
required additional services  


3. Appropriate at total of $277,000 from Fund 503 TUMF, for design and preparation 
of the plans, specifications, and cost estimate for the project. 


 
BACKGROUND 
On December 9, 2020 the Wildomar Cemetery District adopted the Cemetery Master Plan 
and authorized the following actions: 
1) Implement the findings from the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance 


Assessment 
1) Prepare improvement plans to remove and upgrade perimeter fencing and install 


landscaping 
2) Prepare improvement plans for the ultimate improvements on Palomar Street from 


Wildomar Trail to Gruwell Street. The improvements on Palomar will include sidewalks 
and a trail. 
 


DISCUSSION: 
This is a cooperative project between the Wildomar Cemetery District and the City of 
Wildomar. One Professional Services Agreement will be executed for both the City and 
Cemetery District and are designated in the Agreement as the “Agency”. The City of 
Wildomar will act as project manager. Estimated project construction costs are $300,000 
for the Cemetery improvements and $2,700,000 for the Palomar Street improvements. 
 







Staff prepared a formal Request for Proposals (RFP) for the required Professional 
Services and distributed to qualified firms. Proposals were submitted by four (4) firms. A 
proposal review panel of three was selected to review and evaluate the proposals. Based 
on the results of the panels evaluations the firm of Mark Thomas was selected as the 
most qualified to perform the services. Staff and the consultant have finalized a Services 
Agreement including a detailed scope of work and fee (Attachment A).   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The cost of the proposed services by Mark Thomas is $272,400. Total cost of the project 
design is estimated at $327,000 including Staff project administration costs and proposed 
10% contingency. Staff recommends $277,000 be appropriated from Fund 503, TUMF 
for the preparation of designs and plans, specifications, and cost estimate for the project. 
The remaining cost will be funded by the Cemetery District. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Dan York       Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager     City Manager 
Director of Public Works 
City Engineer     
   
ATTACHMENT: 


A. Services Agreement 
 


 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 - 


DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  


FOR 


CEMETERY FRONTAGE, ADA AND PALOMAR STREET 
WIDENING IMPROVEMENTS 


 


                             By and Between 


 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR,  


a municipal corporation and 


WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT, 


A subsidiary District 


 


and 


 


MARK THOMAS 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 1 -  


 


AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
BETWEEN 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
AND 


MARK THOMAS 
 
 


This Agreement for Design Professional Services (“Agreement”) is entered into as 
of this ____ day of _________, 20__ by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal 
corporation (“City”) and the Wildomar Cemetery District, a subsidiary district of the City 
pursuant to Wildomar Municipal Code Chapter 2.40 (“District”) and Mark Thomas, a 
California Corporation (“Design Professional”).  City and District are referred to 
collectively as “Agency”. Agency and Design Professional are sometimes hereinafter 
individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 
A. Agency has sought, by a request for proposals the performance of 


engineering services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement.   


B. Design Professional, following submission of a proposal for the 
performance of the services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this 
Agreement, was selected by the Agency to perform those services. 


C. Design Professional was selected by the Agency on the basis of Design 
Professional’s demonstrated competence and the professional qualifications necessary 
for the satisfactory performance of the services required. 


D. Pursuant to the City of Wildomar’s Municipal Code, Agency has authority to 
enter into this Design Professional Services Agreement and the City Manager of the City 
and General Manager of the District has authority to execute this Agreement. 


E. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Design Professional for 
performance of those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this 
Agreement and desire that the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and 
described herein. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made 
by the Parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 


SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 


Subject to the provisions of Section 20 "Termination of Agreement" of this 
Agreement, the Term of this Agreement is for two years commencing on the date first 
ascribed above. 


SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 2 -  


 


(a) Scope of Services.  Design Professional agrees to perform the services set 
forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. 


(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to a 
schedule as agreed to prior to the notice to proceed with the Services.  Should the 
Services not be completed pursuant to that schedule, the Design Professional shall be 
deemed to be in Default of this Agreement.  The Agency, in its sole discretion, may 
choose not to enforce the Default provisions of this Agreement and may instead allow 
Design Professional to continue performing the Services. 


SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 


Design Professional shall not be compensated for any work rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of the Services 
unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing in accordance 
with Section 26 “Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this 
Agreement.  If and when such additional work is authorized, such additional work shall 
be deemed to be part of the Services. 


SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 


Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, Agency agrees to pay Design 
Professional the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of this 
Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual 
expenses, shall not exceed Two Hundred Seventy-Two Thousand Four Hundred Seventy 
dollars ($272,470.00), unless additional compensation is approved in writing in 
accordance with Section 26 “Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 
“Amendment” of this Agreement. In accordance with California Government Code Section 
8546.7, if the Not to Exceed Amount exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), 
this Agreement and the Design Professional's books and records related to this 
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the 
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years 
after final payment under the Agreement. 


(a) Each month Design Professional shall furnish to Agency an original invoice 
for all work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice 
shall detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, 
equipment, supplies, and sub-Design Professional contracts.  Sub-Design Professional 
charges shall be detailed by the following categories: labor, travel, materials, equipment 
and supplies.  If the compensation set forth in subsection (a) and Exhibit “B” include 
payment of labor on an hourly basis (as opposed to labor and materials being paid as a 
lump sum), the labor category in each invoice shall include detailed descriptions of task 
performed and the amount of time incurred for or allocated to that task.  Agency shall 
independently review each invoice submitted by the Design Professional to determine 
whether the work performed, and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions 
of this Agreement.  In the event that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice 
shall be approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection (c).  In the event 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 3 -  


 


any charges or expenses are disputed by Agency, the original invoice shall be returned 
by Agency to Design Professional for correction and resubmission. 


(b) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
Design Professional which are disputed by Agency, Agency will use its best efforts to 
cause Design Professional to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Design 
Professional’s correct and undisputed invoice. 


(c) Payment to Design Professional for work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Design 
Professional. 


SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 


Agency may inspect and accept or reject any of Design Professional’s work under 
this Agreement, either during performance or when completed.  Agency shall reject or 
finally accept Design Professional’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to Agency.  
Agency shall reject work by a timely written explanation, otherwise Design Professional’s 
work shall be deemed to have been accepted.  Agency’s acceptance shall be conclusive 
as to such work except with respect to latent defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as 
amount to fraud.  Acceptance of any of Design Professional’s work by Agency shall not 
constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, 
Section 16 “Indemnification” and Section 17 “Insurance.” 


SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 


All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 
reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Design Professional in the course of providing the Services pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the sole property of Agency and may be used, reused or 
otherwise disposed of by Agency without the permission of the Design Professional.  
Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Design Professional shall 
turn over to Agency all such original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, 
studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents. 


If and to the extent that Agency utilizes for any purpose not related to this 
Agreement any maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 
reports, data, notes, computer files, files or other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Design Professional in the course of providing the Services pursuant to 
this Agreement, Design Professional’s guarantees and warranties in Section 9 “Standard 
of Performance” of this Agreement shall not extend to such use of the maps, models, 
designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, 
files or other documents. 


All Final Work Product developed by Design Professional in the course of providing 
the Services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of Agency and 
may be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by Agency without the permission of the 
Design Professional.  Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, 
Design Professional shall turn over to Agency all such Final Work Product if paid for by 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 4 -  


 


the Agency.  This provision specifically excludes Design Professional’s work notes and 
drafts, which are owned by Design Professional, not Agency.  


SECTION 7. DESIGN PROFESSIONAL'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 


(a) Design Professional shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Design Professional’s performance of the Services.  Design 
Professional shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, 
canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, 
expenditures and disbursements charged to Agency pursuant to this Agreement.  Any 
and all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to 
permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by Design Professional pursuant 
to this Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained for three 
(3) years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent required by laws 
relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 


(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 
section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during 
regular business hours, upon request by Agency or its designated representative.  Copies 
of such documents or records shall be provided directly to the Agency for inspection, audit 
and copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually 
agreed upon, such documents and records shall be made available at Design 
Professional’s address indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 


(c) Where Agency has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 
required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to 
dissolution or termination of Design Professional’s business, Agency may, by written 
request, require that custody of such documents or records be given to the City.  Access 
to such documents and records shall be granted to Agency, as well as to its 
successors-in-interest and authorized representatives. 


SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 


(a) Design Professional is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent 
contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of Agency.  Design Professional shall 
have no authority to bind Agency in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or 
liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract or otherwise, unless 
such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly 
conferred in writing by Agency. 


(b) The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Design Professional shall at all times be under Design Professional’s exclusive direction 
and control.  Neither Agency, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, 
employees or agents of Agency, shall have control over the conduct of Design 
Professional or any of Design Professional’s officers, employees, or agents except as set 
forth in this Agreement.  Design Professional shall not at any time or in any manner 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 5 -  


 


represent that Design Professional or any of Design Professional’s officers, employees, 
or agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of Agency. 


(c) Neither Design Professional, nor any of Design Professional’s officers, 
employees or agents, shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other 
benefits which may otherwise accrue to Agency’s employees.  Design Professional 
expressly waives any claim Design Professional may have to any such rights. 


SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 


Design Professional represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, 
experience and facilities necessary to properly perform the Services required under this 
Agreement in a thorough, competent and professional manner.  Design Professional shall 
at all times faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, 
perform all Services.  In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Design 
Professional shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices 
utilized by persons engaged in providing services similar to the Services required of 
Design Professional under this Agreement, and shall use such skill, prudence, and 
diligence as other members of Design Professional’s profession commonly possess and 
exercise.  In addition to the general standards of performance set forth this section, 
additional specific standards of performance and performance criteria may be set forth in 
Exhibit “A” “Scope of Work” that shall also be applicable to Design Professionals work 
under this Agreement.  Where there is a conflict between a general and a specific 
standard of performance or performance criteria, the specific standard or criteria shall 
prevail over the general. 


SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES. 


Design Professional shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect 
during the term of this Agreement.  Design Professional shall obtain any and all licenses, 
permits and authorizations necessary to perform the Services set forth in this Agreement.  
Neither Agency, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or 
agents of Agency, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of Design 
Professional to comply with this section. 


SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS. 


It is the understanding of Agency and Design Professional that California prevailing 
wage laws do not apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any 
of the following services subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor 
Code or regulations promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, 
installation, or repair work performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done 
under contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds.  In this context, 
“construction" includes work performed during the design and preconstruction phases of 
construction including, but not limited to, inspection and land surveying work. 


SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 6 -  


 


Design Professional shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the 
basis of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, 
medical condition or marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this 
Agreement. 


SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 


Design Professional hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the 
provisions of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as 
amended, and in connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined 
therein.  Should Design Professional so employ such unauthorized aliens for the 
performance of the Services and should the any liability or sanctions be imposed against 
Agency for such use of unauthorized aliens, Design Professional hereby agrees to and 
shall reimburse Agency for the cost of all such liabilities or sanctions imposed, together 
with any and all costs, including attorneys' fees, incurred by Agency. 


SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 


(a) Design Professional covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of 
its firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any 
manner with the interests of Agency or which would in any way hinder Design 
Professional’s performance of the Services.  Design Professional further covenants that 
in the performance of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be 
employed by it as an officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written 
consent of the City Manager/General Manager. Design Professional agrees to at all times 
avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests 
Agency in the performance of this Agreement. 


(b) City understands and acknowledges that Design Professional is, as of the 
date of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-
related services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Design 
Professional is unaware of any stated position of City relative to such projects.  Any future 
position of Agency on such projects shall not be considered a conflict of interest for 
purposes of this section. 


(c) Agency understands and acknowledges that Design Professional will, 
perform non-related services for other governmental agencies and private parties 
following the completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service 
shall not be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 


(a) All information gained or work product produced by Design Professional in 
performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information 
is in the public domain or already known to Design Professional.  Design Professional 
shall not release or disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities 
other than Agency without prior written authorization from the City Manager/General 
Manager, except as may be required by law. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 7 -  


 


(b) Design Professional, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall 
not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager/General Manager or unless 
requested by the City Attorney of Agency, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of 
support, testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories or other information 
concerning the work performed under this Agreement.  Response to a subpoena or court 
order shall not be considered "voluntary" provided Design Professional gives Agency 
notice of such court order or subpoena.  


(c) If Design Professional, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 
Design Professional, provides any information or work product in violation of this 
Agreement, then Agency shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from 
Design Professional for any damages, costs and fees, including attorney's fees, caused 
by or incurred as a result of Design Professional’s conduct. 


(d) Design Professional shall promptly notify Agency should Design 
Professional, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors be served with any 
summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, 
interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery request, court order or 
subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement and the work performed thereunder.  
Agency retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Design Professional or be 
present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding.  Design Professional agrees to 
cooperate fully with Agency and to provide Agency with the opportunity to review any 
response to discovery requests provided by Design Professional.  However, this right to 
review any such response does not imply or mean the right by Agency to control, direct, 
or rewrite said response. Design Professional shall not be held criminally or civilly liable 
under any Federal or State trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that is 
made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local government official or to an attorney 
solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law or made 
in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is 
made under seal.  


SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 


(a) Indemnification by Design Professional.  Where the services to be provided 
by Design Professional under this Agreement are design professional services, as that 
term is defined under Civil Code Section 2782.8, Design Professional agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless the Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from any 
and costs or liability, including attorneys’ fees and costs, that actually or allegedly arise 
out of, or relate to, the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Design 
Professional and its agents in the performance of services under this contract. This 
indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for bodily injury, property damage or 
other loss, arising from the sole negligence, active negligence or willful misconduct by the 
Agency, its officers, official employees, and volunteers. Design Professional’s obligations 
to reimburse the Agency for attorneys’ fees and costs shall not exceed its proportionate 
percentage of fault. 


(b) As respects all acts or omissions which do not arise directly out of the 
performance of design professional services, including but not limited to those acts or 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 8 -  


 


omissions normally covered by general and automobile liability insurance, Design 
Professional agrees to indemnity, defend and hold harmless the Agency, its officers 
officials, employees and volunteers for an against any claim, demands, losses, liability of 
any kind or nature arising out of or in connection with the Design Professional's 
performance or failure to perform under the terms of this contract, excepting those which 
arise out of the active negligence, sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Agency, its 
officers, officials, employees and volunteers. 


(c) Indemnification from Sub-consultants. Design Professional agrees to obtain 
executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth here in this 
section from each and every sub-consultant, sub-contractor or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of Design Professional in the performance of this 
Agreement naming the Indemnified Parties as additional indemnitees.  In the event 
Design Professional fails to obtain such indemnity obligations from others as required 
here, Design Professional agrees to be fully responsible according to the terms of this 
section.  Failure of Agency to monitor compliance with these requirements imposes no 
additional obligations on Agency and will in no way act as a waiver of any rights 
hereunder.  This obligation to indemnify and defend Agency as set forth herein is binding 
on the successors, assigns or heirs of Design Professional and shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement or this section. 


(d) Agency's Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to Claims 
occurring as a result of Agency’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not 
release Agency from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissions of 
Agency or any and all of its officials, employees and agents.  


SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 


Design Professional agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during 
the term of this Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit “C” “Insurance” and 
made a part of this Agreement.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by 
Agency as to form and content.  These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver 
if so approved in writing by the City Manager/General Manager.  Design Professional 
agrees to provide Agency with copies of required policies upon request. 


SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 


The expertise and experience of Design Professional are material considerations 
for this Agreement.  Agency has an interest in the qualifications and capability of the 
persons and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Design 
Professional under this Agreement.  In recognition of that interest, Design Professional 
shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the 
performance of any of Design Professional’s duties or obligations under this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of the Agency.  Any attempted assignment shall be 
ineffective, null and void, and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling 
Agency to any and all remedies at law or in equity, including termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 20 “Termination of Agreement.”  Agency acknowledges, however, 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 9 -  


 


that Design Professional, in the performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, 
may utilize subcontractors. 


SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 


Design Professional shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability 
and continuity of Design Professional’s staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to 
perform the Services.  Design Professional shall notify Agency of any changes in Design 
Professional’s staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to perform the Services prior to 
and during any such performance. 


SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 


(a) Agency may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time 
by giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Design Professional.  In the event 
such notice is given, Design Professional shall cease immediately all work in progress. 


(b) Design Professional may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time 
upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Agency. 


(c) If either Design Professional or Agency fails to perform any material 
obligation under this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Design 
Professional, or Agency may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice. 


(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Design Professional or 
Agency, all property belonging exclusively to Agency which is in Design Professional’s 
possession shall be returned to Agency.  Design Professional shall furnish to Agency a 
final invoice for work performed and expenses incurred by Design Professional, prepared 
as set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement.  This final invoice shall be reviewed and paid 
in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 “Compensation and Method of Payment” of 
this Agreement. 


SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 


In the event that Design Professional is in default under the terms of this 
Agreement, the Agency shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating 
Design Professional for any work performed after the date of default.  Instead, the Agency 
may give notice to Design Professional of the default and the reasons for the default.  The 
notice shall include the timeframe in which Design Professional may cure the default.  
This timeframe is presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not 
reduced, if circumstances warrant.  During the period of time that Design Professional is 
in default, the Agency shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed 
with payment on the invoices.  In the alternative, the Agency may, in its sole discretion, 
elect to pay some or all of the outstanding invoices during the period of default.  If Design 
Professional does not cure the default, the Agency may take necessary steps to terminate 
this Agreement under Section 20.  Any failure on the part of the Agency to give notice of 
the Design Professional’s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the Agency’s 
legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 10 -  


 


SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 


Design Professional shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, 
if any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the 
control of Design Professional.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, 
acts of the public enemy, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of Agency, court 
orders, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The 
term and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such 
causes. 


SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY AGENCY. 


All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and 
available to Agency as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the 
Services shall be furnished to Design Professional in every reasonable way to facilitate, 
without undue delay, the Services to be performed under this Agreement. 


SECTION 24. NOTICES. 


All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage 
prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 


 


To Agency:    City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager/General Manager  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 


  Wildomar, CA 92595 


To Design Professional:     Mark Thomas 
Attn: Darin Johnson, PE 
10630 Town Center Dr. 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91703 


 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted 


by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the 
United States Postal Service. 


SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 


Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent 
and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she 
purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including necessary 
expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement. 


SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 11 -  


 


This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager/General 
Manager or his or her designated representative.  The City Manager/General Manager 
shall have the authority to issue interpretations and to make amendments to this 
Agreement, including amendments that commit additional funds, consistent with Section 
28 “Amendment” and the City Manager’s/General Manager’s contracting authority under 
the Wildomar Municipal Code.  


SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT. 


This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 


SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. 


No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and approved by the Design Professional and by the Agency.  The City Manager/ 
General Manager shall have the authority to approve any amendment to this Agreement 
if the total compensation under this Agreement, as amended, would not exceed the City 
Manager/General Manager’s contracting authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code.  
The Agency’s City Manager/General Manager may, but is not required to, make minor 
amendments not affecting substantive terms without further authorization from the 
Agency. The Agency hereby authorizes the City Manager/General Manager to execute 
any such amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce 
Agency’s rights under this Agreement.  


SECTION 29. WAIVER 


Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  Waiver 
by any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
provision of this Agreement.  Acceptance by Agency of any work or services by Design 
Professional shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN, VENUE. 


This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the 
laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the Parties, venue in 
state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Riverside, California.  In the event 
of litigation in a U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of 
California, in Riverside. 


SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 


In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any 
provision of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation or other proceeding 
shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in 
addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 12 -  


 


SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 


This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between Design Professional and Agency prior to the execution 
of this Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or 
written, made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.   


SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY. 


If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by 
any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and the Agreement shall be 
read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 


SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS. 


Except as otherwise stated herein, if the terms of this Agreement conflict with the 
terms of any Exhibit hereto, or with the terms of any document incorporated by reference 
into this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control.    


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
date and year first-above written. 


AGENCY: 


_____________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager/General Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 
Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


_______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 13 -  


 


MARK THOMAS 


By:   By:   
 _________________________________   
 Its: ______________________________ Its:  ________________________ 


NOTE: DESIGN PROFESSIONAL’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY 
NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE 
INCLUDED AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS 
APPLICABLE TO DESIGN PROFESSIONAL’S BUSINESS ENTITY. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1    


 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the basis 
of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on 
the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


 __________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1    


 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the basis 
of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on 
the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


 __________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 


 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 A-1 


EXHIBIT "A" 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 







 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


1 


Project Scope 


  


TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLES 
TASK 1.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Task 1.1 Project Management 
Includes planning, organization, and monitoring of project work activities and resources in 
accordance with contracted scope, schedule and budget. Also includes preparation of 
contract paperwork, memos, letters and e-mails, making phone calls, maintaining project 
files, and managing sub-consultants. 


 Project Management 


 6 PDT/Kickoff 
Meetings, 
Agendas/Minutes. 
 


Task 1.2 Meetings 
Includes up to one (1) kickoff meeting and five (5) PDT meetings.  Also includes the 
preparation of agendas and meeting minutes.  


Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1) Assumes a total duration of project management of up to twelve (12) months from issuance of NTP. 
TASK 2.0 SURVEY 
Task 2.1 Site Control 
Includes establishing a site-wide network of horizontal/vertical control to serve as the 
basis for any subsequent boundary, topographic, or construction staking surveys that may 
be required throughout the course of the project. Mark Thomas will establish Project 
control based upon the California State Plane Coordinate system NAD83 and vertically 
based on NAVD 88 unless directed otherwise.   Mark Thomas will prepare a Project 
Control Report summarizing the points held, benchmarks, and vertical/horizontal datums. 


 Project Control Report 


 3D- Photographic Log 
 Compiled Record 


Maps, As-Builts, and 
Right of Way Research 


 Existing R/W Base 
Maps 


 Corner Records (up to 
2) 


 Topographic Base Map 
/ DTM 


 


Task 2.2 Existing Right of Way Mapping 
A diligent search will be conducted to locate record monuments within the project area. 
Found monuments will be located using a Total Station or GPS and included in the Land 
Net.  Mark Thomas assumes monuments or reference marks thereto shown on various 
maps will be available to retrace the right-of-way and parcel lines without convoluted 
surveys outside the project limits. It is assumed reference marks set off the roadway will 
be located and no direct ties to monuments within streets will be necessary.  No traffic 
control or permits are included in this task. 
 
Mark Thomas will establish street centerlines and existing rights of way based upon found 
survey data and available County Surveyor records for Palomar Street, Gruwell Street, 
Wildomar Trail, and Elm Street along the Project limits.  Upon completion of all mapping, 
Mark Thomas will develop an Existing R/W Base Map depicting all results in AutoCAD 
format and file Corner Records as necessary with the County of Riverside. 
Task 2.3 Topographic Survey 
Mark Thomas will perform a field topographic survey to document existing site 
topography and planimetrics along Palomar Street, Gruwell Street, Wildomar Trail and 
Elm Street, and within the cemetery. Topographic survey will extend to parking lot curbs 
at existing improvements and up to 100 feet into vacant land. Substantial visible 
improvements will be located within the street right of way, including utilities, manholes, 
valve covers, utility vaults and covers, signposts, signs, trees, utility poles, traffic signal 
poles, cross gutters, local depressions, catch basins, driveway openings, sidewalks,   



http://www.novapdf.com





 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


2 


 


 


 


 


TASK 2.0 SURVEY (CONTINUED) 
corner access ramps, fire hydrants, parkway drains, etc.  Visible indications of surface 
utilities lying within the project limits will be located, as will accurate lid/rim elevations for 
drainage structures present.  Street cross sections will be taken at 25-foot intervals.   
Additionally,  Mark Thomas will generate a photograph log using a 3-D camera 
establishing pre-design photographs at critical areas. 


 


Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1) Assumes a total duration of project management of up to twelve (12) months from issuance of NTP. 
2) Traffic Control and Permits were not included in this task. 
3) A Record of Survey per the PLS Act 8762 (Business & Professions Code §§ 8700 – 8805) Section 8762 is not required.  


Corner Records should suffice to meet the requirements of Section 8762. 
4) Preliminary Title Reports were not included within this scope of services. 
TASK 3.0 UTILITIES 
Task 3.1 Initial Research 
Mark Thomas will distribute Utility “A” Letters (record request forms) to each utility to 
request as-built mapping of their facilities as previously discussed in the project approach. 


 Compiled Utility 
Record Maps & As-
Builts 


 Utility Base Mapping 
and Sheets 


 Utility Conflict Sheets 
 A, B & C Letters  
 Electric and Landscape 


Water Meter 
Applications/ 
Coordination 
  


Task 3.2 Utility Base Maps 
Mark Thomas will utilize as-built data and utility maps obtained by the utility companies to 
prepare existing utility base mapping and identify all utilities on the plans that are within 
the project limits. The utility mapping developed for the PS&E will be verified through 
topographic surveys and a site walk.  
Task 3.3 Utility Coordination 
Mark Thomas will assist the City with Utility Conflict Mapping, including the typical “ABC” 
process of utility letters, which includes: 


1) Utility “A” Letter: The Utility “A” Letters (record request forms) per Task 3.1 
above. 


2) Utility “B” Letter: Conflict Maps showing the utility mapping and the proposed 
improvements will be sent to the utility companies for verification.  Additionally, 
relocation claim letters will be sent with this request asking utility owners to 
verify liability of costs for relocation. 


3) Utility “C” Letter: Final plans, along with a letter, will be sent to the utility 
companies showing the existing utilities and the final design.  Mark Thomas will 
review and approve compatibility with the project for relocation plans, cost 
estimates, and schedules prepared by utility owners. 


Prior to issuing “B” letters, Mark Thomas will provide a preliminary analysis of liability of 
costs determination based upon available County Surveyor Records. 
Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1) Assumes up to $300 in fees associated with obtaining record maps, plans, as-builts and other pertinent information. 
2) Fees to process applications for services lines were not included within this scope of services.  



http://www.novapdf.com





 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


3 


  


TASK 4.0 CONCEPT DESIGN 
Task 4.1 Develop Preliminary Concepts 
Mark Thomas will initially meet with City staff and present preliminary concepts for 
roadway geometrics and project wide aesthetics.  Inspiration Boards will be developed 
based upon initial meeting with City Staff illustrating sample aesthetic features, 
elevations, typical sections, , and geometric design sections for refinement and approval.  
Based upon the review and recommendations from City Staff, Mark Thomas will develop 
up to two (2) Geometric, Preliminary Wall/Gate, and Aesthetic Concept Sections and one 
(1) alignment for all Palomar Street improvements/ aesthetics and the Wildomar 
Cemetery wall and gate improvements.  These concepts will be presented to City Staff 
for final review and approvals. 


 Inspiration Boards (up 
to 2) 


 Geometric Concept 
Drawing 


 Geometric Concept 
Sections (Up to 2) 


 Preliminary Wall/Gate 
Concepts (up to 2) 


 Palomar Street 
Aesthetic Concepts 
(up to 2) 


 Planning City Council 
Presentation 


 Preliminary Concept 
Cost Estimates 


 Design Decision Log 
 


Task 4.2 Council Meeting 
Based upon input from City Staff in Task 4.1, Mark Thomas will finalize Geometric, 
Preliminary Wall/Gate, and Aesthetic Concepts for the preferred alternative and develop 
a power point presentation with concept boards to present to the City Council for final 
approvals/input.  Mark Thomas will support the City on staff reports/presentation 
preparation for the meeting. 
Task 4.3 Design Standards Documentation/Support 
City Staff will seek the use of AASHTO/FHWA guidelines in lieu of Riverside County 
design standards/guidelines via City Council Approval.  Mark Thomas will provide a Design 
Decision Log assisting the City on establishing new design speeds and lane widths based 
on AASHTO and FHWA guidelines where necessary to justify non-County standard 
design features. 
Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1) Mark Thomas will prepare up to two (2) Geometric, Preliminary Wall/Gate and Palomar Street Aesthetic Concepts in 


section format for initial review/approval.  Upon receiving concurrence from the City staff on a preferred section, Mark 
Thomas will finalize sections, develop a proposed roadway alignment, and finalize preliminary 


2) Palomar Street Aesthetic Concepts will be developed for the Wildomar Cemetery Frontage and aesthetics of all other 
portions of Palomar Street will be done using the Geometric Concept Sections. 


3) Mark Thomas has only included 1 City Council Meeting within this scope of work. 
TASK 5.0 STUDIES 
Task 5.1 Water Quality Management Plan 
Mark Thomas will generate a Water Quality Management Memorandum that outlines 
project specific BMPs, project tributaries and TMDL sensitivity, and City maintenance 
responsibilities per RCFC & WCD and State Water Resource Control Board 
requirements. 


 Water Quality 
Management 
Memorandum 


Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1)  Although a Project Specific WQMP isn’t necessary for a Category 3 Roadway Widening Project, it is assumed Mark 


Thomas will generate a Project Specific WQMP equivalent document utilizing the County Roadway Project Guidance to 
show proof of NDPES/RCFC & WCD/SWRCB compliance.  Mark Thomas will identify BMPs at 60% design submittal and 
submit the WQMP at 90%, and Final Design submittals. 



http://www.novapdf.com





 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


4 


  


TASK 6.0 RIGHT OF WAY 
Task 5.1 Right of Way Requirements Maps 
Mark Thomas will generate a Right of Way Requirements Map outlining impacted 
properties, required property interests (including dimensions, areas and interest types), 
and project improvements. 


 R/W Requirements 
Maps 


Assumptions/Clarifications:  
1) Right of Way Requirements Maps will be submitted with 90% and Final Submittals. 


TASK 7.0 PS&Es 
Task 7.1 Roadway Improvement Plans 
Mark Thomas will develop Title Sheet, Detail Sheets, Typical Sections, Cross Section 
Sheets (50-foot intervals and critical stations), Roadway Layout/Profile, Landscape Plans, 
Signing and Striping, Signal Modifications (Gruwell/Wildomar Trail intersections), Erosion 
Control plans (1” = 20’ scale for plans, 1” = 5’/10’ scale on driveway/curb ramp 
improvements and details) for all Project improvements along Palomar Street, Gruwell 
Street, Elm Street, and Wildomar Trail. 


 Final Roadway 
Improvement Plans  


 Final Cemetery 
Improvement Plans 


 Final Perimeter Wall & 
Gate Improvement 
Plans 


 Notice of Inviting Bid 
Package / 
Specifications 


 Engineer’s Estimate of 
Probable Cost 


Task 7.2 Cemetery Improvement Plans 
Mark Thomas will develop Title Sheet, Detail Sheets, Site Improvement Plans, Grading 
Plans, and Work Area Plans for ADA improvements within Wildomar Cemetery limits. 
Task 7.3 Perimeter Wall/Gate Plans 
Mark Thomas will develop Title Sheet, Detail Sheets, Site Plan, Wall Improvement Plans, 
and Landscape/Irrigation Plans for improvements for Perimeter Wall and Gate 
improvements along Wildomar Cemetery Palomar Street/Gruwell Street frontage.  Mark 
Thomas will develop concept automated gate plans and a design performance 
specification for the Contractor to field engineering the gate plans. 
Task 7.4 Project Specifications 
Mark Thomas will generate the Notice of Inviting Bid Documentation, General, Provisions, 
and Technical Specifications for all Project improvements using City boilerplate standards 
and the Greenbook latest edition.  It is assumed the City has a standardized Notice of 
Bids and supplemental documentation, and General Provisions “Boilerplate” templates to 
use. 
Task 7.5 Project Estimate 
Mark Thomas will prepare an itemized engineer’s estimate at each submittal. A bid item 
list will be included, with appropriate SSP referenced adjacent to the contract item. The 
unit costs shall be determined by reviewing similar recent project bid summaries, the 
California Highway Construction Cost Index information, and the Caltrans Engineering 
Service Center site. Prices will be adjusted using engineering judgment that reflects the 
location of the project and the quantity of each item and current escalation trends 
analysis based upon a six-month projected forecast from the date of the final estimate. 



http://www.novapdf.com





 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


5 


 


 


TASK 7.0 PS&Es (CONTINUED) 
Assumptions/Clarifications:  


1) It is assumed Landscape and Irrigation Plans will only be necessary for Cemetery frontage, all other areas are not 
included as its assumed these will be built by developers in the future. 


2) Improvement Plans and Project Estimate for Tasks 7.1, 7.2, 7.3, & 7.5 will be submitted at 60%, 90% and Final 
submittals. 


3) Signal Pole locations will be provided at 60% design submittal, Traffic Signal Plans will be submitted at 90% and Final 
submittals. 


4) Project Specifications for Task 7.4 will be submitted at 90% and Final submittals. 
5) It is assumed one this project will be bid as one (1) bid package and Improvement Plans will be combined into one (1) 


plan set with one (1) Project Specifications and Estimate.  
6) Pavement and base sections will be based upon County Standard Classifications. 


TASK 8.0 BIDDING & CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 
Task 8.1 Construction Bidding Phase 
Mark Thomas and subconsultants will provide assistance, as required, to the City during 
bidding of the project. The work may include answering questions from prospective 
bidders, assisting the City in the preparation of addenda to the PS&E during the 
advertisement period, and providing consultation and interpretation of the construction 
documents. 


 Support to Bid 
Addenda (up to 1) 


 Response to RFIs (up 
to 8) 


 Review of Shop 
Drawings (up to 8) 


 Attendance of Pre-Bid, 
Pre-Construction, and 
Construction Meetings 
(up to 3) 


 Final As-Built Drawings 
 


Task 8.2 Construction Phase 
Mark Thomas will assist the City during the construction of the project by addressing and 


respond to RFI’s, reviewing shop drawing submittals, preparation of supplemental 
sketches and details as required to resolve field construction items, and attendance of as 


necessary pre-bid/pre-construction/construction meetings. 
Task 8.3 Project Closeout 
Mark Thomas will prepare record drawings from contractor and construction as-built 
drawings, markups, and field notes as provided by the City’s Construction Manager and 
Inspector. 
Assumptions/Clarifications:  


1) This will be bid and constructed as one (1) project. 
2) It is assumed the City/Contractor will provide clear redlines/mark-ups for Mark 


Thomas to use in preparation of Final As-Built Drawings. 



http://www.novapdf.com





 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 B-1 


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION 


 







En
gi


ne
er


in
g 


M
an


ag
er


Jo
sh


ua
 C


os
pe


r
Sr


. P
ro


je
ct


 M
an


ag
er


Ro
be


rt
 V


as
qu


ez
Pr


oj
ec


t E
ng


in
ee


r


De
si


gn
 E


ng
in


ee
r I


In
te


rn


Sr
. S


ur
ve


y 
M


an
ag


er


Pr
oj


ec
t S


ur
ve


yo
r


LA
U


D 
Di


vi
si


on
 M


an
ag


er


M
ar


ty
 A


rm
st


ro
ng


LA
U


D 
Pr


oj
ec


t M
an


ag
er


La
nd


sc
ap


e 
De


si
gn


er


Pr
oj


ec
t A


cc
ou


nt
an


t


Pr
oj


ec
t C


oo
rd


in
at


or


FE
HR


 &
 P


EE
RS


G
RO


U
P 


DE
LT


A


CL
 S


U
RV


EY
IN


G


$355 $255 $165 $110 $65 $260 $170 $250 $200 $120 $120 $110 Non-DBE Non-DBE DBE


1.0 Project Management
1.1 Project Management 2 24 10 30 66 $15,330 $3,000 -                  -                  $18,330
1.2 Meetings (Kickoff, PDT, Stakeholder) (6) 2 12 24 16 54 $10,930 -                  -                  -                  $10,930


Subtotal Phase 1 4 36 24 0 0 0 0 10 46 0 0 0 120 $26,260 $3,000 $0 $0 $29,260


2.0 Survey
2.1 Site Control 2 8 10 $1,390 -                  -                  $4,000.00 $5,390
2.2 Existing Right of Way Land Net 8 8 $880 -                  -                  $7,000.00 $7,880
2.3 Topographic Survey 8 8 $880 -                  -                  $13,000.00 $13,880


Subtotal Phase 2 0 2 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 $3,150 $0 $0 $24,000 $27,150


3.0 Utilities
3.1 Initial Research 2 4 8 14 $1,690 -                  -                  -                  $1,690
3.2 Utilities Base Mapping 8 40 48 $5,720 -                  -                  -                  $5,720
3.3 Utility Cooridnation 4 40 44 $5,060 -                  -                  -                  $5,060


Subtotal Phase 3 0 2 16 80 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 106 $12,470 $0 $0 $0 $12,470


4.0 Concept Design / Evaluation
4.1 Develop Preliminary Concepts 8 20 64 16 2 12 60 6 192 $25,220 -                  -                  -                  $25,220
4.2 City Council Presentations 4 2 16 12 6 40 $6,170 -                  -                  -                  $6,170
4.3 Design Standard Documentation/Support 4 16 40 6 66 $8,720 -                  -                  -                  $8,720


Subtotal Phase 4 0 16 38 120 16 0 0 2 24 60 0 18 298 $40,110 $0 $0 $0 $40,110


5.0 Studies
5.1 Water Quality Management Memorandum 2 16 32 50 $6,670 -                  -                  -                  $6,670


Subtotal Phase 5 0 2 16 32 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50 $6,670 $0 $0 $0 $6,670


6.0 Right of Way
6.1 Right of Way Requirements Maps 2 24 34 $4,090 -                  -                  -                  $4,090


Subtotal Phase 6 0 0 2 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34 $4,090 $0 $0 $0 $4,090


7.0 PS&Es
7.1 Roadway Improvement Plans 24 40 260 324 $41,320 $30,000 -                  -                  $71,320
7.2 Cemetery Improvement Plans 8 24 40 20 92 $11,700 -                  -                  -                  $11,700
7.3 Perimeter Wall/Gate Plans 2 8 28 40 2 40 120 240 $30,410 -                  -                  -                  $30,410
7.4 Project Specifications 8 24 2 12 46 $8,900 -                  -                  -                  $8,900
7.5 Project Estimate 2 16 24 2 12 18 74 $10,850 -                  -                  -                  $10,850


Subtotal Phase 7 0 44 112 352 60 0 0 6 64 120 18 0 776 $103,180 $30,000 $0 $0 $133,180


8.0 Bidding & Construction Support
8.1 Construction Bidding Phase 2 8 2 8 20 $3,930 $3,000 -                  -                  $6,930
8.2 Construction Phase 4 12 2 10 28 $5,500 -                  -                  -                  $5,500
8.3 Project Closeout 2 4 24 2 10 42 $6,310 -                  -                  -                  $6,310


Subtotal Phase 8 0 8 24 24 0 0 0 6 28 0 0 0 90 $15,740 $3,000 $0 $0 $18,740


TOTAL HOURS 4 110 232 656 84 0 0 24 162 180 18 18 1500


OTHER DIRECT COSTS $800 $0 $0 $0 $800


TOTAL COST $1,420 $28,050 $38,280 $72,160 $5,460 $0 $0 $6,000 $32,400 $21,600 $2,160 $1,980 $212,470 $36,000 $0 $24,000 $272,470


Total MT 
Cost


WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING
Subconsultants


TOTAL COST
Total 
Hours


3/11/2021



http://www.novapdf.com





 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 C-1 


EXHIBIT "C" 
INSURANCE 


 
 A. Insurance Requirements.  Design Professional shall provide and maintain 
insurance, acceptable to the City, in full force and effect throughout the term of this 
Agreement, against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise 
from or in connection with the performance of the Services by Design Professional, its 
agents, representatives or employees.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a 
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII.  Design Professional shall provide the 
following scope and limits of insurance: 
 
  1. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Design Professional shall maintain 
professional liability insurance appropriate to the Design Professional’s profession.  This 
coverage may be written on a “claims made” basis, and must include coverage for 
contractual liability.  The professional liability insurance required by this Agreement must 
be endorsed to be applicable to claims based upon, arising out of or related to Services 
performed under this Agreement.  The insurance must be maintained for at least three 
(3) consecutive years following the completion of Design Professional’s services or the 
termination of this Agreement.  During this additional three (3) year period, Design 
Professional shall annually and upon request of the City submit written evidence of this 
continuous coverage. 
 
  2. Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Design Professional shall maintain 
limits of professional liability insurance no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
 B. Other Provisions.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall 
be endorsed and state the coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by the 
insurer or either Party to this Agreement, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 30 
days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to 
City. 
 
 C. Other Requirements.  Design Professional agrees to deposit with City, at or 
before the effective date of this contract, certificates of insurance necessary to satisfy City 
that the insurance provisions of this contract have been complied with.  The City Attorney 
may require that Design Professional furnish City with copies of original endorsements 
effecting coverage required by this Section.  The certificates and endorsements are to be 
signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  City reserves 
the right to inspect complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any 
time. 
 
  1. Design Professional shall furnish certificates and endorsements from 
each subcontractor identical to those Design Professional provides. 
 
  2. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 
approved by City.  At the option of City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 C-2 


deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City or its respective elected or 
appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers or the Design Professional shall 
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, defense expenses and claims. 
 
  3. The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall 
not be construed to limit Design Professional’s liability hereunder nor to fulfill the 
indemnification provisions and requirements of this Agreement. 
 
 







 1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.11 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021  


________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Adopt a Resolution to Acquire Tax-Defaulted Property 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 


1.  Adopt a Resolution Entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 -  ____ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING 
THE ACQUISITION OF TWO RIVERSIDE COUNTY 
TAX-DEFAULTED PROPERTIES FOR THE 
APPROXIMATE PURCHASE PRICE OF $57,750 
PLUS ASSOCIATED ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS FOR 
ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBERS: 365-250-040 
AND 367-180-044 
 


2. Authorize the Assistant City Manager to make any minor amendments to 
the Resolution deemed necessary or required by the County of Riverside. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code §3691 the Tax Collector has 
the power to sell properties that have been tax-defaulted for five or more years in 
an effort to return these parcels to active property tax paying status. Chapter 8 of 
the California Revenue and Taxation Code (§3771, et seq) authorizes the Tax 
Collector to offer these tax-defaulted properties to taxing agencies or eligible non-
profit organizations for the purposes of public benefit.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
Staff reviewed the recent County Tax-default list of properties.   
 
APN 365-250-040 located off Cloud Burst Road and westerly of the extension of 
Baxter Road in is about 9 acres that could provide public benefit as open space 
and passive recreation.  The General Plan designation for the property is Rural 
Mountainous and Zoning designation is Rural Residential. 







 2 


 
APN 367-180-044 located off Monte Vista Road and northerly of Wildomar Trail is 
about 1.5 acres that could provide public benefit as a public facility.  Staff initially 
identified the need for a public works office and service facility and a fire station on 
the west side of I-15 as possibly public facilities.  The General Plan designation is 
Commercial Retail, and the Zoning designation is Rural Residential. 
 
Through the Chapter 8 proceedings the property owners will have one more 
opportunity to satisfy the taxes owed.  In the event, after public noticing, that the 
property is not redeemed then the County will execute an Agreement with the City 
to complete the sale.  After adoption of the Resolution, staff will contract to 
complete an Environmental Assessment on the properties. Should the sale 
complete, staff would recommend in the future to the City Council an updated 
General Plan and Zoning designation. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 


Purchase of APN 365-250-040 could be paid for from fund Account 460 DIF 
Parkland Acquisition.  Purchase of APN 367-180-044 could be paid for from Fund 
420 Public Facilities DIF.  Staff Administration and Environmental Assessment of 
both properties is estimated to be less than $10,000 in total. 
 
 
Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Daniel York                         Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager    City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 
  







 3 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - ____ 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING 
THE ACQUISITION OF TWO RIVERSIDE COUNTY 
TAX-DEFAULTED PROPERTIES FOR THE 
APPROXIMATE PURCHASE PRICE OF $57,750 
PLUS ASSOCIATED ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 
FOR ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBERS: 365-250-
040 AND 367-180-044 


WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar expresses interest in acquiring tax-
defaulted property from the County of Riverside, California under Chapter 8 of the 
State Revenue and Taxation Code; and  


WHEREAS, the tax defaulted property is located within the City of 
Wildomar, as shown on Exhibit A, attached; and 


WHEREAS, the intended purpose of acquisition for the tax defaulted 
property identified as Assessor Parcel Number 365-250-040 located off of Cloud 
Burst Road and westerly of the extension of Baxter Road in the amount of 
$21,676.54 is for open space and passive recreation; and 


WHEREAS, the intended purpose of acquisition for the tax defaulted 
property identified as Assessor Parcel Number 367-180-044 located off of Monte 
Vista Road and northerly of Wildomar Trail in the amount of $36,069.52 is for a 
public facility; and 


WHEREAS, the in addition to the total purchase price of $57,746.06 for the 
two properties, the cost of giving Notice of the Agreement to Purchase Tax-
Defaulted Property shall be paid by the City of Wildomar; and 


WHEREAS, the purchase of the properties is consistent with the General 
Plan including the Open Space Element and the goals and policies related to public 
facilities.  


NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar does hereby 
resolve that: 


SECTION 1. INTEREST TO ACQUIRE. 


That the City of Wildomar expresses interest in acquiring the tax defaulted 
properties shown in Exhibit A, attached, from the County of Riverside.  


SECTION 2. AUTHORITY TO PROCEED. 







 4 


That the Assistant City Manager is authorized to proceed with the 
acquisition and execute all related  documents including an Agreement to 
Purchase Tax-Defaulted Property through the County of Riverside Treasurer – Tax 
Collector (attached as Exhibit B).   


The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and shall cause 
the same to be processed in the manner required by law.  


PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 14th day of April, 2021. 


 


__________________________ 
Dustin Nigg, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 


 
____________________________ __________________________ 
Janet Morales, City Clerk Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 
 
  







 5 


Exhibit A 
 


 
 


 
  


APN 367 180 044
• 1.5 Acres


• Poten�al Public Works Yard or Fire Sta�on


• County Tax Sale $36,070


APN 365 250 040
Poten�al Passive Park, Hillside 
Preserva�on







 6 


Exhibit B 
 


Sample Form Agreement 







A Guide to Prepare the Chapter 8 Agreement Sale Package 
 


Betty T. Yee California State Controller 15 


Public Agency Agreement Sample 
This agreement is made this (day) day of (month), (year) by and between the (county) County 


Board of Supervisors and (purchasing entity), in accordance with provisions of California law. 


The County (“SELLER”), subject to the State Controller’s approval, does hereby agree to sell 


to (purchaser) (“PURCHASER”) the real property described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this agreement. 


The real property situated within said county, hereinafter set forth and described in Exhibit ‘A’ 


of this agreement, is tax defaulted and is subject to the power of sale by the tax collector of 


said county for the nonpayment of taxes. 


 


The PURCHASER agrees to pay the sum of $(price) and which is tendered in the form of 


(cash/negotiable paper/etc) with this document.  


The following is a sample listing of terms and conditions, any of which may be included in 


Chapter 8 Sale Agreements at the discretion of the County. This list is not inclusive and 


pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code sections 3795.5 and 3794.3 the board 


of supervisors may establish conditions of sale. 


 


Consultation with county counsel is recommended before establishing conditions of sale 


 


In consideration of the mutual promises herein set forth, the parties mutually agree as follows: 


 


 Approval by the State Controller. California Revenue and Taxation Code section 3795 


requires this agreement to be submitted to and approved by the California State Controller 


before it becomes final. This agreement is not in effect until the California State 


Controller’s authorization is received and the noticing process is complete.  


 


 Purchase and Evidence of Title. Within 21 days from the effective date of this agreement, 


the PURCHASER agrees to pay a sum sufficient to redeem the delinquent property taxes 


pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code section 3793.1(a) or a reduced price in 


accordance with section 3793.1(b). The approval and notice process will determine the 


effective date of the sale and the final purchase price. The PURCHASER agrees to pay the 


amount specified in Exhibit ‘__’ for the properties described in Exhibit ‘A’. Payment shall 


be in cash or certified funds payable to the (county) County Tax Collector. Upon receipt of 


said sums by the Tax Collector, the Tax Collector shall execute and record a deed 


conveying the title to said property to PURCHASER and after recordation the deeds will 


be returned to the purchaser by the County Clerk/Recorder. 


 


 No Representation. The SELLER makes no representation concerning the condition of title 


to the subject property. The SELLER does not warrant title to the property or make any 


representations concerning the title. Additionally, the SELLER makes no representation 


concerning the physical condition of the subject property and the PURCHASER 


acknowledges that it is not relying upon any statements or representations of the SELLER 


concerning the subject property and is purchasing the subject property in its ‘as is’ 


condition.  







A Guide to Prepare the Chapter 8 Agreement Sale Package 
 


Betty T. Yee California State Controller 16 


 


 


 Other Expenses: The PURCHASER shall pay the other expenses in addition to the 


purchase price of the property, including but not limited to: the cost of giving notice of the 


notice of agreement, the cost of publishing or posting the notice of agreement, the cost of 


proceeding to obtain a clear title to the property, and the expenses incurred in the payment, 


compromise, or other method of removal of any liens or adverse claims against the 


property.  


 


 Intent of Use. The public purpose and specified intent of use set forth by the 


PURCHASER for the purchased property is as follows: 


____________________________________________________ 


 Jurisdiction Boundaries. If the PURCHASER is a ‘district’ as defined by Government 


Code 56036(a) the purchased property must be within their jurisdiction, unless a letter 


from purchasers’ legal counsel stating that either the influence has been extended by the 


Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) to include the property or the property 


may be purchased without conflict with sphere of influence parameters. 


 


 Real Property Taxes, Fiscal Year (current)-(current): The purchase price does not include 


the property taxes for Fiscal Year (current)-(current). The PURCHASER shall be 


responsible for payment in full of the Fiscal Year (current)-(current) property taxes for the 


property in addition to the purchase price.  


 


 Treated as a Single Transaction: The SELLER shall sell the property(s) listed in Exhibit 


‘__’ as a single transaction to the PURCHASER in consideration of the receipt of the 


payments listed in this agreement. 


 


 Redemption: If any of the properties listed in Exhibit ‘__’ are redeemed prior to the 


effective date of this agreement, this agreement shall be null and void as to that property or 


properties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the agreement shall be binding and shall remain 


in full force and effect with respect to any remaining property (s). 


 


 Void/Incomplete Purchase: This agreement shall become null and void and the right of 


redemption restored upon the failure of the PURCHASER to comply with the terms and 


conditions of this agreement prior to the tax deed recordation. The PURCHASER will be 


required to reimburse the Tax Collector for the costs for producing notice, publication, and 


actual costs incurred for preparing and conducting the agreement sale if these expenses 


have already been incurred. 


 


 


 







A Guide to Prepare the Chapter 8 Agreement Sale Package 
 


Betty T. Yee California State Controller 17 


 Indemnity: The PURCHASER shall indemnify the SELLER from and against any and all 


liability, loss, costs, damages, attorney’s fees, and other expenses which the SELLER may 


sustain or incur by reasons of a challenge to validity of the tax default sale of the property 


described in Exhibit ‘__’. Pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code section 3809, 


a proceeding based on alleged invalidity or irregularity of any proceeding instituted can 


only be commenced within one year after the date of execution of the Tax Collector’s 


deed.  


 


 Environmental Condition of Property. The property acquired pursuant to this agreement 


may contain hazardous wastes, toxic substances, or other substances regulated by federal, 


state, and local agencies. The SELLER in no way whatsoever assumes any responsibility, 


implied or otherwise, and makes no representations that the property (s) are in compliance 


with federal, state, or local laws governing such substances. The SELLER in no way 


assumes any responsibility, implied or otherwise, for any costs or liability of any kind 


imposed upon or voluntarily assumed by the PURCHASER or any other owner to 


remediate, clean up, or otherwise bring into compliance according to federal, state, or local 


environmental laws property purchased.  


 


 CERCLA. The SELLER and the PURCHASER agree that under United States Code, title 


42, section 9601(20,d), the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and 


Liability Act (CERCLA) expressly excludes local and state governments from clean up 


liability for properties they acquire as a result of tax delinquencies. Notwithstanding this 


provision, the PURCHASER shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the SELLER, its 


board of supervisors, officers, claims, actions, liabilities, losses, damages, and costs , 


including reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of 


this agreement, regardless of whether caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder, 


including but not limited to allegations that the SELLER and/or the SELLER’s officers, 


directors, agents, employees, or volunteers are liable for costs or other charges related to 


the remediation, clean up, or other work necessary to bring any property purchased under 


this agreement into compliance with deferral, state, or local environmental laws.  


 


 


 







A Guide to Prepare the Chapter 8 Agreement Sale Package 
 


2017  Betty T. Yee California State Controller 18 
 


The undersigned hereby agree to the terms and conditions of this agreement and are duly authorized to sign for 


said agencies.  


 


Note: If more than one executed copy is required, add the following statement above the signature block: 


 


This document is being executed in counterpart each of which constitutes an original 


 


ATTEST: 


______________________________________                               By: ________________________________ 


PURCHASER 


 


ATTEST:     


______________________________________                          By: ________________________________ 


CLERK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 


 


By: ________________________________                                        By: ________________________________ 


       DEPUTY                    


 


 


Note: If the purchaser is the State or the county and is located within the boundaries of a city, add this 


signature block: 


 


Pursuant to the provisions of Revenue and Taxation Code section 3775, the governing body of the City of (city) 


hereby agrees to the selling price as provided in this agreement. 


 


ATTEST:                                           CITY OF 


________________________________ 


________________________________                                             By: ________________________________ 


DEPUTY 


 


 


Note: If the purchaser is the State or the county, use this signature block for the State Controller: 


 


Pursuant to the provisions of Revenue and Taxation Code section 3775, the Controller agrees to the selling price 


hereinbefore set forth and, pursuant to the provisions of section 3795, approves the foregoing agreement this this 


(day) day of (month), (year) is approved. 


 


BETTY T. YEE, CALIFORNIA STATE CONTROLLER 


By:____________________________________________ 


 


Note: For agreements with agencies other than the State or the county, use this signature block for the 


State Controller: 


 


Pursuant to the provisions of Revenue and Taxation Code section 3795, the Controller approves the foregoing 


agreement this this (day) day of (month), (year) is approved. 


 


BETTY T. YEE, CALIFORNIA STATE CONTROLLER 


By:____________________________________________


  


 
  







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.1 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 


 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 
 Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Update to MSHCP Local Development Mitigation Fee (Continued from 


March 10, 2021) 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 
 
1. Introduce, read by title and waive further reading of an Ordinance entitled:  
 


ORDINANCE NO. 196 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 


OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA AMENDING CHAPTER 3.42 
OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE THE 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT MITIGATION FEE FOR FUNDING 


THE PRESERVATION OF NATURAL ECOSYSTEMS IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE WESTERN RIVERSIDE 


COUNTY MULTIPLE SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION 
PLAN 


 
 
2. Adopt the attached Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-09 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA ESTABLISHING THE 


WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNTY MULTIPLE SPECIES 
HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN LOCAL DEVELOPMENT 
MITIGATION FEE APPLICABLE TO ALL DEVELOPMENTS 


IN THE PLAN AREA 
  







BACKGROUND 
The City Council reviewed Ordinance No. 196 and Resolution No. 2021-09 at its March 
10, 2021 meeting.  After receiving public comments from the Chamber (Patrick Ellis) and 
Council discussion regarding the proposed RCA fees, the Council voted unanimously to 
continue action on this agenda item to the April 14, 2021 meeting.  This would allow staff 
an opportunity to reach out to the RCA, as well as finalize the fee worksheet to establish 
an administration fee for city staff to coordinate and implement the MSHCP fee.  Mayor 
Pro-Tem Benoit was able to discuss the city’s concern about the amount of the fee 
increase, however, RCA is not in a position to revise the fees since they were adopted 
back in December 2020.  As for the city’s administration fee, staff has provided the 
worksheet and is proposing a fee of $54.00 per dwelling unit/acre to become effective on 
January 1, 2022. 


DISCUSSION 
Wildomar is a Member Agency of the Western Riverside County Regional Conservation 
Authority (RCA), a joint powers authority comprised of the County of Riverside and the 
eighteen (18) cities located in western Riverside County.  The RCA was formed to 
acquire, administer, operate, and maintain land and facilities to establish habitat reserves 
for the conservation and protection of species covered by the Western Riverside County 
Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP or Plan).  
 
The Western Riverside County MSHCP, originally adopted in 2004, is a comprehensive, 
multi-jurisdictional Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) focusing on the permanent 
conservation of 500,000 acres and the protection of 146 species, including 33 that are 
currently listed as threatened or endangered. The MSHCP was developed in response to 
the need for future growth opportunities in western Riverside County, from housing 
developments to transportation and infrastructure, while addressing the requirements of 
the State and federal Endangered Species Acts (ESA). The MSHCP serves as an HCP 
pursuant to Section 10(a)(1)(B) of the federal Endangered Species Act of 1973 as well 
as a Natural Communities Conservation Plan (NCCP) under California’s NCCP Act of 
2001. The MSHCP streamlines environmental permitting processes by allowing the 
participating jurisdictions such as Wildomar to authorize “take” of plant and wildlife 
species identified within the Plan Area. Without the MSHCP, each development and 
transportation project would need to conduct an individual assessment and mitigation for 
impacts to endangered species, an approach that would be less efficient and effective, 
and more costly.  
 
The City’s receipt of local Measure A sales tax funds for local streets and roads is 
conditioned upon the City’s participation in the MSHCP.  This condition of funding is 
memorialized in the voter-adopted ordinance that authorizes Measure A.  In the previous 
fiscal year, the City received $684,635 in Measure A funding for local transportation 
projects. 
 
The MSHCP required a Nexus Study under the Mitigation Fee Act (Gov. Code §§ 66000 
et seq.) to establish a Local Development Mitigation Fee (LDMF) that would then be 
adopted by each jurisdiction participating in the MSHCP. The LDMF pays for acquisition 







of Additional Reserve Lands (ARL) to meet the target conservation acreage that local 
governments are responsible to acquire per the Plan. The original Nexus Study was 
completed in 2003 coinciding with the adoption of the MSHCP, Implementing Agreement, 
and signing of the Permits. Section 8.5.1 of the MSHCP allows the fee to be reevaluated 
and revised should it be found to insufficiently cover mitigation of new development. 
Based on the 2003 Nexus Study, the City adopted and implemented an ordinance 
authorizing the imposition of the LDMF.  
 
Pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act, RCA prepared a new nexus study (“2020 Nexus 
Study”) to update the fees for the first time since original adoption. On December 7, 2020, 
the RCA Board of Directors adopted the 2020 Nexus Study.  On December 31, 2020 RCA 
transmitted a model ordinance and model resolution to the City. The RCA Board of 
Directors also approved the use of the MSHCP Mitigation Fee Implementation Manual to 
assist Member Agencies with LDMF collection questions.   
 
An updated Nexus Study was needed to ensure adequate funding to complete reserve 
acquisition to fulfill local governments’ responsibilities under the MSHCP. Over the last 
16 years, many of the assumptions underlying the original Nexus Study were not borne 
out by reality.  Forces contributing to the unmet expectation include the Great Recession, 
less acreage dedicated to RCA by private landowners, and less state and federal funding 
than expected.  The 2020 Nexus Study calculated the expected costs to complete ARL 
acquisition, manage the conservation lands in perpetuity via an endowment, and 
administration of the MSHCP. The Nexus Study extended the reserve acquisition period 
by an additional fifteen years.  Currently, the acquisition period ends in 2029. By extending 
the acquisition period, the LDMF increase is lower because it covers more development 
over a longer period. The RCA Board also adopted a phased increase of the new fee, 
with 50 percent of the fee increase taking effect on July 1, 2021 and the remainder of the 
increase taking effect on January 1, 2022.  Public deliberation over the 2020 Nexus Study 
stretched over a year in multiple public meetings. 
 
Conclusion: 
The proposed Ordinance provides the legal basis for a revised MSHCP LDMF schedule. 
The actual MSHCP LDMF schedule will be established through the Resolution.  In 
accordance with the Mitigation Fee Act, the proposed Ordinance and 2020 Nexus Study: 
(i) identifies the purpose of the revised fees; (ii) identifies the use to which the revised 
fees is to be put, including identification of any facilities to be financed; (iii) determines 
how there is a reasonable relationship between the fee’s use and the type of development 
project on which the fee is imposed; (iv) determines how there is a reasonable relationship 
between the need for the public facilities and the type of development project upon which 
the fee is imposed; and (v) determines how there is a reasonable relationship between 
the amount of the fee and the cost of the public facility or portion or the public facility 
attributable to the development on which the fee is imposed. 
 
The ordinance will establish the Fee Schedule for the MSHCP LDMF as described in the 
two right-hand columns below:   
 







Category 
Current July 1, 2021 – 


Dec 31, 2021 
Jan 1, 2022 – 
June 30, 2022 


Residential, density less than 8.0 dwelling 
units per acre (fee per dwelling unit) 


$2,234 $2,935 $3,635 


Residential, density between 8.0 and 14.0 
dwelling units per acre (fee per dwelling 
unit) 


$1,430 $1,473 $1,515 


Residential density greater than 14.0 
dwelling units per acre (fee per dwelling 
unit) 


$1,161 $670 $670 


Commercial (fee per acre) $7,606 $11,982 $16,358 
Industrial (fee per acre) $7,606 $11,982 $16,358 


City of Wildomar Administration Fee 
Effective January 1, 2022 


Fee Category Fee 


MSHCP Administration  $54.00 per dwelling unit/acre 


PUBLIC NOTICING: 
In accordance with State law, the Planning Department on April 2, 2020 and April 9, 2020 
published a legal notice in the “Press Enterprise”, a local newspaper of general 
circulation, notifying the general public of the April 14, 2021 City Council meeting where 
the City Council would consider adoption of the updated MSHCP fees and City’s 
administration fee. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact to the City’s General Fund related to this item. 


Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist     Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager      City Attorney 


ATTACHMENTS: 


A. City Council Ordinance No. 196 
B. City Council Resolution No. 2021-09 
C. 2020 MSHCP Nexus Study Document 
D. RCA Nexus Study Background Factsheet  
E. MSHCP/LDMF FAQ Sheet 
 
 
  







ATTACHMENT A 


 
Council Ordinance No. 196 


 
  







ORDINANCE NO. 196 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA AMENDING CHAPTER 3.42 OF 
THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE THE 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT MITIGATION FEE FOR FUNDING 
THE PRESERVATION OF NATURAL ECOSYSTEMS IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE WESTERN RIVERSIDE 
COUNTY MULTIPLE SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION 
PLAN 


WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Wildomar (“City”) finds that the 
ecosystems of the City and western Riverside County, and the vegetation communities 
and sensitive species they support are fragile, irreplaceable resources that are vital to the 
general welfare of all residents; 


WHEREAS, these vegetation communities and natural areas contain habitat value 
which contributes to the City’s and the region’s environmental resources; 


WHEREAS, special protections for these vegetation communities and natural 
areas are being established to prevent future endangerment of the plant and animal 
species that are dependent upon them; 


WHEREAS, adoption and implementation of this Ordinance will help to enable the 
City to achieve the conservation goals set forth in the Western Riverside County Multiple 
Species Habitat Conservation Plan (“MSHCP”), adopted by the City Council upon 
incorporation, to implement the associated Implementing Agreement executed by the City 
Council on July 1, 2008, and to preserve the ability of affected property owners to make 
reasonable use of their land consistent with the requirements of the National 
Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”), the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), 
the Federal Endangered Species Act (“FESA”), the California Endangered Species Act 
(“CESA”), the California Natural Community Conservation Planning Act (“NCCP Act”), 
and other applicable laws; 


WHEREAS, the purpose and intent of this Ordinance is to update the Local 
Development Mitigation Fee to assist in the maintenance of biological diversity and the 
natural ecosystem processes that support this diversity; the protection of vegetation 
communities and natural areas within the City and western Riverside County which are 
known to support threatened, endangered, or key sensitive populations of plant and 
wildlife species; the maintenance of economic development within the City by providing 
a streamlined regulatory process from which development can proceed in an orderly 
process; and the protection of the existing character of the City and the region through 
the implementation of a system of reserves which will provide for permanent open space, 
community edges, and habitat conservation for species covered by the MSHCP; 


WHEREAS, the findings set forth herein are based on the MSHCP and the 2020 
Nexus Study, and the estimated implementation costs of the MSHCP as set forth in the 
2020 Nexus Study, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk’s office; 







WHEREAS, The Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority 
(“RCA”) has prepared an updated nexus study entitled “WESTERN RIVERSIDE 
COUNTY MULTIPLE SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN NEXUS FEE STUDY 
UPDATE” (2020 Nexus Study”) pursuant to California Government code sections 66000 
et seq. for the purpose of updating the Local Development Mitigation Fee (“LDMF”). On 
December 7, 2020, the RCA Board of Directors reviewed the 2020 Nexus Study and 
directed RCA Permittees to adopt this updated MSHCP fee ordinance. 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 11, Section 7 of the California Constitution, the City 
is authorized to enact measures that protect the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens; 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code sections 66000 et seq., the City is 
empowered to impose fees and other exactions to provide necessary funding and public 
facilities required to mitigate the negative effect of new development projects; 


WHEREAS, upon incorporation the City Council took action on the MSHCP and 
the associated Implementing Agreement and adopted the original LDMF, and made 
appropriate findings pursuant to CEQA; 


 WHEREAS, the levying of LDMF has been reviewed by the City and staff in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and the State CEQA 
Guidelines and it has been determined that the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from 
CEQA pursuant to Section 21080(b)(8) of the California Public Resources Code and 
Sections 15273 and 15378(b)(4) of the State CEQA Guidelines; and 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code sections 66016, 66017, and 66018, 
the City has: (a) made available to the public, at least ten (10) days prior to its public 
hearing, data indicating the estimated cost required to provide the facilities and 
infrastructure for which these development fees are levied and the revenue sources 
anticipated to provide those facilities and infrastructure; (b) mailed notice at least fourteen 
(14) days prior to this meeting to all interested parties that have requested notice of new 
or increased development fees; and (c) held a duly noticed, regularly scheduled public 
hearing at which oral and written testimony was received regarding the proposed fees. 


THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS:  
 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 3.42.  Chapter 3.42 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
3.42.010 Findings 


3.42.020 Administrative Responsibility 


3.42.030 Definitions 


3.42.040 Local Development Mitigation and Local Infrastructure Fee. 
3.42.050 Imposition of the Local Development Mitigation Fee. 
3.42.060 Payment of the Local Development Mitigation Fee 







3.42.070 Refunds. 


3.42.080 Accounting And Disbursement Of Collected Local Development Mitigation Fees. 


3.42.090 Exemptions 
3.42.100 Fee Credits 
 


 


3.42.010.  Findings.   


The City Council finds and determines as follows: 
 
A. The preservation of vegetation communities and natural areas within the City and 
western Riverside County which support species covered by the MSHCP is necessary to 
protect and promote the health, safety, and welfare of all the citizens of the City by 
reducing the adverse direct, indirect, and cumulative effects of urbanization and 
development and providing for permanent conservation of habitat for species covered by 
the MSHCP. 
 
B. It is necessary to update certain development impact fees to ensure that all new 
development within the City pays its fair share of the costs of acquiring and preserving 
vegetation communities and natural areas within the City and the region which are known 
to support plant and wildlife species covered by the MSHCP. 
 
C. A proper funding source to pay the costs associated with mitigating the direct, 
indirect, and cumulative impacts of development to the natural ecosystems within the City 
and the region, as identified in the MSHCP, is a development impact fee for residential, 
commercial, and industrial development. The amount of the fee is determined by the 
nature and extent of the impacts from the development to the identified natural 
ecosystems and or the relative cost of mitigating such impacts. 


 
D. The MSHCP and the 2020 Nexus Study, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk’s 
office, provides a basis for the imposition of development impact fees on new 
construction.  
 
E. The use of the development impact fees to mitigate the impacts to the City’s and 
the region’s natural ecosystems is reasonably related to the type and extent of impacts 
caused by development within the City. 
 
F. The costs of funding the proper mitigation of natural ecosystems and biological 
resources impacted by development within the City and the region are apportioned 
relative to the type and extent of impacts caused by the development. 
 
G. The facts and evidence provided to the City establish that there is a reasonable 
relationship between the need for preserving the natural ecosystems in the City and the 
region, as defined in the MSHCP, and the direct, indirect, and cumulative impacts to such 
natural ecosystems and biological resources created by the types of development on 
which the fee will be imposed, and that there is a reasonable relationship between the 







fee’s use and the types of development for which the fee is charged. This reasonable 
relationship is described in more detail in the MSHCP and the 2020 Nexus Study. 
 
H. The cost estimates for mitigating the impact of development on the City’s and the 
region’s natural ecosystem and biological resources, as set forth in the MSHCP, are 
reasonable and will not exceed the reasonably estimated total of these costs. 


 
I. The fee set forth herein does not reflect the entire cost of the lands which need to 
be acquired in order to implement the MSHCP and mitigate the impact caused by new 
development. Additional revenues will be required from other sources. The City Council 
finds that the benefit to each development project is greater than the amount of the fee to 
be paid by the project. 
 
J. The fees collected pursuant to this Ordinance shall be used to finance the 
acquisition and perpetual conservation of the natural ecosystems and certain 
improvements necessary to implement the goals and objectives of the MSHCP. 
 
 
Section 3.42.050 Administrative Responsibility. 
The RCA is hereby reaffirmed as the Administrator of this Ordinance. The RCA is hereby 
authorized to receive all fees generated from the Local Development Mitigation Fee within 
the City, and to invest, account for, and expend such fees in accordance with the 
provisions of the MSHCP, this Ordinance, and the MSHCP Mitigation Fee Implementation 
Manual. The detailed administrative procedures concerning the implementation of this 
Ordinance shall be contained in the MSHCP Mitigation Fee Implementation Manual 
adopted by the RCA Board December 7, 2020 and as may be amended from time to time. 
The RCA Board of Directors may adopt a policy that will allow the City to authorize the 
RCA to calculate the fees due and collect those amounts directly from property owners. 
If such a policy is adopted, it will be included in the MSHCP Mitigation Fee Implementation 
Manual. 
 
 
3.42.030  Definitions 
As used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 
 


“Accessory Dwelling Unit” means an accessory dwelling unit as defined by 
California Government Code section 65852.2(j)(1), or as defined in any successor statute. 


 
“City” means the City of Wildomar, California. 


 
“City Council” means the City Council of the City of Wildomar, California. 


 
“Credit” means a credit allowed pursuant to Section 3.42.100 of this Ordinance, 


which may be applied against the development impact fee paid. 
 







 “Development” means a human-created change to improved or unimproved real 
estate, including buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filing, grading, paving, 
excavating, and drilling. 
 


“Development Project” or “Project” means any project undertaken for the purpose 
of development pursuant to the issuance of a building permit by the City pursuant to all 
applicable ordinances, regulations, and rules of the City and state law. 
 


“Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit” means a junior accessory dwelling unit as defined 
by California Government Code section 65852.22(h)(1), or as defined in any successor 
statute. 


 
“Local Development Mitigation Fee” or “Fee” means the development impact fee 


imposed pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance. 
 


“Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan” or “MSHCP” means the Western 
Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan, adopted by the City 
Council upon incorporation. 
 


“MSHCP Conservation Area” has the same meaning and intent as such term is 
defined and utilized in the MSHCP. 
 


“Ordinance” means this Chapter 3.42 of the Wildomar Municipal Code. 
 


“Project Area” means the area, measured in acres, within the Development Project 
including, without limitation, any areas to be developed as a condition of the Development 
Project. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Project Area is the area upon which the 
project will be assessed the Local Development Mitigation Fee. See the MSHCP 
Mitigation Fee Implementation Manual for additional guidance for calculating the Project 
Area. 
 


“Revenue” or “Revenues” means any funds received by the City pursuant to the 
provisions of this Ordinance for the purpose of defraying all or a portion of the cost of 
acquiring and preserving vegetation communities and natural areas within the City and 
the region which are known to support threatened, endangered, or key sensitive 
populations of plant and wildlife species. 
 


“Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority” or “RCA” means the 
governing body established pursuant to the MSHCP that is delegated the authority to 
oversee and implement the provisions of the MSHCP. 


 
Any capitalized term not otherwise defined herein shall carry the same meaning 


and definition as that term is used and defined in the MSHCP. 
 
  







3.42.040 Local Development Mitigation and Local Infrastructure Fee. 
 
A. Adoption of Local Development Mitigation Fee Schedule. The City Council shall 
adopt an applicable Local Development Mitigation Fee schedule provided by the RCA 
through a separate resolution, which may be amended from time to time.   


 
B. Public Projects. The City is required to mitigate the impacts of Public Projects 
pursuant to the MSHCP and the MSHCP Implementing Agreement. The definition of 
Public Project and the method for mitigating Public Projects will be set forth in the MSHCP 
Mitigation Fee Implementation Manual. 


  
C. Periodic Fee Adjustment.  The Local Development Mitigation Fee schedule set 
forth in the fee resolution referenced above may be periodically reviewed and the 
amounts adjusted as set forth in the MSHCP Mitigation Fee Implementation Manual. 


 
D. Automatic Annual Fee Adjustment.  In addition to the Periodic Fee Adjustment 
mentioned above, the RCA shall provide the City with an automatic annual fee adjustment 
for the Local Development Mitigation Fee established by this Ordinance as set forth in the 
MSHCP Mitigation Fee Implementation Manual. 
 
 
3.42.050 Imposition of the Local Development Mitigation Fee. 


 
A. The Local Development Mitigation Fee will be paid no later than at the issuance of 
a building permit. Notwithstanding any other provision of the City’s Municipal Code, no 
building permit shall be issued for any Development Project unless the Local 
Development Mitigation Fee applicable to such Development Project has been paid. The 
amount of the Fee shall be calculated in accordance with the MSHCP Mitigation Fee 
Implementation Manual. 


 
B. In lieu of the payment of the Local Development Mitigation Fee as provided above, 
the Fee for a Development may be paid through a Community Facilities District, provided 
that such arrangement is approved by the RCA in writing. 
 
 
3.42.060 Payment of the Local Development Mitigation Fee. 
 
A. The Local Development Mitigation Fee shall be paid in full in accordance with 
applicable law.  
 
B. The Local Development Mitigation Fee required to be paid under this Ordinance 
shall be the fee in effect at the time the permit is issued for which the Local Development 
Mitigation Fee is assessed; provided, however, that Housing Development Projects as 
defined by California Government Code section 65589.5(h)(2) may be entitled to pay the 
fee in effect at the time of the preliminary application was submitted. 
 







C. Notwithstanding anything in the City’s Municipal Code, or any other written 
documentation to the contrary, the Local Development Mitigation Fee shall be paid 
whether or not the Development Project is subject to conditions of approval by the City 
imposing the requirement to pay the fee. 
 
D. If all or part of the Development Project is sold prior to payment of the Local 
Development Mitigation Fee, the Project shall continue to be subject to the requirement 
to pay the fee as provided herein. 


 
E. The fee title owner(s) of the Property is responsible for the payment of the Local 
Development Mitigation Fee.   
 
 
3.42.070 Refunds. 
Under certain circumstances, such as double payment, expiration of a building permit, or 
fee miscalculation due to clerical error, an applicant may be entitled to a refund. Refunds 
will be reimbursed by the end of the fiscal year on a first come, first served basis, 
depending upon the net revenue stream. Refunds will only be considered reimbursable if 
requested within 3 years of the original LDMF payment. In all cases, the applicant must 
promptly submit a refund request with proof of LDMF payment to the RCA if RCA collected 
the LDMF, or if collected by a local jurisdiction, the refund request shall be submitted to 
that local jurisdiction, which will subsequently forward the request to RCA for verification, 
review, and possible action. 
 


1. Expiration Of Building Permits - If a building permit should expire, is revoked, or 
is voluntarily surrendered and is, therefore voided and no construction or improvement of 
land has commenced, then the applicant may be entitled to a refund of the LDMF 
collected which was paid as a condition of approval, less administration costs. Any refund 
must be requested within three (3) years of the original payment. The applicant shall pay 
the current LDMF in effect at the time in full if s/he reapplies for the permit. 
 


2. Double Payments – on occasion due to a clerical error, a developer has paid all 
or a portion of the required LDMF for project twice. In such cases, a refund of the double 
payment may be required. 
 


3. Balance Due – when LDMF is incorrectly calculated due to City clerical error, it 
is the City’s responsibility to remit the balance due to RCA. The error must be discovered 
within three (3) years of the original payment for the City to be held accountable. The 
amount due can be remitted through alternate methods agreed to by the RCA Executive 
Committee. If first approved through RCA staff in writing, the calculation is not subject to 
additional review. 
 
  







3.42.080 Accounting And Disbursement Of Collected Local Development Mitigation 
Fees. 


 
A. All fees paid pursuant to this Ordinance shall be deposited, invested, accounted 
for, and expended in accordance with Section 66006 of the Government Code and all 
other applicable provisions of law. 
 
B. Subject to the provisions of this section, all fees collected pursuant to this 
Ordinance shall be remitted to the Western Riverside County Regional Conservation 
Authority at least quarterly. 
 
C. In the resolution mentioned in Section 3.42.040.A, the City may also add an 
additional cost to the Local Development Mitigation Fee schedule to cover the costs of 
collecting the fees from project proponents. Any amounts collected by the City shall not 
reduce the amount collected and remitted to the RCA under this Ordinance. 
 
 
3.42.090 Exemptions. The following types of construction shall be exempt from the 
provisions of this Ordinance: 
 
A. Reconstruction or improvements that were damaged or destroyed by fire or other 
natural causes, provided that the reconstruction or improvements do not result in 
additional usable square footage. 


 
B. Rehabilitation or remodeling to an existing Development Project, provided that the 
rehabilitation or remodeling does not result in additional usable square footage. 


 
C. Accessory Dwelling Units, but only to the extent such fee is exempted under state 
law. 


 
D. Junior Accessory Dwelling Units, but only to the extent such fee is exempted under 
state law. 


 
E. Existing structures where the use is changed from an existing permitted use to a 
different permitted use, provided that no additional improvements are constructed and 
does not result in additional usable square footage.  


 
F. Certain Agricultural Operations as allowed by the MSHCP, as amended. 


 
G. Vesting Tentative Tract Maps entered into pursuant to Government Code section 
66452 et seq. (also, Government Code section 66498.1 et seq.) and Development 
Projects which are the subject of a development agreement entered into pursuant to 
Government Code section 65864 et seq., prior to the effective date of Riverside County 
Ordinance No. 810.2, wherein the imposition of new fees are expressly prohibited, 
provided that if the term of such a vesting map or development agreement is extended 







by amendment or by any other manner after the effective date of Riverside County 
Ordinance No. 810.2, the MSHCP Fee shall be imposed.   


 
H. Except as exempted above, all projects are required to make a mitigation payment/ 
contribution and where no mitigation payment process is specified, the project will pay 
the updated per acre mitigation fee.   
 
 
3.42.100 Fee Credits. Any Local Development Mitigation Fee credit that may be 
applicable to a Development Project shall be determined by the City and approved by the 
RCA. All Fee Credits shall comply with the resolutions, ordinances, Implementing 
Agreement, and policies of the Western Riverside County Regional Conservation 
Authority including, without limitation, the MSHCP Mitigation Fee Implementation 
Manual.” 
 
 
SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY. 


If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 


 
SECTION 3. CEQA FINDINGS. 


The City Council hereby finds that in accordance with CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines the adoption of this Ordinance is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 
21080(b)(8) of the California Public Resources Code and Sections 15273 and 
15378(b)(4) of the State CEQA Guidelines. 


 
 


SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
This Ordinance shall take effect on July 1, 2021.  


 
 
SECTION 5. PUBLICATION. 


The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 
within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Section 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code Section 36933(c). 
  







 INTRODUCED FOR FIRST READING this 14th day of April, 2021. 
 
 
 


_____________________ 
Dustin Nigg  
Mayor 


 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      Acting City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  







ATTACHMENT B 


 
Council Resolution No. 2021-09 


 
  







RESOLUTION NO. 2021-09 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA ESTABLISHING THE 
WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNTY MULTIPLE SPECIES 
HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN LOCAL 
DEVELOPMENT MITIGATION FEE APPLICABLE TO ALL 
DEVELOPMENTS IN THE PLAN AREA 


WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar (“City”) is a member agency of the Western 
Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority (“RCA”), a joint powers agency 
comprised of the County of Riverside and the 18 cities located in western Riverside 
County; and 


WHEREAS, the member agencies of RCA recognized that a habitat conservation 
plan is necessary to provide special protections for vegetation communities and natural 
areas containing habitat values to prevent future endangerment of the plant and animal 
species impacted by new development in western Riverside County; and  


WHEREAS, in order to address these issues, the member agencies formulated a 
plan called the Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan 
(the “MSHCP”) whereby a mitigation fee would be assessed on new development and 
would be used to fund the implementation of the MSHCP; and 


WHEREAS, in furtherance of the MSHCP, the City is approving and adopting the 
updated “Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus 
Fee Study”, dated October 2020 (the “2020 Nexus Study”) a copy of which is on file with 
the City Clerk; and 


WHEREAS, based on the 2020 Nexus Study, the City introduced Ordinance No. 
196 on April 14, 2021 (the “2021 Local Development Mitigation Fee Ordinance”) pursuant 
to California Government Code sections 66000 et seq. authorizing the County to impose 
the Local Development Mitigation Fee upon new development; and 


WHEREAS, section 3.42.040.A. of the 2021 Local Development Mitigation Fee 
Ordinance authorizes the City to adopt an applicable Local Development Mitigation Fee 
schedule by resolution; and  


WHEREAS, the fees collected pursuant to this Resolution shall be used to finance 
the public facilities described or identified in the 2020 Nexus Study; and 


WHEREAS, the levying of Local Development Mitigation Fee has been reviewed 
by the City Council and staff in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) and the State CEQA Guidelines and it has been determined that the adoption 
of this resolution is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 21080(b)(8) of the California 
Public Resources Code and Sections 15273 and 15378(b)(4) of the State CEQA 
Guidelines.  







NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar, do hereby resolve, 
determine and order as follows: 


SECTION 1. Findings. 


The City Council finds and determines as follows: 


A. The preservation of vegetation communities and natural areas within 
western Riverside County which support species covered by the MSHCP is necessary to 
protect and promote the health, safety, and welfare of all the residents of the City by 
reducing the adverse direct, indirect, and cumulative effects of urbanization and 
development and providing for permanent conservation of habitat for species covered by 
the MSHCP. 


B. It is necessary to establish a mitigation fee to ensure that all new 
development within the City pays its fair share of the costs of acquiring and preserving 
vegetation communities and natural areas within the City and the region which are known 
to support plant and wildlife species covered by the MSHCP. 


C. A proper funding source to pay the costs associated with mitigating the 
direct, indirect and cumulative impacts of development to the natural ecosystems within 
the City and the region, as identified in the MSHCP, is a development impact fee for 
residential, commercial, and industrial development. The amount of the fee is determined 
by the nature and extent of the impacts from the development to the identified natural 
ecosystems and or the relative cost of mitigating such impacts. 


D. The MSHCP and the 2020 Nexus Study, a copy of which is on file in the 
City Clerk’s office, provides a basis for the imposition of development impact fees on new 
construction.  


E. The use of the development impact fees to mitigate the impacts to the City’s 
and the region’s natural ecosystems is reasonably related to the type and extent of 
impacts caused by development within the City. 


F. The costs of funding the proper mitigation of natural ecosystems and 
biological resources impacted by development within the City and the region are 
apportioned relative to the type and extent of impacts caused by the development. 


G. The facts and evidence provided to the City establish that there is a 
reasonable relationship between the need for preserving the natural ecosystems in the 
City and the region, as defined in the MSHCP, and the direct, indirect and cumulative 
impacts to such natural ecosystems and biological resources created by the types of 
development on which the fee will be imposed, and that there is a reasonable relationship 
between the fee’s use and the types of development for which the fee is charged. This 
reasonable relationship is described in more detail in the MSHCP and the 2020 Nexus 
Study. 







H. The cost estimates for mitigating the impact of development on the City’s 
and the region’s natural ecosystem and biological resources, as set forth in the MSHCP, 
are reasonable and will not exceed the reasonably estimated total of these costs. 


I. The fee set forth herein does not reflect the entire cost of the lands which 
need to be acquired in order to implement the MSHCP and mitigate the impact caused 
by new development. Additional revenues will be required from other sources.  The City 
Council finds that the benefit to each development project is greater than the amount of 
the fee to be paid by the project. 


J. The fees collected pursuant to this Resolution shall be used to finance the 
acquisition and perpetual conservation of the natural ecosystems and certain 
improvements necessary to implement the goals and objectives of the MSHCP. 


SECTION 2. Local Development Mitigation Fee. 


There is hereby adopted the Local Development Mitigation Fee schedule as set 
forth below: 


MSHCP Local Development Mitigation Fee Schedule 


Effective July 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 


Fee Category Fee 


Residential density less than 8.0 dwelling units per 
acre (fee per dwelling unit) 


$2,935 


Residential density between 8.0 and 14.0 dwelling 
units per acre (fee per dwelling unit) 


$1,473 


Residential density greater than 14.0 dwelling units 
per acre (fee per dwelling unit) 


$670 


Non-Residential/Commercial (fee per acre) $11,982 


Industrial (fee per acre) $11,982 
 
  







MSHCP Local Development Mitigation Fee Schedule 


Effective January 1, 2022 


Fee Category Fee 


Residential density less than 8.0 dwelling units per 
acre (fee per dwelling unit) 


$3,635 


Residential density between 8.0 and 14.0 dwelling 
units per acre (fee per dwelling unit) 


$1,515 


Residential density greater than 14.0 dwelling units per 
acre (fee per dwelling unit) 


$670 


Non-Residential/Commercial (fee per acre) $16,358 


Industrial (fee per acre) $16,358 
 


SECTION 3. Collection Fee Schedule. 
The City will add an additional cost to the Local Development Mitigation Fee 


schedule to cover the costs of collecting and remitting the fees from project proponents 
as noted in the following table.  (See Exhibit 1 for Back-up Calculation Spreadsheet on 
City administrative fee.) 


 
City of Wildomar Administration Fee 


Effective January 1, 2022 


Fee Category Fee 


MSHCP Administration  $54.00 per dwelling unit/acre 


SECTION 4: Periodic Fee Adjustment. 
The Local Development Mitigation Fee schedule set forth above may be 


periodically reviewed and the amounts adjusted as set forth in the MSHCP Mitigation Fee 
Implementation Manual adopted pursuant to the Local Development Mitigation Fee 
Ordinance 


SECTION 5. Automatic Annual Fee Adjustment. 
In addition to the Periodic Fee Adjustment mentioned above, the RCA shall provide 


the City with an automatic annual fee adjustment for the Local Development Mitigation 
Fee established by this Ordinance as set forth in the MSHCP Mitigation Fee 







Implementation Manual adopted pursuant to the Local Development Mitigation Fee 
Ordinance. 


SECTION 6. Adoption of 2020 Nexus Study. 
The City Council hereby adopts the 2020 Nexus Study and its findings. 


SECTION 7. CEQA Findings. 
The City Council hereby finds that in accordance with CEQA and the State CEQA 


Guidelines the adoption of this Resolution is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 
21080(b)(8) of the California Public Resources Code and Sections 15273 and 
15378(b)(4) of the State CEQA Guidelines. 


SECTION 8. SEVERABILITY. 
This Resolution and the various parts, sections, and clauses thereof, are hereby 


declared to be severable. If any part, sentence, paragraph, section, or clause is adjudged 
unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder of this Resolution shall not be affected thereby. 
If any part, sentence, paragraph, section, or clause of this Resolution, or its application to 
any person entity is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutionality or 
invalidity shall affect only such part, sentence, paragraph, section, or clause of this 
Resolution, or person or entity; and shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provision, parts, sentences, paragraphs, sections, or clauses of this Resolution, or its 
application to other persons or entities. The City Council hereby declares that this 
Resolution would have been adopted had such unconstitutional or invalid part, sentence, 
paragraph, section, or clause of this Resolution not been included herein; or had such 
person or entity been expressly exempted from the application of this Resolution. If the 
fees collected for the conservation of the land, including the monitoring and management 
thereof, are later adjudged by a final unappealable judgment of a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, the prior Local Development Mitigation Fee 
adopted under the prior 2003 Local Development Mitigation Fee Nexus Study and the 
corresponding Ordinance No. 18, shall each be revived and shall continue for the life of 
the MSHCP. 


SECTION 9. Effective Date. 
This Resolution shall become effective on July 1, 2021. 


 
  







 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of April, 2021. 
 
 
 


_____________________________ 
Dustin Nigg 
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      Acting City Clerk 
 
  







EXHIBIT 1 
Back-up Calculation Spreadsheet 


 


 
 


User Fee Determination 
Cost Analysis Worksheet 


 
User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code 


 


MSHCP Administration Fee 
 


100 
 


TBD 
 


TBD Admin Mitigation MSHCP 


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments: 
 


Administration Cost of the processing of the Multi-Species Habitat Conservation Plan Fees. It is assessed once with each individual MSHCP 
fee charged for a dwelling unit or commercial property. 


 
The Permit Technician I receives a plan submittal from a customer. From this submittal, an application packet for the permit and all fees 


including MSHCP is generated and distributed to the customer. The customer then pays the fee, at which point the Permit Technician I 
receipts the MSHCP payment and logs the fee into the system. The receipt is then given to the Administrative Assistant II who adds the 
receipts to the daily deposit batch and deposits the check. 


 
After the deposit batch is completed; the Administrative Analyst II reviews the deposit batch, verifies the fee amount, and posts the 


batch to the general ledger. At the end of the fiscal year, the Permit Technician I generates an annual report of MSHCP fees which is given 
to the Administrative Services Director. The Administrative Services Director reviews the fees and submits it in accordance with the 
requirements of the MSHCP audit. This staff member answers any comments or questions from the auditors and reviews the final MSHCP 
report for accuracy. 


 
 


Personnel Costs 
 


Position Title 


 
Department 


Billing Rate  


Hours by Position 
Per Unit 


 


Total Labor Cost 
per Unit of Service 


Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr. 


Permit Technician I Building $ 60.00 0.20 $12.00 
Administrative Assistant II Admin Services $ 54.12 0.20 $10.82 
Administrative Analyst II Admin Services $ 69.22 0.20 $13.84 
Administrative Services Director Admin Services $ 178.88 0.10 $17.89 


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $54.56 
Additional/Supplemental Costs 


Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost 
    


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service  


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits) 
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost 


    


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service  


Fee Comparison Data 


 
Total Service Direct Costs 
 


Current Fee 


$54.56 


Amount $2,234.00 
Admin Percentage 2.44% 


Recommended Fee $54.00 
Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.56   


Current Fee Amount None  
Fee Increase/(Decrease) N/A 


Annual Usage 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact 


 
 


Jurisdiction 


 


Fee per Unit 


  


 
More or (Less) than 
Wildomar's Fee 


 


 
 
City of Wildomar 


 
 


$54.00 


per Unit of Service  


Dollars Percentage  


City of Temecula No Admin Fee 
City of Lake Elsinore No Admin Fee 
County of Riverside No Admin Fee 
City of Murrieta ($4/Dwelling Unit or Acre) 4.00 (50.00) -93% 
City of Menifee No Admin Fee 


 50 
$2,700.00 


 







ATTACHMENT C 


 


2020 MSHCP Nexus Study Doc 


 
 







Final Report 


Western Riverside County Multiple 
Species Habitat Conservation Plan 
Nexus Fee Study Update 


Prepared for: 


Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority 


Prepared by: 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 


October 2020 


EPS #171034 







 


 


Table of Contents 


1. INTRODUCTION AND KEY FINDINGS .............................................................................. 1 


Background ............................................................................................................ 1 
Original and Existing Fee Schedule ............................................................................ 2 
Updated Mitigation Fee Schedules ............................................................................. 3 
Key Drivers of Fee Change ....................................................................................... 6 
Organization of Report ............................................................................................. 8 


2. MSHCP POLICIES, GOALS, AND FINANCING STRATEGY ....................................................... 9 


MSHCP Purpose, Basis, and Goals.............................................................................. 9 
MSHCP Financing Strategy ..................................................................................... 11 
MSHCP Implementation Costs and Funding Sources ................................................... 13 
Development Mitigation Fees and Calculation ............................................................ 16 


3. HABITAT PROTECTION TO DATE AND FUTURE CONSERVATION SCENARIO ................................. 18 


Habitat Protection Accomplishments Through 2019 .................................................... 18 
Conservation Goals and Progress ............................................................................ 18 
Land Dedications .................................................................................................. 20 
Future Conservation Scenario ................................................................................. 21 


4. FORECASTS OF DEVELOPMENT, DEDICATION, FEE PAYMENT ................................................ 25 


Historic Development and HCP Fees ......................................................................... 25 
Growth Projections ................................................................................................ 26 


5. MSHCP IMPLEMENTATION COSTS .............................................................................. 31 


Land Costs ........................................................................................................... 31 
Other Costs—Administration, Management, and Monitoring ......................................... 35 
Endowment Funding .............................................................................................. 38 
Total Implementation Costs .................................................................................... 40 


6. RCA NON-FEE REVENUES ....................................................................................... 43 


MSHCP Forecast of Non-Fee Revenues ..................................................................... 43 
New Forecast of Non-Fee Revenues ......................................................................... 44 


7. MITIGATION FEE CALCULATION ................................................................................. 46 


  







 


 


8. MITIGATION FEE ACT (NEXUS) FINDINGS ..................................................................... 52 


Purpose of Fee ..................................................................................................... 52 
Use of Fee Revenues ............................................................................................. 53 
Relationship ......................................................................................................... 53 
Need ................................................................................................................... 54 
Proportionality ...................................................................................................... 54 


9. FEE IMPLEMENTATION ............................................................................................ 56 


Adoption of Revised LDMF ...................................................................................... 56 
Securing Supplemental Funding .............................................................................. 56 
Annual Review ...................................................................................................... 56 
Surplus Funds ...................................................................................................... 57 
Annual and Periodic Updates................................................................................... 57 


 


Appendix I: Detailed Time Series of Implementation Costs, Excluding Endowment Funding 


Appendix II: Detailed Time Series of Endowment Funding 


 


List of Tables 


Table 1 2004 and 2021 MSHCP Fee Schedule ............................................................ 3 


Table 2 Updated MSHCP Implementation Costs and Per Acre Mitigation Fees .................. 4 


Table 3 Updated Mitigation Fee Schedule by Extension Scenario ................................... 6 


Table 4 MSHCP Goals by Area Plan ........................................................................ 11 


Table 5 2004 Estimates: MSHCP Implementation Costs and Funding Sources ............... 14 


Table 6 2004 and 2021 MSHCP Fee Schedule .......................................................... 17 


Table 7 Conservation Through End of 2019 ............................................................. 18 


Table 8 Required Acquisition Acres to Achieve ARL Goals .......................................... 24 


Table 9 Projected Growth in Western Riverside County, through 2050 ......................... 29 


Table 10 Projected Developed Acres in Western Riverside County, by  
Extension Scenario ................................................................................... 30 


Table 11 Per-Acre Land Value Estimates—2003 Dollars (2003 Nexus Study) .................. 32 


Table 12 Local Conservation Costs Through 2018 ...................................................... 32 


Table 13 Planning Level Per Acre Land Value Estimates by Category ............................. 33 







 


 


Table 14 Illustrative Distribution of Land Acquisitions by Land Use and Size................... 34 


Table 15 Aggregate Land Value of Remaining Areas (2017 dollars) ............................... 34 


Table 16 Administrative and Professional Services Costs ............................................. 36 


Table 17 Management and Monitoring Anticipated Costs in  2004 and 2019 Dollars ........ 38 


Table 18 Annual Implementation Cost Estimate (2019$) ............................................. 39 


Table 19 Endowment Funding (2019$), by Extension Scenario .................................... 40 


Table 20 Total Implementation Costs (2019$*), by Extension Scenario ......................... 41 


Table 21 Average Annual Implementation Costs (2019$), by Extension Scenario ............ 42 


Table 22 2004 MSHCP Anticipated Funding Sources ................................................... 44 


Table 23 Annual Non-Fee Revenue Projection (2019$s) .............................................. 45 


Table 24 MSHCP Implementation Costs and Per Acre Mitigation Fees ............................ 47 


Table 25 Recommended Fee Level—No Extension ...................................................... 48 


Table 26 Recommended Fee Level—5-Year Extension ................................................. 49 


Table 27 Recommended Fee Level—10-Year Extension ............................................... 50 


Table 28 Recommended Fee Level—15-Year Extension ............................................... 51 


 


List of Figures 


Figure 1 State of Conservation in 2003: Conserved Land, Additional Reserve  
Land to be Acquired, and Total MSHCP Conservation Area Needed .................. 10 


Figure 2 MSHCP Estimated Annual Costs in Millions, 2004 Dollars ................................ 15 


Figure 3 MSHCP Estimated Annual Revenues in Millions, 2004 Dollars .......................... 16 


Figure 4 MSHCP Conservation Goals, 2019 and 2029 Goals Highlighted ........................ 19 


Figure 5 Progress Towards ARL Through End of 2019 ................................................ 20 


Figure 6 Residential Unit Development, Western Riverside County, 2005-2019 .............. 25 


Figure 7 New Housing Units per Year, SCAG and MSHCP Projections and  
Historic Production (2005-2019) ................................................................. 27 


Figure 8 Newly Developed Commercial Acres per Year ............................................... 27 


Figure 9 Comparison of Costs by Category ............................................................... 40 


Figure 10 2004 MSHCP Anticipated Funding Sources ................................................... 44 







 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 1 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


1. INTRODUCTION AND KEY FINDINGS 


This Updated Nexus Study (2020 Nexus Study) provides the technical justification for changes to 
the Local Development Mitigation Fee schedule that applies to Local Permittee participants in the 
Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP or Plan).  These 
changes are necessary to ensure adequate funding of the obligations of the Local Permittees 
under the MSHCP and the associated Incidental Take Permit and Implementing Agreement.  The 
resulting increased fee revenues will support the continued implementation of the MSHCP and 
the streamlining of endangered species incidental take permitting for new Western Riverside 
County development provided under the MSHCP.  This Nexus Study is consistent with the 
requirements of California Government Code 66000 et seq. (the Mitigation Fee Act) that requires 
specific findings (as well as administration and implementation procedures) for “any action 
establishing, increasing, or imposing a fee as a condition of approval of a development project by 
a local agency.”   


Ba c kgro und  


The Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP or Plan), 
originally adopted in 2004, is a comprehensive, multi-jurisdictional Habitat Conservation Plan 
(HCP) focusing on the conservation of species and their associated habitats in Western Riverside 
County.  The MSHCP was developed in response to the need for future growth opportunities in 
Western Riverside County while addressing the requirements of the State and federal 
Endangered Species Acts.  The MSHCP serves as an HCP pursuant to Section 10(a)(1)(B) of the 
federal Endangered Species Act of 1973 as well as a Natural Communities Conservation Plan 
under the NCCP Act of 2001.  The MSHCP streamlines these environmental permitting processes 
by allowing the participating jurisdictions to authorize “take” of plant and wildlife species 
identified within the Plan Area.  At the same time, Plan implementation provides a coordinated 
MSHCP Conservation Area and implementation program to preserve biological diversity and 
maintain the region’s quality of life. 


The MSHCP and the associated Implementing Agreement and Incidental Take Permit collectively 
determine a set of conservation actions that must be taken to meet the terms of the Incidental 
Take Permit and benefit from the regulatory streamlining and other benefits of the MSHCP.  This 
includes the identification of the responsible parties, including the responsibilities of the Local 
Permittees.1  One of the key requirements of the MSHCP, Implementing Agreement, and 
Incidental Take Permit (consistent with the requirements of the federal Endangered Species Act) 
is the provision of adequate funding by Local Permittees to the Implementing Entity (the Western 
Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority2) to conduct their portion of the conservation 
actions identified in the MSHCP. 


 


1 Local Permittees include the Western Riverside cities, the County of Riverside, County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District, County Regional Park and Open-Space District, County Department 
of Waste Resources, and Riverside County Transportation Commission. 
2 The Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Agency is a Joint Powers Authority established 
in 2004 to implement the MSHCP. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 2 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Section 8.0 of the MSHCP outlines the MSHCP funding/financing approach.  It also identified best 
estimates of Plan implementation costs at the time of Plan adoption, including the local funding 
commitment that represents a portion of the overall land acquisition, management and 
monitoring, and Plan administration costs.  The Local Funding Program included a mix of funding 
sources to provide “an equitable distribution of the cost for local mitigation under the MSHCP.”  
The proposed funding sources included Local Development Mitigation Fees (and land 
dedications), regional infrastructure project public contributions (including contributions to 
mitigate for transportation infrastructure, regional utility projects, local public capital 
construction projects, and regional flood control projects), and landfill tipping fees.   


Participating cities and the County were each required to implement a Local Development 
Mitigation Fee under California Government Code Section 66000 et seq. (the “Mitigation Fee 
Act”) and supported by the separate “Final Mitigation Fee Nexus Study Report for the Western 
Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan,” July 1, 2003 (Original or 2003 
Nexus Study).  The MSHCP funding chapter notes the need for frequent evaluations of the 
performance of the funding mechanisms and assessments of the funding plan and the need to 
make any necessary modifications to the funding mechanisms.  The MSHCP also notes that the 
mitigation fee will need to be “reevaluated and revised should it be found to insufficiently cover 
mitigation of new development.”   


In addition to the common practice of updating mitigation fees periodically to account for 
changing circumstances, the Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority (RCA) 
has determined that significant changes have occurred and/or circumstances have arisen that 
justify an update to the mitigation fees.  These changes include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 


• The need to acquire more land than originally forecast due to the lower than expected land 
dedication. 


• The lower-than-expected levels of non-fee funding from local and regional funding sources. 


• The lower than expected levels of residential development. 


• The need to diversify land acquisitions away from a focus on the larger, more remote parcels 
to also acquiring parcels closer to urbanized areas, consistent with the reserve assembly 
requirements of the MSHCP. 


Or ig ina l  a nd  Ex i s t ing  Fee  Schedu le  


All local jurisdictions participating in the MSHCP and obtaining coverage for public and private 
take in their jurisdictions were required to adopt and implement the 2004 Mitigation Fee 
Schedule through ordinance and resolution and then to pass through the fee funding (except for 
any additional administrative charges added by the jurisdictions) to the RCA to fund MSHCP 
implementation.  The ordinances allowed for periodic inflationary increases based on the annual 
change in the Consumer Price Index for the Los Angeles-Anaheim-Riverside area. In 2018 the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics implemented a geographic revision, establishing Riverside as its own 
Core Based Statistical Area. As a result, Riverside was removed from the Consumer Price Index 
encompassing Los Angeles and Anaheim.  Going forward, inflationary increases will be based on 
the annual change in the Consumer Price Index for the newly established Riverside-San 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 3 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Bernardino-Ontario area.  As outlined in the 2003 Nexus Study (Original Nexus Study), all new 
development in Western Riverside County is required to pay the mitigation fee. 


Table 1 shows the original 2004 Local Development Mitigation Fee schedule and the current 
2021 Fee Schedule that reflects periodic inflationary fee adjustments using the indexing process 
that collectively increased the fees by 35 percent between 2004 and 2020 (this was below the 
overall inflation index increase over this period).   


Table 1 2004 and 2021 MSHCP Fee Schedule  


Fee Category 
2004 Fee per unit or 


per acre 


2021 Fee per 


unit or per acre3 


Residential: Up to 8.0 dwelling units per acre 
(DUAC) 


$1,651 $2,234 


Residential: 8.0-14.0 DUAC $1,057 $1,430 


Residential: 14.0+ DUAC $859 $1,161 


Commercial (per acre) $5,620 $7,606 


Industrial (per acre) $5,620 $7,606 


 


Updat ed  M i t iga t io n  Fee  Sc hedu les  


This 2020 Nexus Study has estimated the increased fee level that would be required to provide 
sufficient revenues, based on the best available forecasts of future growth, to support the full 
implementation of the MSHCP, including the completion of all land acquisition and the 
establishment of the necessary endowment, by 2029 (Year 25 of Plan implementation).4  
Because, as shown below, this would require a major increase in the fee levels, three other 
scenarios are also considered where different time extensions provide more time for land 
acquisition.5  These extensions allow for the costs of Plan implementation (including land 
acquisitions) to be spread across more development and, as a result, moderate the level of 
mitigation fee increase required.  In addition, the longer extension scenarios require a pace of 
land acquisition that is more consistent with what has proven to be achievable.  All of these fee 


 


3 Note it is RCA procedure to refer to fees during, for example, Fiscal Year 2020/2021, as the 2021 
fee.  The 2021 fee became effective July 1, 2020, and applies for the fiscal year of 2020-21 (i.e., until 
June 30, 2021 when the 2022 Fee begins). 
4 The MSHCP provided a 25-year period of the required land acquisition with the larger 75-year permit 
term.  This is labelled the “No Extension” or “Baseline Scenario” in this Update Study. 
5 The baseline scenario as well as the extension scenarios assume that all land acquisition as well as 
the full endowment will be completed/ established by the end of the specified implementation/ land 
acquisition period.  Interest from the non-depleting endowment will fund all ongoing costs thereafter.  







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 4 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


increases would be consistent with the Mitigation Fee Act and the MSHCP and associated 
Incidental Take Permit and Implementing Agreement.   


The mitigation fee levels shown for each extension scenario are the fee levels required to cover 
the appropriate portion of the Local Permittee MSHCP implementation costs based on the best 
information available at this time.  The revised mitigation fee levels reflect changes in estimated 
costs, expected levels of land dedication, and non-fee funding.  Consistent with the MSHCP and 
Original Nexus Study, it is assumed that all new development in Western Riverside County will 
pay the mitigation fee because, as noted in the MSHCP, “new development affects the 
environment through construction activity and cumulatively through population bases that result 
from such development.”6  Importantly, the revised mitigation fee levels also reflect the decision 
to determine the mitigation fee that applies to different land uses on a consistent per gross acre 
basis.  This approach is considered to provide a clear, consistent, and proportionate method for 
determining mitigation fees on new development.7  The 2020 Nexus Study does convert the 
overarching per gross acre fee into per unit residential fees for different density ranges; this 
conversion was conducted to provide implementation/administrative consistency for member 
jurisdictions.  


Table 2 Updated MSHCP Implementation Costs and Per Acre Mitigation Fees 


 


 


6 Consistent with the Original Nexus Study and the technical analysis in this study update (and as 
described in more detail in the Fee Implementation Handbook), certain types of public improvements/ 
infrastructure projects will make mitigation payments calculated as a percent of total improvement 
cost.  All projects are required to make a mitigation payment/contribution (except where exempted as 
specified in the Ordinance); where no mitigation payment process is specified, the project will pay the 
updated per acre mitigation fee.   
7 This is the approach taken by the majority of regional Habitat Conservation Plans in California, 
including the Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan mitigation fee.   


Fee Per Acre No Extension


5-Year 


Extension


10-Year 


Extension


15-Year 


Extension


Net Cost $912,756,583 $902,353,150 $892,767,438 $883,987,805


Acres of Development


Residential 14,026 21,818 29,611 37,403


Nonresidential 6,239 9,705 13,171 16,637


Total 20,265 31,523 42,782 54,040


Mitigation Fee per Acre $45,041 $28,625 $20,868 $16,358


Sources:  Southern California Association of Governments; Western Riverside County RCA; Economic & Planning 


Systems, Inc.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 5 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


As shown in Table 2, the required mitigation fee per gross acre of development varies 
substantially based on level of extension as follows: 


• No Extension.  Under the current structure, where all land acquisition must occur by the 
end of Year 25 of MSHCP implementation (2029), a mitigation fee of $45,041 per acre of 
development would be required.   


• 5-Year Extension.  With a 5-year extension, where all land acquisition must occur by the 
end of Year 30 of MSHCP implementation (2034), a mitigation fee of $28,625 per acre of 
development would be required. 


• 10-Year Extension.  With a 10-year extension, where all land acquisition must occur by the 
end of Year 35 of MSHCP implementation (2039), a mitigation fee of $20,868 per acre of 
development would be required. 


• 15-Year Extension.  With a 15-year extension, where all land acquisition must occur by the 
end of Year 40 of MSHCP implementation (2044), a mitigation fee of $16,358 per acre of 
development would be required. 


For residential development, the per gross acre fee is translated into per residential unit fees by 
density category to provide for a fee framework that is consistent with the current fee structure.  
The per residential unit fees are calculated by dividing the per gross acre fee by an assumed 
typical/ average density for each of the three density ranges (low, medium, and high).8 The full 
mitigation fee schedule (for each extension scenario) is shown in Table 3, including the per unit 
residential fees by density category and per gross acre fees for non-residential development.  
The typical/ average residential densities used to calculate the per-unit residential fees are the 
same as the density assumptions in the Original Nexus Study.9    


 


8 For example, the $3,635 per unit Residential – Low fee under the 15-year extension is derived by 
dividing the overall per gross acre mitigation fee of $16,358 (shown in Figure 2) by the assumed 
typical/average density of Residential Low of 4.5 units/acre.  
9 The Fee Implementation Handbook provides more specifics on how to determine a project’s 
residential density and therefore the appropriate per unit residential fee that applies.   







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 6 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 3 Updated Mitigation Fee Schedule by Extension Scenario 


 


Key  Dr i ver s  o f  Fee  Cha nge  


The change in Local Development Mitigation Fee is the result of a number of different 
contributing factors (“moving parts”), fully documented and detailed in Chapters 2 through 7.  
This Nexus Study is based on the most current information available including, for some inputs, 
recent years of experience from MSHCP implementation.  The factors that have had the most 
significant effect on the Local Development Mitigation Fee calculations are summarized below.   


1. Lower-than-expected land dedications substantially increase the Local Permittee 
habitat acquisition cost component of MSHCP implementation.  The MSHCP assumed 
that 41,000 of the 97,000 acres (42 percent) to be conserved by Local Permittee 
action/funding would be provided at no cost through land dedication associated with 
development inside the Criteria Cells.  Through the first sixteen years of Plan 
implementation, less than 1,000 acres of the Local Permittee habitat conservation obligations 
have been generated through these dedications.  An additional 10,000 acres of land 
dedication requirements have been required as part of proposed developments that have yet 
to occur.  Beyond the dedication associated with previously proposed projects, additional 
land dedication is not expected.10  As a result, the 2020 Nexus Study assumes the noted 
10,000 acres of land dedication is formalized over the next eight years (an average annual 
land dedication of 1,250 acres per year) prior to the end of the current land acquisition 
period.  No additional land dedication is assumed, even if the acquisition period is extended.  
As a result, at the end of the current habitat acquisition period (Year 25 of Plan 


 


10 In September 2016, the RCA revised its fee credit and waiver policy, limiting the likelihood of 
projects paying fees and dedicating land. 


Fee Per Unit 
No 


Extension


5-Year 


Extension


10-Year 


Extension


15-Year 


Extension


Residential - Low (Up to 8.0 DUAC)
2 3


$2,234 $10,009 $6,361 $4,637 $3,635


Residential - Medium (8.0-14.0 DUAC)
2 3


$1,430 $4,170 $2,650 $1,932 $1,515


Residential - High (14.0+ DUAC) 
2 3


$1,161 $1,846 $1,173 $855 $670


Commercial / Industrial (per acre) $7,606 $45,041 $28,625 $20,868 $16,358


Sources:  Southern California Association of Governments; Western Riverside County RCA; Economic & Planning Systems, 


Inc.


3. DUAC stands for Dwelling Units per Acre.


Current Fee 


2021
1 


1. Western Riverside County Multiple Species Conservation. Local Development Mitigation Fee Schedule for FY 2020-21 


(Effective July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021), annually adjusted using the Consumer Price Index.


2. Per acre mitigation fees translated into per unit fees based on the following residential densities: for low density, 4.5 units 


per acre; for medium density, 10.8 units per acre; for high density, 24.4 units per acre, consistent with the assumptions used 


in Appendix E of the original Nexus Study.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 7 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


implementation), total land dedication is expected to represent about 11,000 acres and about 
11 percent of the Local Permittee land conservation requirement.  The RCA therefore needs 
to directly acquire an additional 30,000 acres of land relative to the expectations of the 
Original Nexus Study. 


2. Lower than expected regional infrastructure public contributions have reduced the 
non-fee funding available, increasing the costs to be funded through the mitigation 
fee.  The MSHCP assumed a substantial level of funding from regional infrastructure project 
public contributions, including transportation infrastructure, regional utility projects, local 
public capital construction projects, and regional flood control projects, as well as from 
landfill tipping fees.  While the Measure A sales tax has provided substantial funding as 
expected, other revenue sources, on aggregate, have provided (and are expected to continue 
to provide) substantially less funding than forecast in the 2003 Nexus Study.  As a result, 
mitigation fees will need to cover about 91 percent of Local Permittee MSHCP implementation 
costs relative to the original assumption of about 56 percent.  


3. The change towards a consistent “per gross developed acre” fee basis provides a 
more consistent approach for all land use development types.  The 2003 Nexus Study 
used an “Equivalent Benefit Unit” approach to distributing mitigation costs between different 
land use categories.  This Nexus Study adjusts the fee calculation to the more commonly 
used per gross acre basis.  Under this approach, the new Local Development Mitigation Fees 
are all based on one “across the board” per gross acre fee determination.  Non-residential 
development then pays this per acre fee, while per unit residential fees by density category 
are derived from this common per gross acre fee.11  This change evens out some of the prior 
differences in mitigation fee levels. 


4. The estimates of average per acre land values have not changed substantially, so 
they have had a limited effect on the change in mitigation fees.  The original MSHCP 
implementation cost estimate was based on an average land value of about $13,100 per 
acre.  This was based on research on land transactions of parcels with different land use 
designations and sizes in 2001/2002.  The land valuation analysis conducted for this Nexus 
Study estimated a planning-level land value of about $14,300 per acre based on land 
transactions primarily in the 2014 to 2017 period (inflated to 2019-dollar terms).  As a 
result, land value estimates have not changed substantially in nominal dollar terms since the 
Original Nexus Study. This estimated per acre land value is above the cost of most RCA 
transactions to date, though the average land values of future RCA land acquisition are 
expected to increase due to the increasing need to purchase more expensive land in 
“linkage” areas.   


  


 


11 Similar to the Original Nexus Study, all new development in Western Riverside County is required 
to pay the mitigation fee (or otherwise provide the necessary mitigation).  The conversion from per 
gross acre to per unit fees for residential development is conducted to provide administrative 
continuity for member agencies. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 8 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Or ga n iz a t io n  o f  Repor t  


This Nexus Study includes several chapters.  Chapter 1, this chapter, describes the purpose and 
need for this Nexus Study, the recommended changes in the Local Development Mitigation Fee, 
and the key drivers of these changes.  Chapters 2 through 7 provide the technical analysis that 
supports the updated fees and nexus findings.  Chapter 2 summarizes the purpose of and basis 
for the MSHCP, the conservation requirements of the MSHCP, and the financing strategy and 
approach developed to implement the MSHCP in 2004.  Chapter 3 describes the conservation 
achievements to date, identifies the remaining conservation requirements, and identifies 
expected land dedication.  Chapter 4 provides the development forecast used in the calculation 
of the updated mitigation fees.  Chapter 5 provides the estimates of MSHCP implementation 
costs, including land acquisition, management and monitoring, program administration, and 
endowment.  Chapter 6 describes the historical levels of non-fee revenues available to help fund 
Local Permittee MSHCP implementation costs.  Chapter 7 brings together the technical analysis 
in Chapters 2 through 6 to estimate the updated 2020 Local Development Mitigation Fees.  
Chapter 8 provides the nexus findings required under the Mitigation Fee Act as require to 
establish the updated fees.  Finally, Chapter 9 highlights some of the administration and 
implementation requirements under the Mitigation Fee Act, recognizing that the Fee 
Implementation Handbook provides more specific guidance to the RCA and its partner agencies 
on the implementation of the mitigation fee program.    







 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 9 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


2. MSHCP POLICIES, GOALS, AND FINANCING STRATEGY  


M SH CP Purpo se ,  Ba s i s ,  a nd  Go a l s  


In response to the need to maintain future growth opportunities in Western Riverside County 
while addressing the requirements of the state and federal Endangered Species Acts, the County 
and the Riverside County Transportation Commission initiated the Riverside County Integrated 
Project (RCIP) in 1999.  The Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation 
Plan (MSHCP) is one part of the RCIP that includes: 


• Updated County General Plan.  Addresses the required general plan elements such as land 
use, circulation, housing and open space, and conservation and includes programs to 
implement the MSHCP, enhance transit alternatives, and encourage development of mixed-
use centers.   


• Community and Environment Transportation Acceptability Process. Identifies future 
transportation corridors in Western Riverside and provides needed environmental 
documentation to allow preservation of future right-of-ways.   


• MSHCP.  The Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP 
or Plan) is a comprehensive, multi-jurisdictional Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) focusing on 
the conservation of species and their associated habitats in Western Riverside County.  The 
MSHCP conserves vulnerable plant and animal species and their associated habitats in 
Western Riverside County and supports economic development.   


The MSHCP was adopted in 2003 by the Riverside County Board of Supervisors.  Subsequently, 
all of the Western Riverside cities, the County of Riverside, County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District, County Regional Parks and Open-Space District, County Department of 
Waste Resources, Riverside County Transportation Commission, California Department of 
Transportation, California Department of Parks and Recreation, California Department of Fish and 
Game, the US Fish and Wildlife Service and the RCA signed an Implementing Agreement for the 
MSHCP.  The Implementing Agreement includes terms to ensure MSHCP-implementation, defines 
remedies and recourses should any of the parties of the Agreement fail to perform obligations, 
and provides assurances that, as long as the MSHCP is being implemented, the Wildlife Agencies 
will not require additional mitigation from the Permittees.12 


The MSHCP serves as an HCP pursuant to Section 10(a)(1)(B) of the federal Endangered Species 
Act of 1973 as well as a Natural Communities Conservation Plan under the NCCP Act of 2001.  
The MSHCP streamlines these environmental permitting processes by allowing the participating 
jurisdictions to authorize “take” of plant and wildlife species identified within the Plan Area.  At 
the same time, Plan implementation provides a coordinated MSHCP Conservation Area and 
implementation program to preserve biological diversity and maintain the region’s quality of life.  


 


12 The Wildlife Agencies include the US Fish and Wildlife Service and the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife and the Permittees include all of the other parties to the Implementing Agreement.  







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 10 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


The MSHCP and the associated Implementing Agreement and Incidental Take Permit collectively 
determine a set of conservation actions, and the associated responsible parties, that must be 
taken to meet the terms of the Incidental Take Permit and benefit from the regulatory 
streamlining and other benefits of the MSHCP.  This includes the identification of the 
responsibilities of the Local Permittees.13   


MSHCP Conservation Requirements 


The goal of the MSHCP is to enhance and maintain biological diversity and ecosystems processes 
while allowing future economic growth.  The MSHCP calls for an MSHCP Conservation Area of 
500,000 acres and focuses on the conservation of 146 species.   


Figure 1 State of Conservation in 2003: Conserved Land, Additional Reserve Land to 
be Acquired, and Total MSHCP Conservation Area Needed 


e County 


Regional 


As shown in Figure 1, when the MSHCP was adopted, existing public and quasi-public 
conservation lands covered 347,000 acres, leaving a need for 153,000 acres of land, called 
Additional Reserve Land (ARL), to meet the goals of the MSHCP (see Figure 1).  The MSHCP 
specifies that responsibility for the conservation of the 153,000-acre Additional Reserve Lands is 
shared by the local development process (97,000 acres) and state and federal purchases 
(56,000).  


 


13 Local Permittees include the Western Riverside cities, the County of Riverside, County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District, County Regional Park and Open Space District, County Department 
of Waste Resources, and Riverside County Transportation Commission. 


282,000


56,000


338,000


65,000


97,000


162,000347,000


153,000


500,000


0


100,000


200,000


300,000


400,000


500,000


600,000


2004 Existing
Public/Quasi Public


Land


Acquire: Additional
Reserve Land


Total


Acres


Federal/State Local







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 11 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 4 MSHCP Goals by Area Plan 


 


The MSHCP includes methods to determine whether the goals of the Plan are being met.  One of 
the methods is measuring the extent to which conservation acquisitions are moving toward 
acquisition goals by each Area Plan.14  Area Plans are established in the County’s General Plan 
and are used in the MSHCP as a common geographic unit in Western Riverside County.  The 
MSHCP established low, high, and midpoint acquisition goals for each Area Plan based on 
biological needs.  The midpoint acquisition goals for each Area Plan range from 165 to nearly 
49,935 acres, as shown in Table 4.  The midpoint goals sum to 158,605 which represents 
5,605 acres more than are needed to fulfill the MSHCP goals.  As a result, acquisitions in some 
Area Plans can fall below the mid-point targets while the total ARL can still achieve the 
153,000-acre goal. 


M SH CP F ina nc ing  S t ra t egy  


One of the key requirements of the MSHCP, Implementing Agreement, and Incidental Take 
Permit (consistent with the requirements of the federal Endangered Species Act) is the provision 
of adequate funding by Local Permittees to the Implementing Entity (the Regional Conservation 
Authority) to conduct the conservation actions identified in the MSHCP as the responsibility of the 
Local Permittees.   


 


14 Other geographic units include Rough Steps, city jurisdictions, and Area Plan subunits.  For the 
purposes of this analysis, Area Plans have been selected as the primary unit of analysis because they 
are the middle-sized unit (smaller than Rough Steps and larger than Area Plan subunits) and have not 
changed over time (unlike jurisdictions, several of which have incorporated since the adoption of the 
MSHCP.   


Cities of Riverside and Norco 1,756 90 240 165


Eastvale 665 145 290 220


Elsinore 28,946 11,700 18,515 15,110


Harvest Valley / Winchester 820 430 605 515


Highgrove 1,452 345 675 510


Jurupa 5,476 890 1,870 1,380


Lake Mathews / Woodcrest 11,673 3,215 5,470 4,340


Lakeview / Nuevo 14,682 6,650 10,235 8,445


Mead Valley 7,703 1,885 3,635 2,760


Reche Canyon / Badlands 26,000 10,520 15,610 13,065


REMAP 78,423 41,400 58,470 49,935


San Jacinto Valley 32,828 11,540 19,465 15,500


Southwest Area 66,076 22,500 36,360 29,430


Sun City / Menifee Valley 2,059 1,120 1,585 1,355


Temescal Canyon 10,007 3,485 5,800 4,645


The Pass 22,652 8,540 13,925 11,230


Total 311,218 124,455 192,750 158,605


Area Plan
Total Area of 


Criteria Cells
Low End of Goal


High End of 


Goal
Midpoint







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 12 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Section 8.0 of the MSHCP addresses “MSHCP Funding/Financing of Reserve Assembly and 
Management.”  This section provides best estimates of Plan implementation costs at the time of 
Plan adoption, including the local funding commitment – the portion of Plan implementation costs 
that represents the Local Permittees’ portion of the overall land acquisition, management, 
monitoring, adaptive management, and Plan administration costs.  Section 8.5 describes the 
Local Funding Program.  The Local Funding Program included a mix of funding sources to provide 
“an equitable distribution of the cost for local mitigation under the MSHCP.”  The proposed 
funding sources included Local Development Mitigation Fees, density bonus fees, regional 
infrastructure project public contributions (including transportation infrastructure, regional utility 
projects, local public capital construction projects, and regional flood control projects), and 
landfill tipping fees.  Key components of the overall MSHCP implementation and funding strategy 
are highlighted below: 


• The Regional Conservation Authority would implement the MSHCP with funding from different 
sources. 


• The permanent protection of 97,000 acres in Additional Reserve Lands by Year 25 of the Plan 
(2029) would be achieved through direct purchase of habitat lands by the RCA using local 
funding and through the HANS dedication process.15 


• Local funding sources would fund the ongoing management and maintenance costs of the 
local portion of the Additional Reserve Lands acquired through local funding (97,000 acres by 
end of acquisition period). 


• Local funding sources would fund monitoring activities on the pre-Plan local conservation and 
all the new Additional Reserve Lands (500,000 acers by end of acquisition period). 


• The permanent protection of 56,000 acres in Additional Reserve Lands by Year 25 would be 
achieved using state/federal funding sources or contributions. 


• State and federal funding sources would fund the management and maintenance costs of the 
State/federal portion of the required Additional Reserve Lands. 


• Local Development Mitigation Fees (on private development) would fund the Local Permittee 
MSHCP implementation costs that were not funded by other local/regional funding sources or 
public contributions for public development project mitigation. 


• The overall permit period was set at 75 years. Once habitat acquisition was completed by 
Year 25, remaining funds along with newly created revenue sources were to be used to fund 


 


15 Section 6.1.1 of the MSHCP describes the HANS process.  The Habitat Evaluation and Acquisition 
Negotiation Strategy (HANS) process applied to any property owner applying for a discretionary 
permit for land within a Criteria Area/Criteria Cell.  Under the process, the County determined whether 
portions of the property are needed for conservation and then may send their evaluation to the RCA 
for Joint Project Review (JPR).  During JPR, the project applicant negotiated the terms of the 
development and conservation of the project.  The applicant also paid fees on the new development.   
This approach was refined when a new fee credit policy, adopted in 2016, provided for fee credits 
where appropriate lands are dedicated. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 13 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


monitoring and management as well as to fund the establishment of an endowment to cover 
ongoing post-permit costs (beyond Year 75). 


Importantly, the MSHCP funding chapter notes that frequent evaluations of the performance of 
the funding mechanisms and assessments of the funding plan will occur and that any necessary 
modifications to the funding mechanisms will be developed. 


M SH CP Im p lem entat ion  Cos t s  and  Fund ing  So urc es  


The original estimated costs and proposed funding sources were documented in the MSHCP and 
are summarized in Table 5.  These were developed based on research and analysis conducted as 
part of MSHCP development. 


As shown, Plan implementation costs over the first 25 years of implementation were estimated at 
about $950 million in 2004-dollar terms.  Key assumptions driving the implementation cost 
estimates included: 


• Dedications.  Direct acquisition using local funding sources would be required to acquire 
56,000 acres, with 41,000 acres (or 42 percent) of the required local habitat protection 
coming through HANS dedication. 


• Land Cost.  Average land value of $13,100 per acre for Additional Reserve Lands purchased 
by the RCA. 


• Management and Monitoring:  Management and monitoring costs included three key 
components as follows: Reserve Management, Adaptive Management, and Biological 
Monitoring.16     


• Program Administration.  RCA program administration costs would average about 
$1.2 million each year in 2004 dollars during the 25-year period where land acquisition was 
required.   


• Cost Distribution.  Overall, land acquisition costs were estimated at 77 percent of total 
implementation costs, with management and monitoring at 20 percent, and program 
administration at 3 percent (see Figure 2). 


 


16 See Chapter 5 of the MSHCP for a description of these activities.    







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 14 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 5 2004 Estimates: MSHCP Implementation Costs and Funding Sources 


 


Total for % of


2004 - 2028 Average Total Cost/


Item (Years 1 - 25) Annual Funding Need


Local Permittee Land Requirements


Preservation Requirement 97,000              acres 3,880 acres na


HANS Dedication 41,000 acres 1,640 acres na


  Local Permittee Acquisition 56,000 acres 2,240 acres na


Local Permittee MSHCP Implementation Costs


Land (1) $733,600,000 $29,344,000 76.91%


Management & Monitoring $190,200,000 $7,608,000 19.94%


RCA Staff $30,000,000 $1,200,000 3.15%


Other Costs na na na


Endowment not included not included na


  Total Costs $953,800,000 $38,152,000 100.0%


Local Revenues


Private Development Mitigation Fees $539,600,000 $21,584,000 50.1%


Density Bonus Fees $66,000,000 $2,640,000 6.1%


Regional Transportation Infra. (2) $250,000,000 $10,000,000 23.2%


Local Roads (Measure A) $121,000,000 $4,840,000 (3) 11.2%


Tipping Fees (4) $100,000,000 $4,000,000 9.3%


Miscellaneous Revenues (5) $0 $0 0.0%


  Total Revenues $1,076,600,000 $43,064,000 100%


(1) Average land value per acre assumed to be $13,100 per acre.


(2) Public contributions at specificed % of new road construction.


(3) $121 million to be provided over 10 years, so $12.1 million annually over that period.


(4) Includes $90 million from El Sobrante Landfill and $10 million from other County landfills.


(5) Other potential revenues, including public contributions from other public projects, tipping fees


from Eagle Mountain Landfill, and potential new voter-approved regional funding were noted but not estimated.


Source:  Chapter 8 of MSHCP; Economic & Planning Systems.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 15 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Figure 2 MSHCP Estimated Annual Costs in Millions, 2004 Dollars   


 


As also shown in Table 5, MSHCP funding from local/regional sources was estimated to be about 
$1.0 billion in 2004 dollars through Year 25, sufficient to cover the implementation costs over 
this period.  Key assumptions driving the funding estimates included: 


• Measure A.  Measure A (local sales tax transportation funding measure) would provide $121 
million over 10 years in 2004-dollar terms. 


• Regional Transportation Funding.  Public contributions from regional transportation 
infrastructure projects would provide an average of $10 million each year or $250 million 
through Year 25. 


• Tipping Fees.  Landfill tipping fees would provide about $100 million in revenue over 25 
years, about $4 million each year, primarily from the El Sobrante landfill. 


• Mitigation Fees.  Private development fees, including private development mitigation fees 
and density bonus fees, would generate over $600 million over the first 25 years, about $24 
million annually. 


• Development Forecast and Participation.  The forecast of private development fees was 
based on a preliminary fee schedule and the forecast of 336,000 new residential units 
(13,440 units each year) and 371 acres each year of commercial and industrial development.  
All new development was assumed to pay the private development mitigation fee with a 
portion paying the density bonus fee.  


• Other Funding Options.  Potential additional funding might come through contributions 
from other local/regional public entities, other landfills, or new voter-approved funding 
initiatives. 


• Funding Distribution.  Overall, about 55 percent of the estimated funding was expected to 
be generated by private development fees, with 45 percent from other funding sources.  


Land, 
$29.3, 77%


Mangmnt. 
& 


Monitoring
$7.6 , 20%


RCA Staff, 
$1.2 , 3%


$38.1 million total 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 16 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Figure 3 MSHCP Estimated Annual Revenues in Millions, 2004 Dollars   


 


Deve lopm ent  M i t i ga t io n  Fees  a nd  Ca l c u la t io n  


The MSHCP notes that “new development affects the environment directly through construction 
activity and cumulatively through population bases that result from Development.”  As a result, 
the cities and County are required to implement a Local Development Mitigation Fee that was 
expected to represent one of the primary sources of funding for the implementation of the 
MSHCP.  The MSHCP indicates that the Local Development Mitigation Fee will be adopted under 
California Government Code Section 66000 et seq. (the “Mitigation Fee Act”) that “allows cities 
and counties to charge new development for the costs of mitigating the impacts of new 
development.”   


The MSHCP identified preliminary estimates of Local Development Mitigation Fees and indicated 
that these mitigation fees were expected to generate the majority of funding for Local Permittee 
obligations.  The MSHCP noted that, under the Mitigation Fee Act, “a nexus study is required to 
demonstrate that the proposed fee is proportionate to the impacts of new development.”  The 
Mitigation Fee Act also includes a number of reviewing and reporting requirements.  The MSHCP 
also notes that the fee will need to be “reevaluated and revised should it be found to 
insufficiently cover mitigation of new development.”   


A nexus study entitled “Final Mitigation Fee Nexus Study Report for the Western Riverside 
County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan” was completed on July 1, 2003 
(2003/Original Nexus Study).  This nexus study conducted a detailed analysis of the costs of 
implementing the Plan, identified the Local Permittee funding obligations, determined the portion 
to be funded through the Local Development Mitigation Fee, and made the necessary nexus 
findings under the Mitigation Fee Act.  The MSHCP and 2003 Nexus Study both indicated that all 
new development in the Western Riverside County Plan Area affects covered species and habitat 
and so the Local Development Mitigation Fees would apply to all new development in 
participating jurisdictions in Western Riverside County. 


Private 
Dev. Mit. 


Fees, 
$21.6, 50%


Density 
Bonus Fees, 


$2.6 , 6%


Regional 
Transp. 
Infra., 


$10.0 , 23%


Local Roads 
(Meas. A) , 
$4.8 , 11%


Tipping 
Fees, $4.0 , 


10%


$43.3 million total 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 17 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Mitigation Fee Schedule and Adjustments 


All local jurisdictions participating in the MSHCP and obtaining coverage for public and private 
take in their jurisdictions were required to adopt and implement this mitigation fee schedule 
through ordinance and resolution and then to pass through the fee funding (minus any additional 
administrative charges) to the RCA to fund MSHCP implementation.  Indexed-increases based on 
the annual change in the Consumer Price Index for the Los Angeles-Anaheim-Riverside area were 
provided for in the ordinances to allow modest adjustments in mitigation fees to respond to 
inflationary cost increases. Due to the geographic revision implemented by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, going forward indexed-adjustments will be based on the annual change in the 
Consumer Price Index for the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario area.  


Table 6 shows the original 2004 Local Development Mitigation Fee schedule and current 2021 
Fee schedule that reflects periodic inflationary fee adjustments using the indexing process.   


Table 6 2004 and 2021 MSHCP Fee Schedule  


Fee Category 
2004 Fee per unit or 


per acre 
2021 Fee per unit or per 


acre 


Residential: Up to 8.0 dwelling 
units per acre (DUAC) $1,651 $2,234 


Residential: 8.0-14.0 DUAC $1,057 $1,430 


Residential: 14.0+ DUAC $859 $1,161 


Commercial (per acre) $5,620 $7,606 


Industrial (per acre) $5,620 $7,606 
 


 







 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 18 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


3. HABITAT PROTECTION TO DATE AND FUTURE CONSERVATION 


SCENARIO  


The RCA has achieved substantial levels of habitat protection to date using the funding sources 
established and the associated variable flows of incoming revenues.  The level of habitat 
protection achieved, because of lower levels of funding and land dedication than expected, has 
however fallen behind the pace of protection forecast in the Original Nexus Study.  This chapter 
summarizes the achieved protection to (1) establish both the scale of future acquisitions required 
to meet the overall Additional Reserve Land (ARL) goals, (2) consider the annual pace of habitat 
protection through acquisitions and dedications in absolute terms and relative to the original 
MSHCP forecasts, and (3) inform the development of the Conservation Scenario that forms the 
baseline (project description) for estimating future MSHCP implementation costs and associated 
funding requirements and updated mitigation fees. 


H ab i ta t  Pr o t ec t io n  Ac co mp l i shm ent s  Thr ough  2019   


Between the start of the MSHCP program and the end of 2019, the most recent full calendar 
year, about 40 percent of the 153,000-acre ARL target has been achieved, totaling almost 
62,000 acres in acquisitions, easements, or dedications (see Table 7).17  As shown of the 
97,000 acres in Local Permittee ARL obligation about 40,200 acres had been protected by the 
end of 2019.  Of the 56,000 acres in State/Federal ARL obligation, about 21,600 acres have been 
protected to date.  


Table 7 Conservation Through End of 2019 


 


Sources: Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority MSHCP Annual Reports;  


RCA information on 2019 purchases; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 


Co nservat io n  Go a l s  a nd  Pr ogr ess  


The MSHCP anticipated that acquisition would take place for 25 years, through the end of 2029, 
with 97,000 acres conserved through local means and 56,000 acres conserved with State/federal 
funding.  To achieve this goal, an average of 6,120 acres of conservation is required each year, 


 


17 Note that while the MSHCP was adopted in 2004, certain conservation which took place between 
2000 and 2003 was counted toward the MSHCP reserve.   


Total


Party Need Conserved Conserved  Conserved Remaining Need


2000-2003 2004 - 2019 2000 - 2019 2020-2043


Local 97,000    4,531         35,681               40,212               56,788                   


State + Fed 56,000    12,408       9,200                 21,608               34,392                   


Total 153,000  16,939       44,881               61,820               91,180                   


     
 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 19 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


including an average of 3,880 annually from local funding sources/dedications and 2,240 
annually from State and federal conservation.   


Figure 4 illustrates how steady progress would result in achievement of the ARL goals by 2029.  
Figure 5 shows actual progress toward the goals, through 2019.  More than 21,000 acres have 
been conserved through State/federal means, and over 40,000 acres have been conserved 
through local actions.  These totals sum to about 40 percent of the total ARL goal of 153,000 
acres.  As shown in Figure 5, with 16 years of the 25-year acquisition period completed, the ARL 
acquisitions have fallen behind the pace forecast in the Original Nexus Study.  Protection through 
the end of 2019 represents 63 percent of the original forecast (65 percent for Local obligations 
and 60 percent for State/federal obligations).  For the Local Permittee obligations, as discussed 
further below, the lower level of land dedication relative to the original forecasts account for 
much of the habitat protection gap that has emerged over the last 16 years. 


Figure 4 MSHCP Conservation Goals, 2019 and 2029 Goals Highlighted 


 


 


62,080
97,000


35,840


56,000


0


20,000


40,000


60,000


80,000


100,000


120,000


140,000


160,000


180,000


20
04


20
05


20
06


20
07


20
08


20
09


20
10


20
11


20
12


20
13


20
14


20
15


20
16


20
17


20
18


20
19


20
20


20
21


20
22


20
23


20
24


20
25


20
26


20
27


20
28


MSHCP Goals, 2019 and 2028 Highlighted


Local State/Fed







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 20 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Figure 5 Progress Towards ARL Through End of 2019 


 


Sources: Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.  


L a nd  Ded i ca t io ns  


The MSHCP envisioned a conservation program where land and easements would be purchased 
by the RCA and land would be dedicated to the RCA through the development process.18  
In addition, the potential for no-cost and low-cost donations for tax benefit purposes was also 
created.  The MSHCP did not assume donations or conservation easement acquisitions as part of 
its financial analysis (this is appropriate given the limited number of such transactions).  The 
MSHCP did, however, anticipate that 41,000 acres would be conserved through dedications, 
56,000 acres through purchases on behalf of local permittees, and 56,000 acres through 
purchases conducted by or funded by federal and State agencies/sources for a total of 
153,000 acres.   


For the local portion of the goal (97,000 acres), this translates into about 42 percent of the goal 
conserved via dedications associated with the development review process—called Habitat 
Evaluation and Acquisition Negotiation Strategy (HANS)—and the other 58 percent purchased by 
the RCA from willing sellers.  The level of dedication is a key assumption for the MSHCP 
implementation cost estimate as each acre dedicated through HANS is one fewer acre which 
must be conserved through land acquisitions at market values.   


The HANS process was established to apply to developments proposed within the Criteria Cells of 
the MSHCP Study Area.  The Criteria Cells represent areas with high conservation values relative 
to the areas outside of the Criteria Cells.  The HANS process was designed to indicate what 
conservation (dedication) may be needed from new development from a biological needs 


 


18 This process is known as the Habitat Evaluation and Acquisition Negotiation Strategy (HANS). 


Fed+State Local Total
Acqu. through 2019 21,608 40,212 61,820
Remaining Need 34,392 56,788 91,180
% of 2019 Expected Goal Achieved 60% 65% 63%
% of Total Goal Achieved 39% 41% 40%


60%
65% 63%


39% 41% 40%


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


 -


 10,000


 20,000


 30,000


 40,000


 50,000


 60,000


 70,000


 80,000


 90,000


 100,000
Ac


re
s


153,000


97,000


56,000







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 21 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


perspective.  Subsequent to that technical analysis, applicants could then proceed to the Joint 
Project Review (JPR) process during which the parties negotiate an implementation plan for the 
project, consistent with the HANS findings.  The applicants would also pay mitigation fees on the 
actual development.  To date, a modest amount of land (less than 1,000 acres) has been 
conserved via the HANS/JPR method compared to the 26,000 acres that was forecast to have 
occurred by this point in the MSHCP implementation.   


While very little land has been dedicated to the RCA through HANS/JPR, several projects went 
through the HANS/JPR process and have agreements in place for dedication/conservation of 
lands, but the start date (if any) for these projects is unknown (i.e., may be far in the future).  
These projects cover about 35,000 acres in the Criteria Cells and, under the JPR agreements, 
have set aside about 30 percent of that total or about 10,000 acres for conservation/dedication. 


The adoption of Resolution No. 2016-003 in September 2016 revised the RCA’s fee credit and 
waiver policy.  This resolution indicated that MSHCP fee credit should be provided in exchange 
for land that contributes to reserve assembly.  As a result, after the adoption of this resolution, 
new development is not be expected to pay mitigation fees and dedicate land in the manner 
originally envisioned in the MSHCP limiting the likelihood of the types of dedications envisioned in 
the Original Nexus Study. 


Fut ur e  Co nservat ion  Sc enar io   


This updated financial analysis, nexus study, and mitigation fees estimate require a base 
description of the additional habitat protection required.  In subsequent chapters, cost estimates 
are developed in reference to, and in application to, this conservation scenario to develop the 
overall implementation costs and the associated funding required, both in aggregate and through 
time during the land acquisition period of the program.  Four questions are of particular 
importance: 


1. Remaining Habitat Protection.  The amount of habitat protection required to meet the 
MSHCP requirements. 


2. Dedications.  The amount of land dedication assumed to occur through the HANS/JPR 
process over the habitat protection period and the associated amount of habitat that must be 
acquired. 


3. Time Frame.  The period over which habitat protection goals must be met. 


4. Land Characteristics.  The characteristics of the land to be protected to meet MSHCP 
requirements (e.g., goals by Area Plan, habitat cores and linkages etc., land use designations 
and parcel sizes). 


The answers to question 1 are provided in the data above (see Table 7).  The answer to 
question 4 is provided in the subsequent chapter on land costs, with illustrative answers coming 
from RCA data and GIS analysis.  The answer to question 2 is addressed below and is based on 
information on accomplishments to date (described above), discussions with RCA staff, the 
current Fee Waiver and Credit Policy, and an assessment of realistic opportunities and 
expectations.  Finally, question 3 raises the issue of whether an extension to the MSHCP land 
acquisition implementation period should be provided.  As described below, three different 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 22 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


extension scenarios (5-, 10-, and 15-year extension scenarios) are evaluated, as well as the 
baseline, “No Extension Scenario,” to indicate the outcomes under different scenarios.   


Habitat Protection, Land Dedication, and Conservation Scenarios 


As shown in Table 8, there is a total of about 91,200 acres of land protection still required to 
complete the land protection obligations under the MSHCP and to bring the Additional Reserve 
Lands to 153,000 acres.  Of this, the State/federal requirements is for about 34,400 acres, while 
the Local Permittee requirement is for about 56,800 acres. 


The experience of the last 16 years indicates that the MSHCP was overly optimistic in terms of 
land dedications, assuming that 41,000 acres would be dedicated to the RCA.  As noted above, 
about 10,000 acres of potential future land dedication is associated with a range of previously 
proposed projects.  Based on historical information on actual, dedications agreements on 
proposed projects, current RCA policy, and consultations with RCA staff, minimal additional 
dedication is expected or assumed.  This analysis, therefore, assumes that the prior agreement 
concerning dedications, summing to about 10,000 acres, will be secured over the next eight 
years and prior to the end of the current habitat protection period.  Even if the implementation 
period were extended, no extra land dedication is forecast to occur. 


As a result, and as shown in Table 8, a total of about 46,800 acres of Additional Reserve Land 
acquisition is required by Local Permittees for MSHCP implementation once the forecast of 
dedications is incorporated.  As shown in Table 8, the required average annual pace of habitat 
protection varies considerably under the different acquisition period extension scenarios, as 
described below: 19 


• Baseline/No Extension Scenario.  As currently structured, RCA is required to complete 
land acquisition by the end of Year 25 of Plan implementation in 2029.  This provides nine 
(9) years to protect the 47,000 acres through direct land acquisition (distinct from the 
assumed dedications), an average annual acquisition pace of about 5,200 acres each year.   


• 5-Year Extension.  With a 5-year extension to the acquisition period, the RCA would be 
required to complete land acquisitions by the end of Year 30 of Plan implementation in 2034.  
This provides fourteen (14) years to protect the 47,000 acres through direct land acquisition 
(distinct from the assumed dedications), an average annual acquisition pace of about 3,300 
acres each year. 


• 10-Year Extension.  With a 10-year extension to the acquisition period, the RCA would be 
required to complete land acquisitions by the end of Year 35 of Plan implementation in 2039.  
This provides nineteen (19) years to protect the 47,000 acres through direct land acquisition 
(distinct from the assumed dedications), an average annual acquisition pace of about 2,500 
acres each year.   


 


19 As a point of reference, the historical pace of Local Permittee-driven habitat protection has been 
somewhat above 2,000 acres each year with availability of funding being an important determinant of 
the pace of acquisition.  The pace of State/federal-driven acquisition has averaged about 1,000 acres 
each year. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 23 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


• 15-Year Extension.  With a 15-year extension to the acquisition period, the RCA would be 
required to complete land acquisitions by the end of Year 40 of Plan implementation in 2044.  
This provides twenty-four (24) years to protect the 47,000 acres through direct land 
acquisition (distinct from the assumed dedications), an average annual acquisition pace of 
about 2,000 acres each year. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 24 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 8 Required Acquisition Acres to Achieve ARL Goals 


 


Sources:  Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority; and Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 


Entity/Item Through 2019


2020-End of 


Acquisition 


Period


Years 


Remaining


Annual 


Conservation 


Acres Required Total Acres


State/Federal 21,608            34,392            9                     3,821                  56,000            


Local


   HANS Dedication (1) 715                 10,000            9                     1,111                  10,715            


   Net Local Acquisition 39,497            46,788            9                     5,199                  86,285            


   Total Local Conservation 40,212            56,788            9                     6,310                  97,000            


State/Federal + Local = ARL Goal 61,820            91,180            9                     10,131                153,000          


State/Federal 14                   2,457                  56,000            


Local


   HANS Dedication 14                   714                     10,715            


   Net Local Acquisition 14                   3,342                  86,285            


   Total Local Conservation 14                   4,056                  97,000            


State/Federal + Local = ARL Goal 14                   6,513                  153,000          


State/Federal 19                   1,810                  56,000            


Local


   HANS Dedication 19                   526                     10,715            


   Net Local Acquisition 19                   2,463                  86,285            


   Total Local Conservation 19                   2,989                  97,000            


State/Federal + Local = ARL Goal 19                   4,799                  153,000          


State/Federal 24                   1,433                  56,000            


Local


   HANS Dedication 24                   417                     10,715            


   Net Local Acquisition 24                   1,950                  86,285            


   Total Local Conservation 24                   2,366                  97,000            


State/Federal + Local = ARL Goal 24                   3,799                  153,000          


State/Federal 29                   1,186                  56,000            


Local


   HANS Dedication 29                   345                     10,715            


   Net Local Acquisition 29                   1,613                  86,285            


   Total Local Conservation 29                   1,958                  97,000            


State/Federal + Local = ARL Goal 29                   3,144                  153,000          


NO EXTENSION


10 YEAR EXTENSION


15 YEAR EXTENSION


20 YEAR EXTENSION


5 YEAR EXTENSION


Shading indicates acreage to be acquired with fee revenue.


See above


See above


See above


See above


1. About 10,000 acres of potential future land dedication is associated with a range of previously proposed projects.  Based on historical 


information on actual, dedications agreements on proposed projects, current RCA policy, and consultations with RCA staff, minimal 


additional dedication is expected or assumed beyond these agreements.  This analysis, therefore, assumes that the prior agreements 


concerning dedications will occur with future dedications summing to about 10,000 acres.  The precise timing of these dedications is 


uncertain, but are assumed to occur over the next eight years. Average annual numbers in this table are shown distributed across the full 


remaining acquisition period of each extension scenario. 







 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 25 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


4. FORECASTS OF DEVELOPMENT, DEDICATION, FEE PAYMENT 


Future development within Western Riverside County will both reduce land available for 
conservation while also serving as a primary funding mechanism for habitat acquisitions.  This 
chapter identifies forecasts of future growth in Western Riverside County and develops an 
associated forecast of land development that is a key component of the fee calculation.   


H ist or i c  Deve lo pm ent  a nd  HCP  Fees  


The MSHCP anticipated that 13,000 to 14,000 residential units and about 370 commercial and 
industrial acres would be developed on average annually.  Specifically, between 2005 and 2019, 
206,000 residential units were expected in the Plan Area.  A review of new units in the Plan Area 
indicates about 130,000 units were developed over the period (see Figure 6), about 37 percent 
below the forecast.20  While the substantial volatility in the real estate market over the period 
(including the housing boom, deep recession, and modest recovery) may explain some of this 
difference, the slower pace of development means that fee revenues have been similarly 
constrained relative to the original revenue projections.   


Figure 6 Residential Unit Development, Western Riverside County, 2005-2019 


 


Source: California Department of Finance; MSHCP Projections  


 


20 Actual units developed have been derived from the California Department of Finance (DOF), 
Demographics Unit information through January 1, 2019.  Note that the DOF reports data by city and 
for the entire Riverside County unincorporated area.  Western Riverside’s portion of the total 
unincorporated area has been derived based on the area’s historic share of unincorporated County, 
taking into account the incorporations of new cities that occurred in Western Riverside County since 
MSHCP Plan adoption (Eastvale, Jurupa Valley, Menifee, and Wildomar).   


0


50,000


100,000


150,000


200,000


250,000


N
um


be
r o


f R
es


id
en


tia
l U


ni
ts


Projected


Actual


76,000







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 26 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Gro wt h  Pr o jec t io ns  


SCAG Forecasts in Context 


The Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) is a Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO)21 representing six counties, 191 cities and more than 18 million residents.  
MPOs, such as SCAG are charged under California Senate Bill 375 with developing Sustainable 
Community Strategies (SCSs) as part of regional transportation plans.  SCAG’s SCS includes 
population, household, and job projections through 2040 by city and unincorporated area.  SCAG 
consults with local governments within the region, including the Western Riverside Council of 
Governments (WRCOG) which represents Western Riverside County, to develop the projections.  
SCAG adopted the 2012-2040 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Community Strategy 
(RTP/SCS) in 2016.  The 2016 RTP/SCS forms the basis of the SCAG projections; EPS 
extrapolated an annual growth rate from the SCAG projections and, assuming consistent 
development trends through 2050, applied the rate in order to estimate development projections 
through 2050.   


SCAG forecasts for the future, on an annualized basis, were compared with the MSHCP’s original 
forecast along with historical information (when available) as described further below: 


• Residential Development Forecast.  Figure 7 shows, for Western Riverside County, the 
annual residential unit count for SCAG projections through 2050, MSHCP projections through 
2029, and residential units produced in Western Riverside County between 2005 and 2019.  
As shown, the SCAG projections suggest about 8,750 units each.  This is similar to the 
average annual historic pace of growth between 2005 and 2019 of about 9,260 units, but 
well below the original MSHCP projections of about 13,400 units each year.  Based on the 
similarity between the historical average and the SCAG forecast, the SCAG forecast is 
considered a reasonable basis for determining the future pace of residential development and 
associated residential land development (based on assumed densities of development).  


• Commercial Development Forecast.  The SCAG jobs forecast of about 15,000 jobs each 
year was converted into an annual gross amount of commercial/industrial development using 
the employment density and FAR assumptions used in the most recent Transportation 
Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) update documents.  As shown in Figure 8, this results in a 
forecast of about 690 acres of commercial/industrial land development each year 
(representing an overall average of about 21 jobs per acre of development), considerably 
above the original MSHCP projections of about 370 acres each year.  The higher SCAG 
number, however, appears reasonable given recent and ongoing trends in Western Riverside 
County where substantial amounts of new logistics/distribution development have occurred 
covering substantial land areas and, as such, is considered reasonable as the basis of the 
future forecast of commercial/industrial land development.   


 


21 Federal law requires that an urbanized area with a population of at least 50,000 be guided by a 
regional entity known as an MPO.  California’s Senate Bill 375 expands the role of the State’s 18 MPOs 
to include regional plans that help the State reach its greenhouse gas reduction targets by 
encouraging compact development and new development near public transit.   







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 27 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Figure 7 New Housing Units per Year, SCAG and MSHCP Projections and Historic 
Production (2005-2019) 


SCAG (2012-2040) and MSHCP Projections (2004-2029) and Historic Production (2005-2019) 


 


Figure 8 Newly Developed Commercial Acres per Year 


SCAG (2012-2040) and MSHCP Projections  


 


Note: SCAG job projections converted into acres by EPS 


8,747 


13,440 


9,262 


 -


 2,000


 4,000


 6,000


 8,000


 10,000


 12,000


 14,000


 16,000


SCAG MSHCP Historic


693


371


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


SCAG MSHCP







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 28 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Forecasts for Fee Calculation  


For this fee program update, the SCAG projections are considered a reasonable basis for 
forecasting future land development. Because all new development is expected to pay the 
mitigation fee, all of the forecasted household and job growth is converted into a land 
development forecast that is, in turn, used to calculate the mitigation fees.  Table 9 shows 
SCAG’s overall projections for households and employment in Western Riverside County between 
2012 and 2050, and Table 10 shows the implied average annual land development rates, and, 
in turn, the overall level of residential and commercial/industrial land development that would be 
expected to occur through the end of the land acquisition period for each of the extension 
scenarios.22  As shown, all scenarios assume an overall average annual land development of 
2,252 acres each year, including 693 acres in commercial/industrial land development and 1,558 
acres in annual residential land development.23      


• Baseline/No Extension Scenario.  Under the no extension scenario, a total of 20,265 
acres of land development is expected to occur during the remaining Plan implementation 
period of nine (9) years and would pay the mitigation fees.   


• 5-Year Extension.  Under the 5-year extension to the acquisition period, a total of 31,523 
acres of land development is expected to occur during the remaining Plan implementation 
period of 14 years and would pay the mitigation fees. 


• 10-Year Extension.  Under the 10-year extension to the acquisition period, a total of 
42,782 acres of land development is expected to occur during the remaining Plan 
implementation period of 19 years and would pay the mitigation fees.   


• 15-Year Extension.  Under the 15-year extension to the acquisition period, a total of 
54,040 acres of land development is expected to occur during the remaining Plan 
implementation period of 24 years and would pay the mitigation fees.   


 


22 Under the MSHCP, all new development is required to pay the mitigation fee and contribute to 
funding the implementation of the MSHCP except where specifically exempted in the Ordinance. 
23 The 1,558 acres of residential land development was derived based on the forecasted 8,747 
residential units each year and assumptions concerning distribution by density category and an 
average density level.  More specifically, consistent with the recent TUMF analysis assumptions, 
70 percent of new residential units are assumed to be in the low density category (less than 8 units 
per acre) with an average of 4.5 units/acre, 20 percent are assumed to be the medium density 
category (8 to 16 units per acre) with an average of 10.8 units/acre, and 10 percent are assumed to 
be the high density category (over 16 units per acre) with an average of 24.4 units/acre.  The unit per 
acre factors are consistent with those indicated in the Original Nexus Study.  The overall implied 
average residential density is 5.6 units/gross acre. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 29 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 9 Projected Growth in Western Riverside County, through 2050 


 


 


  


SCAG 


Households Employment


2012 530,970 463,833


2040 Projection 775,882 869,792


2050 Projection (1) 863,350 1,014,777


New Households/Jobs Expected by 2050 332,380 550,944


Average Annual 8,747 14,499


Western Riverside MSHCP Plan Area


(1) SCAG projections forecast growth through 2040. EPS assumes the annual growth rate from 


2012 to 2040 remains constant through 2050 and applies the rate to an additional 10 years in 


order to project growth through 2050.


Sources:  Southern California Association of Governments; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 30 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 10 Projected Developed Acres in Western Riverside County, by Extension 
Scenario 


 


 


Proportionate Share 2020-2028
1


78,722 Households 130,487 Jobs


New Development to Acres
2


Acres of New Development Through 2028 14,026 Acres 6,239 Acres 20,265 Acres


Acres per Year 1,558 Acres 693 Acres 2,252 Acres


Proportionate Share 2020-2034
1


122,456 Households 202,979 Jobs


New Development to Acres
2


Acres of New Development Through 2034 21,818 Acres 9,705 Acres 31,523 Acres


Acres per Year 1,558 Acres 693 Acres 2,252 Acres


Proportionate Share 2020-2038
1


166,190 Households 275,472 Jobs


New Development to Acres
2


Acres of New Development Through 2038 29,611 Acres 13,171 Acres 42,782 Acres


Acres per Year 1,558 Acres 693 Acres 2,252 Acres


Proportionate Share 2020-2043
1


209,924 Households 347,965 Jobs


New Development to Acres
2


Acres of New Development Through 2043 37,403 Acres 16,637 Acres 54,040 Acres


Acres per Year 1,558 Acres 693 Acres 2,252 Acres


Sources: California Department of Finance; US Census Bureau; Southern California Association of Governments; Economic & 


Planning Systems, Inc.


Western Riverside MSHCP Plan Area


5 Year Extension


10 Year Extension


15 Year Extension


(1) SCAG forecasts from the 2016 Report have been used for all cities in Western Riverside County.  The projections for the entire 


unincorporated area in Riverside have been split into just the Western part of the County through a review of WRCOG's recent 


proportion of unincorporated growth, compared to the whole County. 


(2) Conversion from household projections to residential acres of developed land is based on expected development mix and 


average residential density by land use type, with an average residential density of 5.6 DUAC. Similarly, conversion from job 


projections to nonresidential acres of developed land is based on distribution of jobs by workspace type and average employment 


density by land use type, with an average nonresidential density of 21 jobs per land acre. Residential density assumptions are 


based on data from the Census and California Department of Finance; Employment density assumptions are based on SCAG 


data.


Total


No Extension


Residential Non Residential
SCAG 







 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 31 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


5. MSHCP IMPLEMENTATION COSTS  


This chapter describes the analysis and assumptions that underpin the estimation of the total 
remaining MSHCP implementation costs in 2019 dollars.  Key cost factors evaluated include land 
costs, management and monitoring costs, administration and professional services costs, and 
endowment costs.  Together these cost components form the total MSHCP implementation costs.  
Because the duration allowed for land acquisition and endowment establishment affect several of 
these cost items, distinct total implementation cost estimates are provided for all scenarios 
(i.e., Baseline/ No Extension and the three extension scenarios).  


L a nd  Co st s  


Planning-level estimates of the per acre values associated with potential Additional Reserve Land 
(ARL) acquisitions are a critical input into the estimation of total land acquisition costs associated 
with Plan implementation.  Land acquisition costs represented the majority of the original 
estimates of MSHCP implementation costs.  This chapter provides planning-level estimates of per 
acre land conservation costs in 2019-dollar terms based on available information.  In 
combination with assumptions concerning the characteristics of the Additional Reserve Lands to 
be acquired and potential levels of dedication, the per acre land value estimates drive the 
estimate of overall land acquisition costs. 


Actual per acre habitat conservation costs may vary from the average planning-level estimates 
presented in this chapter for a number of reasons, including differences in the specific 
characteristics of the actual parcels acquired as well as fluctuations in economic, real estate, and 
land market conditions over time.  Individual transactions will require appraisals to establish 
their value at the time of acquisition based on parcel characteristics and pertinent market 
conditions at the time of appraisal.  Over time, per acre and overall cost estimates typically 
change for a number of reasons as discussed further in Chapter 9. 


MSHCP/Original Nexus Study 


The initial adoption of the mitigation fees was based on a nexus study completed in July 2003 
that included a land valuation analysis that was completed in December 2002.  The land 
valuation analysis assumed the acquisition of vacant and unentitled lands in the Criteria Cells.  
The land value analysis provided planning-level estimates of per acre land values by grouped 
land use designation and by Area Plan.  Planning-level land value estimates were based on sales 
comparables.  The land value estimates indicated per acre land values that were primarily driven 
by differentiation in land use category.  The land use designation categories represent groupings 
of the broad number of land use designations present in the Study Area.  Table 11 summarizes 
the per-acre land value ranges and resulting averages.  Based on this analysis, an overall 
weighted average of $13,100 per acre was applied in the MSHCP financial sections in the Original 
Nexus Study.  







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 32 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 11 Per-Acre Land Value Estimates—2003 Dollars (2003 Nexus Study) 


Land Use Designation Value Range Resulting Average * 


Open Space $2,500 to $10,000 per acre $ 8,000 per acre 


Rural/Agricultural $5,000 to $25,000 per acre $11,000 per acre 


Community Development $20,000 to $80,000 per acre $45,000 per acre 


Overall (1) $2,500 to $80,000 per acre Varied (1) 


* Per acre values rounded to the nearest 1,000. 
(1) Reported overall average land value per acre depends on mix of land types.  Number varies by 
documents, though $13,100 per acre was overall value applied in the MSHCP financing sections.   


Source: Original 2003 Nexus Study 


RCA Experience to Date 


Table 12 summarizes average RCA land acquisition costs to date.  Including land purchased 
shortly before the MSHCP was adopted through the end of 2018, costs for Local Permittee land 
acquisitions summed to $352.5 million in nominal dollar terms, an average of $9,400 per acre.  
However, for the year 2018, about 2,100 acres were acquired at the higher average per acre 
cost of $13,200 per acre.   


Table 12 Local Conservation Costs Through 2018 


Item Pre-MSHCP 
through 2018 


2018 


Total Acres Acquired (1) 37,547 2,066 
Total Cost (millions) $352.5 $27.4 
Cost per Acre (Nominal $s)  $9,400 $13,200 


(1) Includes all acres purchased; does not include acres conserved via easement. 


Sources: Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority MSHCP Annual Report 2018; 
Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 


To date, the overall historical level of per acre land acquisition expenditures is well below the 
original 2004 per acre land value estimates.  The cost of RCA acquisitions during this timeframe 
were kept relatively low by concentrating more on lower cost parcels (larger parcels in remote 
areas with limited development potential).  In 2018, as in the future, the average cost per acre 
is expected to be higher than this historical average due to the characteristics of land still 
needing to be acquired. 


New Land Value Analysis and Conclusions 


New 2019 per acre land value estimates were developed based on recent historical transactions 
as reported in the sales comparables sections of appraisals conducted for RCA acquisitions.  This 
data set provided a substantial inventory of over 150 land sales between 2012 and 2017 that 
supported conclusions concerning per acre land values by key land value characteristic.   







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 33 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Similar to the Original Nexus Study, land values were determined to be substantially affected by 
land use designation and by parcel size.  Land values were developed for twelve different value 
categories based on combinations of three land use designations and four different size ranges.   


Based on the land valuation data and detailed GIS analysis by RCA staff, parcels were divided 
into three groups of development potential based on their land use designation:24 


• Open Space.  Low development potential land use designations included open space, rural 
mountainous, and rural residential. 


• Rural.  Medium development potential land use designations include agriculture and rural 
communities land use designations. 


• Community Development.  High development potential land use designations include all 
community development designations, including residential, non-residential, and other 
community development designations. 


In addition to these three land use designation groupings reflecting different levels of 
development potential, parcels were also divided by parcel size.  The land value information 
indicated a per acre value distinction between the following parcels sizes: 


• Parcels less than 5 acres. 
• Parcels between 5 and 20 acres. 
• Parcels between 20 and 80 acers. 
• Parcels over 80 acres. 


Based on the analysis of the sales comparables, Table 13 shows the planning level per acre land 
value by land use designation grouping/size range in 2017 dollars. 


Table 13 Planning Level Per Acre Land Value Estimates by Category 


 


 


24 RCA staff developed a consistent set of land use designation categories across different jurisdictions 
in the Study Area for the purposes of this study.  These formed the basis of the development potential 
categories.   


Land Use Designation


Less than 5 


Acres
5 - 19.99 Acres 20 - 79.99 Acres 80 + Acres


Open Space $11,761 $5,091 $3,949 $1,866


Rural $33,363 $11,553 $8,337 $5,531


Community Development $177,414 $76,050 $72,369 $24,335


Sources: Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


Per Acre Land Value ($ / Acre)
1


1. Most land sale comparables used for pricing are from 2013 to 2017 and were converted to 2017 dollars using BLS 


CPI adjustments for the Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County area.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 34 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


The average land value per acre for future RCA acquisitions is dependent on the different land 
values per acre as well as the expected distribution of future acquisitions.  The actual land to be 
acquired is uncertain and is dependent on the availability of land through willing sellers.  
However, based on the conservation needs by Area Plan, the suitable land available for 
protection, as well as the specific linkages that must be created between the core reserve areas, 
RCA staff provided sufficient information for EPS to develop a general expression of parcels by 
characteristic to support the land value analysis.  An illustration of the expected distribution of 
acres by land use designation and size range is provided in Table 14.   


Table 14 Illustrative Distribution of Land Acquisitions by Land Use and Size 


 


Applying the per acre land values in Table 13 to the illustrative land conservation distribution in 
Table 14 provides an estimate of the aggregate land value, supporting the estimate of the 
average planning level land value per acre in 2017-dollar terms (see Table 15).   


Table 15 Aggregate Land Value of Remaining Areas (2017 dollars)  


 


  


Land Use Designation


Less than 5 


Acres
5 - 19.99 Acres 20 - 79.99 Acres 80 + Acres


Open Space 535 1,531 3,626 4,654 10,346


Rural 1,901 17,241 26,802 29,428 75,371


Community Development 638 1,707 3,613 4,384 10,342


Total Purchases by Acreage 3,074 20,479 34,041 38,466 96,059


1. Conservation scenario analysis was conducted in 2017 so overall acres acquired more than those required as of end of 2019.


Sources: RCA; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


Total
Conservation Scenario (Acres) (1)


Land Use Designation


Less than 5 


Acres
5 - 19.99 Acres 20 - 79.99 Acres 80 + Acres


Open Space $6,292,633 $7,795,633 $14,319,467 $8,682,942 $37,090,674
Rural $63,411,345 $199,183,566 $223,437,526 $162,777,034 $648,809,470
Community Development $113,198,910 $129,817,405 $261,456,200 $106,682,740 $611,155,254


Total Cost of Purchases $182,902,887 $336,796,603 $499,213,192 $278,142,716 $1,297,055,399
% of Total 14% 26% 38% 21% 100%


1. This table is the average land value per acre multiplied by the Conservation Scenario. See Table E-1 and E-2.


Sources: RCA; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


Total
Land Comparables by Acres







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 35 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


As shown in Table 15, the aggregate land value of the approximately 96,000 acres remaining to 
be protected as part of the MSHCP as of 2017 is estimated at about $1.3 billion in 2017 dollars.  
This represents an average land value of about $13,500 per acre.  To convert this land value into 
2019 dollars terms (similar to the rest of the analysis), EPS indexed the value to about $14,300 
per acre in 2019-dollar terms.25   


Ot her  Co s t s—A dm in i s t ra t ion ,  Ma nagem ent ,  a nd  
M o n i to r ing  


Program administration, reserve management, and reserve monitoring are required functions 
that require annual funding.  The forecasts for each of these cost categories are described below.   


Administration and Professional Service Costs 


The Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority is responsible for implementing 
the MSHCP.  Since 2004, RCA staff members have directed the acquisition, management, and 
monitoring of the local portion of the Additional Reserve Land (ARL) required by the MSHCP, 
monitored State and federal Public/Quasi-Public lands and the State and federal portions of the 
ARL, and undertook all of the administrative tasks associated with maintaining the permit.   


Costs categorized in this fee study under MSHCP administration include all RCA staff costs and 
other costs like building rents and average expenditures on non-acquisition related professional 
services that are not anticipated to vary as the size of the ARL increases.  The forecast for the 
acquisition period assumes that these costs will remain at approximately $4.2 million in constant 
2019 dollars, increasing with inflation but not increasing as the size of the ARL grows (see Table 
16).  This includes salaries and benefits of about $2.3 million annually and about $1.5 million in 
professional services, supplies, and other costs.  


 


25 Two years of inflation (2017 – 2019) based on by BLS CPI adjustment for Riverside-San 
Bernardino-Ontario Metro Area. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 36 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 16 Administrative and Professional Services Costs 


 


Management and Monitoring 


Reserve Management 


The MSHCP describes reserve management activities focused on maintaining and improving 
habitat conditions and ecosystem functions including habitat and landscape-based activities and 
species-specific activities.  For the purposes of this analysis, the average per acre cost estimate 
for Reserve Management as reported in the RCA actual spending for FY 2018-19 has been used 
to inform cost projections through the full acquisition period.  Because RCA staff and relevant 
contractors have indicated that the current spending on staff capacity is not adequate to 
accomplish necessary management with existing land holdings, additional staffing and associated 
expenditures have been added to the current reserve management expenditures.  Specifically, 
three new full time equivalent (FTE) positions are added to the current 2019 spending for 
reserve management.  Overall, the 2019 per acre reserve management cost of $25.39 per acre 
was adjusted to $32.70 per acre (2019 dollars) to account for three new mid-level park ranger 
FTEs.  While as of the end of 2019 about 40,200 acres were under management, ultimately, 
reserve management activities will cover the entire 97,000 acres to be acquired by the RCA.    


Biological Monitoring  


The purpose of biological monitoring is to provide Reserve Managers with information and data 
upon which reserve management decisions will be made.  According to the MSHCP, the 
monitoring program must provide “sufficient, scientifically reliable data for Reserve Managers to 
assess the MSHCP’s effectiveness at meeting resource objectives and achieving or maintaining a 


Expenditures


RCA FY16/17- 18/19 


3-Year Average of 


Actuals


 CPI Adjusted to 


2019$
1


Total Salaries and Employee Benefits $2,219,261 $2,288,495


Professional Services and Supplies


Environmental


Legal $394,320 $406,621


Auditing, Accounting & Financial Services $101,717 $104,891


GIS Services $10,000 $10,312


Personnel Services $13,920 $14,354


Real Estate Services $653,774 $674,169


Other Services $247,979 $255,715


Subtotal $1,421,710 $1,466,062


Other Charges $388,145 $400,254


Total $4,029,116 $4,154,811


Sources: Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority; Bureau of Labor Statistics; 


(1) Three year average CPI-adjusted by one year, the average of the annual CPI adjustments for the 


three years.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 37 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


healthy MSHCP Conservation Area in perpetuity.”  Unlike the RCA’s reserve management 
activities which are limited to local ARL acres, the RCA will ultimately be responsible for 
monitoring all 500,000 acres of the reserve lands mandated under the MSHCP.  The acreage 
currently being monitored totals roughly 408,000 acres.  For the purposes of this analysis, the 
$1.1 million annual cost estimate based on FY 2018-19 actual spending was used to inform cost 
projections through the full acquisition period. Because current staff capacity is not adequate to 
accomplish necessary biological monitoring with existing land holdings, to address the additional 
land acquisitions, two new full time equivalent (FTE) positions are added to the current 2019 
spending for reserve monitoring. The 2019 per acre reserve monitoring cost of $2.67 was 
adjusted to $3.01 (2019 dollars) to account for two new entry-level biologist FTEs. (see Table 
17).  This constant dollar per acre cost was assumed to apply throughout the period of 
implementation.   


Reserve Management and Biological Monitoring Costs  


Table 17 summarizes estimated per acre costs for reserve management and monitoring in 2019 
dollars.  Applying these per acre costs (in 2019 dollars) to current acreage under management 
and monitoring projects results in annual costs of $1.32 million and $1.23 million, respectively. 
The annual reserve management and biological monitoring costs increase as new acquisitions 
occur.   







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 38 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 17 Management and Monitoring Anticipated Costs in  
2004 and 2019 Dollars  


 


 


Endowm ent  Fund ing  


The overall permit period was set at 75 years, ending in 2079. To cover ongoing management 
and monitoring costs beyond the duration when mitigation fees will be collected, the 
establishment of a non-depleting endowment is required.  In other words, the endowment must 
be sufficient such that expected average interest revenues (after inflation and transaction costs) 
can cover the ongoing costs associated with administration, management and monitoring in 
perpetuity.  This section summarizes the estimated cost of establishing this endowment under 
the different scenarios.  A key assumption is that the endowment must be fully established by 


Reserve Management
1


Acres under Management 40,212


Existing Reserve Management Expenses $1,021,000


Additional Staff Capacity Required
3


$294,000


Total Reserve Management Expenses $1,315,000


$/Acre $32.70


$/Acre without additional staff capacity $25.39


Biological Monitoring
2


Acres being Monitored 408,820


Existing Biological Monitoring Expenses $1,092,000


Additional Staff Capacity Required
3


$140,000


Total Biological Monitoring Expenses $1,232,000


$/Acre $3.01


$/Acre without additional staff capacity $2.67


Item
Actual FY 2019 


Spending


3. Current staff capacity is not sufficient to accomplish necessary management 


and monitoring. An Expanded staff capacity scenario envisions adding 3 FTE mid-


level park rangers to Reserve Management and 2 FTE entry-level biologists to 


Reserve Monitoring, with salaries and benfits of $98,000 and $70,000 


ti l


Sources: Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority; and 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


1. Reserve Management costs include Parks & Open Space contract fees, 


maintenance of motor vehicles, and HOA dues.


2. Biological Monitoring costs include SAWA contract fees, office and computer 


supplies, training, private mileage reimbursement, building rent, and rental 


vehicles/fuel.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 39 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


the end of the land acquisition period as it is assumed that no more mitigation fees will be 
collected at that time.26 


For the purposes of this analysis, we have assumed that habitat management and habitat 
monitoring costs continue in full, while administration costs are reduced by half following the end 
of the land acquisition period. All of these costs then continue in perpetuity.  As a result and as 
shown in Table 18, the endowment is sized to cover the expected annual management and 
monitoring costs and 50 percent of the administration costs, totaling $6.8 million (2019 dollars) 
once all lands have been acquired.  


Table 18 Annual Implementation Cost Estimate (2019$)  


 


Consistent with many regional habitat conservations plans, the average annual net, real 
(allowing for inflation and institutional fees) interest rate is assumed to be three (3) percent.27  
Under all extension scenarios, the total required endowment funding is $225.2 million.  Because 
the longer extension periods provide more time for the accrual of interest revenues, the net 
endowment cost (that must be funded by mitigation fees) is different for each scenario. Table 
19 shows the consistent total endowment funding required by scenario as well as the different 
levels of aggregate endowment interest and associated net endowment funding requirement. For 
a detailed time-series accounting of endowment funding by extension scenario, see 
Appendix II.  


 


26 It is important to note that the RCA has collected a distinct set of endowment funds for situations 
where specific conservation activities are required over-and-above the core activities covered by this 
endowment calculation.  
27 This assumes that the implementing entity can use investment vehicles that may be not be typical 
for Riverside County. 


Annual Cost 


Cost Categories


by Last Year of 


Land Acquisition 


Period


Adjustment


Ongoing Habitat Management $3,172,063 100% $3,172,063


Ongoing Habitat Monitoring $1,506,776 100% $1,506,776


Administration
1


$4,154,811 50% $2,077,406


Total $8,833,650 $6,756,244


1. Adminsitration includes salaries and benefits, accounting, auditing and reporting, contracts, etc.. Assumes less 


administration is needed following the land acquisition period; ongoing adminsitrative needs include oversight, auditing 


and reporting, and board staffing.


Sources: Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority; and Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


Annual Post-Land 


Acquisition Cost







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 40 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 19 Endowment Funding (2019$), by Extension Scenario 


 


Tot a l  Im p lement at io n  Co sts  


Implementation costs include land costs, administrative and professional services expenses, 
management and monitoring costs, and the required net endowment funding.  The remaining 
MSHCP implementation costs, as described in detail in the preceding sections, are all estimated 
in 2019 constant dollar terms.  Under the Baseline/ No Extension scenario, as shown in Figure 
9, the $702 million in estimated land acquisition costs make up 72 percent of the total 
implementation cost of $974 million.  Administrative costs total about 4 percent of total costs, 
management and monitoring sum to 3 percent of total implementation costs, and the 
endowment constitutes 21 percent of total costs.  


Figure 9 Comparison of Costs by Category 


 


Total implementation costs vary by extension scenario.  Land acquisition costs are the same for 
all scenarios.  Administrative, management and monitoring costs increase the longer the 
acquisition period is extended, but the endowment funding required decreases the longer the 


No Extension


5-Year 


Extension


10-Year 


Extension


15-Year 


Extension


Total Endowment Funding Required $225,208,133 $225,208,133 $225,208,133 $225,208,133


(Less) Endowment Interest ($25,695,187) ($40,679,628) ($54,846,349) ($68,206,990)


Net Endowment Funding Required $199,512,947 $184,528,506 $170,361,785 $157,001,144


Item


Sources: Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority; and Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


Land Acqusition
72%


M&M
3%


RCA Staff
2%


Prof Svcs+Misc
2%


Endowment
21%







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 41 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


acquisition period is extended. As shown in Table 20, total implementation costs range from 
$890 million to $967 million depending on the extension period. Although total costs over time 
increase with longer extension periods the per-year implementation costs decrease with longer 
extension periods, as shown in Table 21. For a detailed time-series of all implementation costs 
excepting the endowment, see Appendix I. 


Table 20 Total Implementation Costs (2019$*), by Extension Scenario 


 


* All costs are provided in constant 2019 dollar terms.  Costs will change over time due to inflation and other 
factors.  These changes will be addressed through the fee indexing/ updating process that will include automatic 
inflation-indexed fee changes annually based on the regional Consumer Price Index and periodic comprehensive 
updates to the Nexus Study. 


Total for Total for Total for Total for


2020 - 2028 2020 - 2033 2020 - 2038 2020 - 2043


No Extension 5-Yr Extension 10-Yr Extension 15-Yr Extension


Land
 1


$701,931,902 $701,931,902 $701,931,902 $701,931,902


Management & Monitoring $33,582,193 $51,646,790 $69,711,387 $87,775,983


RCA Staff 
2


$20,596,453 $32,038,927 $43,481,401 $54,923,875


Professional Services and Supplies 
2


$13,194,561 $20,524,873 $27,855,185 $35,185,497


Loan Repayment 
3


$2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000


Other Costs 
2 4


$3,602,285 $5,603,554 $7,604,824 $9,606,093


Net Endowment Funding Required $199,512,947 $184,528,506 $170,361,785 $157,001,144


  Total Costs $974,420,341 $998,274,552 $1,022,946,483 $1,048,424,494


Sources: Western Riverside County RCA; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


Local Permittee MSHCP 


Implementation Costs


1. Land value estimates at $14,288 per acre in 2019 dollar terms.


2. RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 


dollars.


3. RCA has “Other Long Term Obligations” totaling $5 million, which was a loan received from the County in FY 2012/13 and is now 


payable in increments of $1 million starting in FY 2018.  


4. Includes rents and all other miscellaneous expenses.


NOTE: In some cases numbers may not perfectly sum due to rounding.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 42 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 21 Average Annual Implementation Costs (2019$), by Extension Scenario 


 


 


2020 - 2028 2020 - 2033 2020 - 2038 2020 - 2043


No Extension 5-Yr Extension 10-Yr Extension 15-Yr Extension


Land
 1


$77,992,434 $50,137,993 $36,943,784 $29,247,163


Management & Monitoring $3,731,355 $3,689,056 $3,669,020 $3,657,333


RCA Staff 
2


$2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495


Professional Services and Supplies 
2


$1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062


Loan Repayment 
3


$222,222 $142,857 $105,263 $83,333


Other Costs 
2 4


$400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254


Net Endowment Funding Required $22,168,105 $13,180,608 $8,966,410 $6,541,714


  Total Costs $108,268,927 $71,305,325 $53,839,289 $43,684,354


3. RCA has “Other Long Term Obligations” totaling $5 million, which was a loan received from the County in FY 2012/13 and is now 


payable in increments of $1 million starting in FY 2018.  


4. Includes rents and all other miscellaneous expenses.


Average Annual
Local Permittee MSHCP 


Implementation Costs


Sources: Western Riverside County RCA; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


1. Land value estimates at $14,288 per acre in 2019 dollar terms.


2. RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 


dollars.


NOTE: In some cases numbers may not perfectly sum due to rounding.







 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 43 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


6. RCA NON-FEE REVENUES 


M SH CP Fo r ec as t  o f  No n-Fee  Revenues  


The MSHCP forecast an array of revenue sources, in addition to fee revenue, supporting the 
conservation program.  These sources were anticipated to total about 44 percent of the revenue 
for the program, including: 


• Transportation funding – includes the Measure A sales tax which is authorized through 
2039 and other transportation funding sources such as the Transportation Uniform Mitigation 
Fees (TUMF) charged on new development.  Note that the MSHCP envisioned up to $121 
million of Measure A money to the HCP.  


• Other infrastructure projects – funding from this source was not quantified in the MSHCP 
but reflected the expectation that local public construction projects such as schools, 
administrative facilities, libraries, jails, and other projects like flood control and utility 
projects would mitigate the construction through the payment of a per-acre fee.28  Since 
MSHCP adoption, the standard contribution has been three to five percent of total project 
costs.   


• Landfill contributions – Landfill tipping fees have been used in the County since the 1990 
for conservation programs.  Under county permitting of landfills, the County has committed 
to divert portions of tipping fees to MSHCP implementation.   


Table 22 and Figure 10 summarizes the revenue forecasts under the MSHCP.  Including the fee 
revenues, these sources totaled $1.07 billion or an estimated average almost $43 million per 
year for 25-years (in 2004 dollars).  Excluding fee revenues, a total of $18.84 million in annual 
revenues were forecast, including Measure A funding, $10 million each year from other 
transportation projects, and $4.0 million from land fill contributions.   


As described further below, at this point, the average annual funding from non-fee revenues 
sources are well below the MSCHP forecast.  Measure A, a voter-approved ½ cent sales tax 
measure did provide substantial funding as envisioned (though is now fully used/ allocated) and, 
collectively, the other non-fee funding sources are well beyond what was originally envisioned.    


 


28 See Chapter 8.5.1 Funding Sources in the MSHCP.  







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 44 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 22 2004 MSHCP Anticipated Funding Sources  


  


 


Figure 10 2004 MSHCP Anticipated Funding Sources  


 


N ew For eca s t  o f  N o n-Fee  Revenues  


Non-fee revenues to the RCA are projected to be $6.85 million annually in 2019 dollars.  This 
estimate was derived from a line by line review of the major revenue items for a 3-year period 
from FY 2016-17 to FY 2018-19, projections by collection entities (e.g., TUMF revenue), and 
recent dynamics likely to affect the revenue source (e.g., greater diversion of trash to recycling 


MSHCP Anticipated Funding Source


Estimate 


(millions)


% of 


Total


Avg/Yr (millions over 25 


years)


Fee Funded Sources:


Cities and County Development Mitigation Fees $539.6 50% $21,584,000


Density Bonus Fees $66.0 6% $2,640,000


Non-Fee Funded Sources $605.6 $24,224,000.0


Public Funding Sources


Local Roads (Measure A) $121.0 11% $4,840,000


Other Transportation $250.0 23% $10,000,000


Other infrastructure Projects unknown 0% $0


El Sobrante Landfill $90.0 8% $3,600,000


County Landfills $10.0 1% $400,000


Eagle Mountain Landfill unknown 0% $0


New Regional funding unknown 0% $0


Non-Fee Funded Sources $471.0 $18,840,000


Total, Local Funds $1,076.6 100% $43,064,000


Fee funded
56%


Local Roads
11%


Other 
Transportation


23%


El Sobrante/Other 
County Landfills


10%


Non-Fee Funded 
44%







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 45 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


will likely reduce tipping fees). The estimates have been inflated from a three-year average to 
2019 dollars, as detailed in Table 23.   


Table 23 Annual Non-Fee Revenue Projection (2019$s) 


 


 


Non-Fee Revenue Item 


RCA FY16/17- 18/19 


3-Year Average of 


Actuals


 CPI Adjusted to 


2019$


Transportation Mitigation
1


TUMF Revenue-Developer Fees $950,000 $979,637


Subtotal $950,000 $979,637


Tipping Fee $3,865,728 $3,986,326


Public Project Mitigation


PSE Mitigation Fee
2 NA $500,000


Other Gov MSHCP Infrastructure $284,570 $293,448


Other Gov MSHCP Civic Projects $93,629 $96,550


Flood Control District $293,084 $302,227


Subtotal $671,283 $1,192,225


Other Revenue


Interest and Other Sources $467,073 $481,644


Rents $80,531 $83,043


Joint Project Review Fees $124,762 $128,654


Subtotal $672,365 $693,341


Total Revenue NA $6,851,529


1. All Measure A funding was provided prior to 2020 and the associated obligations have 


been met. 


2. Participating Special Entities fees. This does not include Developer Mitigation Fees. 


These fees vary widely year over year, $500,000 is used as an annual average per the 


recommendation of RCA staff.


Sources: Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority; Economic & 


Planning Systems, Inc.







 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 46 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


7. MITIGATION FEE CALCULATION 


The revised Local Development Mitigation Fee is based on a generally similar methodology to the 
Original Nexus Study that ensures the fee level is proportional to the development impact.  This 
methodology looks at the remaining conservation requirements associated with Local Permittee 
obligations under the MSHCP and associated Incidental Take Permit and Implementing 
Agreement, determines the remaining Local Permittee implementation cost, subtracts out 
reasonable estimates of non-fee revenues and other contributions, to determine the overall fee-
funding obligation.  This obligation is then divided among the new development forecast to 
determine the required mitigation fee.  In others words, the original 2003 and updated 2020 
Local Development Mitigation Fee estimates are the outcome of the following formula (the 2003 
and 2020 Nexus Studies differ in their process of allocating funding required between land uses): 


1. Implementation Costs 
minus 


2. Non-Fee Funding 
equals 


3. Outstanding Funding Required 
divided by 


4. Development Forecast 
equals 


5. Local Development Mitigation Fee Schedule 


Table 24 summarizes the estimated Net Implementation Costs, Expected Acres of Development, 
and the associated per gross acre mitigation fee.  As shown, the average mitigation fee per gross 
acre decreases with each extension as similar levels of net implementation costs are spread 
across more development.  Tables 25 through 28 provide the detailed calculations that 
determine the total net MSHCP implementation costs shown in Table 24.  As noted in 
Chapter 1, for residential development, the per-gross-acre fee is translated into a per-unit fee 
schedule for administrative continuity.   







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 47 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 24 MSHCP Implementation Costs and Per Acre Mitigation Fees 


 


Fee Per Acre No Extension


5-Year 


Extension


10-Year 


Extension


15-Year 


Extension


Net Cost $912,756,583 $902,353,150 $892,767,438 $883,987,805


Acres of Development


Residential 14,026 21,818 29,611 37,403


Nonresidential 6,239 9,705 13,171 16,637


Total 20,265 31,523 42,782 54,040


Mitigation Fee per Acre $45,041 $28,625 $20,868 $16,358


Sources:  Southern California Association of Governments; Western Riverside County RCA; Economic & Planning 


Systems, Inc.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 48 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 25 Recommended Fee Level—No Extension 


 


Total for


2020 - 2029


Item (Years 17 - 25) 9 yrs


Local Permittee Land Requirements


Preservation Requirement 56,788 acres 6,310 acres na


(less) HANS Dedication 10,000 acres 1,111 acres na


  Local Permittee Acquisition 46,788 acres 5,199 acres na


Local Permittee MSHCP Implementation Costs


Land (1) $701,931,902 $77,992,434 72.0%


Management & Monitoring $33,582,193 $3,731,355 3.4%


RCA Staff (2) $20,596,453 $2,288,495 2.1%


Professional Services and Supplies (2) $13,194,561 $1,466,062 1.4%


Loan Repayment (3) $2,000,000 $222,222 0.2%


Other Costs (2) (4) $3,602,285 $400,254 0.4%


Net Endowment Funding Required $199,512,947 $22,168,105 20.5%


Total Costs $974,420,341 $108,268,927 100.0%


Offsetting Revenues (5)


 (exc. Private Development Mitigation)


Public Project Mitigation (6) $10,730,025 $1,192,225 1.4%


Transportation Mitigation (7) $8,816,731 $979,637 1.1%


Tipping Fees $35,876,934 $3,986,326 4.6%


Other Revenues (8) $6,240,068 $693,341 0.8%


Total Selected Revenues $61,663,758 $6,851,529 8.0%


Funding Required from Private Development Mitigation


Net Cost $912,756,583 $101,417,398 93.7%


Mitigation Fee Estimates (per gross acre of development)


Growth Projection:


Development 2020 - 2028 Annual 


Residential Units 79,000 8,778


Residential Acres 14,026 1,558


Non-Residential Acres 6,239 693


Total Acres 20,265 2,252


Mitigation Fee $45,041 per acre


(1) Land value estimates at $14,288 per acre in 2019 dollar terms plus a 5% transaction cost.


(4) Includes rents and all other miscellaneous expenses.


(5) RCA Revenues are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 dollars.


(7) Includes TUMF fees.


(8) Includes interest and other sources, rents, and joint project review fees.


Sources:  MSHCP; RCA; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


% of


Total Cost/


Funding Need


Average


Annual


(6) Includes Flood Control District, PSE mitigation payments, and other government MSHCP infrastructure & civic project revenues.


(3) RCA has “Other Long Term Obligations” totaling $2 million, which was a loan received from the County in FY 2012/13 and is now 


payable in increments of $1 million over the course of two years.


(2) RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 


dollars.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 49 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 26 Recommended Fee Level—5-Year Extension 


 


Total for


2020 - 2034


Item (Years 17 - 30) 14 yrs


Local Permittee Land Requirements


Preservation Requirement 56,788 acres 4,056 acres na


(less) HANS Dedication 10,000 acres 714 acres na


  Local Permittee Acquisition 46,788 acres 3,342 acres na


Local Permittee MSHCP Implementation Costs


Land (1) $701,931,902 $50,137,993 70.3%


Management & Monitoring $51,646,790 $3,689,056 5.2%


RCA Staff (2) $32,038,927 $2,288,495 3.2%


Professional Services and Supplies (2) $20,524,873 $1,466,062 2.1%


Loan Repayment (3) $2,000,000 $142,857 0.2%


Other Costs (2) (4) $5,603,554 $400,254 0.6%


Net Endowment Funding Required $184,528,506 $13,180,608 18.5%


Total Costs $998,274,552 $71,305,325 100.0%


Offsetting Revenues (5)


 (exc. Private Development Mitigation)


Public Project Mitigation (6) $16,691,150 $1,192,225 2.1%


Transportation Mitigation (7) $13,714,915 $979,637 1.7%


Tipping Fees $55,808,564 $3,986,326 6.9%


Other Revenues (8) $9,706,772 $693,341 1.2%


Total Selected Revenues $95,921,402 $6,851,529 11.8%


Funding Required from Private Development Mitigation


Net Cost $902,353,150 $64,453,796 90.4%


Mitigation Fee Estimates (per gross acre of development)


Growth Projection:


Development 2020 - 2033 Annual 


Residential Units (4.2 DU/Acres) 122,456 8,747


Residential Acres 21,818 1,558


Non-Residential Acres 9,705 693


Total Acres 31,523 2,252


Mitigation Fee $28,625 per acre


(1) Land value estimates at $14,288 per acre in 2019 dollar terms plus a 5% transaction cost.


(4) Includes rents and all other miscellaneous expenses.


(5) RCA Revenues are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 dollars.


(7) Includes TUMF fees.


(8) Includes interest and other sources, rents, and joint project review fees.


Sources:  MSHCP; RCA; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


% of


Total Cost/


Funding Need


Average


Annual


(6) Includes Flood Control District, PSE mitigation payments, and other government MSHCP infrastructure & civic project revenues.


(3) RCA has “Other Long Term Obligations” totaling $2 million, which was a loan received from the County in FY 2012/13 and is now 


payable in increments of $1 million over the course of two years.


(2) RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 


dollars.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 50 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 27 Recommended Fee Level—10-Year Extension 


 


Total for


2020 - 2039


Item (Years 17 - 35) 19 yrs


Local Permittee Land Requirements


Preservation Requirement 56,788 acres 2,989 acres na


(less) HANS Dedication 10,000 acres 526 acres na


  Local Permittee Acquisition 46,788 acres 2,463 acres na


Local Permittee MSHCP Implementation Costs


Land (1) $701,931,902 $36,943,784 68.6%


Management & Monitoring $69,711,387 $3,669,020 6.8%


RCA Staff (2) $43,481,401 $2,288,495 4.3%


Professional Services and Supplies (2) $27,855,185 $1,466,062 2.7%


Loan Repayment (3) $2,000,000 $105,263 0.2%


Other Costs (2) (4) $7,604,824 $400,254 0.7%


Net Endowment Funding Required $170,361,785 $8,966,410 16.7%


Total Costs $1,022,946,483 $53,839,289 100.0%


Offsetting Revenues (5)


 (exc. Private Development Mitigation)


Public Project Mitigation (6) $22,652,275 $1,192,225 2.7%


Transportation Mitigation (7) $18,613,099 $979,637 2.2%


Tipping Fees $75,740,195 $3,986,326 8.9%


Other Revenues (8) $13,173,476 $693,341 1.5%


Total Selected Revenues $130,179,045 $6,851,529 15.3%


Funding Required from Private Development Mitigation


Net Cost $892,767,438 $46,987,760 87.3%


Mitigation Fee Estimates (per gross acre of development)


Growth Projection:


Development 2020 - 2038 Annual 


Residential Units (4.2 DU/Acres) 166,000 8,737


Residential Acres 29,611 1,558


Non-Residential Acres 13,171 693


Total Acres 42,782 2,252


Mitigation Fee $20,868 per acre


(1) Land value estimates at $14,288 per acre in 2019 dollar terms plus a 5% transaction cost.


(4) Includes rents and all other miscellaneous expenses.


(5) RCA Revenues are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 dollars.


(7) Includes TUMF fees.


(8) Includes interest and other sources, rents, and joint project review fees.


Sources:  MSHCP; RCA; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


(6) Includes Flood Control District, PSE mitigation payments, and other government MSHCP infrastructure & civic project revenues.


Average


Annual


(2) RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 


dollars.


% of


Total Cost/


Funding Need


(3) RCA has “Other Long Term Obligations” totaling $2 million, which was a loan received from the County in FY 2012/13 and is now 


payable in increments of $1 million over the course of two years.







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 51 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


Table 28 Recommended Fee Level—15-Year Extension 


 


Total for


2020 - 2044


Item (Years 17 - 40) 24 yrs


Local Permittee Land Requirements


Preservation Requirement 56,788 acres 2,366 acres na


(less) HANS Dedication 10,000 acres 417 acres na


  Local Permittee Acquisition 46,788 acres 1,950 acres na


Local Permittee MSHCP Implementation Costs


Land (1) $701,931,902 $29,247,163 67.0%


Management & Monitoring $87,775,983 $3,657,333 8.4%


RCA Staff (2) $54,923,875 $2,288,495 5.2%


Professional Services and Supplies (2) $35,185,497 $1,466,062 3.4%


Loan Repayment (3) $2,000,000 $83,333 0.2%


Other Costs (2) (4) $9,606,093 $400,254 0.9%


Net Endowment Funding Required $157,001,144 $6,541,714 15.0%


Total Costs $1,048,424,494 $43,684,354 100.0%


Offsetting Revenues (5)


 (exc. Private Development Mitigation)


Public Project Mitigation (6) $28,613,400 $1,192,225 3.2%


Transportation Mitigation (7) $23,511,283 $979,637 2.6%


Tipping Fees $95,671,825 $3,986,326 10.7%


Other Revenues (8) $16,640,181 $693,341 1.9%


Total Selected Revenues $164,436,689 $6,851,529 18.4%


Funding Required from Private Development Mitigation


Net Cost $883,987,805 $36,832,825 84.3%


Mitigation Fee Estimates (per gross acre of development)


Growth Projection:


Development 2020 - 2043 Annual 


Residential Units 210,000 8,750


Residential Acres 37,403 1,558


Non-Residential Acres 16,637 693


Total Acres 54,040 2,252


Mitigation Fee $16,358 per acre


(1) Land value estimates at $14,288 per acre in 2019 dollar terms plus a 5% transaction cost.


(4) Includes rents and all other miscellaneous expenses.


(5) RCA Revenues are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 dollars.


(7) Includes TUMF fees.


(8) Includes interest and other sources, rents, and joint project review fees.


Sources:  MSHCP; RCA; Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


(6) Includes Flood Control District, PSE mitigation payments, and other government MSHCP infrastructure & civic project revenues.


(3) RCA has “Other Long Term Obligations” totaling $2 million, which was a loan received from the County in FY 2012/13 and is now 


payable in increments of $1 million over the course of two years.


(2) RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 


dollars.


Average


Annual


% of


Total Cost/


Funding Need







 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 52 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


8. MITIGATION FEE ACT (NEXUS) FINDINGS 


Mitigation fees are utilized in California to finance public facilities necessary to mitigate impacts 
stemming from new development.  In 1987, the California Legislature adopted the Mitigation Fee 
Act to provide a framework for the application and administration of such fees.  Current 
prevailing practice among the majority of approved and permitted regional multiple-species 
Habitat Conservation Plans is that any habitat mitigation fees are to be adopted by the relevant 
jurisdictions (cities and Counties) consistent with the Mitigation Fee Act.29  As discussed further 
in Chapter 9, the adoption of fees under the Mitigation Fee Act includes a number of auditing 
and reporting requirements. 


The Mitigation Fee Act, defined in California Government Code Sections 66000 to 66025, requires 
all public agencies to document five findings when establishing or increasing a fee as a condition 
for new development.  These findings were made when the Western Riverside County MSHCP 
Local Development Mitigation Fees were first justified and established.30   


This Chapter of the Western Riverside Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study was prepared 
to describe how the proposed increase in the Local Development Mitigation Fee satisfies the five 
statutory findings required by the Mitigation Fee Act and is based on the appropriate nexus 
between new development and the imposition of a mitigation fee.  The five statutory findings 
required for the establishment of a mitigation fee are summarized in the sections below and 
supported by the technical analysis in the prior chapters of this Study. 


Pur po se  o f  Fee  


Identify the purpose of the fee. (66001(a)(1)) 


The purpose of the Local Development Mitigation Fee is to contribute to the funding required to 
implement the MSCHP and, as a result, help maintain the incidental take permits for new private 
and public development in Western Riverside County under the federal and State Endangered 
Species Acts. Maintaining the incidental take permit is necessary to allow for future development, 
and without the development community paying for the cost of the MSHCP, individual applicants 
will need to apply independently for development approval under federal and State law if the 
project impacts a threaten or endangered species. The federal Endangered Species Act 
specifically requires that the applicant for incidental take permit “ensure that adequate funding 
for the plan will be provided.”31  In addition, the Local Development Mitigation Fee helps provide 
the regional benefit of streamlined economic development in Western Riverside County as well as 


 


29 In addition to the current Western Riverside County habitat mitigation fee, see also the Coachella 
Valley habitat mitigation fee, the San Joaquin County Multi-Species Habitat Conservation and Open 
Space Fee, and the East Contra Costa County HCP/NCCP mitigation fee.  
30 See the Final Mitigation Nexus Report for the Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat 
Conservation Plan, published July 1, 2003. 
31 See Section 1539(a)(2)Biii of the federal Endangered Species Act. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 53 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


the provision of contiguous open spaces that will serve as a community amenity to residents, 
workers, and visitors.   


Use  o f  Fee  Revenues  


Identify the use to which the fee is to be put.  If the use is financing public facilities, the facilities 
shall be identified.  That identification may, but need not, be made by reference to a capital 
improvement plan as specific in Section 65403 or 66002, may be made in applicable general or 
specific plan requirements, or may be made in other public documents that identify the public 
facilities for which the fee is charged.  (66001(a)(2)). 


The MSHCP is the public document that outlines the actions required as a whole and the 
particular set of actions required by the Local Permittees (and the Regional Conservation Agency 
as their agent) to obtain incidental take permits—associated with State and federal Endangered 
Species Act requirements—for new public and private development in Western Riverside County. 
Failure to meet the requirements of the MSHCP will result in an inability to obtain or maintain 
incidental take permits through the MSHCP, which would require future development to secure 
individual take authorization if the project impacts a threaten or endangered species.   


Revenues from the Local Development Mitigation Fee will be used, in conjunction with other local 
and regional funding sources, to fund the conservation actions identified as the responsibility of 
Local Permittees in the MSHCP.  The revenue from the Local Development Mitigation Fee will be 
used to help fund the appropriate habitat acquisition (land acquisition and associated transaction 
costs), maintenance and monitoring of habitat land (preserve management, monitoring, and 
adaptive management), and program management, administration, and oversight activities and 
costs.32  Chapter 3 of this report describes the Local Permittee conservation requirements, 
progress to date, and the remaining actions required under the MSHCP.  


Re la t io nsh ip  


Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the fee’s use and the type of 
development project on which the fee is imposed.  (66001(a)(3)). 


The implementation of the MSHCP, and the mitigation fee as a fundamental part of it, will benefit 
all new development by mitigating their collective impacts on covered species and associated 
habitat.  All new public and private development in the Plan area will affect habitat and species 
either directly, indirectly, or as a cumulative effect.  New infrastructure development, for 
example, in addition to its direct effects, will support new development on other parcels and 
other locations in the Plan Area.  Similarly, new private development will require new 
infrastructure and also result in additional demand for new developments through linkages—for 


 


32 Consistent with the interpretation applied to the majority of permitted and approved regional, 
multiple-species Habitat Conservation Plans in California and guidance from RCA Counsel, the Local 
Development Mitigation Fee is assumed to fund its proportionate share (as determined by the 
technical analysis and constrained by the statutory requirements) of applicable MSHCP implementation 
costs including, but also limited to, habitat acquisition costs (and associated transaction costs), the 
costs of managing and monitoring the habitat preserves in perpetuity, and the administrative and 
other costs of managing the overall program. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 54 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


example, the need for new housing to accommodate new workers at commercial developments 
or the need for new retail developments to serve new residents at residential developments.  
In other words, all new development in Western Riverside County will benefit from the incidental 
take permits obtained through the MSHCP and via the use of the mitigation fee revenues. 


In addition, the incidental take permits are necessary to permit any future development within 
the Plan Area, and in order to obtain or maintain such incidental take permits, the MSHCP must 
be fully funded.  Because funding the MSHCP is required in order to allow for future development 
under the MSHCP, there is a direct relationship between the proposed use of the mitigation fee 
and development within the Plan Area. 


N eed  


Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the need for the public facility and the 
type of development project on which the fee is imposed.  (66001(a)(4)). 


Without new development, no MSHCP would be necessary and no further habitat conservation 
would be required under the federal and State Endangered Species Acts. To allow for any future 
development under the Plan, the MSHCP must be fully funded. New development in the Plan 
Area, as noted above, will directly, indirectly, or cumulatively affect species and habitat in 
Western Riverside County.  Because of this, development of the MSHCP was undertaken to 
provide a regional, streamlined approach to benefit future development of all types in Western 
Riverside County, including the development and improvements envisioned under the numerous 
General Plans and the Regional Transportation Improvement Program.  The requirements of the 
MSHCP (habitat acquisition, management and monitoring, program administration) are a direct 
result of the regional approach to mitigation that is engendered by all new development in the 
Plan Area under the pertinent environmental regulations. Meeting the requirements of the 
MSHCP is necessary to obtain the necessary federal authorization to develop within the Plan 
Area.  


Pr opor t io na l i t y  


Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the cost of 
the public facility or portion of the public facility attributable to the development on which the fee 
is imposed.  (66001(b)). 


The MSHCP includes detailed conservation requirements based on the scientific evaluations that 
form the basis of the MSHCP.  Based on these evaluations, conservation responsibilities were 
allocated between the Local Permittees and other agencies, such as the State and federal 
governments.  The Local Development Mitigation Fee appropriately provides funding towards the 
fulfillment of the Local Permittee conservation requirements.  Furthermore, the Local Permittee 
obligations are not fully funded through the Local Development Mitigation Fee revenues.  Other 
local and regional funding sources, such as the Measure A sales tax and tipping fees, provide 
additional mitigation and/or offsetting revenues that reduce the overall cost allocation to the 
Local Development Mitigation Fee Program.  In addition, consistent with the relationship between 
new development in Western Riverside County and the need for the public facilities (conservation 
program) described above, proportional attribution between new development is ensured 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 55 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


through the determination of a consistent per gross acre Local Development Mitigation Fee.33  As 
a result, the Local Development Mitigation Fee level calculations are carefully determined to fund 
only the proportionate (or less than) conservation costs attributable to the new development on 
which the fee is imposed and to allocate the fee levels proportionally across all new 
development.  It is this process of careful calculation based on the requirements of the MSHCP 
that is the subject of a substantial portion of this Nexus Study (see Chapters 2 through 7).   


 


 


33 Determining habitat mitigation fees on a gross acre basis is the clearest way of ensuring 
proportionate cost allocations among new developments and is a common practice among adopted 
Habitat Conservation Plans.  For purposes of implementation/administrative consistency, for 
residential uses, the per-gross-acre fee is translated into per unit fees for different density categories. 







 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 56 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


9. FEE IMPLEMENTATION  


The revised Local Development Mitigation Fee must be implemented consistent with the MSHCP 
(and associated Incidental Take Permit and Implementing Agreement) as well as the California 
Mitigation Fee Act.  A detailed set of guidance is included in the Fee Implementation Handbook to 
support clarity and specificity in the implementation of the updated fee program by Local 
Permittees.  The sections below summarize some of the key implementation and administration 
actions to be consistent with the requirements.   


A do pt io n  o f  Rev i sed  LDMF 


• Consistent with the MSHCP and associated documents, each Local Permittee (i.e., all 
participating jurisdictions) must adopt an updated LDMF ordinance and a fee resolution 
establishing the revised fee level as prescribed by the Mitigation Fee Act. 


• Consistent with the Mitigation Fee Act, the revised ordinance and associated fee resolution 
will become effective after a public hearing and 60 days. 


• RCA Legal Counsel will prepare a Fee Update Ordinance and Resolution to facilitate the 
consistent adoption of the updated LDMF by Local Permittees. 


Sec ur ing  Supp lem ent a l  Fund ing  


The revised Local Development Mitigation Fee is set at the level that would cover the Local 
Permittee cost obligations once expected non-fee revenues are subtracted out.  To the extent 
any discounts/exemptions are provided to new Western Riverside County development below the 
updated fee level, additional funding will be required to backfill the fee revenue losses.  To the 
extent, these revenues do not make up for any fee discounts provided, other sources of funding 
will need to be sought by the RCA and the Local Permittees to fulfill their Plan obligations.  At the 
same time, if new substantial funding sources become available to the RCA for Local Permittee 
obligations, the funding required through fees may decrease, in turn reducing the required fee 
levels through a new update.   


A nnua l  Rev iew  


The Mitigation Fee Act (at Gov. C. §§ 66001(c), 66006(b)(1)) stipulates that each local agency 
that requires payment of a fee make specific information available to the public annually within 
180 days of the last day of the fiscal year.  In this case, the RCA can play this role on behalf of 
the Local Permittees.  This information includes the following: 


• A description of the type of fee in the account. 
• The amount of the fee (the mitigation fee schedule). 
• The beginning and ending balance of the fund. 
• The amount of fees collected and interest earned. 
• Identification of the improvements constructed. 
• The total cost of the improvements constructed. 
• The fees expended to construct the improvement. 
• The percentage of total costs funded by the fee. 







Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan Nexus Fee Study Update 
Final Report October 2020 


 
 


Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 57 C:\Users\ktraynor\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\YAAP6MDD\NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.docx 


If sufficient fees have been collected to fund specific improvement cost, the agency must specify 
the approximate date for the cost of that improvement.  Because of the dynamic nature of 
growth and MSHCP implementation costs and consistent with current practice, the RCA should 
continue to monitor progress towards MSHCP goals.  The overall adequacy of the fee revenues 
and other available funding in meeting these goals should be reviewed annually.   


Sur p lus  Funds  


The Mitigation Fee Act also requires that if any portion of a fee remains unexpended or 
uncommitted in an account for 5 years or more after deposit of the fee, the RCA, acting for the 
Local Permittees, shall make findings once each year (1) to identify the purpose to which the fee 
is to be put, (2) to demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for 
which it was charged, (3) to identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete 
financing of incomplete improvements, and (4) to designate the approximate dates on which the 
funding identified in (3) is expected to be deposited into the appropriate fund (§66001(d)). 


If adequate funding has been collected for specific investments, an approximate date must be 
specified as to when the cost of the investment will be incurred.  If the findings show no need for 
the unspent funds, or if the conditions discussed above are not met, and the administrative costs 
of the refund do not exceed the refund itself, the local agency that has collected the funds must 
refund them (Gov. C §66001(e)(f)). 


A nnua l  a nd  Per iod i c  Updates  


Consistent with the current practice, the Fee Ordinance should allow an automatic annual 
adjustment to the fees based on the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) or a similar inflation factor.  In addition, a more comprehensive update should be 
conducted required periodically.  The Nexus Study and the technical information it contains 
should be reviewed periodically by the RCA (every five years is recommended) to identify any 
necessary refinements to the Local Development Mitigation Fees to ensure adequate funding to 
implement the MSHCP.  Under certain circumstances, the RCA may wish to conduct a Nexus 
Study update sooner than after five years.  For example, to the extent there are significant and 
unexpected changes in implementation costs, in the level of non-fee funding, and/ or the level of 
fee-paying private development over time, a more immediate fee update may be appropriate. 







 


 


APPENDIX I: 


Detailed Time Series of Implementation Costs 







All Implementation Costs Over Time – No Extension 


 


Factors 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25


Cost Items 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


ACRES 


Land Acuisition Costs


Land Acquisition (Annual)


Local 6,310 6,310 6,310 6,310 6,310 6,310 6,310 6,310 6,310


(less) HANS/JPR Dedications -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 0


Total Local 5,060 5,060 5,060 5,060 5,060 5,060 5,060 5,060 6,310


State/Fed 3,821 3,821 3,821 3,821 3,821 3,821 3,821 3,821 3,821


Total 8,881 8,881 8,881 8,881 8,881 8,881 8,881 8,881 10,131


Land Acquisition (Cumulative)


Local 
1


45,272 50,332 55,391 60,451 65,511 70,571 75,630 80,690 87,000


State/Fed 25,429 29,251 33,072 36,893 40,715 44,536 48,357 52,179 56,000


Local - HANS/JPR Dedications 1,250 2,500 3,750 5,000 6,250 7,500 8,750 10,000 10,000


Total 71,951 82,082 92,213 102,344 112,476 122,607 132,738 142,869 153,000


Management and Monitoring Costs


Monitoring Management


State/ Federal


PQP RCA State/ Fed 282,000          282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000            


ARL RCA State 25,429 29,251 33,072 36,893 40,715 44,536 48,357 52,179 56,000


Total 307,429          311,251            315,072            318,893            322,715            326,536            330,357            334,179            338,000            


Local


PQP RCA Non-RCA Local 65,000            65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000              


ARL RCA RCA 46,522 52,832 59,141 65,451 71,761 78,071 84,380 90,690 97,000


Total 111,522          117,832            124,141            130,451            136,761            143,071            149,380            155,690            162,000            


Total Acres under RCA Management 46,522            52,832              59,141              65,451              71,761              78,071              84,380              90,690              97,000              


Total Acres under RCA Monitoring 418,951          429,082            439,213            449,344            459,476            469,607            479,738            489,869            500,000            


COSTS (all constant 2019 dollars)


Land Acquisition Costs


Local, ARL, Annual $14,288 $/Acre $72,294,065 $72,294,065 $72,294,065 $72,294,065 $72,294,065 $72,294,065 $72,294,065 $72,294,065 $90,154,055


Land Transaction Costs 5% of acquisition costs $3,614,703 $3,614,703 $3,614,703 $3,614,703 $3,614,703 $3,614,703 $3,614,703 $3,614,703 $4,507,703


Total, Land Acquisition Costs $75,908,768 $75,908,768 $75,908,768 $75,908,768 $75,908,768 $75,908,768 $75,908,768 $75,908,768 $94,661,758


Local, ARL, Cumulative $75,908,768 $151,817,536 $227,726,304 $303,635,072 $379,543,840 $455,452,608 $531,361,376 $607,270,144 $701,931,902


Management and Monitoring Costs


Management, Annual $32.70 $/Acre $1,521,340 $1,727,681 $1,934,021 $2,140,361 $2,346,702 $2,553,042 $2,759,382 $2,965,723 $3,172,063


Management Cumulative $1,521,340 $3,249,021 $5,183,042 $7,323,403 $9,670,105 $12,223,147 $14,982,530 $17,948,252 $21,120,315


Monitoring, Annual $3.01 $/Acre $1,262,531 $1,293,061 $1,323,592 $1,354,122 $1,384,653 $1,415,184 $1,445,714 $1,476,245 $1,506,776


Monitoring  Cumulative $1,262,531 $2,555,592 $3,879,184 $5,233,306 $6,617,959 $8,033,143 $9,478,857 $10,955,102 $12,461,878


Endowment Costs


Net Endowment Funding, Annual $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105


Net Endowment Funding, Cumulative $22,168,105 $44,336,210 $66,504,316 $88,672,421 $110,840,526 $133,008,631 $155,176,736 $177,344,842 $199,512,947


Administrative Costs 
2


RCA Staff Costs $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495


Professional Services $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062


Loan Repayment 
3


$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


Other $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254


Total Annual $5,154,811 $5,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811


Cumulative Costs $5,154,811 $10,309,622 $14,464,433 $18,619,244 $22,774,055 $26,928,866 $31,083,677 $35,238,488 $39,393,299


TOTAL ALL COSTS 


TOTAL Annual $106,015,555 $106,252,426 $105,489,297 $105,726,168 $105,963,039 $106,199,910 $106,436,781 $106,673,652 $125,663,513


TOTAL Cumulative $106,015,555 $212,267,981 $317,757,279 $423,483,447 $529,446,486 $635,646,396 $742,083,177 $848,756,829 $974,420,341


1. All local land conserved to date, including all HANS dedications to date, are captured in the year 17 number.


3. Annual administrative costs decrease in year 19 due to assumption that loan repayment is completed.


End of:


Reserve Summary Financial Responsibility


Habitat Lands/


2. RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 dollars.







All Implementation Costs Over Time – 5 Year Extension 


 


Factors 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30


Cost Items 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033


ACRES 


Land Acuisition Costs


Land Acquisition (Annual)


Local 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056


(less) HANS/JPR Dedications -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Local 2,806 2,806 2,806 2,806 2,806 2,806 2,806 2,806 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056 4,056


State/Fed 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457 2,457


Total 5,263 5,263 5,263 5,263 5,263 5,263 5,263 5,263 6,513 6,513 6,513 6,513 6,513 6,513


Land Acquisition (Cumulative)


Local 
1


43,018 45,825 48,631 51,437 54,243 57,050 59,856 62,662 66,719 70,775 74,831 78,887 82,944 87,000


State/Fed 24,065 26,521 28,978 31,434 33,891 36,347 38,804 41,261 43,717 46,174 48,630 51,087 53,543 56,000


Local - HANS/JPR Dedications 1,250 2,500 3,750 5,000 6,250 7,500 8,750 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000


Total 68,333 74,846 81,359 87,871 94,384 100,897 107,410 113,923 120,436 126,949 133,461 139,974 146,487 153,000


Management and Monitoring Costs


Monitoring Management


State/ Federal


PQP RCA State/ Fed 282,000          282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000             282,000             282,000             282,000              282,000              282,000              282,000               


ARL RCA State 24,065 26,521 28,978 31,434 33,891 36,347 38,804 41,261 43,717 46,174 48,630 51,087 53,543 56,000


Total 306,065          308,521            310,978            313,434            315,891            318,347            320,804            323,261             325,717             328,174             330,630              333,087              335,543              338,000               


Local


PQP RCA Non-RCA Local 65,000            65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000               65,000               65,000               65,000                65,000                65,000                65,000                 


ARL RCA RCA 44,268 48,325 52,381 56,437 60,493 64,550 68,606 72,662 76,719 80,775 84,831 88,887 92,944 97,000


Total 109,268          113,325            117,381            121,437            125,493            129,550            133,606            137,662             141,719             145,775             149,831              153,887              157,944              162,000               


Total Acres under RCA Management 44,268            48,325              52,381              56,437              60,493              64,550              68,606              72,662               76,719               80,775               84,831                88,887                92,944                97,000                 


Total Acres under RCA Monitoring 415,333          421,846            428,359            434,871            441,384            447,897            454,410            460,923             467,436             473,949             480,461              486,974              493,487              500,000               


COSTS (all constant 2019 dollars)


Land Acquisition Costs


Local, ARL, Annual $14,288 $/Acre $40,096,188 $40,096,188 $40,096,188 $40,096,188 $40,096,188 $40,096,188 $40,096,188 $40,096,188 $57,956,178 $57,956,178 $57,956,178 $57,956,178 $57,956,178 $57,956,178


Land Transaction Costs 5% of acquisition costs $2,004,809 $2,004,809 $2,004,809 $2,004,809 $2,004,809 $2,004,809 $2,004,809 $2,004,809 $2,897,809 $2,897,809 $2,897,809 $2,897,809 $2,897,809 $2,897,809


Total, Land Acquisition Costs $42,100,997 $42,100,997 $42,100,997 $42,100,997 $42,100,997 $42,100,997 $42,100,997 $42,100,997 $60,853,987 $60,853,987 $60,853,987 $60,853,987 $60,853,987 $60,853,987


Local, ARL, Cumulative $42,100,997 $84,201,995 $126,302,992 $168,403,990 $210,504,987 $252,605,985 $294,706,982 $336,807,979 $397,661,967 $458,515,954 $519,369,941 $580,223,928 $641,077,915 $701,931,902


Management and Monitoring Costs


Management, Annual $32.70 $/Acre $1,447,647 $1,580,295 $1,712,942 $1,845,589 $1,978,237 $2,110,884 $2,243,532 $2,376,179 $2,508,826 $2,641,474 $2,774,121 $2,906,768 $3,039,416 $3,172,063


Management Cumulative $1,447,647 $3,027,942 $4,740,884 $6,586,474 $8,564,710 $10,675,595 $12,919,126 $15,295,305 $17,804,131 $20,445,605 $23,219,726 $26,126,494 $29,165,910 $32,337,973


Monitoring, Annual $3.01 $/Acre $1,251,627 $1,271,254 $1,290,880 $1,310,507 $1,330,134 $1,349,761 $1,369,388 $1,389,015 $1,408,641 $1,428,268 $1,447,895 $1,467,522 $1,487,149 $1,506,776


Monitoring  Cumulative $1,251,627 $2,522,880 $3,813,761 $5,124,268 $6,454,402 $7,804,163 $9,173,551 $10,562,566 $11,971,207 $13,399,476 $14,847,371 $16,314,893 $17,802,041 $19,308,817


Endowment Costs


Net Endowment Funding, Annual $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608


Net Endowment Funding, Cumulative $13,180,608 $26,361,215 $39,541,823 $52,722,430 $65,903,038 $79,083,645 $92,264,253 $105,444,860 $118,625,468 $131,806,076 $144,986,683 $158,167,291 $171,347,898 $184,528,506


Administrative Costs 
2


RCA Staff Costs $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495


Professional Services $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062


Loan Repayment 
3


$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


Other $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254


Total Annual Costs $5,154,811 $5,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811


Cumulative Costs $5,154,811 $10,309,622 $14,464,433 $18,619,244 $22,774,055 $26,928,866 $31,083,677 $35,238,488 $39,393,299 $43,548,111 $47,702,922 $51,857,733 $56,012,544 $60,167,355


TOTAL ALL COSTS 


TOTAL Annual $63,135,690 $63,287,964 $62,440,239 $62,592,513 $62,744,787 $62,897,061 $63,049,335 $63,201,610 $82,106,873 $82,259,148 $82,411,422 $82,563,696 $82,715,970 $82,868,244


TOTAL Cumulative $63,135,690 $126,423,655 $188,863,893 $251,456,406 $314,201,193 $377,098,254 $440,147,590 $503,349,199 $585,456,073 $667,715,220 $750,126,642 $832,690,338 $915,406,308 $998,274,552


1. All local land conserved to date, including all HANS dedications to date, are captured in the year 17 number.


3. Annual administrative costs decrease in year 19 due to assumption that loan repayment is completed.


End of:


Reserve Summary


Financial Responsibility


Habitat Lands/


2. RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 dollars.







All Implementation Costs Over Time – 10 Year Extension 


 


 


Factors 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35


Cost Items 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038


ACRES 


Land Acuisition Costs


Land Acquisition (Annual)


Local 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989


(less) Anheuser Busch purchase 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


(less) HANS/JPR Dedications -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Local 1,739 1,739 1,739 1,739 1,739 1,739 1,739 1,739 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989 2,989


State/Fed 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810


Total 3,549 3,549 3,549 3,549 3,549 3,549 3,549 3,549 4,799 4,799 4,799 4,799 4,799 4,799 4,799 4,799 4,799 4,799 4,799


Land Acquisition (Cumulative)


Local 
1


41,951 43,690 45,429 47,167 48,906 50,645 52,384 54,123 57,112 60,100 63,089 66,078 69,067 72,056 75,045 78,033 81,022 84,011 87,000


State/Fed 23,418 25,228 27,038 28,848 30,659 32,469 34,279 36,089 37,899 39,709 41,519 43,329 45,139 46,949 48,760 50,570 52,380 54,190 56,000


Local - HANS/JPR Dedications 1,250 2,500 3,750 5,000 6,250 7,500 8,750 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000


Total 66,619 71,418 76,217 81,016 85,815 90,614 95,413 100,212 105,011 109,809 114,608 119,407 124,206 129,005 133,804 138,603 143,402 148,201 153,000


Management and Monitoring Costs


Monitoring Management


State/ Federal


PQP RCA State/ Fed 282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000           282,000               


ARL RCA State 23,418 25,228 27,038 28,848 30,659 32,469 34,279 36,089 37,899 39,709 41,519 43,329 45,139 46,949 48,760 50,570 52,380 54,190 56,000


Total 305,418           307,228           309,038           310,848           312,659           314,469           316,279           318,089           319,899           321,709           323,519           325,329           327,139           328,949           330,760           332,570           334,380           336,190           338,000               


Local


PQP RCA Non-RCA Local 65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000             65,000                 


ARL RCA RCA 43,201 46,190 49,179 52,167 55,156 58,145 61,134 64,123 67,112 70,100 73,089 76,078 79,067 82,056 85,045 88,033 91,022 94,011 97,000


Total 108,201           111,190           114,179           117,167           120,156           123,145           126,134           129,123           132,112           135,100           138,089           141,078           144,067           147,056           150,045           153,033           156,022           159,011           162,000               


Total Acres under RCA Management 43,201             46,190             49,179             52,167             55,156             58,145             61,134             64,123             67,112             70,100             73,089             76,078             79,067             82,056             85,045             88,033             91,022             94,011             97,000                 


Total Acres under RCA Monitoring 413,619           418,418           423,217           428,016           432,815           437,614           442,413           447,212           452,011           456,809           461,608           466,407           471,206           476,005           480,804           485,603           490,402           495,201           500,000               


COSTS (all constant 2019 dollars)


Land Acquisition Costs


Local, ARL, Annual $14,288 $/Acre $24,844,562 $24,844,562 $24,844,562 $24,844,562 $24,844,562 $24,844,562 $24,844,562 $24,844,562 $42,704,552 $42,704,552 $42,704,552 $42,704,552 $42,704,552 $42,704,552 $42,704,552 $42,704,552 $42,704,552 $42,704,552 $42,704,552


Land Transaction Costs 5%
of acquisition 


costs
$1,242,228 $1,242,228 $1,242,228 $1,242,228 $1,242,228 $1,242,228 $1,242,228 $1,242,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228 $2,135,228


Total, Land Acquisition Costs $26,086,790 $26,086,790 $26,086,790 $26,086,790 $26,086,790 $26,086,790 $26,086,790 $26,086,790 $44,839,780 $44,839,780 $44,839,780 $44,839,780 $44,839,780 $44,839,780 $44,839,780 $44,839,780 $44,839,780 $44,839,780 $44,839,780


Local, ARL, Cumulative $26,086,790 $52,173,581 $78,260,371 $104,347,161 $130,433,952 $156,520,742 $182,607,532 $208,694,323 $253,534,102 $298,373,882 $343,213,662 $388,053,442 $432,893,222 $477,733,002 $522,572,782 $567,412,562 $612,252,342 $657,092,122 $701,931,902


Management and Monitoring Costs


Management, Annual $32.70 $/Acre $1,412,740 $1,510,480 $1,608,220 $1,705,961 $1,803,701 $1,901,441 $1,999,181 $2,096,921 $2,194,661 $2,292,402 $2,390,142 $2,487,882 $2,585,622 $2,683,362 $2,781,102 $2,878,843 $2,976,583 $3,074,323 $3,172,063


Management Cumulative $1,412,740 $2,923,220 $4,531,441 $6,237,402 $8,041,102 $9,942,543 $11,941,725 $14,038,646 $16,233,307 $18,525,709 $20,915,851 $23,403,733 $25,989,355 $28,672,717 $31,453,819 $34,332,662 $37,309,245 $40,383,568 $43,555,631


Monitoring, Annual $3.01 $/Acre $1,246,462 $1,260,924 $1,275,386 $1,289,847 $1,304,309 $1,318,771 $1,333,233 $1,347,695 $1,362,157 $1,376,619 $1,391,081 $1,405,542 $1,420,004 $1,434,466 $1,448,928 $1,463,390 $1,477,852 $1,492,314 $1,506,776


Monitoring  Cumulative $1,246,462 $2,507,386 $3,782,771 $5,072,619 $6,376,928 $7,695,699 $9,028,932 $10,376,627 $11,738,784 $13,115,403 $14,506,484 $15,912,026 $17,332,030 $18,766,497 $20,215,425 $21,678,815 $23,156,667 $24,648,980 $26,155,756


Endowment Costs


Net Endowment Funding, Annual $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410


Net Endowment Funding, Cumulative $8,966,410 $17,932,819 $26,899,229 $35,865,639 $44,832,049 $53,798,458 $62,764,868 $71,731,278 $80,697,687 $89,664,097 $98,630,507 $107,596,917 $116,563,326 $125,529,736 $134,496,146 $143,462,556 $152,428,965 $161,395,375 $170,361,785


Administrative Costs 
2


RCA Staff Costs $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495


Professional Services $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062


Loan Repayment 
3


$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


Other $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254


Total Annual Costs $5,154,811 $5,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811


Cumulative Costs $5,154,811 $10,309,622 $14,464,433 $18,619,244 $22,774,055 $26,928,866 $31,083,677 $35,238,488 $39,393,299 $43,548,111 $47,702,922 $51,857,733 $56,012,544 $60,167,355 $64,322,166 $68,476,977 $72,631,788 $76,786,599 $80,941,410


TOTAL ALL COSTS 


TOTAL Annual $42,867,213 $42,979,415 $42,091,617 $42,203,819 $42,316,021 $42,428,223 $42,540,425 $42,652,627 $61,517,819 $61,630,021 $61,742,223 $61,854,425 $61,966,627 $62,078,829 $62,191,031 $62,303,233 $62,415,435 $62,527,637 $62,639,839


TOTAL Cumulative $42,867,213 $85,846,628 $127,938,245 $170,142,065 $212,458,086 $254,886,309 $297,426,735 $340,079,362 $401,597,181 $463,227,202 $524,969,425 $586,823,850 $648,790,477 $710,869,307 $773,060,338 $835,363,571 $897,779,006 $960,306,644 $1,022,946,483


1. All local land conserved to date, including all HANS dedications to date, are captured in the year 17 number.


3. Annual administrative costs decrease in year 19 due to assumption that loan repayment is completed.


Habitat Lands/


End of:


Reserve Summary Financial Responsibility


2. RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 dollars.







All Implementation Costs Over Time – 15 Year Extension 


 


 


Factors 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40


Cost Items 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043


ACRES 


Land Acuisition Costs


Land Acquisition (Annual)


Local 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366


(less) HANS/JPR Dedications -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 -1,250 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Total Local 1,116 1,116 1,116 1,116 1,116 1,116 1,116 1,116 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366 2,366


State/Fed 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433 1,433


Total 2,549 2,549 2,549 2,549 2,549 2,549 2,549 2,549 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799 3,799


Land Acquisition (Cumulative)


Local 
1


41,328 42,444 43,561 44,677 45,793 46,909 48,025 49,141 51,508 53,874 56,240 58,606 60,972 63,338 65,705 68,071 70,437 72,803 75,169 77,535 79,902 82,268 84,634 87,000


State/Fed 23,041 24,474 25,907 27,340 28,773 30,206 31,639 33,072 34,505 35,938 37,371 38,804 40,237 41,670 43,103 44,536 45,969 47,402 48,835 50,268 51,701 53,134 54,567 56,000


Local - HANS/JPR Dedications 1,250 2,500 3,750 5,000 6,250 7,500 8,750 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000


Total 65,619 69,418 73,218 77,017 80,816 84,615 88,414 92,213 96,013 99,812 103,611 107,410 111,209 115,008 118,808 122,607 126,406 130,205 134,004 137,803 141,603 145,402 149,201 153,000


Management and Monitoring Costs


Monitoring Management


State/ Federal


PQP RCA State/ Fed 282,000          282,000          282,000          282,000          282,000            282,000            282,000            282,000             282,000             282,000            282,000              282,000              282,000              282,000               282,000            282,000            282,000                  282,000            282,000                  282,000            282,000               282,000            282,000              282,000               


ARL RCA State 23,041 24,474 25,907 27,340 28,773 30,206 31,639 33,072 34,505 35,938 37,371 38,804 40,237 41,670 43,103 44,536 45,969 47,402 48,835 50,268 51,701 53,134 54,567 56,000


Total 305,041          306,474          307,907          309,340          310,773            312,206            313,639            315,072             316,505             317,938            319,371              320,804              322,237              323,670               325,103            326,536            327,969                  329,402            330,835                  332,268            333,701               335,134            336,567              338,000               


Local


PQP RCA
Non-RCA 


Local
65,000            65,000            65,000            65,000            65,000              65,000              65,000              65,000               65,000               65,000              65,000                65,000                65,000                65,000                 65,000              65,000              65,000                    65,000              65,000                    65,000              65,000                 65,000              65,000                65,000                 


ARL RCA RCA 42,578 44,944 47,311 49,677 52,043 54,409 56,775 59,141 61,508 63,874 66,240 68,606 70,972 73,338 75,705 78,071 80,437 82,803 85,169 87,535 89,902 92,268 94,634 97,000


Total 107,578          109,944          112,311          114,677          117,043            119,409            121,775            124,141             126,508             128,874            131,240              133,606              135,972              138,338               140,705            143,071            145,437                  147,803            150,169                  152,535            154,902               157,268            159,634              162,000               


Total Acres under RCA Management 42,578            44,944            47,311            49,677            52,043              54,409              56,775              59,141               61,508               63,874              66,240                68,606                70,972                73,338                 75,705              78,071              80,437                    82,803              85,169                    87,535              89,902                 92,268              94,634                97,000                 


Total Acres under RCA Monitoring 412,619          416,418          420,218          424,017          427,816            431,615            435,414            439,213             443,013             446,812            450,611              454,410              458,209              462,008               465,808            469,607            473,406                  477,205            481,004                  484,803            488,603               492,402            496,201              500,000               


COSTS (all constant 2019 dollars)


Land Acquisition Costs


Local, ARL, 


Annual
$14,288 $/Acre $15,947,780 $15,947,780 $15,947,780 $15,947,780 $15,947,780 $15,947,780 $15,947,780 $15,947,780 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771 $33,807,771


Land Transaction 


Costs
5%


of acquisition 


costs
$797,389 $797,389 $797,389 $797,389 $797,389 $797,389 $797,389 $797,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389 $1,690,389


Total, Land Acquisition Costs $16,745,170 $16,745,170 $16,745,170 $16,745,170 $16,745,170 $16,745,170 $16,745,170 $16,745,170 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159 $35,498,159


Local, ARL, 


Cumulative
$16,745,170 $33,490,339 $50,235,509 $66,980,678 $83,725,848 $100,471,017 $117,216,187 $133,961,356 $169,459,515 $204,957,674 $240,455,833 $275,953,992 $311,452,152 $346,950,311 $382,448,470 $417,946,629 $453,444,788 $488,942,947 $524,441,106 $559,939,265 $595,437,424 $630,935,583 $666,433,743 $701,931,902


Management and Monitoring Costs


Management, 


Annual
$32.70 $/Acre $1,392,378 $1,469,755 $1,547,133 $1,624,511 $1,701,888 $1,779,266 $1,856,643 $1,934,021 $2,011,399 $2,088,776 $2,166,154 $2,243,532 $2,320,909 $2,398,287 $2,475,664 $2,553,042 $2,630,420 $2,707,797 $2,785,175 $2,862,553 $2,939,930 $3,017,308 $3,094,685 $3,172,063


Management 


Cumulative
$1,392,378 $2,862,133 $4,409,266 $6,033,776 $7,735,664 $9,514,930 $11,371,574 $13,305,595 $15,316,993 $17,405,770 $19,571,923 $21,815,455 $24,136,364 $26,534,651 $29,010,315 $31,563,357 $34,193,777 $36,901,574 $39,686,749 $42,549,302 $45,489,232 $48,506,540 $51,601,225 $54,773,288


Monitoring, 


Annual
$3.01 $/Acre $1,243,449 $1,254,898 $1,266,347 $1,277,796 $1,289,245 $1,300,694 $1,312,143 $1,323,592 $1,335,041 $1,346,490 $1,357,939 $1,369,388 $1,380,837 $1,392,286 $1,403,735 $1,415,184 $1,426,633 $1,438,082 $1,449,531 $1,460,980 $1,472,429 $1,483,878 $1,495,327 $1,506,776


Monitoring  


Cumulative
$1,243,449 $2,498,347 $3,764,694 $5,042,490 $6,331,735 $7,632,429 $8,944,572 $10,268,163 $11,603,204 $12,949,694 $14,307,633 $15,677,021 $17,057,857 $18,450,143 $19,853,878 $21,269,062 $22,695,694 $24,133,776 $25,583,307 $27,044,286 $28,516,715 $30,000,593 $31,495,919 $33,002,695


Endowment Costs


Net Endowment 


Funding, Annual
$6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714


Net Endowment 


Funding, 


Cumulative


$6,541,714 $13,083,429 $19,625,143 $26,166,857 $32,708,572 $39,250,286 $45,792,000 $52,333,715 $58,875,429 $65,417,143 $71,958,858 $78,500,572 $85,042,286 $91,584,001 $98,125,715 $104,667,429 $111,209,144 $117,750,858 $124,292,572 $130,834,286 $137,376,001 $143,917,715 $150,459,429 $157,001,144


Administrative Costs 
2


RCA Staff Costs $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495 $2,288,495


Professional Services $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062 $1,466,062


Loan Repayment 
3


$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


Other $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254 $400,254


Total Annual Costs $5,154,811 $5,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811 $4,154,811


Cumulative Costs $5,154,811 $10,309,622 $14,464,433 $18,619,244 $22,774,055 $26,928,866 $31,083,677 $35,238,488 $39,393,299 $43,548,111 $47,702,922 $51,857,733 $56,012,544 $60,167,355 $64,322,166 $68,476,977 $72,631,788 $76,786,599 $80,941,410 $85,096,221 $89,251,032 $93,405,843 $97,560,654 $101,715,465


TOTAL ALL COSTS 


TOTAL Annual $31,077,521 $31,166,348 $30,255,175 $30,344,001 $30,432,828 $30,521,655 $30,610,481 $30,699,308 $49,541,124 $49,629,951 $49,718,777 $49,807,604 $49,896,430 $49,985,257 $50,074,084 $50,162,910 $50,251,737 $50,340,563 $50,429,390 $50,518,217 $50,607,043 $50,695,870 $50,784,697 $50,873,523


TOTAL Cumulative $31,077,521 $62,243,870 $92,499,044 $122,843,046 $153,275,874 $183,797,528 $214,408,009 $245,107,317 $294,648,441 $344,278,392 $393,997,169 $443,804,773 $493,701,203 $543,686,460 $593,760,544 $643,923,454 $694,175,191 $744,515,754 $794,945,144 $845,463,361 $896,070,404 $946,766,274 $997,550,971 $1,048,424,494


1. All local land conserved to date, including all HANS dedications to date, are captured in the year 17 number.


3. Annual administrative costs decrease in year 19 due to assumption that loan repayment is completed.


Habitat Lands/


End of:


Reserve 


Summary Financial Responsibility


2. RCA Administrative Costs are based on a three year average of FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19 actual costs, adjusted to 2019 dollars.







 


 


APPENDIX II: 


Detailed Time Series of Endowment Funding 







Annual Cost Estimate for Management and Monitoring, Constant 2019$ 


 


 


  


Annual Cost 


Cost Categories


by Last Year of 


Land Acquisition 


Period


Adjustment


Ongoing Habitat Management $3,172,063 100% $3,172,063


Ongoing Habitat Monitoring $1,506,776 100% $1,506,776


Administration
1


$4,154,811 50% $2,077,406


Total $8,833,650 $6,756,244


1. Adminsitration includes salaries and benefits, accounting, auditing and reporting, contracts, etc.. Assumes less 


administration is needed following the land acquisition period; ongoing adminsitrative needs include oversight, auditing 


and reporting, and board staffing.


Sources: Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority; and Economic & Planning Systems, Inc.


Annual Post-Land 


Acquisition Cost







Endowment Funding – No Extension Scenario 


 


 


 


  


Item 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Post-Permit


New Impact Acres (avg. annual) 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252


Average Per Acre $9,845 $9,845 $9,845 $9,845 $9,845 $9,845 $9,845 $9,845 $9,845


Endowment Fee


Annual Endowment Funding $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105 $22,168,105


Endowment Balance $22,168,105 $44,336,210 $67,169,359 $90,687,502 $114,911,189 $139,861,586 $165,560,496 $192,030,373 $219,294,346


Annual Interest $0 $665,043 $1,350,038 $2,055,582 $2,782,293 $3,530,804 $4,301,772 $5,095,868 $5,913,787


Cumulative Interest Earnings $0 $665,043 $2,015,081 $4,070,663 $6,852,955 $10,383,760 $14,685,531 $19,781,399 $25,695,187


Total Endowment $22,168,105 $45,001,254 $68,519,396 $92,743,083 $117,693,481 $143,392,391 $169,862,268 $197,126,241 $225,208,133


Average Annual Post Permit Interest $6,756,244


Assumptions


20,265               impact acres developed


9 year plan


3% interest rate (real, net)


$6,756,244 annual post-permit cost estimate


$9,845 Endowment Funding Per Acre of Conservation 


(1) Endowment fee set to ensure that, at the end of the permit term, the total endowment (Including endowment fee revenues and interest) are sufficient to provide annual interest revenues equal to the post-permit 


annual cost.  The real interest rate is assumed to be 3 percent annually.







Endowment Funding – 5 Year Extension Scenario 


 


 


  


Item 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Post-Permit


New Impact Acres (avg. annual) 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252


Average Per Acre $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854 $5,854


Endowment Fee


Annual Endowment Funding $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608 $13,180,608


Endowment Balance $13,180,608 $26,361,215 $39,937,241 $53,920,547 $68,323,353 $83,158,243 $98,438,180 $114,176,514 $130,386,999 $147,083,799 $164,281,502 $181,995,136 $200,240,180 $219,032,574


Annual Interest $0 $395,418 $802,699 $1,222,198 $1,654,282 $2,099,329 $2,557,727 $3,029,877 $3,516,192 $4,017,096 $4,533,027 $5,064,436 $5,611,787 $6,175,559


Cumulative Interest Earnings $0 $395,418 $1,198,117 $2,420,315 $4,074,598 $6,173,927 $8,731,654 $11,761,531 $15,277,723 $19,294,819 $23,827,846 $28,892,281 $34,504,069 $40,679,628


Total Endowment $13,180,608 $26,756,633 $40,739,940 $55,142,746 $69,977,636 $85,257,572 $100,995,907 $117,206,392 $133,903,191 $151,100,894 $168,814,529 $187,059,572 $205,851,967 $225,208,133


Average Annual Post Permit Interest $6,756,244


     


Assumptions


31,523               impact acres developed


14 year plan


3% interest rate (real, net)


$6,756,244 annual post-permit cost estimate


$5,854 Endowment Funding Per Acre of Conservation


(1) Endowment fee set to ensure that, at the end of the permit term, the total endowment (Including endowment fee revenues and interest) are sufficient to provide annual interest revenues equal to the post-permit annual cost. The real interest rate is assumed to be 3 percent annually.







Endowment Funding – 10 Year Extension Scenario 


 


  


Item 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 Post-Permit


New Impact Acres (avg. annual) 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252


Average Per Acre $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982 $3,982


Endowment Fee


Annual Endowment Funding $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410 $8,966,410


Endowment Balance $8,966,410 $17,932,819 $27,168,221 $36,680,686 $46,478,524 $56,570,297 $66,964,823 $77,671,185 $88,698,738 $100,057,118 $111,756,249 $123,806,354 $136,217,962 $149,001,918 $162,169,393 $175,731,892 $189,701,266 $204,089,722 $218,909,831


Annual Interest $0 $268,992 $546,054 $831,428 $1,125,363 $1,428,117 $1,739,952 $2,061,143 $2,391,970 $2,732,721 $3,083,695 $3,445,198 $3,817,547 $4,201,065 $4,596,089 $5,002,964 $5,422,046 $5,853,699 $6,298,303


Cumulative Interest Earnings $0 $268,992 $815,047 $1,646,475 $2,771,838 $4,199,955 $5,939,907 $8,001,051 $10,393,020 $13,125,742 $16,209,437 $19,654,635 $23,472,182 $27,673,247 $32,269,336 $37,272,301 $42,694,347 $48,548,046 $54,846,349


Total Endowment $8,966,410 $18,201,812 $27,714,276 $37,512,114 $47,603,887 $57,998,413 $68,704,775 $79,732,328 $91,090,708 $102,789,839 $114,839,944 $127,251,552 $140,035,508 $153,202,983 $166,765,482 $180,734,856 $195,123,312 $209,943,421 $225,208,133


Average Annual Post Permit Interest $6,756,244


      


Assumptions


42,782               impact acres developed


19 year plan


3% interest rate (real, net)


$6,756,244 annual post-permit cost estimate


$3,982 Endowment Funding Per Acre of Conservation 


(1) Endowment fee set to ensure that, at the end of the permit term, the total endowment (Including endowment fee revenues and interest) are sufficient to provide annual interest revenues equal to the post-permit annual cost. The real interest rate is assumed to be 3 percent annually.







Endowment Funding – 15 Year Extension Scenario 


 


 


 


Item 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15


New Impact Acres (avg. annual) 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252


Average Per Acre $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905


Endowment Fee


Annual Endowment Funding $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714


Endowment Balance $6,541,714 $13,083,429 $19,821,394 $26,761,499 $33,909,807 $41,272,564 $48,856,204 $56,667,353 $64,712,836 $72,999,684 $81,535,138 $90,326,655 $99,381,917 $108,708,838 $118,315,566


Annual Interest $0 $196,251 $398,390 $606,594 $821,043 $1,041,925 $1,269,435 $1,503,769 $1,745,134 $1,993,739 $2,249,803 $2,513,548 $2,785,206 $3,065,014 $3,353,216


Cumulative Interest Earnings $0 $196,251 $594,642 $1,201,235 $2,022,278 $3,064,204 $4,333,638 $5,837,407 $7,582,541 $9,576,280 $11,826,083 $14,339,631 $17,124,837 $20,189,851 $23,543,067


Total Endowment $6,541,714 $13,279,680 $20,219,785 $27,368,093 $34,730,850 $42,314,490 $50,125,639 $58,171,122 $66,457,970 $74,993,424 $83,784,941 $92,840,203 $102,167,123 $111,773,852 $121,668,781


Average Annual Post Permit Interest


16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 Post-Permit


2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252 2,252


$2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905


$6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714 $6,541,714


$128,210,496 $138,402,273 $148,899,805 $159,712,262 $170,849,092 $182,320,028 $194,135,092 $206,304,607 $218,839,209


$3,650,063 $3,955,817 $4,270,743 $4,595,116 $4,929,221 $5,273,349 $5,627,801 $5,992,887 $6,368,925


$27,193,130 $31,148,947 $35,419,689 $40,014,806 $44,944,027 $50,217,377 $55,845,178 $61,838,065 $68,206,990


$131,860,559 $142,358,090 $153,170,547 $164,307,378 $175,778,314 $187,593,377 $199,762,893 $212,297,494 $225,208,133


$6,756,244


(1) Endowment fee set to ensure that, at the end of the permit term, the total endowment (Including endowment fee revenues and interest) are sufficient to provide annual interest revenues equal to the post-permit annual cost. The real interest rate is assumed to be 3 percent annually.


     


Assumptions


54,040               impact acres developed


24 year plan


3% interest rate (real, net)


$6,756,244 annual post-permit cost estimate


$2,905 Endowment Funding Per Acre of Conservation







 


 


Nexus Study Background Summary  
March 3, 2021 
For more information, contact:  
Anne Mayer (amayer@rctc.org) or Aaron Hake (ahake@rctc.org)  


 


Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP) – Originally adopted in 2004, the MSHCP is a comprehensive 
plan focusing on permanent conservation of 500,000 acres and protection of 146 species in Western Riverside County.  
 


Contribute to the economy – Implementation of the MSHCP accelerates construction of infrastructure and 
development, reduces project costs, and provides permitting efficiencies that lead to economic growth.  
 


Ensure financial stability – The MSHCP fee has not been increased (other than CPI adjustments) since inception in 2004.  
 


• Several assumptions in the original 2004 nexus study did not occur, causing a revenue gap that would only get 
wider by further delaying the implementation of a new nexus study.  


 


• RCA must demonstrate full funding of the MSHCP to the state and federal wildlife agencies who provide the 
permits for the MSHCP. Without these permits, the MSHCP cannot provide coverage for private development and 
public infrastructure projects under the federal and state Endangered Species Acts. Without this coverage, each 
project would be responsible for mitigating their own impacts pursuant to these laws, which could be very costly 
and uncertain. 


 


Mindful implementation – Recognizing the current economic situation, the RCA Board, in consultation with the BIA, 
adopted the lowest possible fee evaluated in the Nexus Study, along with a phase-in of the increase. 50% of the 
increase will take effect on July 1, 2021, with the remaining 50% taking effect on January 1, 2022. 
 


• The lower fee increase is made possible by 
extending the land acquisition period by an 
additional 15 years. Adding this time for 
development to occur spreads the fee and 
mitigates the increase. 
 


• The Nexus Study identified an equitable 
distribution of the fee where each acre 
developed is treated roughly the same.   


 


Prepayment allowed – Cities and the County may accept prepayment of fees at their own discretion for applicants 
wishing to pay current fee levels prior to July 1, 2021. 
 


Transparent decision making – The RCA Board, consisting of elected officials representing 18 cities and the County 
Board of Supervisors, adopted the Nexus Study on December 7, 2020 at its public meeting. The RCA Executive 
Committee discussed the Nexus Study in six Brown Act public meetings over the course of a year (November 2019-
November 2020). On November 2, 2020, the draft Nexus Study was posted on the RCA website, more than 30 days 
before the full Board of Directors’ consideration, in excess of minimum transparency requirements. 
 


Legacy Home Rebate Pilot Program – The RCA board adopted the program on March 1, 2021, allowing those who 
owned their land before the implementation of the MSHCP to apply to RCA for a rebate for the difference between the 
LDMF at the time of payment and LDMF as of June 30, 2021 (adjusted for CPI). 
 


Meeting the commitment – Cities and the County must adopt the updated MSHCP fee before May 2, 2021 to remain 
compliant with the MSHCP and be eligible to receive the Plan’s benefits. RCA has transmitted the model ordinance and 
resolution to adopt the updated fee to city and county staffs. RCA staff is available to assist with implementation 
questions. 
  


New management, enhanced services – RCA is now under the management of RCTC. RCTC is committed to enhancing 
its service to the private sector through joint project reviews and to public agencies seeking to build infrastructure. 


Nexus Study LDMF Fee Schedule 


Category 
Current fee per 
unit or per acre 


Effective 
July 1, 2021 


Effective  
Jan.1, 2022 


Residential: Up to 8.0 
dwelling units/acre 
(DUAC) 


$2,234 $2,935 $3,635 


Residential: 8.0-14 DUAC $1,430 $1,473 $1,515 


Residential: 14.0+ DUAC $1,161 $670 $670 


Commercial (per acre) $7,606 $11,982 $16,358 


Industrial (per acre) $7,606 $11,982 $16,358 



mailto:amayer@rctc.org

mailto:ahake@rctc.org





MSHCP LDMF Implementation 
Frequently Asked Questions 
February 5, 2021 
For more information, contact:  
Anne Mayer (amayer@rctc.org) or Aaron Hake (ahake@rctc.org) 


1. What is the Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP)?


The Western Riverside County MSHCP, originally adopted in 2004, is a comprehensive, multi-jurisdictional Habitat 
Conservation Plan (HCP) focusing on the permanent conservation of 500,000 acres and the protection of 146 species, 
including 33 that are currently listed as threatened or endangered. The MSHCP was developed in response to the need for 
future growth opportunities in western Riverside County, from housing developments to transportation and infrastructure, 
while addressing the requirements of the State and federal Endangered Species Acts (ESA). The MSHCP serves as an HCP 
pursuant to Section 10(a)(1)(B) of the federal Endangered Species Act of 1973 as well as a Natural Communities 
Conservation Plan (NCCP) under California’s NCCP Act of 2001. The MSHCP streamlines these environmental permitting 
processes by allowing the participating jurisdictions to authorize “take” of plant and wildlife species identified within the 
Plan Area and has saved taxpayers by expediting the construction of more than 30 major freeway and road improvements 
in Riverside County valued at more than $5 billion. 


2. What is the Local Development Mitigation Fee (LDMF)?


Funding of the MSHCP is derived from federal, state, and local sources. However, the main funding source for local 
acquisitions is the imposition and collection of the LDMF. The LDMF is a fee imposed on new local residential, commercial, 
and industrial development and infrastructure and civic projects and contributes to the overall funding required to 
implement the MSHCP. The LDMF is imposed pursuant to California Government Code Section 66000 et seq. (“The 
Mitigation Fee Act”). The fee is administered by the Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority (RCA) but 
collected by the Local Permittees. Imposition of the LDMF is an express commitment of local agencies that signed the 
MSCHP and Implementing Agreement (IA). 


3. What is the Implementing Agreement (IA)?


The IA was entered into by signatories to the MSHCP in June 2004 to ensure implementation of and compliance with each 
of the terms of the MSHCP and for the benefit of the 146 Covered Species, while allowing for future economic growth. In 
addition, the IA: 


• Provides remedies and recourse should any Party fail to perform its obligations, responsibilities, and tasks as set


forth in the MSHCP, the Permits, and the IA;


• Provides assurances to Permittees and others participating in the MSHCP that implementation of the IA and the


MSHCP will adequately provide for the conservation and protection of Covered Species Adequately Conserved in


their habitats in the Plan Area; and


• Provides that if the terms of the MSHCP, the IA, and the Permits are properly implemented, the Wildlife Agencies


will not require additional mitigation from Permittees with respect to Covered Species Adequately Conserved.


Signatories to the IA include the 18 western Riverside County cities of Banning, Beaumont, Calimesa, Canyon Lake, Corona, 
Eastvale, Hemet, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Menifee, Moreno Valley, Murrieta, Norco, Perris, Riverside, San Jacinto, 
Temecula, and Wildomar; the County of Riverside; County Flood Control and Water Conservation District; County Regional 
Park and Open-Space District; County Department of Waste Resources; the Riverside County Transportation Commission; 
the California Department of Transportation; the California Department of Parks and Recreation; the United States Fish 
and Wildlife Service; and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 


4. Who are Local Permittees?


Local Permittees are the local agencies which are signers of the federal Endangered Species Act permit issued by the United 
States Fish and Wildlife Service. They include the 18 western Riverside County cities of Banning, Beaumont, Calimesa, 



mailto:amayer@rctc.org

mailto:ahake@rctc.org





Canyon Lake, Corona, Eastvale, Hemet, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Menifee, Moreno Valley, Murrieta, Norco, Perris, 
Riverside, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar; the County of Riverside; County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District; County Regional Park and Open-Space District; County Department of Waste Resources; and the Riverside County 
Transportation Commission. The California Departments of Transportation and Parks and Recreation are also signers of the 
permit; however, those organizations are not considered local permittees. Per Section 6 of the MSHCP, local jurisdictions 
will implement the MSHCP through their normal land use, planning, and approval process as described in Section 6.1.1 as 
well as through management of contributed public lands. By fulfilling their requirements under the MSHCP, including 
imposition of the LDMF, Local Permittees retain the benefits of the MSHCP, ranging from ESA coverage for projects within 
their jurisdiction and Measure A transportation funding. 


5. Who are Member Agencies of the RCA?


Member Agencies are the signatories to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement forming the Western Riverside County 
Regional Conservation Authority (RCA). They include the 18 western Riverside County cities of Banning, Beaumont, 
Calimesa, Canyon Lake, Corona, Eastvale, Hemet, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Menifee, Moreno Valley, Murrieta, Norco, 
Perris, Riverside, San Jacinto, Temecula, and Wildomar and the County of Riverside. The Member Agencies form the 
independent RCA Board of Directors to acquire, administer, operate, and maintain land and facilities to establish habitat 
reserves for the conservation and protection of species covered by the MSHCP and to implement the MSHCP. 


6. What other Funding Sources Contribute to the MSHCP?


• Measure A


• Regional Transportation Funding (Public contributions from regional transportation infrastructure projects)


• Landfill Tipping Fees


• Mitigation Fees, including private development mitigation fees


• Federal and State grants


7. What is the 2020 Nexus Study?


The Western Riverside County MSHCP 2020 Nexus Study establishes the legal and policy basis by which a mitigation fee, 
pursuant to "The Mitigation Fee Act" (California Government Code Section 66000, et seq.), contributes to finance habitat 
acquisition and other appropriate uses in connection with new development in the MSHCP Plan Area. The 2020 Nexus 
Study provides a thorough analysis of costs, funding sources, and forecasts future development in western Riverside 
County. It also provides the financial and technical justification for changes to the LDMF. The full 2020 Nexus Study can be 
reviewed at www.wrc-rca.org. 


8. Why was a Nexus Study update needed?


An updated Nexus Study was needed to ensure adequate funding to complete the MSHCP and fulfill the responsibilities of 
Local Permittees as required by the MSHCP Implementing Agreement.  
A Nexus Study was completed in 2003 coinciding with the adoption of the MSHCP, Implementing Agreement, and the 
signing of the Permits. Section 8.5.1 of the MSHCP allows the fee to be reevaluated and revised should it be found to 
insufficiently cover mitigation of new development. The 2020 Nexus Study represents the first reevaluation of the LDMF 
since originally implemented. 


9. What were the results of the 2020 Nexus Study?


The 2020 Nexus Study determined the fee level required to provide sufficient revenues to support the full 
implementation of the MSHCP, including the completion of all land acquisition and the funding for the Plan endowment, 
by 2044 (Year 40 of Plan implementation). The endowment will cover the administration and land management and 
monitoring after the completion of land acquisition. This represents a 15-year extension of the acquisition period as 
approved by the RCA Board of Directors at its December 2020 board meeting. 
As noted on pages 6 and 7 of the 2020 Nexus Study and discussed in detail in Chapters 2 through 7, the key drivers of the 
fee change are:  


2



http://www.wrc-rca.org/





 


• Lower-than-expected land dedications through the Habitat Evaluation and Acquisition Negotiation Strategy 


(HANS); 


• Lower than expected regional infrastructure public contributions; and 


• Desire to implement a “per gross acre” fee which provides a more consistent and equitable approach for all land 


use development types. 


 
10. Why is the LDMF Changing? 


As a result of lower-than-expected land dedications, regional infrastructure public contributions, and the desire to 
implement a “per gross acre” fee, the 2020 Nexus Study determined the LDMF will increase on all categories except for 
high-density residential, to provide the financial certainty to complete the MSHCP and maintain the habitat in perpetuity. 
The LDMF increases will support the continued implementation of the MSHCP and the streamlining of endangered species 
incidental take permitting for new western Riverside County development provided under the MSHCP, while providing the 
funding necessary to acquire, monitor, and manage the 500,000 acres required by the MSHCP. Also, the LDMF increases 
will ensure long-term protection and maintenance of the habitats. Without updating the LDMF, Local Permittees would be 
unlikely to meet their commitments as agreed to in the Implementing Agreement, the ultimate consequence of which 
would be revocation of the endangered species incidental take permits by state and federal agencies. 


 
11. How is the LDMF Changing? 


Nexus Study LDMF Fee Schedule 


Category 


Current fee per 
unit or per 


acre 
Effective 


July 1, 2021 
Effective 


January 1, 2022 


Residential: Up to 8.0 
dwelling units/acre 
(DUAC) 


$2,234 $2,935 $3,635 


Residential: 8.0-14 
DUAC 


$1,430 $1,473 $1,515 


Residential: 14.0+ DUAC $1,161 $670 $670 


Commercial (per acre) $7,606 $11,982 $16,358 


Industrial (per acre) $7,606 $11,982 $16,358 


 
12. Who Approved the Nexus Study and LDMF Increase? 


The RCA Board of Directors adopted the 2020 Nexus Study and increase in LDMF at its December 7, 2020 public board 
meeting by a 17-1 vote.   
 
13. When is the LDMF increase effective? 


The LDMF increase is effective in two phases. The first phase, an increase of 50%, is effective July 1, 2021. The second 
phase, full implementation, is effective January 1, 2022.  
 
14. What is needed from Member Agencies regarding the Ordinance and Resolution? 


Member Agencies must prepare the ordinance and resolution to be considered and approved by the City Council (Board of 
Supervisors in the case of the County of Riverside) in time to implement the new fee by July 1, 2021. Final action of the city 
council/Board of Supervisors must be no later than May 2, 2021 to ensure the new Ordinance takes effect by July 1, 2021. 
California Government Code Section 66017 states that the fee “shall be effective no sooner than 60 days following the final 
action on the adoption of the fee or charge or increase in the fee or charge.”  
Per the Implementing Agreement which cities and the County of Riverside signed, the cities and County must adopt the 
Ordinance, “in substantially the same form or at a minimum, containing the same requirements as the model ordinance,” 
adopted by the RCA Board of Directors. 
 


3







 
15. Why was the Resolution added separately from the Ordinance? 


The Resolution was added in addition to the Ordinance to allow for a more efficient process to update future fee changes. 
 
16. What changes are in the Ordinance? 


The original model ordinance for Member Agencies to implement the LDMF was included in the Implementing Agreement 
which was approved in June 2004. Several changes are made to the model Ordinance including: 


• Language is added to the Ordinance reaffirming RCA as the administrator of the Ordinance; authorizing the RCA to 
receive all fees generated; and to invest, account for, and expend such fees in accordance with the MSHCP. These 
functions are consistent with current practices;  


• Additional clarification is added with respect to refunds;  
• Exemptions are clarified;  
• Language is added to clarify that the LDMF will be paid no later than at the issuance of a building permit;  
• Language was added concerning the mitigation of public projects and fee credits allowing the RCA Board of 


Directors to rescind Resolution Nos. 2007-04 and 2016-003 and the “Tenets Relating to Local Infrastructure 
Contribution” adopted on February 5, 2007. 


17. What is the MSHCP Mitigation Fee Implementation Manual? 


The MSHCP Mitigation Fee Implementation Manual (Manual) is an administrative document that provides direction to local 
jurisdictions under the MSHCP concerning their obligations under the MSHCP and the incidental take permits regarding the 
imposition, collection, accounting, remittance, and calculation of the LDMF. The Manual sets the rules for fee 
implementation, discusses collection and remittance of fees, outlines the appropriate methods for calculating mitigation 
fee payments for different types of projects, and provides multiple examples of how to apply the LDMF. The Manual can 
be updated by the RCA Board of Directors to address ongoing concerns at any time. Changes to the LDMF can only be made 
by Resolution and not through an update to the Manual. 
 
18. How are Measure A transportation sales tax funds related to the LDMF?  


To be eligible for Measure A transportation funds, Member Agencies are required to implement and remit the LDMF in 
accordance with the MSHCP. This is a requirement of the Measure A Ordinance adopted by Riverside County voters. 
Annually, RCA certifies Member Agency compliance to RCTC. 


 
19. Who should I contact with questions about implementation of the LDMF? 


Jennifer Fuller 
Financial Administration Manager 
jfuller@rctc.org 
(951) 787-7141 


 
 


4



mailto:jfuller@rctc.org





  


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.2 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
 Meeting Date:  April 14, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Acting Administrative Services Director 
                                James Riley, User Fee Project Coordinator 
 
PREPARED BY: Adam Jantz, Administrative Analyst II 
 
SUBJECT:  User Fee and Labor Rate Update 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 


1.  Introduce and approve first reading of an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING AND RESTATING ARTICLE II (FEE 
SCHEDULES) OF CHAPTER 3.44 (FEES) OF TITLE 3 (REVENUE AND 
FINANCE) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNCIPAL CODE, AND REPEALING 
SECTIONS 12.08.070, 17.284.030, 17.284.040, 17.284.050, and 
17.284.060 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, PERTAINING TO USER FEES 
 


2. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF USER FEES 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The City originally adopted the Riverside County Code, and the County fees that were in 
place at the time of adoption. Many of these fees are outdated and do not cover the cost 
of service. The City is therefore proposing an Ordinance to amend the Wildomar 
Municipal Code (WMC) to allow fees to be set by resolution of the City Council. Staff is 
then proposing several fee schedules and staff rates to be adopted by resolution of the 
City Council to ensure that the cost of development services are adequately covered.   
 
 
 







  


 


  


DISCUSSION: 
The Land Use and Subdivision fees specified in the code are outdated and not reflective 
of the actual work needed to perform the requested tasks. City staff is therefore 
recommending removing any parts of the Wildomar Municipal Code that specify actual 
fee amounts and replace it with language that allows fees to be set by resolution. Once 
the fee amounts are removed the City will need to pass a resolution to adopt a user fee 
schedule to charge applicants for the requested tasks. 
 
Staff is also recommending the Building and Safety fee schedule be updated. Therefore, 
a new fee schedule for Building and Safety is being proposed that will better reflect the 
City’s actual cost of performing the services. The new schedule accounts for the actual 
contract cost to the City and the number of inspections needed to complete a building 
permit.  
 
The initial deposits on the deposit-based fees are also being increased by an average of 
27.46%. Deposit-based fees are designed to capture the actual cost of projects. The 
unused portion of the deposit amount is refundable after project completion. If the project 
requires more work than the initial deposit will cover, additional monies will be collected. 
By raising these initial deposit amounts, the City will not have to collect additional deposits 
as often. This saves both the City and customer money as less time will have to be spent 
collecting and receipting additional monies, which is normally charged back to the 
customer. It also helps reduce stop-work orders due to the deposit account being 
depleted.  
 
The Public Works user fees are also being updated. One of the major additions is a new 
Haul permit. In the past a transportation permit was used since there was not a fee 
specifically for hauling materials repeatedly throughout the City. The other major change 
is the transitioning of the routine Utility Encroachment Permits from a deposit-based fee 
to a fixed fee. This will substantially reduce management costs for both the utility 
companies and City.         
 
Staff has also recalculated labor rates for City staff positions based on the latest position 
schedule incorporating the minimum wage increases as well as the new General Admin 
(Overhead) rate based on the FY2019/20 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR). 
 
The User Fees package attached includes the following: 
 


1. A summary of the fees proposed. 
2. A detailed user fee determination cost analysis worksheet for each fixed fee.  The 


worksheet provides essential information as to the services being provided, who is 
providing the service, how long it takes to provide the service, and a comparison 
to what other Agencies charge for the service. 


3. The determination of the total burdened hourly billing rate. 
4. The determination of the City’s General Admin Overhead rate. 







  


 


  


 
Staff is recommending that the amended ordinance and resolution be effective July 1st, 
2021. However, recognizing the current situation involving the Covid-19 pandemic, staff 
is proposing that the fixed fees that are increasing only be implemented at 50% of the 
increase until January 1st, 2022. At this point the fee increases would be implemented in 
their entirety. Please note that this does not affect deposits, new fees, or fees being 
converted from a deposit to a fixed fee, such as encroachment permits. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fiscal impact of adopting this ordinance and resolution will improve cost recovery for 
the City in the performance of services. Because of the uncertainty of future development 
activity within the City due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the fiscal impacts are currently 
unknown. 
 
 
Submitted by:                   Approved by: 
Robert Howell                  Gary Nordquist 
Acting Administrative Services Director                City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
Resolution 
Building, Public Works/Engineering, and Planning User Fees and Staff Rates 
Recommendation Package 
 







 
ORDINANCE NO. _____ 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING AND RESTATING ARTICLE II (FEE 
SCHEDULES) OF CHAPTER 3.44 (FEES) OF TITLE 3 (REVENUE AND 
FINANCE) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNCIPAL CODE, AND REPEALING 
SECTIONS 12.08.070, 17.284.030, 17.284.040, 17.284.050, and 
17.284.060 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, PERTAINING TO USER FEES. 


 
 
WHEREAS, on July 1st, 2008, the City of Wildomar incorporated and the City Council 
adopted the County of Riverside Code as the City’s Municipal Code, which includes 
several code sections establishing user fee amounts; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has the authority to impose fees, charges, and rates under its police 
powers under California Constitution Article XI section 7; and, 
 
WHEREAS, City staff has completed a user fee study to determine the costs incurred 
when providing services to persons for private benefit and proposes that the City Council 
adopt the new fees by resolution, rather than by ordinance, to streamline the process for 
future fee updates; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the Municipal Code to eliminate specific 
fee amounts and authorize those fees to be established by resolution of the City Council. 


NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar does ordain as follows:  
 
SECTION 1. Article II of Title 3, Chapter 3.44 of the Wildomar Municipal Code is hereby 
amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:  
 
3.44.210 Planning and Land use fees. 
 
The City may charge fees for the following items. The fees shall be established by 
resolution of the City Council. 
1. Appeals to Planning Commission or City Council 
2. Change of Zone 
3. Conditional Use Permit (General) 
4. Conditional Use Permit (Mobile home Park) 
5. Conditional Use Permit (Recreational Vehicle Park) 
6. Extension of Time—Commercial WECS and Variances 
7. Extension of Time—Conditional Use Permits 
8. Extension of Time—Public Use Permits 
9. General Plan Amendment 


10. General Plan Amendment—Circulation Element 


11. Revised Permits Which Do Not Require a Public Hearing 


12. Revised Permits Which Require a Public Hearing 







13. Zoning Compliance Letters  


14. Plot Plan Which is Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) 


15. Plot Plan Which Is Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) and Is Not Reviewed by any Governmental Agencies other than the 
Planning Department 


16. Plot Plan Which Is Not Exempt from the California Environmental Quality 
(CEQA) 


17. Public Use Permit 


18. Second Unit Permit 


19. Setback Adjustment 


20. Specific Plan 


21. Specific Plan Amendment 


22. Specific Plan—Road Specific Plan 


23. Substantial Conformance for Permits under Section 17.228 of the Zoning 
Ordinance 


24. Substantial Conformance for Specific Plans 


25. Temporary Permit Not to Exceed Six Months (TUP) 


26. Variance Filed Simultaneously with an Application for a Land Division, 
Conditional Use Permit, Commercial WECS Permit or Plot Plan 


27. Variance Filed Alone 


28. Accessory WECS 


29. Commercial WECS Permit 


30. WECS Noise Study 


31. Large Family Day Care Home 


32. Hazardous Waste Facility Siting Permit 


33. Kennels and Catteries Processed Under Section 17.236 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Class I—IV) 


34. Temporary Outdoor Event on City Property 


35. Temporary Outdoor Event on Private Property 


36. Regularly Scheduled Event Exempt from the CEQA 


37. Regularly Scheduled Event 


38. Substantial Conformance for Commercial and Accessory WECS Permits 


39. Title 17 Zoning Consistency Determination 


40. Verification of Pre-Existing Nonconforming Use 


41. Extension of Pre-Existing Nonconforming Use 


42. Transportation Department Plan Check for any Application under Title 17 
which Requires Road Work Design or Improvements not Otherwise Provided 
for under Title 17 


43. Preapplication Review 







44.  Environmental review of projects under the California Environmental 
Quality Act; Including Negative Declarations, Mitigated Negative Declarations, 
and Environmental Impact Reports  


45. Agricultural preserve and land conservation contract establishment, 
enlargement, diminishment, disestablishment or nonrenewal 


46. Review of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions Required by Conditions 
of Development Permit 


47. Alquist Priolo Act – Geological Report Approvals and Waivers 


48. LAFCO (Local Agency Formation Commission) Applications  


49. Certificate of Historical Appropriateness Appeals 


50. Crowing Fowl 


51. Noise Ordinance Exemptions Requests 


52. Development Agreements 


53. Research and Archival Search for Planning Records  


 
3.44.220 Flood hazard area fees. 
 
The City may charge fees for the following items, which shall be established by 
resolution of the City Council: 
1. Application Involving Land Which Lies Within the Boundaries of a flood 
hazard area under WMC 15.96 
2. Applications for an Appeal or Variance under WMC 15.96.070 


 
3.44.230 Subdivision fees. 
 
The City may charge fees for the following items related to the division of land, which 
shall be established by resolution of the City Council: 


1. Multifamily Residential Tracts 
a. Tentative Statutory Condominium Subdivision Map Filing (Sewers) 
b. Tentative Statutory Condominium Subdivision Map Filing (Unsewered)  
c. Revised Statutory Condominium Subdivision Map Filing (Within Two Years of 
Original Approval) 


2. Parcel Maps 
a. Tentative Commercial or Industrial Parcel Maps (Sewers)  
b. Commercial or Industrial Parcel Map (Unsewered) 
c. Tentative Residential Parcel Map with Waiver of Final Map  
d. Tentative Residential Parcel Map Without Waiver of Final Map 
e. Revised Parcel Map Filing (Residential, Commercial, and Industrial Parcel 
Maps Within Two Years of Original Approval) 







f. Revised Parcel Map Filing (Commercial and Industrial Parcel Maps After Two 
Years of Original Approval) 


g. Revised Residential Parcel Map Filing (After Two Years of Original Approval) 


3. Single-Family Residential Tracts 


a. Tentative Subdivision Map Not in the R-2, R-4 or R-6 Zone (Sewers) 
b. Tentative Subdivision Map in the R-2, R-4 or R-6 Zone (Sewered) 
c. Tentative Subdivision Map Not in the R-2, R-4 or R-6 Zone (Unsewered) 
d. Revised Tentative Subdivision Map (Within Two Years of Original Approval) 
e. Revised Subdivision Map (After Two Years of Original Approval) 


4. Vesting Tentative Map  
a. Vesting Statutory Condominium Subdivision Map Filing 
b. Vesting Tentative Parcel Map 
c. Vesting Tentative Single-Family Residential Tract 


5. Appeals (Subdivision) 
6. Appeals Extension of Time  
7. Conditioned Certificate of Land Division Compliance (Fee per Parcel)  
8. Unconditioned Certificate of Land Division Compliance (Fee per Parcel) 
9. Certificate of Land Division Compliance with Waiver of Final Parcel Map 
(Fee per Parcel) 


10. Extension of Time (Subdivision)  


11. Extension of Time (Parcel Map) 
12. Land Division Maps (Tracts and Parcels)  
13. Lot Line Adjustment 


14. Minor Change (Subdivision)  
15. Minor Change (Parcel Map) 
16. Parcel Mergers 


17. Reversion to Acreage  
18. Amendment of Final Map  


a. Statutory Condominium Subdivisions and Single-Family Residential Tracts 
b. Parcel Maps  


19. Certificate of Correction (No Street Name Checking) 
 


20. Certificate of Correction (With Street Name Checking) 


21. Street Acceptance for Unnamed Easements (Non-Maintained) 







22. Requests for Extension of Time to Complete Off-Site Improvements 
23. Requests for One-Year Maintenance Agreement 


 


24. Final Statutory Condominium Subdivision Map Filing 
25. Final Parcel Map Filing 
26. Final Subdivision Map Filing 
27. Plan Review and Processing for On and Off-Site Improvements 


28. Field Inspection for On and Off-Site Improvements 


29. Close-Out of On and Off-Site Improvement Permits 


30. Survey Reviews and Field Inspections 
 


31. Flood Control Special Studies 
 


32. Center Line Profile Plan Check  


33. Certificate of Compliance for Subdivision Maps  


34. Community Facilities District Annexation Costs 
 


35. Water Quality Management Plan  
 
3.44.240 Surface mining fees. 
 
The City may charge fees for implementing the Surface Mining and Reclamation Act of 
1975 as listed below, which shall be established by resolution of the City Council: 
1. Surface Mining Permit 
2. Reclamation Plans Submitted for Vested Operations Conducted After 
January 1, 1976 


3. Appeal of Planning Commission Decision 


4. Special Inspection Permit 
5. Substantial Conformance 


6. Revised Permit 
 
3.44.250 Tree removal fees. 
 
The City may charge a fee for a tree removal permit under Section 12.08.050 of this 
Code, which shall be established by resolution of the City Council. 
 
3.44.260 Historic preservation fees. 
 
The City may charge fees for the establishment of historic preservation districts under 
Chapter 15.88 of the Code, which shall be established by resolution of the City Council. 
 







3.44.270 Fees for highway vacation and property dedication. 
 
The City may charge fees for the acceptance of property offered for dedication and the 
vacation of streets and highways, which shall be established by resolution of the City 
Council. 
 
3.44.280 Fees for excavations and encroachments 


 
The City may charge fees for excavation and encroachment permits under Chapter 
12.08 and Chapter 17.284 of this Code, which shall be established by resolution of the 
City Council. 
 
SECTION 2.  Section 12.8.070 of the Wildomar Municipal Code regarding fees for 
excavations and encroachments on city streets is hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  Sections 17.284.030, 17.284.040, 17.284.050, 17.284.060 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code regarding fees for encroachments are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall be effective on July 1st, 2021, which is more than 30 
days after its final passage. 
 
SECTION 5. The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be 
published within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation 
and circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Chapter 36933(a) or, 
to cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the 
alternative summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code Chapter 
39633(c). 
 
SECTION 6. If any part of this Ordinance, is held to be invalid for any reason, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance, and this 
City Council hereby declares that it would have passed the remainder of the Ordinance if 
such invalid portion thereof had been deleted. 
 
INTRODUCED this 14th day of April, 2021.  
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED on the 12th day of May, 2021.  
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 
 
 
 







APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney                Acting City Clerk 


 
 


 







  


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF USER FEES 


 
WHEREAS, the City has the authority to impose fees, charges, and rates under its police 
powers under California Constitution Article XI section 7 and pursuant to Article II of 
Chapter 3.44 of the Wildomar Municipal Code; and, 
 
WHEREAS, City staff completed a user fee study to determine the City’s present day 
costs incurred when providing services to persons for private benefit; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 66016 applies to the adoption or increase of fees 
for zoning variances, zoning changes, use permits, building inspections, building permits, 
filing and processing applications and petitions filed with the LAFCO, the processing of 
subdivision maps, and planning services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 66018 applies to the adoption or increase of fees 
to which a specific statutory notice requirement does not apply; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code sections 66016 and 66018 the enactment or 
increase in any fees to be charged for services must be adopted by the City Council by 
ordinance or resolution, after providing notice and holding a public hearing; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code sections 66016 and 66019, the data required 
to be made available to the public prior to increasing the amount of the fees by this 
resolution was made available for public review at least 10 days prior to the date of this 
meeting; and, 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing on the new and increased user fees was published 
in accordance with Government Code sections 66018 and 6062a; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a duly noticed public hearing before the City Council was held on April 14th, 
2021 at which public testimony was received and duly considered on the proposed new 
and increased fees; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code sections 66016 and 66019, fees adopted 
pursuant to those sections shall not take effect until at least sixty (60) days have passed 
since the final action on the adoption or increase of the fee. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Wildomar:  
 


1. Finds that the above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by 
reference, and that the user fees established by this resolution reflect the City’s 
actual and reasonable costs of providing the services for which the fees are 
charged. 


2. Accepts and approves the user fee study prepared by City staff and presented to 
the City Council simultaneously with this resolution, which study is incorporated 
herein by reference. 







  


 


  


3. Adopts the schedule of user fees set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, and orders that said schedule of user fees shall 
go into effect on July 1, 2021. 


4. Determines that to the extent that this resolution approves fees that overlap and 
are inconsistent with previous resolutions setting fees, this resolution supersedes 
those previous resolutions.  This resolution does not supersede any previous 
resolution setting fees that are not included in Exhibit A to this resolution. 


5. Determines that if any action, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Resolution or the fees levied by this Resolution shall be held invalid or 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution or the fees levied by this 
Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid provisions.   


 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED on the 14th day of April, 2021.  
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      Acting City Clerk 
 







Proposed Building User Fees - Residential


Fee Current Fee


 Projected 


Revenue 


                 Residential Fees


Res 1 BXX bprdek Residential Deck/Balcony Fixed $517.43 $424.51 $517.00 $92.49 1,034$      


Res 2 BMR bmrrin Residential Manufactured Coach - Install Fixed $636.83 $240.72 $636.00 $395.28 10,812$    


Res 3 BMR bmrerb Manufactured Home - Earthquake Resistant Bracing Fixed $398.02 $240.72 $398.00 $157.28 398$         


Res 4 BMR bmrrna Residential Manufactured Accessory Structure Fixed $693.69 $240.72 $693.00 $452.28 693$         


Res 5 BMR bmrrpf Residential Manufactured Home- Permanent Foundation Fixed $551.54 $240.72 $551.00 $310.28 13,224$    


Res 6 BMR bmrpfe Permanent Foundation to Existing Manufactured Home Fixed $457.72 $240.72 $457.00 $216.28 11,425$    


Res 7 BMR bmrrnr Replace Residential Manufactured Home Coach Fixed $398.02 $240.72 $398.00 $157.28 3,582$      


Res 8 BXX bptrpa Residential Patio Cover
If Electrical Work Is Required Add 1hr Inspection & 


.5hr Plan Review
Fixed $517.43 $306.60 $517.00 $210.40 19,646$    


Res 9 BXX brrrll Residential Re-Roof Fixed $338.32 $185.23 $338.00 $152.77 6,084$      


Res 10 BSP bsrags Residential - Above Ground Spa Fixed $398.02 $431.96 $398.00 ($33.96) 398$         


Res 11 BSP bsrigs Residential - In Ground Spa Fixed $636.83 $431.96 $636.00 $204.04 636$         


Res 12 BSP bldwks Residential Swimming Pool
For Each Additional Feature Add .5hr Inspection & 


.5hr Plan Review
Fixed $636.83 $473.07 $636.00 $162.93 33,708$    


Res 13 BAR bara Residential Addition Deposit N/A $2,592.33 $3,200.00 $607.67 N/A


Res 14 BXX bldbrn Residential Barn Deposit N/A $1,568.44 $2,000.00 $431.56 N/A


Res 15 BXX bldcnp Residential Canopy/Carport Deposit N/A $1,568.44 $2,000.00 $431.56 N/A


Res 16 BXX bxregw Residential Walls Deposit N/A $741.53 $900.00 $158.47 N/A


Res 17 BMR bmrrsp Residential Manuafactured Home Site Prep Deposit N/A $507.96 $1,000.00 $492.04 N/A


Res 18 BRS brsimf Multi-Family Residential Units - Individual Deposit N/A $4,009.62 $5,000.00 $990.38 N/A


Res 19 BXX bldagb New Agricultural Building Deposit N/A $1,568.44 $2,000.00 $431.56 N/A


Res 20 BRS brs New Residential Deposit N/A $4,632.43 $5,800.00 $1,167.57 N/A


Res 21 BRS brstrct Repeat Tract Homes For Copies of an Approved Tract Home Deposit N/A N/A $3,600.00 N/A N/A


Res 22 BXX bxxerp Residential Pillasters Deposit N/A $741.53 $900.00 $158.47 N/A


Res 23 BAR barr Residential Rehabilitation Deposit N/A $2,677.81 $3,300.00 $622.19 N/A


Res 24 BXX bxrret Residential Retaining Wall Deposit N/A $432.89 $600.00 $167.11 N/A


Res 25 BXX bsprwt Residential Water Tank Deposit N/A $626.58 $800.00 $173.42 N/A


Res 26 BXX bxrwec Residential Wind Energy Conservation System Deposit N/A $965.52 $1,200.00 $234.48 N/A


Res 27 BXX bldprg Private Garage or Storage Structure for Personal Property Deposit N/A $1,662.43 $2,000.00 $337.57 N/A


*Building Fixed Fees are Only Refundable For 5 Business Days After Application and are Only Reimbursable Up to 65% of Fee


**Deposit Based Fee Balances Are Refundable After Project Completion 


Change


Permit 


Type


Permit 


Code Fee Description Notes Fee Type Full Cost Proposed Fee







Proposed Building User Fees - Electrical, Mechanical, Miscellaneous, Grading, and Plumbing


Fee Current Fee


Projected 


Revenue


                 Electrical Fees


Elec 1 BEL belrel Residential Electrical Permit Fixed $454.88 $214.71 $454.00 $239.29 $12,258.00


Elec 2 BEL belspv Residential Solar Photovoltaic Less than 10K Watts Fixed $454.88 $425.54 $450.00 $24.46 $95,850.00


Elec 3 BEL beltpr Temporary Electrical Fixed $278.61 $214.71 $278.00 $63.29 $834.00


Elec 4 BEL belevc Electric Vehicle Charging Station Installation Fixed $454.88 N/A $450.00 N/A $450.00


Elec 5 BEL panlup Electrical Panel Upgrade Fixed $221.75 $188.19 $221.00 $32.81 $7,514.00


Elec 6 BEL belcst Commercial Electrical Work Permit Without Upgrade, Safety/Meter Reset/Service Upgrade Deposit N/A $378.32 $500.00 $121.68 N/A


                 Grading Fees


Grad 1 BGR bggsfr Residential Grading - New or Expansion to Single Family Residence Deposit N/A $1,878.23 $2,300.00 $421.77 N/A


Grad 2 BGR bgrcom Grading - Commercial/Industrial Grading Permit Deposit N/A $4,714.03 $5,900.00 $1,185.97 N/A


Grad 3 BGR bggxtp Grading - Export Permit Deposit N/A $4,411.50 $5,500.00 $1,088.50 N/A


Grad 4 BGR bggfcc Grading - Flood Channel Deposit N/A $1,957.79 $2,400.00 $442.21 N/A


Grad 5 BGR bggoth Grading - Golf Course/Other Deposit N/A $1,957.79 $2,400.00 $442.21 N/A


Grad 6 BGR bgggsc Grading - Grubbing/Clearing and Prep Work Only Deposit N/A $677.69 $800.00 $122.31 N/A


Grad 7 BGR bggimp Grading - Import Deposit N/A $4,714.03 $5,900.00 $1,185.97 N/A


Grad 8 BGR bggstk Grading - Stockpile Permit Deposit N/A $4,411.50 $5,500.00 $1,088.50 N/A


Grad 9 BGR bgrsfm Grading - Surface Mining Deposit N/A $2,079.58 $2,600.00 $520.42 N/A


Grad 10 BGR bggpre Grading - Tracts - Precise Only Per Lot Deposit N/A $437.48 $500.00 $62.52 N/A


Grad 11 BGR bggruf Rough/Mass Grade Combination Deposit N/A $4,502.59 $5,600.00 $1,097.41 N/A


Grad 12 BGR wqmp *Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) Add Amount to Grading Permit Deposit if WQMP is Required Deposit N/A $2,000.00 $2,500.00 $500.00 N/A


*A WQMP submittal and deposit is required if the project is a Priority Development Project as defined by the WQMP Applicability Checklist (Exhibit D of the Wildomar WQMP). Engineer shall complete, stamp, and sign the checklist with submittal of fees.


**Wildomar WQMP Applicability Checklist https://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/departments/public_works/2018_wildomar_w_q_m_p_documents


                 Mechanical Fees


Mech 1 BME bldrme Residential Mechanical Fixed $398.02 $185.23 $398.00 $212.77 $8,358.00


Mech 2 BME bldcme Commercial Mechanical Deposit N/A $396.39 $494.00 $97.61 N/A


                 Miscellaneous Fees


Misc 1 BXX btctoo Change of Tenancy w/ No Improvements Fixed $278.61 $188.19 $278.00 $89.81 $1,390.00


Misc 2 BXX bxfosf Fences - Over 7 Feet Tall Fixed $568.60 $531.62 $568.00 $36.38 $568.00


Misc 3 TBD reins Re-Inspection Fee For a 1 Hour Inspection Fixed $153.52 $65.00 $153.00 $88.00 $765.00


Misc 4 BSI bhsife Miscellaneous After Hours Inspection Specialty or After-Hours Inspection - For 4 Hours Fixed $511.74 $295.80 $511.00 $215.20 $1,022.00


Misc 5 BSN bnsign Sign Permit If Electrical Work is Needed Additional .5hr Inspection is Required Fixed $398.02 $425.54 $398.00 ($27.54) $1,990.00


Misc 6 TBD TBD Job Card Replacement Fixed $93.82 N/A $93.00 N/A $279.00


Misc 7 TBD TBD Approved Plan Revision Fixed $142.15 N/A $142.00 N/A $284.00


Misc 8 TBD TBD Miscellaneous Hourly Plan Review Each Additional Hour is 1 Hour Plans Examiner III Rate Fixed $164.89 N/A $164.00 N/A $164.00


Misc 9 TBD TBD Certificate of Occupancy Issuance Fee Requires Multiple Departments to Sign-Off Fixed $177.47 N/A $177.00 N/A $2,655.00


Misc 10 TBD TBD Tract Site Review Fixed $493.41 $437.48 $493.00 $55.52 $986.00


Misc 11 TBD mshcpad Multi-Species Habitat Conservation Plan Administration Fee Per Each Individual MSHCP Fee Paid to the City Fixed $54.56 N/A $54.00 N/A $2,700.00


Misc 12 BXX bustop Bus Stop Deposit N/A $613.21 $800.00 $186.79 N/A


Misc 13 BXX bxtowr Cell Tower - New/Alter/Co-Locate Deposit N/A $2,121.39 $2,700.00 $578.61 N/A


Misc 14 BXX bxxexe Other Construction; Exploratory Excavation Deposit N/A $721.85 $900.00 $178.15 N/A


Misc 15 BSN bsntwr Miscellaneous Sign - Tower Sign Deposit N/A $2,120.89 $2,700.00 $579.11 N/A


                 Plumbing Fees


Plumb 1 BPL bldrpl Residential - Miscellaneous Plumbing Fixed $398.02 $188.19 $398.00 $209.81 $4,378.00


Plumb 2 BPL bldcpl Commercial Plumbing Deposit N/A $396.07 $500.00 $103.93 N/A


*Building Fixed Fees are Only Refundable For 5 Business Days After Application and are Only Reimbursable Up to 65% of Fee


**Deposit Based Fee Balances Are Refundable After Project Completion 


Change


Permit 


Type


Permit 


Code Fee Description Notes Fee Type Full Cost Proposed Fee







Proposed Building User Fees - Commercial & Demolition


Fee Current Fee


                 Commercial Property Fees


Comm 1 BXX brrcrr Commercial Re-Roof - No Structural Changes Fixed $363.90 $185.23 $363.00 $177.77 $1,815.00


Comm 2 BNR bcanap Commercial - Add to Commercial Deposit N/A $5,813.29 $7,300.00 $1,486.71 N/A


Comm 3 BNR bnr Commercial - New Non-Residential/Commercial Deposit N/A $9,811.18 $12,300.00 $2,488.82 N/A


Comm 4 BXX bxcret Commercial - Retaining Wall Deposit N/A $433.39 $500.00 $66.61 N/A


Comm 5 BMN bmncrc Commercial - Site Preparation Deposit N/A $751.33 $1,100.00 $348.67 N/A


Comm 6 BTI bttino Commercial - Tenant Improvements - No Occupancy Deposit N/A $2,411.18 $3,000.00 $588.82 N/A


Comm 7 BTI btitwo Commercial - Tenant Improvements - With Occupancy Deposit N/A $2,411.18 $3,000.00 $588.82 N/A


Comm 8 BNR bcanen Commercial Canopies and Trash Enclosures Deposit N/A N/A $3,000.00 N/A N/A


                 Demolition Fees


Demo 1 BDE bdemo Demolition Permit Fixed $278.61 $217.67 $278.00 $60.33 $834.00


*Building Fixed Fees are Only Refundable For 5 Business Days After Application and are Only Reimbursable Up to 65% of Fee


**Deposit Based Fee Balances Are Refundable After Project Completion 


Projected 


Revenue


Permit 


Type


Permit 


Code ChangeFee Description Notes Fee Type Full Cost Proposed Fee







Fee


Original/Current 


Fee (2008)


Plan 1 PLN pln Zoning Compliance Letter Fixed $548.11 Deposit $500.00 N/A


Plan 2 PLN pln Setback Adjustment Fixed $548.11 Deposit $500.00 N/A


Plan 3 PLN pln Appeals Commission or City Council; Limited By Prior Council Action Fixed $4,405.76 $964.00 $964.00 $0.00


Plan 4 PLN pln Archival Search for Planning - Planning Director Hourly Rate Excluding Public Record Requests Fixed Varies $172.00 Staff Labor Rate Varies


Plan 5 PLN pln Agricultural Preserves (All Types) Deposit N/A $1,640.00 $2,500.00 $860.00


Plan 6 PLN pln Alquist Priolo Act - Geologic Report Approval Deposit N/A $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $0.00


Plan 7 PLN pln Alquist Priolo Act - Geologic Report Waiver Deposit N/A $140.00 $500.00 $360.00


Plan 8 PLN pln Certificate of Historical Appropriateness Appeals Deposit N/A $705.00 $750.00 $45.00


Plan 9 PLN pln CEQA Compliance - Negative Declaration Deposit N/A $472.00 $8,500.00 $8,028.00


Plan 10 PLN pln CEQA Compliance - Mitigated Negative Declaration Deposit N/A $472.00 $8,500.00 $8,028.00


Plan 11 PLN pln CEQA Compliance - Environmental Impact Report Deposit N/A $472.00 $10,000.00 $9,528.00


Plan 12 PLN pln Change of Zone Deposit N/A $3,577.00 $7,000.00 $3,423.00


Plan 13 PLN pln Conditional Use Permit (Non-Cannabis) Deposit N/A $7,593.00 $9,500.00 $1,907.00


Plan 14 PLN pln Crowing Fowl Deposit N/A $213.00 $2,500.00 $2,287.00


Plan 15 PLN pln Development Agreements (Non-Cannabis) Deposit N/A $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00


Plan 16 PLN pln Extension of Time (EOT) - All Deposit N/A $313.00 $4,500.00 $4,187.00


Plan 17 PLN pln General Plan Amendment (All Types) Deposit N/A $6,270.00 $8,500.00 $2,230.00


Plan 18 PLN pln Hazardous Waste Facility Siting Permit Deposit N/A $13,812.00 $16,000.00 $2,188.00


Plan 19 PLN pln Hog Ranches (Requires CUP) Deposit N/A $2,183.00 $9,500.00 $7,317.00


Plan 20 PLN pln Kennels & Catteries - Class I (Plot Plan) Deposit N/A $874.00 $4,000.00 $3,126.00


Plan 21 PLN pln Kennels & Catteries - Class II (Plot Plan) Deposit N/A $874.00 $4,000.00 $3,126.00


Plan 22 PLN pln Kennels & Catteries - Class III (CUP) Deposit N/A $874.00 $9,500.00 $8,626.00


Plan 23 PLN pln Kennels & Catteries - Class IV (CUP) Deposit N/A $874.00 $9,500.00 $8,626.00


Plan 24 PLN pln LAFCO Application For Private Developer Costs Deposit N/A $562.00 $5,000.00 $4,438.00


Plan 25 PLN pln Noise Ordinance Exceptions Request Deposit N/A $854.00 $1,500.00 $646.00


Plan 26 PLN pln Plot Plans Requiring Planning Director Approval Deposit N/A $2,380.00 $4,000.00 $1,620.00


Plan 27 PLN pln Plot Plans Requiring Planning Commission or City Council Approval Deposit N/A $3,053.00 $5,000.00 $1,947.00


Plan 28 PLN pln Pre-Application Review (PAR) Deposit N/A $996.00 $3,500.00 $2,504.00


Plan 29 PLN pln Public Use Permits Deposit N/A $5,326.00 $7,500.00 $2,174.00


Plan 30 PLN pln Revised Permits (CUPs, PP, PUPs) Deposit N/A $3,806.00 $4,500.00 $694.00


Plan 31 PLN pln Specific Plan Deposit N/A $15,244.00 $20,000.00 $4,756.00


Plan 32 PLN pln Specific Plan Amendment (SPA) Deposit N/A $7,622.00 $10,000.00 $2,378.00


Plan 33 PLN pln Substantial Conformance - All Deposit N/A $1,447.00 $4,000.00 $2,553.00


Plan 34 PLN pln Surface Mining Permit (SMP) - New Application Deposit N/A $9,360.00 $9,500.00 $140.00


Plan 35 PLN pln Surface Mining Permit (SMP) - Reclamation Plans Deposit N/A $3,587.00 $5,000.00 $1,413.00


Plan 36 PLN pln Surface Mining Permit (SMP) - Substantial Conformance Deposit N/A $723.00 $4,000.00 $3,277.00


Plan 37 PLN pln Surface Mining Permit (SMP) - Revised Permit Deposit N/A $3,231.00 $4,500.00 $1,269.00


Proposed Planning User Fees


Permit 


Type


Permit 


Code Fee Description Notes


Deposit or 


Fixed Full Cost Proposed Fee


                 Planning Fees


Change







Plan 38 PLN pln Variance (for CUP, Plot Plan, & PUP) Deposit N/A $2,125.00 $3,500.00 $1,375.00


Plan 39 PLN pln Amendment to Final Map (All Maps)       Add $16/Lot & $9/Acre Deposit N/A $2,401.00 $3,500.00 $1,099.00


Plan 40 PLN pln Land Division Map - PM Both Sewered & Unsewered Deposit N/A $500.00 $3,500.00 $3,000.00


Plan 41 PLN pln Land Division Map - TM Both Sewered & Unsewered Deposit N/A $500.00 $5,000.00 $4,500.00


Plan 42 PLN pln Lot Line Adjustments Deposit N/A $670.00 $7,500.00 $6,830.00


Plan 43 PLN pln Minor Change - Tract & Parcel Maps Deposit N/A $1,084.00 $4,500.00 $3,416.00


Plan 44 PLN pln Parcel Merger Deposit N/A $139.00 $7,500.00 $7,361.00


Plan 45 PLN pln Certificate of Compliance for Subdivision Maps Deposit N/A $657.00 $4,500.00 $3,843.00


Plan 46 PLN pln Reversion to Acreage Deposit N/A $977.00 $5,000.00 $4,023.00


Plan 47 PLN pln Tentative Parcel Map - Commercial/Industrial Sewered Add $24/Lot & $19/Acre Deposit N/A $8,259.00 $8,500.00 $241.00


Plan 48 PLN pln Tentative Parcel Map - Commercial/Industrial Unsewered Add $24/Lot & $19/Acre Deposit N/A $8,155.00 $8,500.00 $345.00


Plan 49 PLN pln Tentative Parcel Map - Residential with Final Map Waiver Add $96/Lot Deposit N/A $5,629.00 $7,000.00 $1,371.00


Plan 50 PLN pln Tentative Parcel Map - Residential w/o Final Map Waiver Add $102/Lot Deposit N/A $5,511.00 $8,500.00 $2,989.00


Plan 51 PLN pln Revised Tenative Parcel Map Add $77/Lot Deposit N/A $1,397.00 $5,000.00 $3,603.00


Plan 52 PLN pln Tenatative Tract Map (Condos - Sewered) Add $77/Unit & $19/Acre Deposit N/A $8,698.00 $9,000.00 $302.00


Plan 53 PLN pln Tentative Tract Map (Condos - Unsewered) Add $77/Unit & $19/Acre Deposit N/A $8,718.00 $9,000.00 $282.00


Plan 54 PLN pln Revised Tentative Tract Map Add $24/Unit & $20/Acre Deposit N/A $5,044.00 $6,500.00 $1,456.00


Plan 55 PLN pln Tenatative Tract Map (Sewered) Add $93/Lot & $19/Acre Deposit N/A $8,931.00 $10,000.00 $1,069.00


Plan 56 PLN pln Tentative Tract Map (Unsewered) Add $100/Lot & $19/Acre Deposit N/A $11,146.00 $12,000.00 $854.00


Plan 57 PLN pln Revised Tentative Tract Map Add $75/Lot & $23/Acre Deposit N/A $5,702.00 $6,500.00 $798.00


Fee


Plan 58 PLN pln Temporary Event Fee - For Wildomar Resident Private Property or City Park Fixed N/A $100.00 No Change $0.00


Plan 59 PLN pln Temporary Event Fee - Non-Profit with Wildomar Address Private Property or City Park Fixed N/A $150.00 No Change $0.00


Plan 60 PLN pln Temporary Event Fee - Wildomar Commercial Business Private Property or City Park Fixed N/A $200.00 No Change $0.00


Plan 61 PLN pln Temporary Event Fee - Applicant from Outside City Limits Private Property Fixed N/A $661.00 No Change $0.00


Plan 62 PLN pln Temporary Event Fee - Applicant from Outside City Limits City Park Fixed N/A $725.00 No Change $0.00


*Planning Fixed Fees are Non-Refundable


**Deposit Based Fee Balances Are Refundable After Project Completion


Fee


Plan 63 PLN pln Cannabis Local License Application Fee Deposit N/A $20,000.00 No Change $0.00


Plan 64 PLN pln Cannabis Development Agreement Fee Deposit N/A $12,000.00 No Change $0.00


Plan 65 PLN pln Cannabis Conditional Use Permit Fee Deposit N/A $20,000.00 No Change $0.00


Cannabis Application Fees - Adopted By Resolution 2020-35 On 5/28/2020


Permit 


Type


Permit 


Code Fee Description Notes


Deposit or 


Fixed Full Cost Current Fee 


Fees Adopted 


5/28/2020 Change


                 Temporary Event Permits


                 Tentative Tract Maps - Single Family Residential (Including Vesting Maps)


                 Tentative Parcel Maps - All (Including Vesting Maps)


                 Tentative Tract Maps - Multi-Family (Includes Vesting Maps)


Fee Description


Permit 


Code


Permit 


Type Current Fee Change


Fees Adopted 


2/19/2019Full Cost


Deposit or 


FixedNotes







Fee Fee Type Current Fee


PW 1 Repetitive Haul Permit For a Permit to Carry Out Work for 1 Day
Add 1/2 Hour of  Inspection Time for Each Additional Day - If Tied to 


Project Account May Also Be Assessed As Deposit
Fixed $369.59 $36.00 $369.00


PW 2 Transportation Permit One Public Works Review of Route 1 Time Pass Through Fixed $193.32 $36.00 $16.00


PW 3 Encroachment Permit for Major Utility
For 1 Permit to Carry Out Work in the Public Right-


of-Way - Base Fee is for 1 Day


For Up to 20 Days, 1 Additional Hour of Inspection Time for Each Day 


After 1st Day; More then 20 Days May Become Deposit-based
Fixed $443.51 Deposit $443.00


PW 4 Special Work - Hourly For 1 Hour For Miscellaneous Additional Work Due to Special Circumstances Fixed $150.11 Deposit $150.00


PW 5
Encroachment Permit for Non-Major 


Utility or Firm


For 1 Permit to Carry Out Work in the Public Right-


of-Way


Dependant on Number of Days - $443 For 1st Day Plus $97 For Each 


Additional Day
Deposit Varies Varies $443 + $97/Day


PW 6 Project-Based Encroachment Permit Falls Under Off-Site Improvements Below See Development Engineering Projects Below Deposit Varies Varies Varies


PW 7 Final Parcel Maps Schedule E, F, H, I Deposit Varies $3,500.00 $7,500.00 


PW 8 Final Subdivision (Tract) Map Schedule A-D Deposit Varies $3,500.00 $12,500.00 


PW 9 Final Statutory Condominium Map Deposit Varies $3,500.00 $12,500.00 


                 Development Engineering Projects


     Development Plan Review & Project Processing Phase


PW10 On-Site Improvements Plan Review See Attachment for More Detail Deposit


PW11 Off-Site Improvements Plan Review See Attachment for More Detail Deposit


PW12 Miscellaneous Survey Reviews See Attachment for More Detail Deposit


PW13 CFD Annexation Based on Consultant Estimate See Attachment for More Detail Deposit


     Development Construction and Permit/Inspection Phase


PW 14 On-Site Improvements Permit See Attachment for More Detail Deposit


PW 15 Off-Site Improvements Permit See Attachment for More Detail Deposit


PW 16 Miscellaneous Survey Inspections See Attachment for More Detail Deposit


     Development Project Close-Out Phase


PW 17 On-Site Improvements Permit See Attachment for More Detail Deposit


PW 18 Off-Site Improvements Permit See Attachment for More Detail Deposit


Initial Deposit


3% of Engineer's Construction Cost


3% of Engineer's Construction Cost


Varies


Initial Deposit


1% of Engineer's Construction Cost


1% of Engineer's Construction Cost


*Fixed Fees are Non-Refundable


**Deposit Based Fee Balances Are Refundable After Project Completion 


Initial Deposit


2% of Engineer's Construction Cost


2% of Engineer's Construction Cost


$5,000.00


$5,000 - $10,000 (Per Consultant Proposal)


Proposed Public Works User Fees


Fee Description Unit Notes Full Cost Proposed Fee







Fee Fee Type Current Fee


PW 19 Small Cell Site on City Owned Poles Up to 5 Processing of One Complete Application Fixed $894.41 $500.00 No Change


PW 20 Small Cell Site on City Owned Poles - Each Additional Pole over 5 Processing of One Complete Application Fixed $100.00 $100.00 No Change


PW 21 New Wireless Communications Pole Installation Processing of One Complete Application Fixed $1,299.04 $1,000.00 No Change


**Pole Licenseing Fees are Not Included


Fee Description Unit Full Cost


Adopted 


6/26/2019


*Fixed Fees are Non-Refundable







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Deck/Balcony 100 New New Building BXX bprdek


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          3.00 $315.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $455.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $455.00


City of Wildomar $517.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $62.43


City of Temecula 172.00       (345.00)    -67% Total Service Cost / Unit $517.43


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $517.00


County of Riverside 464.60       (52.40)      -10% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.43


City of Murrieta 289.00       (228.00)    -44% Current Fee Amount $424.51


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $92.49


Annual Usage 2                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $1,034.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 1


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Fee Plus % of Valuation


Residential. This Fee is for a pemit to install a deck or balcony on a residential property.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Manufactured Coach - 


Install
100 New New Building BMR bmrrin


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          4.00 $420.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $560.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $560.00


City of Wildomar $636.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $76.83


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $636.83


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $636.00


County of Riverside 246.22       (389.78)    -61% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.83


City of Murrieta 646.00       10.00        2% Current Fee Amount $240.72


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $395.28


Annual Usage 17               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $10,812.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 2


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Fee Plus % of Valuation


No Matching Fee


Residential Coach Installation for a Manufactured Home.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Manufactured Home - Earthquake 


Resistant Bracing
100 New New Building BMR bmrerb


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $350.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $350.00


City of Wildomar $398.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $48.02


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $398.02


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $398.00


County of Riverside 260.38       (137.62)    -35% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.02


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount $240.72


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $157.28


Annual Usage 1                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $398.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 3


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Fee Plus % of Valuation


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Permit for the Installation of Earthquake Resistent Bracing on a Manufactured Home.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Manufactured Accessory 


Structure
100 New New Building BMR bmrrna


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          4.00 $420.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          1.00 $100.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $610.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $610.00


City of Wildomar $693.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $83.69


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $693.69


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $693.00


County of Riverside 246.22       (446.78)    -64% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.69


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount $240.72


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $452.28


Annual Usage 1                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $693.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 4


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Fee Plus % of Valuation


No Matching Fee


Valuation Based Fee


Permit for a Manuafactured Residential Accessory Structure.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Manufactured Home- 


Permanent Foundation
100 New New Building BMR bmrrpf


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          3.00 $315.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            2.00 $120.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $485.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $485.00


City of Wildomar $551.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $66.54


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $551.54


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $551.00


County of Riverside 248.05       (302.95)    -55% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.54


City of Murrieta 646.00       95.00        17% Current Fee Amount $240.72


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $310.28


Annual Usage 24               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $13,224.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 5


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Fee Plus % of Valuation


Valuation Based Fee


Permit for a Permanent Foundation on a New Manufactured Home.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation. The Permit Technician also conducts research and review for the completion of the 433 form.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Permanent Foundation to Existing 


Manufactured Home
100 New New Building BMR bmrpfe


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.50 $262.50
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $402.50


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $402.50


City of Wildomar $457.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $55.22


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $457.72


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $457.00


County of Riverside (Deposit) 763.95       306.95      67% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.72


City of Murrieta 400.00       (57.00)      -12% Current Fee Amount $240.72


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $216.28


Annual Usage 25               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $11,425.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 6


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Fee Plus % of Valuation


No Matching Fee


Permit for a Permanent Foundation added to an Existing Manufactured Home.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Replace Residential Manufactured 


Home Coach
100 New New Building BMR bmrrnr


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $350.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $350.00


City of Wildomar $398.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $48.02


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $398.02


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $398.00


County of Riverside 242.22       (155.78)    -39% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.02


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount $240.72


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $157.28


Annual Usage 9                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $3,582.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 7


Building


Description


No Matching Fee


Valuation Based Fee


Fee Plus % of Valuation


No Matching Fee


Replacement of a Manufactured Home Coach. 


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Patio Cover 100 New New Building BXX bptrpa


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          3.00 $315.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $455.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


105.00$          1.00 $105.00


100.00$          0.50 $50.00


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service If Needed


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $455.00


City of Wildomar $517.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $62.43


City of Temecula 204.00       (313.00)    -61% Total Service Cost / Unit $517.43


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $517.00


County of Riverside (+$182.89 For Final) 325.47       (191.53)    -37% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.43


City of Murrieta 289.00       (228.00)    -44% Current Fee Amount $306.60


City of Menifee 160.00       (357.00)    -69% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $210.40


Annual Usage 38               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $19,646.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 8


Building


Senior Building Inspector - If Electrical is Needed


Plans Examiner III - If Electrical is Needed


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Residential Patio - Both Solid and Thatched.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. If the patio involves electrical work, an additional 1hr Inspection and .5hr of 
plan review is required.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Re-Roof 100 New New Building BXX brrrll


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          1.50 $157.50
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $297.50


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $297.50


City of Wildomar $338.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $40.82


City of Temecula 205.00       (133.00)    -39% Total Service Cost / Unit $338.32


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $338.00


County of Riverside (w/ Alteration) 424.42       86.42        26% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.32


City of Murrieta 310.00       (28.00)      -8% Current Fee Amount $185.23


City of Menifee 125.00       (213.00)    -63% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $152.77


Annual Usage 18               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $6,084.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 9


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Residential Re-Roof


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential - Above Ground Spa 100 New New Building BSP bsrags


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $350.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $350.00


City of Wildomar $398.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $48.02


City of Temecula (Pre-Fab) 121.00       (277.00)    -70% Total Service Cost / Unit $398.02


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $398.00


County of Riverside (Portable) 187.89       (210.11)    -53% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.02


City of Murrieta 276.00       (122.00)    -31% Current Fee Amount $431.96


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) ($33.96)


Annual Usage 1                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $398.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 10


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


No Matching Fee


Permit for the installation of an Above-Ground Spa at a Residential Building.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code, as well as checking any electrical work.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential - In Ground Spa 100 New New Building BSP bsrigs


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          4.00 $420.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $560.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $560.00


City of Wildomar $636.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $76.83


City of Temecula 268.00       (368.00)    -58% Total Service Cost / Unit $636.83


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $636.00


County of Riverside 537.03       (98.97)      -16% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.83


City of Murrieta 465.00       (171.00)    -27% Current Fee Amount $431.96


City of Menifee 494.00       (142.00)    -22% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $204.04


Annual Usage 1                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $636.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 11


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Permit for the installation of an In-Ground Spa at a Residential Building.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code as well as checking any electrical work.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Swimming Pool 100 New New Building BSP bldwks


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          4.00 $420.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $560.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


105.00$          0.50 $52.50


100.00$          0.50 $50.00


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service If Needed


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $560.00


City of Wildomar $636.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $76.83


City of Temecula 268.00       (368.00)    -58% Total Service Cost / Unit $636.83


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $636.00


County of Riverside 537.03       (98.97)      -16% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.83


City of Murrieta 465.00       (171.00)    -27% Current Fee Amount $473.07


City of Menifee 494.00       (142.00)    -22% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $162.93


Annual Usage 53               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $33,708.00


Building


Department


Building


Res 12


Building


Senior Building Inspector - If Additional Features are Present


Plans Examiner III - If Additional Features are Present


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Permit for the installation of a Swimming Pool on a Residential Property.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code.


If one or more additional features are being installed in conjunction with the pool, an additional .5hr of Inspection and .5hr of Plan Review 
is required. These features include installations such as firepits, grills, fireplaces, etc.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Electrical Permit 100 New New Building BEL belrel


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          1.00 $100.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $400.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $400.00


City of Wildomar $454.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $54.88


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $454.88


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $454.00


County of Riverside 221.14       (232.86)    -51% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.88


City of Murrieta 210.00       (244.00)    -54% Current Fee Amount $214.71


City of Menifee 279.00       (175.00)    -39% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $239.29


Annual Usage 27               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $12,258.00


Elec 1


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


No Matching Fee


Building


Department


Building


Residential Electrical Permit.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Solar Photovoltaic 100 New New Building BEL belspv


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          1.00 $100.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $400.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $400.00


City of Wildomar $450.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $54.88


City of Temecula 268.00       (182.00)    -40% Total Service Cost / Unit $454.88


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $450.00


County of Riverside 441.05       (8.95)         -2% Recommended Fee Subsidy $4.88


City of Murrieta 219.00       (231.00)    -51% Current Fee Amount $425.54


City of Menifee (w/Plan Check) 408.07       (41.93)      -9% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $24.46


Annual Usage 213             


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $95,850.00


Elec 2


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Building


Department


Building


Residential Solar Voltaic. This permit is for the installation of solar panels on residential housing generating less than 10,000 watts. More 
than 10,000 fee becomes deposit-based.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code.The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections at 
various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. This fee is limited by the State.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Temporary Electrical 100 New New Building BEL beltpr


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          1.00 $105.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $245.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $245.00


City of Wildomar $278.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $33.61


City of Temecula 136.28       (141.72)    -51% Total Service Cost / Unit $278.61


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $278.00


County of Riverside 221.14       (56.86)      -20% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.61


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount $214.71


City of Menifee 210.00       (68.00)      -24% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $63.29


Annual Usage 3                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $834.00


Elec 3


Building


Description


No Matching Fee


Valuation Based Fee


Building


Department


Building


Temporary Electrical Permit.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. There is 1 main inspection for this permit.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Electric Vehicle Charging Station 


Installation
100 New New Building BEL belevc


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          1.00 $100.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $400.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $400.00


City of Wildomar $450.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $54.88


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $454.88


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $450.00


County of Riverside Recommended Fee Subsidy $4.88


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount N/A


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $450.00


Annual Usage 1                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $450.00


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Elec 4


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Department


Building


Building


Building


Description


Electric Vehicle Charging Station Installation.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Electrical Panel Upgrade 100 New New Building BEL panlup


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          1.00 $105.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $195.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $195.00


City of Wildomar $221.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $26.75


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $221.75


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $221.00


County of Riverside 304.27       83.27        38% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.75


City of Murrieta (Simple Upgrade) 131.00       (90.00)      -41% Current Fee Amount $188.19


City of Menifee 210.00       (11.00)      -5% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $32.81


Annual Usage 34               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $7,514.00


Valuation Based Fee


Elec 5


No Matching Fee


Description


Department


Building


Building


Electrical Panel Upgrade.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential Mechanical 100 New New Building BME bldrme


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $350.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $350.00


City of Wildomar $398.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $48.02


City of Temecula (Dependent on Item) Total Service Cost / Unit $398.02


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $398.00


County of Riverside 187.89       (210.11)    -53% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.02


City of Murrieta 210.00       (188.00)    -47% Current Fee Amount $185.23


City of Menifee 210.00       (188.00)    -47% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $212.77


Annual Usage 21               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $8,358.00


Mech 1


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fee


No Matching Fee


Building


Department


Building


Residential Mechanical Permit.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Change of Tenancy w/ No 


Improvements
100 New New Building BXX btctoo


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          1.00 $105.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $245.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $245.00


City of Wildomar $278.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $33.61


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $278.61


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $278.00


County of Riverside (Deposit) 1,034.16    756.16      272% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.61


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount $188.19


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $89.81


Annual Usage 5                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $1,390.00


Misc 1


Building


Description


No Matching Fee


Valuation Based Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Building


Department


Building


Change of Tenancy with No Improvements Being Made.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Fences - Over 7 Feet Tall 100 New New Building BXX bxfosf


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          1.00 $100.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Associate Engineer 100.00$          1.00 $100.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $500.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $500.00


City of Wildomar $568.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $68.60


City of Temecula (Plus $28 per 100lf) 312.00       (256.00)    -45% Total Service Cost / Unit $568.60


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $568.00


County of Riverside 514.06       (53.94)      -9% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.60


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount $531.62


City of Menifee 160.00       (408.00)    -72% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $36.38


Annual Usage 1                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $568.00


Misc 2


Building


Public Works/Engineering


Description


No Matching Fee


Valuation Based Fee


Building


Department


Building


This pemit is for the installation of Fences over 7 Feet High. 


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Associate Engineer reviews the plans to ensure the 
specifications meet engineering standards. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections at various intervals to ensure 
compliance with the building code. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Re-Inspection Fee 100 New New Building TBD reins


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$    1.00 $105.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$    0.50 $30.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $135.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $135.00


City of Wildomar $153.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative* 


Rate @ 13.72% $18.52


City of Temecula (Supplemental Insp.) 212.00       59.00        39% Total Service Cost / Unit $153.52


City of Lake Elsinore 60.00         (93.00)      -61% Recommended Fee $153.00


County of Riverside Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.52


City of Murrieta (Hourly Rate) 87.00         (66.00)      -43% Current Fee Amount $65.00


City of Menifee (Hourly Insp. Rate) 155.20       2.20          1% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $88.00


Annual Usage 5 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $765.00


Misc 3


Description


No Matching Fee


Building


Department


Building


This is a Re-Inspection Fee for performing additional Inspections on permits that have already had previous inspections for the 
specified item. The fee is for a 1 Hour inspection.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Miscellaneous After Hours Inspection 100 New New Building BSI bhsife


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          4.00 $420.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            0.50 $30.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $450.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $450.00


City of Wildomar $511.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $61.74


City of Temecula - For 0-4 Hours 568.80       57.80        11% Total Service Cost / Unit $511.74


City of Lake Elsinore ($110/Hr) 440.00       (71.00)      -14% Recommended Fee $511.00


County of Riverside (Deposit) 311.51       (199.49)    -39% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.74


City of Murrieta (1.5x Hourly Rate) 4 Hr 522.00       11.00        2% Current Fee Amount $295.80


City of Menifee - 120% of Hourly, (x4 Hr) 744.96       233.96      46% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $215.20


Annual Usage 2                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $1,022.00


Misc 4


Description


Department


Building


Building


This fee is for a Special Inspection. It covers inspections done outside of normal work hours. There is a 4 hour minimum. The amount 
displayed is for 4 hours. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Sign Permit 100 New New Building BSN bnsign


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $350.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


105.00$          0.50 $52.50


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service If Needed


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $350.00


City of Wildomar $398.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $48.02


City of Temecula 312.10       (85.90)      -22% Total Service Cost / Unit $398.02


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $398.00


County of Riverside 455.64       57.64        14% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.02


City of Murrieta (Free-Standing) 422.00       24.00        6% Current Fee Amount $425.54


City of Menifee (Monument-Planning) 650.00       252.00      63% Fee Increase/(Decrease) ($27.54)


Annual Usage 5                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $1,990.00


Misc 5


Building


Senior Building Inspector (If Electrical Work is Being Done)


Description


Valuation Based Fee


Building


Department


Building


Sign Permit.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.    


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. If there is any electrical work being done, an additional .5hr of inspection is 
required to check the work.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Job Card Replacement 100 New New Building TBD TBD


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$         0.50 $52.50
Permit Technician I 60.00$           0.50 $30.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $82.50


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $82.50


City of Wildomar $93.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $11.32


City of Temecula 37.00         (56.00)      -60% Total Service Cost / Unit $93.82


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $93.00


County of Riverside Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.82


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount N/A


City of Menifee 21.00         (72.00)      -77% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $93.00


Annual Usage 3                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $279.00


Department


Building


Building


Misc 6


Description


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


This fee is for replacement if a lost job card. If a job card is lost it must be recreated. This requires the Permit Technician to review the 
requirements of the permit and contact the Inspector. The Inspector must then check their records and review their notes pertaining the job. 
The job card will then have to be filled out again by staff.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Approved Plan Revision 100 New New Building TBD TBD


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Plans Examiner III 100.00$         0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$           1.25 $75.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $125.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $125.00


City of Wildomar $142.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $17.15


City of Temecula 142.20       0.20         0% Total Service Cost / Unit $142.15


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $142.00


County of Riverside Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.15


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount N/A


City of Menifee (Hourly Plan Review) 152.60       10.60       7% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $142.00


Annual Usage 2                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $284.00


Department


Building


Building


Misc 7


Description


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Actual Cost - Hourly Rate


Approved Plan Revision. This fee is for making revisions to a previously approved plan after the permit has been issued. The Permit 
Technician is responsible for intake and cashiering. This staff member will also route the revisions through the departments. The Plans 
Examiner III checks the revised plans to ensure that they comply with the building code.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Miscellaneous Hourly Plan Review 100 New New Building TBD TBD


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Plans Examiner III 100.00$         1.00 $100.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$           0.75 $45.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $145.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


100.00$         1 $100.00


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service If Needed


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $145.00


City of Wildomar $164.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $19.89


City of Temecula 142.20       (21.80)      -13% Total Service Cost / Unit $164.89


City of Lake Elsinore 45.00         (119.00)    -73% Recommended Fee $164.00


County of Riverside (Deposit) 311.51       147.51     90% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.89


City of Murrieta 87.00         (77.00)      -47% Current Fee Amount N/A


City of Menifee 152.60       (11.40)      -7% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $164.00


Annual Usage 1                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $164.00


Department


Building


Building


Misc 7


Plans Examiner III - For Each Additional Hour Required


Description


Miscellaneous Hourly Plan Review. The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake and routing of plans. The Plans Examiner III checks 
the plans to ensure that they comply with the building code.


The base fee is for 1 (one) hour. For each additional hour or portion thereof, an additional 1 hour of Plan Review time will be charged at 
the hourly rate of the Plans Examiner III, which is currently $100.00 per hour.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Certificate of Occupancy Issuance 


Fee
100 New New Building TBD TBD


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


City Building Official 135.00$         0.50 $67.50
Permit Technician I 60.00$           1.00 $60.00
Administrative Analyst II 69.22$           0.10 $6.92
Supervising Engineer 130.00$         0.10 $13.00
Associate Planner 86.38$           0.10 $8.64


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $156.06


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $156.06


City of Wildomar $177.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $21.41


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $177.47


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $177.00


County of Riverside Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.47


City of Murrieta 53.00         (124.00)    -70% Current Fee Amount N/A


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $177.00


Annual Usage 15               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $2,655.00


Planning


Department


Building


Building


Administrative Services


Public Works/Engineering


Misc 7


Description


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Certificate of Occupancy Issuance Fee. 


This fee covers the final multidepartmental review and issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. The Permit Technician is responsible for the 
intake and preparation of the documentation as well as routing it through the various departments. The Chief Building Official reviews the 
documentation and checks with staff to verify the satisfactory completion of the building code requirements. The Administrative Analyst II 
reviews the documentation to ensure the financial requirements are met and all project accounts associated with the Certificate of 
Occupancy applicant are in good standing. They also issue the final sign-off for the Administrative Services department. The Supervising 
Engineer reviews the project for stormwater and engineering compliance and signs off for the engineering department. The Associate 
Planner reviews the Certificate of Occupancy on behalf of Planning and issues the final sign-off for the Planning department. Once all 
involved departments have signed off on the Certificate of Occupancy, the Permit Technician contacts the applicant and distributes the final 
Certificate.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Tract Site Review 100 New New Building TBD TBD


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Associate Planner 86.38$           1.00 $86.38
Senior Building Inspector 105.00$         1.50 $157.50
Plans Examiner III 100.00$         1.00 $100.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$           1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $433.88


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $433.88


City of Wildomar $493.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $59.53


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $493.41


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $493.00


County of Riverside Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.41


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount $437.48


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) $55.52


Annual Usage 2                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $986.00


Misc 10


Description


No Matching Fee


Valuation Based Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Building


Department


Planning


Building


Building


This fee is for a Site Review of Tract Homes. The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff 
member collects payment and is responsible for data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the 
close-out of the permit and proper filing of the documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
to ensure compliance with the building code. They inspect the grading at the specific location of the structure for building compliance. The 
Associate Planner reviews the plans for proper setbacks, zoning, and elevations. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


MSHCP Administration Fee 100 TBD TBD Admin Mitigation MSHCP


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position 


Per Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Permit Technician I 60.00$            0.20 $12.00
Adminstrative Assistant II 54.12$            0.20 $10.82
Adminstrative Analyst II 69.22$            0.20 $13.84


Adminstrative Services Director 178.88$          0.10 $17.89


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $54.56


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $54.56


City of Wildomar $54.00 Dollars Percentage


Current Fee 


Amount $2,234.00


City of Temecula Admin Percentage 2.44%


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $54.00


County of Riverside Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.56


City of Murrieta ($4/Dwelling Unit or Acre) 4.00           (50.00)      -93% Current Fee Amount None


City of Menifee Fee Increase/(Decrease) N/A


Annual Usage 50               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $2,700.00


No Admin Fee


No Admin Fee


No Admin Fee


Misc 11


Description


No Admin Fee


Admin Services


Cost Analysis Worksheet


Department


Building


Admin Services


Admin Services


Administration Cost of the processing of the Multi-Species Habitat Conservation Plan Fees. It is assessed once with each individual MSHCP 
fee charged for a dwelling unit or commercial property.


The Permit Technician I receives a plan submittal from a customer. From this submittal, an application packet for the permit and all fees 
including MSHCP is generated and distributed to the customer. The customer then pays the fee, at which point the Permit Technician I 
receipts the MSHCP payment and logs the fee into the system. The receipt is then given to the Administrative Assistant II who adds the 
receipts to the daily deposit batch and deposits the check. 


After the deposit batch is completed; the Administrative Analyst II reviews the deposit batch, verifies the fee amount, and posts the 
batch to the general ledger. At the end of the fiscal year, the Permit Technician I generates an annual report of MSHCP fees which is given 
to the Administrative Services Director. The Administrative Services Director reviews the fees and submits it in accordance with the 
requirements of the MSHCP audit. This staff member answers any comments or questions from the auditors and reviews the final MSHCP 
report for accuracy.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Residential - Miscellaneous Plumbing 100 New New Building BPL bldrpl


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $350.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $350.00


City of Wildomar $398.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $48.02


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $398.02


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $398.00


County of Riverside 187.89       (210.11)    -53% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.02


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount $188.19


City of Menifee (Hourly Rates) Fee Increase/(Decrease) $209.81


Annual Usage 11               


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $4,378.00


Plumb 1


Building


Description


No Matching Fee


Valuation Based Fee


No Matching Fee


$142.20 Hourly


Building


Department


Building


Miscellaneous Plumbing on Residential Facilities.


The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects payment and is responsible for 
data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the permit and proper filing of the 
documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections 
at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Commercial Re-Roof - No Structural 


Changes
100 3240 Building BXX brrcrr


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          2.00 $210.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.00 $60.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $320.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $320.00


City of Wildomar $363.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $43.90


City of Temecula 281.10       (81.90)      -23% Total Service Cost / Unit $363.90


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $363.00


County of Riverside 191.48       (171.52)    -47% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.90


City of Murrieta (Residential) 373.00       10.00        3% Current Fee Amount $185.23


City of Menifee 126.00       (237.00)    -65% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $177.77


Annual Usage 5                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $1,815.00


Comm 1


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fees


Building


Department


Building


Commercial Re-Roof without structural changes. The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff 
member collects payment and is responsible for data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the 
close-out of the permit and proper filing of the documentation.


The Plans Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code. The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite 
inspections at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Demolition Permit 100 3240 Building BDE bdemo


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Building Inspector 105.00$          1.00 $105.00
Plans Examiner III 100.00$          0.50 $50.00
Permit Technician I 60.00$            1.50 $90.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $245.00


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $245.00


City of Wildomar $278.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $33.61


City of Temecula 241.00       (37.00)      -13% Total Service Cost / Unit $278.61


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $278.00


County of Riverside 216.14       (61.86)      -22% Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.61


City of Murrieta 263.00       (15.00)      -5% Current Fee Amount $217.67


City of Menifee 140.00       (138.00)    -50% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $60.33


Annual Usage 3                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $834.00


Demo 1


Building


Description


Valuation Based Fees


Building


Department


Building


This fee is for a Demolition Permit. The Permit Technician is responsible for the intake of the permit application. This staff member collects 
payment and is responsible for data entry and routing of the information. The Permit Technician is also responsible for the close-out of the 
permit and proper filing of the documentation.


The Senior Building Inspector conducts onsite inspections at various intervals to ensure compliance with the building code. The Plans 
Examiner III reviews the plans to identify conflicts with building code.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Zoning Compliance Letter 100 New New Planning PLN pln


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Planning Director 179.65$         1.00 $179.65
Associate Planner 86.38$           3.50 $302.33


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $481.98


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $481.98


City of Wildomar $500.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $66.13


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $548.11


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $500.00


County of Riverside (Deposit) 670.14       170.14     34% Recommended Fee Subsidy $48.11


City of Murrieta +$78 For Each Add. Hour 230.00       (270.00)    -54% Current Fee Amount Deposit


City of Menifee 375.00       (125.00)    -25% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $500.00


Annual Usage 1                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $500.00


Plan 1


Description


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Department


Planning


Planning


This fee is for a Zoning Compliance Letter from the Planning Department. The Associate Planner is responsible for intake of the 
documentation and cashiering. This staff member will then conduct research on the location to establish the status of the zoning compliance. 
When a result has been reached, a Zoning Verification Letter will be drafted  for the customer. The Planning Director reviews the letter and 
the findings for accuracy. If satisfactory, the Planning Director issues the final approval on the Certificate.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Setback Adjustment 100 New New Planning PLN pln


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Planning Director 179.65$         1.00 $179.65
Associate Planner 86.38$           3.50 $302.33


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $481.98


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $481.98


City of Wildomar $500.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $66.13


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $548.11


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $500.00


County of Riverside (Deposit) 245.82       (254.18)    -51% Recommended Fee Subsidy $48.11


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount Deposit


City of Menifee 715.00       215.00     43% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $500.00


Annual Usage 1                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $500.00


Plan 2


Description


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Department


Planning


Planning


This fee is for a Planning evaluation of Setback Adjustments. The Associate Planner is responsible for intake of the documentation and 
cashiering. This staff member will then conduct research on the location by checking plans and determining the zoning status. When a result 
has been reached, the Planning Director will review the findings for accuracy. If satisfactory, the Planning Director will issue the final sign-off. 


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Department Permit Type Permit Code


Appeals 100 New New Planning PLN pln


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Planning Director 179.65$         15.00 $2,694.75
Associate Planner 86.38$           1.50 $129.57
Public Works Director 209.98$         5.00 $1,049.90


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $3,874.22


Additional/Supplemental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $3,874.22


City of Wildomar $964.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $531.54


City of Temecula 460.00       (504.00)    -52% Total Service Cost / Unit $4,405.76


City of Lake Elsinore 200.00       (764.00)    -79% Recommended Fee $964.00


County of Riverside (Plus Add. Depending) 983.28       19.28       2% Recommended Fee Subsidy $3,441.76


City of Murrieta 1,000.00    36.00       4% Current Fee Amount $6,904.00


City of Menifee (For Processing) 2,050.00    1,086.00  113% Fee Increase/(Decrease) ($5,940.00)


Annual Usage 2                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $1,928.00


Plan 3


Description


Public Works


Department


Planning


Planning


This fee is for an appeal to either the City Council or Planning Commission. The Associate Planner is responsible for intake of the 
documentation, cashiering, and routing. The Planning Director then conducts extensive research on the case. The staff member reviews plans 
and prior documentation in order to establish an approriate response. The Public Works Director also reviews and researches the case from a 
public works perspective. Once a response has been decided, the Planning Director write a formal letter and staff report for the City Council 
or Planning Commission and then presents the findings to them. The fee for appeals has been limited by prior Council action.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Date


Repetitive Haul Permit 100 100 3230


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Permit Technician II 70.00$            2.50 $175.00
Supervising PW Observer 100.00$          1.50 $150.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $325.00


Material & Rental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


100.00$          0.50 $50.00


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service Varies


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $325.00


City of Wildomar $369.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $44.59


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $369.59


City of Lake Elsinore Recommended Fee $369.00


City of Menifee Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.59


City of Murrieta ($500 Deposit for Insp.) 562.00$     193.00      52% Current Fee Amount $36.00


County of Riverside Fee Increase/(Decrease) $333.00


Annual Usage 5                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $1,845.00


Supervising PW Observer - 1/2 Hour per Each Additional Day


Department/Category Code


Public Works


Department


Public Works


Public Works


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Haul Permit Fee 1


This fee is for a Repetitive Haul Permit to transport heavy materials or large objects within the City. This is different from a Transportation
permit as it allows multiple trips in the city. The base fee is for one (1) day of hauling with an additional 1/2 hour of inspection for each extra 
day thereafter. If the hauling is being conducted in conjunction with a Developer Deposit Project this fee may be assessed as a deposit and 
applied to their project account.


The Permit Technician intakes and processes the documentation. This staff member is also responsible for cashiering and verifying the 
applicant's insurance for adequate coverage. The Supervising Public Works Observer conducts a Traffic Review of the proposed route to 
ensure there are no negative impacts or safety concerns to the public. The Observer will check to make sure the route does not cause traffic 
congestion or damage to public infrastructure. This staff member also conducts on-site inspections during the haul days to ensure that there 
is no debris left behind or damage incurred to public property.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Date


Transportation Permit 100 100 3230


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Permit Technician II 70.00$            1.00 $70.00
Supervising PW Observer 100.00$          1.00 $100.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $170.00


Material & Rental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service Varies


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $170.00


City of Wildomar $16.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $23.32


City of Temecula 37.00$       21.00        131% Total Service Cost / Unit $193.32


City of Lake Elsinore 16.00$       -            Recommended Fee $16.00


City of Menifee 16.00$       -            Recommended Fee Subsidy $177.32


City of Murrieta ($500 Deposit for Insp.) 16.00$       -            Current Fee Amount $36.00


County of Riverside 15.00$       (1.00)         -6% Fee Increase/(Decrease) ($20.00)


Annual Usage 8                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $128.00


Department/Category Code


Public Works


Department


Public Works


Public Works


Transportation Fee 2


This fee is for a permit to transport an oversize object, such as a manufactured home, through the City. It is for a one-time pass-through.


The Permit Technician intakes and processes the documentation. This staff member is also responsible for cashiering and verifying the 
applicant's insurance for adequate coverage. The Supervising Public Works Observer conducts a Traffic Review of the proposed route to 
ensure the transport presents no negative impacts or safety concerns to the public. This fee is limited by state law.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost  Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Last Update


Encroachment Permit for Major Utility 100 100 3230


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Permit Technician II 70.00$           2.50 $175.00
Supervising PW Observer 100.00$         1.50 $150.00
Supervising Engineer 130.00$         0.50 $65.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $390.00


Material & Rental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


97.00$           1 $97.00


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service Varies


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $390.00


City of Wildomar $443.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $53.51


City of Temecula 420.00$     (23.00)      -5% Total Service Cost / Unit $443.51


City of Lake Elsinore (+.55/LF of Trench) 325.00$     (118.00)    -27% Recommended Fee $443.00


City of Menifee (+ Add. Per Footage) $190-$590 N/A N/A Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.51


City of Murrieta Current Fee Amount Deposit


County of Riverside (+ Fee per LF) 389.00       (54.00)      -12% Fee Increase/(Decrease) $443.00


Annual Usage 160             


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $70,880.00


Fee Structure Does Not Match


Encroachment Permit Fee 3


Department/Category Code


Public Works


Department


Public Works


Public Works


Public Works


Senior Public Works Observer - 1 Hour per Each Additional Day


This fee is for Encroachment Permits for one of the City's major utility companies: Socal Edison, Socal Gas, Elsinore Valley Metropolitan 
Water District, Fontier Communication, and Charter Communications. The base fee is for a 1-day permit. For each additional day, 1 hour of 
inspection time is added up until 20 days. Encroachment Permits projected to run longer than 20 days or determined beforehandto be of a 
significant scope will go onto a deposit-based fee system that records the actual time spent on the project. The initial deposit amount on 
those permits will be based on engineer's estimates and vary with the projects. 


The Permit Technician intakes the documentation and inputs the data. This staff member is also responsible for routing the 
documentation throughout the departments and properly archiving it. The Supervising Engineer reviews the plans submitted by the 
applicant to identify technical issues. The Supervising Public Works Observer conducts onsite inspections to make sure the work is 
acceptable and conforms to the requirements of the permit. This staff member also makes sure that no work outside the scope of the 
permit is conducted.


If the work must extend beyond the approved timeline it must be cleared with the City before continuing. Any work performed outside 
the scope of the permit, or without a permit, will be subjected to a punitive rate of twice (2x) the normal fees.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







User Fee Determination
Cost Analysis Worksheet


User Fee Description Fund Object Fee Code Last Update


Special Work - Hourly 100 100 3230


Description of Service, Demand, Subsidy and Other Comments:


Personnel Costs
Billing Rate  


Position Title
Total Burdened 


Labor Cost / Hr.


Hours by Position Per 


Unit


Total Labor Cost 


per Unit of Service


Senior Public Works Observer 97.00$           1.00 $97.00
Permit Technician II 70.00$           0.50 $35.00


Total Burdened Personnel Costs per Unit of Service $132.00


Material & Rental Costs
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Material & Rental Costs per Unit of Service


Other Costs (Equipment, Building Usage, Part-time Labor w/o Benefits)
Description Cost Each Quantity Required Unit Cost


Total Other Costs per Unit of Service Varies


Fee Comparison Data


Jurisdiction Fee per Unit Total Service Direct Costs $132.00


City of Wildomar $150.00 Dollars Percentage


City-Wide General 


& Administrative*  


Rate @ 13.72% $18.11


City of Temecula Total Service Cost / Unit $150.11


City of Lake Elsinore 110.00$     (40.00)      -27% Recommended Fee $150.00


City of Menifee (Staff Hourly Rates) Recommended Fee Subsidy $0.11


City of Murrieta (.5 PW Tech + 1hr Insp.) 142.50$     (7.50)        -5% Current Fee Amount Deposit


County of Riverside (Based on Activity) Fee Increase/(Decrease) $150.00


Annual Usage 5                 


Projected Annual Revenue Impact $750.00


Department/Category Code


Public Works


Department


Public Works


Public Works


Additional Work Fee 4


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


No Matching Fee


Special Work - Hourly


This fee is for additional work that must be conducted outside the scope of a normal fixed fee engineering permit due to special 
circumstances. For example, if an issue arises on a utility encroachment permit and work must continue for extended periods.


The Permit Technician is responsible for coordinating the additional work and cashiering. The Senior Public Works Observer conducts on-
site inspections to ensure that any special or additional work does not negatively impact the public right-of-way.


More or (Less) than 


Wildomar's Fee 


per Unit of Service







Public Works/Engineering Development Project Deposit Fee Schedule 


Item Initial Deposit 
Plan Review and Project Processing Phase 


On-Site Improvements Plan Review 2% of the Engineer’s Construction Cost Estimate 
Off-Site Improvements Plan Review 2% of the Engineer’s Construction Cost Estimate 
Misc. Survey Reviews $5,000 
Community Facility District (CFD) Annexation $5,000 or $10,000 (Per Consultant Estimate)  


Construction and Permit/Inspection Phase 
On-Site Improvement Permit 3% of the Engineer’s Construction Cost Estimate 
Off-Site Improvement Permit 3% of the Engineer’s Construction Cost Estimate 
Misc. Survey Inspections Varies 


Project Close-Out Phase 
On-Site Improvement Permit 1% of the Engineer’s Construction Cost Estimate 
Off-Site Improvement Permit 1% of the Engineer’s Construction Cost Estimate 


Note: Engineer’s Construction Cost Estimate shall be prepared on forms approved by the City Engineer 
 
On-Site Improvements 
This category covers all proposed improvements within 
the ultimate project boundaries and includes, but is not 
limited to, the following on-site improvements: 


• Grading and Soils Reports 
• Drainage Improvement Plans and 


Hydrology/Hydraulics Reports 
• Water Quality Management Plans 
• Retaining Walls and Structural Calculations 
• Street Improvements Plans 
• Utility Plans 
• Landscaping Plans 
• Public Lighting Plans 
• Signing/Striping Plans 
• Private Parking Lots (including sidewalks, curbs, 


gutters, etc…) 
• Other Miscellaneous Site Improvements 


 
Off-Site Improvements 
This category covers all improvements outside of the 
ultimate project boundaries (within the City right-of-way) 
and includes, but is not limited to, the following off-site 
improvements: 


• Grading and Soils Reports 
• Drainage Improvement Plans and 


Hydrology/Hydraulics Reports 
• Water Quality Management Plans 
• Retaining Walls and Structural Calculations 
• Street Improvements Plans 
• Utility Plans 
• Landscaping Plans 
• Street Lighting Plans 
• Signing/Striping Plans 
• Traffic Signal Plans 
• Traffic Control Plans 
• Other Miscellaneous Public Improvements 


Miscellaneous Survey 
This category covers all survey related reviews and 
inspections other than those for Final Subdivision Map 
Reviews and Certificates of Parcel Compliance Reviews 
(Lot Line Adjustments, Parcel Mergers, Certificates of 
Compliance, etc…) and includes, but is not limited to: 


• Right-of-Way Dedications 
• Right-of-Way Vacations 
• Easement Dedications 
• Certificates of Correction 
• Records of Survey 


Project Close-Out 
This category covers all of the required processing to bring 
a project fully to completion and includes, but is not limit 
to: 


• Final Project Review and Punch List (office) 
• Final Project Review, Punch List, and Inspection 


(field) 
• As-Built Plan Review 
• Staff Reports for Project Acceptance 
• Bond Reduction and Release Processing 
• Final Project-Specific Survey Review and 


Inspection 
o Centerline Tie Sheets 
o Certificates of Corrections 
o Corner Records 
o Monument Inspections 


• Preparation for City Maintenance of Public 
Improvements 


• Project Record Keeping/Archiving and Closure 
 
 







Departmental Fee Calculation


Position Pay Grade* Overhead Rate


Accounting Manager 1 Hour 23 85.47$   10% 94.02$   13.72% 106.92$   


Accounting Specialist I 1 Hour 12 51.21$   10% 56.33$   13.72% 64.06$   


Administrative Analyst 1 Hour 13 53.33$   10% 58.67$   13.72% 66.72$   


Administrative Analyst II 1 Hour 17 62.93$   10% 69.22$   13.72% 78.72$   


Administrative Assistant I 1 Hour 7 41.64$   10% 45.81$   13.72% 52.09$   


Administrative Assistant II 1 Hour 11 49.20$   10% 54.12$   13.72% 61.54$   


Administrative Services Director 1 Hour 37 162.62$   10% 178.88$   13.72% 203.42$   


Assistant Planner 1 Hour 17 63.59$   10% 69.95$   13.72% 79.55$   


Associate Engineer 1 Hour 20 72.11$   10% 79.32$   13.72% 90.20$   


Associate Planner 1 Hour 22 78.53$   10% 86.38$   13.72% 98.23$   


Chief Building Official 1 Hour 29 110.96$   10% 122.05$   13.72% 138.80$   


City Clerk 1 Hour 27 100.48$   10% 110.52$   13.72% 125.69$   


City Engineer 1 Hour 32 126.26$   10% 138.88$   13.72% 157.94$   


Economic Development Director 1 Hour 30 118.72$   10% 130.59$   13.72% 148.51$   


Finance Manager 1 Hour 29 110.90$   10% 121.99$   13.72% 138.72$   


Groundsworker I 1 Hour 7 41.03$   10% 45.14$   13.72% 51.33$   


Groundsworker II 1 Hour 9 44.38$   10% 48.82$   13.72% 55.52$   


Manager of Operations and Maintenance 1 Hour 16 64.19$   10% 70.61$   13.72% 80.29$   


Parks, Community Services, and Cemetery District 


Manager
1 Hour 22 82.30$   10% 90.53$   13.72% 102.95$   


Planning Director 1 Hour 37 163.31$   10% 179.65$   13.72% 204.29$   


Public Works Director/Assistant City Manager 1 Hour 40 190.89$   10% 209.98$   13.72% 238.79$   


Senior Administrative Analyst 1 Hour 23 81.32$   10% 89.46$   13.72% 101.73$   


Senior Planner 1 Hour 25 85.60$   10% 94.16$   13.72% 107.08$   


Contracted City Services 1 Hour N/A


*All Pay Grades Are Calculated For Final Step "J"


Fully-Burdened Labor Rates for Staff Positions


Unit Base Rate


Developer Billing 


RateCity Overhead


All Contracted City Services to Be Billed at Cost + City Overhead Rate







Position Department


Annual 


Direct/Personnel Cost


Plus Annual 


Benefits/Support Cost Annual Billing amount Gross Hours


Less Compensated 


Absences Productive Hours


Total Base Burdened 


Hourly Rate


Associate Planner Planning 101,317$                       41,288$                         142,604$                       2080 264 1816 78.53$                        


Planning Director Planning 210,621$                       69,628$                         280,248$                       2080 364 1716 163.31$                      


Administrative Analyst II Administrative Services 79,394$                         34,885$                         114,278$                       2080 264 1816 62.93$                        


Administrative Assistant II Administrative Services 59,238$                         30,101$                         89,340$                         2080 264 1816 49.20$                        


Administrative Services Director Administrative Services 210,621$                       68,428$                         279,048$                       2080 364 1716 162.62$                      


Public Works Director/Assistant City Manager Public Works/Engineering 243,838$                       79,911$                         323,749$                       2080 384 1696 190.89$                      


Permit Technician II (Contract) Public Works/Engineering N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 70.00$                        


Supervising Public Works Observer (Contract) Public Works/Engineering N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 100.00$                      


Supervising Engineer (Contract) Public Works/Engineering N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 130.00$                      


Senior Public Works Observer (Contract) Public Works/Engineering N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 97.00$                        


Associate Engineer (Contract) Public Works/Engineering N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 100.00$                      


Senior Building Inspector (Contract) Building N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 105.00$                      


Plans Examiner III (Contract) Building N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 100.00$                      


Permit Technician I (Contract) Building N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 60.00$                        


City of Wildomar
Billing Rate Calculation Detail


Fiscal Year 2020-21







Fund No. Indirect Costs
Audited Actual Cost 


from June 30, 2020 


CAFR


100 City Council (Legislation and Policy) 190,424$                   


General Administration


100 City Manager's Office 446,893                     


100 City Clerk's Office 198,650                     


100 City Attorney 196,240                     


100 Economic Development 47,855                       


100 Administration/Finance 525,933                     


100 Human Resources 62,498                       


100 Non-Departmental 938,281                     


Total Indirect Costs Available for Allocation 2,606,774$           13.72%


Direct Costs -General Fund
100 Community Services 38,857                       


100 Marna O'Brien Park 1,171                         


100 Heritage Park 563                            


100 Windsong Park 1,171                         


100 Baseball Field 15,050                       


100 Malaga Park 700                            


100 11 Acre Park -                             


100 Community Development Adminisration 147,212                     


100 Planning Commission 19,511                       


100 Building and Safety 329,609                     


100 Planning (w/o CD Admin. Above) 319,251                     


100 Private Development 1,089,364                  


100 Code Enforcement 219,958                     


100 Public Works 432,208                     


100 Emergency Services 18,893                       


100 Police 5,044,762                  


100 Fire 2,610,265                  


100 Animal Control 549,060                     


Total Direct Costs - General Fund 10,837,605$   


Total General Fund Costs 13,444,379$                   


For FY 2020-21


 Cost Allocation Based on CAFR at 6-30-20-Final


City of Wildomar







Direct Costs -Non-General Fund (W/O Allocation)
Audited Actual Cost 


from June 30, 2020 


CAFR


120-450-4500-59000 Measure AA 1,717,971                  


200-450-4500-59000 Gas Tax 951,343$                   


201-450-4500-59000 Measure A * 539,197                     


203-450-4500-59000 TDA Fund -                             


210-450-4500-59000 AQMD 6,459                         


251-450-4502-59000 LLMD 89-1C (Streetlights) 258,726                     


252-450-4500-49000 CSA 22 (StreetLights) 25,641                       


253-450-4500-59000 CSA 103 (Cervera) 166,679                     


254-450-4500-59000 CSA 142 (StreetLights) 34,239                       


255 Measure Z (Parks) 358,970                     


259 CFD 2017-1 83,811                       


260-268 CFD 2013-1 - Municipal Services 38,813                       


269 CFD 2013-1 Spec Tax B 110,793                     


270-279 CFD 2013-1 38                              


280-410-4200-59000 Grants * 75,009                       


281-460-4700-59000 SLESF-COPS 156,034                     


282-410-4610-59000 CDBG 357,254                     


283 PEG 12,997                       


284 Streetlight 411,666                     


290 Covid-19 Grants 247,166                     


300-470-4725-59000 Cemetery Operations * 727,388                     


301 Cemetery Endowment Fund -                             


302 Cemetery Capital Improvement Fund 19                              


410-410-4300-59000 DIF -Admin 23,105                       


420-410-4300-59000 DIF - City Hall (formerly Public Facilities) 1,077                         


421-410-4300-59000 DIF - Police 625                            


422-410-4300-59000 DIF - Animal Shelter 64,041                       


423-410-4300-59000 DIF - Corp Yard -                             


430-410-4300-59000 DIF - Fire Facilities 898                            


440-410-4300-59000 DIF - Roads 10,871                       


450-410-4300-59000 DIF - Signals 5,015                         


451-410-4300-59000 DIF - Drainage 18,788                       


460-410-4300-59000 DIF - Park Land Acquisition -                             


461-410-4300-59000 DIF - Park Improvement 106,811                     


470-410-4300-59000 DIF - Community Center 483                            


480-410-4300-59000 DIF - Multi-purpose Trails 54,115                       


490-410-4300-59000 DIF - Library 20,013                       


500-XXX-4500-59000 RMRA Capital Projects 503                            


501-450-4500-59000 Capital Reinvestment 240,877                     


502-450-4500-59000 RCFC - Local Grant 7,118                         


503-450-4500-59000 TUMF - Local Grant 1,279,125                  


504-450-4500-59000 CMAQ - Federal Grant -                             


505-450-4500-59000 MSRC - State Grant -                             


506-450-4500-59000 HSIP - Federal Grant -                             


507-450-4500-59000 Misc State Grants 45,642                       


508-450-4500-59000 Misc Local Grants -                             


Total Direct Costs - Non- General Fund 8,159,317$           


 (Some amounts hidden with zero charge)


Total Direct Costs -All Funds 18,996,922$         







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.1 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 


FROM: Gary Nordquist, City Manager 


SUBJECT: COVID-19 Update 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the COVID-19 Update and 
provide direction as desired. 


DISCUSSION: 
Staff will be providing an update on actions taken by the City in response to COVID-19 
and is requesting Council to provide direction as desired.  


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 


 
Submitted & Approved by:      
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager       


ATTACHMENTS: 
None. 







 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item No. #3.2 
GENERAL BUSINESS 


Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AB 168 Cultural Resource Treatment and Disposition Agreement between 


City & Pechanga/Soboba Tribes in connection with Tres Lagos Project  
 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Cultural Resource Treatment and Disposition Agreements between City of Wildomar and 
Pechanga and Soboba Band of Luiseno Indians for the Tres Lagos Affordable Housing 
Project.  


BACKGROUND: 
This agenda item is not intended to be a public meeting on the Tres Lagos project 
generally.  As no SB 35 application has been submitted for the project yet, the City does 
not have a date identified for any future public meeting on the actual Tres Lagos 
development project at this time.  
 
Government Code Section 65913.4(b) (known as AB 168) adopted by the State of 
California added a “government-to-government” tribal consultation process to the Senate 
Bill (SB) 35 special processing requirements for affordable housing projects.  The 
approval of these Agreements will allow Palm Communities to submit a SB 35 application 
for the Tres Lagos project with the City.    
 
The purpose and goal of AB 168 is to formalize procedures for the treatment and 
disposition of all Tribal Cultural Resources, ceremonial items, items of cultural patrimony, 
artifacts, and Native American human remains and associated grave goods, in the event 
that any are found in conjunction with development of an SB 35 affordable housing 
project, including archaeological studies, excavation, geotechnical investigations, 
grading, trenching, and any ground disturbing activities. 
 
The AB 168 tribal consultation process must be completed before a SB 35 application 
can be submitted by a developer.  AB 168 requires the tribal consultation process to begin 
after a developer submits a preliminary application for the proposed SB 35 affordable 
housing project.  If one or more tribes request consultation with the agency and it is 
determined that there are potential tribal cultural resources that could be impacted by the 







  


 


project, the tribe(s) and agency must engage in “good faith” and “reasonable efforts” to 
enter into an agreement regarding the methods, measures, and conditions for tribal 
cultural resource treatment.  Once an enforceable agreement is documented between the 
agency and tribe(s), then the developer may submit their SB 35 development application. 


DISCUSSION: 
On January 29, 2021, the Planning Department initiated the AB 168 consultation process 
with both the Pechanga and Soboba Band of Luiseno Indians (Attachments C & D).  The 
consultation process began as a result of the submittal of a preliminary SB 330 Pre-
Application (PAR) by Palm Communities for their proposed 225-unit affordable housing 
project.   
 
Over the next month or so, the city and tribes met several times to discuss the provisions 
of the Cultural Resource Treatment and Disposition Agreement.  It is important to note 
that Palm Communities was not involved in any of these discussions as prescribed by 
state law.  The consultation process with Pechanga and Soboba has now resulted in an 
official agreement between the City and Tribes (Attach A and B).  These agreements are 
being presented to the City Council for approval.  The primary provisions of the 
agreement, which are substantially the same for both Tribes, are summarized as follows: 
 
 Tribal Monitoring - Palm Communities is required to enter into a “Tribal Monitoring 


Agreement” with Pechanga and Soboba Band of Luiseño Indians (separate 
agreements).  The City also agrees to require Palm Communities to submit a copy 
of the signed agreements prior to approval of the Tres Lagos project, and prior to 
the issuance of any grading permit.  Tribal monitor(s) shall be required on-site during 
all ground-disturbing activities, including archeological site surveys, grading, 
stockpiling of materials, engineered fill, rock crushing, utility installation, etc. 
 


 Cultural Resources/Tribal Cultural Resources Disposition - In the event that Native 
American tribal cultural resources or cultural resources are discovered during the 
course of initial survey or grading (inadvertent discoveries) activities, procedures 
have been agreed to for final disposition of any cultural discoveries. Refer to 
agreements for more details. 


 
 Inadvertent Archeological Finds - If during ground disturbance activities, cultural 


resources are discovered that were not assessed prior to project approval, special 
procedures have been agreed to.  Cultural resources are defined, as being multiple 
artifacts in close association with each other, but also include fewer artifacts if the 
area of the find is determined to be of significance due to its sacred or cultural 
importance as determined in consultation with the Tribe.  Refer to agreements for 
more details.   


 
 Human Remains - If human remains are encountered, State Health and Safety Code 


Section 7050.5 states that no further ground disturbance shall occur until the 
Riverside County Coroner has made the necessary findings as to origin.  Refer to 
agreements for more details.   







  


 


 Non-Disclosure of Reburial Locations - It is understood by all parties that unless 
otherwise required by law, the site of any reburial of Native American human remains 
or associated grave goods shall not be disclosed and shall not be governed by public 
disclosure requirements of the California Public Records Act.  Refer to agreements 
for more details.   


 
 Successors and Assigns - The Agreements shall be binding upon and inure to the 


benefit of the heirs, successors, representatives, executors, administrators, and 
assignees of the Parties, including subsequent landowners and developers of the 
Project area.  Refer to agreements for more details.   


 
The approval of these Agreements will complete the City’s obligation under AB 168 to 
engage in good faith and reasonable efforts to agree on methods, measures, and 
conditions to avoid or address impacts to tribal cultural resources that the Tres Lagos 
project may have.  The terms of these Agreements are substantially the same as the 
City’s standard tribal cultural resource mitigation measures. 


Conclusion: 
The tribal agreements being presented to City Council are mandatory in accordance with 
the requirements of AB 168.  The agreements have been thoroughly reviewed by both 
Wildomar’s City Attorney and Attorneys for Pechanga and Soboba Tribes to ensure 
compliance with AB 168 and preservation of any tribal cultural resources. 


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
There are no fiscal impacts related to this action.  


Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist     Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager      City Attorney 


ATTACHMENTS: 


A. Pechanga Cultural Resources Agreement 
B. Soboba Cultural Resources Agreement  
C. Pechanga AB 168 Consultation Letter 
D. Soboba AB 168 Consultation Letter 
 
 
 







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Pechanga Cultural Resources Agreement 







 1 


Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians 
P.O. Box 2183, Temecula, CA 92593 


 
 


CULTURAL RESOURCE TREATMENT 
AND DISPOSITION AGREEMENT 


 
 
 This CULTURAL RESOURCE TREATMENT AND DISPOSITION AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of April _____, 2021, by and between 
PECHANGA BAND OF LUISEÑO INDIANS, a federally recognized Indian tribe 
(“Pechanga Band” or “Tribe”) and the City of Wildomar (”City”) (Pechanga Band and City 
are sometimes referred to individually as a “Party,” and collectively as the “Parties”). 
 
 


RECITALS 
 


A. Subject Matter:  This Agreement concerns a project located within the City of 
Wildomar proposed by the project applicant (Palm Communities, Mitch Slagerman), 
commonly referred to as PA 21-0006 Tres Lagos Affordable Housing Project 
(hereinafter referred to as the "project") and as more particularly described in Attachment 
1 to this Agreement.  
 
B. Purpose:  The purpose of this Agreement is to formalize procedures for the 
treatment and disposition of all Tribal Cultural Resources, ceremonial items, items of 
cultural patrimony, artifacts, and Native American human remains and associated grave 
goods, in the event that any are found in conjunction with development of the Tres Lagos 
Affordable Housing Project (PA 21-0006), including archaeological studies, excavation, 
geotechnical investigations, grading, trenching, and any ground disturbing activities.  
 
This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the completion of consultation as required by 
Government Code Section 65913.4(b), for PA 21-0006 Tres Lagos Affordable Housing 
Project. 
 
C. Cultural Affiliation:  As mentioned previously, this project is located within the 
Luiseño Ancestral Territory.  
 
 
  







 2 


AGREEMENT 
 
I.  Incorporation of Recitals.  All of the foregoing Recitals are accurate and are 
incorporated in this Agreement by reference. 
 
 
II.  Tribal Monitoring.  Prior to ministerial approval, and prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit, the City of Wildomar will require the project applicant to provide evidence that an 
agreement has been established with the Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians, to provide 
tribal monitoring for all Project-related ground disturbing activities, including clearing and 
grubbing, grading, and utility installation. Such contract for monitoring shall incorporate 
by reference the entirety of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
The project applicant shall submit a copy of a signed contract between the Pechanga 
Band and the project applicant for the monitoring of the project to the Planning 
Department and to the Engineering Department. The Tribal Monitor(s) shall have the 
authority to temporarily divert, redirect, or halt the ground-disturbing activities to allow for 
evaluation under CEQA, if required, or the recovery of cultural resources if additional 
assessment and/or mitigation is not required.  Tribal monitor(s) shall be required on-site 
during all ground-disturbing activities, including archeological site surveys, grading, 
stockpiling of materials, engineered fill, rock crushing, utility installation, etc. 
 
 
III.  Cultural Resources/Tribal Cultural Resources Disposition.  In the event that 
Native American tribal cultural resources or cultural resources are discovered during the 
course of initial survey or grading (inadvertent discoveries), the following procedures shall 
be carried out for final disposition of the discoveries: 
One or more of the following treatments, in order of preference, shall be employed with 
the Tribe.  Evidence of such shall be provided to the City of Wildomar Planning 
Department: 


a. Preservation-In-Place of the tribal cultural and cultural resources, if 
feasible.  Preservation in place means avoiding the resources, leaving them in 
the place where they were found with no development affecting the integrity of 
the resources. 


b. Reburial of the resources on the Project property. The measures for reburial shall 
include, at least, the following:  Measures and provisions to protect the future 
reburial area from any future impacts in perpetuity. Reburial shall not occur until 
all legally required cataloging and basic recordation have been completed, with 
an exception that sacred items, grave goods, Native American human remains, 
and sacred or ceremonial items as identified by the Pechanga Band are 
excluded. Any reburial process shall be culturally appropriate. Listing of contents 
and location of the reburial shall be included in the confidential Phase IV report. 
The Phase IV Report shall be filed with the City under a confidential cover and 
not subject to Public Records Request.   







 3 


c. If preservation in place or reburial is not feasible, then the resources shall be 
curated in a culturally appropriate manner at a Riverside County curation facility 
that meets State Resources Department Office of Historic Preservation 
Guidelines for the Curation of Archaeological Resources ensuring access and 
use pursuant to the Guidelines. The collection and associated records shall be 
transferred, including title, and are to be accompanied by payment of the fees 
necessary for permanent curation. Evidence of curation in the form of a letter 
from the curation facility stating that subject archaeological materials have been 
received and that all fees have been paid, shall be provided by the landowner to 
the City. There shall be no destructive or invasive testing on sacred or ceremonial 
items, grave goods, and Native American human remains. Results concerning 
finds of any inadvertent discoveries shall be included in the Phase IV monitoring 
report.  


 
IV.  Inadvertent Archeological Find. If during ground disturbance activities, cultural 
resources are discovered that were not assessed prior to project approval, the following 
procedures shall be followed.  Cultural resources are defined, as being multiple artifacts 
in close association with each other, but also include fewer artifacts if the area of the find 
is determined to be of significance due to its sacred or cultural importance as determined 
in consultation with the Tribe. 


a. All ground disturbance activities within 100 feet of the discovered cultural 
resources shall be halted until a meeting is convened between the developer, 
the archaeologist, the tribal representative(s) and the Planning Director to 
discuss the significance of the find. 


b. At the meeting, the significance of the discoveries shall be discussed and after 
consultation with the tribal representative(s) and the archaeologist, a decision 
shall be made, with the concurrence of the Planning Director, as to the 
appropriate mitigation (documentation, recovery, avoidance, etc.) for the cultural 
resources. 


c. Grading of further ground disturbance shall not resume within the area of the 
discovery until an agreement has been reached by all parties as to the 
appropriate mitigation. Work shall be allowed to continue outside of the buffer 
area and will be monitored by additional Tribal monitors if needed. 


d. Treatment and avoidance of the newly discovered resources shall be consistent 
with the Cultural Resources Management Plan and Monitoring Agreements 
entered into with the Tribe. This may include avoidance of the cultural resources 
through project design, in-place preservation of cultural resources located in 
native soils and/or re-burial on the Project property so they are not subject to 
further disturbance in perpetuity as identified in Non-Disclosure of Reburial 
Condition. 


e. If the find is determined to be significant and avoidance of the site has not been 
achieved, a Phase III data recovery plan shall be prepared by the project 







 4 


archeologist, in consultation with the Tribe, and shall be submitted to the City for 
their review and approval prior to implementation of the said plan.  


f. Pursuant to Calif. Pub. Res. Code § 21083.2(b) avoidance is the preferred 
method of preservation for archaeological resources and cultural resources.  If 
the landowner and the Tribe cannot agree on the significance or the mitigation 
for the archaeological or cultural resources, these issues will be presented to the 
Planning Director for decision. The City’s Planning Director shall make the 
determination based on the provisions of the California Environmental Quality 
Act with respect to archaeological resources, recommendations of the project 
archeologist and shall consider the cultural and religious principles and practices 
of the Tribe. Notwithstanding any other rights available under the law, the 
decision of the City Planning Director shall be appealable to the City Planning 
Commission and/or City Council.” 


 
V.  Human Remains. If human remains are encountered, State Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County 
Coroner has made the necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to Public 
Resource Code Section 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in place and free from 
disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and disposition has been made. If 
the Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be Native American, the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall be contacted within the period specified by law (24 
hours). Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission shall identify the "most 
likely descendant." The most likely descendant shall then make recommendations and 
engage in consultation concerning the treatment of the remains as provided in Public 
Resources Code Section 5097.98. 
 
VI.  Non-Disclosure of Reburial Locations. It is understood by all parties that unless 
otherwise required by law, the site of any reburial of Native American human remains or 
associated grave goods shall not be disclosed and shall not be governed by public 
disclosure requirements of the California Public Records Act. The Coroner, pursuant to 
the specific exemption set forth in California Government Code 6254 (r)., parties, and 
Lead Agencies, will be asked to withhold public disclosure information related to such 
reburial, pursuant to the specific exemption set forth in California Government Code 6254 
(r). 
 
VII.  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the heirs, successors, representatives, executors, administrators, and 
assignees of the Parties, including subsequent landowners and developers of the Project 
area and any person or entity obligated to comply with the City’s conditions of 
approval/mitigation measures, of other environmental and cultural or archaeological 
resource protection laws applicable to the Project.  
 
 







 5 


VIII.  Environmental Compliance.  Nothing in this Agreement shall excuse the Lead 
Agencies or the Developer of the Project from its obligation under any applicable state or 
federal environmental statute, including, but not limited to California Government Code § 
65913.4; CEQA and applicable regulations of the CEQA Guidelines; California Public 
Resources Code § 5097.98, § 5097.99, and § 5097.991; California Health and Safety 
Code § 7050.5 (c); California Government Code § 6254.  Nothing in this Agreement is 
intended to make any of the above-referenced laws applicable where such laws would 
otherwise be inapplicable.  
 
 
IX.  Indemnity.  The Pechanga Band in no way indemnifies or guarantees the City in any 
of its legal obligations.  
 
 
X.  Severability.  Should any court or agency of competent jurisdiction find any part of 
this Agreement to be to any extent invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 
Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law and shall 
not be affected thereby. 
 
 
XI.  Controversies and Claims Subject to Mediation.  Any controversy or claim or other 
matter in question arising out of or related to the Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall 
be resolved by mediation.  Any demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable 
time after the controversy or claim or other matter in question has arisen.  In no event 
shall the demand for mediation be made after the date when institution of legal or 
equitable proceedings based upon such controversy or claim or other matter in question 
would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations.  The Parties shall continue to 
perform under this Agreement pending the outcome of the mediation.  Any controversy 
or claim or other matter in question not resolved by mediation shall be decided by litigation 
in a court of competent jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Pechanga Band 
does not waive any defenses or rights by entering into this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, the defense of sovereign immunity. Further, nothing herein shall be construed 
as to have waived the Pechanga Band’s sovereign immunity.  In the event any mediation, 
litigation, or other dispute resolution mechanism is commenced by a Party to the 
Agreement, each Party shall bear its own costs, including attorneys' fees.  
 
 
XII. Limitation on Scope.  This Agreement is unique to the Project only and does not 
set a precedent for other projects.  
 
 
XIII. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in two or more counterparts and 
shall be effective when all the Parties and signatories have affixed their signatures to two 
or more of the counterparts and the counterparts have been delivered to all Parties, at 
which time the counterparts together will be deemed one original document.  
 







 6 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed by the authorized 
representatives of the parties hereto. 


 
 
 


Date: April _____, 2021 
 
 
 


            PECHANGA BAND OF LUISEÑO INDIANS 
 
 


___________________________________ 
By: Mark Macarro, Tribal Chairman 
Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians  


 
 


CITY: 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 


By: ___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 
 


ATTEST:  


By: ________________________ 
Janet Morales 
Acting City Clerk 


 


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


By: ________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


  







 7 


ATTACHMENT 1 
 


Preliminary Tres Lagos Site Plan 
 
 
 







C


T
re


s
 L


a
g
o
s


M
u
lt
i-


fa
m


ily
 A


p
a
rt


m
e
n
ts


2
3


3
4


5
 &


 2
3


3
6


5
 C


a
tt


 R
o
a


d
W


ild
o


m
a


r,
 C


A
. 
9
2
5
9
5


A
P


N
: 


3
8


0
-1


0
0


-0
0


8
, 


3
8


0
-1


0
0


-0
9
,


3
8


0
-1


0
0


-0
1


0
, 


3
8


0
-1


0
0


-0
1


1
, 


3
8


0
-1


0
0
-0


1
2


A
 P


a
lm


 C
o


m
m


u
n
iti


e
s 


A
ff
o


rd
a
b


le
H


o
u
si


n
g


 D
e
ve


lo
p


m
e
n
t



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Typewriter

LEXI
LANE



batkins

Typewriter

AVRY
WAY



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Line



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Oval



batkins

Oval



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Typewriter

Building 
Type C-1



batkins

Typewriter

Building
Type C-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building
Type C-3



batkins

Typewriter

Building 
Type C-4



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building type R-1



batkins

Typewriter

Building type R-2 (Reverse)



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-1
(Reverse)



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building type R-2







ATTACHMENT B 
 


Soboba Cultural Resources Agreement 







 1 


 SOBOBA BAND OF LUISEÑO INDIANS 
P.O. BOX 487, SAN JACINTO, CA  92581 


 
 
 


CULTURAL RESOURCE TREATMENT 
AND DISPOSITION AGREEMENT 


 
 


 This CULTURAL RESOURCE TREATMENT AND DISPOSITION 
AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of April _____, 2021, by 
and between SOBOBA BAND OF LUISEÑO INDIANS, a federally recognized 
Indian tribe (“Soboba Band” or “Tribe”) and the City of Wildomar (”City”) (Soboba 
Band and Agency are sometimes referred to individually as a “Party,” and 
collectively as the “Parties”). 
 
 


RECITALS 
 


A. Subject Matter:  This Agreement concerns a project located within the City 
of Wildomar proposed by the project applicant (Palm Communities, Mitch 
Slagerman), commonly referred to as PA 21-0006 Tres Lagos Affordable 
Housing Project (hereinafter referred to as the "project") and as more particularly 
described in Attachment 1 to this Agreement.  
 
B. Purpose:  The purpose of this Agreement is to formalize procedures for the 
treatment and disposition of all Tribal Cultural Resources, ceremonial items, items 
of cultural patrimony, artifacts and Native American human remains and 
associated grave goods, in the event that any are found in conjunction with 
development of the PA 21-0006 Tres Lagos Affordable Housing Project, 
including archaeological studies, excavation, geotechnical investigations, grading 
and any ground disturbing activities.  
 
This Agreement is entered into after the completion of consultation under 
Government Code Section 65913.4(b), for PA 21-0006 Tres Lagos Affordable 
Housing Project. 
 
C. Cultural Affiliation:  As mentioned previously, this project is located within 
the Luiseño Traditional Use Area;  
 
  







 2 


AGREEMENT 
 


 
I. Incorporation of Recitals.  All of the foregoing Recitals are accurate and are 
incorporated in this Agreement by reference. 
 
II. Tribal Monitoring. Prior to ministerial approval, and prior to the issuance of a 
grading permit, the City or Wildomar will require that the project applicant provide 
evidence that an agreement has been established with the Soboba Band of 
Luiseno Indians, to provide tribal monitoring for all Project related ground 
disturbing activities.  Such contract for monitoring shall incorporate by reference 
the entirety of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
The project applicant shall submit a copy of a signed contract between the Soboba 
Band and the project applicant for the monitoring of the project to the 
Planning Department and to the Engineering Department.  The Tribal Monitor(s) 
shall have the authority to temporarily divert, redirect or halt the ground-
disturbance activities to allow recovery of cultural resources.  Tribal monitor(s) 
shall be required on-site during all ground-disturbing activities, including 
archeological site surveys, grading, stockpiling of materials, engineered fill, rock 
crushing, etc. 
 
III. Cultural Resources Disposition.  In the event that Native American cultural 
resources are discovered during the course of initial survey or grading (inadvertent 
discoveries), the following procedures shall be carried out for final disposition of 
the discoveries: 
One or more of the following treatments, in order of preference, shall be employed 
with the Tribe.  Evidence of such shall be provided to the City of Wildomar Planning 
Department: 


a. Preservation-In-Place of the cultural resources, if feasible.  Preservation 
in place means avoiding the resources, leaving them in the place where 
they were found with no development affecting the integrity of the 
resources. 


b. Reburial of the resources on the Project property. The measures for 
reburial shall include, at least, the following:  Measures and provisions 
to protect the future reburial area from any future impacts in perpetuity. 
Reburial shall not occur until all legally required cataloging and basic 
recordation have been completed, with an exception that sacred items, 
burial goods and Native American human remains are excluded. Any 
reburial process shall be culturally appropriate. Listing of contents and 
location of the reburial shall be included in the confidential Phase IV 
report. The Phase IV Report shall be filed with the City under a 
confidential cover and not subject to Public Records Request.   







 3 


c. If preservation in place or reburial is not feasible then the resources shall 
be curated in a culturally appropriate manner at a Riverside County 
curation facility that meets State Resources Department Office of 
Historic Preservation Guidelines for the Curation of Archaeological 
Resources ensuring access and use pursuant to the Guidelines. The 
collection and associated records shall be transferred, including title, 
and are to be accompanied by payment of the fees necessary for 
permanent curation. Evidence of curation in the form of a letter from the 
curation facility stating that subject archaeological materials have been 
received and that all fees have been paid, shall be provided by the 
landowner to the City. There shall be no destructive or invasive testing 
on sacred items, burial goods and Native American human remains. 
Results concerning finds of any inadvertent discoveries shall be 
included in the Phase IV monitoring report.  


 
IV. Inadvertent Archeological Find. If during ground disturbance activities, 
cultural resources are discovered that were not assessed prior to project approval, 
the following procedures shall be followed.  Cultural resources are defined, as 
being multiple artifacts in close association with each other, but also include fewer 
artifacts if the area of the find is determined to be of significance due to its sacred 
or cultural importance as determined in consultation with the Tribe. 


a. All ground disturbance activities within 100 feet of the discovered cultural 
resources shall be halted until a meeting is convened between the 
developer, the archaeologist, the tribal representative(s) and the 
Planning Director to discuss the significance of the find. 


b. At the meeting, the significance of the discoveries shall be discussed 
and after consultation with the tribal representative(s) and the 
archaeologist, a decision shall be made, with the concurrence of the 
Planning Director, as to the appropriate mitigation (documentation, 
recovery, avoidance, etc.) for the cultural resources. 


c. Grading of further ground disturbance shall not resume within the area 
of the discovery until an agreement has been reached by all parties as 
to the appropriate mitigation. Work shall be allowed to continue outside 
of the buffer area and will be monitored by additional Tribal monitors if 
needed. 


d. Treatment and avoidance of the newly discovered resources shall be 
consistent with the Cultural Resources Management Plan and 
Monitoring Agreements entered into with the Tribe. This may include 
avoidance of the cultural resources through project design, in-place 
preservation of cultural resources located in native soils and/or re-burial 
on the Project property so they are not subject to further disturbance in 
perpetuity as identified in Non-Disclosure of Reburial Condition. 







 4 


e. If the find is determined to be significant and avoidance of the site has 
not been achieved, a Phase III data recovery plan shall be prepared by 
the project archeologist, in consultation with the Tribe, and shall be 
submitted to the City for their review and approval prior to 
implementation of the said plan.  


f. Pursuant to Calif. Pub. Res. Code § 21083.2(b) avoidance is the 
preferred method of preservation for archaeological resources and 
cultural resources.  If the landowner and the Tribe cannot agree on the 
significance or the mitigation for the archaeological or cultural resources, 
these issues will be presented to the Planning Director for decision. The 
City’s Planning Director shall make the determination based on the 
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act with respect to 
archaeological resources, recommendations of the project archeologist 
and shall consider the cultural and religious principles and practices of 
the Tribe. Notwithstanding any other rights available under the law, the 
decision of the City Planning Director shall be appealable to the City 
Planning Commission and/or City Council.” 


 
V. Human Remains. If human remains are encountered, State Health and Safety 
Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance shall occur until the 
Riverside County Coroner has made the necessary findings as to origin. Further, 
pursuant to Public Resource Code Section 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in 
place and free from disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and 
disposition has been made. If the Riverside County Coroner determines the 
remains to be Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall 
be contacted within the period specified by law (24 hours). Subsequently, the 
Native American Heritage Commission shall identify the "most likely descendant." 
The most likely descendant shall then make recommendations and engage in 
consultation concerning the treatment of the remains as provided in Public 
Resources Code Section 5097.98. 
 
VI. Non-Disclosure of Reburials Location. It is understood by all parties that 
unless otherwise required by law, the site of any reburial of Native American 
human remains or associated grave goods shall not be disclosed and shall not be 
governed by public disclosure requirements of the California Public Records 
Act. The Coroner, pursuant to the specific exemption set forth in California 
Government Code 6254 (r)., parties, and Lead Agencies, will be asked to withhold 
public disclosure information related to such reburial, pursuant to the specific 
exemption set forth in California Government Code 6254 (r). 
 
VII. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors, representatives, executors, 
administrators, and assignees of the Parties, including subsequent landowners 
and developers of the Project area and any person or entity obligated to comply 







 5 


with the City’s conditions of approval/mitigation measures, of other environmental 
and cultural or archaeological resource protection laws applicable to the Project.  
 
VIII.   Environmental Compliance.  Nothing in this Agreement shall excuse the 
Lead Agencies or the Developer of the Project from its obligation under any 
applicable state or federal environmental statute, including, but not limited to 
California Government Code § 65913.4; CEQA and applicable regulations of the 
CEQA Guidelines; California Public Resources Code § 5097.98, § 5097.99, and § 
5097.991; California Health and Safety Code § 7050.5 (c); California Government 
Code § 6254.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to make any of the above-
referenced laws applicable where such laws would otherwise be inapplicable.  
 
IX.  Indemnity.  The Soboba Band in no way indemnifies or guarantees the City 
in any of its legal obligations.  
 
X.  Severability.  Should any court or agency of competent jurisdiction find any 
part of this Agreement to be to any extent invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 
of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by 
law and shall not be affected thereby. 
 
XI.  Controversies and Claims Subject to Mediation.  Any controversy or claim 
or other matter in question arising out of or related to the Agreement, or the breach 
thereof, shall be resolved by mediation.  Any demand for mediation shall be made 
within a reasonable time after the controversy or claim or other matter in question 
has arisen.  In no event shall the demand for mediation be made after the date 
when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based upon such controversy or 
claim or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of 
limitations.  The Parties shall continue to perform under this Agreement pending 
the outcome of the mediation.  Any controversy or claim or other matter in question 
not resolved by mediation shall be decided by litigation in a court of competent 
jurisdiction located in the first instance in the United States District Court for the 
Central District of California, and if and only if such federal court does not accept 
jurisdiction, then in any court of competent jurisdiction in the County of Riverside, 
State of California. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Soboba Band does not 
waive any defenses or rights by entering into this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, the defense of sovereign immunity.  In the event any mediation, litigation, 
or other dispute resolution mechanism is commenced by a Party to the Agreement, 
each Party shall bear its own costs, including attorneys' fees.  
 
XII.  Limitation on Scope.  This Agreement is unique to the Project only and does 
not set a precedent for other projects.  
 
  







 6 


XIII.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in two or more counterparts 
and shall be effective when all the Parties and signatories have affixed their 
signatures to two or more of the counterparts and the counterparts have been 
delivered to all Parties, at which time the counterparts together will be deemed one 
original document.  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed by the 
authorized representatives of the parties hereto. 


 
 


Date: April _____, 2021 
 
 


SOBOBA BAND OF LUISEÑO INDIANS 
 
 


_______________________________ 
By: Isaiah Vivanco, Tribal Chairman 


Soboba Band of Luiseño 
Indians 


 


CITY: 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


 


By: ___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 
 


ATTEST:  


By: ________________________ 
Janet Morales 
Acting City Clerk 


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


By: ________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 







 7 


ATTACHMENT 1 
 


Preliminary Tres Lagos Site Plan 
 


 







C


T
re


s
 L


a
g
o
s


M
u
lt
i-


fa
m


ily
 A


p
a
rt


m
e
n
ts


2
3


3
4


5
 &


 2
3


3
6


5
 C


a
tt


 R
o
a


d
W


ild
o


m
a


r,
 C


A
. 
9
2
5
9
5


A
P


N
: 


3
8


0
-1


0
0


-0
0


8
, 


3
8


0
-1


0
0


-0
9
,


3
8


0
-1


0
0


-0
1


0
, 


3
8


0
-1


0
0


-0
1


1
, 


3
8


0
-1


0
0
-0


1
2


A
 P


a
lm


 C
o


m
m


u
n
iti


e
s 


A
ff
o


rd
a
b


le
H


o
u
si


n
g


 D
e
ve


lo
p


m
e
n
t



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Typewriter

LEXI
LANE



batkins

Typewriter

AVRY
WAY



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Line



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Oval



batkins

Oval



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Rectangle



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Line



batkins

Typewriter

Building 
Type C-1



batkins

Typewriter

Building
Type C-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building
Type C-3



batkins

Typewriter

Building 
Type C-4



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building type R-1



batkins

Typewriter

Building type R-2 (Reverse)



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-1
(Reverse)



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building Type R-2



batkins

Typewriter

Building type R-2







ATTACHMENT C 
 


Pechanga AB 168 Consultation Letter 







Dustin Nigg, Mayor, District 2                                                                     23873 Clinton Keith Rd, Ste 201 
Ben J. Benoit, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1                                                                                                         Wildomar, CA 92595 
Bridgette Moore, Council Member, District 4                                                                                                  951.677.7751 Phone 
Joseph Morabito Council Member, District 3                                                                                                    951.698.1463 Fax 
Marsha Swanson, Council Member, District 5                                                                                  
 
 
January 29, 2021 
 
 
Ms. Ebru T. Ozdil 
Pechanga Band of Mission Indians 
PO Box 2183 
Temecula, CA 92593 
 
Subject: Native American Consultation (AB 168 Tribal Scoping Consultation) for the City of Wildomar 


– Tres Lagos Affordable Housing Project (PA 21-0006) 
 
Dear Ms. Ozdil, 
 
The City of Wildomar received a new development application on January 26, 2021 for the above-referenced project 
which will not be subject to CEQA under SB 35 and therefore will be processed as a ministerial approval. As a 
ministerial project the City is precluded from establishing discretionary conditions of approval, such as we typically 
do for other development projects. However, the provisions of SB 35 require scoping consultation similar to AB-52 
with the following potential outcomes: 
 


(A) If, after concluding the scoping consultation, the parties find that no potential tribal cultural resource 
would be affected by the proposed development, the development proponent may submit an application 
for the proposed development that is subject to the streamlined, ministerial approval process. 


(B) If, after concluding the scoping consultation, the parties find that a potential tribal cultural resource could 
be affected by the proposed development and an enforceable agreement is documented between the 
California Native American tribe and the local government on methods, measures, and conditions for tribal 
cultural resource treatment, the development proponent may submit the application for a development 
subject to the streamlined, ministerial approval process. The local government shall ensure that the 
enforceable agreement is included in the requirements and conditions for the proposed development. 


(C) If, after concluding the scoping consultation, the parties find that a potential tribal cultural resource could 
be affected by the proposed development and an enforceable agreement is not documented between the 
California Native American tribe and the local government regarding methods, measures, and conditions 
for tribal cultural resource treatment, the development shall not be eligible for the streamlined, ministerial 
approval process. 


 
As you can see from the above, the City will need to confirm that there is an enforceable agreement between the 
applicant and the Tribe before we can proceed with the streamlined approval process.  


Project Description/Request: The applicant is requesting to construct an Affordable Housing Project under the SB 
330 and SB 35 State Housing Laws. The proposed project includes a phase 225-unit multi-family “gated” affordable 
housing community on a 10.35-acre site at 23345 and 23365 Catt Road (southeast corner of Catt Road and Arnett 
Road). The General Plan land use designation of VHDR (14-20 units/acre) and Zoning is R-3 (General Residential). 
There will be 222 affordable units and three manager units. The project site plan will include two- and three-story 
apartment buildings, a two-story community building, and a one-story laundry and maintenance building(s). The 
architectural elevations are proposed to be consistent with the City’s multi-family objective design 
standards/guidelines (French Design theme). Residential amenities will include outdoor recreation areas consisting 
of a tot-lot, multi-sport ball court, and BBQ and picnic areas. The proposed project will include a mix of one-, two-, 
and three-bedroom apartment units ranging in size from 604 to 1,003 square feet of living area. Under the existing 
VHDR land use, the site would allow approximately 207 apartment units. The applicant is requesting a density bonus 
of 7.25 percent (15 units) in accordance with Section 17.292 of the Wildomar Municipal Code bringing the total 
affordable units to 222 units. The proposed project will use state/federal tax credits and Section 8 housing funds to 
supplement apartment rents for families meeting the income criteria for affordable units. Refer to the attached flash 
drive for all development plans and technical studies.  







 Parcel Merger – The proposal requires administrative approval to merge five parcels into three parcels. 
 


 Plot Plan – The proposal requires approval of an administrative Plot Plan (PA 21-0006) for site to develop the 
225-unit multifamily “gated” affordable housing community for the 10.35-acre site (APNs: 380-100-008, 380-
100-009, 380-100-010, 380-100-011, and 380-100-012). 


 
The City of Wildomar values your feedback as part of our development review process. Thus, in accordance with 
Government Code Section 65913.4(b)(1)(3)(iii)(II), we would request that you notify the City within 30 days of receipt 
of this letter if you would like to meet and discuss the project. Given the current COVID-19 restrictions, we would 
prefer a conference call. To help facilitate review of the proposed project, we have included a copy of the project 
application(s) forms, development plans and technical studies (on a flash drive). The City looks forward to working 
with you and your team during this process. 
 
You may contact me by phone at (951) 677-7751, extension 213, or by email at mbassi@cityofwildomar.org to 
arrange a date and time to meet. 
 
Sincerely, 


 
Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director 
 
 
Attachments: 
Project Applications, Project Information/Development Plan Package, Technical Studies 



mailto:mbassi@cityofwildomar.org





ATTACHMENT D 
 


Soboba AB 168 Consultation Letter 







 
 


Dustin Nigg, Mayor, District 2 23873 Clinton Keith Rd, Ste 201 
Ben J. Benoit, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1  Wildomar, CA 92595 
Bridgette Moore, Council Member, District 4 951.677.7751 Phone 
Joseph Morabito Council Member, District 3 951.698.1463 Fax 
Marsha Swanson, Council Member, District 5 


 


January 29, 2021 


 
Mr. Joseph Ontiveros 
Soboba Band of Mission Indians 
PO Box 487 
San Jacinto, CA 92581 


 
Subject: Native American Consultation (AB 168 Tribal Scoping Consultation) for the City of 


Wildomar – Tres Lagos Affordable Housing Project (PA 21-0006) 
 
Dear Mr. Ontiveros, 


 
The City of Wildomar received a new development application on January 26, 2021 for the above-referenced project 
which will not be subject to CEQA under SB 35 and therefore will be processed as a ministerial approval. As a 
ministerial project the City is precluded from establishing discretionary conditions of approval, such as we typically 
do for other development projects. However, the provisions of SB 35 require scoping consultation similar to AB-52 
with the following potential outcomes: 


 
(A) If, after concluding the scoping consultation, the parties find that no potential tribal cultural resource 
would be affected by the proposed development, the development proponent may submit an application 
for the proposed development that is subject to the streamlined, ministerial approval process. 


(B) If, after concluding the scoping consultation, the parties find that a potential tribal cultural resource could 
be affected by the proposed development and an enforceable agreement is documented between the 
California Native American tribe and the local government on methods, measures, and conditions for tribal 
cultural resource treatment, the development proponent may submit the application for a development 
subject to the streamlined, ministerial approval process. The local government shall ensure that the 
enforceable agreement is included in the requirements and conditions for the proposed development. 


(C) If, after concluding the scoping consultation, the parties find that a potential tribal cultural resource could 
be affected by the proposed development and an enforceable agreement is not documented between the 
California Native American tribe and the local government regarding methods, measures, and conditions 
for tribal cultural resource treatment, the development shall not be eligible for the streamlined, ministerial 
approval process. 


 
As you can see from the above, the City will need to confirm that there is an enforceable agreement between the 
applicant and the Tribe before we can proceed with the streamlined approval process. 


Project Description/Request: The applicant is requesting to construct an Affordable Housing Project under the SB 
330 and SB 35 State Housing Laws. The proposed project includes a phase 225-unit multi-family “gated” affordable 
housing community on a 10.35-acre site at 23345 and 23365 Catt Road (southeast corner of Catt Road and Arnett 
Road). The General Plan land use designation of VHDR (14-20 units/acre) and Zoning is R-3 (General Residential). 
There will be 222 affordable units and three manager units. The project site plan will include two- and three-story 
apartment buildings, a two-story community building, and a one-story laundry and maintenance building(s). The 
architectural elevations are proposed to be consistent with the City’s multi-family objective design 
standards/guidelines (French Design theme). Residential amenities will include outdoor recreation areas consisting 
of a tot-lot, multi-sport ball court, and BBQ and picnic areas. The proposed project will include a mix of one-, two-, 
and three-bedroom apartment units ranging in size from 604 to 1,003 square feet of living area. Under the existing 
VHDR land use, the site would allow approximately 207 apartment units. The applicant is requesting a density bonus 
of 7.25 percent (15 units) in accordance with Section 17.292 of the Wildomar Municipal Code bringing the total 
affordable units to 222 units. The proposed project will use state/federal tax credits and Section 8 housing funds to 
supplement apartment rents for families meeting the income criteria for affordable units. Refer to the attached flash 
drive for all development plans and technical studies. 







 Parcel Merger – The proposal requires administrative approval to merge five parcels into three parcels. 
 
 Plot Plan – The proposal requires approval of an administrative Plot Plan (PA 21-0006) for site to develop the 


225-unit multifamily “gated” affordable housing community for the 10.35-acre site (APNs: 380-100-008, 380- 
100-009, 380-100-010, 380-100-011, and 380-100-012). 


 
The City of Wildomar values your feedback as part of our development review process. Thus, in accordance with 
Government Code Section 65913.4(b)(1)(3)(iii)(II), we would request that you notify the City within 30 days of receipt 
of this letter if you would like to meet and discuss the project. Given the current COVID-19 restrictions, we would 
prefer a conference call. To help facilitate review of the proposed project, we have included a copy of the project 
application(s) forms, development plans and technical studies (on a flash drive). The City looks forward to working 
with you and your team during this process. 


 
You may contact me by phone at (951) 677-7751, extension 213, or by email at mbassi@cityofwildomar.org to 
arrange a date and time to meet. 


 
Sincerely, 


 
Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director 
Cc: 
Mark Teague, AICP, CEQA Manager 
Jasmine A. Osman, Associate Planner 


 
Attachments: 
Project Applications, Project Information/Development Plan Package, Technical Studies 



mailto:mbassi@cityofwildomar.org





  


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.3 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
 Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Acting Administrative Services Director 
 
PREPARED BY: Adam Jantz, Administrative Analyst II 
  
SUBJECT:  FY 2020-21 3rd Quarter Budget Report 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the City Council review and consider approval of the Fiscal Year 
2020-21 3rd Quarter Budget Report, and adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2020-21 BUDGETED 
REVENUES AND EXPENSES 


 
3rd QUARTER BUDGET REPORT 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
This 3rd Quarter budget report for Fiscal Year 2020-21 reflects the Finance Division of the 
Administrative Services Department’s continued efforts to provide timely, accurate, and 
understandable financial information to assist the City Council with the decision-making 
process.  All funds have been reviewed in preparing this report.  
 
Also considered in this 3rd Quarter budget report are the current and future effects of the 
ongoing Coronavirus (COVID-19) situation and its effects on businesses and other 
activities within the City. 


The emphasis of this report is on the General Fund (100), which funds most of the 
government services such as public safety, general administrative services, building, 
planning, economic development, etc. and the significant recommended adjustments 
related to the Non-General Funds. This report also discusses prior year results, budget 
trends, and the economic/political outlook that may impact the City's resources. 


The primary purposes of this Quarterly Budget report are to: 







  


 


 
 


• Recommend budgetary changes to address known budget deficiencies 
• Recommend budget changes to align the budget with projected fiscal year-end 


actual costs 
• Identify changes which materially impact fund balances 
• Give consideration and direction to proposed decision packages. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
On June 26, 2019, the City Council adopted the biennial operating budget for fiscal years 
2019-20 and 2020-21 for the City of Wildomar. On June 24th, 2020, the City Council 
adopted the FY 2020-21 Amended Budget that incorporated changes in response to the 
current Covid-19 situation. That budget plan represented a conservative and balanced 
budget for fiscal year 2020-21 totaling $13,267,200 in General Fund revenue and 
$13,216,800 in General Fund expenditures. Other General Fund revenues, which include 
Measure AA, were budgeted at $2,100,000 with Other General Fund expenditures 
totaling $2,716,900. Non-General Fund revenues summed from all other funds totaled 
$17,024,200 and expenditures were budgeted at $18,943,400. 
 
On October 14th, 2020, Council adopted the 1st Quarter Budget Adjustments for FY 
2020-21. These increased General Fund Revenue by $2,000 to $13,269,200 and 
General Fund Expenditures by $42,800 to $13,259,600. Non-General Fund revenues 
were increased by $374,600 to $17,398,800. Non-General Fund expenditures were 
increased by $403,700 to $19,347,100. 
 
On January 13th, 2021, the City Council adopted the Mid-Year Budget Adjustments. This 
brought the total projected revenues to $32,945,100 and expenditures to $32,725,200. 
 
In this FY 2020-21 3rd Quarter budget presentation, General Fund revenue projections 
are $13,667,200, a net increase of $369,600. This is primarily due to higher-than-
expected sales tax revenue and SoCal Edison franchise fee payments. There also an 
increase to the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) revenue in the amount 
of $55,000.  
 
Staff is also proposing an increase in the Measure AA sales tax revenue of $900,000 to 
bring the total budget to $3,000,000. This is because the sales tax allotments received by 
the City thus far have been higher than expected during the pandemic.   
 
For Non-General Funds, the anticipated revenues are $17,597,800, which is a net 
increase of $51,300. Most of this is related to Cemetery revenue which has seen an 
upsurge in activity during the pandemic. 
For General Fund expenditures, staff is proposing a net increase of $194,900. This is 
primarily due to a higher than anticipated development activity in Planning and Building 
which has been increasing in the last few months. Therefore, staff is proposing 
reallocating $86,200 from Development Engineering to Private Development 
Building/Planning and increasing the budget by an additional $172,700 for a net increase 
of $258,900. The other significant change is the repeal of the salary and merit freezes on 
City staff which will increase salary expenditures across departments by $58,500. This is 







  


 


 
 


partially offset by other decreases in various departments. This $194,900 net increase is 
covered by the $369,600 increase in revenues for the General Fund.  
 
Other internal changes within the fund that are not salary related include the allocation 
from the City Attorney’s retainer budget to the various departments that utilized legal 
services during the 3rd quarter. This decreases the City Attorney’s budget by $127,300 
and is spread across the various other departments to cover their legal expenditures. 
These adjustments have no net effect on the General Fund Balance. The Landscape 
Design Guidelines project is also being resumed. This leads to an increase of $35,000 in 
Community Development Admin. The Office of Emergency Management is being 
decreased by $32,600 as well since these expenses have been covered by CARES Act 
funding in Fund 290.    
 
In Non-General Fund expenditures, the only significant change is an increase of $90,700 
in the Grants 280 fund due to the resumption of the Zoning Consistency Program. This 
project will be reimbursed by a grant when finished. 
 
In addition to the above budget adjustments, staff is also bringing 2 decision packages 
before the City Council for consideration. The total cost of these decision packages is 
$70,000, and are as follows: Measure AA Fund - $50,500; Measure Z Fund - $12,000; 
Cemetery Fund - $7,500 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
3rd QUARTER BUDGET REPORT: 
$369,600 General Fund Revenue Increase 
$194,900 General Fund Expenditure Increase 
Net Increase to General Fund Balance of $174,700 
General Fund Reserves Equal to 7.5% of Operating Expenses 
$900,000 Measure AA Fund Revenue Increase 
$51,300 Non-General Fund Revenue Increase  
$90,700 Non-General Fund Expenditures Increase  
 
Submitted by:         Approved by: 
Robert Howell        Gary Nordquist 
Acting Administrative Services Director        City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 2021-XX 
FY 2020-21 3rd Quarter Budget Financial Reports and Proposed Adjustments 
FY 2020-21 3rd Quarter Budget Decision Packages 
 
 
 
 


 







  


 


 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2020-21 BUDGETED 
REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
 


WHEREAS, The City of Wildomar Biennial Budget for FY 2019-20 and 2020-21 
was approved by the Wildomar City Council on June 26th, 2019. 


 
WHEREAS, The City of Wildomar FY 2020-21 Budget was amended and 


approved by the Wildomar City Council on June 24th, 2020 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Wildomar FY 2020-21 Budget was amended and 


approved by the Wildomar City Council on October 14th, 2020 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Wildomar FY 2020-21 Budget was amended and 


approved by the Wildomar City Council on January 13th, 2021 
 


WHEREAS, changing economic conditions, program and service reviews require 
that the original approved budget be regularly monitored and updated: and 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 


Wildomar authorizes the amendment to the FY 2020-21 Budgets increasing the total 
amount of projected revenues to $34,266,000 and total projected expenditures to 
$33,053,900 as shown in the documents attached as Exhibit “A”. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of April 2021. 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 


 
 
 







  


 


 
 


EXHIBIT “A” 


 


Audited Fund 
Balance


Approved 
Revenues


Proposed 3rd 
Qtr Revenue 
Adjustments


Estimated Funds 
Available


Approved 
Appropriations


Proposed 3rd 
Qtr Expenditure 


Adjustments


Estimated 
Available Fund 


Balance


6/30/2020 + 2020-21 + 2020-21 = 2020-21 - 2020-21 - 2020-21 6/30/2021
General Fund


100 General Fund 837,664$         13,297,600$      369,600$          14,504,864$           13,300,600$         194,900$           1,009,364$        
110 Development Agreement 40,620             1,000                 -                    41,620                    -                        -                     41,620               
120 Measure AA 1,911,578        2,100,000          900,000            4,911,578               3,111,100             -                     1,800,478          


Total General Funds 2,789,862        15,398,600        1,269,600         19,458,062             16,411,700           194,900             2,851,462          


Non-General Funds
200 Gas Tax (674,972)          854,800             -                    179,828                  794,800                -                     (614,972)            
201 Measure A 86,651             565,000             -                    651,651                  718,300                -                     (66,649)              
203 TDA Fund -                   269,800             -                    269,800                  275,000                -                     (5,200)                
210 AQMD 164,037           45,000               -                    209,037                  53,200                  -                     155,837             
251 LLMD 89-1C 999,583           327,800             -                    1,327,383               182,000                -                     1,145,383          
252 CSA-22 (66,861)            31,300               -                    (35,561)                   45,000                  -                     (80,561)              
253 CSA-103 (287,211)          171,700             -                    (115,511)                 197,700                -                     (313,211)            
254 CSA-142 98,108             36,300               -                    134,408                  37,600                  -                     96,808               
255 Measure Z Parks Fund 263,153           442,100             -                    705,253                  465,400                -                     239,853             
259 CFD 2017-1 DIF Deferral 13,586             89,300               -                    102,886                  83,000                  -                     19,886               
260 CFD 2013-1 Maintenance 201,251           53,100               -                    254,351                  54,700                  -                     199,651             
261 CFD 2013-1 Annex 1 Zone 3 229,859           60,300               -                    290,159                  60,400                  -                     229,759             
262 CFD 2013-1 Annex 2 Zone 4 (1,528)              300                    -                    (1,228)                     2,100                    -                     (3,328)                
263 CFD 2013-1 Annex 3 Zone 5 127,843           39,900               -                    167,743                  40,000                  -                     127,743             
264 CFD 2013-1 Annex 4 Zone 6 -                   -                     -                    -                          -                        -                     -                     
265 CFD 2013-1 Annex 5 Zone 7 -                   -                     -                    -                          -                        -                     -                     
266 CFD 2013-1 Annex 6 Zone 8 25,715             8,700                 -                    34,415                    8,700                    -                     25,715               
267 CFD 2013-1 Annex 7 Zone 9 40,262             10,900               -                    51,162                    10,800                  -                     40,362               
268 CFD 2013-1 Annex 8 Zone 10 -                   -                     -                    -                          -                        -                     -                     
269 CFD 2013-1 Spec Tax B 197                  120,100             -                    120,297                  120,100                -                     197                    
270 CFD 2013-1 Zone 11 31,610             16,500               -                    48,110                    16,300                  -                     31,810               
271 CFD 2013-1 Zone 13 1,227               1,100                 -                    2,327                      600                       -                     1,727                 
272 CFD 2013-1 Zone 14 12,776             6,700                 -                    19,476                    6,600                    -                     12,876               
273 CFD 2013-1 Zone 15 9,649               16,200               -                    25,849                    8,600                    -                     17,249               
274 CFD 2013-1 Zone 16 -                   6,800                 -                    6,800                      6,800                    -                     -                     
275 CFD 2013-1 Zone 17 -                   21,000               -                    21,000                    21,000                  -                     -                     
276 CFD 2013-1 Zone 18 -                   15,400               -                    15,400                    15,400                  -                     -                     
277 CFD 2013-1 Zone 19 -                   -                     7,600                7,600                      -                        -                     7,600                 
278 CFD 2013-1 Zone 20 -                   -                     -                    -                          -                        -                     -                     
279 CFD 2013-1 Zone 21 -                   -                     -                    -                          -                        -                     -                     
280 Grants (47,190)            174,000             -                    126,810                  203,100                90,700               (166,990)            
281 SLESF (54)                   156,800             -                    156,746                  100,000                -                     56,746               
282 CDBG (111,533)          61,000               11,100              (39,433)                   61,000                  -                     (100,433)            
283 PEG Grant 23,591             33,000               -                    56,591                    28,400                  -                     28,191               
284 Streetlights 147,170           178,800             -                    325,970                  196,900                -                     129,070             
290 COVID-19 (94,132)            306,100             -                    211,968                  306,100                -                     (94,132)              
300 Cemetery 1,230,077        569,100             27,100              1,826,277               663,000                -                     1,163,277          
301 Cemetery Endowment 263,307           27,700               5,500                296,507                  -                        -                     296,507             
302 Cemetery CIP 16,137             -                     -                    16,137                    -                        -                     16,137               
410 Administrative Svs - Dif (85,129)            7,000                 -                    (78,129)                   10,000                  -                     (88,129)              
420 Public Facilities - Dif 325,067           42,900               -                    367,967                  105,000                -                     262,967             
421 Police - Dif 485,213           25,300               -                    510,513                  -                        -                     510,513             
422 Animal Shelter - Dif (672,349)          19,500               -                    (652,849)                 82,900                  -                     (735,749)            
423 Corporate Yard  - Dif (22,453)            13,900               -                    (8,553)                     -                        -                     (8,553)                
430 Fire Facilities - Dif 667,573           49,000               -                    716,573                  -                        -                     716,573             
440 Trans & Roads - Dif 2,612,162        507,600             -                    3,119,762               1,732,400             -                     1,387,362          
450 Trans & Signals -Dif 506,860           141,900             -                    648,760                  589,500                -                     59,260               
451 Drainage - Dif 506,470           269,900             -                    776,370                  123,600                -                     652,770             
460 Park Land Acquisitions-Dif (149,993)          46,700               -                    (103,293)                 -                        -                     (103,293)            
461 Park Improvements-Dif 596,487           307,500             -                    903,987                  203,800                -                     700,187             
470 Community Center - Dif 289,751           37,100               -                    326,851                  -                        -                     326,851             
480 Multi-purpose Trails - Dif 296,776           83,300               -                    380,076                  5,600                    -                     374,476             
490 Library - Dif 72,606             -                     -                    72,606                    19,000                  -                     53,606               
500 RMRA Capital Projects 728,701           620,000             -                    1,348,701               1,026,000             -                     322,701             
501 Capital Reinvestment -                   -                     -                    -                          -                        -                     -                     
502 RCFC Fund (7,118)              327,000             -                    319,883                  216,800                -                     103,083             
503 TUMF Fund (88,110)            5,868,600          -                    5,780,490               3,279,700             -                     2,500,790          
504 CMAQ Fund -                   -                     -                    -                          -                        -                     -                     
505 MSRC Fund -                   50,000               -                    50,000                    -                        -                     50,000               
506 HSIP Fund (18,751)            671,200             -                    652,449                  615,200                -                     37,249               
507 Misc State Funded Projects (33,326)            75,500               -                    42,174                    30,000                  -                     12,174               
508 Local Capital Grants -                   3,666,000          -                    3,666,000               3,666,000             -                     -                     


Total Non-General Funds 8,712,746$      17,546,500$      51,300$            26,310,546$           16,488,100$         90,700$             9,731,746$        


Total City Funds 11,502,608$    32,945,100$      1,320,900$       45,768,608$           32,899,800$         285,600$           12,583,208$      


Total Adjusted Revenue 34,266,000$     Total Adjusted Expenditures 33,185,400$      


FY 2020-21 Budget Review
3rd Quarter FY2020-21


Total City of Wildomar Budget Summary







Audited Fund 


Balance


Approved 


Revenues


Proposed 3rd Qtr 


Revenue 


Adjustments


Estimated Funds 


Available


Approved 


Appropriations


Proposed 3rd Qtr 


Expenditure 


Adjustments


Estimated 


Available Fund 


Balance


6/30/2020 + 2020-21 + 2020-21 = 2020-21 - 2020-21 - 2020-21 6/30/2021


General Fund


100 General Fund 837,664$    13,297,600$    369,600$     14,504,864$     13,300,600$     194,900$     1,009,364$    


110 Development Agreement 40,620 1,000 - 41,620 - - 41,620 


120 Measure AA 1,911,578           2,100,000 900,000 4,911,578 3,111,100 - 1,800,478 


Total General Funds 2,789,862           15,398,600            1,269,600             19,458,062 16,411,700 194,900 2,851,462 


Non-General Funds


200 Gas Tax (674,972) 854,800 - 179,828 794,800 - (614,972) 


201 Measure A 86,651 565,000 - 651,651 718,300 - (66,649) 


203 TDA Fund - 269,800 - 269,800 275,000 - (5,200) 


210 AQMD 164,037 45,000 - 209,037 53,200 - 155,837 


251 LLMD 89-1C 999,583 327,800 - 1,327,383 182,000 - 1,145,383 


252 CSA-22 (66,861) 31,300 - (35,561) 45,000 - (80,561) 


253 CSA-103 (287,211) 171,700 - (115,511) 197,700 - (313,211) 


254 CSA-142 98,108 36,300 - 134,408 37,600 - 96,808 


255 Measure Z Parks Fund 263,153 442,100 - 705,253 465,400 - 239,853 


259 CFD 2017-1 DIF Deferral 13,586 89,300 - 102,886 83,000 - 19,886 


260 CFD 2013-1 Maintenance 201,251 53,100 - 254,351 54,700 - 199,651 


261 CFD 2013-1 Annex 1 Zone 3 229,859 60,300 - 290,159 60,400 - 229,759 


262 CFD 2013-1 Annex 2 Zone 4 (1,528) 300 - (1,228) 2,100 - (3,328) 


263 CFD 2013-1 Annex 3 Zone 5 127,843 39,900 - 167,743 40,000 - 127,743 


264 CFD 2013-1 Annex 4 Zone 6 - - - - - - - 


265 CFD 2013-1 Annex 5 Zone 7 - - - - - - - 


266 CFD 2013-1 Annex 6 Zone 8 25,715 8,700 - 34,415 8,700 - 25,715 


267 CFD 2013-1 Annex 7 Zone 9 40,262 10,900 - 51,162 10,800 - 40,362 


268 CFD 2013-1 Annex 8 Zone 10 - - - - - - - 


269 CFD 2013-1 Spec Tax B 197 120,100 - 120,297 120,100 - 197 


270 CFD 2013-1 Zone 11 31,610 16,500 - 48,110 16,300 - 31,810 


271 CFD 2013-1 Zone 13 1,227 1,100 - 2,327 600 - 1,727 


272 CFD 2013-1 Zone 14 12,776 6,700 - 19,476 6,600 - 12,876 


273 CFD 2013-1 Zone 15 9,649 16,200 - 25,849 8,600 - 17,249 


274 CFD 2013-1 Zone 16 - 6,800 - 6,800 6,800 - - 


275 CFD 2013-1 Zone 17 - 21,000 - 21,000 21,000 - - 


276 CFD 2013-1 Zone 18 - 15,400 - 15,400 15,400 - - 


277 CFD 2013-1 Zone 19 - - 7,600 7,600 - - 7,600 


278 CFD 2013-1 Zone 20 - - - - - - - 


279 CFD 2013-1 Zone 21 - - - - - - - 


280 Grants (47,190) 174,000 - 126,810 203,100 90,700 (166,990) 


281 SLESF (54) 156,800 - 156,746 100,000 - 56,746 


282 CDBG (111,533) 61,000 11,100 (39,433) 61,000 - (100,433) 


283 PEG Grant 23,591 33,000 - 56,591 28,400 - 28,191 


284 Streetlights 147,170 178,800 - 325,970 196,900 - 129,070 


290 COVID-19 (94,132) 306,100 - 211,968 306,100 - (94,132) 


300 Cemetery 1,230,077           569,100 27,100 1,826,277 663,000 - 1,163,277 


301 Cemetery Endowment 263,307 27,700 5,500 296,507 - - 296,507 


302 Cemetery CIP 16,137 - - 16,137 - - 16,137 


410 Administrative Svs - Dif (85,129) 7,000 - (78,129) 10,000 - (88,129) 


420 Public Facilities - Dif 325,067 42,900 - 367,967 105,000 - 262,967 


421 Police - Dif 485,213 25,300 - 510,513 - - 510,513 


422 Animal Shelter - Dif (672,349) 19,500 - (652,849) 82,900 - (735,749) 


423 Corporate Yard  - Dif (22,453) 13,900 - (8,553) - - (8,553) 


430 Fire Facilities - Dif 667,573 49,000 - 716,573 - - 716,573 


440 Trans & Roads - Dif 2,612,162           507,600 - 3,119,762 1,732,400 - 1,387,362 


450 Trans & Signals -Dif 506,860 141,900 - 648,760 589,500 - 59,260 


451 Drainage - Dif 506,470 269,900 - 776,370 123,600 - 652,770 


460 Park Land Acquisitions-Dif (149,993) 46,700 - (103,293) - - (103,293) 


461 Park Improvements-Dif 596,487 307,500 - 903,987 203,800 - 700,187 


470 Community Center - Dif 289,751 37,100 - 326,851 - - 326,851 


480 Multi-purpose Trails - Dif 296,776 83,300 - 380,076 5,600 - 374,476 


490 Library - Dif 72,606 - - 72,606 19,000 - 53,606 


500 RMRA Capital Projects 728,701 620,000 - 1,348,701 1,026,000 - 322,701 


501 Capital Reinvestment - - - - - - - 


502 RCFC Fund (7,118) 327,000 - 319,883 216,800 - 103,083 


503 TUMF Fund (88,110) 5,868,600 - 5,780,490 3,279,700 - 2,500,790 


504 CMAQ Fund - - - - - - - 


505 MSRC Fund - 50,000 - 50,000 - - 50,000 


506 HSIP Fund (18,751) 671,200 - 652,449 615,200 - 37,249 


507 Misc State Funded Projects (33,326) 75,500 - 42,174 30,000 - 12,174 


508 Local Capital Grants - 3,666,000 - 3,666,000 3,666,000 - - 


Total Non-General Funds 8,712,746$     17,546,500$    51,300$     26,310,546$     16,488,100$     90,700$     9,731,746$    


Total City Funds 11,502,608$      32,945,100$     1,320,900$     45,768,608$     32,899,800$     285,600$     12,583,208$     


Total Adjusted Revenue 34,266,000$     Total Adjusted Expenditures 33,185,400$     


FY 2020-21 Budget Review


3rd Quarter FY2020-21


Total City of Wildomar Budget Summary


Page 1







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


100  General Fund


3100   Sales & Use Tax 1,768,000                  1,269,490                  498,510                     72% 232,000                     2,000,000                  


3104   Redevelopment Property Tax 95,000                       55,618                       39,382                       59% 55,000                       150,000                     


3105   Property Tax-Secured 4,216,000                  2,331,461                  1,884,539                  55% -                             4,216,000                  


3106   Property Tax-Unsecured 221,800                     179,273                     42,527                       81% -                             221,800                     


3107   Property Tax-Prior Year 149,400                     102,765                     46,635                       69% -                             149,400                     


3108   Property Tax-HOPTR 45,000                       20,472                       24,528                       45% -                             45,000                       


3109   Property Tax-Supplemental, SBE 65,100                       41,969                       23,131                       64% -                             65,100                       


3110   Real Property Transfer Tax 170,400                     116,953                     53,447                       69% -                             170,400                     


3113   Property Tax-Misc Adjustments 4,000                         798                            3,202                         20% -                             4,000                         


3120   Franchise Fee-Solid Waste 363,500                     248,255                     115,245                     68% -                             363,500                     


3121   Franchise Fee-Electricity 300,000                     387,215                     (87,215)                      129% 87,300                       387,300                     


3122   Franchise Fee-Gas 80,000                       -                             80,000                       0% -                             80,000                       


3123   Franchise Fee Cable-Charter 178,300                     45,421                       132,879                     25% -                             178,300                     


3124   Franchise Fee-Telecomm-Frontier 134,200                     54,015                       80,185                       40% -                             134,200                     


3200   Business Registration Fee 35,000                       12,673                       22,327                       36% -                             35,000                       


3201   NPDES Inspection Fee 8,500                         -                             8,500                         0% -                             8,500                         


3210   Planning Fee 400                            350                            50                              88% -                             400                            


3220   Cannabis Application Fee 240,600                     133,330                     107,270                     55% -                             240,600                     


3221   Cannabis Regulatory Fee 135,000                     -                             135,000                     0% -                             135,000                     


3230   Develop/Engineering Permit Fee 30,000                       18,168                       11,832                       61% -                             30,000                       


3240   Building & Safety Fee 286,000                     217,839                     68,161                       76% -                             286,000                     


3250   Fire Fees 62,100                       51,039                       11,061                       82% -                             62,100                       


3260   Private Development Fee - Pln & Bld 540,200                     417,695                     122,505                     77% -                             540,200                     


3261   Development Engineering Fee 559,800                     186,200                     373,600                     33% -                             559,800                     


3268   Code Enforcement Revenue 25,000                       18,619                       6,381                         74% -                             25,000                       


3270   Fines & Forfeitures 55,000                       29,449                       25,551                       54% -                             55,000                       


3271   AMR Fines 16,500                       4,626                         11,874                       28% -                             16,500                       


3300   Abandoned Property Registration 1,800                         800                            1,000                         44% -                             1,800                         


3310   Public Safety Revenue 23,000                       11,325                       11,675                       49% -                             23,000                       


3320   Special Event Revenue 7,000                         1,500                         5,500                         21% -                             7,000                         


3321   Community Room Rental Fee 1,000                         100                            900                            10% -                             1,000                         


3324   RTA Bus Pass 500                            60                              440                            12% -                             500                            


3500   Motor Vehicle License Fee 30,000                       27,271                       2,729                         91% (2,700)                        27,300                       


3501   Vehicle License Fee Replacement SB130 2,845,000                  1,405,060                  1,439,940                  49% -                             2,845,000                  


3525   SB90 State Mandated Cost Reimb 22,600                       28                              22,572                       0% -                             22,600                       


3535   County/Special Dist. Reimb. 32,900                       12,175                       20,725                       37% -                             32,900                       


3800   Interest Income 50,000                       8,556                         41,444                       17% -                             50,000                       


3803   NSF Fees 100                            -                             100                            0% -                             100                            


3848   Breakfast with Santa 2,000                         -                             2,000                         0% (2,000)                        -                             


3850   Miscellaneous Income 31,000                       28,127                       2,873                         91% -                             31,000                       


3852   Donations 2,000                         2,000                         -                             100% -                             2,000                         


3900   Transfers In 463,900                     -                             463,900                     0% -                             463,900                     


Total General Fund 13,297,600                7,440,694                  5,856,906                  56% 369,600                     13,667,200                


Page 2







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


120  Measure AA Fund


3100   Sales & Use Tax 2,100,000                  2,242,921                  (142,921)                    107% 900,000                     3,000,000                  


Total Measure AA Fund 2,100,000                  2,242,921                  (142,921)                    107% 900,000                     3,000,000                  


200  Gas Tax


3503   Gas Tax 2103 304,700                     174,885                     129,815                     57% -                             304,700                     


3505   Gas Tax 2105 191,200                     127,549                     63,651                       67% -                             191,200                     


3506   Gas Tax 2106 122,900                     80,661                       42,239                       66% -                             122,900                     


3507   Gas Tax 2107 230,000                     170,309                     59,691                       74% -                             230,000                     


3508   Gas Tax 2107.5 6,000                         6,000                         -                             100% -                             6,000                         


Total Gas Tax 854,800                     559,404                     295,396                     65% -                             854,800                     


201  Measure A


3520   Measure A Revenue 565,000                     408,678                     156,322                     72% -                             565,000                     


Total Measure A 565,000                     408,678                     156,322                     72% -                             565,000                     


203  TDA Fund


3524   TDA Article 3 Rev 269,800                     -                             269,800                     0% -                             269,800                     


Total TDA Fund 269,800                     -                             269,800                     0% -                             269,800                     


210  AQMD


3510   AQMD-AB2766 45,000                       12,425                       32,575                       28% -                             45,000                       


Total AQMD 45,000                       12,425                       32,575                       28% -                             45,000                       


Page 3







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


251  LLMD 89-1C


8181   Zone 181 Special Assessment 25,900                       12,841                       13,059                       50% 25,900                       


8803   Zone 3 Special Assessment 107,700                     54,792                       52,909                       51% 107,700                     


8818   Zone 18 STL Special Assessment 900                            744                            156                            83% 900                            


8826   Zone 26 STL Special Assessment 1,200                         488                            712                            41% 1,200                         


8827   Zone 27 STL Special Assessment 1,400                         565                            835                            40% 1,400                         


8829   Zone 29 Special Assessment 1,100                         461                            639                            42% 1,100                         


8830   Zone 30 Special Assessment 33,200                       17,330                       15,870                       52% 33,200                       


8835   Zone 35 STL Special Assessment 100                            (67)                             167                            -67% 100                            


8842   Zone 42 Special Assessment 35,200                       18,049                       17,151                       51% 35,200                       


8850   Zone 50 STL Special Assessment 400                            62                              338                            15% 400                            


8851   Zone 51 Special Assessment 8,400                         4,046                         4,354                         48% 8,400                         


8852   Zone 52 Special Assessment 67,300                       34,933                       32,367                       52% 67,300                       


8859   Zone 59 Special Assessment 5,300                         2,536                         2,764                         48% 5,300                         


8862   Zone 62 Special Assessment 18,000                       8,689                         9,311                         48% 18,000                       


8867   Zone 67 Special Assessment 7,800                         3,851                         3,949                         49% 7,800                         


8870   Zone 70 STL Special Assessment 1,300                         679                            621                            52% 1,300                         


8871   Zone 71 Special Assessment 500                            5,578                         (5,078)                        1116% 5,100                         5,600                         


8872   Zone 71 Spec. Assess-Lighting 11,200                       123                            11,077                       1% (5,100)                        6,100                         


8873   Zone 73 STL Special Assessment 900                            533                            367                            59% 900                            


Total LLMD 89-1C 327,800                     166,233                     161,567                     51% -                             327,800                     


252  CSA-22


3550   Special Assessment 31,300                       16,037                       15,263                       51% 31,300                       


Total CSA-22 31,300                       16,037                       15,263                       51% -                             31,300                       


253  CSA-103


3557   Special Assessment - Street Lights 149,100                     76,670                       72,430                       51% 149,100                     


3558   Special Assessment - Landscape 22,600                       11,432                       11,168                       51% 22,600                       


Total CSA-103 171,700                     88,103                       83,597                       51% -                             171,700                     


254  CSA-142


3550   Special Assessment 36,300                       18,796                       17,504                       52% 36,300                       


Total CSA-142 36,300                       18,796                       17,504                       52% -                             36,300                       


Page 4







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


255  Measure Z Park


3320   Special Event Revenue 46,000                       -                             46,000                       0% 46,000                       


3550   Special Assessment 385,000                     194,063                     190,937                     50% 385,000                     


3553   MARNA O'BRIEN PARK-FACILITY RENT 11,000                       (175)                           11,175                       -2% 11,000                       


3555   WINDSONG PARK-FACILITY RENT 100                            -                             100                            0% 100                            


Total Measure Z Park 442,100                     193,888                     248,212                     44% -                             442,100                     


259  CFD 2017-1 DIF Deferral


3552  Special Assessment 89,300                       -                             89,300                       0% 89,300                       


Total CFD 2017-1 89,300                       -                             89,300                       0% -                             89,300                       


260  CFD 2013-1


3551   Special Assessment Tax - Zone 1 53,100                       14,872                       38,228                       28% (20,000)                      33,100                       


3552   Special Assessment Tax - Zone 2 -                             9,957                         (9,957)                        0% 20,000                       20,000                       


Total CFD 2013-1 53,100                       24,828                       28,272                       47% -                             53,100                       


261  CFD 2013-1 Annex 1 Zn 3


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 60,300                       30,375                       29,925                       50% 60,300                       


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 1 Zn 3 60,300                       30,375                       29,925                       50% -                             60,300                       


262  CFD 2013-1 Annex 2 Zn 4


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 300                            17                              283                            6% 300                            


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 2 Zn 4 300                            17                              283                            6% -                             300                            


263  CFD 2013-1 Annex 3 Zn5


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 39,900                       19,211                       20,689                       48% 39,900                       


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 3 Zn5 39,900                       19,211                       20,689                       48% -                             39,900                       


266  CFD 2013-1 Annex 6 Zn8


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 8,700                         4,678                         4,022                         54% 8,700                         


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 6 Zn8 8,700                         4,678                         4,022                         54% -                             8,700                         


Page 5







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


267  CFD 2013-1 Annex 7 Zn9


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 10,900                       5,332                         5,568                         49% 10,900                       


Total CFD 2013-1 Annex 7 Zn9 10,900                       5,332                         5,568                         49% -                             10,900                       


269  CFD 2013-1 Special Tax B


3552   Special Assessment Tax B- Public Safety 120,100                     58,735                       61,365                       49% 120,100                     


Total CFD 2013-1 Special Tax B 120,100                     58,735                       61,365                       49% -                             120,100                     


270  CFD 2013-1 Zn11


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 16,500                       8,123                         8,377                         49% 16,500                       


Total CFD 2013-1 Zn11 16,500                       8,123                         8,377                         49% -                             16,500                       


271  CFD 2013-1 Zn13


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 1,100                         451                            649                            41% 1,100                         


Total CFD 2013-1 Zn13 1,100                         451                            649                            41% -                             1,100                         


272  CFD 2013-1 Zn14


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 6,700                         3,527                         3,173                         53% 6,700                         


Total CFD 2013-1 Zn14 6,700                         3,527                         3,173                         53% -                             6,700                         


273  CFD 2013-1 Zn15


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 16,200                       7,976                         8,224                         49% 16,200                       


Total CFD 2013-1 Zn15 16,200                       7,976                         8,224                         49% -                             16,200                       


274  CFD 2013-1 Zn16


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 6,800                         3,305                         3,495                         49% 6,800                         


Total CFD 2013-1 Zn16 6,800                         3,305                         3,495                         49% -                             6,800                         


275  CFD 2013-1 Zn18


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 21,000                       -                             21,000                       0% 21,000                       


Total CFD 2013-1 Zn18 21,000                       -                             21,000                       0% -                             21,000                       


276  CFD 2013-1 Zn18


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance 15,400                       9,606                         5,794                         62% 15,400                       


Total CFD 2013-1 Zn18 15,400                       9,606                         5,794                         62% -                             15,400                       


277  CFD 2013-1 Zn19


3551   Special Assessment Tax  A- Maintenance -                             7,572                         (7,572)                        0% 7,600                         7,600                         


Total CFD 2013-1 Zn19 -                             7,572                         (7,572)                        0% 7,600                         7,600                         


Page 6







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


280  Grants


3540   Grant Revenue 174,000                     -                             174,000                     0% 174,000                     


Total Grants 174,000                     -                             174,000                     0% -                             174,000                     


281  SLESF


3521   SLESF Revenue 156,800                     106,727                     50,073                       68% -                             156,800                     


Total SLESF 156,800                     106,727                     50,073                       68% -                             156,800                     


282  CDBG


3540   Grant Revenue 61,000                       72,036                       (11,036)                      118% 11,100                       72,100                       


Total CDBG 61,000                       72,036                       (11,036)                      118% 11,100                       72,100                       


283 Public Education & Government (PEG) Fund


3125   PEG Fee - Cable-Charter Comm 33,000                       19,297                       13,703                       58% 33,000                       


Total PEG 33,000                       19,297                       13,703                       58% -                             33,000                       


284 Streetlight Fund


3700   Streetlight Pole Cost Reimbursement 178,300                     -                             178,300                     0% -                             178,300                     


3800   Interest Income 500                            -                             500                            0% -                             500                            


Total Streetlight 178,800                     -                             178,800                     0% -                             178,800                     


290 Covid-19 Fund


3540   Grant Revenue 306,100                     306,069                     31                              100% -                             306,100                     


Total Covid-19 306,100                     306,069                     31                              100% -                             306,100                     


Page 7







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


300  Cemetery


3104   Pass Through Payment 8,000                         9,019                         (1,019)                        113% 1,100                         9,100                         


3105   Property Tax-Secured 446,100                     284,342                     161,758                     64% 446,100                     


3106   Property Tax-Unsecured 24,400                       21,761                       2,639                         89% 24,400                       


3107   Property Tax-Prior Year 3,400                         3,080                         320                            91% 3,400                         


3108   Property Tax-HOPTR 5,500                         2,485                         3,015                         45% 5,500                         


3109   Property Tax-Supplemental, SBE 24,600                       8,226                         16,374                       33% 24,600                       


3111   Property Tax-Teeter 12,200                       11,975                       225                            98% 12,200                       


3113   Property Tax-Misc Adjustments 100                            97                              3                                97% 100                            


3810   Insurance Proceeds -                             2,446                         (2,446)                        0% 2,500                         2,500                         


3850   Miscellaneous Income 1,000                         -                             1,000                         0% 1,000                         


4100   Cemetery - Plots 21,000                       35,400                       (14,400)                      169% 14,400                       35,400                       


4101   Cemetery - Vaults 5,000                         6,900                         (1,900)                        138% 2,000                         7,000                         


4102   Cemetery - Niche Walls 1,000                         -                             1,000                         0% 1,000                         


4103   Cemetery - Open/Close 10,000                       13,575                       (3,575)                        136% 3,600                         13,600                       


4104   Cemetery - Setting fees 2,500                         3,130                         (630)                           125% 1,000                         3,500                         


4105   Cemetery - Out of District 3,800                         6,000                         (2,200)                        158% 2,200                         6,000                         


4106   Cemetery - Vases 500                            650                            (150)                           130% 300                            800                            


Total Cemetery 569,100                     409,087                     160,013                     72% 27,100                       596,200                     


301  Cemetery Endowment


3536   Endowment 21,000                       26,400                       (5,400)                        126% 5,500                         26,500                       


3800   Interest Income 3,200                         1,457                         1,743                         46% 3,200                         


3801   Gain or Loss on Investment 3,500                         3,484                         16                              100% 3,500                         


Total Cemetery Endowment 27,700                       31,341                       (3,641)                        113% 5,500                         33,200                       


Page 8







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


410  Admin DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 4,400                         -                             4,400                         0% -                             4,400                         


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 800                            -                             800                            0% -                             800                            


3563   DIF-Commercial 1,000                         -                             1,000                         0% -                             1,000                         


3564   DIF-Industrial 400                            -                             400                            0% -                             400                            


3565   DIF-Office 400                            -                             400                            0% -                             400                            


Total Admin DIF 7,000                         -                             7,000                         0% -                             7,000                         


420  Public Facilities DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 24,700                       18,904                       5,796                         77% 24,700                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 5,400                         -                             5,400                         0% 5,400                         


3563   DIF-Commercial 4,300                         4,188                         112                            97% 4,300                         


3564   DIF-Industrial 3,700                         -                             3,700                         0% 3,700                         


3565   DIF-Office 4,800                         -                             4,800                         0% 4,800                         


Total Public Facilities DIF 42,900                       23,092                       19,808                       54% -                             42,900                       


421  Police DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 14,600                       11,402                       3,198                         78% 14,600                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 3,200                         -                             3,200                         0% 3,200                         


3563   DIF-Commercial 2,600                         2,484                         117                            96% 2,600                         


3564   DIF-Industrial 2,200                         -                             2,200                         0% 2,200                         


3565   DIF-Office 2,700                         -                             2,700                         0% 2,700                         


Total Police DIF 25,300                       13,886                       11,414                       55% -                             25,300                       


422  Animal Shelter DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 16,000                       16,197                       (197)                           101% 1,000                         17,000                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 3,500                         -                             3,500                         0% (1,000)                        2,500                         


Total Animal Shelter DIF 19,500                       16,197                       3,303                         83% -                             19,500                       


423  Corp Yard DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 10,200                       -                             10,200                       0% 10,200                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 1,100                         -                             1,100                         0% 1,100                         


3563   DIF-Commercial 1,100                         860                            240                            78% 1,100                         


3564   DIF-Industrial 700                            -                             700                            0% 700                            


3565   DIF-Office 800                            -                             800                            0% 800                            


Total Corp Yard DIF 13,900                       860                            13,040                       6% -                             13,900                       


Page 9







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


430  Fire Facilities DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 28,200                       22,101                       6,099                         78% 28,200                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 6,200                         -                             6,200                         0% 6,200                         


3563   DIF-Commercial 4,900                         4,788                         112                            98% 4,900                         


3564   DIF-Industrial 4,200                         -                             4,200                         0% 4,200                         


3565   DIF-Office 5,500                         -                             5,500                         0% 5,500                         


Total Fire Facilities DIF 49,000                       26,890                       22,110                       55% -                             49,000                       


440  Trans-Roads DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 198,200                     155,110                     43,090                       78% 198,200                     


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 43,100                       -                             43,100                       0% 43,100                       


3563   DIF-Commercial 199,200                     173,617                     25,583                       87% 199,200                     


3564   DIF-Industrial 27,100                       -                             27,100                       0% 27,100                       


3565   DIF-Office 40,000                       -                             40,000                       0% 40,000                       


Total Trans-Roads DIF 507,600                     328,728                     178,872                     65% -                             507,600                     


450  Trans-Signals DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 25,700                       20,142                       5,558                         78% 25,700                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 5,600                         -                             5,600                         0% 5,600                         


3563   DIF-Commercial 20,000                       19,836                       165                            99% 8,100                         28,100                       


3564   DIF-Industrial 3,500                         -                             3,500                         0% (3,500)                        -                             


3565   DIF-Office 4,600                         -                             4,600                         0% (4,600)                        -                             


3570   Developer Cash-In-Lieu - Traffic Signals 82,500                       -                             82,500                       0% 82,500                       


Total Trans-Signals DIF 141,900                     39,978                       101,922                     28% -                             141,900                     


451  Drainage DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 88,600                       67,987                       20,613                       77% 88,600                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 17,300                       -                             17,300                       0% 17,300                       


3563   DIF-Commercial 20,300                       -                             20,300                       0% 20,300                       


3564   DIF-Industrial 22,700                       -                             22,700                       0% 22,700                       


3565   DIF-Office 16,000                       -                             16,000                       0% 16,000                       


3570   Developer Cash-In-Lieu - Line F Ext. 105,000                     105,000                     0% 105,000                     


Total Drainage DIF 269,900                     67,987                       201,913                     25% -                             269,900                     


Page 10







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


460  Park Land Acquisition DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 38,300                       29,987                       8,313                         78% 38,300                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 8,400                         -                             8,400                         0% 8,400                         


Total Park Land Acquisition DIF 46,700                       29,987                       16,713                       64% -                             46,700                       


461  Park Improvements DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 252,000                     193,290                     58,710                       77% 252,000                     


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 55,500                       -                             55,500                       0% 55,500                       


Total Park Improvements DIF 307,500                     193,290                     114,210                     63% -                             307,500                     


470  Community Ctr DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 30,400                       23,335                       7,065                         77% 30,400                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 6,700                         -                             6,700                         0% 6,700                         


Total Community Ctr DIF 37,100                       23,335                       13,765                       63% -                             37,100                       


480  Multipurpose Trails DIF


3561   DIF-Single Family Residence 48,400                       37,119                       11,281                       77% 48,400                       


3562   DIF-Multi-Family Residential 10,600                       -                             10,600                       0% 10,600                       


3563   DIF-Commercial 10,000                       8,213                         1,787                         82% 10,000                       


3564   DIF-Industrial 4,500                         -                             4,500                         0% 4,500                         


3565   DIF-Office 9,800                         -                             9,800                         0% 9,800                         


Total Multipurpose Trails DIF 83,300                       45,333                       37,967                       54% -                             83,300                       


Page 11







City of Wildomar


Revenue Group Budget Report


3rd Quarter Report FY 2020/21


July 1st, 2020 to March 31st, 2021


9 Month Remaining % Requested Proposed


Account Number Budget Actuals Budget Received Budget Change Budget


500  RMRA Capital Projects


3540   Grant Revenue 620,000                     345,498                     274,502                     56% 620,000                     


Total RMRA Capital Projects 620,000                     345,498                     274,502                     56% -                             620,000                     


502 RCFC Fund


3540 Grant Revenue 327,000                     -                             327,000                     0% 327,000                     


Total RCFC 327,000                     -                             327,000                     0% -                             327,000                     


503 TUMF Fund


3540 Grant Revenue 5,868,600                  412,353                     5,456,247                  7% -                             5,868,600                  


Total TUMF 5,868,600                  412,353                     5,456,247                  7% -                             5,868,600                  


505 MSRC Fund


3540 Grant Revenue 50,000                       -                             50,000                       0% 50,000                       


Total MSRC 50,000                       -                             50,000                       0% -                             50,000                       


506 HSIP Fund


3540 Grant Revenue 671,200                     5,523                         665,677                     1% 671,200                     


Total HSIP 671,200                     5,523                         665,677                     1% -                             671,200                     


507 Misc State Funded Projects


3540 Grant Revenue 75,500                       40,669                       34,831                       54% 75,500                       


Total Misc State Funded Projects 75,500                       40,669                       34,831                       54% -                             75,500                       


508 Local Capital grants-Misc


3540 Grant Revenue 3,666,000                  -                             3,666,000                  0% 3,666,000                  


Total Local Capital Grants-Misc 3,666,000                  -                             3,666,000                  0% -                             3,666,000                  


Total 32,945,100$        13,889,073$        19,056,027$        42% 1,320,900            34,266,000$        


Page 12







       


Fund Budget
 9 Month Actual 


Expenditure 


Remaining 


Budget


Percent 


Used


 Requested 


Budget 


Change 


Proposed 


Budget


General Fund
100 General Fund


 General Government


City Council 148,300$      82,219$              66,081           55% 30,000$         178,300          


City Manager 503,300        131,318              371,982         26% 18,500           521,800          


City Clerk 194,500        74,720                119,780         38% 13,000           207,500          


City Attorney 211,500        36,862                174,638         17% (127,300)        84,200            


Economic Development 203,600        94,915                108,685         47% 8,200             211,800          


 Administrative Services 447,900        282,542              165,358         63% 15,100           463,000          


Human Resources 62,300          36,834                25,466           59% 7,000             69,300            


Community Services 40,800          18,281                22,519           45% 200                41,000            


O'Brien Park 2,000            2,000                  -                100% -                2,000              


Ball Fields 13,600          7,781                  5,819             57% -                13,600            


11 Acre Park 600               -                      600                0% -                600                 


27 Acre Park 1,200            -                      -                0% -                1,200              


Non-Departmental/Facilities 767,800        611,573              156,227         80% -                767,800          


 General Government Total 2,597,400     1,379,045           1,218,355      53% (35,300)          2,562,100       


Community Development


Planning Commission 8,400            8,479                  (79)                101% 3,500             11,900            


Community Development Administration 70,000          2,374                  67,626           3% 45,000           115,000          


Building and Safety 359,100        168,255              190,845         47% -                359,100          


Planning 258,900        118,921              139,979         46% 24,200           283,100          


Private Development 436,000        561,871              (125,871)        129% 258,900         694,900          


Development Engineering 490,700        163,942              326,758         33% (86,200)          404,500          


Code Enforcement 152,400        97,419                54,981           64% 2,800             155,200          


Community Development Total 1,775,500     1,121,261           654,239         63% 248,200         2,023,700       


Public Works/Engineering 419,400        145,680              273,720         35% 7,200             426,600          


Public Safety


Office of Emergency Mgmt 51,500          346                     51,154           1% (32,600)          18,900            


Police 5,088,800     2,072,465           3,016,335      41% 5,200             5,094,000       


Fire 2,822,100     940,740              1,881,360      33% 2,200             2,824,300       


Animal Control 545,900        416,642              129,258         76% -                545,900          


Public Safety Total 8,508,300     3,430,194           5,078,106      40% (25,200)          8,483,100       


 100 General Fund Total 13,300,600   6,076,180           7,224,420      46% 194,900$       13,495,500     


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Expenditure Status Report


3rd Quarter FY 2020-21


July 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021


Page 13







       


Fund Budget
 9 Month Actual 


Expenditure 


Remaining 


Budget


Percent 


Used


 Requested 


Budget 


Change 


Proposed 


Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Expenditure Status Report


3rd Quarter FY 2020-21


July 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021


120 Measure AA


 Public Works/Engineering 381,000        160,000              221,000         42% -                381,000          


Bundy/Sellers Traffic Signal CIP077 57,600          -                      57,600           0% -                57,600            


Bundy/Monte Vista Traffic Signal CIP078 172,000        -                      172,000         0% -                172,000          


Auditing Services 5,000            -                      5,000             0% -                5,000              


Bundy Canyon/Scott Road Widening 108,900        -                      108,900         0% -                108,900          


Slurry Seal 30,000          -                      30,000           0% -                30,000            


Police 697,600        280,010              417,590         40% -                697,600          


Fire 1,406,300     908,617              497,683         65% -                1,406,300       


Community Services-Homeless Program 252,700        142,956              109,744         57% -                252,700          


Total Measure AA 3,111,100     1,491,583           1,619,517      48% -                3,111,100       


All General Funds Total: 16,411,700   7,567,763           8,843,937      46% 194,900         16,606,600     


Page 14







       


Fund Budget
 9 Month Actual 


Expenditure 


Remaining 


Budget


Percent 


Used


 Requested 


Budget 


Change 


Proposed 


Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Expenditure Status Report


3rd Quarter FY 2020-21


July 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021


Non- General Funds


200-GAS TAX


Public Works/Engineering 794,800        475,445              319,355         60% -                794,800          


Total Gas Tax 794,800        475,445              319,355         60% -                794,800          


201-MEASURE A


Public Works/Engineering 249,700        143,390              106,310         57% (500)               249,200          


Master Drainage Plan CIP023 5,000            3,220                  1,780             64% -                5,000              


Palomar/Clinton Keith S/W Bike Trail CIP059 57,600          4,633                  52,967           8% -                57,600            


Pavement Rehab Program CIP057 74,000          45,533                28,468           62% -                74,000            


Slurry Seal Prog CIP058 10,000          7,085                  2,915             71% -                10,000            


Unpaved Road Program CIP066 10,000          2,120                  7,880             21% -                10,000            


General Circulation Update Study CIP054 32,000          15,428                16,572           48% -                32,000            


Lemon St Drainage and Pavement CIP060 75,000          10,300                64,700           14% -                75,000            


Line C Basin CIP063 11,000          2,698                  8,303             25% -                11,000            


Pedestrian Countdown Heads H8-08-025 85,000          42,274                42,726           50% -                85,000            


Guardrails H8-08-024 75,000          33,499                41,501           45% -                75,000            


Wildomar Channel Trail Gates -               450                     (450)               0% 500                500                 


Systematic Safety Analysis Report 25,000          22,996                2,005             92% -                25,000            


I-15 Stormwater Mitigation Project CIP083 3,000            140                     2,860             5% -                3,000              


I-15 Roadway Safety Improvements CIP084 3,000            175                     2,825             6% -                3,000              


I-15 Caltrans ADA Project CIP085 3,000            -                      3,000             0% -                3,000              


Total Measure A 718,300        333,940              384,360         46% -                718,300          


203 TDA


Palomar/Clinton Keith Sidewalk & Bike Trail CIP059 275,000        -                      275,000         0% -                275,000          


Total TDA 275,000        -                      275,000         0% -                275,000          


210 AQMD


 Public Works/Engineering 8,200            6,000                  2,200             73% -                8,200              


Unpaved Roadway 45,000          -                      45,000           0% -                45,000            


Total AQMD 53,200          6,000                  47,200           11% -                53,200            


Page 15







       


Fund Budget
 9 Month Actual 


Expenditure 


Remaining 


Budget


Percent 


Used


 Requested 


Budget 


Change 


Proposed 


Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Expenditure Status Report


3rd Quarter FY 2020-21


July 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021


251 LLMD 89-1C


General Government 700               1,518                  (818)               217% 1,000             1,700              


Public Works/Engineering 14,800          8,604                  6,196             58% (2,300)            12,500            


Zone 3 Landscaping 88,200          73,108                15,092           83% -                88,200            


Zone 18 800               -                      800                0% -                800                 


Zone 26 900               -                      900                0% -                900                 


Zone 27 1,500            168                     1,332             11% -                1,500              


Zone 29 1,400            910                     490                65% -                1,400              


Zone 30 11,100          5,385                  5,715             49% -                11,100            


Zone 35 300               -                      300                0% -                300                 


Zone 42 16,900          13,841                3,059             82% -                16,900            


Zone 50 300               -                      300                0% -                300                 


Zone 51 4,200            2,761                  1,439             66% -                4,200              


Zone 52 14,700          7,397                  7,303             50% -                14,700            


Zone 59 Streetlights 1,600            153                     1,447             10% -                1,600              


Zone 59 Landscape 1,800            764                     1,036             42% -                1,800              


Zone 62 7,100            3,911                  3,189             55% -                7,100              


Zone 67 2,100            1,646                  454                78% 400                2,500              


Zone 70 800               -                      800                0% -                800                 


 Zone 71 Streetlights 200               -                      200                0% -                200                 


Zone 71 Landscape 5,700            5,672                  28                  100% 900                6,600              


Zone 73 Streetlights 500               -                      500                0% -                500                 


Zone 90 100               50                       50                  50% -                100                 


Zone 181 Streetlights 2,300            234                     2,066             10% -                2,300              


Zone 181 Landscape 4,000            1,009                  2,991             25% -                4,000              


LLMD 89-1C Total 182,000        127,132              54,868           70% -                182,000          


252 CSA-22


Landscape 100               150                     (50)                150% -                100                 


Public Works 100               65                       35                  65% -                100                 


Street Lights 44,800          6,157                  38,643           14% -                44,800            


CSA-22 45,000          6,372                  38,628           14% -                45,000            


253 - CSA 103


Public Works 100               (835)                    935                -835% -                100                 


Landscape & Drainage 19,100          9,800                  9,300             51% -                19,100            


Street Lights 178,500        21,237                157,263         12% -                178,500          


CSA-103 197,700        30,202                167,498         15% -                197,700          


254 - CSA 142


Public Works 100               65                       35                  65% -                100                 


Street Lights 37,500          4,139                  33,361           11% -                37,500            


 CSA-142 37,600          4,204                  33,396           11% -                37,600            


255 Measure Z - Parks


Community Services 55,000          22,642                32,358           41% -                55,000            


O'Brien Park 255,000        96,488                158,512         38% -                255,000          


Heritage Park 64,700          28,551                36,149           44% -                64,700            


Windsong Park 63,800          32,223                31,577           51% -                63,800            


Malaga Park 26,900          8,246                  18,654           31% -                26,900            


Total Measure Z Park 465,400        188,150              277,250         40% -                465,400          


Page 16







       


Fund Budget
 9 Month Actual 


Expenditure 


Remaining 


Budget


Percent 


Used


 Requested 


Budget 


Change 


Proposed 


Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Expenditure Status Report


3rd Quarter FY 2020-21


July 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021


CFD's


259 CFD 20171 DIF Deferral 83,000          -                      83,000           0% -                83,000            


260 CFD 2013-1 Maintenance 54,700          13,585                41,115           25% -                54,700            


261 CFD 2013-1 Annex 1 Zone 3 60,400          2,803                  57,597           5% -                60,400            


262 CFD 2013-1 Annex 2 Zone 4 2,100            307                     1,793             15% -                2,100              


263 CFD 2013-1 Annex 3 Zone 5 40,000          1,812                  38,188           5% -                40,000            


266 CFD 2013-1 Annex 6 Zone 8 8,700            292                     8,408             3% -                8,700              


267 CFD 2013-1 Annex 7 Zone 9 10,800          -                      10,800           0% -                10,800            


269 CFD 2013-1 Spec Tax B 120,100        -                      120,100         0% -                120,100          


270 CFD 2013-1 Zone 11 16,300          169                     16,131           1% -                16,300            


271 CFD 2013-1 Zone 13 600               -                      600                0% -                600                 


272 CFD 2013-1 Zone 14 6,600            -                      6,600             0% -                6,600              


273 CFD 2013-1 Zone 15 8,600            -                      8,600             0% -                8,600              


274 CFD 2013-1 Zone 16 6,800            -                      6,800             0% -                6,800              


275 CFD 2013-1 Zone 17 21,000          -                      21,000           0% -                21,000            


276 CFD 2013-1 Zone 18 15,400          -                      15,400           0% -                15,400            


Total CFD's 455,100        18,968                436,132         4% -                455,100          


280-Grants


280-430 Housing Element Study 2020/21 150,000        18,839                131,162         13% -                150,000          


280-962 CalRecycle CCPP Grant 9,000            -                      9,000             0% -                9,000              


280-964 SHSP Grant 5,000            -                      5,000             0% -                5,000              


280-966 PARSAC Grant 10,000          -                      10,000           0% (10,000)          -                 


280-968 Pedestrian Heads -               10,000                (10,000)          0% 10,000           10,000            


280-990 Multi-Family Design Guidelines 26,900          8,025                  18,875           30% -                26,900            


280-991 Zoning Consistency Program 2,200            5,834                  (3,634)            265% 90,700           92,900            


Total Grants 203,100        42,697                160,403         21% 90,700           293,800          


281-SLESF-COPS Grant 100,000        -                      100,000         0% -                100,000          


SLESF 100,000        -                      100,000         0% -                100,000          


282-CDBG


Sedco Sidewalk Improvement III 61,000          61,000                -                100% -                61,000            


 CDBG 61,000          61,000                -                100% -                61,000            


283 PEG Grant


Services and Equipment 28,400          2,888                  25,512           10% -                28,400            


Total PEG Grant 28,400          2,888                  25,512           10% -                28,400            


284 Streetlight


Public Works 196,900        -                      196,900         0% -                196,900          


Total Streetlight Fund 196,900        -                      196,900         0% -                196,900          


290 COVID-19


General 306,100        248,705              57,395           81% -                306,100          


Total COVID-19 Fund 306,100        248,705              57,395           81% -                306,100          


300 Cemetery 663,000        319,842              343,158         48% -                663,000          


Cemetery 663,000        319,842              343,158         48% -                663,000          


Page 17







       


Fund Budget
 9 Month Actual 


Expenditure 


Remaining 


Budget


Percent 


Used


 Requested 


Budget 


Change 


Proposed 


Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Expenditure Status Report


3rd Quarter FY 2020-21


July 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021


302-Cemetery Capital Improvement Projects -               (200)                    200                0% -                -                 


Cemetery CIP -               (200)                    200                0% -                -                 


410-Admin DIF 10,000          3,208                  6,793             32% -                10,000            


Total Admin DIF 10,000          3,208                  6,793             32% -                10,000            


420-Public Facilities DIF 105,000        -                      105,000         0% -                105,000          


Total Public Facilities DIF 105,000        -                      105,000         0% -                105,000          


422-Animal Shelter DIF 82,900          -                      82,900           0% -                82,900            


Total Animal Shelter  DIF 82,900          -                      82,900           0% -                82,900            


440-Trans-Road DIF 1,732,400     -                      1,732,400      0% -                1,732,400       


Total Trans - Road  DIF 1,732,400     -                      1,732,400      0% -                1,732,400       


450- Trans -Signals DIF


Bundy Canyon/Sellers TS CIP 077 331,500        -                      331,500         0% -                331,500          


Bundy Canyon/Monte Vista TS CIP 078 222,000        -                      222,000         0% -                222,000          


Bundy Canyon/Orchard St. Traffic Signal CIP075 36,000          -                      36,000           0% -                36,000            


Total Trans - Signals DIF 589,500        -                      589,500         0% -                589,500          


451- Drainage DIF


Storm Drain Line F Extension CIP039 123,600        123,600         0% -                123,600          


Total Drainage  DIF 123,600        -                      123,600         0% -                123,600          


461- Park Improvements DIF


Community Development 10,800          -                      10,800           0% -                10,800            


Regency-Heritage Park Rehab. -               -                      -                0% -                -                 


New 27 Acre Park 193,000        36,217                156,783         19% -                193,000          


Total Park Improvement DIF 203,800        36,217                167,583         18% -                203,800          


480-Multipurpose Trails DIF 5,600            -                      5,600             0% -                5,600              


Total Multipurpose Trails DIF 5,600            -                      5,600             0% -                5,600              


490-Library DIF 19,000          728                     18,272           4% -                19,000            


Total Library DIF 19,000          728                     18,272           0% -                19,000            


Page 18







       


Fund Budget
 9 Month Actual 


Expenditure 


Remaining 


Budget


Percent 


Used


 Requested 


Budget 


Change 


Proposed 


Budget


CITY OF WILDOMAR


Expenditure Status Report


3rd Quarter FY 2020-21


July 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021


500-RMRA Capital Projects


500-057 Pavement Rehab Program CIP057 720,000        661,262              58,738           92% -                720,000          


500-060 Lemon St Drainage and Pavement CIP060 106,000        -                      106,000         0% -                106,000          


500-903 Slurry Seal Program CIP058 200,000        -                      200,000         0% -                200,000          


Total RMRA Capital Projects 1,026,000     661,262              364,738         64% -                1,026,000       


502-Riverside County Fund Control (RCFC) - Local


502-039 Line F Extension CIP039 216,800        10,498                206,303         5% -                    216,800          


Total RCFC 216,800        10,498                206,303         5% -                    216,800          


503-Transformation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) - Local


503-001 Palomar/Clinton Keith Bike Path CIP059 480,800        8,591                  472,209         2% -                    480,800          


503-039 Line F Extension CIP039 81,900          -                      81,900           0% -                    81,900            


503-909 Bundy Canyon/Scott Rd Widen CIP026 1,207,200     328,285              878,915         27% -                    1,207,200       


503-070 Bundy Canyon/I-15 Interchange Study CIP070 25,000          195                     24,805           1% -                    25,000            


503-078 Baxter Rd/I-15 Interchange Study CIP074 25,000          130                     24,870           1% -                    25,000            


503-912 Palomar Widening CIP028 1,186,000     81,005                1,104,995      7% -                    1,186,000       


503-913 Clinton Keith Widen CIP025 273,800        40,067                233,734         15% -                    273,800          


Total TUMF 3,279,700     458,273              2,821,427      14% -                    3,279,700       


506-Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) - Federal


506-967 Guardrails H8-08-024 365,200        318,313              46,887           87% -                    365,200          


506-968  Pedestrian Countdown H8-08-025 250,000        206,065              43,935           82% -                    250,000          


Total HSIP 615,200        524,378              90,822           85% -                    615,200          


507-State Funded Capital Projects - Miscellaneous - State


507-969 Safety Analysis Report (SSARP) 30,000          24,314                5,686             81% -                    30,000            


Total Miscellaneous State Funded Projects 30,000          24,314                5,686             81% -                    30,000            


508-Local Capital Grants


508-909 Bundy Canyon Widening CIP026 RCTC 3,516,000     -                      3,516,000      0% -                    3,516,000       


508-054 Circulation Element Update Study CIP054 150,000        -                      150,000         0% -                    150,000          


Total Local Capital Grants 3,666,000     -                      3,666,000      0% -                    3,666,000       


Non-GF Funds Total: $16,488,100 $3,584,222 $12,903,878 21.74% 90,700           $16,578,800


Grand Total- All Funds $32,899,800 $11,151,984 $21,747,816 34% 285,600$       33,185,400$   


Page 19







1 
 


 
 


City of Wildomar 
 


2019/20 & 2020/21 Biennial Budget 
 


Detailed Decision Package  
 
Decision Package Title: Automated License Plate Readers (ALPR) 


 
Service Impact:   X Safety, __Development, __Recreation,    
     __Transportation, X Other  
 
Department:   POLICE   
 
Budget Period:  3RD QUARTER FY 20/21   
 
Recommendation Summary Text 
 
Staff recommends funding the establishment of an Automated License Plate Readers (ALPR) 
program for the benefit of law enforcement for enhancing the safety, health, and welfare of the 
general public. This funding would be for the first phase of this program for approximately 12-
14 ALPR cameras to be installed in the public right of way.  
 
Fiscal Summary of Costs and Funding Source 
(Provide the funding source) 


Operating Expenditures Fund FY 2019/20  FY 2020/21  Total 


120-460-4700-58100 120   $ 40,000  $40,000 


Total Cost  $         $ 40,000  $40,000 


       


Revenue or Funding 
Source 


 FY 2019/20  FY 2020/21  Total 


       


Total Revenue/Funds  $         $        $       


 
Package Description: 
(Please provide a description of why we need this, solution to what problem, and comparison to existing levels of funding and output.) 
 


Establish Automated License Plate Readers (ALPR) for the benefit of law enforcement for 
enhancing the safety, health, and welfare of the public. This would be the first phase of this 
program for approximately 12-14 cameras to be installed in the public right of way. Annual 
costs are estimated to be $35,000 - $38,000 depending on the number of ALPR camera’s that 
are deployed in initial phase.  
 


  







2 
 


Narrative Justification and Impact Statement: 
(In the sections below, thoroughly describe the impacts that will result from this request.) 


• Describe the way in which way this package contributes to the City of Wildomar. 
 


Cost Savings or Revenue Increases.        


Not applicable 


 
Public Safety. 


 


Police agencies have used automated License Plate Reader (ALPR) technology to locate stolen 
vehicles and solve other crimes where an automobile has been used. 


 


Customer Service. 
 


 


Not applicable 


 
Commitment to Effective Management.     


 


Not applicable 
 


Appropriate Staffing and Support.  
 


Not applicable 


 
• Measure Detail. 


(Describe and quantify any changes to output, outcome or performance measures that would result from this request) 
 


 


Focusing proactive enforcement efforts on auto-theft often uncovers other criminal activity and prevents 
other serious crimes. ALPR cameras have been put in place by other Cities who contract with the 
Riverside County Sheriff’s Department and have thus far been successful in identifying stolen vehicles 
as well as solving other crimes. 


 


• Impact on Residents/Customers and Services. 
 


Not applicable 
 


• Impact on Other City Programs. 
 


Not applicable 
 


• Relationship to Capital Budget. 
 
 


Not applicable 
 
 


 


• Alternatives Explored. 
 


Not applicable 
 


 


• Distinction between One-Time (non-recurring) and Ongoing (recurring) Costs and 
Impacts to Future Budgets. 


 


Estimated One-time costs of $250 per ALPR camera that is installed. 
Estimated Ongoing Cost of $2500 per ALPR camera that is deployed under a lease agreement. 


 
 


• Effects of Not Funding this Request. 
 


none 
 
• Revenue and Expenditure Calculations and Assumptions and Staffing (FTE) 


Assumptions.  (Thoroughly describe how costs/revenues were determined and what assumptions were used in that process, as 
well as the assumptions used to determine the number of FTEs required including costs by account category.) 







3 
 


 
Not applicable 


 
Please submit completed form to jriley@cityofwilodmar.org when completed. 







1 
 


 
 


City of Wildomar 
 


2019/20 & 2020/21 Biennial Budget 
 


Detailed Decision Package  
 
Decision Package Title: Security Cameras at Various Facilities 


 
Service Impact:   X Safety, _X_Development, _X_Recreation,    
     __Transportation, X Other  
 
Department:   Administration, Community Services  
 
Budget Period:  3RD QUARTER FY 20/21   
 
Recommendation Summary Text 
 
Staff recommends funding the replacement of existing security cameras at City Parks and the 
implementation of additional cameras at other City and Cemetery operated Facilities. Doing so 
will provide a uniform level of security measures during and outside of City operating hours. 
 
Fiscal Summary of Costs and Funding Source 
(Provide the funding source) 


Operating Expenditures Fund FY 2019/20  FY 2020/21  Total 


120-460-4710-58100 120   $ 3,000  $3,000 


120-410-4800-58100 120   $ 7,500  $7,500 


255-410-4611-58100 255   $ 7,500  $7,500 


255-410-4613-58100 255   $ 4,500  $4,500 


300-470-4725-58100 300   $ 7,500  $7,500 


Total Cost  $         $ 30,000  $30,000 


       


Revenue or Funding 
Source 


 FY 2019/20  FY 2020/21  Total 


       


Total Revenue/Funds  $         $        $       


 
Package Description: 
(Please provide a description of why we need this, solution to what problem, and comparison to existing levels of funding and output.) 
 


Replacement of existing security cameras at City Parks and the implementation of additional 
cameras at all other City and Cemetery operated Facilities. Current cameras are at the end of 
their service life and the integrated technology is obsolete in these models. Due to product age 







2 
 


and scarcity, replacing existing Cameras with the same model type in place would be more 
expensive without providing the benefits of newer technology that is currently available. 
 
 
Narrative Justification and Impact Statement: 
(In the sections below, thoroughly describe the impacts that will result from this request.) 


• Describe the way in which way this package contributes to the City of Wildomar. 
 


Cost Savings or Revenue Increases.        


Not applicable 


 
Public Safety 
 


Security cameras will help monitor facility security with the potential to assist with identifying criminal 
activity and preventing other serious crimes. 


 


Customer Service. 
 


 


Not applicable 


 
Commitment to Effective Management.     


 


Not applicable 
 


Appropriate Staffing and Support.  
 


Not applicable 


 
• Measure Detail. 


(Describe and quantify any changes to output, outcome or performance measures that would result from this request) 
 


 


Security cameras have been put in place at Marna O’Brien Park and Windsong Park and have 
assisted with identifying criminal behavior. Current cameras are at the end of their service life and the 
integrated technology is obsolete in these models. Replacement of these camera’s, as well as installing 
cameras in other public facilities such as City Hall, Wildomar Cemetery, and Fire Station 61 will help 
monitor facility security with the potential to assist with identifying criminal activity and preventing other 
serious crimes. 


 


• Impact on Residents/Customers and Services. 
 


Not applicable 
 


• Impact on Other City Programs. 
 


Not applicable 
 


• Relationship to Capital Budget. 
 
 


Not applicable 
 
 


 


• Alternatives Explored. 
 


Due to product age and scarcity, replacing existing Cameras with the same model type in place is more 
expensive without the benefits of new technology that is currently available 
 


 


• Distinction between One-Time (non-recurring) and Ongoing (recurring) Costs and 
Impacts to Future Budgets. 


 







3 
 


Estimated One-time costs not to exceed $30,000 for purchasing approximately 18-20 total cameras, 
which includes both indoor and outdoor models for deployment, along with a 5-year subscription for a 
cloud license for remote monitoring network accessible cameras. 10-year subscription options are often 
available for a reduced license cost per year but is not recommended due to the upfront cost increase. 


 
 


• Effects of Not Funding this Request. 
 


none 
 
• Revenue and Expenditure Calculations and Assumptions and Staffing (FTE) 


Assumptions.  (Thoroughly describe how costs/revenues were determined and what assumptions were used in that process, as 
well as the assumptions used to determine the number of FTEs required including costs by account category.) 


 
Not applicable 


 
 







 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.4 


GENERAL BUSINESS  
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Janet Morales, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Measure Z Oversight Advisory Committee Appointments 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council review the applications for committee membership 
and appoint two of the applicants to the Measure Z Citizen’s Oversight Advisory Committee 
for terms expiring February 2023. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On February 28, 2021, Committee Members Christopher Pselos and Sheila Urlaub’s terms 
expired. 
 
On March 4, 2021 a Notice of Vacancy for 2 scheduled positions were advertised. At the end 
of the recruitment period, applications were received from the following residents: 
  
 1. Nolan King 
 2. Kathleen Kovich  


3. Kenneth Mayes 
4. Sheila Urlaub (Term expired Feb 2021) 


 
It is staff’s recommendation for the City Council to review the applications and appoint 2 
applicants to the Measure Z Oversight Advisory Committee for a two-year term ending 
February 2023. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Janet Morales      Gary Nordquist 
City Clerk       City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Nolan King Application 
2. Kathleen Kovich Application 
3. Kenneth Mayes Application 
4. Sheila Urlaub Application 







1 | P a g e


Volunteer Application 
WILDOMAR MEASURE Z 


OVERSIGHT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd Ste. 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
951.677.7751 (phone)  
951.698.1463 (fax)  


VOLUNTEER APPLICANT INFORMATION 


Last Name:    First Name:   MI:  


Address:    City:     Zip Code: 


Home:    Cell Phone: 


Email Address: 


QUESTIONAIRE 


What type of Volunteer Experiences Have You Had? 


Education, Credentials, Parks & Recreation and Accounting Experience: 


Public Communication Experience: 


Project Leadership Skills/Experience: 


Computer Skills: 


Other Relevant Skills/Information: 


King Nolan A
 Wildomar 92595


I have worked at a public utility for nearly 20 years. As a first responder and disaster service worker, emergency 
response and community volunteering has been a significant part of my preofessional life. 
Additionally, I have volunteered as a mentor to the Elsinore High School Cyberpatriots team, and have contributed 
many hours to local scouting troops for events. This committee will be my first civic volunteer experience 


I am lifelong hiker, cyclist, and Wildomar resident. I hold a B.S. in Computer Security and several industry 
certifications. I am responsible for an approximately $1m operating budget within the IT division of my employer, 
Chino based Inland Empire Utilities Agency.


I have held several positions within my employee association, including President and Treasurer and am comfortable 
with public speaking. I also have extensive social media management experience, collaborating with PIO and 
External affairs staff for public emergency notification and events advertising via multiple digital channels. 
Providing training and panel participation is a regular part of my professional role. 


Throughout my career, I have managed several IT projects of various sizes for public agencies. Successfully 
sheperding an IT project though completion is a challenging and rewarding experience. 
I have several home improvement and landscaping projects where my young sons are the primary labor resource, 
where my project leadership skills have been signifantly less successful. 


My primary area of expertise is information security in industrial control environments. I have deep experience in 
several computer technologies. 


Although I have lived in Wildomar and Lake Elsinore for over 40 years, this is my first go at civic service. Since 
COVID-19 related telecommuting has replaced the long commute i have traditionally been committed to, I have 
spent much more time in my community. This has made clear the need for resident engagement and i hope to 
positively contribute to two things i care vary much about: the Wildomar community and the open spaces we enjoy. 



jmorales

Received







2 | P a g e  
 


Volunteer Acknowledgement  
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
VOLUNTEER CONSENT 


 
Your signature below indicates that you have read each of the above items and you agree to be bound by them.   
 
 
           / /  
Applicant Name (print)   Applicant Signature    Date 
 


VOLUNTEER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND WAIVER 
 


As a Volunteer, I understand that: 
 


x I give the City of Wildomar permission to conduct a thorough background check on me, which may 
include a review of sex offender registries, criminal history records, and law enforcement records.  I 
understand that volunteer positions may be conditional upon favorable background information as 
determined by the City of Wildomar. 


 


x The City of Wildomar is not obligated to provide me with a volunteer placement.  I also understand that 
I am not obligated to accept the volunteer position offered. 


 


x Volunteers are expected to immediately inform us if they are unable or unwilling to perform a 
requested task.  Physical requirements of tasks may involve sitting, standing, walking stooping, 
kneeling, climbing, talking. Listening, reading, handling (lifting, pushing, pulling), objects, handling 
heavy objects, operation tools, operating power tools, operating vehicles. 


 


x Volunteer positions are charitable contributions to the City of Wildomar without compensation or 
benefit of any kind or consideration of future employment. 


 


x I have the obligation to notify my supervisor of an injury incurred while volunteering. 
 


x I agree to be subjected to the policies and procedures of the City of Wildomar. 
 


x I am not an employee of the City of Wildomar. 
 


x The City of Wildomar reserves the right to terminate my volunteer status at any time. 


VOLUNTEER CODE OF CONDUCT 
As a volunteer I will: 
 


x Perform only those assigned tasks that are within my physical capability and will not undertake any 
tasks that are beyond my physical capability or ability. 


 


x Not undertake to operate or use vehicles, equipment or tools that I am unfamiliar with or have not 
been trained to operate properly and safely and have not received specific authorization to use from 
my supervisor. 


 


x Observe all safety rules and use provided safety equipment in the performance of my assigned tasks. 
 


x Treat everyone with respect, patience, integrity, courtesy, and dignity. 
 


x Not use profanity, or make humiliating, ridiculing, threatening, or degrading statements. 
 


x Return all City equipment and identification upon request or at end of assignment. 
 


Nolan King 2/22/20







1 
 


     
Wildomar Measure Z 


Oversight Advisory Committee 
Supplemental Questionnaire 


 
 


 
 


PRINT NAME:              
 
 PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY 
 
This Supplemental Questionnaire will be a tool in the evaluation of your qualifications for this position.  
Please answer each question in sufficient detail so that we can understand precisely what your qualifying 
experience and accomplishments have been. 
 
A Supplemental Questionnaire is required for Wildomar Measure Z Oversight Advisory 
Committee appointments.  Your application will not be considered complete without submittal of 
both forms. 
 
Please use the space provided for your response.  If more space is necessary, one additional page per question may 
be attached. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________   _____________________________ 
Signature         Date 
  
 


 
1. Have you participated in local government as a committee member, commissioner, council 


member, or staff?  What was your role and what did you learn from it?    


Nolan A. King


2/22/20


I have a nearly 20 year career as staff in a California Special District. In roles ranging from construction laborer to IT manager, I 
have been exposed to many aspects of local government- albeit in a community outside of the one I live in. 
During this time I have learned that local governments are deeply underappreciated, underserved by their public, and yet at the 
same time the single most impactful level of government for the majority of people. 







2 
 


 
2. What is your understanding of the role and responsibilities of the Measure Z Oversight Advisory 


Committee? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
3. Why did you apply for the Measure Z Oversight Advisory Committee and what do you hope to 


accomplish by your participation? 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


The oversight advisory committee's primary role is to advise the Wildomar City Council on the collection and spending of tax 
dollars collected under Measure Z authority. Their responsibility is to ensure that these funds are spent on permissible uses as 
outlined in City of Wildomar Ordinance 71 and City Municipal Code Chapter 3.18


While looking for information about a specific neighborhood trail, I learned that the Committee was recruiting volunteers. I have 
long considered getting involved in city government, and felt that this would be a challenging entry. I am interested in gaining a 
greater understanding of how my City's government operates while offering my own service to the benefit of my community. 







3 
 


 
4. What qualities or experience would you bring that would be an asset to the Measure Z Oversight 


Advisory Committee? 


 
5. What is your experience with governmental accounting?   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Is there an advantage of line item budgeting verses a zero-based budgeting?  Please describe. 


 
 
 


With an understanding that the best outcomes are a result of collaboration among several points of view, I am experienced in 
user requirements analysis, and in developing policy through a collaborative process. I think these qualities will readily translate 
to this advisory role. 


Municipalities have too many long-term obligations to benefit from zero-based budgeting in most cases. In addition to the 
increased effort needed for zero-based budgeting, a zero-based budget provides little benefit in a municipal O&M application. 


There is a tendency for line-item municipal budgets to slowly expand, with unnecessary costs being quietly carried forward year 
after year. Diligent public oversight, coupled with capable management can prevent or limit this problem. 


I do not have prectical Accounting experience, though many IT systems I have been responsible are subject to financial audit. 
This requiremnt has given me a working understanding of the GAP standards. 







4 
 


 
6. What is your experience with governmental or nonprofit audits?  
 


 
7. What is your experience with vendor selection and contract review in the public sector? 


 
 


 
 


I have been involved in several financial audits as part of my IT administrative role. This experience has given me an 
understanding of the important role audit plays in transparent, responsible government. Audit allows an organization to measure 
the effectiveness of its policies and procedures, and well as anti-corruption and fraud mitigation efforts. At the same time, being 
able to prove the responsible stewardship of public assets increases public trust. 


With many years as a public employee, I have extensive vendor management, competitive bidding, and contracting experience, 
within the IT domain. 







5 
 


 
 
8. What is your experience in park maintenance?   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What is your standard level of service for maintenance? 


 
9. What is your experience in Recreation Programs?  


 
 


The ultimate standard for maintenance is that the facility is safe and accessible to the public. Once the safety and accessibility 
concerns are satisfied, utility, appearance, and beneficial use can be considered. 


My children are dedicated Scouts (BSA, GSA) and I have regular volunteer involvement in scouting activities. 


I do not have park maintenance experience, though i have several years experience in facilities maintenance with a water utility. 







6 
 


 
10. What do you feel are some of the key issues facing City parks in the next 5 to 10 years? 
 


 
 


11.  Describe your goals as part of the Measure Z Oversight Advisory Committee.  


 


Maintaining the rural feel of Wildomar while the area grows will be a challenging goal. Providing access to public outdoor 
spaces and meeting the recreation needs of residents, whether in organized sports facilities or simple walking paths, will be 
important to City residents' quality of life. 


I do not have a political or personal agenda related to the City or the Measure Z advisory committee. I do, however have a desire 
to support my community and local government, as well as set a good example for my children. 







































































































 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.5 


GENERAL BUSINESS  
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Janet Morales, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Measure AA Oversight Advisory Committee Appointments 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council review the applications for committee membership 
and make one appointment to the Measure AA Oversight Advisory Committee for a term 
ending June 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On February 2nd, 2021, Christopher Pselos submitted his resignation on the Measure AA 
Oversight Advisory Committee effective February 28, 2021. His term would have expired 
June 2021.  
 
On March 4, 2021, a Notice of Vacancy for 1 un-scheduled position was advertised. At the 
end of the recruitment period, applications were received from the following residents: 
  
 1. Charles Herrera 
 2. Kathleen Kovich  


3. John St. Jarre 
 
It is staff’s recommendation for the City Council to review the applications and make one 
appointment for a term ending June 2021. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Janet Morales      Gary Nordquist 
City Clerk       City Manager 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Charles Herrera Application 
2. Kathleen Kovich Application 
3. John St. Jarre Application 
 







1 | P a g e  
 


Volunteer Application 
 WILDOMAR MEASURE AA  


CITIZEN’S OVERSIGHT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 


City of Wildomar  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd Ste. 201 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
951.677.7751 (phone)  
951.698.1463 (fax)  


 
VOLUNTEER APPLICANT INFORMATION 


 
Last Name:       First Name:         MI:     


Address:    City:        Zip Code:       


Home Phone:   Cell Phone:  


Email Address:       


 


QUESTIONAIRE 


 
What type of Volunteer Experiences Have You Had? 


 


 


 


Education, Credentials, Government Finance/ Accounting/Auditing Experience: 


 


 


 


Public Communication Experience: 


 


 


 


Project Leadership Skills/Experience: 


 


 


 


Knowledge of Police, Fire, Street Maintenance and Homelessness needs, services and costs: 


 


 


 


Other Relevant Skills/Information: 


 


 


 
 







2 | P a g e  
 


Volunteer Acknowledgement  
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
VOLUNTEER CONSENT 


 
Your signature below indicates that you have read each of the above items and you agree to be bound by them.   
 
 
           / /  
Applicant Name (print)   Applicant Signature    Date 
 


VOLUNTEER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND WAIVER 
 


As a Volunteer, I understand that: 
 


• I give the City of Wildomar permission to conduct a thorough background check on me, which may 
include a review of sex offender registries, criminal history records, and law enforcement records.  I 
understand that volunteer positions may be conditional upon favorable background information as 
determined by the City of Wildomar. 


 


• The City of Wildomar is not obligated to provide me with a volunteer placement.  I also understand that 
I am not obligated to accept the volunteer position offered. 


 


• Volunteers are expected to immediately inform us if they are unable or unwilling to perform a 
requested task.  Physical requirements of tasks may involve sitting, standing, walking stooping, 
kneeling, climbing, talking. Listening, reading, handling (lifting, pushing, pulling), objects, handling 
heavy objects, operation tools, operating power tools, operating vehicles. 


 


• Volunteer positions are charitable contributions to the City of Wildomar without compensation or 
benefit of any kind or consideration of future employment. 


 


• I have the obligation to notify my supervisor of an injury incurred while volunteering. 
 


• I agree to be subjected to the policies and procedures of the City of Wildomar. 
 


• I am not an employee of the City of Wildomar. 
 


• The City of Wildomar reserves the right to terminate my volunteer status at any time. 


VOLUNTEER CODE OF CONDUCT 
As a volunteer I will: 
 


• Perform only those assigned tasks that are within my physical capability and will not undertake any 
tasks that are beyond my physical capability or ability. 


 


• Not undertake to operate or use vehicles, equipment or tools that I am unfamiliar with or have not 
been trained to operate properly and safely, and have not received specific authorization to use from 
my supervisor. 


 


• Observe all safety rules and use provided safety equipment in the performance of my assigned tasks. 
 


• Treat everyone with respect, patience, integrity, courtesy, and dignity. 
 


• Not use profanity, or make humiliating, ridiculing, threatening, or degrading statements. 
 


• Return all City equipment and identification upon request or at end of assignment. 
 







1 
 


     


 WILDOMAR MEASURE AA  


CITIZEN’S OVERSIGHT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
Supplemental Questionnaire 


 
 


 
 


PRINT NAME:              
 
 PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY 
 
This Supplemental Questionnaire will be a tool in the evaluation of your qualifications for this position.  
Please answer each question in sufficient detail so that we can understand precisely what your qualifying 
experience and accomplishments have been. 
 
A Supplemental Questionnaire is required for Wildomar Measure AA Citizens’ Oversight 


Advisory Committee appointments.  Your application will not be considered complete without 


submittal of both forms. 


 
Please use the space provided for your response.  If more space is necessary, one additional page per question may 
be attached. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________   _____________________________ 
Signature         Date 
  
 


 
1. Have you participated in local government as a committee member, commissioner, council 


member, or staff?  What was your role and what did you learn from it?    







2 
 


 
2. What is your understanding of the role and responsibilities of the Wildomar Measure AA Citizen’s 


Oversight Advisory Committee? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
3. Why did you apply for the committee and what do you hope to accomplish by your participation? 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 







3 
 


 
4. What qualities or experience would you bring that would benefit the Wildomar Measure AA 


Citizen’s Oversight Advisory Committee? 
 


 
5. What is your experience with governmental service costs (Police, Fire, Street Maintenance, 


Homelessness or other recurring City Services)?   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 







4 
 


 
6. What is your experience with governmental financial reports and/or audits?  
 


7.  Describe your goals and/or interest in being a member of the Committee. 


 























































  


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.6 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
 Meeting Date: April 14, 2021 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   Robert Howell, Acting Administrative Services Director 
 
PREPARED BY: Sherri Stanton, Human Resources Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of the Code Enforcement Technician, Code Enforcement 


Officer I/II, Senior Code Enforcement Officer, and Code Enforcement 
Supervisor Classification Descriptions, and updates to the Position 
Classification Listing and the Schedule of Approved Positions 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, 
UPDATING THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE, UPDATING THE CODE 
ENFORCEMENT OFFICER I/II POSITION CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION, AND 
APPROVE NEW POSITION CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTIONS FOR THE CODE 
ENFORCEMENT TECHNICIAN, SENIOR CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, AND 
CODE ENFORCEMENT SUPERVISOR POSITIONS 


 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
In continuing to work on the City’s organizational structure plans staff is submitting for 
your consideration and approval the following position descriptions, and to add the 
positions to the City’s Position Classification Listing and the FY 2020-21 Schedule of 
Approved Positions: 
 


Code Enforcement Technician 
Code Enforcement Supervisor 
Senior Code Enforcement Officer (Position Classification Listing 
Only) 


 
In addition to the listed positions staff is submitting for your consideration and approval 
the following updated position descriptions, which is already on the Position Classification 
Listing, and add the positions to the FY 2020-21 Schedule of Approved Positions: 


 
Code Enforcement Officer I/II 


 
Each of the positions listed in the recommendations are currently being held by either a 
contract labor agency employee or a consultant. When staff completed a cost analysis on 
the recommended positions it was determined that the City would reduce expenditures 







 


 
 


by converting the occupied positions from contract labor to City employed staff.  
Reductions could be achieved as the short- and long-term costs of City staff salary, 
benefits, and related pension costs are less than those charged by contract labor 
agencies. The estimated savings are primarily due to recent changes in the funding of the 
public retirement system (CalPERS – 2013) as the employee now participates with the 
employer in the sharing of the cost of this program. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The anticipated cost reduction to the City’s overall budgets for the remainder of FY 2020-
21 will be provided as positions are filled and specific reductions from the professional 
services and/or contract services budgets are identified.  
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Acting Administrative Services Director             City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Position Classification Schedule  
Schedule of Approved Positions 
Classification Description – Code Enforcement Technician 
Classification Description – Code Enforcement Officer I/II 
Classification Description – Senior Code Enforcement Officer 
Classification Description – Code Enforcement Supervisor 
 
 
 


  







 


 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - XX 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, UPDATING THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE, 
UPDATING THE CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER I/II POSITION CLASSIFICATION 
DESCRIPTION, AND APPROVE NEW POSITION CLASIFICATION DESCRIPTIONS 


FOR THE SENIOR CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, CODE ENFORCEMENT 
SUPERVISOR, AND CODE ENFORCEMENT TECHNICIAN POSITIONS 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar was incorporated July 1, 2008 and adopted 


Ordinance No. 08-14 establishing the Personnel Rules and at the City Council meeting 
of October 13, 2010, the Ordinance was repealed and replaced by Ordinance No. 53, 
adding Chapter 2.07 to the Wildomar Municipal Code establishing the City of Wildomar 
Personnel Rules and;  


 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 96 entitled 


“AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING CHAPTER 2.36 (PERSONNEL SYSTEM) OF THE 
WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE;”      
 


WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 96 amended Chapter 2.36 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code and the City’s Personnel Rules are to be adopted by resolution of the City Council; 
and 
 


WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 96 among other things, states that the City Council 
shall have the authority to adopt, amend or repeal the Personnel Rules and the Human 
Resources Officer shall have authority to prepare and recommend revisions to the 
Personnel Rules and; 


 
 WHEREAS, in continuing to work on the City’s organizational structure it would 
best be serviced by creating the Position Classification Descriptions of the Code 
Enforcement Supervisor, the Senior Code Enforcement Officer, and the Code 
Enforcement Technician, and revising the Position Classification Descriptions of the Code 
Enforcement Officer I/II, and place each position on the Position Classification Listing 
and, with the exception of the Senior Code Enforcement Officer, the Schedule of 
Approved Positions. 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the position classification schedule, 
Schedule of Approved Positions, and position classification descriptions for city 
employees in the City of Wildomar shall be set forth on the following schedules: 
 


Exhibit "A"  Position Classification Schedule  
Exhibit "B"  Schedule of Approved Positions 
Exhibit “C”  Classification Description – Code Enforcement Officer I/II 


Classification Description – Senior Code Enforcement Officer  
Classification Description – Code Enforcement Supervisor 
Classification Description – Code Enforcement Technician 


 
 
 







 


 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the position classification descriptions, Position 
Classification Schedule, and Schedule of Approved Positions contained in this resolution 
shall become effective on April 14, 2021 or on the date specified by the individual salary 
schedule review or contract. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of April, 2021. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Dustin Nigg 
       Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales 
City Attorney      City Clerk 







General Code 4/14/2021


12 Code Enforcement Technician Non-Exempt General Code 4/14/2021


Page 1 of 1


24 Senior Planner Non-Exempt General Planning 1/13/2021


6 Recreation Leader II Non-Exempt General Community Services 1/13/2021


1 Recreation Leaders I Non-Exempt General Community Services 1/13/2021


37 Public Works Director Exempt Mgmt Public Works 1/13/2021


15 Plans Examiner Non-Exempt General Building 1/13/2021


37 Planning Director Exempt Mgmt Planning 1/13/2021


22 Parks, Community Services, and Cemetery District Manager Exempt Mgmt Maintenance 1/13/2021


16 Manager of Operations and Maintenance Exempt Mgmt Maintenance 1/13/2021


6 Intern II (Graduate) Non-Exempt General varies 1/13/2021


1 Intern I (Undergraduate) Non-Exempt General varies 1/13/2021


22 Human Resources Administrator Non-Exempt General Human Resources 1/13/2021


11 Groundsworker- Senior Non-Exempt General Maintenance 1/13/2021


9 Groundsworker II Non-Exempt General Maintenance 1/13/2021


7 Groundsworker I Non-Exempt General Maintenance 1/13/2021


37 Finance Director Exempt Mgmt Finance 1/13/2021


29 Finance Manager Exempt Mgmt Finance 1/13/2021


23 Economic Development Manager Exempt Mgmt Economic Development 1/13/2021


30 Economic Development Director Exempt Mgmt Economic Development 1/13/2021


11 Development Services Technician Non-Exempt General Building 1/13/2021


21 Community Services Manager Exempt Mgmt Community Services 1/13/2021


37 Community Services Director Exempt Mgmt Community Services 1/13/2021


16 Code Enforcement Officer II Non-Exempt General Code 4/14/2021


18 Code Enforcement Officer, Senior Non-Exempt General Code 4/14/2021


20 Code Enforcement Supervisor Non-Exempt


14 Code Enforcement Officer I Non-Exempt General Code 4/14/2021


Contract City Manager Exempt Exec City Manager 1/13/2021


31 City Engineer Exempt Mgmt Engineering 1/13/2021


27 City Clerk Exempt Mgmt City Clerk 1/13/2021


29 Chief Building Official Exempt Mgmt Building 1/13/2021


17 Building Inspector II Non-Exempt General Building 1/13/2021


15 Building Inspector I Non-Exempt General Building 1/13/2021


22 Associate Planner Non-Exempt General Planning 1/13/2021


20 Associate  Engineer Non-Exempt General Engineering 1/13/2021


40 Assistant City Manager Exempt Exec Administration 1/13/2021


17 Assistant Planner Non-Exempt General Planning 1/13/2021


18 Assistant Engineer Non-Exempt General Engineering 1/13/2021


15 Assistant City Clerk Non-Exempt General City Clerk 1/13/2021


14 Animal Services Supervisor Non-Exempt General Animal Control 1/13/2021


7 Animal Services Officer Non-Exempt General Animal Control 1/13/2021


37 Administrative Services Director Exempt Mgmt Administration 1/13/2021


11 Administrative Assistant II Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


7 Administrative Assistant I Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


23 Administrative Analyst - Senior Non-Exempt General Engineering 1/13/2021


23 Administrative Analyst - Senior Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


17 Administrative Analyst II Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


13 Administrative Analyst Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


4 Administrative Aide II Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


2 Administrative Aide I Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


12 Accounting Specialist Non-Exempt General Administration 1/13/2021


23 Accounting Manager Exempt Mgmt Accounting 1/13/2021


City of Wildomar


Position Classification Schedule - Revised Pay Grades 


and Added Positions - April 2021


Current Pay 


Grade
Classification


FLSA


Status
Group


Career


Family
Date







Position


 Approved 


Positions 


 Budgeted 


Salary 


 Health 


Insurance 


Allotment 


 Other 


Compensation,  


Retirement & 


Payroll Taxes 


 Total Positon 


Cost 


City Council Member (each) 5 4,800$           14,400$  7,078$              26,278$         


City Manager 1 219,003         14,400     84,870              318,273         


Assistant City Manager/PW Director 1 220,986         14,400     32,343              267,729         


Planning Director 1 172,869         14,400     46,791              234,060         


City Clerk 1 111,503         14,400     30,095              155,998         


Chief Building Official 1 117,008         14,400     17,551              148,959         


Economic Development Director 1 122,853         14,400     38,170              175,423         


Administrative Services Director 1 156,611         14,400     23,492              194,503         


Administrative Analyst Sr. - Engineering 1 85,181           14,400     12,777              112,358         


Administrative Analyst Sr. - Administration 1 85,181           14,400     23,393              122,974         


Administrative Analyst I/II 1 61,976           14,400     8,674                85,050           


Assistant Engineer 1 66,744           14,400     10,012              91,156           


Associate Engineer 1 75,425           14,400     11,314              101,139         


Parks, Community Svcs, & Cemetery Dist. Mgr. 1 79,099           14,400     25,038              118,537         


Administrative Assistant I/II 1 46,248           14,400     6,531                67,179           


Associate Planner/Sr Planner 1 85,232           14,400     11,261              110,893         


Code Enforcement Officer I/II 1 66,823           14,400     10,024              91,247           


Code Enforcement Supervisor 1 81,224           14,400     12,184              107,808         


Code Enforcement Technician 1 54,975           14,400     8,247                77,622           


Human Resources Administrator 1 81,127           14,400     12,169              107,696         


Accounting Specialist 1 49,806           14,400     7,471                71,677           


Grounds Worker II 1 42,420           14,400     7,980                64,800           


Grounds Worker I 1 39,974           14,400     5,849                60,223           


Part-Time Positions- Cost per Position


Intern II (part-time) 1 13,384           -          1,024                14,407           


Deferred Positions due to COVID-19


Grounds Worker I 1 -                 -          -                   -                 


Administrative Assistant (part-time) 1 -                 -          -                   -                 


City of Wildomar


Schedule of Approved Positions


FY 2020-21


Full-Time Positions (except City Council)


Revised April 14, 2021







Code Enforcement Technician 


04/14/2021 


Page 1 of 3 


 
 


 
          The City of Wildomar  


  CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION 


 


          Class Title: Code Enforcement Technician       Department: Building & Safety  
             Pay Grade: 12                                                    Class:  General, Non-Exempt 
             Effective:  April 14, 2021                                   Revised:   


 
  
 


 


GENERAL PURPOSE 
 


Under direct supervision from the Code Enforcement Supervisor, the Code 
Enforcement Technician performs routine field inspections and investigations related to 
property maintenance violations, zoning and housing code violations; performs 
research and writes reports regarding zoning and municipal code violations; carries out 
special projects, and performs related duties as assigned. 


 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 


 


The Code Enforcement Technician is an entry level classification in the Code 
Enforcement job series. It differs from the Code Enforcement Officer position in that the 
incumbent performs less complex and more routine code enforcement responsibilities 
while learning enforcement procedures for State and City codes and the rules and 
regulations of the Code Enforcement Section. 


 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXCERCISED 
 
Receives working directives from the Assistant City Manager and immediate 
supervision, technical and functional direction from the Code Enforcement Supervisor.  
Incumbents in this class do not exercise supervision.  
 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 


(The following is used as a partial description and is not restrictive to duties required) 


 
Incumbent  learns and enforces municipal codes and other applicable codes related to 
nuisance, zoning, pest infestation, noise, blight, graffiti, signage, junk and debris, 
abandoned or inoperable vehicles on private property, housing, and related abatement 
activities; learns and performs field investigations, takes on-site photographs, prepares 
diagrams and measurements of residential, commercial and industrial properties in 
assisting in the implementation of the City’s code enforcement program; learns and 
performs the issuance of infraction and misdemeanor citations for violations relating to 
public nuisances, including zoning, litter, abandoned vehicles, weeds, debris  







Code Enforcement Technician 


04/14/2021 


Page 2 of 3 


 
 


 
 
accumulation, oversized vehicles in residential areas and parking violations; learns to 
the level of possessing the ability to determine if development projects are in 
compliance with zoning ordinances and regulations; advises applicants, homeowners or 
developers of the City’s requirements and the correct procedures to be taken to ensure 
compliance; respond to citizen complaints; issues infractions and misdemeanor citations 
for violations of applicable codes; prepares written daily reports and maintains accurate 
records and files; assists in the preparation of code violation cases for presentation at 
public hearings, City Council meetings and judicial proceedings under the direction of 
his/her supervisor; and appear as a witness in court regarding violation cases; 
participates in joint inspections of properties with other agencies and City departments; 
researches property ownership and zoning, building and parcel histories; learns to 
interpret building and planning project entitlements and compiles statistics. 


 
          Performs other related duties as assigned. 


 
 
EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS 
 
Knowledge of: 


Operations and organizational structure of municipal government; principles and 
practices of research and report preparation; modern office procedures, methods and 
equipment including computers and supporting software applications; English usage, 
spelling, grammar, and punctuation; principles and practices of filing and record 
keeping; methods and techniques of public relations and customer service; safe and 
efficient work practices as they relate to code enforcement. 


 


Ability to: 


Learn, interpret and apply zoning and land use regulations and planning concepts to 
unusual or difficult zoning or municipal code violations; learn and understand rules of 
evidence related to public hearing and judicial cases; compile and analyze technical 
information; learn and apply investigative techniques; maintain and follow department 
policies and procedures; operate and use modern office equipment including a 
computer and various software packages; communicate clearly and concisely, both 
orally and in writing; ensure safety standards are met; establish and maintain effective 
working relationships with those contacted in the course of work; delivery quality 
customer service; work independently and as a team member. 
 
DESIRED MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Education and Experience 


 
Requires completion of a High school diploma or GED.  Must have at least two (2) 
years of experience in municipal government, including one year of responsible public 
contact work. Knowledge of and/or experience in construction, code enforcement, 
permit issuance or other building and construction related activities preferred. 
 







Code Enforcement Technician 


04/14/2021 


Page 3 of 3 


 
 


 
 
 
Special Requirements 
 
Possession of a valid, appropriate California Driver's License and an acceptable 
driving record, and the ability to operate a vehicle to perform on-site inspections and 
attend various meetings. 


       AND 
 


Possession of or ability to obtain P.C. 832 within first six (6) months of employment 
and ability to obtain Statewide California Association of Code Enforcement Officials 
(CACEO) Basic Module certifications within one (1) year of appointment. Possession 
of ICS and Oleoresin Capsicum spray certification within six (6) months of 
appointment.  Successful completion of Identification of Substandard Residences 
course by CACEO within six (6) months of appointment. 


 
 


TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED 
 


Constantly operates a personal computer including MS-Word, MS-Excel, and other 
data software; fax machines and electronic copiers, motor vehicle, telephone and 
cellular telephone, flashlight, and a variety of testing equipment, etc. 


 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS 


  
Stationary positions require sitting or standing; occasionally moves about on level and 
slippery surfaces. Incumbent may position self by reaching, twisting, turning, kneeling, 
bending, stooping, squatting, crouching and grasping. Makes constant repetitive hand 
movements during performance of daily duties. Must be able to observe from both near 
and far when making inspections, reading written reports and work-related documents. 
Acute hearing is required when communicating by phone and providing personal 
service. Frequently deals with irate members of the public. Frequent lifting, carrying and 
pushing of tools, equipment and supplies weighing 25 pounds or more is required. 
Constantly works in all outdoor weather conditions including wet, hot and cold. 
Constantly drives motorized vehicles, works in heavy vehicle traffic conditions and often 
works with constant interruptions. The incumbent may be exposed to dust and air 
contaminants as a part of their field work.  Some of these requirements may be 
accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and requesting such 
accommodations. 
 


   


 


Approval:  _______________________________ 


     Human Resources Administrator 







Page 4 of 5 Code Enforcement Officer I/II 


Revised 04/14/2021 
 


The City of Wildomar  


CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION 


 


 Class Title: Code Enforcement Officer I/II        Department: Building & Safety  
    Pay Grade: 14 (I), 16 (II)                                   Class:  General, Non-Exempt 


    Effective:  November 14, 2012                         Revised:  April 14, 2021 
  
 


 


GENERAL PURPOSE 


 


Under supervision of the Code Enforcement Supervisor, (Code Enforcement 
Officer I) or general supervision (Code Enforcement Officer II), performs a variety 
of technical duties in support of the City's code enforcement program; monitors and 
enforces a variety of applicable ordinances, codes, and regulations related to land 
use matters, building, housing, health and safety, property maintenance, general 
inspection of mobile home parks, abandoned vehicle abatement, noise abatement, 
and other matters of public concern; investigates violations and initiates procedures 
to abate violations and obtain compliance including issuing notices of violations, 
citations, and other correspondence specifying necessary corrective actions, 
compliance, and compliance dates; serves as a resource and provides information 
on City regulations to property owners, residents, businesses, the general public, 
and other City departments and divisions 


 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 


Code Enforcement Officer I - This is the entry level class in the Code Enforcement 
Officer series. Positions at this level are not expected to function with the same 
amount of program knowledge or skill level as positions allocated to the Code 
Enforcement Officer II level and exercise less independent discretion and 
judgment in matters related to work procedures and methods. Incumbents at this 
level are expected to become fully knowledgeable of the assigned area and learn 
to perform the full range of code enforcement investigative work. As a condition of 
employment, incumbents must successfully complete a P.O.S.T. - Certified PC 
832 course during their probationary period. Incumbents initially appointed to Code 
Enforcement Officer I level may progress to Code Enforcement Officer II after 
successfully completing one year (12 months) as a Code Enforcement Officer I 
with the City and achieving the qualifications and department requirements 
established for progression. 


 


  


 







Page 4 of 5 Code Enforcement Officer I/II 


Revised 04/14/2021 
 


SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXCERCISED 


Receives working directives from the Assistant City Manager and immediate 
supervision, technical and functional direction from the Code Enforcement 
Supervisor.  Incumbents in this class do not exercise supervision.  
 
Code Enforcement Officer II - This is the journey level class in the Code 
Enforcement Officer series. Incumbents at this level require demonstrated ability 
to perform a variety of responsible code enforcement duties and provide training 
to lower-level staff as needed. Positions in this class series are flexibly staffed and 
positions at the Code Enforcement Officer II level are normally filled by 
advancement from the Code Enforcement Officer I level. Positions at this level 
require one year of experience comparable to a Code Enforcement Officer I with 
the City or two years of experience performing public contact work of an 
investigative or inspection nature including at least one year of code enforcement 
investigation/inspection work. In addition, incumbents must have successfully 
completed a P.O.S.T. Certified PC 832 course. 


 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXCERCISED 


Receives working directives from the Assistant City Manager and immediate 
supervision, technical and functional direction from the Code Enforcement 
Supervisor.  Incumbents in this class do not exercise supervision.  


 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
(The following is used as a partial description and is not restrictive to duties required.)  


 


Incumbent enforces municipal codes and other applicable codes related to 
nuisance, zoning, pest infestation, noise, blight, graffiti, signage, junk and debris, 
abandoned or inoperable vehicles on private property, housing, and related 
abatement activities. Researches property ownership, zoning and parcel history; 
research ordinances and history of ordinances affecting property uses; determines 
compliance of specific land with use permits, variances and development plans 
where improvements have been directed to meet zoning requirements. Responds 
to inquiries concerning related codes and ordinances; reads, interprets, explains, 
and applies applicable codes to assigned duties; composes written responses as 
required. Takes action on community complaints concerning a variety of code 
violations; conducts on-site investigations to identify nuisances, potentially 
hazardous conditions and code violations; prepares photographic evidence of 


violations; records observations. Notifies responsible parties of code and ordinance 
violations; instructs responsible parties concerning needed corrections to obtain 
compliance; conducts follow-up inspections to ensure corrections are made; notes 
actions taken and results achieved in case files and on computer database. Seeks 
compliance through written and personal contact; issues warnings and/or notices 
for code violations as required. Coordinates joint abatement and investigation 
activities with other city departments and agencies; informs departments of pending 
and ongoing investigations and activities; provides follow-up reports, records, and 
data to assist other departments involved in the zoning and abatement process. 
Prepares and maintains a variety of records, reports, logs, memoranda, and files 







Page 4 of 5 Code Enforcement Officer I/II 


Revised 04/14/2021 
 


related to field and office investigations and activities. Compiles case files for public 
hearings and court proceedings; testifies at hearings on behalf of the city.   
 


Performs related duties as assigned. 


 
EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS 


 
Knowledge of: 


Knowledge of State and local codes, regulations pertaining to building, substandard 
housing, zoning, and vehicle codes, along with the ability to communicate that 
knowledge on paper. Working knowledge of principles and practices of code 
enforcement; methods of office and field inspection work; discovering property 
ownership and zoning background, research methods and techniques related to all 
applicable codes. 


 
Ability to: 


Ability to communicate effectively, both orally, and in writing - proficiency in the use 
of proper English usage, spelling, grammar, punctuation, arithmetic  and basic 
mathematical calculations. Research, interpret, explain, and apply applicable codes 
and ordinances to abatement work. Design public information and education 
programs related to code compliance activities, make presentations to community 
groups and testify in hearings  and  court proceedings. Analyze situations and 
develop sound solutions, while maintaining safety at all times. Ability to plan and 
organize multiple tasks and  projects  to meet deadlines. Ability to obtain information 
through a variety of interview techniques; work fairly and courteously with all 
customers. Ability to develop and maintain effective working relationships with 
those contacted in the course of duties, using tact and sensitivity. Coordinate 
activities with other  city departments, associated enforcement jurisdictions, and 
other parties of interest. Read maps and learn the city's geography. Develop and 
accurately maintain a variety of work records and documents including complete 
case files, logs, reports, and memoranda. Make presentations to community groups 
concerning codes, ordinances and city compliance programs 


 
DESIRED MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 


Education and Experience 
 


Requires completion of an AA degree or equivalent. Must have at least two years of 
experience enforcing administrative rules and regulations involving field 
investigations pertaining to code compliance, and be comfortable with extensive 
public contact or any equivalent combination of education and experience that 
would likely provide the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying. 
 
Special Requirements 
 
Possession of a valid, appropriate California Driver's License and an acceptable 
driving record, and the ability to operate a vehicle to perform on-site inspections 
and attend various meetings. 







Page 4 of 5 Code Enforcement Officer I/II 


Revised 04/14/2021 
 


 
               AND 


 
Code Enforcement Officer I 


Possession of or ability to obtain P.C. 832 within first six (6) months of employment 
and ability to obtain Statewide California Association of Code Enforcement 
Officials (CACEO) Basic Module certifications within one (1) year of appointment. 
Possession of ICS and Oleoresin Capsicum spray certification within six (6) 
months of appointment.  Successful completion of Identification of Substandard 
Residences course by CACEO within six (6) months of appointment. 


 
Code Enforcement Officer II 


Possession of P.C. 832 and ability to obtain Statewide California Association of 
Code Enforcement Officials (CACEO) Intermediate Module certifications.  
Possession of Oleoresin Capsicum spray certification.  Successful completion of 
Identification of Substandard Residences course by CACEO. 


TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED 


Constantly operates a personal computer including MS-Word, MS-Excel, and 
other data software; fax machines and electronic copiers, motor vehicle, 
telephone and cellular telephone, flashlight, and a variety of testing equipment, etc. 


PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
  


Stationary positions require sitting or standing; occasionally moves about on level 
and slippery surfaces. Incumbent may position self by reaching, twisting, turning, 
kneeling, bending, stooping, squatting, crouching and grasping. Makes constant 
repetitive hand movements during performance of daily duties. Must be able to 
observe from both near and far when making inspections, reading written reports 
and work-related documents. Acute hearing is required when communicating by  
phone and providing personal service. Frequently deals with irate members of the 
public. Frequent lifting, carrying and pushing of tools, equipment and supplies 
weighing 25 pounds or more is required. Constantly works in all outdoor weather 
conditions including wet, hot and cold. Constantly drives motorized vehicles, works 
in heavy vehicle traffic conditions and often works with constant interruptions.  The  
incumbent may be exposed to dust and air contaminants as a part of their field work.  
A normal work week schedule for this position could include weekends or after hour 
assignments.  Some of these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise 
qualified individuals requiring and requesting such accommodations. 
 


 


 


                   Approval:  _______________________________ 


            Human Resources Administrator 







Page 1  of 4 Senior Code Enforcement Officer 


04/14/2021 
 


 


The City of Wildomar  


CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION 


 


 Class Title: Senior Code Enforcement Officer  Department: Building & Safety  
    Pay Grade: 18                                                   Class:  General, Non-Exempt 
    Effective:  April 14, 2021                                   Revised:   


 
  
 


 


GENERAL PURPOSE 
 
Under general supervision, leads, oversees, reviews, and performs residential, 


commercial and industrial site inspections and investigations to determine 


compliance with applicable federal, state and local codes, laws and regulations; 


performs other related duties as required. 


 
 


DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 
 
Senior Code Enforcement Officer is the lead/advanced journey level class in 


which incumbents are expected to independently perform the full scope of 


assigned inspection duties. Incumbents are responsible for performing the full 


range of inspection and code enforcement responsibilities involving codes and 


regulations in a broad range of areas, including zoning, building, weed 


abatement, health, and safety. The work requires independence and discretion 


in working with the public and in conducting field inspections, and involves a 


proactive implementation of applicable codes and regulations. This class is 


distinguished from the next higher classification of Chief Building Official in that 


the latter is responsible for the administration of the division. 


 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 


 
Receives general supervision from the Code Enforcement Supervisor. May 


exercise functional and technical supervision over assigned staff and may 


serve as training officer for new hires. 


 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
(The following is used as a partial description and is not restrictive to duties required) 


 


The incumbent leads, oversees, reviews and performs the more complex duties in 
residential, commercial, industrial, and site inspections; determines existence and  


 
 







Page 2  of 4 Senior Code Enforcement Officer 


04/14/2021 
 


 


type of code violation; prepares weekly and monthly reports; maintains records; 
prepares and serves warrants.  Compiles, analyzes and evaluates findings of 
investigations and inspections; coordinates with property owners or their 


representatives and other regulatory agencies to take corrective action; performs 
follow-up inspections and investigation as required; ensures compliance with all 


applicable municipal codes and regulations; issues citations for non-compliance; 
issues parking citations for illegally parked vehicles.  Interprets, applies and explains 


applicable municipal codes, zoning ordinances, building codes, vehicle codes, state 
housing, health and safety codes, and other related laws, codes and regulations; 


advises property owners on the requirements for compliance; explains processes and 
procedures for obtaining compliance or appropriate permits; testifies in court. 
Maintains clear, concise and comprehensive records and reports related to 


enforcement activities; maintains communication/action logs for code enforcement 
cases; enters and retrieves information from records systems.  Enforces regulations 


pertaining to animal control, oversize vehicle parking, business licenses, banner 
permits, news racks, temporary political signs and zoning codes.  Photographs 


violations; gathers evidence and prepares cases for court proceedings; produces 
photographs and records of violations for evidence; represents the City in court 


regarding noncompliance if required.  Responds to questions and concerns from the 
public, departmental staff and other agencies; provides information as appropriate 


and resolves service issues and complaints; cooperates with other agencies.  
Establishes positive working relationships with representatives of community 
organizations, state/local agencies, City management and staff and the public. 


 


 


EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS 


 
Knowledge of: 
Knowledge of State and local codes, regulations pertaining to building, substandard 
housing, zoning, and vehicle codes, along with the ability to communicate that 
knowledge on paper. Working knowledge of principles and practices of code 
enforcement; methods of office and field inspection work; discovering property 
ownership and zoning background, research methods and techniques related to all 
applicable codes. 
 
Ability to: 
Ability to communicate effectively, both orally, and in writing - proficiency in the use of 
proper English usage, spelling, grammar, punctuation, arithmetic  and basic 
mathematical calculations. Research, interpret, explain, and apply applicable codes 
and ordinances to abatement work. Design public information and education 
programs related to code compliance activities, make presentations to community 
groups and testify in hearings  and  court proceedings. Analyze situations and develop 
sound solutions, while maintaining safety at all times. Ability to plan and organize 
multiple tasks and  projects  to meet deadlines. Ability to obtain information  
 
 
through a variety of interview techniques; work fairly and courteously with all 







Page 3  of 4 Senior Code Enforcement Officer 


04/14/2021 
 


 


customers. Ability to develop and maintain effective working relationships with those 
contacted in the course of duties, using tact and sensitivity. Coordinate activities with 
other  city departments, associated enforcement jurisdictions, and other parties 
of interest. Read maps and learn the city's geography. Develop and accurately 
maintain a variety of work records and documents including complete case files, logs, 
reports, and memoranda. Make presentations to community groups concerning 
codes, ordinances and city compliance programs 
 


 


DESIRED MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 


 


Education and Experience 


 
Any combination of education and experience that has provided the knowledge, skills 


and abilities necessary for a Senior Code Enforcement Officer. A typical way of 
obtaining the required qualifications is to possess the equivalent of three (3) years of 


relevant experience that includes heavy public contact and the performance of code 
enforcement activities, and a high school diploma or equivalent. Possession of a 


bachelor's degree in planning, construction technology, police  sciences or a related 
field may be substituted for one year of  required experience.  


 
Special Requirements 
 


Possession of a valid, appropriate California Driver's License and an acceptable 
driving record, and the ability to operate a vehicle to perform on-site inspections and 
attend various meetings. 


      AND 


Possession of P.C. 832 and ability to obtain Statewide California Association of Code 
Enforcement Officials (CACEO) Intermediate Module certifications.  Possession of 
Oleoresin Capsicum spray certification.  Successful completion of Identification of 
Substandard Residences course by CACEO. 


 


 
TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED 


Constantly operates a personal computer including MS-Word, MS-Excel, and other 
data software; fax machines and electronic copiers, motor vehicle, telephone and 
cellular telephone, flashlight, and a variety of testing equipment, etc. 
 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS 


  
Stationary positions require sitting or standing; occasionally moves about on level and 
slippery surfaces. Incumbent may position self by reaching, twisting, turning, kneeling, 
bending, stooping, squatting, crouching and grasping. Makes constant repetitive hand 
movements during performance of daily duties. Must be able to observe from both 
near and far when making inspections, reading written reports and work-related 







Page 4  of 4 Senior Code Enforcement Officer 


04/14/2021 
 


 


documents. Acute hearing is required when communicating by phone and providing 
personal service. Frequently deals with irate members of the public. Frequent lifting, 
carrying and pushing of tools, equipment and supplies weighing 25 pounds or more 
is required. Constantly works in all outdoor weather conditions including wet, hot and 
cold. Constantly drives motorized vehicles, works in heavy vehicle traffic conditions 
and often works with constant interruptions.  The incumbent may be exposed to dust 
and air contaminants as a part of their field work.  A normal work week schedule for 
this position could include weekends or after hour assignments.  Some of these 
requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and 
requesting such accommodations. 


 


    


 


            


 


        Approval:        _______       ____________     ___ 
                                  Human Resources Administrator 
 


 







Page 1  of 4 
Code Enforcement Supervisor 


04/14/2021  
 


The City of Wildomar  


CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION 


 


 Class Title: Code Enforcement Supervisor        Department: Building & Safety  
    Pay Grade: 20                                                   Class:  General, Non-Exempt 
    Effective:  April 14, 2021                                   Revised:   


 
  
 


 


GENERAL PURPOSE 
 


Under general supervision of the Code Enforcement Supervisor, organizes, 
coordinates, supervises and participates in the more complex and difficult work of 
staff responsible for providing Code Enforcement services. Prepares a variety of 
operational, statistical, and activity reports, Waste Management, CDBG Funding, 
parking enforcement statistics; performs other related duties as required. 


 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 
 


The Code Enforcement Supervisor is a single class position with overall 
responsibility for the municipal Code Enforcement program and supervision of 
staff. Serves as a direct line supervisor over all Code Enforcement personnel. The 
incumbent also is responsible for conducting field investigations, appropriate 
notices, and representing the City at public hearings and trials. 
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 


 


General direction is received from the Assistant City Manager. Exercises direct 
supervision over field, office, and technical Code Enforcement staff. 


 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
(The following is used as a partial description and is not restrictive to duties required) 


 


Plans, directs, and participates in the investigation of potential violations and the 


enforcement of municipal codes, ordinances, standards, and health and safety regulations; 


documents violations by securing photographs and other pertinent data; researches 


ownership records, prior complaints, municipal codes and ordinances, and state regulations 


to establish violations.  Trains staff in proper inspection practices and methods and evaluate 


field practices; assesses needs for additional educational development; arranges and 


provides training and education programs for public as necessary.  Verifies work of assigned 


employees for accuracy, proper work methods, techniques, and compliance with applicable 


standards and specifications; ensures adherence to safe work practices and procedures.  


Oversees and initiates contacts with residents, business representatives, and other parties 







Page 2  of 4 
Code Enforcement Supervisor 


04/14/2021  
 


to explain the nature of incurred violations and to encourage compliance with municipal 


codes, ordinances, and community standards.  Conducts on-site inspections and determines 


existence and type of code violations; investigates and attempts to correct alleged violations 


of municipal codes and zoning ordinances; prepares cases for nuisance abatement hearings 


and court proceedings; testifies in court actions as necessary.  Establishes positive working 


relationships with the public and co-workers, representatives of community organizations, 


state/local agencies, City management and staff.  Investigates complaints made by the public; 


works with appropriate City departments to resolve issues; explains priorities, programs and 


policies to the public when required; responds to emergency calls from the public and other 


agencies and takes appropriate action.  Participates in planning and developing new forms, 


procedures, policies, and programs pertaining to field services and inspection practices; 


assists in preparing code amendments and city council reports.  Demonstrates a full 


understanding of applicable policies, procedures and work methods associated with 


assigned duties; evaluates assigned work areas; prepares and maintains records.  


Represents the city at professional meetings and conferences; attends assigned meetings  


including Planning Commission meetings as necessary.  Writes reports and participates in the 


preparation and administration of the division’s budget; prepares budget objectives and 


performance measures for the code enforcement program. 


 


EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS 


 
Knowledge of: 
Knowledge of State and local codes, regulations pertaining to building, substandard 
housing, zoning, and vehicle codes, along with the ability to communicate that 
knowledge on paper. Working knowledge of principles and practices of code 
enforcement; methods of office and field inspection work; discovering property 
ownership and zoning background, research methods and techniques related to all 
applicable codes. 
 
Ability to: 
Ability to communicate effectively, both orally, and in writing - proficiency in the use of 
proper English usage, spelling, grammar, punctuation, arithmetic  and basic 
mathematical calculations. Research, interpret, explain, and apply applicable codes 
and ordinances to abatement work. Design public information and education 
programs related to code compliance activities, make presentations to community 
groups and testify in hearings  and  court proceedings. Analyze situations and develop 
sound solutions, while maintaining safety at all times. Ability to plan and organize 
multiple tasks and  projects  to meet deadlines. Ability to obtain information through a 
variety of interview techniques; work fairly and courteously with all customers. Ability 
to develop and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 
course of duties, using tact and sensitivity. Coordinate activities with other  city 
departments, associated enforcement jurisdictions, and other parties 
of interest. Read maps and learn the city's geography. Develop and accurately 
maintain a variety of work records and documents including complete case files, logs, 
reports, and memoranda. Make presentations to community groups concerning 
codes, ordinances and city compliance programs. 


 


DESIRED MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 







Page 3  of 4 
Code Enforcement Supervisor 


04/14/2021  
 


 


Education and Experience 


 


Any combination of education and experience that provides the required knowledge, 
skills, and abilities necessary for a Code Enforcement Supervisor.  A typical way of 
obtaining the requirements outlined above is graduation from high school or G.E.D. 


equivalent; completion of the Basic P.O.S.T. P.C. 832 module; at least three years of 
experience in enforcement of administrative rules and regulations, including field 


investigations, responsibility to take legal enforcement action and substantial public 
contact requiring skill in communication and persuasion. A minimum of three (3) years 


experience as a public agency Code Inspector is required. Completion of college-level 
coursework in law enforcement, or a field related to the work is highly desirable.  


 
Special Requirements 
 


Possession of a valid, appropriate California Driver's License and an acceptable 
driving record, and the ability to operate a vehicle to perform on-site inspections and 
attend various meetings. 


       
AND 


 


Possession of P.C. 832 and ability to obtain Statewide California Association of Code 
Enforcement Officials (CACEO) Intermediate Module certifications.  Possession of 
Oleoresin Capsicum spray certification.  Successful completion of Identification of 
Substandard Residences course by CACEO. 


 
 
TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED 


Constantly operates a personal computer including MS-Word, MS-Excel, and other 
data software; fax machines and electronic copiers, motor vehicle, telephone and 
cellular telephone, flashlight, and a variety of testing equipment, etc. 
 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS 


  
Stationary positions require sitting or standing; occasionally moves about on level and 
slippery surfaces. Incumbent may position self by reaching, twisting, turning, kneeling, 
bending, stooping, squatting, crouching and grasping. Makes constant repetitive hand 
movements during performance of daily duties. Must be able to observe from both 
near and far when making inspections, reading written reports and work-related 
documents. Acute hearing is required when communicating by phone and providing 
personal service. Frequently deals with irate members of the public. Frequent lifting, 
carrying and pushing of tools, equipment and supplies weighing 25 pounds or more 
is required. Constantly works in all outdoor weather conditions including wet, hot and 
cold. Constantly drives motorized vehicles, works in heavy vehicle traffic conditions 
and often works with constant interruptions.  The incumbent may be exposed to dust 
and air contaminants as a part of their field work.  A normal work week schedule for 







Page 4  of 4 
Code Enforcement Supervisor 


04/14/2021  
 


this position could include weekends or after hour assignments.  Some of these 
requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and 
requesting such accommodations. 
 


    


 


            


 


        Approval:        _______       ____________     ___ 
                                  Human Resources Administrator 
 


 







WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


MARCH 10, 2021 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
The Regular meeting of March 10, 2021, of the Wildomar Cemetery District was 
conducted electronically pursuant to the provisions of Governor’s Executive 
Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 and was called to order by Chair Nigg at 6:54 p.m.  
 
District Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Trustees Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit, 
Chair Nigg 
 
Members absent: None. 
 
Staff in attendance: General Manager Nordquist, Assistant General Manager York, 
District Counsel Jex, Clerk of the Board Morales, Acting Administrative Services 
Director Howell, Planning Director Bassi, City Treasurer Riley, Intern II Luna, 
Economic Development Director Davidson and Cemetery District Manager Torres. 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no board communications. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the agenda.  
 
 
4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chair Benoit, seconded by Trustee Morabito, to 
approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
MOTION carried, 5-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:  Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit, Chair Nigg 
NAY:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery Minutes 
March 10, 2021 


 


2 


  
 
ABSENT: None  
 
 
4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Board, the Public, or Staff request that specific items are 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
4.1 Minutes – February 10, 2021 Regular Meeting 


Approved the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


Approved the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 02-04-2021 in the amount of $2,247.79. 
2. Warrant Register dated 02-11-2021 in the amount of $251.35. 
3. Warrant Register dated 02-25-2021 in the amount of $896.76. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for January 2021. 


 


 
5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 


There were no items scheduled. 
 
 


6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 
There were no items scheduled. 
 
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
Cemetery District Manager Torres presented the report. 
 
 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


There were no future agenda items added. 
 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery Minutes 
March 10, 2021 


 


3 


  
 
ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT   
There being no further business, Chair declared the meeting adjourned 6:56 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Janet Morales    Dustin Nigg 
Clerk of the Board    Chair 
 
 







      WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.2 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  April 14, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Acting Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant Register 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following: 


 
1. Warrant Register dated 03-04-2021 in the amount of $1,603.99. 
2. Warrant Register dated 03-11-2021 in the amount of $5,845.01. 
3. Warrant Register dated 03-25-2021 in the amount of $3,818.63. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Wildomar Cemetery District requires that the Trustees audit payments of demands 
and direct the General Manager to issue checks.  The Warrant Registers are submitted 
for approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant Registers will have a budgetary impact in the amount and fiscal year noted 
in the recommendation section of this report.  These costs are included in the Fiscal Year 
2020/21 Budget. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Acting Administrative Services Director   General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 03/04/2021  Voucher List 03/11/2021 
Voucher List 03/25/2021   
  







03/04/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


10:09:02AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213453 3/4/2021 001509  E LEES & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING, LTD5724 CEMETERY MASTER DEVELOPMENT CIP 


067


 1,600.00


Total :  1,600.00


 213454 3/4/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 22721 CEMETERY DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


02/27/21


 3.99


Total :  3.99


Bank total :  1,603.99 2 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,603.99Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2







03/11/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:32:21AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213477 3/11/2021 000477  CALIFORNIA ASSOC. OF PUBLIC, CEMETERIES12604 CORPORATE MEMBERSHIP DUES 2021  63.00


Total :  63.00


 213478 3/11/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 1077301412 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


 74.13STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE40779798555


Total :  148.26


 213479 3/11/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT10923969 01/16/21-02/16/21 CEMETERY WATER 


SERVICE


 410.11


Total :  410.11


 213480 3/11/2021 000412  POLYGUARD & CO 53194 CEMETERY DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES  5,028.00


Total :  5,028.00


 213481 3/11/2021 001258  SUNBELT RENTALS, INC. 110713805 CEMETERY SUPPLIES  195.64


Total :  195.64


Bank total :  5,845.01 5 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 5,845.01Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 5







03/25/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 9:40:04AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 213522 3/25/2021 000088  ACE HARDWARE 305736/3 CEMETERY DEPT SUPPLIES  90.85


 23.10CEMETERY DEPT SUPPLIES305747/3


 12.36CEMETERY DEPT SUPPLIES305748/3


Total :  126.31


 213523 3/25/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4078618372 STAFF UNIFORM MAINTENANCE  74.13


Total :  74.13


 213524 3/25/2021 000011  CR&R INC. 333246 MARCH 2021 WASTE SERVICES - 3 YD 


COMMERC


 146.94


Total :  146.94


 213525 3/25/2021 001184  DYLAN DIXON TREE SERVICES 1593 0000311 REMOVAL OF TWO DEODAR CEDAR TREES 


WITH S


 3,000.00


Total :  3,000.00


 213526 3/25/2021 000904  EMERGENCY RESPONSE SYSTEMS INC R56170 04/01/21-06/30/21 CEMETERY ALARM 


MONITOR


 60.00


Total :  60.00


 213527 3/25/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 278000 03/15/21-04/11/21 CEMETERY RESTROOM 


MAIN


 411.25


Total :  411.25


Bank total :  3,818.63 6 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 3,818.63Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 6







WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.3 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  April 14, 2021 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Treasurer’s Report for 
February 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of February 
2021.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.   
  
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer      General Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 







PERCENT


OF DAYS STATED


BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


$ 265,039.56 $ 265,039.56 $ 265,039.56 100.00% 0 Variable


$ 265,039.56 $ 265,039.56 $ 265,039.56 100.00%


+ WITHDRAWALS/


BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED


BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


$ 267,346.18 $ -                         $ (2,306.62) $ 265,039.56 Variable


$ 267,346.18 $ -                         $ (2,306.62) $ 265,039.56


$ 265,039.56              


TOTAL


 WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT


   TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO


February 2021


DISTRICT INVESTMENT


EDWARD JONES


ISSUER


ISSUER


EDWARD JONES


TOTAL


TOTAL INVESTMENT


Administrative Services Director


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the Wildomar Cemetery District, I hereby certify that sufficient 


investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet the District's expenditure requirements for the next six months.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the District's Bank Balances.


Robert Howell 4/5/2021
Robert Howell Date







WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT  
Agenda Item #4.4 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: April 14, 2021  


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:   Chairman and Trustees 
 
FROM:  Dan York, Assistant General Manager 
 
PREPARED BY: Warren Repke, Capital Projects Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Award Consultant Services Agreement for Preparation of Designs, 


Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates for Phase 1 Cemetery 
Improvements and Widening of Palomar Street from Gruwell Street 
to Wildomar Trail 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees: 
 


1. Authorize the General Manager to execute a Services Agreement between the City 
of Wildomar and Mark Thomas. 
 


2. Authorize the Assistant General Manager to approve up to 10% of the contract 
amount for required additional services.  


 
BACKGROUND 
On December 9, 2020 the Wildomar Cemetery District adopted the Cemetery Master Plan 
and authorized the following actions: 


1) Implement the findings from the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance 
Assessment. 
 


2) Prepare improvement plans to remove and upgrade perimeter fencing and install 
landscaping. 
 


3) Construct the ultimate improvements on Palomar Street from Wildomar Trail to 
Gruwell Street. The improvements on Palomar will include sidewalks and a trail. 
 


DISCUSSION: 
This is a cooperative project between the Wildomar Cemetery District and the City of 
Wildomar. One Professional Services Agreement will be executed for both the City and 
Cemetery District and are designated in the Agreement as the “Agency”. The City of 
Wildomar will act as project manager. Estimated construction cost is $300,000 for the 
Cemetery improvements and $2,700,000 for the Palomar Street improvements.  
 







Staff prepared a formal Request for Proposals (RFP) for Professional Services and 
distributed to qualified firms. Proposals were submitted by four (4) firms. A proposal 
review panel of three was selected to review and evaluate the proposals. Based on the 
results of the panels evaluations the firm of Mark Thomas was selected as the most 
qualified to perform the services. Staff and the consultant have finalized a Services 
Agreement including a detailed scope of work and fee (Attachment A).   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The cost of the proposed service by Mark Thomas is $272,400. Total cost of the project 
design is estimated at $327,000 including Staff project administration costs and proposed 
10% contingency. Funding in the amount of $50,000 for the design and preparation of 
plans, specifications, and cost estimate (PS&E) was included in the 20/21 FY adopted 
budget. The remaining cost will be funded by the City of Wildomar utilizing TUMF funds. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Dan York       Gary Nordquist 
Assistant General Manager    General Manager    
    
ATTACHMENT: 


A. Services Agreement 
 


 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 - 


DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  


FOR 


CEMETERY FRONTAGE, ADA AND PALOMAR STREET 
WIDENING IMPROVEMENTS 


 


                             By and Between 


 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR,  


a municipal corporation and 


WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT, 


A subsidiary District 


 


and 


 


MARK THOMAS 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 1 -  


 


AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
BETWEEN 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
AND 


MARK THOMAS 
 
 


This Agreement for Design Professional Services (“Agreement”) is entered into as 
of this ____ day of _________, 20__ by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal 
corporation (“City”) and the Wildomar Cemetery District, a subsidiary district of the City 
pursuant to Wildomar Municipal Code Chapter 2.40 (“District”) and Mark Thomas, a 
California Corporation (“Design Professional”).  City and District are referred to 
collectively as “Agency”. Agency and Design Professional are sometimes hereinafter 
individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 
A. Agency has sought, by a request for proposals the performance of 


engineering services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement.   


B. Design Professional, following submission of a proposal for the 
performance of the services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this 
Agreement, was selected by the Agency to perform those services. 


C. Design Professional was selected by the Agency on the basis of Design 
Professional’s demonstrated competence and the professional qualifications necessary 
for the satisfactory performance of the services required. 


D. Pursuant to the City of Wildomar’s Municipal Code, Agency has authority to 
enter into this Design Professional Services Agreement and the City Manager of the City 
and General Manager of the District has authority to execute this Agreement. 


E. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Design Professional for 
performance of those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this 
Agreement and desire that the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and 
described herein. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made 
by the Parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 


SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 


Subject to the provisions of Section 20 "Termination of Agreement" of this 
Agreement, the Term of this Agreement is for two years commencing on the date first 
ascribed above. 


SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 2 -  


 


(a) Scope of Services.  Design Professional agrees to perform the services set 
forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. 


(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to a 
schedule as agreed to prior to the notice to proceed with the Services.  Should the 
Services not be completed pursuant to that schedule, the Design Professional shall be 
deemed to be in Default of this Agreement.  The Agency, in its sole discretion, may 
choose not to enforce the Default provisions of this Agreement and may instead allow 
Design Professional to continue performing the Services. 


SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 


Design Professional shall not be compensated for any work rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of the Services 
unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing in accordance 
with Section 26 “Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this 
Agreement.  If and when such additional work is authorized, such additional work shall 
be deemed to be part of the Services. 


SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 


Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, Agency agrees to pay Design 
Professional the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of this 
Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual 
expenses, shall not exceed Two Hundred Seventy-Two Thousand Four Hundred Seventy 
dollars ($272,470.00), unless additional compensation is approved in writing in 
accordance with Section 26 “Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 
“Amendment” of this Agreement. In accordance with California Government Code Section 
8546.7, if the Not to Exceed Amount exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), 
this Agreement and the Design Professional's books and records related to this 
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the 
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years 
after final payment under the Agreement. 


(a) Each month Design Professional shall furnish to Agency an original invoice 
for all work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice 
shall detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, 
equipment, supplies, and sub-Design Professional contracts.  Sub-Design Professional 
charges shall be detailed by the following categories: labor, travel, materials, equipment 
and supplies.  If the compensation set forth in subsection (a) and Exhibit “B” include 
payment of labor on an hourly basis (as opposed to labor and materials being paid as a 
lump sum), the labor category in each invoice shall include detailed descriptions of task 
performed and the amount of time incurred for or allocated to that task.  Agency shall 
independently review each invoice submitted by the Design Professional to determine 
whether the work performed, and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions 
of this Agreement.  In the event that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice 
shall be approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection (c).  In the event 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 3 -  


 


any charges or expenses are disputed by Agency, the original invoice shall be returned 
by Agency to Design Professional for correction and resubmission. 


(b) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
Design Professional which are disputed by Agency, Agency will use its best efforts to 
cause Design Professional to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Design 
Professional’s correct and undisputed invoice. 


(c) Payment to Design Professional for work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Design 
Professional. 


SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 


Agency may inspect and accept or reject any of Design Professional’s work under 
this Agreement, either during performance or when completed.  Agency shall reject or 
finally accept Design Professional’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to Agency.  
Agency shall reject work by a timely written explanation, otherwise Design Professional’s 
work shall be deemed to have been accepted.  Agency’s acceptance shall be conclusive 
as to such work except with respect to latent defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as 
amount to fraud.  Acceptance of any of Design Professional’s work by Agency shall not 
constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, 
Section 16 “Indemnification” and Section 17 “Insurance.” 


SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 


All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 
reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Design Professional in the course of providing the Services pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the sole property of Agency and may be used, reused or 
otherwise disposed of by Agency without the permission of the Design Professional.  
Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Design Professional shall 
turn over to Agency all such original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, 
studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents. 


If and to the extent that Agency utilizes for any purpose not related to this 
Agreement any maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 
reports, data, notes, computer files, files or other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Design Professional in the course of providing the Services pursuant to 
this Agreement, Design Professional’s guarantees and warranties in Section 9 “Standard 
of Performance” of this Agreement shall not extend to such use of the maps, models, 
designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, 
files or other documents. 


All Final Work Product developed by Design Professional in the course of providing 
the Services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of Agency and 
may be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by Agency without the permission of the 
Design Professional.  Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, 
Design Professional shall turn over to Agency all such Final Work Product if paid for by 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 4 -  


 


the Agency.  This provision specifically excludes Design Professional’s work notes and 
drafts, which are owned by Design Professional, not Agency.  


SECTION 7. DESIGN PROFESSIONAL'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 


(a) Design Professional shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Design Professional’s performance of the Services.  Design 
Professional shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, 
canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, 
expenditures and disbursements charged to Agency pursuant to this Agreement.  Any 
and all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to 
permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by Design Professional pursuant 
to this Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained for three 
(3) years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent required by laws 
relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 


(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 
section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during 
regular business hours, upon request by Agency or its designated representative.  Copies 
of such documents or records shall be provided directly to the Agency for inspection, audit 
and copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually 
agreed upon, such documents and records shall be made available at Design 
Professional’s address indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 


(c) Where Agency has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 
required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to 
dissolution or termination of Design Professional’s business, Agency may, by written 
request, require that custody of such documents or records be given to the City.  Access 
to such documents and records shall be granted to Agency, as well as to its 
successors-in-interest and authorized representatives. 


SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 


(a) Design Professional is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent 
contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of Agency.  Design Professional shall 
have no authority to bind Agency in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or 
liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract or otherwise, unless 
such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly 
conferred in writing by Agency. 


(b) The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Design Professional shall at all times be under Design Professional’s exclusive direction 
and control.  Neither Agency, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, 
employees or agents of Agency, shall have control over the conduct of Design 
Professional or any of Design Professional’s officers, employees, or agents except as set 
forth in this Agreement.  Design Professional shall not at any time or in any manner 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 5 -  


 


represent that Design Professional or any of Design Professional’s officers, employees, 
or agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of Agency. 


(c) Neither Design Professional, nor any of Design Professional’s officers, 
employees or agents, shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other 
benefits which may otherwise accrue to Agency’s employees.  Design Professional 
expressly waives any claim Design Professional may have to any such rights. 


SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 


Design Professional represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, 
experience and facilities necessary to properly perform the Services required under this 
Agreement in a thorough, competent and professional manner.  Design Professional shall 
at all times faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, 
perform all Services.  In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Design 
Professional shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices 
utilized by persons engaged in providing services similar to the Services required of 
Design Professional under this Agreement, and shall use such skill, prudence, and 
diligence as other members of Design Professional’s profession commonly possess and 
exercise.  In addition to the general standards of performance set forth this section, 
additional specific standards of performance and performance criteria may be set forth in 
Exhibit “A” “Scope of Work” that shall also be applicable to Design Professionals work 
under this Agreement.  Where there is a conflict between a general and a specific 
standard of performance or performance criteria, the specific standard or criteria shall 
prevail over the general. 


SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES. 


Design Professional shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect 
during the term of this Agreement.  Design Professional shall obtain any and all licenses, 
permits and authorizations necessary to perform the Services set forth in this Agreement.  
Neither Agency, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or 
agents of Agency, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of Design 
Professional to comply with this section. 


SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS. 


It is the understanding of Agency and Design Professional that California prevailing 
wage laws do not apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any 
of the following services subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor 
Code or regulations promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, 
installation, or repair work performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done 
under contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds.  In this context, 
“construction" includes work performed during the design and preconstruction phases of 
construction including, but not limited to, inspection and land surveying work. 


SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 6 -  


 


Design Professional shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the 
basis of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, 
medical condition or marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this 
Agreement. 


SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 


Design Professional hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the 
provisions of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as 
amended, and in connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined 
therein.  Should Design Professional so employ such unauthorized aliens for the 
performance of the Services and should the any liability or sanctions be imposed against 
Agency for such use of unauthorized aliens, Design Professional hereby agrees to and 
shall reimburse Agency for the cost of all such liabilities or sanctions imposed, together 
with any and all costs, including attorneys' fees, incurred by Agency. 


SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 


(a) Design Professional covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of 
its firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any 
manner with the interests of Agency or which would in any way hinder Design 
Professional’s performance of the Services.  Design Professional further covenants that 
in the performance of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be 
employed by it as an officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written 
consent of the City Manager/General Manager. Design Professional agrees to at all times 
avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests 
Agency in the performance of this Agreement. 


(b) City understands and acknowledges that Design Professional is, as of the 
date of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-
related services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Design 
Professional is unaware of any stated position of City relative to such projects.  Any future 
position of Agency on such projects shall not be considered a conflict of interest for 
purposes of this section. 


(c) Agency understands and acknowledges that Design Professional will, 
perform non-related services for other governmental agencies and private parties 
following the completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service 
shall not be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 


(a) All information gained or work product produced by Design Professional in 
performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information 
is in the public domain or already known to Design Professional.  Design Professional 
shall not release or disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities 
other than Agency without prior written authorization from the City Manager/General 
Manager, except as may be required by law. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 7 -  


 


(b) Design Professional, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall 
not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager/General Manager or unless 
requested by the City Attorney of Agency, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of 
support, testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories or other information 
concerning the work performed under this Agreement.  Response to a subpoena or court 
order shall not be considered "voluntary" provided Design Professional gives Agency 
notice of such court order or subpoena.  


(c) If Design Professional, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 
Design Professional, provides any information or work product in violation of this 
Agreement, then Agency shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from 
Design Professional for any damages, costs and fees, including attorney's fees, caused 
by or incurred as a result of Design Professional’s conduct. 


(d) Design Professional shall promptly notify Agency should Design 
Professional, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors be served with any 
summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, 
interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery request, court order or 
subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement and the work performed thereunder.  
Agency retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Design Professional or be 
present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding.  Design Professional agrees to 
cooperate fully with Agency and to provide Agency with the opportunity to review any 
response to discovery requests provided by Design Professional.  However, this right to 
review any such response does not imply or mean the right by Agency to control, direct, 
or rewrite said response. Design Professional shall not be held criminally or civilly liable 
under any Federal or State trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that is 
made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local government official or to an attorney 
solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law or made 
in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is 
made under seal.  


SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 


(a) Indemnification by Design Professional.  Where the services to be provided 
by Design Professional under this Agreement are design professional services, as that 
term is defined under Civil Code Section 2782.8, Design Professional agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless the Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from any 
and costs or liability, including attorneys’ fees and costs, that actually or allegedly arise 
out of, or relate to, the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Design 
Professional and its agents in the performance of services under this contract. This 
indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for bodily injury, property damage or 
other loss, arising from the sole negligence, active negligence or willful misconduct by the 
Agency, its officers, official employees, and volunteers. Design Professional’s obligations 
to reimburse the Agency for attorneys’ fees and costs shall not exceed its proportionate 
percentage of fault. 


(b) As respects all acts or omissions which do not arise directly out of the 
performance of design professional services, including but not limited to those acts or 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 8 -  


 


omissions normally covered by general and automobile liability insurance, Design 
Professional agrees to indemnity, defend and hold harmless the Agency, its officers 
officials, employees and volunteers for an against any claim, demands, losses, liability of 
any kind or nature arising out of or in connection with the Design Professional's 
performance or failure to perform under the terms of this contract, excepting those which 
arise out of the active negligence, sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Agency, its 
officers, officials, employees and volunteers. 


(c) Indemnification from Sub-consultants. Design Professional agrees to obtain 
executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth here in this 
section from each and every sub-consultant, sub-contractor or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of Design Professional in the performance of this 
Agreement naming the Indemnified Parties as additional indemnitees.  In the event 
Design Professional fails to obtain such indemnity obligations from others as required 
here, Design Professional agrees to be fully responsible according to the terms of this 
section.  Failure of Agency to monitor compliance with these requirements imposes no 
additional obligations on Agency and will in no way act as a waiver of any rights 
hereunder.  This obligation to indemnify and defend Agency as set forth herein is binding 
on the successors, assigns or heirs of Design Professional and shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement or this section. 


(d) Agency's Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to Claims 
occurring as a result of Agency’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not 
release Agency from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissions of 
Agency or any and all of its officials, employees and agents.  


SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 


Design Professional agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during 
the term of this Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit “C” “Insurance” and 
made a part of this Agreement.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by 
Agency as to form and content.  These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver 
if so approved in writing by the City Manager/General Manager.  Design Professional 
agrees to provide Agency with copies of required policies upon request. 


SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 


The expertise and experience of Design Professional are material considerations 
for this Agreement.  Agency has an interest in the qualifications and capability of the 
persons and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Design 
Professional under this Agreement.  In recognition of that interest, Design Professional 
shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the 
performance of any of Design Professional’s duties or obligations under this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of the Agency.  Any attempted assignment shall be 
ineffective, null and void, and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling 
Agency to any and all remedies at law or in equity, including termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 20 “Termination of Agreement.”  Agency acknowledges, however, 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 9 -  


 


that Design Professional, in the performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, 
may utilize subcontractors. 


SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 


Design Professional shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability 
and continuity of Design Professional’s staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to 
perform the Services.  Design Professional shall notify Agency of any changes in Design 
Professional’s staff and subcontractors, if any, assigned to perform the Services prior to 
and during any such performance. 


SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 


(a) Agency may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time 
by giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Design Professional.  In the event 
such notice is given, Design Professional shall cease immediately all work in progress. 


(b) Design Professional may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time 
upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Agency. 


(c) If either Design Professional or Agency fails to perform any material 
obligation under this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Design 
Professional, or Agency may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice. 


(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Design Professional or 
Agency, all property belonging exclusively to Agency which is in Design Professional’s 
possession shall be returned to Agency.  Design Professional shall furnish to Agency a 
final invoice for work performed and expenses incurred by Design Professional, prepared 
as set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement.  This final invoice shall be reviewed and paid 
in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 “Compensation and Method of Payment” of 
this Agreement. 


SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 


In the event that Design Professional is in default under the terms of this 
Agreement, the Agency shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating 
Design Professional for any work performed after the date of default.  Instead, the Agency 
may give notice to Design Professional of the default and the reasons for the default.  The 
notice shall include the timeframe in which Design Professional may cure the default.  
This timeframe is presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not 
reduced, if circumstances warrant.  During the period of time that Design Professional is 
in default, the Agency shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed 
with payment on the invoices.  In the alternative, the Agency may, in its sole discretion, 
elect to pay some or all of the outstanding invoices during the period of default.  If Design 
Professional does not cure the default, the Agency may take necessary steps to terminate 
this Agreement under Section 20.  Any failure on the part of the Agency to give notice of 
the Design Professional’s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the Agency’s 
legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 10 -  


 


SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 


Design Professional shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, 
if any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the 
control of Design Professional.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, 
acts of the public enemy, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of Agency, court 
orders, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The 
term and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such 
causes. 


SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY AGENCY. 


All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and 
available to Agency as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the 
Services shall be furnished to Design Professional in every reasonable way to facilitate, 
without undue delay, the Services to be performed under this Agreement. 


SECTION 24. NOTICES. 


All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage 
prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 


 


To Agency:    City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager/General Manager  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 


  Wildomar, CA 92595 


To Design Professional:     Mark Thomas 
Attn: Darin Johnson, PE 
10630 Town Center Dr. 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91703 


 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted 


by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the 
United States Postal Service. 


SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 


Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent 
and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she 
purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including necessary 
expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement. 


SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 11 -  


 


This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager/General 
Manager or his or her designated representative.  The City Manager/General Manager 
shall have the authority to issue interpretations and to make amendments to this 
Agreement, including amendments that commit additional funds, consistent with Section 
28 “Amendment” and the City Manager’s/General Manager’s contracting authority under 
the Wildomar Municipal Code.  


SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT. 


This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 


SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. 


No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and approved by the Design Professional and by the Agency.  The City Manager/ 
General Manager shall have the authority to approve any amendment to this Agreement 
if the total compensation under this Agreement, as amended, would not exceed the City 
Manager/General Manager’s contracting authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code.  
The Agency’s City Manager/General Manager may, but is not required to, make minor 
amendments not affecting substantive terms without further authorization from the 
Agency. The Agency hereby authorizes the City Manager/General Manager to execute 
any such amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce 
Agency’s rights under this Agreement.  


SECTION 29. WAIVER 


Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  Waiver 
by any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
provision of this Agreement.  Acceptance by Agency of any work or services by Design 
Professional shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN, VENUE. 


This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the 
laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the Parties, venue in 
state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Riverside, California.  In the event 
of litigation in a U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of 
California, in Riverside. 


SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 


In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any 
provision of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation or other proceeding 
shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in 
addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 12 -  


 


SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 


This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between Design Professional and Agency prior to the execution 
of this Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or 
written, made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.   


SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY. 


If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by 
any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and the Agreement shall be 
read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 


SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS. 


Except as otherwise stated herein, if the terms of this Agreement conflict with the 
terms of any Exhibit hereto, or with the terms of any document incorporated by reference 
into this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control.    


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
date and year first-above written. 


AGENCY: 


_____________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager/General Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 
Janet Morales 
City Clerk 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


_______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  - 13 -  


 


MARK THOMAS 


By:   By:   
 _________________________________   
 Its: ______________________________ Its:  ________________________ 


NOTE: DESIGN PROFESSIONAL’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY 
NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE 
INCLUDED AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS 
APPLICABLE TO DESIGN PROFESSIONAL’S BUSINESS ENTITY. 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1    


 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the basis 
of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on 
the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


 __________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1    


 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF  


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the basis 
of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on 
the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


 __________________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 


 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 A-1 


EXHIBIT "A" 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 







 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


1 


Project Scope 


  


TASK DESCRIPTION DELIVERABLES 
TASK 1.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Task 1.1 Project Management 
Includes planning, organization, and monitoring of project work activities and resources in 
accordance with contracted scope, schedule and budget. Also includes preparation of 
contract paperwork, memos, letters and e-mails, making phone calls, maintaining project 
files, and managing sub-consultants. 


 Project Management 


 6 PDT/Kickoff 
Meetings, 
Agendas/Minutes. 
 


Task 1.2 Meetings 
Includes up to one (1) kickoff meeting and five (5) PDT meetings.  Also includes the 
preparation of agendas and meeting minutes.  


Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1) Assumes a total duration of project management of up to twelve (12) months from issuance of NTP. 
TASK 2.0 SURVEY 
Task 2.1 Site Control 
Includes establishing a site-wide network of horizontal/vertical control to serve as the 
basis for any subsequent boundary, topographic, or construction staking surveys that may 
be required throughout the course of the project. Mark Thomas will establish Project 
control based upon the California State Plane Coordinate system NAD83 and vertically 
based on NAVD 88 unless directed otherwise.   Mark Thomas will prepare a Project 
Control Report summarizing the points held, benchmarks, and vertical/horizontal datums. 


 Project Control Report 


 3D- Photographic Log 
 Compiled Record 


Maps, As-Builts, and 
Right of Way Research 


 Existing R/W Base 
Maps 


 Corner Records (up to 
2) 


 Topographic Base Map 
/ DTM 


 


Task 2.2 Existing Right of Way Mapping 
A diligent search will be conducted to locate record monuments within the project area. 
Found monuments will be located using a Total Station or GPS and included in the Land 
Net.  Mark Thomas assumes monuments or reference marks thereto shown on various 
maps will be available to retrace the right-of-way and parcel lines without convoluted 
surveys outside the project limits. It is assumed reference marks set off the roadway will 
be located and no direct ties to monuments within streets will be necessary.  No traffic 
control or permits are included in this task. 
 
Mark Thomas will establish street centerlines and existing rights of way based upon found 
survey data and available County Surveyor records for Palomar Street, Gruwell Street, 
Wildomar Trail, and Elm Street along the Project limits.  Upon completion of all mapping, 
Mark Thomas will develop an Existing R/W Base Map depicting all results in AutoCAD 
format and file Corner Records as necessary with the County of Riverside. 
Task 2.3 Topographic Survey 
Mark Thomas will perform a field topographic survey to document existing site 
topography and planimetrics along Palomar Street, Gruwell Street, Wildomar Trail and 
Elm Street, and within the cemetery. Topographic survey will extend to parking lot curbs 
at existing improvements and up to 100 feet into vacant land. Substantial visible 
improvements will be located within the street right of way, including utilities, manholes, 
valve covers, utility vaults and covers, signposts, signs, trees, utility poles, traffic signal 
poles, cross gutters, local depressions, catch basins, driveway openings, sidewalks,   



http://www.novapdf.com





 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


2 


 


 


 


 


TASK 2.0 SURVEY (CONTINUED) 
corner access ramps, fire hydrants, parkway drains, etc.  Visible indications of surface 
utilities lying within the project limits will be located, as will accurate lid/rim elevations for 
drainage structures present.  Street cross sections will be taken at 25-foot intervals.   
Additionally,  Mark Thomas will generate a photograph log using a 3-D camera 
establishing pre-design photographs at critical areas. 


 


Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1) Assumes a total duration of project management of up to twelve (12) months from issuance of NTP. 
2) Traffic Control and Permits were not included in this task. 
3) A Record of Survey per the PLS Act 8762 (Business & Professions Code §§ 8700 – 8805) Section 8762 is not required.  


Corner Records should suffice to meet the requirements of Section 8762. 
4) Preliminary Title Reports were not included within this scope of services. 
TASK 3.0 UTILITIES 
Task 3.1 Initial Research 
Mark Thomas will distribute Utility “A” Letters (record request forms) to each utility to 
request as-built mapping of their facilities as previously discussed in the project approach. 


 Compiled Utility 
Record Maps & As-
Builts 


 Utility Base Mapping 
and Sheets 


 Utility Conflict Sheets 
 A, B & C Letters  
 Electric and Landscape 


Water Meter 
Applications/ 
Coordination 
  


Task 3.2 Utility Base Maps 
Mark Thomas will utilize as-built data and utility maps obtained by the utility companies to 
prepare existing utility base mapping and identify all utilities on the plans that are within 
the project limits. The utility mapping developed for the PS&E will be verified through 
topographic surveys and a site walk.  
Task 3.3 Utility Coordination 
Mark Thomas will assist the City with Utility Conflict Mapping, including the typical “ABC” 
process of utility letters, which includes: 


1) Utility “A” Letter: The Utility “A” Letters (record request forms) per Task 3.1 
above. 


2) Utility “B” Letter: Conflict Maps showing the utility mapping and the proposed 
improvements will be sent to the utility companies for verification.  Additionally, 
relocation claim letters will be sent with this request asking utility owners to 
verify liability of costs for relocation. 


3) Utility “C” Letter: Final plans, along with a letter, will be sent to the utility 
companies showing the existing utilities and the final design.  Mark Thomas will 
review and approve compatibility with the project for relocation plans, cost 
estimates, and schedules prepared by utility owners. 


Prior to issuing “B” letters, Mark Thomas will provide a preliminary analysis of liability of 
costs determination based upon available County Surveyor Records. 
Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1) Assumes up to $300 in fees associated with obtaining record maps, plans, as-builts and other pertinent information. 
2) Fees to process applications for services lines were not included within this scope of services.  



http://www.novapdf.com





 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


3 


  


TASK 4.0 CONCEPT DESIGN 
Task 4.1 Develop Preliminary Concepts 
Mark Thomas will initially meet with City staff and present preliminary concepts for 
roadway geometrics and project wide aesthetics.  Inspiration Boards will be developed 
based upon initial meeting with City Staff illustrating sample aesthetic features, 
elevations, typical sections, , and geometric design sections for refinement and approval.  
Based upon the review and recommendations from City Staff, Mark Thomas will develop 
up to two (2) Geometric, Preliminary Wall/Gate, and Aesthetic Concept Sections and one 
(1) alignment for all Palomar Street improvements/ aesthetics and the Wildomar 
Cemetery wall and gate improvements.  These concepts will be presented to City Staff 
for final review and approvals. 


 Inspiration Boards (up 
to 2) 


 Geometric Concept 
Drawing 


 Geometric Concept 
Sections (Up to 2) 


 Preliminary Wall/Gate 
Concepts (up to 2) 


 Palomar Street 
Aesthetic Concepts 
(up to 2) 


 Planning City Council 
Presentation 


 Preliminary Concept 
Cost Estimates 


 Design Decision Log 
 


Task 4.2 Council Meeting 
Based upon input from City Staff in Task 4.1, Mark Thomas will finalize Geometric, 
Preliminary Wall/Gate, and Aesthetic Concepts for the preferred alternative and develop 
a power point presentation with concept boards to present to the City Council for final 
approvals/input.  Mark Thomas will support the City on staff reports/presentation 
preparation for the meeting. 
Task 4.3 Design Standards Documentation/Support 
City Staff will seek the use of AASHTO/FHWA guidelines in lieu of Riverside County 
design standards/guidelines via City Council Approval.  Mark Thomas will provide a Design 
Decision Log assisting the City on establishing new design speeds and lane widths based 
on AASHTO and FHWA guidelines where necessary to justify non-County standard 
design features. 
Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1) Mark Thomas will prepare up to two (2) Geometric, Preliminary Wall/Gate and Palomar Street Aesthetic Concepts in 


section format for initial review/approval.  Upon receiving concurrence from the City staff on a preferred section, Mark 
Thomas will finalize sections, develop a proposed roadway alignment, and finalize preliminary 


2) Palomar Street Aesthetic Concepts will be developed for the Wildomar Cemetery Frontage and aesthetics of all other 
portions of Palomar Street will be done using the Geometric Concept Sections. 


3) Mark Thomas has only included 1 City Council Meeting within this scope of work. 
TASK 5.0 STUDIES 
Task 5.1 Water Quality Management Plan 
Mark Thomas will generate a Water Quality Management Memorandum that outlines 
project specific BMPs, project tributaries and TMDL sensitivity, and City maintenance 
responsibilities per RCFC & WCD and State Water Resource Control Board 
requirements. 


 Water Quality 
Management 
Memorandum 


Assumptions/Clarifications: 
1)  Although a Project Specific WQMP isn’t necessary for a Category 3 Roadway Widening Project, it is assumed Mark 


Thomas will generate a Project Specific WQMP equivalent document utilizing the County Roadway Project Guidance to 
show proof of NDPES/RCFC & WCD/SWRCB compliance.  Mark Thomas will identify BMPs at 60% design submittal and 
submit the WQMP at 90%, and Final Design submittals. 



http://www.novapdf.com





 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


4 


  


TASK 6.0 RIGHT OF WAY 
Task 5.1 Right of Way Requirements Maps 
Mark Thomas will generate a Right of Way Requirements Map outlining impacted 
properties, required property interests (including dimensions, areas and interest types), 
and project improvements. 


 R/W Requirements 
Maps 


Assumptions/Clarifications:  
1) Right of Way Requirements Maps will be submitted with 90% and Final Submittals. 


TASK 7.0 PS&Es 
Task 7.1 Roadway Improvement Plans 
Mark Thomas will develop Title Sheet, Detail Sheets, Typical Sections, Cross Section 
Sheets (50-foot intervals and critical stations), Roadway Layout/Profile, Landscape Plans, 
Signing and Striping, Signal Modifications (Gruwell/Wildomar Trail intersections), Erosion 
Control plans (1” = 20’ scale for plans, 1” = 5’/10’ scale on driveway/curb ramp 
improvements and details) for all Project improvements along Palomar Street, Gruwell 
Street, Elm Street, and Wildomar Trail. 


 Final Roadway 
Improvement Plans  


 Final Cemetery 
Improvement Plans 


 Final Perimeter Wall & 
Gate Improvement 
Plans 


 Notice of Inviting Bid 
Package / 
Specifications 


 Engineer’s Estimate of 
Probable Cost 


Task 7.2 Cemetery Improvement Plans 
Mark Thomas will develop Title Sheet, Detail Sheets, Site Improvement Plans, Grading 
Plans, and Work Area Plans for ADA improvements within Wildomar Cemetery limits. 
Task 7.3 Perimeter Wall/Gate Plans 
Mark Thomas will develop Title Sheet, Detail Sheets, Site Plan, Wall Improvement Plans, 
and Landscape/Irrigation Plans for improvements for Perimeter Wall and Gate 
improvements along Wildomar Cemetery Palomar Street/Gruwell Street frontage.  Mark 
Thomas will develop concept automated gate plans and a design performance 
specification for the Contractor to field engineering the gate plans. 
Task 7.4 Project Specifications 
Mark Thomas will generate the Notice of Inviting Bid Documentation, General, Provisions, 
and Technical Specifications for all Project improvements using City boilerplate standards 
and the Greenbook latest edition.  It is assumed the City has a standardized Notice of 
Bids and supplemental documentation, and General Provisions “Boilerplate” templates to 
use. 
Task 7.5 Project Estimate 
Mark Thomas will prepare an itemized engineer’s estimate at each submittal. A bid item 
list will be included, with appropriate SSP referenced adjacent to the contract item. The 
unit costs shall be determined by reviewing similar recent project bid summaries, the 
California Highway Construction Cost Index information, and the Caltrans Engineering 
Service Center site. Prices will be adjusted using engineering judgment that reflects the 
location of the project and the quantity of each item and current escalation trends 
analysis based upon a six-month projected forecast from the date of the final estimate. 



http://www.novapdf.com





 WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING 


City of Wildomar, CA 
 


 


5 


 


 


TASK 7.0 PS&Es (CONTINUED) 
Assumptions/Clarifications:  


1) It is assumed Landscape and Irrigation Plans will only be necessary for Cemetery frontage, all other areas are not 
included as its assumed these will be built by developers in the future. 


2) Improvement Plans and Project Estimate for Tasks 7.1, 7.2, 7.3, & 7.5 will be submitted at 60%, 90% and Final 
submittals. 


3) Signal Pole locations will be provided at 60% design submittal, Traffic Signal Plans will be submitted at 90% and Final 
submittals. 


4) Project Specifications for Task 7.4 will be submitted at 90% and Final submittals. 
5) It is assumed one this project will be bid as one (1) bid package and Improvement Plans will be combined into one (1) 


plan set with one (1) Project Specifications and Estimate.  
6) Pavement and base sections will be based upon County Standard Classifications. 


TASK 8.0 BIDDING & CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 
Task 8.1 Construction Bidding Phase 
Mark Thomas and subconsultants will provide assistance, as required, to the City during 
bidding of the project. The work may include answering questions from prospective 
bidders, assisting the City in the preparation of addenda to the PS&E during the 
advertisement period, and providing consultation and interpretation of the construction 
documents. 


 Support to Bid 
Addenda (up to 1) 


 Response to RFIs (up 
to 8) 


 Review of Shop 
Drawings (up to 8) 


 Attendance of Pre-Bid, 
Pre-Construction, and 
Construction Meetings 
(up to 3) 


 Final As-Built Drawings 
 


Task 8.2 Construction Phase 
Mark Thomas will assist the City during the construction of the project by addressing and 


respond to RFI’s, reviewing shop drawing submittals, preparation of supplemental 
sketches and details as required to resolve field construction items, and attendance of as 


necessary pre-bid/pre-construction/construction meetings. 
Task 8.3 Project Closeout 
Mark Thomas will prepare record drawings from contractor and construction as-built 
drawings, markups, and field notes as provided by the City’s Construction Manager and 
Inspector. 
Assumptions/Clarifications:  


1) This will be bid and constructed as one (1) project. 
2) It is assumed the City/Contractor will provide clear redlines/mark-ups for Mark 


Thomas to use in preparation of Final As-Built Drawings. 



http://www.novapdf.com





 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 B-1 


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION 


 







En
gi


ne
er


in
g 


M
an


ag
er


Jo
sh


ua
 C


os
pe


r
Sr


. P
ro


je
ct


 M
an


ag
er


Ro
be


rt
 V


as
qu


ez
Pr


oj
ec


t E
ng


in
ee


r


De
si


gn
 E


ng
in


ee
r I


In
te


rn


Sr
. S


ur
ve


y 
M


an
ag


er


Pr
oj


ec
t S


ur
ve


yo
r


LA
U


D 
Di


vi
si


on
 M


an
ag


er


M
ar


ty
 A


rm
st


ro
ng


LA
U


D 
Pr


oj
ec


t M
an


ag
er


La
nd


sc
ap


e 
De


si
gn


er


Pr
oj


ec
t A


cc
ou


nt
an


t


Pr
oj


ec
t C


oo
rd


in
at


or


FE
HR


 &
 P


EE
RS


G
RO


U
P 


DE
LT


A


CL
 S


U
RV


EY
IN


G


$355 $255 $165 $110 $65 $260 $170 $250 $200 $120 $120 $110 Non-DBE Non-DBE DBE


1.0 Project Management
1.1 Project Management 2 24 10 30 66 $15,330 $3,000 -                  -                  $18,330
1.2 Meetings (Kickoff, PDT, Stakeholder) (6) 2 12 24 16 54 $10,930 -                  -                  -                  $10,930


Subtotal Phase 1 4 36 24 0 0 0 0 10 46 0 0 0 120 $26,260 $3,000 $0 $0 $29,260


2.0 Survey
2.1 Site Control 2 8 10 $1,390 -                  -                  $4,000.00 $5,390
2.2 Existing Right of Way Land Net 8 8 $880 -                  -                  $7,000.00 $7,880
2.3 Topographic Survey 8 8 $880 -                  -                  $13,000.00 $13,880


Subtotal Phase 2 0 2 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 $3,150 $0 $0 $24,000 $27,150


3.0 Utilities
3.1 Initial Research 2 4 8 14 $1,690 -                  -                  -                  $1,690
3.2 Utilities Base Mapping 8 40 48 $5,720 -                  -                  -                  $5,720
3.3 Utility Cooridnation 4 40 44 $5,060 -                  -                  -                  $5,060


Subtotal Phase 3 0 2 16 80 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 106 $12,470 $0 $0 $0 $12,470


4.0 Concept Design / Evaluation
4.1 Develop Preliminary Concepts 8 20 64 16 2 12 60 6 192 $25,220 -                  -                  -                  $25,220
4.2 City Council Presentations 4 2 16 12 6 40 $6,170 -                  -                  -                  $6,170
4.3 Design Standard Documentation/Support 4 16 40 6 66 $8,720 -                  -                  -                  $8,720


Subtotal Phase 4 0 16 38 120 16 0 0 2 24 60 0 18 298 $40,110 $0 $0 $0 $40,110


5.0 Studies
5.1 Water Quality Management Memorandum 2 16 32 50 $6,670 -                  -                  -                  $6,670


Subtotal Phase 5 0 2 16 32 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50 $6,670 $0 $0 $0 $6,670


6.0 Right of Way
6.1 Right of Way Requirements Maps 2 24 34 $4,090 -                  -                  -                  $4,090


Subtotal Phase 6 0 0 2 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34 $4,090 $0 $0 $0 $4,090


7.0 PS&Es
7.1 Roadway Improvement Plans 24 40 260 324 $41,320 $30,000 -                  -                  $71,320
7.2 Cemetery Improvement Plans 8 24 40 20 92 $11,700 -                  -                  -                  $11,700
7.3 Perimeter Wall/Gate Plans 2 8 28 40 2 40 120 240 $30,410 -                  -                  -                  $30,410
7.4 Project Specifications 8 24 2 12 46 $8,900 -                  -                  -                  $8,900
7.5 Project Estimate 2 16 24 2 12 18 74 $10,850 -                  -                  -                  $10,850


Subtotal Phase 7 0 44 112 352 60 0 0 6 64 120 18 0 776 $103,180 $30,000 $0 $0 $133,180


8.0 Bidding & Construction Support
8.1 Construction Bidding Phase 2 8 2 8 20 $3,930 $3,000 -                  -                  $6,930
8.2 Construction Phase 4 12 2 10 28 $5,500 -                  -                  -                  $5,500
8.3 Project Closeout 2 4 24 2 10 42 $6,310 -                  -                  -                  $6,310


Subtotal Phase 8 0 8 24 24 0 0 0 6 28 0 0 0 90 $15,740 $3,000 $0 $0 $18,740


TOTAL HOURS 4 110 232 656 84 0 0 24 162 180 18 18 1500


OTHER DIRECT COSTS $800 $0 $0 $0 $800


TOTAL COST $1,420 $28,050 $38,280 $72,160 $5,460 $0 $0 $6,000 $32,400 $21,600 $2,160 $1,980 $212,470 $36,000 $0 $24,000 $272,470


Total MT 
Cost


WILDOMAR CEMETERY PERIMETER WALL, FENCING AND ADA IMPROVEMENTS AND PALOMAR STREET WIDENING
Subconsultants


TOTAL COST
Total 
Hours


3/11/2021



http://www.novapdf.com





 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 C-1 


EXHIBIT "C" 
INSURANCE 


 
 A. Insurance Requirements.  Design Professional shall provide and maintain 
insurance, acceptable to the City, in full force and effect throughout the term of this 
Agreement, against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise 
from or in connection with the performance of the Services by Design Professional, its 
agents, representatives or employees.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a 
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII.  Design Professional shall provide the 
following scope and limits of insurance: 
 
  1. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Design Professional shall maintain 
professional liability insurance appropriate to the Design Professional’s profession.  This 
coverage may be written on a “claims made” basis, and must include coverage for 
contractual liability.  The professional liability insurance required by this Agreement must 
be endorsed to be applicable to claims based upon, arising out of or related to Services 
performed under this Agreement.  The insurance must be maintained for at least three 
(3) consecutive years following the completion of Design Professional’s services or the 
termination of this Agreement.  During this additional three (3) year period, Design 
Professional shall annually and upon request of the City submit written evidence of this 
continuous coverage. 
 
  2. Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Design Professional shall maintain 
limits of professional liability insurance no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
 B. Other Provisions.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall 
be endorsed and state the coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by the 
insurer or either Party to this Agreement, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 30 
days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to 
City. 
 
 C. Other Requirements.  Design Professional agrees to deposit with City, at or 
before the effective date of this contract, certificates of insurance necessary to satisfy City 
that the insurance provisions of this contract have been complied with.  The City Attorney 
may require that Design Professional furnish City with copies of original endorsements 
effecting coverage required by this Section.  The certificates and endorsements are to be 
signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  City reserves 
the right to inspect complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any 
time. 
 
  1. Design Professional shall furnish certificates and endorsements from 
each subcontractor identical to those Design Professional provides. 
 
  2. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 
approved by City.  At the option of City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such 







 


RIV #4820-9517-9355 v1  


 C-2 


deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City or its respective elected or 
appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers or the Design Professional shall 
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, defense expenses and claims. 
 
  3. The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall 
not be construed to limit Design Professional’s liability hereunder nor to fulfill the 
indemnification provisions and requirements of this Agreement. 
 
 





		04-14-2021 Agenda

		1.2 Minutes 02-10-2021

		1.3 Warrant Reg March 2021

		Meeting Date: April 14, 2021



		1.3 Warrant Reg March 2021 Voucher Listings

		030421 fy 21

		031121 fy 21

		031721 fy 21

		032521 fy 21



		1.4 Treasurers Report February 2021

		1.4 Treasurers Report February 2021 Detail

		T FEB 2021



		1.5 SR and Reso CalRecycle Authorization

		Meeting Date: April 14, 2021

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _______





		1.6 SR and Attach. A - Clinton Keith ROW Services Agmt

		1.6 CKR rw Attachments (combined)

		2a. Attachment B (cover)

		2b. Attach B - IW ROW Proposal



		1.7 SR and Reso Guardrail Project NOC

		Meeting Date: April 14, 2021

		RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - _______





		1.7 A. Recorder Guardrail Project NOC

		Government Code §6103

		RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

		CITY OF WILDOMAR    

		NOTICE OF COMPLETION

		Civil Code 3093



		1.8 SR - Final Map, SIA, Lien Agmt (TR 37941)

		1.8 Baxter Attachments Combined

		Att A Site Plan

		Attachment B

		Att B PM 37941 Second Submittal 2021-03-18

		133555-PM37941-001-SHEET 1

		133555-PM37941-002 version 2-Sheet 2

		133555-PM37941-003-SHEET 3

		133555-PM37941-004-SHEET 4



		Attachment c

		Att C Baxter SIA and LIEN MOB 2nd submittal 21-04-05

		1. Effectiveness.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:

		1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the amounts required by this Agreement;

		1.2 Final Map and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City (“City Council”) approves the final map for Parcel Map No. 37941 and this Agreement;

		1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and

		1.4 Record Final Map.  Developer records the final map for Parcel Map No. 37941 in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.



		2. Public Improvements.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Imp...

		2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where construction of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, Developer agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in accordance ...

		2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful constr...

		2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or he...

		2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, a...

		2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized...

		2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public I...

		2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been s...



		3. Maintenance Of Public Improvements And Landscaping.  City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City ...

		4. Construction Schedule.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the final map for Parce...

		4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agree...

		4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or...



		5. Grading.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel Map No. 37941 shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, ...

		6. Utilities.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel Map  No. 37941 in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws...

		7. Fees And Charges.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspec...

		8. City Inspection Of Public Improvements.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by C...

		9. Administrative Costs.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its ...

		10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are complete, whic...

		10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in ...

		10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel Map No. 37941 was approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approv...

		10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engin...



		11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping...

		12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, Developer shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security acceptable to the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.

		12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 ...

		12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Devel...

		12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepte...

		12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall pro...

		12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satis...

		12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided on the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City Engineer and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of ...



		12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal C...

		12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrum...



		13. Monument Security.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel Map No. 37941 in compliance wi...

		14. Lien.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in fav...

		15. Signs And Advertising.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to D...

		16. Indemnification.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to proper...

		17. Insurance.

		17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below....

		17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain occurrence version general liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $3,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal...

		17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall...

		17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and employers’ liability insurance with limits of not less tha...

		17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, shall be procured and maint...



		17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected...

		17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance shall name City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect to work performed by or on behalf of Developer or its cont...

		17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The Required Insurance shall be primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs covering City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the R...

		17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy sha...

		17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or endorsement which will expire prior to that date.  All policies shall be...

		17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.



		18. Default; Notice; Remedies.

		18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, sta...

		18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all re...

		18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or loc...



		19. General Provisions.

		19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that her or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign..  Each Party hereto agrees ...

		19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

		19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for...

		19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications shall be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties may designate by written notice:

		1.1 Amendment; Modification.  Amendment Modification.   No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Developer and by the City.  The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make m...

		19.5

		19.6 Waiver.  City’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege provided herein, or City’s waiver of any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Developer of any of its oblig...

		19.7 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null a...

		19.8 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authori...

		19.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.

		19.10 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

		19.11 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way ari...

		19.12 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or ar...

		19.13 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree that neither this Agreement, any map related to Tract No. 37941, nor any other related entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to create ...

		19.14 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

		19.15 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities of City and Developer.





		Attachment D

		Att D Baxter SIA and LIEN HOTEL 2nd submittal 21-04-05

		1. Effectiveness.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:

		1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the amounts required by this Agreement;

		1.2 Final Map and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City (“City Council”) approves the final map for Parcel Map No. 37941and this Agreement;

		1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and

		1.4 Record Final Map.  Developer records the final map for Parcel Map No. 37941 in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.



		2. Public Improvements.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Imp...

		2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where construction of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, Developer agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in accordance ...

		2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful constr...

		2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or he...

		2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, a...

		2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized...

		2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public I...

		2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been s...



		3. Maintenance Of Public Improvements And Landscaping.  City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City ...

		4. Construction Schedule.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the final map for Parce...

		4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agree...

		4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or...



		5. Grading.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel Map No. 37941 shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, ...

		6. Utilities.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel Map No. 37941 in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,...

		7. Fees And Charges.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspec...

		8. City Inspection Of Public Improvements.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by C...

		9. Administrative Costs.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its ...

		10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are complete, whic...

		10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in ...

		10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel Map No. 37941 was approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approv...

		10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engin...



		11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping...

		12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, Developer shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security acceptable to the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.

		12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 ...

		12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Devel...

		12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepte...

		12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall pro...

		12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satis...

		12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided on the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City Engineer and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of ...



		12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal C...

		12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrum...



		13. Monument Security.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel Map No. 37941 in compliance wi...

		14. Lien.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in fav...

		15. Signs And Advertising.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to D...

		16. Indemnification.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to proper...

		17. Insurance.

		17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below....

		17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain occurrence version general liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $3,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal...

		17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall...

		17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and employers’ liability insurance with limits of not less tha...

		17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, shall be procured and maint...



		17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected...

		17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance shall name City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect to work performed by or on behalf of Developer or its cont...

		17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The Required Insurance shall be primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs covering City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the R...

		17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy sha...

		17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or endorsement which will expire prior to that date.  All policies shall be...

		17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.



		18. Default; Notice; Remedies.

		18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, sta...

		18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all re...

		18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or loc...



		19. General Provisions.

		19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that her or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign..  Each Party hereto agrees ...

		19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

		19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for...

		19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications shall be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties may designate by written notice:

		1.1 Amendment; Modification.  Amendment Modification.   No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Developer and by the City.  The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make m...

		19.5

		19.6 Waiver.  City’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege provided herein, or City’s waiver of any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Developer of any of its oblig...

		19.7 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null a...

		19.8 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authori...

		19.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.

		19.10 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

		19.11 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way ari...

		19.12 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or ar...

		19.13 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree that neither this Agreement, any map related to Tract No. 36672, nor any other related entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to create ...

		19.14 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

		19.15 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities of City and Developer.







		1.9  SR - PM36492 Map Approval, SIA, Lien Agreements

		1.9  Attachments A, B and C

		Blank Page

		Attachment B - PM36492 Approved Maps.pdf

		Blank Page



		Attachment C - Subdivision Improvement and Lien Agreements.pdf

		1. Effectiveness.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:

		1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the amounts required by this Agreement;

		1.2 ParcelMap and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City (“City Council”) approves the parcelmap for Parcel No. 36492-1 and this Agreement;

		1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and

		1.4 Record ParcelMap.  Developer records the parcel map for Parcel No. 36492-1 in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.



		2. Public Improvements.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Imp...

		2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where construction of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, Developer agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in accordance ...

		2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful constr...

		2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or he...

		2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, a...

		2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized...

		2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public I...

		2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been s...



		3. Maintenance Of Public Improvements And Landscaping.  City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City ...

		4. Construction Schedule.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the parcel map for Parc...

		4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agree...

		4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or...



		5. Grading.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel No. 36492-1 shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, an...

		6. Utilities.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel No. 36492-1 in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, r...

		7. Fees And Charges.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspec...

		8. City Inspection Of Public Improvements.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by C...

		9. Administrative Costs.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its ...

		10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are complete, whic...

		10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in ...

		10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel No. 36492-1 was approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approved...

		10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engin...



		11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping...

		12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, Developer shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security acceptable to the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.

		12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 ...

		12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Devel...

		12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepte...

		12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall pro...

		12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satis...

		12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided on the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City Engineer and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of ...



		12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal C...

		12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrum...



		13. Monument Security.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel No. 36492-1 in compliance with...

		14. Lien.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in fav...

		15. Signs And Advertising.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to D...

		16. Indemnification.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to proper...

		17. INSURANCE.

		17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below....

		17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less th...

		17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall...

		17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Acciden...

		17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance shall be endorsed...

		17.1.5 Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. A...



		17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected...

		17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance (except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect ...

		17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General Liability Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non-contributory with, any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by the City, its elected officials, o...

		17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy sha...

		17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall provid...

		17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required Insurance shall be placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.



		18. Default; Notice; Remedies.

		18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, sta...

		18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all re...

		18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or loc...



		19. General Provisions.

		19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to ...

		19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

		19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for...

		19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications shall be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties may designate by written notice:

		19.5 Amendment; Modification.  No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Developer and by the City.  The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affec...

		19.6 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null a...

		19.7 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authori...

		19.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.

		19.9 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

		19.10 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way ari...

		19.11 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or ar...

		19.12 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree that neither this Agreement, any map related to Parcel No. 36492-1, nor any other related entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to crea...

		19.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

		19.14 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities of City and Developer.



		Untitled.pdf

		Blank Page



		Subdivision Improvement Agreement RE #15-0036 Rancon Medical  Education Center LLC - PM36492-2 3-29-2021.pdf

		1. Effectiveness.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:

		1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the amounts required by this Agreement;

		1.2 Parcel Map and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City (“City Council”) approves the parcelmap for Parcel No. 36492-2 and this Agreement;

		1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and

		1.4 Record ParcelMap.  Developer records the parcel map for Parcel No. 36492-2 in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.



		2. Public Improvements.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Imp...

		2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where construction of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, Developer agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in accordance ...

		2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful constr...

		2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or he...

		2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, a...

		2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized...

		2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public I...

		2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been s...



		3. Maintenance Of Public Improvements And Landscaping.  City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City ...

		4. Construction Schedule.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the parcel map for Parc...

		4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agree...

		4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or...



		5. Grading.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel No. 36492-2 shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, an...

		6. Utilities.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel No. 36492-2 in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, r...

		7. Fees And Charges.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspec...

		8. City Inspection Of Public Improvements.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by C...

		9. Administrative Costs.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its ...

		10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are complete, whic...

		10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in ...

		10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel No. 36492-2 was approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approved...

		10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engin...



		11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping...

		12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, Developer shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security acceptable to the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.

		12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 ...

		12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Devel...

		12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepte...

		12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall pro...

		12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satis...

		12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided on the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City Engineer and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of ...



		12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal C...

		12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrum...



		13. Monument Security.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel No. 36492-2 in compliance with...

		14. Lien.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in fav...

		15. Signs And Advertising.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to D...

		16. Indemnification.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to proper...

		17. INSURANCE.

		17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below....

		17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less th...

		17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall...

		17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Acciden...

		17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance shall be endorsed...

		17.1.5 Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. A...



		17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected...

		17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance (except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect ...

		17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General Liability Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non-contributory with, any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by the City, its elected officials, o...

		17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy sha...

		17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall provid...

		17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required Insurance shall be placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.



		18. Default; Notice; Remedies.

		18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, sta...

		18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all re...

		18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or loc...



		19. General Provisions.

		19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to ...

		19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

		19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for...

		19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications shall be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties may designate by written notice:

		19.5 Amendment; Modification.  No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Developer and by the City.  The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affec...

		19.6 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null a...

		19.7 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authori...

		19.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.

		19.9 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

		19.10 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way ari...

		19.11 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or ar...

		19.12 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree that neither this Agreement, any map related to Parcel No. 36492-2, nor any other related entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to crea...

		19.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

		19.14 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities of City and Developer.





		Subdivision Improvement Agreement RE #15-0036 Rancon Medical  Education Center LLC - PM36492-F 3-29-2021.pdf

		1. Effectiveness.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:

		1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the amounts required by this Agreement;

		1.2 ParcelMap and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City (“City Council”) approves the parcelmap for Parcel No. 36492-F and this Agreement;

		1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and

		1.4 Record ParcelMap.  Developer records the parcel map for Parcel No. 36492-F in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.



		2. Public Improvements.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Imp...

		2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where construction of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, Developer agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in accordance ...

		2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful constr...

		2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or he...

		2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, a...

		2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized...

		2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public I...

		2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been s...



		3. Maintenance Of Public Improvements And Landscaping.  City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City ...

		4. Construction Schedule.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public Improvements within 3 years (36 months) following approval of the parcel map for Parc...

		4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agree...

		4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or...



		5. Grading.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Parcel No. 36492-F shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, an...

		6. Utilities.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Parcel No. 36492-F in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, r...

		7. Fees And Charges.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspec...

		8. City Inspection Of Public Improvements.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by C...

		9. Administrative Costs.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its ...

		10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are complete, whic...

		10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in ...

		10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Parcel No. 36492-F was approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approved...

		10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engin...



		11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping...

		12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, Developer shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security acceptable to the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.

		12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 ...

		12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Devel...

		12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepte...

		12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall pro...

		12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satis...

		12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided on the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City Engineer and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of ...



		12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal C...

		12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrum...



		13. Monument Security.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot corners, and street centerline monuments for Parcel No. 36492-F in compliance with...

		14. Lien.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in fav...

		15. Signs And Advertising.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to D...

		16. Indemnification.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to proper...

		17. INSURANCE.

		17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below....

		17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less th...

		17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall...

		17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Acciden...

		17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance shall be endorsed...

		17.1.5 Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. A...



		17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected...

		17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance (except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect ...

		17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General Liability Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non-contributory with, any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by the City, its elected officials, o...

		17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy sha...

		17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall provid...

		17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required Insurance shall be placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.



		18. Default; Notice; Remedies.

		18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, sta...

		18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all re...

		18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or loc...



		19. General Provisions.

		19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to ...

		19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

		19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for...

		19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications shall be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties may designate by written notice:

		19.5 Amendment; Modification.  No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Developer and by the City.  The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affec...

		19.6 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null a...

		19.7 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authori...

		19.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.

		19.9 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

		19.10 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way ari...

		19.11 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or ar...

		19.12 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree that neither this Agreement, any map related to Parcel No. 36492-F, nor any other related entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to crea...

		19.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

		19.14 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities of City and Developer.









		1.10 City SR Contract Award

		1.10 Agreement with Exhibits

		Design Professional Services Agreement V3

		210311 - Scope - Wildomar - Final

		210311 - Cost Detail - Wildomar - Final



		1.11 SR Reso Tax Default Property 2020

		Meeting Date: April 14, 2021

		SECTION 1. INTEREST TO ACQUIRE.

		SECTION 2. AUTHORITY TO PROCEED.





		1.11 Reso Exhibit B Tax default sample agreement

		2.1 - 2021 MSHCP Fee Update CC Report Packet 4-14-21

		2.1 Attachments

		Attach C - 2020 MSHCP Nexus Study Doc

		Attach C - 2020 MSHCP Nexus Study Doc.pdf

		NexusStudy_Final_23Oct2020.pdf

		Background

		Original and Existing Fee Schedule

		Updated Mitigation Fee Schedules

		Key Drivers of Fee Change

		Organization of Report

		MSHCP Conservation Requirements



		MSHCP Financing Strategy

		MSHCP Implementation Costs and Funding Sources

		Development Mitigation Fees and Calculation

		Mitigation Fee Schedule and Adjustments



		Habitat Protection Accomplishments Through 2019

		Conservation Goals and Progress

		Land Dedications

		Future Conservation Scenario

		Habitat Protection, Land Dedication, and Conservation Scenarios



		Historic Development and HCP Fees

		Growth Projections

		Forecasts for Fee Calculation



		Land Costs

		MSHCP/Original Nexus Study

		RCA Experience to Date

		New Land Value Analysis and Conclusions



		Other Costs—Administration, Management, and Monitoring

		Administration and Professional Service Costs

		Management and Monitoring

		Biological Monitoring

		Reserve Management and Biological Monitoring Costs





		Endowment Funding

		Total Implementation Costs

		MSHCP Forecast of Non-Fee Revenues

		New Forecast of Non-Fee Revenues

		Purpose of Fee

		Use of Fee Revenues

		Relationship

		Need

		Proportionality

		Adoption of Revised LDMF

		Securing Supplemental Funding

		Annual Review

		Surplus Funds

		Annual and Periodic Updates



		Report Appendix I.pdf

		Report Appendix II.pdf





		Attach D - RCA Nexus Study Background Factsheet 3-3-21

		Attach E - MSHCP LDMF FAQ_FINAL



		2.2 Staff Report User Fee Resolutions  Ordinances Final

		Meeting Date:  April 14, 2021



		2.2 A Wildomar User Fee Update Ordinance - Final

		2.2 B Wildomar User Fee Update Resolution - Final

		2.2 C COW Full Proposed Fee Sheet Final

		4-7-2021 COW_Residential_Building_Fees_FY2020-21

		4-7-2021 COW_Elec-Grade-Mech-Misc_Building_Fees_FY2020-21

		4-7-2021 COW_Commercial-Demo_Building_Fees_FY2020-21

		4-7-2021 COW_Planning_Fees_FY2020-21

		4-7-2021 COW_PublicWorks_Permit_Fees_FY2020-21

		3-30-2021 Proposed Public Work Deposit Fee Schedule (2021 Update)

		FY2020-21_Staff Labor Rates - February 2021 Forward



		3.1 COVID-19 Update

		3.2 - Cultural Resources Tribal Agreements CC Rept-Final 4-14-21

		Meeting Date: April 14, 2021



		3.2 - Attachment A-D Combined 4-14-21

		Attach A - Pechanga Cultural Resources Agreement 4-14-21

		Attach B - Soboba Cultural Resources Agreement 4-14-21

		Attach C - Pechanga AB 168 Consultation Letter 1-29-21

		Attach D - Soboba AB 168 Consultation Letter 1-29-21

		AB Pechanga Cultural Resources Agreement 4-14-21.pdf

		VIII.  Environmental Compliance.  Nothing in this Agreement shall excuse the Lead Agencies or the Developer of the Project from its obligation under any applicable state or federal environmental statute, including, but not limited to California Govern...



		AB 168 Soboba Cultural Resources Agreement 4-14-21.pdf

		VIII.   Environmental Compliance.  Nothing in this Agreement shall excuse the Lead Agencies or the Developer of the Project from its obligation under any applicable state or federal environmental statute, including, but not limited to California Gover...





		3.3 SR 3rd Quarter Budget Review FY20-21 Final

		Meeting Date: April 14, 2021



		3.3 A FY20-21 3rd Quarter Budget Report

		3.3 B Decision Package #1 - ALPR Cameras

		3.3 D Decision Package #2 - City Facility Cameras

		3.4 Measure Z Oversight

		3.4 Applications- MZ

		King, Nolan

		Kovich, Kathleen

		Mayes, Kenneth

		Parks Oversight Application

		Parks Oversight Application Supplemental



		Urlaub, Sheila



		3.5 Applications- MAA

		Charles, Herrera

		AA Committee Volunteer App Interactive

		AA Oversight App Supplemental Interactive



		Kovich, Kathleen

		St. Jarre, John



		3.5 Measure AA Oversight

		3.6 SR New and Updated Position Classification Description and additions to the Approved Personnel revised v2

		3.6 New and Updated Positions Combined Packet

		4.1 Cem Minutes 03-10-2021

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM March 2021

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM March 2021 Voucher Listings

		030421 cemetery district fy 21

		031121 cemetery district fy 21

		032521 cemetery district fy 21



		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM February 2021

		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM February 2021 Detail

		T FEB 2021



		4.4 Cemetery SR Contract Award

		4.4 Agreement with Exhibits

		Design Professional Services Agreement V3

		210311 - Scope - Wildomar - Final

		210311 - Cost Detail - Wildomar - Final



		Charles, Herrera.pdf

		AA Committee Volunteer App Interactive

		AA Oversight App Supplemental Interactive





		Last Name: Herrera

		First Name: Charles

		MI: K

		City: Wildomar

		Zip Code: 92595

		Text3: I have mentored and prepared many young people to become members of the Los Angeles City Fire Department.  I also have taught scene safety, first aid & Incident Command to CERT (Community Emergency Response Team) members of the community in the City of Los Angeles.

		Text1: Have a BS from Texas A&M University in Biomedical Engineering with minors in Computer Science and Mechanical Engineering.  Faculty member of the Los Angeles City College so I can teach and train the Members of the Los Angeles City Fire Department.

		Text2: Have spoken in front of community organizations and City Counsels as a Los Angeles City Fire Captain II.  I would discuss brush clearance to prevent brush fires, emergency responses in the community, Urban Search and Rescue, CERT opportunities, and Emergency Medical Responses.  I have also taught emergency response classes to the membership of the Los Angeles City Fire Department.

		Text4: I have headed projects to compare equipment to be used by the Fire Department from several vendors to determine which is the best value and fit for the job.  I also headed the committee to automate and computerize the hiring process used by the Los Angeles City Fire Department.

		Text5: I Retired in February 2020, after a 36 year career in the Fire Service.  I was a Volunteer Fire Fighter for 5 years in Orange County and then I was hired by the Los Angeles City Fire Department.  I had a 31 year career with them and retired at the rank of Captain II, a Taskforce Commander.  My specialty was Urban Search and Rescue.  I am also a CA State certified Arson Investigator.  I have ridden on both Fire Apparatus and Ambulances in my career.  I am also POST (Peace Officer Standards and Training) Certified.

		Text6: I am a 3rd generation Public Servant.  My Grandfather was a School Teacher and Coach in the Inner City Schools of San Antonio, Texas.  My Father was a career Military Officer and I chose to go into the Fire Service.  I have been a resident of Wildomar for over 24 years and want to be a more active participant in our local community.  I feel that I have some expertise in the area that Measure AA funds are reserved for.  I am looking forward to moving forward in this position.

		1Page: 

		Applicant Name print: Charles Kenneth Herrera 3/8/21

		2Page:      

		Signature2_es_:signer:signature: 

		PRINT NAME: Charles Kenneth Herrera

		Date: 03/08/2021

		1 Have you participated in local government as a committee member commissioner council member or staff  What was your role and what did you learn from it: I have not had the opportunity to work in local government.  I am looking forward to this opportunity.  I have worked for the Los Angeles City Fire Department for 31 years and recently retired.  I still feel the need to give to the community.  I want the opportunity to do so in the community I have lived in for over 24 years.

		2 What is your understanding of the role and responsibilities of the Wildomar Measure AA Citizens Oversight Advisory Committee: To make sure the funds that are collected through this tax are used for public safety first and foremost.  If any funds are left over they can  be used in other ways to assist our community.  My expertise in Fire and Emergency Medical service will be invaluable to this committee.

		3 Why did you apply for the committee and what do you hope to accomplish by your participation: As I mentioned in my application, I Retired in February 2020, after a 36 year career in the Fire Service.  I was a Volunteer Fire Fighter for 5 years in Orange Coundy and then I was hired by the Los Angeles City Fire Department.  I had a 31 year career with them and retired at the rank of Captain II, a Taskforce Commander.  My specialty was Urban Search and Rescue.  I am also a CA State certified Arson Investigator.  I have ridden on both Fire Apparatus and Ambulances in my career.  I am also POST (Peace Officer Standards and Training) Certified.I have spent my life serving people and communities.  It has left a hole in my life that this will help to fill.  I have expertise in Fire and Emergency Medical Services that will be valuable to this committee.I am a Fiscal Conservative and want to make sure the funds from Measure AA will be distributed fairly and correctly to best serve the Citizens of Wildomar.I am very good with working on committees and am an expert in the use of Excel Spreadsheets.

		4 What qualities or experience would you bring that would benefit the Wildomar Measure AA Citizens Oversight Advisory Committee: I have been a 24 year plus resident of Wildomar and care about my community.  I have 36 years of service to citizens as a Fire Fighter and miss being able to help members of my community.Measure AA is something I have an expertise in, Public Safety.  I will use my years of experience to make fiscally responsible decisions on how these funds are used in our Community.

		5 What is your experience with governmental service costs Police Fire Street Maintenance Homelessness or other recurring City Services: I, unfortunately, have not had the hands on budgeting for the Fire Departments I served on.  I am a great team member, leader and fast learner.  I will do my best to make sure that the funds generated from Measure AA will be distributed correctly to benefit the Citizens of the City of Wildomar.

		6 What is your experience with governmental financial reports andor audits: I have none.

		7 Describe your goals andor interest in being a member of the Committee: I am a 3rd generation Public Servant.  My Grandfather was a School Teacher and Coach in the Inner City Schools of San Antonio, Texas.  My Father was a career Military Officer and I chose to go into the Fire Service.  I have been a resident of Wildomar for over 24 years and want to be a more active participant in our local community.  I feel that my 36 years in the Fire Service have have given me some unique expertise in the area of Public Safety that Measure AA funds are reserved for.  I am looking forward to moving forward in this position.






